
Item 1Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 2Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Martha Brown / 854-3465 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive public comments regarding the Program Year 2013 Consolidated 
Annual Performance Evaluation Report for the Community Development 
Block Grant provided by HUD. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), the federal government, through 
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), sponsors 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), a program that provides 
annual grants to cities and counties to develop viable urban communities 
by providing decent housing, a suitable living environment, and by 
expanding economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons.  
 
Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from HUD on an 
annual basis. As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile 
and publish a report detailing the use of CDBG funds and associated 
progress and accomplishments for every program year.  HUD calls this 
annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER).   
 
The CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community 
development activities as well as the County’s overall housing and 
community development efforts.  This year’s CAPER corresponds to 
activities conducted during the 2013 program year spanning October 1, 
2013 to September 30, 2014. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 3Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

On October 28, 2014, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a 
15-day public comment period spanning from November 24, 2014, through 
December 8, 2014, as well as a public hearing on December 2, 2014.  
Notice of the comment period and public hearing was provided in 
newspapers of general circulation, through postal and electronic mailings, 
on the County’s website, and the seven Travis County Community Centers.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends the public hearing to be compliant with HUD regulations 
and Travis County’s Citizen Participation Plan. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Comments may be received in writing beginning November 24, 2014 at 
8:00 a.m. through on December 8, 2014 at 5:00 p.m. The public can 
access the draft document by visiting www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg, by 
visiting any of the seven Travis County Community Centers or by calling 
512-854-3460 to request a copy. The public can submit written comments 
by mailing them to CDBG Program, Travis County HHSVS, P.O. Box 1748, 
Austin, TX 78767 or emailing them to cdbg@traviscountytx.gov 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
No budget impacts are anticipated by this item.  
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
None. 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg
mailto:cdbg@traviscountytx.gov


TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

(CDBG) PROGRAM 

PY 2013 CDBG Annual Report – Public Hearing 
Travis County Commissioners Court 
December 2, 2014 

 
 

 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Project Status Update 

 
 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



OVERVIEW 
• During PY13, one new project was launched and 

completed, and six projects were renewed or 
continued from previous years. 
 

• Of the funds available, $1,800,314 was spent. 
 

• 7,084 people benefitted from CDBG funded projects.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

3 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 PROJECTS 
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



4 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



5 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• In 2010, Austin Habitat for Humanity used over 

a million dollars in CDBG funds to purchase  31 
lots on the Gilbert Lane parcel. 

• Significant construction activity occurred 
during PY13. Fifteen houses were completed, 
and closings occurred on six houses of these 
houses and are currently occupied. 

• The remaining houses will be completed by 
2015.   
 

To apply for a Habitat House,  
contact Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc.  

at (512) 472-8788.   
 

 

  

6 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Land Acquisition 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PY 2006 CLOSE OUT 
The investment of $250,000 resulted in: 
• Creation of 8 new affordable single family 

homes; 
• Creation of affordability for a minimum of 10 

years; 
• Units built to visitability standards and COA 

energy efficiency standards and included fire 
suppression systems; 

• Provision of homes to 6 low-income and 2 
moderate income families; 

• Provision of homes  to 2 families previously 
living in subsidized housing;  

• Leveraged $1,090,057; and 
• Ratio of $1 CDBG: $4.4 Private Funding 

 

 

  

7 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Land Acquisition 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• A Request-for-Qualifications (RFQ) process took place in 

PY11 and an Architectural and Engineering firm was 
selected to administer the design phase of the program.   

• In July of 2011, a Notice to Proceed was issued to the 
chosen firm. 

• During PY12, the Design Phase and the environmental 
assessment were completed.  

• During PY13, the environmental clearance was received. 
• The project was delayed due to an acquisition issue 

which has been resolved and the project is scheduled for 
completion in PY14.  
 

 

  
8 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Lake Oak Estates 

A total of $425,000 was budgeted in PY13 with an additional $345,333 available 
from prior years. $28,029 was expended in PY13 and $126,265 spent to date. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• The project was launched and repairs to seven (7) 

homes were completed in PY12.  
• By the close of PY13, home repairs had been 

completed on 35 homes. 
• Of the 35 home rehabilitated during the PY13:   

– 20 units received ADA accessibility modifications 
– 35 units received repairs to address health and safety 

concerns 
– 32 units received repairs to address major system 

failures 
– 30 units received repairs to address energy efficiency 

9 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Home Rehabilitation 

A total of $134,428 was budgeted in PY13 with an additional $1,258,160 
available from prior years and project savings. $990,746 was expended in PY13 
and $1,136,890 spent total to date. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• Outreach to a total of 153  agencies, school districts, churches, and neighborhood 

associations to inform community members about the social work services 
available. 

• 191 people benefitted from services including case management, referrals, non-
clinical counseling, and crisis intervention.  

• One client received assistance through the Youth and Family Assessment Center 
program.   

• 39 clients were assisted with State or County funded rent or utility assistance 
programs. 

• The project resulted in $22,201 dollars of leveraged funds. 

 

 

  
10 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Social Service Expansion 

In PY13, a total of $75,000 was budgeted and $75,000 was expended. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
 

• Outreach was made to 30 community contacts; 
• An additional seven (7) contacts were reached  
      through advertising; 
• Twenty-nine (29) clients received landlord/tenant  
      counseling;  and  
• One (1) client received fair housing counseling.  
 

 

 

  

11 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Fair Housing Counseling 

In PY13, a total of $50,000 was budgeted in PY13 and $21,556 was expended. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• On October 31, 2013, a flood event caused damage to homes, streets, water 

quality structures, and parks within Travis County. 
 

• On November 4, 2013, the County Judge provided a flood disaster declaration. 
On Friday, December 12, 2013, Governor Rick Perry issued a State Disaster 
Proclamation for Travis and surrounding counties. On December 20, 2013, a 
Presidential Major Disaster Declaration was approved. 
 

• On February 4, 2014 TCCC approved an amendment to the CDBG PY13 Action 
Plan to reallocated funds and add a project that would provide assistance for 
repairs caused by flood damage to the Barkley Meadows Park. 
 

• The work was performed by Smith Contractors and was completed in July 2014.  
 
 

 

 

 

  

12 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Barkley Meadows Park Repair 

In PY13, a total of $547,102 was budgeted and $533,881 was expended. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROJECT STATUS: GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 
• Staff provided significant amounts of technical assistance and training to contractors, 

internal departments, and subrecipients. 
 

• The public comment draft of the Analysis of Impediments (AI) was approved by the Travis 
County Commissioners Court (TCCC) and was posted for public review.  
 

• A substantial amendment was passed to reallocate funds and add the Barkley Meadows 
Park project to the PY13 Action Plan in order to respond to damage caused by flooding.  
 

• The PY12 CAPER, PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan, and PY14 Action Plan were completed on 
time. 
 

• The Travis County CDBG program met its timeliness test in August 2014.  
 

• Staff assisted the Research and Planning Department of HHS/VS in drafting Travis County 
Snapshot from the American Community Survey and an annual Community Impact Report. 

 

 

 

  

13 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Planning & Administration 

In PY13, a total of $171,106 was budgeted and $147,226 was expended. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



OF THE 11 IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE, 5 WERE ADDRESSED 

• Isolation of Low Income Rural Communities 

– Social Work Project and $1 million Geographically Targeted Request for Services 

• Poor Condition of Housing Stock in Unincorporated Areas 

– Home Rehabilitation and Weatherization Programs 

• Persistence of Housing Discrimination 

– Fair Housing Counseling Project 

• Need for Improved Connections between Residents and Employment Opportunity 

– General fund investments in vans from outlying areas to employment centers 

• Increasingly Prohibitive Housing Costs 

– TCHFC Tenant Based Rental Assistance and tax exempt bond programs 

 

  
14 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Fair Housing 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



15 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

CAPER SUBMISSION TIMELINE:  

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: 
• Comments will be accepted beginning at 8:00 am on November 24, 2014 

and ending at 5:00 pm on December 8, 2014. A public hearing will be held 
at 9:00 am on December 2, 2014 at Commissioners Court.   

 
TO ACCESS THE DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT (beginning November 24, 2014): 
• Visit www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 
• Visit any of the seven Travis County Community Centers 
• Or call 512-854-3460 to request a copy 

 
TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS: 
• Mail comments to CDBG Program, Travis County HHSVS,  

P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767  
• Email comments to cdbg@traviscountytx.gov 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PROGRAMA DE SUBSIDIO GLOBAL 
PARA EL DESARROLLO 
COMUNITARIO (CDBG)  

DEL CONDADO DE TRAVIS 
Informe Anual de CDBG para el AP 2013 
Corte de Comisionados del Condado de Travis 
2 de diciembre de 2014 

 
AP = Año Programático 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Estado de Actualización  
de Proyectos 

 
 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



RESUMEN 
• Durante AP13, se lanzó y completó un proyecto 

nuevo y se continuaron o renovaron seis proyectos 
de años anteriores. 
 

• De los fondos disponibles, se gastaron $1,800,314. 
 

• 7,084 personas se beneficiaron de los proyectos 
financiados por CDBG.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

3 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

PROYECTOS DEL AP 2013 
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



4 

Proyectos del Programa de CDBG  
del Condado de Travis Con Respecto a 

Concentraciones de Ingresos Bajo-a-Medianos 
en las Areas No Incorporadas  

Nota: Grupos de bloqueo que están completamente, o casi completamente, 
dentro de las áreas no incorporadas del Condado de Travis se representan en 
gris. Estas áreas no están incluídas en los datos de bajo-a-medianos ingresos. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



5 

Clientes Servidos por el Proyecto de Expansión de Trabaja Social  
Através de los Servicios de Soporte a Familias, por código postal  
durante el AP 2013 (octubre de 2013 hasta septiembre de 2014) 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ESTADO DEL PROYECTO 
• En 2010, Austin Habitat for Humanity utilizó más 

de un millón de dólares en fondos del CDBG para 
comprar 31 lotes en Gilbert Lane. 

• Hubo mucha actividad de construcción durante 
AP13. Se completaron quince casas, y actualmente 
seis están ocupadas por propietarios de bajos 
ingresos. 

• La casas que quedan para construir, se construirán 
durante 2015. 
 

Para aplicar por una Casa de Hábitat,  
comuníquese con Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc.  

al (512) 472-8788. 
 

 

  

6 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Adquisición de Terreno 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



7 

FIN DE AÑO AP 2006 
La inversión de $250,000 resultó en: 
• La creación de 8 viviendas unifamiliares nuevas 

asequibles; 
• La creación de asequibilidad por un mínimo de 10 

años; 
• Unidades construidas a normas de visitación y de 

eficiencia de energía según la Ciudad de Austin, y 
con sistemas de supresión de incendios; 

• La provisión de viviendas a 6 familias de bajos 
ingresos y 2 familias de ingresos moderados; 

• La provisión de viviendas a 2 familias que estaban 
viviendo en casas de subvención;  

• $1,090,057 en fondos compensatorios; y 
• Una proporción de $1 en fondos de CDBG por cada 

$4.4 en Fondos Privados 
 

 

  

Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Adquisición de Terreno 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ESTADO DEL PROYECTO 
• Un proceso de Solicitud de Calificaciones (RFQ, siglas en 

inglés) se llevó acabo en el AP11 y se seleccionó una 
empresa de arquitectura e ingeniería para administrar la 
fase de  diseño del programa.  

• En julio de 2011 una Notificación para Proceder fue 
emitida a la empresa elegida. 

• Los servicios de diseño y el asesoramiento ambiental se 
completaron durante AP12. 

• Durante AP13, se completó la autorización ambiental.   
• El proyecto se retrasó debido a asuntos con la adquisición 

del terreno, los cuales se han resuelto, y se espera 
completar el proyecto durante AP14. 

 

  
8 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Lake Oak Estates 

Habia un total de $425,000 en el presupuesto para AP13 y $345,333 adicional de años 
anteriores. Se gastaron $28,029 en AP13 y un total de $126,265 hasta la fecha. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ESTADO DEL PROYECTO 
• El proyecto comenzó en AP12 y durante ese año se 

repararon siete (7) casas. 
• Las Determinaciones (ambientales) Específicas están 

en proceso y, al cerrar el AP13, se habían reparado 
35 casas. 

• De las 35 casas reparadas durante AP13: 

9 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Rehabilitación de Casas 

Habia un total de $134,428 en el presupuesto para AP13 y $1,258,160 adicional de 
años anteriores y ahorros de proyectos. Se gastaron $990,746  en AP13 y un total de 
$1,136,890 hasta la fecha. 

– 20 unidades recibieron modificaciones para acceso para                              
descapacitados 

– 35 unidades recibieron reparaciones acerca de preocupaciones de salud y seguridad 
– 32 unidades recibieron reparaciones sobre sistemas mayores 
– 30 unidades recibieron reparaciones de energía eficiente 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ESTADO DEL PROYECTO 
• Hubo divulgación pública a un total de 153 agencias, distritos escolares, iglesias, y 

asociaciones de vecinos para informar a los miembros de la comunidad acerca de los 
servicios de trabajo social disponibles. 

• 191 personas se beneficiaron de los servicios que incluyen administración de casos, 
referidos, asesoramientos no clínicos, e intervención en casos de crisis.  

• Un cliente recibió asistencia a través del programa del Centro de Asesoramiento de 
Juventud y Familia (Youth and Family Assessment Center).  

• 39 clientes recibieron asistencia através de programas con fondos estatales o del 
condado para pagar alquiler o facturas de servicios. 

• El proyecto resultó en $22,201 en fondos compensatorios.  

 

 

  
10 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Expansión de Servicios Sociales 

De los $75,000 en el presupuesto de AP13, se gastaron $75,000.   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ESTADO DEL PROYECTO 
 
• Hubo divulgación pública a 30 contactos en la 

comunidad; 
• Se hizon contacto con otros siete através de propaganda; 
• 29 residentes recibieron consejería acerca de derechos de 

propietario/inquilino; y 
• Un residente recibió asesoramiento acerca de vivienda 

justa. 
 

 

 

  
11 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Asesoramiento Acerca de Vivienda Justa 

De los $50,000 en el presupuesto de AP13, se gastaron $21,556.   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ESTADO DEL PROYECTO 
• El 31 de octubre de 2013, hubo inundaciones que causaron daños a casas, calles, 

estructuras de calidad de agua, y parques dentro del Condado de Travis. 
 

• El 4 de noviembre de 2013, el Juez del Condado proveyó una declaracioón de 
desastre debido a las inundaciones. El viernes, 12 de diciembre de 2013, el 
Gobernador Perry emitió una Proclamación de Desastre Estatal para el Condado de 
Travis y condados alrededor. El 20 de diciembre de 2013, una Declaración 
Presidencial de Desastre Mayor fue aprobada. 

 

• El 4 de febrero de 2014, la Corte de Comisionados aprobó una enmienda al Plan de 
Acción del AP13 para realocar fondos y añadir el proyecto del Parque de Barkley 
Meadows al Plan de Acción AP13 para poder responder al daño causado al parque 
debido a las inundaciones 
 

• Las reparaciones fueron llevadas acabo por Smith Contractors y el proyecto se 
completó en julio de 2014.  
 
 

 

 

 

  

12 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Reparaciones al Parque Barkley Meadows 

De los $547,102 en el presupuesto de AP13, se gastaron $533,881.   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ESTADO DEL PROYECTO: ADMINISTRACIÓN GENERAL 
• Personal de CDBG proveyeron una cantidad significativa de asistencia tecnica y 

entrenamiento a contratistas, departamentos internos, y subbeneficiarios. 
• El borrador del Análisis de Impedimientos a Vivienda Justa fue aprobado por la Corte 

de Comisionados del Condado de Travis y se hizo disponisble para revisión pública.  
• Una enmienda substantial se aprobó para realocar fondos y añadir el proyecto del 

Parque de Barkley Meadows al Plan de Acción AP13 para poder responder al daño 
causado al parque debido a las inundaciones. 

• El CAPER de AP12, el Plan Consolidado de AP14-18, y el Plan de Acción de PY14 se 
completaron a tiempo. 

• El programa de CDBG cumplió con la meta de puntualidad en agosto de 2014. 
• Personal de CDBG proveyeron asistencia al Departamento de Investigación y 

Planificación del HHS/VS en la preparación de borradores de dos reportes: Travis 
County Snapshot from the American Community Survey y el reporte anual Community 
Impact Report. 

 

 

  
13 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Planificación y Administración 

De los $171,106 en el presupuesto de AP13, se gastaron $147,226.   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LOGROS DEL AP13:  
Asesoramiento Acerca de Vivienda Justa 

DE LOS 11 IMPEDIMENTOS A VIVIENDA JUSTA, 5 SE ABORDARON 
• Aislación de las Comunidades Rurales de Bajos Ingresos 

– Proyecto de Servicios Sociales y $1 millón en una Solicitud para Servicios 
Geográficamente Dirigidos 

• Mal Estado de las Casas en las Areas No Incorporadas 
– Programas de Rehabilitación y Climatización de Casas 

• Persistencia de la Discriminación en la Vivienda 
– Proyecto de Consejería Acerca de Vivienda Justa 

• La Necesidad de Mejorar las Conecciones entre los Residentes y las Oportunidades 
de Empleo 
– Inversión de fondos generales para comprar camionetas para servir las áreas periféricas a 

los centros de empleo 

• Costo de Viviendas Cada Vez Más Altos 
– Programa de TCHFC de Asistencia a Inquilinos Para la Renta y Programa de Bonos Exentos 

de Impuestos 

  
Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 14 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



15 Programa de CDBG del Condado de Travis, 2013 

CRONOGRAMA PARA SUMISIÓN DEL CAPER  

PERÍODO DE COMENTARIOS DEL PÚBLICO: 
• Se aceptarán comentarios del público desde las 8 de la mañana el 24 de 

noviembre de 2014 hasta las 5 de la tarde el 8 de diciembre de 2014. 
• Una audiencia pública se llevará acabo el 2 de diciembre de 2014 a las 9 de 

la mañana en la Corte de los Comisionados.   
 

PARA OBTENER EL INFORME ANUAL PRELIMINAR (comenzando el 24  
de noviembre de 2014): 
• Visite www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 
• Visite cualquiera de los siete Centros Comunitarios del Condado de Travis 
• O llame al 512-854-3460 para solicitar una copia 

 

PARA SOMETER COMENTARIOS POR ESCRITO: 
• Envíelos por correo a: CDBG Program, Travis County HHSVS,  

P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767  
• Envíelos por correo electrónico a: cdbg@traviscountytx.gov 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:            December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
APPROVE RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF HOUSE THE HOMELESS’ EFFORTS ADVOCATING FOR 
LIVING WAGE, PREVENTING HOMELESSNESS, AND OTHER STRUCTURAL CHANGES TO 
IMPROVE THE QUALITY OF LIFE.  
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 5Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Item 6Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 7Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 8Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 9Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 10Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 11Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jesus Angel Gómez/512-854-1187; Marvin 
Brice, CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent/512-854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Award for Professional Consulting 
Services, Contract No. 4400002300, to Judge W. Jeanne Meurer, d.b.a. 
Juvenile Justice Solutions. 

Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the 
statutes. 

 Travis County Juvenile Probation Department wishes to obtain 
professional consulting services to assist in the implementation of a 
Local Commitment Program pursuant to the 83rd Texas Legislature’s 
enactment of SB 511 authorizing the commitment of juveniles in Travis 
County to a local post-adjudication secure correctional facility under 
Section 152.0016, Human Resources Code, and Section 54.04011, 
Family Code. The enabling legislation provides that juveniles in Travis 
County who have committed a felony offense on or after December 1, 
2013, may be committed to the local facility in lieu of commitment to a 
state-operated facility at the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD).   

Through this legislation, the leadership of the Travis County 
Commissioner’s Court, the Travis County Juvenile Board, and the efforts 
of the TCJPD, a comprehensive plan for services and levels of 
supervision has been implemented to serve juveniles who are 
committed to our local post-adjudication secure correctional facility, also 
known as the Intermediate Sanction Center (ISC).  The ISC has been in 
operation since 200l.   

Travis County is currently the only county in Texas operating this type of 
local commitment program. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 12Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Judge Meurer will provide consulting services to include the review of 
policies and procedures, review of programmatic development, 
evaluation and other services on an as-needed basis. 

 The Juvenile Probation Department is requesting, and Travis County’s 
Risk Management has approved the waiving of insurance requirements 
for this contract. 

Section 5.9 of the Contract states:  Exemption from County Purchasing 
Act. Pursuant to Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code Ann. §262 et seq., 
Commissioners Court herby orders that this Agreement is exempt from 
the requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a contract 
for the purchase of personal or professional services. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  As-Needed Agreement NTE $100,000.00    
Contract Type:   Professional Services Agreement  
Contract Period:  12 months from issuance of Notice of Award  
 

 Funding Information: 
  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: N/A 
  Cost Center/Product Code/Commitment Item: 1450010001/ 

80101500/ 511890 
  Comments: 

 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



OF

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

JUDGE W. JEANNE MEURER
d.b.a. JUVENILE JUSTICE SOLUTIONS

FOR

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 4400002300

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 2 of 28

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Definitions 3
2.0 Term 4
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibi1ities4 4
4.0 Coordination with the County 6
5.0 Invoicing and Payment for Services 7
6.0 Records Confidentiality and Access 9
7.0 Amendments/Modifications 10
8.0 Insurance Requirements II
9.0 Miscellaneous 11

Approvals 16

Attachments

Attachment A — Scope of Service 17
Attachment B — Fee Structure 19
Attachment C — Assumed Name Records Certificate 20
Attachment D — Resume 22
Attachment E — Ethics Affidavit including: 24

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons 25
Attachment F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and

Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts 27

a
C%J

—

U-IC)
>0
—C)

—

ti-I> -..

S

0
c-i

.r • i. .•

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 3 of 28

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Professional Consulting Services

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the following parties: Travis County,
Texas, (the “COUNTY”) and Judge W. Jeanne Meurer, d.b.a. Juvenile Justice Solutions (the
“CONTRACTOR”).

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to enter into an Agreement for the purpose of obtaining
professional consulting services to facilitate the implementation of a Local Commitment
Program pursuant to recently enacted legislation that is unique to Travis County, and;

WhEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the professional ability and expertise to provide such
services;

NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1.0. DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement,

1.1 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means the Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes,
or her successor.

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley, or her successor.

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and Judge W. Jeanne Meurer, d.b.a. Juvenile
Justice Solutions.

1.5 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

1.5.1 Paying or receiving any money or other valuable thing in exchange for
personal services or for purchase or use of any property interest, either real
or personal, either legal equitable; or

1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, services, or goods or otherwise
creating or having in existence any legal obligation or debt;

1.5.3 but does not include

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 4 of 28

1.5.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key
Contracting Person at a posted, published, or marked price available to the
public,

1.5.3.2 any fmancial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person
for personal, family or household purposes in accordance with pricing
guidelines applicable to similarly situated individuals with similar risks as
determined by Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and

1.5.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on
behalf of Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational
corporation by an agent, employee or other representative of Contractor
who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have
known about the Contract.

1.6 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the
Affidavits attached to this contract and marked as Attachment E.

1.7 “Director” means the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer of Travis County, who will
administer this Agreement, or her designated representative.

2.0 TERM

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution
by all parties and shall continue for one (1) year.

2.2 Extension Term(s). The Initial Term of this Agreement may be extended by
written agreement of the parties.

2.3 Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving
the other party written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days before
the effective date of the termination.

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the
services and activities described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment
A to this Agreement, which is expressly incorporated herein and made a part
hereof.

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all
discretionary powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of
professional ethics and best professional judgment.

3.3 Independent Contractor. COUNTY and CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledge
and agree that CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor, operating solely in

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 5 of 28

that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities applicable to
her as an independent contractor.

3.3.1. The relationship of the parties is an independent contractor relationship
and is not and shall not be construed or interpreted to be a partnership, joint
venture or agency.

3.3.2. CONTRACTOR does not have the authority to enter into any contract in
the name of the COUNTY or otherwise bind COUNTY in any way without the
express written consent of COUNTY, and COUNTY does not have the authority
to enter into any contract in the name of CONTRACTOR or otherwise bind
CONTRACTOR in any way without the express written consent of
CONTRACTOR.

3.4 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein,
CONTRACTOR is prohibited from hiring or subcontracting with any other
person to perform any of the duties that CONTRACTOR has accepted as part of
this Agreement.

3.5 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and
activities pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section
504, and with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,
Public Law 101-336 [S.933j.

3.6 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county,
and city laws, rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the
services described herein and the performance of all obligations undertaken
pursuant to this Agreement.

3.7 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is
not currently delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax
Assessor Collector.

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no federally appropriated funds
have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any federal contract, the
making of any federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3.9 Contractor Requests for Information. CONTRACTOR may communicate all
requests for direction and factual information relating to services performed
pursuant to this Agreement to the Director and may rely on all factual information
supplied by the Director in response to her requests. However, the Director shall

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 6 of 28

not serve as the agent of COUNTY or Commissioners Court or any elected
official of COUNTY for any purpose other than conveying factual information. In
performing the Services, CONTRACTOR will use all information supplied by the
COUNTY without having independently verified the same and CONTRACTOR
assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information.

3.10 Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall report on the status, progress, and general
nature of the work performed to date pursuant to this Agreement.

3.11 Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall be available to the Commissioners Court,
the Travis County Judge and Commissioners, the Travis County Juvenile Board
or their representatives for questions with respect to the services being performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

3.12 Professional Licensure/Certification. CONTRACTOR shall maintain all
necessary licenses and certifications related to the professional services being
provided hereunder, and shall perform all services under this Agreement
according to the applicable federal, state, and local rules and regulations. In the
event licensure or certification expires, is revoked, suspended, probated, or is
canceled, CONTRACTOR shall inform COUNTY of such event within five (5)
working days.

3.13 Standard of Care. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and responsibilities required of
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement using at least that standard of care which a
reasonably prudent professional in Travis County, Texas, would use in similar
circumstances. CONTRACTOR warrants the duties within this Agreement shall
be performed in a professional and prudent manner. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be construed to relieve CONTRACTOR of this duty.

3.14 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary
Exclusion from Participation in Contracts Exceeding $100,000.00

The Contractor certifies, by entering into this Contract, that neither it nor its prineinals
are debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. The
Contractor shall include this certification requirement in all subeontracts to this
Agreement that exceed $100,000.00.

*Form is provided as Attachment G*

4.0 COORDINATION WITH THE COUNTY

4.1 Authority of the Director. The Director or her designee will act on behalf of
COUNTY with respect to the work to be performed under this Agreement. The
Director shall have complete authority to interpret and define in writing
COUNTY’s policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’s services.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 7 of 28

The Director may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive
information.

4.2 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate
with COUNTY staff and other contractors as reasonable and necessary, and as
required by the Director.

4.3 Disputes. It is specifically agreed that any disputes arising hereunder shall be
submitted to the Director with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. The Director shall
have complete authority for the purpose of resolving technical matters. In all other
cases, the parties will follow the procedures for dispute resolution set out in
Section 9.9 of this Agreement.

5.0 INVOICING AND PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

5.1 For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services
described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, by CONTRACTOR pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in
accordance with the Fee Structure, which is attached hereto as Attachment B and
made a part hereof.

5.1.1 Not to exceed amount: $100,000.00
5.1.2 Maximum number of hours: 1000.00
5.1.3 Additional Fees: None

5.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the
costs of any services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY’s
satisfaction and given COUNTY’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, in accordance with the mutually agreed upon terms of this Agreement
and the services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services. COUNTY’S
obligation to make any payment to CONTRACTOR is dependent upon
completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and professional manner,
and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR’s profession.

5.3 Invoicing. Within ten (10) days after the completion of each deliverable, as
described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, but in no event more often than
monthly, CONTRACTOR shall invoice County for services rendered pursuant to
this Agreement. Each invoice shall include a description of the services and
completed activities performed by CONTRACTOR and any deliverables for
which payment is being requested.

All invoices may be emailed to Michael Williams, Accountant Lead, at:

Michael.Williams@traviscountytx.gov

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 8 of 28

Or mailed to:

Travis County Juvenile Probation Department
Attn: Financial Services.
2515 South Congress Ave.
Austin, TX. 78704

With a copy mailed to:

Travis County Auditor
Attn: Nicki Riley, CPA County Auditor
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, TX 78767

5.4 Payment. If Director determines that CONTRACTOR has satisfactorily
performed the services and activities for which payment is being requested
(including timely delivery of deliverables) in accordance with Attachment A,
Scope of Services, Director will approve the invoice and payment will be made to
CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days following such approval. Accrual and
payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of
the Texas Government Code.

5.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has
been paid to CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has
resulted in overpayment to CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by
CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days after the refund is requested
by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to
COUNTY within thirty (30) days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference
against the next advance or payment payable to CONTRACTOR.

5.6 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an
Internal Revenue Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and
Certification that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its
rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in a form satisfactory to the
County Auditor before any funds are payable under this Agreement.

5.7 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt.

5.7.1 In accordance with Section 154.045, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code, if notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer
evidencing the indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the State, the COUNTY or a
salary fund, a warrant may not be drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the
CONTRACTOR, or an agent or assignee of CONTRACTOR until:

5.7.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the
debt is outstanding; and

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 9 of 28

5.7.1.2 the debt is paid.

5.7.2 “Debtt’ includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising
from written agreements with the COUNTY.

5.7.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CONTRACTOR to the
outstanding balance of debt for which notice is made under Section 5.7.1.1 above,
if the notice includes a statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY to
CONTRACTOR may be applied to reduce the outstanding debt.

5.8 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or
performances rendered by CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this
Agreement.

5.9 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code Ann.
§262 et g., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt
from the requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is an Agreement
for the purchase of personal or professional services.

5.10 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget
planning and adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this
Agreement for the COIJNTY’s following fiscal year, COUNTY may terminate
this Agreement after giving CONTRACTOR twenty (20) days written notice that
this Agreement is terminated due to the failure to fund it.

6.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS

6.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the
confidentiality of records and other information relating to clients in accordance
with the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and
applicable professional ethical standards. This provision shall not be construed as
limiting the right of COUNTY access to juvenile information. Upon
authorization from COUNTY to render juvenile files and records anonymous,
CONTRACTOR agrees to mask such information in a way that will not obstruct
COUNTY’S monitoring and evaluation duties in any way.

6.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and
shall make reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate
records, information, and documentation (including all accounting records)
relating to services provided under the terms of this Agreement for a period of
three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs
later. CONTRACTOR shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon
written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost mutually agreed to by COUNTY and
CONTRACTOR.

6.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have
access to any and all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR,

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 10 of 28

which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and documentation in a
readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their
authorized representatives.

6.4 Audit. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any audit hereunder must
(i) be at COUNTY’s sole expense, (ii) be upon reasonable advance notice to
CONTRACTOR and during CONTRACTOR’s normal business hours, (iii) not
unreasonably interfere with the business operations of CONTRACTOR, (iv)
absent CONTRACTOR’s default, be limited to once in any twelve (12) month
period, unless otherwise required by law, (v) be limited to books, records and
personnel of CONTRACTOR directly relating to the services performed under
this Agreement and (vi) at CONTRACTOR’s request, be subject to the execution
of a confidentiality agreement satisfactory to CONTRACTOR. In connection
with any such audit, CONTRACTOR shall under no circumstances be required to
breach (i) any third party client or (ii) any applicable law. CONTRACTOR
acknowledges COUNTY’s obligation to comply with the Texas Public
Information Act to provide documents requested by the public in order to avoid
statutory penalties.

7.0 AMENDMENTS/MODIFICATIONS

7.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to
the terms of this Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed
by each party. IT IS ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO
OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR REPRESENTATWE OF COUNTY HAS
ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT OR
ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

7.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to
the terms of this Agreement or any attachment to it to the Director with a copy to
the Purchasing Agent.

7.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that the
Purchasing Agent has certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to
applicable law (specifically the County Purchasing Act, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code,
Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy, as approved by the
Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve
Amendment requests under this Agreement. The Purchasing Agent will advise
CONTRACTOR as to such authority upon submission of a request for
Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit any request to the
Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing
Agent to sign the Amendment.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 11 of 28

8.0 iNSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR insurance requirements usually set out in a separate Attachment, are
hereby WAiVED by the Travis County Commissioners Court, upon execution of this
Agreement.

9.0 MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS,
AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS,
LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, AND
LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF
LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY TO
OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY ACT OR OMISSION BY
CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARJSING OUT
OF OR iN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR
UNDER THIS CONTRACT.

9.2 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before
an administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or
other entity against CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance
of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall give written notice to COUNTY of the
claim or other action within three (3) working days after being notified of it or the
threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity
that made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to
institute any type of action or proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or
proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or
proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against whom
this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the
manner provided herein. Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall
furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent papers received by CONTRACTOR
with respect to these claims or actions.

9.3 CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable copyrights,
patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may
exist on materials used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the
COUNTY shall not be liable for any infringement of those rights and any rights
granted to the COUNTY shall apply for the duration of this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify COUNTY, its officers, agents, and employees
from all claims, losses, damages, causes of action, and liability of every kind
including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees for damages to any
person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement
of existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this
Agreement.

9.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein,
COUNTY may, upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 12 of 28

Agreement in whole or in part and withhold further payments to CONTRACTOR,
until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement or the
Agreement is terminated as provided herein.

9.5 Non-Waiver of Default.

9.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed
as a waiver of any breach or default of CONTRACTOR, which then exists or may
subsequently exist.

9.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and
any payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to
COUNTY under it. Any right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the
exercise of any other right or remedy under this Agreement or under any law nor
shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver
of any other rights or remedies.

9.6 Forfeiture of Contract. If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key
Contracting Person during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of
execution of this Agreement or does business with any Key Contracting Person at
any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to the full
performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this
Agreement and COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and
recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to
CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement, provided, however, that this section
may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis
County Ethics Policy.

9.7 Entire Agreement.

9.7.1 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to
this Agreement related to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made
prior to the execution of this Agreement have been reduced to writing and are
contained in this Agreement or in the policies and procedures approved by
Commissioners Court for County as referenced herein. Any prior agreements,
promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this document
are of no force and effect.

9.7.2 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are
hereby made a part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by
CONTRACTOR in accordance with all the provisions of this Agreement.

9.7.2.1 Attachment A — Scope of Services
9.7.2.2 Attachment B — Fee Structure
9.7.2.3 Attachment C — Assumed Name Records Certificate
9.7.2.4 Attachment D — Resume
9.7.2.5 Attachment E — Ethics Affidavit including:

Exhibit 1 — List of Key Contracting Persons

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 13 of 28

9.7.2.6 Attachment F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts.

9.8 Notices:

9.8.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this
Agreement by one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and
deemed to have been given immediately if delivered in person to the address set
forth in this section for the party to whom the notice is given, or on the third day
following mailing if placed in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, by registered or
certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address
herein specified.

9.8.2 County Address. The address of COUNTY for all purposes under this
Agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or her successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

9.8.3 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes
under this Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be:

Judge W. Jeanne Meurer
19301 Moorlynch Ave.
Pflugerville, Texas 78660

And/or
6550 Donnell Pkwy
Weston, CO 81091

E-mail: meurerwj(ágmaii.corn

9.8.4 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by
giving written notice of the change in compliance with Section 9.8. Any change
in the address shall be reported within fifteen (15) days of the change.

9.9 Dispute Resolution. The Purchasing Agent will act as the County representative
in disputes where the CONTRACTOR has been unable to successfully resolve
such dispute with the Director. Any document, notice or correspondence in
relation to the dispute at this stage not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent is
void unless otherwise stated in this Contract. If CONTRACTOR does not agree
with any document, notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the
Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the CONTRACTOR must
submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) calendar days
after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence outlining the exact point
of disagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will provide CONTRACTOR

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 14 of 28

with a written response to the dispute containing the final resolution by
COUNTY. If the matter is not resolved to the CONTRACTOR’s satisfaction in
this final notice, CONTRACTOR may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the
Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. This Notice of Appeal must
be submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the final unsatisfactory
reply. CONTRACTOR then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court
and the Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the
Commissioners Court agenda.

9.10 Mediation. When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute
arising under this Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon
mediator, or person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction for mediation
as described in the Tex. Civ. Prac. and Rem. Code, Section 154.023. Unless both
parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not
constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All communications
within the scope of the mediation must remain confidential as described in
Section 154.073, Tex. Civ. Prac. and Rem Code, unless both parties agree, in
writing, to waive the confidential:ity.

9.11 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or
provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

9.11.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this
Agreement held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or
ineffective shall not impair, invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement,
but the effect thereof shall be limited to the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph
or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

9.11.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be
performable in Travis County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this
Agreement shall be in the City of Austin, Travis County, Texas.

9.11.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by
this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party. It is
acknowledged by CONTRACTOR that no officer, agent, employee or
representative of COUNTY has any authority to assign any part of this Agreement
unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court.

9.12 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement, which by their terms are
performable after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement, shall
survive such termination, expiration, or end and remain fully performable.

9.13 Interpretational Guidelines

9.13.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this
Agreement, the time shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 15 of 28

last day of the period. If the last day of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or
a day that COUNTY has declared a holiday for its employees, these days shall be
omitted from the computation.

9.13.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be
construed to include any other gender and words in either number shall be
construed to include the other unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires
otherwise.

9.13.3 Headings. The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this
Agreement have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter
covered by that section or subsection and are not to be used in construing this
Agreement.

9.14 Conflict of Interest. If required by Chapter 176, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code,
CONTRACTOR shall complete and file the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas
78751. CONTRACTOR shall update this Questionnaire by September 1 of each
year for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176 of the Local
Government Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire
becomes incomplete or inaccurate, CONTRACTOR shall submit an updated
Questionnaire. CONTRACTOR should note that the law requires the COUNTY
to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet
website.

9.15 Limitation on Liability. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary (a)
neither CONTRACTOR nor the COUNTY will be liable to(, the other in
connection with the services to be provided by CONTRACTOR hereunder or any
matter relating to such services for any indirect, special, punitive, consequential or
incidental damages, including loss of profits; and (b) CONTRACTOR will not be
liable to COUNTY to the extent any claim or claims individually or in the
aggregate exceed two times (2x) the total professional fees paid to
CONTRACTOR for the services pursuant to the applicable Scope of Services
excluding the following: claims resulting from (i) CONTRACTOR’s fraud,
willful misconduct or failure or refusal to comply with applicable law; (ii)
CONTRACTOR’s damage to tangible property; (iii) CONTRACTOR’s actions
that cause personal injury or death to any person; (iv) CONTRACTOR’s breach
of its coiifldentiality obligations hereunder; and (v) CONTRACTOR’s
infringement of a third party’s intellectual property rights (except to the extent the
applicable infringement was caused by the COUNTY), in each case, in
connection with the provision of the Services. This provision applies to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law and to all causes of action, including, without
limitation, breach of contract, breach of warranty, negligence, strict liability,
misrepresentation and other torts.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 16 of 28

DUPLICATE ORIGINALS

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

Judge W. Jeanne Meurer Travis County

Date: /j-i9-02a79

By:
Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Date:

Approved as to Legal Form By:

Funds Verified By:

Assistant County Attorney

Nicki Riley, CPA, Travis County Auditor

Approved by Purchasing:

/Lflfr /(/e,eV

Name and Title (Printed)

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 17 of 28

ATTACHMENT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Background

In 2013 the 83’ Texas Legislature enacted SB 511, which authorizes the commitment of
juveniles in Travis County to a local post-adjudication secure correctional facility under Section
152.00 16, Human Resources Code, and Section 54.04011, Family Code. The enabling legislation
provides that juveniles in Travis County who have committed a felony offense on or after
December 1, 2013, may be committed to the local facility in lieu of commitment to a state-
operated facility at the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD). Once a juvenile board has
established a policy authorizing the operation of a local commitment program, the juvenile board
or a local juvenile probation department may operate a secure facility to confine committed
juveniles, as well as a program to release such committed offenders on parole supervision. The
Travis County Juvenile Board established a policy authorizing the Travis County Juvenile
Probation Department (TCJPD) to operate the local commitment program that became effective
December 1, 2013.

Through this legislation, the TCJPD may keep juveniles committed to the program until the age
of 19. Depending on the type of sentence, the legislation also provides for a hearing to either
transfer a committed juvenile offender to the Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) to
serve the remainder of his or her sentence, or to transfer the person to TDCJ adult parole
services.

Travis County is currently the only county in Texas operating this type of local commitment
program. Through the leadership of the Travis County Commissioner’s Court, the Travis
County Juvenile Board, and the efforts of the TCJPD, a comprehensive plan for services and
levels of supervision has been implemented to serve juveniles who are committed to our local
post-adjudication secure correctional facility, also known as the ISC. The ISC has been in
operation since 2001.

The program in Travis County is referred to as the Local Commitment Program (LCP) and any
juvenile who is accepted into the program must be committed under the requirements of the new
law. The enabling legislation is set to expire on December 31, 2018, unless the Legislature
decides to continue or even expand the program. Evaluation and review of the LCP during this
time could have a major impact on juvenile justice practices and policies statewide.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 18 of 28

Tasks

CONTRACTOR will provide the following professional consulting services to assist the
Department with long-term strategic planning and implementation of the Local Commitment
Program (LCP):

Task I: Analyze data related to the performance, efficacy and recidivism rates of
rehabilitative and treatment services and programs provided in the LCP.

Task II: Analyze performance measures and review data for use in strategic long-
term planning.

Task III: Consult on fiscal planning for the Department to include review of
opportunities for county and state funding, and analyze relevant data.

Task 1V: Serve as a resource regarding the LCP and present information to local,
state and legislative bodies, and other entities.

The above-listed tasks and services may be provided by telephone, written correspondence or via
e-mail. Services may also be provided in person and by remote location, as requested and agreed
to by both parties. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit CONTRACTOR from providing
professional consulting services to any other entity or agency concerrnng juvenile justice issues.

Limit to Services

At no time during the term of this Agreement shall CONTRACTOR perform any of the
following:

1. Offer gifts, money, or other things of value to any member of the legislature or their staff,
or any state official, in the interest of influencing legislation including that in violation of
Chapter 36 of the Texas Penal Code or not reported in accordance with Chapter 305 of
the Texas Government Code;

2. Secretly approach a member at the legislature or their staff with a view to influence that
member’s action, in a maimer that does not allow the presentation of opposite views;

3. Exert personal or other improper influence upon a member of the legislature or their staff.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 19 of 28

ATTACHMENT B
FEE STRUCTURE

As compensation for satisfactory performance of requested professional consulting services
detailed in Attachment A, Scope of Services, COUNTY will pay CONTRACTOR $100.00 per
hour,

• Not to exceed: $100,000.00
• Maximum number of hours: 1000.00
• Additional Fees: None

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



co PageZOof28Contract 4400002300

ATTACHMENT C
ASSUMED NAME RECORDS CERTIFICATE

BUSInESS MdISSS 19301 Mooslynch Ave

c Pflutzervile sesteZ1L__ ZIpCode78660

Period (not to exceed tesyceis) dwing whidi the assumed name will be used is 1213 1/2
BuSIns is to be conducted as (check one)

j Sole P ietixbip Q Joint Vcntunt [J Real Estate lnvmemcetTnus 0 lobe Stock Conny
D Limited Pannemhip Q Sole Ptitiim I] General Pamasahip 0 Othte (name type)

I1WE, the undersigned. arc theowna(s) ofthe above btninms and my(oIx name(s) end ad hte(es) given islarc late and correct anti thezc isfaaenoownership(s) ni mid business olberihan those listed herein below. Names ofowners

Name W. Jeanne Meurer

Residence Address 19301 Moortynch Ave city Ff1 emlie Staie3, Zip 78660

Name Sicnatwe

Residence Address Cily Slate_ Zip
NOITIC Sipnotiaar

tecslucnce,suwum City Slain_ Zip
(tLO.AL51 Hacir-4,i’FOR YNOTARYAND OFIRE COhR1 DEPIJTZ The Stie of IàmemeiGamly ijllw

Rem. them aigaathosd)e snthindypereo,mflyqr4armeeA 3a14al lOe1feV
kios Iomela 6e (hepereonfr) wh senate(s) inbeszebre,thorlns d,ejbagtirg ararnt tesdath,owkdgedroieedust he/s h.a!gcdtheswoepwpaseasdcorctWuruion rhstebr Given usde’wqIJscolqfqtce. on TISI1L. ,)L3I4

S1weefN4PsUk*rwdfortheIeofweo.-CJe,*oftheCowre Llepwy SamufthNoeraryPubdeorCk,*ofthe Cowl, Deputy

CHERYL I. IIARWIG
NOTARY PuBLIc

STATE OP COLORADO
NOTARY DC 2001400T400

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES MARCH00

MliegAdnePO llm 149325,Aatlia,ltzat 78114-9325
Phone (512) 554-9108Dana DeBeauvofr TountyQes* w.wnasincmeyclerkoat

5501 At lB emd.A,mrn.1ten 78751
WL

t0Atten,1tont75501

ASSUMED NAME RECORDS CERTIFICAIE OF OWNERSHIP
FOR uNINCORPORATED BUSINESS OR PROFESSION

,Nsticar’CertiRnaan ofOwen p’ntevebdcoly firap&adectteor 10een teen Iberteefitod CksOffic(CI,* -Secitar I,Titie4cfIbcBenen1CorieneiecCodsThaCerti5erIepr
.-

Btessncss Name Juvenile Justzce Solutions 11JI) FOR RIOOPp

UI’UKiW*IIUF4 WU8J(L 1JIJt.UMNT SHUULU me KteI1JKNM)
(Jo be completed by appliexnt)

In the spaces below, clearly print the name, address, cit staic, and zip codc
where Ibis doimentshouidbejeturncd

W. Jeanne Meurer

19301 Moortvnch Ave

P1)ugerville, TX 78660 Fofkzhotloapneeiuoi D.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



SAtrW4415bOO23OO 0% cc Page 21 of 28

U TI43I4WflT ri
aM

rn’usM MTnu)t W 4A3t31

etuiø’ -c,ri yy

(tASS -J

c ‘ T;$tsrnussfr

ri cn! & ts tteI anxa’ Vr ,vc I neit atats:t ônwb rre;
4r &rvvij

er4y ttnq ccirtco1e tb .3 tf*’ ttiO ft\ai çjtie 4 s :
?Sfl9VZ)9LiD ‘

ciafr’r ar Qfl 5np tc4t *t evt,t :Mh4 UkkJCI ii Gfll€e
t3,t1 qr w e1oi? ‘r rtci mcgo I at1coq •

fltob br’ nintY1t

FILED AND RECORDED 3o or eruowi A
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS } * 4W)Ufl ‘t#IC,

2jg44t:.âwast.tLi.
4-

TiA:i%_ n
Oct 16 2014 II 56 All 2014155451

CLINTONS $24 øt ‘ t )t C

Dana DeBeauvasr Cwinty Clerk

Travis County TEXAS iJO$O)QM J&’ZWIULlo
s1 ç_ 2401t%4taz ILj

flCLt )QG NflWU MMD iT icer1 cYflflnt in,rnertW
nsmtt

SL1D1 h nD I tagi d$y eØul. tit C &)O ‘drresQ ‘ I
riq -3.C’D ,IO ç LI 4 cx& ytra ‘t

(a b1 2 sc1pkrtt \#,z eltne’,t4 fl* aeficreqa

ØQtZVL gjn ‘&A P’4itioqc auc 3 tt iC N c) eoit -V

:dfri4S9AC7tVFA51Tkt{vI tc A
bc6 et4V s9cc-c°i t””n WtE-OOrn. tooa twz itç ID

G)Q499J

avor kr lbuL e’ 11fVtnt)h 10303

fl3 sc2 -c -; :1 \‘haa ju ttot:r4uQ44 noe1;
r to JJ nikuA k.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 22 of 28

ATTACHMENT D
RESUME

Judge W. Jeanne Meurer

19301 Moorlynch Avenue
Pflugerville, Texas 78660
meurerwj@gmail.com

512-470-6227

Senior District Judge from Travis County Texas, retired, specializing in
juvenile law

• Expertise in local commitment program development, performance
and effectiveness

• Expertise in public policy development and implementation
• Specialties in program data review, strategic planning, fiscal

planning and data analysis
• A resource to local, state and legislative leaders and the

community on commitment programs and juvenile justice policy
and initiatives.

CURRENT
Individual consultant d.b.a. Juvenile Justice Solutions

JUDICIAL BACKGROUND
January 2009-April 30, 2014: Senior District Judge. Court Legal
Management Administration Director, Travis County Juvenile Probation
Department.

3989-December 2008: District Judge, elected, 98th District Court, Travis
County, Texas. (Court of general jurisdiction, hearing civil cases with
specialties in juvenile law, family law & child abuse)

1984-1989: Travis County District Courts’ first appointed Associate Judge

ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES
Chair of Travis County Juvenile Board 2000-2008 and 1991-1998. Vice-Chair
1998-2000.

Local Administrative Judge of Travis County 1998-2000

EDUCATION
Sam Houston State University, Bachelor of Sciences, 1975
University of Texas at Austin, Doctor of Jurisprudence, 1977

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 23 of 28

PROFESSIONAL HONORS
Distinguished Service Award, Juvenile Justice Association of Texas. 2009and 2005
lady Bird Humanitarian of the Year Award, American Red Cross of Central
Texas. 2009
Community Empowerment Award, Bikers Against Child Abuse. 2008
Distinguished Service Award, Cityof Austin. 2008
Lifetime Achievement Award, Capitol Area Asian American Democrats
Association, 2008
AFLClQ Ufetime Achievement Award, 2008
Human Rights Award. Christian Women United In Austin. 2008
Judge of the Year. American Board of Trial Advocates. Central Texas. 2008
Barbara Jordan Public Service Award, The 2008 Barbara Joron Notional
Forum on Public Policy, 2008
Women of Distinction Award. Girl Scouts of America Lone Star Council.
2007
Award for Excellence in Child Maltreatment Prevention. Children’s Task
force of Central Texas, 2004
Torch Bearer Award, Texas Juvenile Probotion CommissiOn, 2003
Best District Judge. Austin Chronicle. Critics, Politics & Personalities. 2003
Outstanding Children of Champions Award. Children’s Advocacy. 2002
New Juvenile Court facility dedicated and named the W. Jeanne Meurer
Intermediate Sanctions Center, by Travis County Commissioners Court.
2001
Judge of the Year. Austin Police Department Victim ServIces, 2000
Texas Association Against Sexual Assault Justice Award, 1997
Best Friends to Kids In Trouble Award, 1997
Distinguished Alumni Award. Sam Houston State University, 1996
Outstanding Achievement Award, Travis County Women Lawyer
Association, 1993

I ATYF.IA YJC’kI
I iiaui y5

DOPSOJOD i’.’ ‘iTIt’
o,t’oc cn rTOt,

AtVo I9X oi.) vt

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 24 of 28

ATTACHMENT E
ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

6L6I’4()

STATE OFEXAS
COUNTY OFRWIS L4 fL4rA

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date: /f,14I 2o) /
Name ofAffiant: ?v. ...Jg.4,J,s1c /%1E7

Title of Affiant: 3i)
Business Name of Propg nt:-.1 ie L e.. c r S
County of Proponent: IRMi s

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list ofkey contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached
to this affidavit as Exhibit “1”.

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit “1” to this Affidavit.

6. Afflant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit “1” with whom Proponent is doing
business or has done business during the 365 da e d immediat fore the date of this affidavit whose
name is not disclosed in the solicitation.

Signa re ofFfiuiit
I ,/,RLyAJ(/1 ,4-pc_

Ad ess, 73c 7C-€4

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by LiJ”’ I4J”lC jYe.w on AI.ve.’4.t /4’, 2OJ.

Notary Public, State of (i,/o c
Typed or printed name ofnotary g,J/, J4 4
My commission expires: 7/IS/Zo / 9

BRADLEY ABEYTA
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF COLORADO
NOTARY ID 20144027760

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 0711812018

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 25 of 28

EXHIBIT 1 TO ATTACHMENT E
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

November 3g 2014

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thornpson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant David Salazar
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct I (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felieitas Chavez
Executive Assistant Sue Spears
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant
Executive Assistant Sara Krause
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charyin Daugherty Consultant
Executive Assistant Bob Moore
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow
Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner*
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
Interim County Executive, Planning & Budget Leroy Nellis*
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, HealthJHuman Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jennifer Kraber*
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 26 of 28

Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Elaine Casas, J.D.*
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Periy
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB, CTPE
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant 1V Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM, CPPB
Purchasing .Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CPPB, CTPM, CTCM, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ashley Waffer*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Waich
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Rosalinda Garcia

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holdin2 Office/Position Date of Expiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant 08/22/15
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/15
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly 02/28/15
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder 03/31/15

* Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300
V Page 27 of 28

ATTACHMENT F v
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPNSION. NELIGIBILIT?ND

VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine
whether each has a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension,
ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract and
subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
contract was entered into. If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue
available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this certification is
submitted if at any time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or
has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,”
“proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the
Defmitions and Coverage sections of federal rules implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into an.y subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a
federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or d u anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract?
YES

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled
“Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts
“without modification, in all covered subcontracts”; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.
A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract’s
initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and
information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the
ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly
enters into a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any
federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Contract 4400002300 Page 28 of 28

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY

EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS

Indicat the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its

principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded

from participation in this contract by any federal department or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County.

[El The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certify to one or more of the terms in this certification. In

this instance, the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he

is unable to make certification. Attach the explanation(s) to this certification.

Name of Contractor Vendor I.D. or Social Security No.

AL 7fe?.e7t_%A ..J’a,/e

______________________________

,cL,

___________________________

Si ti IAiffiö?zed Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title ofAuthorized Representative

COPY SIGNED BY MEURER
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: December 2nd, 2014  
Prepared By/Phone Number: Rachel Fishback, 512.854.9853 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve Contract Award for Flat Tire and Tube Repair and 
Replacement, IFB No. 1410-004-RF, to low bidder, Southern Tire Mart, 
LLC. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract requires for the vendor to provide flat tire and tube repair 
and replacement services to the Travis County Transportation and 
Natural Resources Department.   

On October 16th, 2014, IFB No. 1410-004-RF was issued through Bid 
Sync. Two (2) bids were received on November 10th, 2014. The 
Purchasing Office concurs with the Transportation and Natural 
Resources Department recommendation to award a contract to low 
bidder Southern Tire Mart. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: Estimated Requirements   
Contract Type: Annual, Unilateral  
Contract Period: December 13, 2014 through December 12, 2015  
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Viewed:   13  Responses Received:   2  
HUB Information:      NA  % HUB Subcontractor:    NA  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 13Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments:  Requisitions are processed at time of requirement 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item # Item Qty Unit Price Total Price Total

Lot: Labor to Service All Passenger Tires and Light Truck Tires up to 17"
1410-004-RF--01-01 Mount Only 25 each $8.00 $200.00 $7.50 $187.50
1410-004-RF--01-02 Dismount Only 25 each $8.00 $200.00 $7.50 $187.50
1410-004-RF--01-03 Mount & Dismount 25 each $16.00 $400.00 $15.00 $375.00
1410-004-RF--01-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 75 each $18.00 $1,350.00 $20.00 $1,500.00
1410-004-RF--01-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/ Rim 25 each $10.00 $250.00 $3.50 $87.50
Lot: Labor to Service Medium Truck Tires 17.5" to 24.5"
1410-004-RF--02-01 Mount Only 25 each $10.50 $262.50 $12.50 $312.50
1410-004-RF--02-02 Dismount Only 25 each $10.50 $262.50 $12.50 $312.50
1410-004-RF--02-03 Mount & Dismount 100 each $22.00 $2,200.00 $25.00 $2,500.00
1410-004-RF--02-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 100 each $24.00 $2,400.00 $29.00 $2,900.00
1410-004-RF--02-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/ Rim 25 each $12.00 $300.00 $5.00 $125.00
Lot: Labor to Service Industrial Tires-Tire Sizes 15" to 16.5"
1410-004-RF--03-01 Mount Only 10 each $8.00 $80.00 $12.50 $125.00
1410-004-RF--03-02 Dismount Only 10 each $8.00 $80.00 $12.50 $125.00
1410-004-RF--03-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $25.00 $250.00
1410-004-RF--03-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $29.00 $290.00
1410-004-RF--03-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/ Rim 10 each $10.50 $105.00 $3.50 $35.00
Lot: Labor to Service Industrial Tires-Tire Sizes 17" to 20"
1410-004-RF--04-01 Mount Only 10 each $11.00 $110.00 $12.50 $125.00
1410-004-RF--04-02 Dismount Only 10 each $11.00 $110.00 $12.50 $125.00
1410-004-RF--04-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $22.00 $220.00 $25.00 $250.00
1410-004-RF--04-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 20 each $25.50 $510.00 $29.00 $580.00
1410-004-RF--04-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/Rim) 20 each $12.50 $250.00 $3.50 $70.00
Lot: Labor to Service Industrial Tires-Tire Size 1300/1400 X 24"
1410-004-RF--05-01 Mount Only 10 each $22.00 $220.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--05-02 Dismount Only 10 each $22.00 $220.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--05-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $40.00 $400.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--05-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 10 each $46.00 $460.00 $34.00 $340.00
1410-004-RF--05-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/Rim) 10 each $22.50 $225.00 $3.60 $36.00
Lot: Labor to Service Industrial Tires-Tire Sizes 17.5 X 24" / 21L24"
1410-004-RF--06-01 Mount Only 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--06-02 Dismount Only 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--06-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $42.00 $420.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--06-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 10 each $46.00 $460.00 $35.00 $350.00
1410-004-RF--06-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/Rim) 10 each $20.00 $200.00 $5.00 $50.00

Bid #1410-004-RF
Flat Tire and Tube Repair and Replacement 

Southern Tire Mart Walker tire

Southern Tire Mart
Walker tire

$36,716.35
$41,989.50

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Lot: Labor to Service OTR (Off The Road) Tires-Tire Size 15.5/17.5 X 24"
1410-004-RF--07-01 Mount Only 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--07-02 Dismount Only 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--07-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $42.00 $420.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--07-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 10 each $46.00 $460.00 $35.00 $350.00
1410-004-RF--07-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/Rim) 10 each $20.00 $200.00 $5.00 $50.00
Lot: Labor to Service OTR (Off The Road) Tires-Tire size 16.9 x 30
1410-004-RF--08-01 Mount Only 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--08-02 Dismount Only 10 each $18.00 $180.00 $15.00 $150.00
1410-004-RF--08-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $46.00 $460.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--08-04 Mount Dismount & Flat Repair 10 each $48.00 $480.00 $35.00 $350.00
1410-004-RF--08-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/ Rim 10 each $20.00 $200.00 $5.00 $50.00
Lot: Labor to Service OTR (Off The Road) Tires-Tire Sizes 20.5/23.5 X 25"
1410-004-RF--09-01 Mount Only 10 each $25.00 $250.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--09-02 Dismount Only 10 each $25.00 $250.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--09-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $60.00 $600.00 $60.00 $600.00
1410-004-RF--09-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 10 each $65.00 $650.00 $75.00 $750.00
1410-004-RF--09-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/Rim) 10 each $27.00 $270.00 $35.00 $350.00
Lot: Labor to Service OTR (Off The Road) Tires-Tire Size 26.5 X 25"
1410-004-RF--10-01 Mount Only 10 each $30.00 $300.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--10-02 Dismount Only 10 each $30.00 $300.00 $30.00 $300.00
1410-004-RF--10-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $65.00 $650.00 $60.00 $600.00
1410-004-RF--10-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 10 each $70.00 $700.00 $75.00 $750.00
1410-004-RF--10-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/Rim) 10 each $30.00 $300.00 $35.00 $350.00
Lot: Labor to Service OTR (Off The Road) Tires-Tire Size 29.5 X 25"
1410-004-RF--11-01 Mount Only 10 each $40.00 $400.00 $40.00 $400.00
1410-004-RF--11-02 Dismount Only 10 each $40.00 $400.00 $40.00 $400.00
1410-004-RF--11-03 Mount & Dismount 10 each $80.00 $800.00 $80.00 $800.00
1410-004-RF--11-04 Mount Dismount and Flat Repair 10 each $85.00 $850.00 $105.00 $1,050.00
1410-004-RF--11-05 Switch Wheel (Mounted Tire w/Rim) 10 each $40.00 $400.00 $50.00 $500.00
1410-004-RF--12-01 Service Call Charge 360 each $39.00 $14,040.00 $55.00 $19,800.00
1410-004-RF--13-01 Mileage Charge 1 mile $1.35 $1.35 $1.00 $1.00
1410-004-RF--14-01 Material Markup (if any) 1 percentag 10 10 12.5 12.5

TOTAL: $36,716.35 $41,989.50

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Kent Hubbard, 854-6458 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:   
DECLARE EXECUTIVE CHAIR AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZE 
PURCHASING OFFICE TO AUCTION CHAIR UNDER A SEALED BID, 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 263.152(A)(1) OF THE TEXAS LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT CODE. 
 
The Travis County District Clerk, Amalia Rodriquez-Mendoza, has 
requested that the Clerk’s executive suede (Raspberry color) chair be 
included in a sealed bid.   
 
The chair is several years old and has fully depreciated in value. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 14Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 Administrative Offices Civil and Family Division Criminal Division Jury Office 
  (512) 854-9457  (512) 854-9457   (512) 854-9420 (512) 854-9669 
  fax:  854-4744  fax:  854-9549   fax:  854-4566 fax:  854-4457 

Amal ia Rodriguez -Mendoza 
Travis  County  Distr ict  Clerk  
Trav i s  Coun ty  Cour thouse  Complex  

P .O .  Box  679003  

Aus t in ,  Texas  78767  

 

 

November 18, 2014  
 
 
To: Cyd Gr imes –   
     Trav is  County Purchas ing Agent  
 
From: Amal ia Rodr iguez -Mendoza   
         Trav is  County Distr ic t  C lerk  
 
Re:  Execut ive Suede  Chai r  –  Raspberry co lor  
 
P lease f ind th is  memo as a request  to  have 
the above referenced ex ist ing Distr ic t  C lerk ’s  
execut ive chai r  inc luded in a sealed b id.     

 

 

 

 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
Meeting Date:  December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB/854-9762; 
Marvin Brice, CPPB/854-9765    
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Painting Services, IFB 
B1409-008-JT, to the low bidder, GG's Construction. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

IFB B1409-008-JT was issued on October 22, 2014 for painting 
services.  The resulting contract will require the contractor to provide all 
labor, materials and supervision necessary to provide painting services 
countywide on an “as needed” basis.   

A total of forty-three (43) vendors were solicited, with three (3) bids 
received prior to the bid submission deadline of November 12, 2014 at 
2:00 p.m.  Of the three (3) bids received, the low, responsive bidder was 
GG’s Construction.   

Facilities Management therefore recommends that a term (annual) 
contract be awarded to GG’s Construction.  As a matter of interest to the 
Court, the recommended contractor is a Certified Historically 
Underutilized Business (HUB). 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months, $204,818.50 has 
been spent against this requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: N/A (As needed requirements)   
Contract Type: Term  
Contract Period: December 14, 2014 through December 13, 2015  
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 15Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  43  Responses Received:  3  
HUB Information:  Yes  % HUB Subcontractor:  N/A    

 
Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s): Cost Center 1140090001 
  Comments:   

 
 
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



IFB......................................................................... B1409-008-JT BIDDER: Bond HUB
COMMODITY....................................................... Painting Services 1. GG's Construction X Y
USING DEPT......................................................... Facilities Management Department 2. QA Construction Svcs. X Y
BIDS SOLICITED..................................................43 3. Partners Remodeling, X Y

    Restoration & Waterproofing

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT EXTENSION

BIDDER #2   
UNIT PRICE EXTENSION

BIDDER #3   
UNIT PRICE EXTENSION

GROUP “A” INTERIOR PAINTING SUPPLIES/SERVICES 
PAINT SURFACE AREA:

1 Textured Drywall Substrate (Latex)
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $1.35 $6,750.00 $0.75 $3,750.00 $1.20 $6,000.00
B Over 12  Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.60 $600.00 $0.65 $650.00 $1.50 $1,500.00

2 Concrete Substrate
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.30 $1,500.00 $0.40 $2,000.00 $1.20 $6,000.00
B Over 12  Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.20 $200.00 $0.40 $400.00 $1.50 $1,500.00

3 Masonry Substrate
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.20 $1,000.00 $0.38 $1,900.00 $1.20 $6,000.00
B Over 12  Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.20 $200.00 $0.43 $430.00 $1.50 $1,500.00

4 Wood Substrate
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.20 $1,000.00 $0.37 $1,850.00 $1.20 $6,000.00
B Over 12  Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.20 $200.00 $0.38 $380.00 $1.50 $1,500.00

PAINT TRIM:

5 Wood Trim Surface (Latex)
A Trim Under 12 Ft in Height 5000 LF $0.10 $500.00 $0.30 $1,500.00 $1.10 $5,500.00
B Trim Over 12 Ft in Height 1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.30 $300.00 $1.40 $1,400.00

6 Metal Trim Surface (Enamel)
A Trim Under 12 Ft in Height 5000 LF $0.10 $500.00 $0.30 $1,500.00 $1.10 $5,500.00
B Trim Over 12 Ft in Height 1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.30 $300.00 $1.40 $1,400.00

7 Doors, Flush, Both Sides, Include, Frame & Trim:
A Wood Door (Latex) 100 EA $10.00 $1,000.00 $12.00 $1,200.00 $125.00 $12,500.00
B Wood Door (Stain) 100 EA $10.00 $1,000.00 $13.00 $1,300.00 $125.00 $12,500.00
C Metal Door (Enamel) 100 EA $17.00 $1,700.00 $13.00 $1,300.00 $150.00 $15,000.00

Estimated Total Amount: 
(Items 1 through 7 inclusive) $16,350.00 $18,760.00 $83,800.00

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT EXTENSION

BIDDER #2   
UNIT PRICE EXTENSION

BIDDER #3   
UNIT PRICE EXTENSION

GROUP “B” EXTERIOR PAINTING SUPPLIES/SERVICES 
PAINT SURFACE AREA:

1 Stucco Substrate (Exterior Latex)
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.40 $2,000.00 $0.50 $2,500.00 $1.55 $7,750.00
B Over 12 Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.40 $400.00 $0.50 $500.00 $1.85 $1,850.00

2 Concrete Substrate (Exterior Latex)
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.40 $2,000.00 $0.55 $2,750.00 $1.55 $7,750.00
B Over 12 Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.40 $400.00 $0.55 $550.00 $1.85 $1,850.00

3 Masonry Substrate (Exterior Latex)
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.10 $500.00 $0.25 $1,250.00 $1.55 $7,750.00
B Over 12 Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.10 $100.00 $0.25 $250.00 $1.85 $1,850.00

4 Wood Substrate (Exterior Gloss Latex)
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.10 $500.00 $0.30 $1,500.00 $1.55 $7,750.00
B Over 12 Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.10 $100.00 $0.30 $300.00 $1.85 $1,850.00

5 Metal Substrate (Acrylic Latex)
A Under 12 Ft in Height    5000 SF $0.10 $500.00 $0.30 $1,500.00 $1.55 $7,750.00
B Over 12 Ft in Height    1000 SF $0.10 $100.00 $0.30 $300.00 $1.85 $1,850.00

PAINT TRIM: (Doors, Door Frames, Window Frames, Hand Rails, Fascia, Molding)

6 Wood Trim Surface (Exterior Gloss Latex)
A Trim Under 12 Ft in Height   5000 LF $0.10 $500.00 $0.65 $3,250.00 $1.20 $6,000.00
B Trim Over 12 Ft in Height   1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.65 $650.00 $1.30 $1,300.00

7 Metal Trim Surface (Acrylic Gloss Latex)
A Trim Under 12 Ft in Height   5000 LF $0.10 $500.00 $0.65 $3,250.00 $1.20 $6,000.00
B Trim Over 12 Ft in Height   1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.65 $650.00 $1.30 $1,300.00

8 Doors, Flush, Both Sides, Include, Frame & Trim
A Wood Door (Exterior Gloss Latex) 100 EA $10.00 $1,000.00 $13.00 $1,300.00 $150.00 $15,000.00
B Wood Door (Exterior Stain Latex) 100 EA $10.00 $1,000.00 $13.00 $1,300.00 $150.00 $15,000.00
C Metal Door (Acrylic Latex) 100 EA $17.00 $1,700.00 $13.00 $1,300.00 $150.00 $15,000.00

9 Fascia Trim (Exterior Latex)
A 1” x 4”  Fascia 1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.65 $650.00 $1.10 $1,100.00
B 1” x 6” to 1” x 10” Fascia 1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.65 $650.00 $1.30 $1,300.00
C 1” x 12” Fascia 1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.65 $650.00 $1.50 $1,500.00
D Molding up to 14” Wide 1000 LF $0.10 $100.00 $0.65 $650.00 $1.70 $1,700.00

Estimated Total Amount: 
(Items 1 through 9 inclusive)

$11,900.00 $25,700.00 $113,200.00

GROUP “C” PAINTING SUPPLIES/SERVICES 
1 Hourly Labor Rate for Journeyman Painter

Straight Time 100 Hours $22.00 $2,200.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $32.00 $3,200.00
2 Hourly Labor Rate for Painters Helper

Straight Time 100 Hours $12.00 $1,200.00 $23.00 $2,300.00 $24.00 $2,400.00
3 Material Cost (Bidder's cost plus/minus a percentage) % 12.00% 10.00% 20.00%
4 Reimbursable Item Markup % 0.00% 3.00% 20.00%

TOTAL (Groups "A" and "B") $28,250.00 $44,460.00 $197,000.00

Ethics Safety Exp. Verif Ref.
X
X

X
X

X

BIDDER #1     
UNIT PRICE

BIDDER #1     
UNIT PRICE

X X
X
X

X
X
X

Page 1 of 1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1 
 

CONTRACT NO. 4400002332 BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND GG’S CONSTRUCTION FOR 
COUNTYWIDE PAINTING SERVICES 

 
 This Contract between Travis County and GG’s Construction for Countywide Painting Services (this 
"Contract") is entered into by and between the following parties:  Travis County, a political subdivision of the 
State of Texas ("County") and GG’s Construction ("Contractor"). 
 
 WHEREAS, County issued Invitation for Bid (“IFB”) No. B1409-008-JT to receive competitive bids for 
painting services at various buildings and facilities located throughout Travis County (collectively, the 
“Services”); and  
 

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted the lowest responsible bid under IFB No. B1409-008-JT and all 
amendments, modifications and addenda thereto; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 
1.0 TERM OF CONTRACT 
 
 1.1 Term of Contract.  The term of this Contract shall commence upon award by the Travis County 
Commissioners Court (the “Effective Date”) and shall continue in full force and effect for one (1) year (the 
“Initial Term”), unless sooner terminated as provided herein.   
 

1.2 Option to Extend.  County may unilaterally extend this Contract for two (2) additional one-year 
periods and three (3) additional one-month periods (individually, an “Option to Extend” and collectively, the 
“Options to Extend”), during which all provisions of this Contract, except for term, shall remain unchanged and 
in full force and effect.  County shall exercise an Option to Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to 
expiration of the then current term.  The total term of this Contract, including the Options to Extend, shall not 
exceed thirty-nine (39) months.  County shall have the right to exercise all or a portion of the Options to Extend 
in any combination it deems necessary. 

 
2.0 CONTRACT SCOPE; CONTRACT CONSTRUCTION 
 

2.1 Contractor’s obligations with respect to provision and performance of the Services, and County’s 
obligations with respect to payment for the same, shall be as set forth in Contractor’s Bid submitted in response 
to IFB No. B1409-008-JT, dated November 12, 2014 (the “Bid”), a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Attachment A (“Contractor’s Bid”). 

 
2.2 Contractor specifically acknowledges and agrees that should any Contract requirement or 

specification disagree with another Contract requirement or specification, the better quality or greater quantity of 
work or materials shall be performed or furnished, and the most stringent requirement shall govern.  
 
3.0 CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS 
 
 3.1 Contractor shall, in a timely manner, perform the Services described in  
IFB No. B1409-008-JT (and all amendments, modifications or addenda thereto) and in this Contract and its 
attachments, listed below, in accordance with their terms and conditions, and in compliance with the assurances, 
certifications, and all other statements made by Contractor in its Bid.    
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



2 
 

 3.2 The purpose of this Contract is to procure the painting services described herein, which shall 
satisfy or exceed the requirements set forth in IFB No. B1409-008-JT. Contractor also acknowledges and agrees 
that this Contract includes pricing for all required services as described in IFB No. B1409-008-JT. 
 
 3.3 All services under this Contract will be accomplished at facilities located within or at Travis 
County owned or leased property.  Contractor represents and warrants that he is aware of all items pertinent to 
work required under the Contract and that he made the appropriate allowances in his bid. 
 
 3.4 For the purpose of monitoring performance, establishing requirements, approving and 
coordinating schedules, users and equipment, the County department named below shall act as Contract 
Administrator on behalf of Travis County: 
 

Travis County 
Facilities Management Department 

1010 Lavaca 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Tel: (512) 854-4781 
Fax: (512) 854-9226 

 
3.5 All work performed under this Contract will be authorized by separate Purchase Orders issued by 

the Travis County Purchasing Agent.  No work shall be initiated without a valid Purchase Order for the scope of 
that distinct work effort. 
 
 3.6 The County's representative will provide the Contractor with access to all County premises and 
facility systems, except for the Travis County Jail, Del Valle Corrections Complex and Gardner-Betts Juvenile 
Facility.  Access to these facilities will be provided by the respective departments. 
 
 3.7 The Contractor shall furnish Facilities Management, Travis County Correctional Facility, Travis 
County Jail and Gardner-Betts Juvenile Facility authorities with a complete listing of all technicians that the 
Contractor proposes to use in these facilities.  Background checks will be completed prior to granting approval 
for personnel to work in these facilities. 
 

A. The identification shall be a photocopy of Driver’s License, Social Security Number and 
Company I.D. that will become a permanent part of correctional records. 

 
B. Upon entering and leaving the Travis County Courthouse, Criminal Justice Center, Travis County 

Correctional Facilities, Travis County Jail and Gardner-Betts Juvenile Facility, the Contractor's 
service representatives will be required to sign in and out with the on duty supervisor or security 
attendant. 

 
C. The Contractor's service representative shall log all facilities work and upon completion of all the 

work, the Contractor's service representative must certify that the work was done by obtaining the 
signature of the on duty supervisor. 

 
D. Contractor should be aware that special rules and regulations may apply to work performed at 

correctional facilities, jail facilities and juvenile facility and Contractor should endeavor to 
familiarize himself with these requirements. 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



3 
 

E. The Contractor's service representative shall leave one signed copy of the construction service 
report with the on duty supervisor and attach the second copy to his service ticket which will be 
signed by the County's representative at the time and date work is completed. 

 
 3.8 The Contractor represents and warrants that he has carefully examined the bidding requirements, 
the General Provisions of IFB, the Special Provisions, the Specifications, the bid proposal worksheet and the 
terms and conditions of this Contract, and that he fully understands the conditions expected to be encountered 
relating to the character, quality and quantity (estimated) of work to be performed and materials to be furnished.  
The Contractor further represents and warrants that if he found any discrepancies in the specifications, or was in 
doubt as to their meaning, he/she notified Travis County. Any oral instructions or decisions that have not been 
confirmed by addenda will not be considered valid, legal or binding. No extras will be authorized because of 
failure of the Contractor to include work in the addenda in his bid. 
 
 3.9 Applicable City and County fire regulations are made a part of this Contract.  The Contractor's 
operations shall conform to all applicable portions of these regulations. 
 
 3.10 Travis County shall have the right to require that the Contractor dismiss from the premises 
covered by this Contract any employees of Contractor whose conduct is improper, inappropriate, or offensive; 
and such employees shall not be re-employed on subject premises by Contractor without written consent of 
Travis County.  Personnel performing under this Contract shall be direct employees of the Contractor.  Non-
Contractor personnel and minors shall not be permitted on the job premises. 
 
 3.11 The Contractor will be responsible for instructing his employees in safety measures considered 
appropriate.  The Contractor will not permit placing or use of any equipment in traffic lanes or other locations in 
such a manner as to create safety hazards.  Contractor will provide, place and remove appropriate warning signs 
while electrical work is in progress. 
 
 3.12 The Contractor shall be responsible for safeguarding all Travis County (or third party) property 
within the work areas.  The Contractor shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property, including 
merchandise fixtures and equipment belonging to Travis County or third parties, if any such loss or damage was 
caused by Contractor or any of his employees, while the employees are on County premises.  At the close of 
each work period, Contractor will assure that the County property and equipment is secured.  Any loss or 
damaged property or equipment discovered by the Contractor must be reported to the Travis County Contract 
Administrator immediately upon discovery. 
 
 3.13 Contractor has posted the bid security in the form required under IFB No. B1409-008-JT. 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that a Payment Bond will be required in the amount of one hundred percent 
(100%) of the full amount of any individual purchase order amount if such amount is in excess of Twenty Five 
Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00), and that a Performance Bond will be required in the amount of one hundred 
percent (100%) of the full amount of any individual purchase order amount if such amount is in excess of One 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00).  County will reimburse Contractor for costs incurred to secure bonds 
when applicable. 
 
4.0 WARRANTIES; IMPLIED SERVICES 
 

4.1 Contractor represents and warrants that all of the information provided in his bid is true and 
correct and that Contractor will use its best efforts to provide quality services to County.  
 
 4.2 Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if any services, functions or responsibilities not 
specifically described in this Contract are required for the proper performance and provision of the Services, they 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



4 
 

shall be deemed to be implied by and included within the scope of the Services to the same extent and in the 
same manner as if specifically described in this Contract.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Contract, Contractor shall be responsible for providing the facilities, personnel and other resources as necessary 
to perform and provide the Services.  
 
5.0 ATTACHMENTS 
 
 5.1 The attachments enumerated below, in addition to all requirements, specifications, terms and 
conditions set forth in IFB No. B1409-008-JT, are hereby made a part of this Contract, and constitute promised 
performances by Contractor in accordance with Section 3.0 of this Contract: 

(i) Attachment A:  Contractor’s Bid 
(ii) Attachment B:  General Provisions of Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
(iii) Attachment C:  Specifications 
(iii) Attachment D:  Ethics Affidavit 

 (iv) Attachment E:  HUB Declaration and List of Subcontractors 
 (v) Attachment F:  Safety Record Questionnaire 
 (vi) Attachment G:  References 
 (vii) Attachment H:  Experience Verification 
 
6.0 ENTIRE CONTRACT 
 

6.1 This Contract represents the final written agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter herein and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either oral or 
written. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACTOR

By:

__________________

By: v— O&M)
Samuel T. Biscoe Name:
Travis County Judge Title: 1a1At?j-

Date: Date:____________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

County Attorney

By law, the County Attorney’s Office may only advise or approve contracts for its clients. It may not advise or
approve a contract for other parties. Our review and approval of this contract was conducted solely from the
legal perspective of our client. Other parties should not rely on this approval and should seek advice from their
own attorney.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS CONFIRMED:

___________________________

Date:
Susan Spataro
Travis County Auditor

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND POLICY CONFIRMED AND APPROVED:

__________________________

Date:
Cyd V. Grimes
Travis County Purchasing Agent

5

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



6 
 

Attachment A  
Contractor’s Bid 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



7 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



8 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



9 
 

 
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



10 
 

Attachment B 
General Provisions of Invitation for Bids (IFB) 

 
1. GENERAL DEFINITIONS: 
(a) "Auditor" means the Travis County Auditor or her designee. 
(b) "Commissioners Court" means Travis County Commissioners Court. 
(c) “Contract” means the contract awarded pursuant to the Invitation for Bids. 
(d) “Contractor” means a person or firm receiving an award of contract from Commissioners Court. 
(e) "County" means Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas. 
(f) "County Building" means any County owned buildings and does not include buildings leased by County. 
(g) "Historically Underutilized Business" or "HUB" means any entity or association formed to make a profit in which one (1) or more persons who are educationally or 
economically disadvantaged because of their identification as members of one of the following groups: African Americans, Hispanic Americans, Asian Pacific 
Americans, Native Americans or Women of any ethnicity have the following rights: 

(1) own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of all classes of shares or other equitable securities and have incidents of ownership, including an interest in profit and 
loss, equivalent to the percentage of capital, equipment or expertise contributed to the business where ownership is measured as though the community property 
interest of a spouse is the separate property of that spouse, if both spouses certify in writing that the non-participating spouse relinquishes control over his or her 
spouse, and his or her community property, and not as if it is subject to the community property interest of the other spouse;  and 
(2) have a proportionate interest and demonstrated active participation in the control, operation and management of the business's affairs; where control means 
having recognized ultimate control over all day-to-day decisions affecting the business, and is be known to, and at least tacitly acknowledged in day-to-day 
operations by employees of the business and by those with whom business is conducted, and holding a title commensurate with that control.  

(h) “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 
(1) paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for 
the purchase of any property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or, 
(2) loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the 
aggregate in a calendar year;  
(3) but does not include:  
(i) any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a posted, published, or marked price available to the public, 
(ii) any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to 
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and  

 (iii) a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, 
employee or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or she should have known about the Contract.  

i. "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit A to Affidavit. 
j. "Purchasing Agent" means the Travis County Purchasing Agent. 
k. “Sub-contractor” means a person or firm doing business with a Contractor. 
 
2. FUNDING:  Funds for payment on this Contract have been provided through the County budget approved by Commissioners Court for this fiscal year only.  State 
of Texas statutes prohibit the obligations and expenditure of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been approved.  However, the cost of items or 
services covered by this Contract is considered a recurring requirement and is included as a standard and routine expense of Travis County to be included in each 
proposed budget within the foreseeable future.  County Commissioners expect this to be an integral part of future budgets to be approved during the period of this 
Contract except for unanticipated needs or events which may prevent such payments against this Contract.  However, County cannot guarantee the availability of funds, 
and enters into this Contract only to the extent such funds are made available.  The Fiscal Year for County extends from October 1st of each calendar year to September 
30th of the next calendar year. 
 
3. FUNDING OUT:  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if, during budget planning and adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this 
Contract for the following fiscal year of County, County may terminate this Contract after giving Contractor thirty (30) calendar days written notice that this Contract is 
terminated due to the failure to fund it. 
 
4. INVOICING/PAYMENTS: 
(a) Contractor shall provide County with an Internal Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification, that is completed in 
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules and regulations before any Contract funds are payable.  
(b) As a minimum, invoices shall include: (i) name, address, and telephone number of Contractor and similar information in the event payment is to be made to a 
different address; (ii) County Contract or Purchase Order number; (iii) identification of products or services as outlined in this Contract; (iv) quantity or quantities, 
applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount; and (v) any additional payment information called for by this Contract. County will not pay invoices that are in 
excess of the amount authorized by the purchase order.    
(c) Payment shall be made by check or warrant by County upon satisfactory delivery and acceptance of products and services and submission of an invoice to the 
address below: 

County Auditor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

(d) Payment shall be deemed to have been made on the date of mailing of the check or warrant. For purposes of payment discounts, time will begin upon satisfactory 
delivery of products and services and/or submission of acceptable invoice, whichever is last.  Partial payments will not be made unless specifically requested and 
approved by County prior to Contract award. 
(e) Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., ch. 2251.   

 
5. COUNTY TAXES: If the Contractor subsequently becomes delinquent in the payment of County taxes, that will be grounds for cancellation of the contract.   
Despite anything to the contrary, if the contractor is delinquent in payment of County property taxes at the time of invoicing, Contractor assigns any payments to be made 
for performance under this contract to the County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of delinquent taxes. 

 
6. PROMPT PAYMENT ACT: Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments will be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
7. FOB POINT: Delivery of all products under this contract shall be made Free on Board to final destination, at the address shown in this contract or as indicated on 
each Purchase Order placed against this contract.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to County until acceptance takes place at the F.O.B. point. 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



11 
 

8. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE: The County office or department receiving items pursuant to this contract shall inspect and accept only those items that are 
satisfactory to them, and reject those items which are damaged or which do not conform to specifications.  Contractor shall be responsible for the proper labeling, 
packing, and delivery to final destination, including replacement of rejected deliveries. 
 
9.. VARIATION IN QUANTITY: No variation in the quantity of any item called for by this contract will be accepted unless such variation has been caused by 
conditions of loading, shipping, or packing, or allowances in manufacturing processes, and then only to the extent, if any, specified elsewhere in this contract. 
 
10. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT: If a member of Commissioners Court belongs to a cooperative association, the County may purchase equipment or supplies 
from the association only if no member of the Commissioners Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the purchase, other than as reflected in an increase in dividends 
distributed generally to members of the association. 

 
11. NONDISCRIMINATION; CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE:  
(a) Contractor shall not engage in employment practices that have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective employees because of age, race, color, 
sex, creed, national origin or handicapped condition.  
(b) Contractor shall provide all services and activities required in a manner that would comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] if Contractor were an 
entity bound to comply with these laws. 
 
12. CHANGES: 
(a) This Contract may be amended only by written instrument signed by both County and Contractor. It is acknowledged by Contractor that NO OFFICIAL, 
EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO CHANGE THE SCOPE OF THIS 
CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE AMEND THIS CONTRACT, OR ANY ATTACHMENTS HERETO, UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT AUTHORITY BY 
THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 
(b) Contractor shall submit all requests for changes to this Contract or any attachment(s) to it to the Purchasing Agent. The purchasing Agent shall present Contractor's 
requests to Commissioners Court for consideration. 

 
13. REPRESENTATIONS: 
(a)  Contractor represents that he has thoroughly examined the drawings, specifications, schedule, instructions and all other contract documents. Contractor has made 
all investigations necessary to be thoroughly informed regarding plant and facilities for delivery of material, equipment and/or services as required by the proposal 
conditions. 
(b)  The Contractor's delivery time includes weekends and holidays. 
(c)  Contractor certifies that he is a qualified, bondable business entity that he is not in receivership or contemplates it, and has not filed for bankruptcy.  He further 
certifies that the Company, Corporation, Partnership, or Sole Proprietorship is not delinquent with respect to payment of County property taxes. 
(d)  Contractor warrants that all applicable patents and copyrights which may exist on items that will be supplied under the contract have been adhered to and further 
warrants that County shall not be liable for any infringement of those rights.   Warranties granted County shall apply for the duration of this contract or for the life of 
equipment or supplies purchased, whichever is longer.  County must not extend use of the granted exclusive rights to any other than County employees or those with 
whom County has established a relationship aimed at furthering the public interest, and then only for official public uses.  County will not knowingly or intentionally 
violate any applicable patent, license, or copyright.  Contractor must indemnify County, its officers, agents, and employees against all claims, suits, and liability of every 
kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing patents, licenses or 
copyrights applicable to items sold. 
(e) The Contractor warrants that upon execution of a contract with the County, he will not engage in employment practices which have the effect of discriminating 
against employees or prospective employees because of age, religion, race, color, sex, creed, handicap, or national origin and will submit reports as the County may 
require to assure compliance. 
 (f)  Contractor warrants to County that all items delivered and all services rendered will conform to the specifications, drawings, or other descriptions furnished or 
incorporated by reference, and will be of merchantable quality, good workmanship, and free from defects.  Contractor further agrees to provide copies of applicable 
warranties or guarantees to the Purchasing Agent.  Copies will be provided within 10 days after the Notice of Award is issued.  Return of merchandise under warranty 
shall be at Contractor's expense. 
(g) The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an understanding for a commission, 
percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees and established commercial selling agencies maintained by the Contractor to secure business.  
For breach of this warranty, County shall have the right to terminate this contract without liability, or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 
recover, the full amount of commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
  
14. SUBCONTRACTS: 
(a) Contractor shall not enter into any subcontracts for any service or activity relating to the performance of this Contract without the prior written approval or the prior 
written waiver of this right of approval from County.  IT IS ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS THE AUTHORITY TO GRANT SUCH APPROVAL OR WAIVER UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC 
AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 
(b) If a subcontract is approved, Contractor must make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and reasonable steps to insure HUBs maximum opportunity to be 
subcontractors under this Contract.  Contractor must obtain County approval of all proposed HUB subcontractors through the Purchasing Agent.  Failure by Contractor to 
make a good faith effort to employ HUBs as subcontractors constitutes a breach of this Contract and may result in termination of this Contract. 
 
15. ASSIGNMENT: 
(a) The parties to this Contract shall not assign any of the rights or obligation hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party.  NO OFFICIAL, 
EMPLOYEE, REPRESENTATIVE OR AGENT OF COUNTY HAS THE AUTHORITY TO APPROVE ANY ASSIGNMENT UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNLESS 
THAT SPECIFIC AUTHORITY IS EXPRESSLY GRANTED BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 
(b) The terms, provisions, covenants, obligations and conditions of this Contract are binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors in interest and the assigns 
of the parties to this Contract if the assignment or transfer is made in compliance with the provisions of this Contract. 
(c) Contractor remains responsible for the performance of this Contract when there is a change of name or change of ownership. If a change of name is required, the 
Purchasing Agent shall be notified immediately.  No change in the obligation of or to Contractor will be recognized until it is approved by Commissioners Court. 
 
16. DISPUTES AND APPEALS: The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in the issuance and administration of this contract in relation to disputes.  
Any document, notice, or correspondence not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, in relation to disputes is void unless otherwise 
stated in this contract.  If the Contractor does not agree with any document, notice, or correspondence issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person, 
the Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice, or correspondence, outlining the 
exact point of disagreement in detail.  If the matter is not resolved to the Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



12 
 

Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing Agent, if the Notice is submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply.  Contractor then 
has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court. 
 
17. MEDIATION: When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon 
mediator, or a person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, for mediation as described in Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code.  
Unless both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications 
within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in §154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, unless both parties agree, in writing, 
to waive the confidentiality. 
 
18. FORCE MAJEURE 
If the performance by either party of any of its obligations under this Contract is interrupted or delayed due to an act of God or the common enemy or as the result of war, 
riot, civil commotion, sovereign conduct, or the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party to this Contract, then it shall be excused from performance for such 
period of time as is reasonably necessary to remedy the effects thereof.. 
 
19. NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT: 
(a) No payment, act or omission by County may constitute or be construed as a waiver of any breach or default of Contractor which then exists or may subsequently 
exist. NO OFFICIAL, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY MAY WAIVE ANY BREACH OF ANY TERM OR CONDITION OF THIS 
CONTRACT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 
(b) All rights of County under this Contract are specifically reserved and any payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or fight to County 
under it. Any right or remedy in this Contract shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Contract or under any law, nor shall any action taken 
in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

 
20. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT:  Failure by either County or Contractor to perform any provisions of this Contract shall constitute a breach of contract. Either 
party may require corrective action within ten (10) calendar days after date of receipt of written notice citing the exact nature of the other's breach. Failure to take 
corrective action or failure to provide a satisfactory written reply excusing such failure within the ten (10) calendar days shall constitute a default. The defaulting party 
shall be given a twenty (20) calendar day period within which to show cause why this Contract shall not be terminated for default. All notices for corrective action, 
breach, default or show cause on behalf of County shall be issued by the Purchasing Agent or County legal representative only, and all replies to the same shall be made 
in writing to the County Purchasing Agent or County legal representative at the address provided herein.  Notices issued by or to anyone other than the Purchasing Agent 
or County legal representative shall be null and void, and shall be considered as not having been issued or received. County reserves the right to enforce the performance 
of this Contract in any manner prescribed by law in case of default and may contract with another party with or without competition or further notification to the 
contractor. At a minimum, Contractor shall be required to pay any difference in the cost of securing the services covered by this Contract, or compensate for any loss or 
damage to the County derived hereunder if it becomes necessary to contract with another source because of a default, plus reasonable administrative costs and attorney's 
fees. In the event of termination for default, County, its agents or representatives, shall not be liable for loss of any profits anticipated under this Contract. 
 
21. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  County reserves the right to terminate this Contract upon thirty (30) days written notice for any reason deemed by the 
Commissioners Court to serve the public interest, or resulting from any governmental law, ordinance, regulation, or court order. In the event of such termination, County 
shall pay Contractor those costs directly attributable to work done in preparation for compliance with this Contract prior to termination; provided, however, that no costs 
shall be paid which are recoverable in the normal course of the business in which Contractor is engaged, nor shall County pay any costs which can be mitigated through 
the sale of supplies or inventories. If County pays for the cost of supplies or materials obtained for use under this Contract those supplies or materials shall become the 
property of County and shall be delivered to the FOB point shown in this Contract, or as designated by the Purchasing Agent. County shall not be liable for loss of any 
profits anticipated under this Contract. 

 
22. GRATUITIES:  Contractor shall not provide any gratuity in any form, including entertainment, gifts, or otherwise, to any employee, buyer, agent, or 
representative of County with a view to securing a contract, or securing favorable treatment with respect to the award or amendment, or the making of any determination 
with respect to the performance of this Contract. County may terminate this Contract if it is found that gratuities of any kind including entertainment, or gifts were 
offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor, to any County Official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment 
with respect of this contract. If this Contract is terminated by the County pursuant to this provision, County shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, 
to recover from the Contractor at least three times the cost incurred by Contractor in providing the gratuities. 

 
23. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT:  If a member of the Commissioners Court belongs to a cooperative association, County may purchase services from the 
association only if no member of the Commissioners Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the purchase, other than as reflected in an increase in dividends 
distributed generally to members of the association. 
 
24. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES:  Contractor represents and warrants that no persons or selling agency has been retained to solicit this Contract 
upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies 
maintained by the Contractor to secure business. For breach or violation of this warranty, County shall have the right to terminate this Contract without liability, or in its 
discretion to, as applicable, add to or deduct from the Contract price for consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, 
or contingent fee. 
 
25. COUNTY ACCESS:  Contractor shall maintain and make available for inspection, audit or reproduction by any authorized representative of County all books, 
documents, and other evidence pertinent to the costs and expenses of this Contract, including but not limited to both direct and indirect costs, cost of labor, material, 
equipment, supplies, and services, and all other costs and expenses of whatever nature for which reimbursement is claimed under this Contract. All required records shall 
be maintained until an audit is completed and all required questions arising therefrom are resolved, or three (3) years after completion of the contract term, whichever 
occurs first; provided, however, the records will be retained beyond the third year if an audit is in progress or the finding of a completed audit have not been resolved 
satisfactorily. 
 
26. FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT: 
(a) The selected  Offeror must forfeit all benefits of this Contract and County must retain all performance by the selected Offeror Contractor and recover all 
consideration or the value of all consideration paid to the selected Offeror pursuant to the contract if: 
(b) The selected Offeror was doing business at the time of submitting its bid or had done business during the 365- day period immediately prior to the date on which its 
bid was due with one or more Key Contracting Persons if the selected Offeror failed to disclose the name of any such Key Contracting Person in its bid; or  
(c) The selected Offeror does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date on which the bid that resulted in this Contract is submitted and prior to full 
performance of this Contract. 
 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



13 
 

27. CONTRACTOR CLAIMS NOTIFICATION: 
(a) If any claim, or other action, that relates to Contractor’s performance under this Contract, including proceedings before an administrative agency, is made or 
brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against Contractor, Contractor shall give written notice to County of the following information within ten (10) 
working days after being notified of it: 

(1) The existence of the claim, or other action; 
(2) The name and address of the person, firm, corporation or their entity that made a claim, or that instituted any type of action or proceeding; 
(3) The alleged basis of the claim, action or proceeding; 
(4) The court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and 
(5) The name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made. 

(b) Except as otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent papers received by Contractor with respect to making these claims or actions 
and all court pleadings related to the defense of these claims or actions. 
 
28. CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY: This provision applies if the anticipated Contract exceeds $25,000.  By submitting a bid or proposal in response to this 
solicitation, the bidder/proposer certifies that at the time of submission, he/she is not on the Federal Government’s list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors.  
In the event of placement on the list between the time of bid/proposal submission and time of award, the bidder/proposer will notify the Travis County Purchasing Agent.  
Failure to do so may result in terminating this Contract for default. 
 
29. CONTRACTOR LIABILITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND CLAIMS NOTIFICATION: Contractor shall indemnify County, its officers, agents, and 
employees, from and against any and all third party claims, losses, damages, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind whether meritorious or not and, including 
all expenses of litigation, court costs, and reasonable attorney's fees, arising in connection with the services provided by Contractor under this Contract.  It is the 
expressed intention of the Parties to this Contract, both Contractor and County, that the indemnity provided for in this paragraph is indemnity by Contractor to indemnify 
and protect County from the consequences of Contractor's actions. 
 
30. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT: 
(a) This Contract is governed by the laws of the United States of America and the State of Texas and all obligations under this Contract are performable in Travis 
County, Texas. Venue for any dispute arising out of this Contract will lie in the appropriate court of Travis County, Texas. 
(b) When any period of time is stated in this Contract, the time shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of period. If the last day of any period 
falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a day that Travis County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation. All hours in this 
Contract are stated in Central Standard Time from 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the first Sunday of November until 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the second Sunday of March and in 
Central Daylight Saving Time from 2:00 o' clock a.m. on the second Sunday of March until 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the first Sunday of November or such other dates as may 
be adopted for the activation of Daylight Savings Time in the United States in future years.  
 
31. ADDITIONAL GENERAL PROVISIONS: 
(a) Contractor must comply with all federal and state laws and regulations, city and County ordinances, orders, and regulations, relating in any way to this Contract. 
(b) Contractor must secure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary for lawful operations. 
(c) Contractor must pay all taxes and license fees imposed by the federal and the state governments and their agencies and political subdivisions upon the property and 
business of Contractor. 
(d)  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the Contractor is delinquent in payment of property taxes at the time of providing services, Contractor assigns 
the amount of any payment to be made for services provided under this Contract equal to the amount Contractor is delinquent in property tax payments to the Travis 
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of the delinquent taxes. 
(e) In this subsection, "County Building" means any County-owned buildings and does not include buildings leased by County.  Contractor must not execute any 
mortgage, or issue any bonds, shares of stock, or other evidence of interest in County buildings.  
(f)  Contractor shall give consideration to recycled boxes, water soluble peanuts, and other products that replace bubble wrap and petroleum based peanuts which are 
harmful to the environment. 
 
32. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT: 
(a) This document contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the rights granted and the obligations assumed.  Any prior agreements or 
representations not expressly set forth in this Contract are of no force.  Any oral representations or modifications concerning this Contract shall be of no force except a 
subsequent modification in writing signed by the Purchasing Agent.  No official, representative, employee, or agent of the County has any authority to modify or amend 
this Contract except pursuant to specific authority to do so granted by the Commissioners Court. 
(b) If inconsistency exists between provisions of this solicitation, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following ascending order of 
precedence: 

(1) The Schedule of Items/Services 
(2) Terms and Conditions of Invitation for Bids; 
(3) General Provisions; 
(4) Other provisions, whether incorporated by reference or otherwise; and 
(5) The specifications. 

(c) If any Contract provision shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, invalidity, illegality, or unenforcability shall not affect any 
other provision, and this Contract shall be construed as if invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained. 
(d) This Contract shall be governed by the laws of Texas and all obligations are performable in Travis County, Texas. 
(e) If a word is used with reference to a particular trade or subject matter or is used as a word of art, the word shall have the meaning given by experts in that particular 
field. 
(f). Words in the present or past tense include the future tense.  The singular includes the plural and the plural includes the singular.  The masculine gender includes the 
feminine and neuter genders. 
(g) The headings in this Contract have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject covered by each provision and are not to be used in construing this 
Contract. 
(h) Provisions, words, phrases, and statutes, whether incorporated by actual use or by reference, shall be applied to this contract in accordance with TEX. GOV'T 
CODE ANN., SEC 312.002, 312.003 (Vernon 1991).   
  
33. MODIFICATIONS:   
(a) The County Purchasing Agent may at any time, by written order, and without notice to the sureties, if any, make changes within the general scope of this Contract 

in any one of the following: 
(1) Drawings, designs or specifications when the supplies to be furnished are to be specifically manufactured for the County in accordance with the drawings, 
designs, or specifications. 
(2) Method of shipment or packing. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



14 
 

(3) Place of deliveries. 
(4) Correction of errors of a general administrative nature or other mistakes, the correction of which does not affect the scope of the contract, or does not result in 
expense to the Contractor. 
(5) Description of items to be provided. 
(f6 Time of performance (i.e. hours of day, days of week, etc.) 

(b) If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work under this Contract, whether or not 
changed by the order, the Commissioners Court shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price, the delivery schedule, or both, and shall modify the Contract.  
The Contractor must submit any "proposal for adjustment" under this clause within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the written order.  However, if the 
County Purchasing Agent decides that the facts justify it, the County Purchasing Agent may receive and act upon a proposal submitted before final payment of the 
Contract.  If the Contractor's proposal includes the cost of property made obsolete or excess by the change, the County shall have the right to prescribe the manner of 
disposition of the property.  Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under the Disputes and Appeals clause.  However, nothing in this clause shall excuse the 
Contractor from proceeding with the Contract as changed.  
 
34. DESIGNATED COUNTY HOLIDAYS: Travis County will not accept deliveries on days designated as holidays by Travis County, unless specific prior 

arrangements have been made.   
Travis County shall provide a list of the holidays designated for each year upon request.  Travis County usually designates 11 days each year as holidays and 
below is a list of the days usually designated: 

 
HOLIDAY   DAY(S) USUALLY CELEBRATED     

  
 New Year’s Day  .................  .................. January 1st or Monday after if it falls on a weekend 
 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day ........  .................. 3rd Monday in January  
 President's Day  .................  .................. 3rd Monday in February 
 Memorial Day  .................  .................. 4th Monday in May 
 Independence Day   .................  .................. July 4th or Monday after if it falls on a weekend 
 Labor Day   .................  .................. 1st Monday in September 
 Veteran’s Day  .................  .................. November 11th or Monday after, if it falls on a weekend 
 Thanksgiving Day  .................  .................. 4th Thursday AND Friday in November 
 Christmas Season  .................  .................. December 25th AND either day before or day after whichever allows a four day weekend, if possible 
 
35. PRICE CHANGES: The prices offered shall remain firm for the period of the Contract.  The prices offered shall also remain firm for the option years should the 
County choose to exercise the option to renew, except for changes that are industry wide and beyond the control of the Contractor.  If such changes do occur, it will be 
the responsibility of the Contractor to provide documentation to Travis County substantiating the changes to the bid prices. Any price changes must be approved by 
Travis County. 
 
36. INSURANCE AND LIABILITY: Unless superceded by Special Provisions of this IFB, during the period of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain at his 
expense, insurance with limits not less than those prescribed below.  With respect to required insurance, Contractor shall; 
(a) Name county as additional insured as its interests may appear. 
(b) Provide county a waiver of subrogation. 
(c) Provide county with a thirty (30) calendar day advance written notice of cancellation or material change to said insurance. 
(d) Provide the County Purchasing Agent at the address shown on Page 1 of this Contract, a Certificate of Insurance evidencing required coverages within ten (10) 
calendar days after receipt of Notice of Award. Contractor must ensure that its insurance certificate contains the Contract number as indicated on the Contract 
Award form when issued by Travis County. 
(e) Submit an original certificate of insurance reflecting coverage as follows: 

Automobile Liability: 
  Bodily Injury (Each person)   $250,000.00 
  Bodily Injury (Each accident)   $500,000.00 
  Property Damage    $100,000.00 

General Liability (Including Contractual Liability): 
  Bodily Injury    $500,000.00 
  Property Damage    $100,000.00 

Excess Liability: 
  Umbrella Form    Not Required 

Worker's Compensation:    Statutory 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



15 
 

Attachment C 
Specifications 

SUMMARY OF WORK 
 

1.1 PURPOSE: The purpose of this solicitation is to place into operation one or more Painting 
Services Contract(s) for painting services at Travis County facilities. The term “Contractor” refers 
to the successful bidder under Travis County IFB No. B1409-008-JT.    

 
1.2 SCOPE OF CONTRACT: This is a countywide Contract for painting services (both interior and 

exterior).  The Contractor will provide all labor, equipment, parts and materials for painting of 
County facilities.  This is a firm, fixed-price, estimated-quantity Contract calling for delivery of 
the products or services identified in the Schedule of Items at the stated prices submitted by the 
Contractor in his bid.  Upon acceptance of a bid by Travis County Commissioners and issuance of 
a Contract Award by the Travis County Purchasing Agent, Contractor shall be obligated to deliver 
the products or services at the stated prices, within the time specified, and in accordance with all 
terms and conditions contained herein.  

 
1.3 WORK SCHEDULE/USE OF PREMISES: 
 

A. The Contractor shall schedule interior work during the evening hours of 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 
for Monday through Friday or daytime hours Saturday, Sunday and Holidays, unless directed 
otherwise on the purchase order.  Exterior work may be scheduled on Monday through Friday, 
Saturday, Sunday and Holidays, as directed by purchase orders. 

 
B. During the performance period for work authorized under purchase orders, facilities may be 

occupied.  The Contractor shall coordinate with Facilities Management and occupants to 
schedule work to minimize conflict and impact on County operations.  As outlined above, 
most interior work will be accomplished during non-business hours.  Exterior work may be 
accomplished during normal business hours with prior approval of Facilities Management.  
Special instructions concerning work hours permitted will be included in each purchase order. 

 
C. The Contractor shall limit use and operation within existing facilities to areas required to 

perform work.  Other areas within facility shall not be disturbed or disrupted.  The Contractor 
shall maintain and keep clear all required fire exit ways throughout facility within and in 
vicinity of work areas, and coordinate required temporary exits with Facilities Management 
and local fire authority.  Smoking is prohibited within County buildings.  Use of toilet 
facilities within facilities is acceptable on condition that facilities are left as clean or cleaner 
than when entered. 

 
1.4 UTILITIES: Water and electricity will be furnished at no cost to the Contractor by the County when 

readily available from County’s existing utility service points.  If power or water is not available at the 
work site, the Contractor will be responsible for providing at his expense, if required. 

 
1.5 DOCUMENTATION: 

 
A. Work covered under this Contract will be authorized by separate purchase orders for each 

unit of work.  Upon completion of the work, Contractor will be required to provide cost 
breakdown indicating square footage or number of items of work accomplished against 
each line item, material cost (for those items ordered on an hourly basis where material  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



16 
 

 
SPECIFICATIONS - continued 

 
 costs are authorized) and labor hours used for work authorized on an hourly rate. A copy 

of this cost breakdown will be provided to the County department requesting the work 
upon or prior to submitting an invoice to the Travis County Auditor for payment.  This 
will provide the means for the requesting department’s verification of services provided. 

 
B. Once the Contractor has approval to begin work, as evidenced by a valid purchase order, 

the authorized amount of work cannot be exceeded unless approved by a formal 
modification of the purchase order or issuance of an additional purchase order for the 
additional work.  Contractor is cautioned that work performed without a valid purchase 
order issued by the Purchasing Agent County may not pay for.  The County recognizes 
that some elements of work cannot be detected until work is in progress.  When latent 
physical conditions are discovered, the Contractor shall not proceed with additional 
services until formally authorized by the Purchasing Agent.  If portions of the work 
approved on the purchase order can proceed, Contractor shall do so while authorization to 
proceed is generated for work related to the unforeseen condition. 

 
C. Contractor shall keep the requesting department informed of the work in progress and 

advise them when a job is complete.  Contractor will schedule an inspection of the work 
with the requesting department. Once all defects are corrected, the Contractor may submit 
his invoice for payment. 

 
2.0 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 
2.1 The latest editions of federal, state, industry, and local codes apply to this work. 
 
2.2 The latest editions of the following regulations will apply to this work: 
 

A. Uniform Building Code (UBC) 
 
B. Occupational Safety and Health Program (OSHA), and applicable standards. 

 
2.3 PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES: 
 

A The Contractor shall secure and pay for building permits and for all legally-required 
permits, governmental fees, licenses, and inspections necessary for the proper execution 
and completion of the work. 

 
B County shall reimburse Contractor for such permits, fees, and inspections upon validation 

of payment. 
 
C The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations, and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the 
work. 

 
D If the Contractor performs any work when he knows or should know it to be contrary to 

such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, Contractor shall assume full responsibility 
therefor and shall bear costs attributable thereto. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



17 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
3.0 SUBMITTALS 
 

3.1 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: All items of equipment and/or materials that are defined or 
described in the Contract require submission in accordance with this section.  Brochures, samples, 
certificates of compliance and test reports, as applicable, must be submitted by the Contractor to 
Facilities Management and approval given by Facilities Management before that item of material 
is installed under the Contract. 

 
A. All of the data required shall be submitted at one time for each purchase order.  Approval of 

materials, equipment, and methods shall be withheld until all of the required information has 
been submitted and is in the hands of Facilities Management.  All submissions must be in 
sufficient detail to adequately determine that the item will meet the requirements of the 
specifications. 

 
3.2 SUBMITTAL APPROVALS: At a minimum, the following list of materials will require 

approval.  The Purchasing Agent (administrative issues) or Facilities Management (technical 
issues) may require additional submittals as deemed necessary.  If additional items are required to 
be submitted, a revised transmittal form shall be prepared by the Contractor and submitted with 
the additional submittals.  The Contractor shall develop a submittal log to track the submission 
and approval of items.  Items previously approved for the same use will not require resubmittal on 
subsequent Purchase Orders.  The Contractor shall not proceed with work using materials that are 
subject to approval until they are approved. 

 
A. Materials and methods requiring approval, if appropriate, based on purchased order 

issued:   
Lead-Based Paint Removal Plan 
All Paints, Primers and Varnishes 
Vinyl Corner Guards 
Vinyl Base 
Caulks and Sealant 

 
3.3 PROCEDURES: 
 

A. Deliver all submittals to Facilities Management within five (5) calendar days after 
issuance of the valid purchase order unless otherwise specified, or unless previously 
approved by Facilities Management for a previous purchase order for the same use. 

 
B. Identify project, Contractor, subcontractor, major supplier.  Include specification section 

number, as appropriate.  Identify deviations from Contract documents. 
 

C. Facilities Management’s review will be limited to the determination of whether submittals 
are in conformance with Contract requirements.  Approval by Facilities shall not absolve 
the Contractor from his/her responsibilities for specific performance of the item or items 
submitted. 

 
D. Submittals shall be accepted only from the Contractor (not sub-contractor or material 

supplier), who shall check submittals for completeness, accuracy, and conformance with 
Contract requirements and shall indicate his concurrence on each submittal. 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



18 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
E. Unless otherwise specified, submittals for a specific product/material make, model, 

formula, etc., will be required only upon first use under the provisions of the Contract, not 
for each subsequent purchase order issued. 

 
3.4 PROPOSED “OR EQUALS” PRODUCTS/MATERIALS: 
 

A. Submit proposed “Or Equals” Products/Materials to Facilities Management within five (5) 
calendar days after the date of a valid purchase order is issued. 

 
B. List the following information: 
 

1. Proposed item(s). 
 

2. Amounts for all cost variations. 
 

3. Product Data and all information required to determine suitability of the proposed 
product. 

 
4. Impact on other work. 

 
5. Additional information as requested by Facilities Management. 

 
C. Approval or rejection of “Or Equals” Products/Materials is at Facilities Management 

discretion, whose judgment will be final.  Factors for acceptability of proposed 
substitutions are as follows: 

  
1. Quality of materials, structural strength, and details of construction or fabrication. 

 
2. Performance and function. 

 
3. Appearance and finish. 

 
4. Test samples and/or laboratory reports for purpose of exhibiting “or equal” 

eligibility.  Testing if performed will be at Contractor’s expense. 
 

D. Do not resubmit any previously rejected proposed “Or Equals” products/materials. 
 
E. Use of approved “Or Equals” Products/Materials does not relieve the Contractor from 

compliance with the Contract Documents. 
 
F. If “Or Equals” Products/Materials are installed without prior approval, the Contractor may 

be required to remove the unauthorized materials and install those specified, at no 
additional cost to the County. 

 
 
 
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



19 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
3.5 SAMPLES: 
 

A. When required by individual specification sections, submit samples that fully illustrate 
functional characteristics of the product, complete with integral parts and attachments. 

 
B. Include identification on each sample, giving full information. 
 
C. Samples will be retained by Facilities Management, except in those instances where the 

specifications permit use of the sample in the actual work. 
 
D. Provide field finishes at project as required by individual specifications section.  Install 

sample complete and finished.  Acceptable finishes in place may be retained in completed 
work. 

 
3.6 PRODUCT DATA: 
 

A. When required by individual specification sections, submit product data that indicates 
compliance with listed standards. 

 
B. Mark each copy to identify applicable products, models, options, and other data; 

supplement manufacturer’s standard data to provide information unique to the work.  
Include manufacturer’s preparation and installation instructions when required by the 
specification section. 

 
C. Trade names of specific products used in this specification are used for purposes of 

defining general quality and performance.  They are not used to preclude the use of 
products of equal characteristics by other manufacturers.  The County reserves the right to 
determine equality. 

 
D. The Contractor shall submit complete data including performance and chemical makeup 

for both the specified and proposed item to Facilities Management with any request for 
substitutions. 

 
3.7 MANUFACTURER’S DETAILED INSTRUCTIONS: Submit the manufacturer’s detailed 

preparation and installation instructions for various materials specified to be installed in 
accordance with such instructions. 

 
4.0 PURCHASE ORDER CLOSE-OUT 
 

4.1 CLOSE-OUT PROCEDURES: 
 

A. When the Contractor considers the work authorized by a separate purchase order has 
reached final completion, submit written certification to Facilities Management that the 
Contract documents have been reviewed, the work has been inspected, and that the work 
is complete in accordance with the Contract documents and ready for final inspection. 

 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



20 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
B. Provide Facilities Management with a requested date for final inspection not less than one 

(1) working day prior to the proposed date of final inspection.  Facilities Management will 
coordinate and establish the final inspection date.  If deficiencies are identified, a request 
for re-inspection must be given upon correction of the deficiencies.  A copy of a delivery 
ticket/receipt will be signed by Facilities Management once the work is acceptable.  
Invoices should reflect the exact Contract line items (including direct reimbursable) as 
authorized on the purchase order for that work. 

 
4.2 FINAL CLEANING: 
 

A. Execute following items as appropriate to the work completed prior to final inspection. 
 
B. Clean interior and exterior surfaces exposed to view; remove temporary labels, stains, and foreign 

substances, polish transparent and glossy surfaces, vacuum carpeted and soft surfaces.  Clean 
equipment and fixtures to a sanitary condition. 

 
C. Clean site; sweep paved areas, rake clean other surfaces. 
 
D. Remove waste and surplus materials, rubbish, tools and equipment from the work site. 

 
4.3 WARRANTIES: Provide all manufacturer's warranty documents required by individual sections. 

 
5.0 PAINTING 
 

5.1 STATEMENT OF WORK:  The indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity work covered by these 
specifications consists of furnishing of all labor, equipment and materials for the preparation, 
exterior and interior painting, and final cleanup of buildings, portions of buildings or other 
structures and facilities located in Travis County. 

 
5.2 SUMMARY: 
 

A. GENERAL: Work authorized via valid purchase orders under this section is 
“INTERIOR/EXTERIOR PAINTING”. 

 
B. Briefly and without force and effect upon the Contract documents, the work of this section 

of the specifications can be summarized as consisting of the preparation, interior and 
exterior painting, and final cleanup of buildings, and portions of buildings or other 
structures on County facilities. 

 
5.3 COUNTY FURNISHED PROPERTY:  None. 
 
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



21 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
5.4 MEASUREMENT OF WORK - UNIT PRICES: 
 

A. Measurement of wall shall be based on square feet of wall and trim area determined from 
the dimensions of the vertical projection of the wall surface from the top of the finished 
floor, including the bottom of the baseboard and/or shoe mold, or the top of prefinished 
wainscot to the finished ceiling and the horizontal measurement from one corner of the 
room where walls intersect vertically to either the extremity of the painting limits on that 
surface, or the opposite corner of wall being measured. 

 
B. Measurement of stairway wall shall be based on square feet of wall and trim area 

determined from dimensions of the vertical projection of the wall surface above the top of 
the finished treads or wall stringer to the finished ceiling or wall cap and the horizontal 
measurement as stated in the preceding paragraph. 

 
C. Measurement of ceilings shall be based on square feet of ceiling area determined from 

dimensions of the horizontal projection of the painted ceiling surfaces between the 
finished wall surfaces. 

 
D. The total area for payment of walls and ceilings is to be calculated with each individual 

opening of less than 25 square feet (e.g. window, or door) included in the wall and ceiling 
area measurement.  Any individual opening larger than 25 square feet in each area shall be 
subtracted from the wall and ceiling area measurement. 

 
E. Measurement of trim (i.e., baseboard, shoe mold, window frame, door frame, ceiling 

mold, wall stringers in stairways and painted stairway risers, if encountered) shall be 
included in the wall measurement.  If walls are not being painted, then trim will be paid on 
a linear footage basis as per bid items for “paint trim”. 

 
F. Painting and staining by the hour shall be for mechanical equipment (pumps, motors, 

HVAC units, electrical devices, etc.) furniture, cabinetry, building fixtures, courtroom 
furnishings, benches, railings and platforms. 

 
G. Painting and staining doors shall be based on each unit with size of door to be 36” x 96” or 

less.  Doors larger than this typical size will be estimated and paid based on square footage 
measurement for the appropriate substrate material. 

 
5.5 PAYMENT:  Payment for painting miscellaneous surfaces shall be made at the Bid Price 

submitted by Contractor in his Bid for areas that are actually painted.  Hourly rate work actually 
accomplished will be paid at the rate bid/awarded.  Contractor is cautioned not to exceed the area 
or hourly estimates included on the purchase order without formal authorization from the 
Purchasing Agent. 

 
5.6 REFERENCES: 
 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary 
Conditions (if any) and other Specifications sections, apply to all work performed under 
the Contract. 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



22 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
B. Safety Requirements during all phases of work performed under the Contract are to be 

governed, at all times, by applicable provisions of federal laws and OSHA standards, 
including but not limited to, the latest edition of the following: 

 
1. Part 1926 - Chapter of Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations. 
 
2. Corps of Engineers Safety and Health Requirement Manual, EM385-1-1. 
 
3. Occupational Safety and Health Program, and applicable standards. 

 
5.7 DEFINITIONS: 
 

A. Paint: as used herein means all coating systems materials, including primers, emulsions, 
enamels, stains, sealers and fillers, and other applied materials whether used as prime, 
intermediate or finish coats. 

 
B. Surface area: as used herein to include all sheetrock, metal siding, masonry, stucco, 

plaster, wood and concrete substrates which will receive paint. 
 
C. Trim:  to include all facia, softies, window trim, door trim, jams, moldings, crown 

moldings, chair rails and crash rails. 
 
D. Door:  to include all units with size of 36” x 96” or less. 

 
5.8 DESCRIPTION: 
 

A. Work includes painting and finishing of existing interior/exterior exposed items and 
surfaces.  Typical interior paint job would be repainting 1000 square feet or more of 
previously painted surface area.  Typical exterior paint job would also be 1000 square feet 
or more of previously painted surface area. 

 
B. The Contractor shall apply paint and trim in accordance with this specification and as per 

Facilities Management direction as indicated on the authorizing purchase order. 
 
C. The Contractor shall remove and replace deteriorated window putty and caulking, patch 

sheetrock, masonry, repair loose or missing facia, repair damaged stucco, caulk all 
windows, and caulk joint between stucco and block.  These costs will be paid on a unit 
price basis if covered under Group “B” or otherwise time and material basis using rates 
bid under Group “C”. 

 
D. The Contractor shall clean paint spots from the interior/exterior face of window and door 

glass.  Leave glass clean. 
 
E. Screens shall be removed and windows shall be caulked, painted, and reputtied as 

required.  Correctly rehang screens and fasten in place. 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



23 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
F. The Contractor shall not paint: 
 

1. Aluminum, bronze, galvanized, stainless steel non-ferrous metal work; unless 
specifically directed to do so by the purchase order.  

 
2. Surfaces concealed in walls and above solid ceilings. 
 
3. Non-metallic walking surfaces. 
 
4. Factory finished surfaces. 
 
5. Ceramic tile and plastic surfaces. 
 
6. Unpainted aluminum. 
 
7. Nameplates on Electrical and HVAC equipment. 
 
8. County emblems on facilities. 
 
9. Surfaces indicated not to be painted. 

 
5.9 ADDITIONAL SUBMITTALS: 
 

A. List of Paint Materials:  Prior to submittal of Samples, submit a complete list of proposed 
paint materials, identifying each material by manufacturer’s name, product name and 
number, including primers, thinners, and coloring agents, together with manufacturers, 
catalog data fully describing each material as to contents, recommended usage, and 
preparation and application methods.  Identifying which surfaces shall receive the various 
paint materials.  Do not deviate from approved list without Facilities Management 
approval. 

 
B. Product Data:  Submit manufacturer’s technical information including paint label analysis 

and application instructions for each material proposed to use including: 
 

1. Material Safety Data Sheet 
 
2. Technical Specifications 

 
C. Samples:  Prior to beginning work, Contractor will furnish 3 sets of (preferably 81/2 x 11 

inch, 3 hole punched) color boards for surfaces to be painted (manufacturer’s standard 
color charts/boards are acceptable).  Use colors specified by County when preparing 
samples for review.  Submit samples for Facilities Management review of color and 
texture only.  Provide a listing of material and application for each coat of finish example.  
Provide two brush-out samples of each color and material, with texture to simulate actual 
conditions.  Resubmit samples as requested by Facilities Management until acceptable 
sheen, color, and texture is achieved. 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



24 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
D. The Contractor shall submit to Facilities Management samples of all materials in 

quantities and sizes determined by Facilities Management.  If a sample is rejected, one 
sample noted so will be returned to the Contractor.  If a sample is marked “Approved 
Except As Noted”, one sample so noted will be returned.  Corrected samples shall be 
resubmitted for approval as per the original submittal. 

 
E. When requested by Facilities Management, the Contractor shall deliver to Facilities 

Management signed certificates from suppliers of materials and manufactured items stated 
that such items conform to the Contract Documents. 

 
5.10 QUALITY ASSURANCE: 
 

A. Preparation, application, workmanship, completion, and acceptance shall be in accordance 
with manufacturer’s recommendations and applicable provisions of Painting and 
Decorating Contractors of America “Painting Specification Manual” for Type 1, Standard 
job.  All painting, whether interior or exterior, partial or complete, shall include all work 
necessary for a finished job, including windows, door frames, trim, molding, closets, and 
shelves.  Unit prices shall include all costs for surface preparation, caulking, spot priming, 
moving, protecting furniture and other requirements as specified in other paragraphs.  Tear 
down, movement and reassembly of systems furniture is not included in scope of this 
contract. 

 
B. Paint shall be carefully applied with good, clean brushes, rollers, or approved airless spray 

equipment (must be authorized for that purchase order) to provide smooth-finished 
surfaces free from runs, drops, ridges, waves, laps, brush marks, variations in color, or 
other defects.  Allow time between coats, as recommended by the coating manufacturer, to 
permit thorough drying.  Each coat shall cover the surface of the preceding coat or surface 
completely and be of sufficient thickness to completely cover the preceding coat or 
surface. 

 
C. Where specific instruction in these Specifications require that a particular product and/or 

materials be installed and/or applied by an “approved applicator” of the manufacturer, it 
shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to insure that all subcontractors used for such work 
use approved applicators. 

 
D. Provide primers and other undercoat paint compatible with finish coats and per 

manufacturer’s instructions.  Use only thinners approved by paint manufacturer, and use 
thinners only within manufacturer’s recommended limits. 

 
E. The Contractor and his subcontractors shall comply with applicable federal, state, and 

local laws and regulations concerning environmental pollution control and abatement. 
 
F. The Contractor shall clean up and properly dispose of all liquid spills caused by him or his 

subcontractors at no cost to the County.  
 

 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



25 
 

SPECIFICATIONS – continued 
 

5.11 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING: 
 

A. Deliver materials to job site in original, new and unopened packages and containers 
bearing manufacturer’s name and label, and following information: 

 
1. Manufacturer’s name. 

 
2. Application instructions. 
 
3. Color name and number. 

 
4. Material Safety Data Sheet (full set will be maintained at job site for all materials 

used). 
 

B. Store material not in actual use in tightly covered containers.  Maintain containers used for 
storage of paint in a clean condition, free of foreign material and residue. 

 
C. Protect from freezing where necessary.  Keep storage area neat and orderly.  Remove oily 

rags and waste daily.  Take all precautions to ensure that workmen and work areas are 
adequately protected from fire hazards and health hazards resulting from handling, 
mixing, and application of paints. 

 
D. Do not unreasonably encumber the site with materials or equipment.  Confine stockpiling 

of materials to the areas indicated.  If additional storage is necessary, obtain and pay for 
such storage off site.   

 
5.12 PROJECT/SITE CONDITIONS: 
 

A. Apply water-based paints only when temperature of surfaces to be painted and 
surrounding air temperatures are between 50 F (10 C) and 90F (32 C), unless 
otherwise permitted by paint manufacturer’s printed instructions. 

 
B. Apply solvent-thinned paints only when temperature of surfaces to be painted and 

surrounding air temperatures are between 45 F (8 C) and 95 F (35 C), unless otherwise 
permitted by paint manufacturer’s printed instructions. 

 
C. Do not apply paint in snow, rain, fog, or mist, or when relative humidity exceeds 85%, or 

to damp or wet surfaces, unless otherwise permitted by paint manufacturer’s printed 
instructions. 

 
D. The Contractor shall limit his use of the premises to the work indicated, so as to allow for 

County occupancy and use by the public. 
 
E. Confine operations at the site to the areas permitted under the Contract.  Portions of the 

site beyond areas on which work is indicated are not to be disturbed.  Conform to site 
rules and regulations affecting the work while engaged in performance of the services. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



26 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 

F. Protect all painting while in progress and cover and protect adjoining surfaces and 
property of others from damage.  Exercise care to prevent paint from contacting surfaces 
not to be painted.  During painting of interior/exterior work, cover furniture, equipment, 
windows, doors, concrete, and other surfaces not to be painted. 

 
G. Contractor shall, at his own expense, move and/or disconnect all fixtures, equipment, and 

plumbing work, etc., that is necessary to accomplish the work.  Upon completion of work 
all items shall be installed in good working order.  The work shall be accomplished in a 
manner which will cause a minimum of disturbance to adjacent structures and work areas 
and their occupants; will result in a maximum of salvageable material; and will preclude 
damage to structures, equipment and systems not designated for removal.  Contractor shall 
take any measures necessary to insure that existing construction is not damaged by his 
operations.  Contractor shall replace or repair any features damaged by his operations in a 
manner satisfactory to Facilities Management.  Contractor will not be required to tear 
down and erect systems furniture. 

 
H. Electrical power and water will be available at existing sources without cost to the 

Contractor. 
 
I. Stack all supplies in one area in a neat and orderly manner at the end of each workday.  

Provide all refuse containers.  Do not use any containers already on site.  Upon completion 
of each purchase order, remove all staging, scaffolding, and containers from the area in an 
orderly manner.  Paint spots, oil or stains on adjacent surfaces shall be removed causing 
no damage to these surfaces.   Break loose all doors and windows, and demonstrate that 
they work.  Door and window finishes damaged by being broke loose will be touched up 
by the Contractor.  Leave each area of a completed facility neat and clean. 

 
J. Place oily rags in waste self-closing metal containers, removed from site at the end of each 

day.  Do not let rags and waste accumulate. 
 
5.13 SEQUENCING AND SCHEDULING: 
 

A. The individual purchase orders will identify the services required. 
 
B. Each facility or area assigned shall be completed, including patching, all painting, and 

cleanup of work area.  
 
C. The Contractor shall schedule work area/facility to be painted [five] days prior to 

performing work.  He shall inspect the building and, if any debris must be removed or any 
foliage needs to be cut back from his work area, he shall notify Facilities Management 
five days prior to painting.  Facilities Management will remove debris or cut back the 
foliage. 

 
D. Facilities Management shall be notified by the Contractor three to five days prior to start 

of work.  The notification will include the Contractor’s name, date the work will begin, 
and a brief description of what must be removed, by the occupant, to prevent damage.  
Spraying will be allowed “by exception” rather than “the rule”. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



27 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
E. The Contractor shall place signs two days prior to spraying wherever vehicles or material 

assets may be in jeopardy.  The Contractor shall be responsible for controlling oversprays.  
Contractor may use spray application only if approved by Facilities Management for that 
purchase order. 

 
5.14 WARRANTIES: Warranties of those materials on which the vendor/manufacturer normally 

provides warranties shall be submitted to Facilities Management prior to final acceptance.  
Warranties shall reflect a description of the product, the serial number of the product, the date and 
location where it was incorporated into the work, the conditions of the warranty, the name of the 
vendor from whom the product was purchased, the name of the purchaser, his purchase order 
number, and date.  All work shall be warranted for a period of one (1) year from the date of final 
acceptance.  Facilities Management will monitor performance of paint and/or repairs and notify 
Contractor of those surfaces not acceptable prior to expiration of the warranty period.  Contractor 
shall be required to repaint finishes showing deterioration, fading, flaking or peeling during this 
warranty period. 

 
5.15 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS: 

 
A. Provide various types of coatings that meet or exceed Federal Specifications or 

Manufacturer products in the interior/exterior paint schedule which are regularly 
manufactured by acceptable paint materials manufacturers.  Material not displaying 
manufacturer’s identification will not be acceptable. 

 
1. Proprietary names used to designate colors or material are not intended to imply 

that products of named manufacturers are required to exclusion of equivalent 
products of other manufacturers. 

 
B. Available Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, manufacturers 

offering products which may be incorporated in the work include; but are not limited to, 
the following: 

 
Devoe and Reynolds Co.  (Devoe) 
Glidden Coatings and Resins, Division of SCM Corporation (Glidden) 
Benjamin Moore and Co.  (Moore) 
PPG Industries, Pittsburgh Paints (Pittsburgh) 
Sherwin Williams 
MAB Paints and Coatings 

 
5.16 COLORS: 
 

A. Color Pigments: Pure, non-fading, applicable types to suit substrates and service indicated. 
 

1. Lead content in pigment, if any, is limited to contain not more than 0.06% lead, as 
lead metal based on the total non-volatile (dry-film) of paint by weight. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



28 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 

2. This limitation is extended to those exterior surfaces, such as stairs, decks, 
porches, railings, windows, and doors which are readily accessible to children 
under seven years of age. 

 
B. Acceptable Colors: 

 
1. Unless otherwise directed, colors shall be as selected by Facilities Management 

from the manufacturer’s standard color charts.  Acceptable colors will be identified 
on each purchase order. 

 
5.17 EXAMINATION: The Contractor must examine areas and conditions under which painting 

work is to be applied and notify the Facilities Management in writing of conditions detrimental 
to proper and timely completion of work.  Do not proceed with work until unsatisfactory 
conditions have been corrected in a manner that meet manufacturer’s specifications or are 
acceptable to Facilities Management. 

 
5.18 PREPARATION: 
 

A. General Preparation: 
 

1. Perform preparation and cleaning procedures in accordance with paint 
manufacturer’s instructions and as herein specified, for each particular substrate 
condition. 

 
2. Provide barrier coats over incompatible primers or remove and reprime as 

required.  Notify Facilities Management in writing of any anticipated problems in 
using the specified coating systems with substrates primed by others.  Exposed 
ferrous metals, including nails on or in contact with surfaces to be painted with 
water-thinned paints, shall be spot-primed with a corrosion inhibitive primer 
capable of preventing flash rusting and compatible with the coating specified for 
the area.   

 
3. Remove hardware, hardware accessories, machined surfaces, plates, lighting 

fixtures, and similar items in place and not to be finish-painted, or provide surface 
applied protection prior to surface preparation and painting operations.  Remove, if 
necessary, for complete painting of items and adjacent surfaces.  Following 
completion of painting of each space or area, reinstall removed items.  Removal of 
tape and protective barriers and cleaning of any tape or protective residues will be 
performed by the Contractor.  NOTE:  Contractor will not be required to tear down 
or erect systems furniture.  This service will be provided by others.  Contractor 
will be required to coordinate his painting operations with contractor providing 
systems furniture support. 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



29 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
4. Clean surfaces to be painted before applying paint or surface treatments.  Remove 

oil and grease prior to mechanical cleaning.  Cleaning solvents shall be of low 
toxicity with a flashpoint in excess of 100 degrees Fahrenheit.  Program cleaning 
and painting so that contaminants from cleaning process will not fall onto wet, 
newly painted surfaces.  Where runs and sags exist from previous painting on any 
surface, the area shall be scraped and sanded until the surface is smooth and the 
run or sag is not visible 

 
B. Drywall:  Wherever repainting existing surfaces or existing work is cut, patched, or added 

to, touch up to match new work as closely as possible. 
 

1. Check compatibility of new coating to previously painted surfaces by applying test 
patch.  Allow to dry and test adhesion before continuing painting work. 

 
2. Put existing work scheduled for repainting in condition to provide good adhesion 

and to receive paint. 
 
3. Wash surfaces to be repainted thoroughly and/or sand to meet paint manufacturer’s 

recommendations.  
 
4. Remove residue from cleaning and abrading procedures. 
 
5. Spot prime bare areas on walls and ceiling. 
 
6. On surfaces to be refinished remove hardware, accessories, plates, surface 

mounted lighting fixtures, and similar items not to be coated, or provide protection 
during preparation and coating operations.  All nails, screws and other devices 
installed by tenants to hang pictures, dispensers, coat racks and wall decorations 
shall be removed by the Contractor prior to painting.   

 
7. Move furniture, furnishings, equipment and other items as required to paint 

existing surfaces.  Replace furniture, furnishings and equipment to original 
location.  NOTE:  Removal and re-installation of systems furniture will be by 
others. Contractor will need to coordinate his schedule with Facilities Management 
for proper sequencing of work. 

 
8. Coordinate storage location, mechanical, electric or plumbing service interruptions 

with other trades and Facilities Management. 
 
9. All holes and other imperfections in surfaces to be painted shall be filled with an 

approved filler material, colored to match the finish coat if natural finish is 
required, allowed to dry and then sanded prior to painting.   

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



30 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
10  Upon completion of surface preparation, obtain approval of Facilities Management 

on adequacy of surface preparation prior to placing finish coat (unless previously 
authorized to proceed with work by Facilities Management). 

 
11. Mix and prepare materials per manufacturer’s specifications.  Paints of different 

manufacturers shall not be mixed.  Stir, agitate or blend materials to produce a 
mixture of uniform density as required for application of materials. 

 
C. Concrete:  Prepare by removing efflorescence, chalk, dirt, grease, oil, old weathered paint, 

and by roughing to remove glaze.  Remove surface deposit of free iron.  Fill cracks, holes, 
and other blemishes with Portland cement, patching plaster or a stiff paste mixed of finish 
paint and fine sand, finished to match adjoining surfaces.  Remove glaze by sanding, wire 
brushing, or light brush-off sandblasting.  Neutralize all alkali conditions according to the 
paint manufacturer’s directions.   Dry surfaces to receive breathing type latex paints at 
least two weeks, free of visible moisture.  Dry the surfaces to receive oil, alkyd, or epoxy 
based paint until the moisture content does not exceed 8% when tested with an electronic 
moisture-measuring instrument. 

 
D. Ferrous Metal: Degrease and clean of chalk, dirt, rust, mill scale, oil, and all other foreign 

matter using rotary brushes, solvents, or sandblasting.  Remove pits and welding slag, and 
clean surfaces to bright metal before priming.  Spot prime exposed metal.  Apply metal 
primer not more than three hours after preparation.  Sandblasting must be specifically 
authorized on the Purchase Order. 

 
E. Factory Painted Metal Siding: Thoroughly remove the chalking down to a firm substrate 

material.  Use wash down/scrub down operations.  Prepare for the undercoating. 
 
F. Oil Painted Metal Surfaces: Thoroughly remove the chalking down to a firm substrate. 
 
G. Caulking:  Scrape deteriorated caulking from facilities.  Apply new caulk to present an 

even, neat appearance. 
 
H. Putty:  Scrape, chip, and clean old putty from surfaces.  Replace with new putty finished 

to match the quality of the surface appropriate to the rework. 
 
I. Shop Coated Metal: Degrease and clean of foreign matter.  Clean and spot paint field 

connections, welds, soldered joints, burned, or abraded portions with same material used 
in shop coats.  After complete hardening, sand entire surfaces for coat to follow.   

 
J. Galvanized Metal: Degrease and clean of foreign matter.  Apply specified pretreatment 

and immediately apply primer paint. 
 
K. Surfaces Not Mentioned: Prepare surfaces according to recommendations of the paint 

manufacturer and as approved. 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



31 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 
L. General: Schedule cleaning and painting so that dust and other contaminants from the 

cleaning process will not fall on wet, newly painted surfaces. 
 
M. Material Preparation: 
 

1. Mix and prepare painting materials in accordance with manufacturer’s directions. 
 
2. Maintain containers used in mixing and application of paint in a clean condition, 

free of foreign materials and residue. 
 
3. Stir materials before application to produce a mixture of uniform density, and stir 

as required during application.  Do not stir surface film into material.  Remove 
film and, if necessary, strain material before using. 

 
4. Do not mix together paints of different manufacturers.  The use of thinner for any 

reason will not relieve the Contracting from obtaining complete hiding. 
 

5.19 APPLICATION: 
 

A. Methods: 
 

1. Brush/Roller: Unless otherwise specified, use brush or brush and roller 
combination.  Finish trim surfaces with a brush. 

 
2. Spray Equipment: Strictly controlled spray equipment will be allowed by Facilities 

Management, but only under the following conditions: 
 

a. Type of Equipment: Use strictly controlled, airless spray equipment of the 
type that limits overspray.  The operator should be a Journeyman, well 
qualified in the use of airless sprayer. 

 
b. The County reserves the right to withdraw permission to spray paint at any 

time.  Such a decision can be based on inclement weather, poor 
performance of spray equipment, poor workmanship, or when surfaces 
adjoining the work area are threatened by the spray operations. 

 
B. Techniques: 

 
1. Apply paint in accordance with manufacturer’s directions. 

 
2. Apply first-coat material to surfaces that have been cleaned, pretreated, or 

otherwise prepared for painting as soon as practical after preparation and before 
subsequent surface deterioration (for new work -- not required for repainting). 

 
3. Apply prime coat of material which is required to be painted or finished, and 

which has not been prime coated by others. (Repainting is not required for new 
work) 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



32 
 

 
SPECIFICATIONS - continued 

 
a. Re-coat primed and sealed surfaces where there is evidence of suction spots 

or unsealed areas in first coat, to assure a finish coat with no burn- through 
or other defects due to insufficient sealing. 

 
b. Allow sufficient time between successive coatings to permit proper drying 

as per manufacturer’s recommendations. 
 

c. Omit first coat (primer) on metal surfaces which have been shop-primed 
and touch-up painted, unless otherwise indicated. 

 
4. Apply the paint so that hiding of undercoats will be complete.  Apply each coat at 

the proper consistency, free from runs, drops, ridges, waves, laps, brush marks, and 
variations in color, texture and finish. 

 
a. The paint specified will cover in no more than two coats.   If the paint fails 

to cover due to light application, over-thinning, use of inferior product, or 
any other reason, the Contractor shall repair the defective area at no 
additional cost to the County. 

 
b. Application:  Repaint drywall surfaces with a minimum of one coat of 

finish paint or as many coats as necessary to cover all noticeable 
imperfections.  This includes removing/correcting hot or “slick spots” or 
flat spots on walls that are perpendicular to windows/doors and natural 
light or any other obviously noticeable imperfections viewed from a 
distance greater than 5 feet. 

 
c. Give special attention to insure that surfaces, including edges, corners, 

crevices, welds, and exposed fasteners receive a dry film thickness 
equivalent to that of flat surfaces. 

 
d. Sand lightly between each succeeding enamel or varnish coat. 

 
e. Do not use steel wool to prepare surfaces that will receive water-based 

coatings. 
 

f. Finish doors on tops, bottoms and side edges same as exterior faces, unless 
otherwise indicated. 

 
5.20 CLEAN UP: 
 

A. During progress of work, remove from site discarded paint materials, rubbish, cans and 
rags at end of each work day. 

 
B. Upon completion of painting work, clean window glass or other paint-splattered surfaces.  

Remove spattered paint by proper methods of washing and scraping, using care not to 
scratch or otherwise damage finished surface. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



33 
 

SPECIFICATIONS - continued 
 

C. Carefully touch-up all abraded, stained, or otherwise disfigured painting, as approved, and 
leave entire painting in first-class condition. 

 
D. Remove all tape and protective barriers.  Clean any tape and protective residues from the 

surfaces. 
 
5.21 PROTECTION: 
 

A. Protect all vegetation/landscaping, carpets, ceiling/floor tiles and millwork adjacent to 
work area and work of other trades, whether to be painted or not, against damage by 
painting and finishing work.  Correct any damage by cleaning, repairing or replacing, and 
repainting, as acceptable to Facilities Management. 

 
B. Provide “Wet Paint” signs as required to protect newly-painted finishes.  Remove 

temporary protective wrappings provided by others for protection of their work, and “Wet 
Paint” signs after completion of painting operations. 

 
C. At completion of work of other trades, touch-up and restore all damaged or defaced 

painted surfaces. 
 

5.22 PAINT SCHEDULE 
 

A. Provide the following paint systems for the various substrates, as indicated.  The following list of 
products indicate approved equals for meeting the technical product specifications herein.  
Interior products meet the requirements of LEED-NC 2.2. 

 
1. Interior Gypsum Wallboard or Plaster Surfaces (New Work – For repainting, omit 

prime coat and third coat unless required for coverage). 
 

a. First Coat:  PPG Speedhide Interior Latex Primer Sealer 6-2.  
   SW Progreen 200 Voc Primer, B28W600 

b. Second Coat: PPG Pitt-Glaze WB Water Borne Acrylic Epoxy 16-551 Series 
   SW Hi Build Waterbased Catalyzed Epoxy   

c. Third Coat:   PPG Pitt-Glaze WB Acrylic Epoxy 16-551 Series  
   SW Hi Build Waterbased Catalyzed Epoxy 

 
2. Interior Gypsum Wallboard (New Work – For repainting, omit prime coat and third 

coat unless required for coverage). 
 

a. First Coat:    PPG Speedhide Latex Primer Sealer  6-2   
   SW Progreen 200 Primer, B28W600 

b. Second Coat: PPG Wallhide Latex Eggshell Enamel 80-310 Series 
   SW Progreen 200 Latex Eg-Shell, B20W600 

c. Third Coat:  PPG Wallhide Latex Eggshell Enamel 80-310 Series 
   SW Progreen 200 Latex Eg-Shell, B20W600 

 
3. Interior Plaster and Veneer Plaster (New Work – For repainting, omit prime coat and 

third coat unless required for coverage). 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



34 
 

SPECIFICATIONS – continued 
 

a. First Coat:  PPG Speedhide Latex Primer Sealer  6-2   
   SW Progreen 200 Primer, B28W600 

b. Second Coat: PPG Wallhide Latex Eggshell Enamel 80-310 Series 
   SW Progreen 200 Latex Eg-Shell, B20W600 

c. Third Coat:  PPG Wallhide Latex Eggshell Enamel 80-310 Series 
   SW Progreen 200 Latex Eg-Shell, B20W600 

 
4. Exterior Concrete Masonry Units 
 

a. Lusterless (Flat) Acrylic Finish:  2 coats over filler coat. 
 

b. Filler Coat:  Block Filler for Porous Surfaces (New work only). 
 PPG Speedhide Latex Block Filler 6-7. 
 SW Preprite Block Filler, B25W25. 

c. First and Second Finish Coats:  100% Acrylic Finish.  
 PPG Speedhide Exterior Latex Flat 6-610 Series. 
 SW A100 Exterior Latex, A6 Series. 

 
5. Exterior General Painted Wood 
 

a. Latex Satin Finish:  2 finish coats over primer. 
 

b. Prime Coat: Exterior 100% Acrylic Latex Primer: 
 PPG SealGrip Latex Universal Primer/Sealer 17-921 
 SW Preprite Latex Problock Primer, B51W20 

c. First and Second Finish Coats:  100% Acrylic Finish. 
 PPG Speedhide Exterior Latex Satin 6-2045 Series 
 SW A100 Exterior Latex Satin, A82 Series. 
 

6. Exterior Painted Wood Trim: 
 

a. Latex Satin Finish:  2 finish coats over primer. 
 

b. Prime Coat: Exterior 100% Acrylic Latex Primer: 
PPG SealGrip Latex Universal Primer/Sealer 17-921   
SW Preprite Latex Problock Primer, B51W20 

c. First and Second Finish Coats:  100% Acrylic Finish. 
PPG Speedhide Exterior Latex Satin 6-2045 Series.   
SW A100 Exterior Latex Satin, A82 Series. 

 
7. Exterior Painted Plywood: 

 
a. Latex Satin Finish:  2 finish coats over primer. 

 
b. Prime Coat:  Exterior 100% Acrylic Latex Primer: 

PPG SealGrip Latex Universal Primer/Sealer 17-921.   
SW Preprite Latex Problock Primer B51W20. 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



35 
 

SPECIFICATIONS – continued 
 

c. First and Second Finish Coats:  100% Acrylic Finish. 
PPG Speedhide Exterior Latex Satin 6-2045 Series.   
SW A100 Exterior Latex Satin, A82 Series. 

 
8. Exterior Stained Wood:  2 Coats Semi-Transparent Latex Stain  
 

PPG SUN-PROOF Semi-Transparent Stain 77-1460.   
SW Woodscapes Water Borne Semi-Transparent Stain A15T5. 

 
9. Interior or Exterior Ferrous Metal: 
 

a. Latex Semi-Gloss Enamel:  2 finish coats over primer.  Primer is not required 
on items delivered shop primed. 

 
b. Prime Coat:  Water-Borne Rust-Inhibiting Primer. 

PPG Pitt-Tech® Plus Int./Ext. DTM Industrial Primer, 90-912 Series 
SW DTM Acrylic Primer/Finish B66W1. 

c. First and Second Finish Coats:  Lusterless Latex Enamel  
PPG Pitt-Tech® Plus Int./Ext. Satin DTM Industrial Enamel 90-1210. 
SW DTM Acrylic Coating Semi-Gloss, B66W200. 

 
10. Interior or Exterior Zinc-Coated Metal: 
 

a. High Gloss Latex Enamel:  2 Finish coats over primer. 
 

b. Prime Coat:  Water-Borne Rust-Inhibiting Primer. 
 PPG Pitt-Tech® Plus Int./Ext. DTM Industrial Primer 90-912 Series 
 SW DTM Acrylic Primer/Finish, B66W1 

 
c. First and Second Finish Coats:  High Gloss Latex Enamel  

Pitt-Tech® Plus Int./Ext. High Gloss DTM Industrial Enamel 90-310 
SW DTM Acrylic Coating Gloss, B66W100 

 
 

 
 

  
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



36 
 

Attachment D 
Ethics Affidavit 

 
 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



37 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



38 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



39 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



40 
 

Attachment E 
HUB Declaration and List of Subcontractors 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



41 
 

Attachment F 
Safety Record Questionnaire 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



42 
 

 
 
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



43 
 

Attachment G 
References

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



44 
 

 Attachment H 
Experience Verification 

 
  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: December 2, 2014 
Prepared By: Wendy Scaperotta Phone #: (512) 854-7655 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Development Services and Long Range 
Planning Division Director 

(?~ to. Q...,o ~ 
Department Head: Steven M. Ma~, ~.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on public 

engagement findings and recommended revisions to the Land, Water, and 

Transportation Plan. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) staff prepared a draft Land, Water, and 

Transportation Plan (LWTP) that the Commissioners Court (Court) approved for 

public review on June 24, 2014. The Court also approved the proposed Public 

Engagement Plan for a robust, inclusive process that would provide many 

opportunities for public input. The review kicked off on August 15, 2014 and 

continued through October 1, 2014. The findings are presented in Exhibit A: Public 

Engagement Report and associated revisions to the LWTP are provided in Exhibit B: 

Staff Recommendations. 


The four documents comprising the LWTP with recommended revisions are attached 

as Exhibit C: Revised Executive Summary, Exhibit D: Revised Growth Guidance 

Plan, Exhibit E: Revised Background Report, and Exhibit D: Revised Summary of 

Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules. 


TNR staff requests the Court to consider public input and recommended revisions to 

the plan for the purpose of adopting the LWTP. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

TNR staff recommends adoption of the LWTP. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

The LWTP provides a framework for guiding growth to balance development and 

conservation in unincorporated Travis County. Adoption of this plan will help a) set 

legislative agendas, b) develop Capital Improvement Program (CIP) priorities, c) 

guide growth-related policies, d) guide collaborative planning and public/private 


Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



I 

partnerships, e) develop budget priorities, and f) guide departmental annual work 
plan assignments. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Exhibit A: Public Engagement Report 
Exhibit B: Staff Recommendations 
Exhibit C: Revised Executive Summary 
Exhibit D: Revised Growth Guidance Plan 
Exhibit E: Revised Background Report 
Exhibit F: Revised Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

(512) 854-4239Financial Manager TNRCynthia McDonald 
TNR (512) 854-9429Steven M. Manilla County Executive 

• 

cc: 

I Scheleen Walker Planning Program Mgr TNR (512) 854-4603 
Wendy Scaperotta Planning Project Mgr TNR (512) 854-7655 
Charlie Watts Planning Project Mgr TNR (512) 854-7654 
Melissa Zone Senior Planner TNR (512) 854~9435 

1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



L A N D  WAT E R  A N D  T R A N S P O R TAT I O N  P L A N

T R A V I S  C O U N T Y

EXHIBIT A: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT REPORT

NOVEMBER 2014

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo Credits for Cover Page from top left moving clockwise:  
McCallum Public Meeting photographed by CD&P; Manor Public Meeting photographed by CD&P; Travis County Public 
Meeting photographed by CD&P; Wildflowers photographed by Jason Spangler; Hamilton Pool photograph courtesy of 
Travis County; Downtown Public Meeting photographed by CD&P; Vandegrift Public Meeting photographed by CD&P; Land  
Development photograph courtesy of Bosse & Associates (Colorado River Plan); Sign photograph courtesy Dwyer Realty;  
Downtown Public Meeting photographed by CD&P; Dark Skies Photo photograph courtesy of HCA Night Skies Efforts;  
Conservation Land abutting Wilbarger Creek photograph courtesy of Wilbarger Creek Conservation Alliance; Pogue  
Springs photograph courtesy of Travis County; AISD Back to School Bash photographed by CD&P.  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

 

 

 

 

Judge Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Commissioner Ron Davis, Precinct 1 

 

Commissioner Bruce Todd, Precinct 2 

 

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Precinct 3 

 

Commissioner Margaret Gómez, Precinct 4 

 

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Prepared by Transportation and Natural Resources 
Steve M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive 

 

Project Management 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director Development Services and Long Range Planning 

Melissa Zone, Senior Planner 
 

Land Conservation 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 

Thomas Webber, Environmental Quality Program Manager 
Jon White, Division Director, Natural Resources and Environmental Quality 

 

Development and Transportation 
Charlie Watts, Planning Project Manager 

 

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

 Public Engagement Highlights .............................................................................................................. 1 

 What We Heard .................................................................................................................................... 2 

Public Outreach ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

 Email Updates ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

 Social Media .......................................................................................................................................... 5 

 Media Outreach .................................................................................................................................... 6 

 Advertisements ..................................................................................................................................... 7 

 Community Outreach............................................................................................................................ 8 

 Jurisdictional Outreach ......................................................................................................................... 9 

 Webpage ............................................................................................................................................... 9 

 Outreach to Environmental Justice Populations ................................................................................ 10 

Community Meetings................................................................................................................................ 11 

Public Meetings ......................................................................................................................................... 13 

Survey Results ........................................................................................................................................... 14 

Public Comments ...................................................................................................................................... 27 

Appendix A: General Written Comments ................................................................................................. 31 

Appendix B: Survey Comments on Land Conservation ............................................................................ 42 

Appendix C: Survey Comments on Development and Transportation .................................................... 61 

Appendix D: Community Meeting Notes .................................................................................................. 80 

Appendix E: Public Meeting Notes ........................................................................................................... 97 

Appendix F: Website Analytics ............................................................................................................... 101 

Appendix G: Comments Received After October 1, 2014 ...................................................................... 102 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Executive Summary 

Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) and their consultant Concept 

Development & Planning (CD&P) developed a plan to share the Draft Land Water and Transportation 

Plan (LWTP) with the public, collect their feedback, and report back to the Commissioners Court on 

what the public felt about the Draft Plan. The Court approved the project team taking this Plan to the 

public on July 1, 2014. This report provides details on the public engagement activities and what was 

heard from those that shared comments and preferences on the Draft Plan.  

Public Engagement Highlights 
The goals of the Public Engagement Process were to create public awareness of the Draft Plan and 

generate participation of a broad range of stakeholders through a transparent process. The project 

team offered several different opportunities for Travis County residents to get involved such as 

attending meetings, seeing our team out in the community at events, through their and social media 

activities, and even participating from the convenience of their own homes through our online 

presentation and survey. Below is a snapshot of the results.  

 

 

1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

What We Heard 
Travis County citizens had many opportunities to share their preferences, 

opinions, and general comments and questions on the Draft LWTP. An 

online survey was used to collect input on specific topics as well as general 

comments and any additional comments and questions were collected via 

comment cards distributed at meetings and emails sent to the project 

email address.  

Survey Response Summary  
Question 1  

 77% of respondents reported they live within a City or other jurisdiction in the county 

 23% of respondents reported they live in the unincorporated areas of the county 
Question 2  

 The greatest number of respondents live along the 620 corridor 
Question 3 

 The greatest number of respondents work in the downtown Austin area 
Question 4  

 The majority of respondents agree with the conservation priorities presented  
Question 5 

 The majority of respondents agree with potential strategies for funding land conservation 
strategies, with the least supported strategy being the purchase of flood-prone properties  

Question 6  

 Open ended question for additional comments on land conservation – see written comments in 
Appendix B  

Question 7  

 The majority of survey respondents indicated support for Activity Centers 
Question 8  

 The majority of respondents agree with supporting the 620 Corridor while 37% agree with 
supporting the 130 Corridor (a significant number were neutral on both corridors)  

Question 9  

 The majority of respondents agree with the potential incentives to support the development of 
Activity Centers, with the least supported types being tax increment finance, public 
improvement districts, and tax abatements 

Question 10 

 The majority of respondents indicated the length of their commute and living in communities 
with trails, sidewalks, and bike paths are important to them when choosing where to live and 
respondents were split on the importance of living near transit or bike facilities 

Questions 11 

 The majority of respondents indicated it is important that they can drive for non work related 
travel and respondents were split on the importance of living in a community where they could 
use transit or bike for non work related travel  

2

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Question 12  

 Open ended question for additional comments on transportation and development – see 
written comments in Appendix C  

Question 13 

 Gender – number of responses for men and women were near equal 
Question 14 

 Age – most respondents were between the ages of 25-55 with good representation among all 
ages 

Question 15 

 Race/ethnicity  

 871 respondents were white 

 23 respondents were 
black/African American 

 24 respondents were Native 
American 

 61 respondents were 
Hispanic/Latino 

 40 respondents were Asian 

 271 respondents skipped this 
question 

Question 16 

 Household income  

 5 respondents less than $10,000 

 134 respondents $10,000 to 
$49,000  

 259 respondents $50,000 to 
$99,000 

 205 respondents $100,000 to 
$149,000 

 313 respondents $150,000 + 

Question 17  

 Contact information  
Question 18  

 Majority of respondents learned of survey from social media closely followed by community 
groups or meetings  

 

Top Issues Noted in Comments 

 Traffic congestion (emphasis on 620/2222) 

 Prioritizing roadway improvements 

 Increasing alternative modes of travel 

 New development – compact growth and limiting growth 

 Existing developments – address existing transportation infrastructure before additional growth  

 Support land conservation particularly to protect water resources  

 Balance conservation and development without sacrificing improvements for congestion relief, 
safety, and mobility 

 

  

3

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Public Outreach 

The project team employed a wide range of outreach tools to inform residents of Travis County about 

how to become involved in the development of the LWTP. The following is a detailed report on the 

tools used and the audiences reached during the public engagement period. 

Email Updates  
The project team collected email addresses throughout the 

public engagement process to keep stakeholders updated on 

the project. The database was made up of: Travis County’s 

database of approximately 500 people who attended 

previous bond and planning meetings; 700 contacts added by 

CD&P; and 130 contacts who signed up during the LWTP 

process.  

Seven emails were sent to the LWTP project database 

between August 27, 2014 and October 1, 2014 sharing 

project information and opportunities to participate to the 

final database of 1,329 emails. Below are dates and number 

of email addresses the updates were sent to. Updates were 

sent out via Mail Chimp and new email addresses were 

uploaded daily. Emails contained LWTP project information, 

public meeting dates and logistics, a link to the LWTP Survey, 

the project webpage and email address, as well as social 

media links to Twitter and Facebook.  

Additional emails will be distributed to announce the Commissioners Court update information and 

announcing the Court’s decision on the LWTP.      

 

 

  

 

  

LWTP Email Updates Sent  

LWTP Email Update 

4

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Social Media 
As another tool to help increase public awareness 

about the Draft LWTP and the TNR Department, a 

social media campaign was employed. Messages 

ranged from general in nature to specific calls to 

action for participation. Photographs were also used 

in real time to encourage participation. To share 

information on the Draft LWTP the Travis County 

Facebook page was used and the TNR Twitter 

account was used. The social media campaign ran 

from August 15 to October 1, 2014.  

A total of 16 Facebook posts resulted in an organic 

reach of 1,797, 116 clicks, and 41 interactions. 

Additionally, Facebook likes increased from 853 to 

894 from August 22, 2014 to October 1, 2014. A total 

of 33 original tweets garnered a potential reach of 

107,865. The most retweeted posts generated a 

potential reach of 24,197. 

 

  

Twitter Stats - Reach equals our followers plus the followers of 
those who retweeted, and indicates the number of people who 
may have seen the tweets. 

Facebook Stats - Reach equals the number of unique people 
who were shown our posts. 

Sample LWTP Facebook Post 

Sample Facebook Post on a neighborhood 
association Facebook page 

5

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Media Outreach  
The project team sent two media releases to over 200 local 

media outlets and media websites promoting the project 

and the public meetings. The following is a sample of media 

coverage: 

 Austin Business Journal –  July 2, 2014 

 Austin Monitor –July 2, 2014 

 Austin Monitor – September 18, 2014 

 BlacklandReporter.com – August 28, 2014 

 Clear Channel – September 7, 2014 

 Community Impact – October 8, 2014 

 Four Points News – October 8, 2014 

 KXAN – September 17, 2014

Steve Manilla and Melissa Zone give an interview to Clear Channel for 
their Community Involvement program. 

Community Impact newspaper coverage, October 2014 

Steve Manilla gives an interview to KXAN  

6

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Advertisements 
The goal of the media plan was to increase and grow community 

awareness of the Draft LWTP and participation in public meetings and 

the online survey.  

Several media outlets were selected for placement of paid advertising.  

Radio 
A total 76 radio spots ran between September 15th and September 24th. 

A mixture of 15 and 30 second spots were placed on the following 

stations: 

 93.3 KGSR 

 KMFA Classically Austin 89.5 

 KAZI FM 88.7 

 KUT Austin 90.5 

 107.1 La Z KLZT 

 KLZT-HD2 Latino 102.7 

Print  
A total of 19 display advertisements were placed in 

the following newspapers: 

 The Austin Chronicle 

 The Austin Times 

 The Austin Villager 

 The Daily Texan 

 El Mundo  

 Elgin Courier  

 Lake Travis View 

 Oak Hill Gazette 

 Pflugerville Pflag 

 West Austin News 

 Westlake Picayune  

Digital  
The team also placed 3 digital ads on several community websites. The ads appeared a total of 428,226 

times and resulted in 423 individual clicks linking to the project webpage. 

LWTP Display Advertisement  

LWTP Digital Advertisement - Banner  

7

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

The following are websites where the digital ads appeared. 

 www.austinchronicle.com 

 www.kvue.com 

 www.kxan.com 

 www.myfoxaustin.com 

 www.statesman.com 

 www.texastribune.com 

 www.univisionaustin.univision.com 

 www.theaustintimes.com 

 www.thecwaustin.com 

 www.keyetv.com 

 www.myaustintv.com 

 www.austin360.com 

 www.austin.citysearch.com 

 www.austin.ynn.com 

 

Community Outreach  
The project team took a proactive approach in reaching local community organizations. Contacts were 
obtained for organizations that typically participate in similar planning efforts as well as those groups 
that reach individuals that don’t traditionally participate in similar efforts. The team offered to share 
information to their group via a community meeting, asked them to include information in emails to 
their databases, share social media posts, and distribute information on how to participate in any 
meetings or events they had planned. The email database included over 500 contacts for community 
organizations. The project team also reached out via phone to over 60 organizations and contacts. 
The following is a sampling of community websites that posted meeting information or links to the 

online survey: 

 austintexas.gov 

 beecavetexas.com 

 bikeaustin.org 

 buildingatx.com 

 downtownaustin.com 

 lagovistaisd.net 

 lakeway-tx.gov 

 lakewayupdate.blogspot.com 

 lovenorthaustin.com 

 pfchamber.com 

 saraeckhardt.com 

 sierraclub.org/austin 

 traviscountymud2.org
 

LWTP Digital Advertisement - Display   

City of Bee Cave shared meeting information 
on their website  

8

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Jurisdictional Outreach  
The project team provided hard copies of the Draft LWTP to all 22 jurisdictions within Travis County to 

ensure each had the opportunity to review and provide comments. Each set was sent with a letter 

from Judge Biscoe requesting input from the jurisdiction. Written responses were received from 

Lakeway, Leander, and Pflugerville. In addition, representatives of several jurisdictions and agencies 

attended events, visited with staff, and distributed project information.   

The team also emailed 33 local municipal utility districts, school districts, and land, water, and 

transportation agencies in the email distribution list to provide opportunity for those entities to submit 

comments on the Draft LWTP. 

Webpage 
The project team worked closely with the Travis County web team to develop a project webpage for 

the Draft LWTP. The opening page shared background information, project goals, and information on 

how to get involved. There were additional pages sharing all project materials, the Draft LWTP 

documents, and the schedule. Contact information, a link to all Spanish materials, and a link to the 

online survey was included on the right hand bar of each page.  

The team also recorded a presentation and posted it to the webpage so that anyone unable to make it 

to a meeting was still able to learn more about the planning process before taking the survey or 

sharing their feedback. From August 15 to October 1, 2014, visits to the webpage were tracked 

showing that 2,831 unique page views and 3,851 page views were received. Of the unique page views, 

1,772 were to the project homepage; 374 to the Draft Plan; 347 to the project materials; 261 to the 

project schedule; and 58 to the Spanish page. The webpage was a great tool offering the ability for 

people to learn about the Draft LWTP and get involved at their convenience. 

  

LWTP Webpage  
9

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Outreach to Environmental Justice Populations  
The project team emphasized efforts to reach and solicit 

participation and input from groups and citizens who 

traditionally do not participate in civic planning efforts. The 

Executive Summary and Growth Guidance Plan sections of the 

Draft LWTP were translated into Spanish and a Spanish website 

was developed to share information on the public engagement 

process and the materials. The online survey was provided in 

Spanish as well. Media outlets that serve diverse demographics 

were selected to offer exposure to information about the 

meetings and the online survey. A team member who 

speaks Spanish was available at all public meetings and had 

the opportunity to visit with Spanish speaking attendees at 

several of the community meetings the team attended. 

Highlights of the diversity of outreach efforts are noted 

below: 

Events 

 AISD Back to School Bash 

 Manor ISD Back to School Event 

 SFC Farmers Market 

Media  

 El Mundo, leading Spanish newspaper in Central 

Texas 

 The Austin Times, local multicultural news source 

 The Austin Villager, newspaper focused on the African 

American community 

 KAZI FM 88.7, community radio station focused on 

serving the needs of the African American community 

 107.1 La Z KLZT, Spanish radio 

 KLZT-HD2 Latino 102.7, Latino market radio 

 KUT – Latino USA, weekly public radio show 

 

  

LWTP - Spanish Advertisement  

LWTP – Bilingual Outreach at Manor ISD Event  

10

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Community Meetings 

The team reached out to organizations to attend 

their scheduled meetings. Between the dates of 

August 11 and September 29, 2014, project team 

members attended 15 community meetings or 

events of various organizations around Travis County 

and reached over 650 individual attendees. Over 

9,000 people attended these larger events and this 

information was readily available to all of them.  

 

  

11

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

The purpose of these meetings was to 

introduce the Draft LWTP to the public and 

promote public engagement opportunities, 

including the public meetings, the survey, and 

comment submission.   

Team members had a table at five community 

events, passing out LWTP flyers with project 

and contact information. At the other nine 

meetings, a presentation on the LWTP and 

public engagement details was given and flyers 

were passed out. Email addresses were 

collected at all of the meetings and events, 

signing up attendees for project email updates.   

 

LWTP – AISD Back to School Bash  

LWTP Community Meetings  

Public Engagement Flyer shared at community 
meetings 

12

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Public meeting at Manor Tech High School  

Public Meetings  

Travis County hosted seven public meetings during 

the public engagement period to share project 

information, visit with County citizens, and collect 

feedback. At least one meeting was held in each 

precinct.  

Public Meeting Format  
Each meeting was a hybrid format consisting of an 

open house period, a presentation and question and 

answer period followed by an additional open 

house period. 

The open house section of the meeting 

included six different stations, each with 

multiple exhibits or handouts. Printed copies 

of the Draft LWTP and the accompanying 

background reports were also provided at 

each station. Copies of the Executive 

Summary and Growth Guidance Plan were 

available in Spanish. 

Station 1: Sign In 
Attendees were asked to sign in and leave 

their email address if they wished to be added 

to the contact list. Each was greeted with an 

overview of the meeting format and a printed handout to 

guide attendees through, and provide background for each 

station. 

Station 2: Background and Process 
Exhibits: Maps of Incorporated Areas of Travis County and 

Travis County Future Growth (population projections); and a 

diagram of the LWTP development process 

Station 3: Land Conservation 
Exhibits: Lands Conserved in Unincorporated Travis County; 

Land Conservation Concept Map; and an exhibit picturing 

Conservation Priorities; Parks Facilities Flyer and Matrix  

13

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Station 4: Development and Transportation 
Exhibits: Emerging Development Map; Development Concept Map; Colorado River Corridor Plan; 

CAMPO 2035 Plan  

Station 5: LWTP Uses 
Exhibits: Growth Guidance Map 

Station 6: Feedback 
Computers were set up at this station to provide attendees the opportunity to complete the online 

survey. Comment cards were also provided at this station. 

Presentation 
Travis County staff presented an overview of the Draft LWTP including information on the 

development of the Draft Plan, unincorporated and incorporated areas of the County, and discussed 

the County’s regulatory ability. Then information was shared on Land Conservation including priorities, 

details on the different identified corridors and areas, and conservation strategies. Next, 

Transportation and Development details were shared including emerging development, priorities, and 

detailed information on Activity Centers and Transportation Corridors with highlights along the SH 130 

and RM 620 Corridors. The presentation was wrapped up with highlights of opportunities and 

challenges noted in the Plan and a discussion of how the Plan would be used in the future.  

The presentation was followed with time for the public to ask questions about the Plan, and what was 

presented. This question and answer period was informal and allowed staff and attendees to engage in 

thoughtful discussion about topics in the Draft LWTP and its purpose. 

Survey Results  

A survey was developed to collect feedback and community 

values on potential growth related policies and priorities 

identified in the Draft LWTP. The survey was promoted in 

all project communications and was taken on a volunteer 

basis. This is not a statistically valid or random sampling survey. The survey followed the Growth 

Guidance Plan and asked specific questions on Land Conservation as well as Transportation and 

Development.   

  

14

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

In what city or area of Travis County do you live? If you live outside of these city limits, 

please enter the subdivision in which you live or the nearest intersection to your home 

in the blank provided.  (Example: Steiner Ranch, or FM 1100 and Abrahamson Rd.)  

 

Question 1  

15

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 In what Zip Code do you live? 
 

 

  

Question 2 

Zip Code Map 
Size of dot represents number of responses 

16

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

In what Zip Code do you work?   

Question 3  

Zip Code Map 
Size of dot represents number of responses 

 

17

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Question 4 
 
 

Please indicate your level of agreement with the following statements about 

conservation in Travis County.  

Question 4  

18

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Question 5 
 

Please indicate your level of agreement with the following statements:  

Question 6 – Open ended question for additional comments on land conservation  

 

19

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Which of the following statements best describes 

your opinion for areas in unincorporated Travis County?  

 

 

 

 

 

Please indicate your level of agreement with the following statements:  

 

Question 8 

Question 7  

20

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Please indicate your level of agreement with Travis County using the following types of 

incentives to support development of Activity Centers.  

Question 9 

21

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please indicate your level of agreement with the following statements about your travel 

to work.  

 

 

 

 

 

Question 10 

22

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please indicate your level of agreement with the following statements about your non 

work related travel.  

Question 11 

23

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Question 12 - Open ended question for additional comments on transportation and 

development  
 

 

 
What is your gender?  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What category below includes your age?  
 

Question 13 

Question 14 

24

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

What is your race/ethnicity? (Please check all that apply) 
 

 
 
 

 
 
What is your household income?  
 

Question 15 

Question 16 

25

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Question 17 - Contact information  
 
 
 
 
 
 

How did you hear about this survey?  

 
 
 
 
 

Question 18 

26

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Public Comments  

Many residents in the community took the time to share a wealth of information and feedback through 
email and the online survey. All comments received have been thoroughly reviewed by the project 
team, including Travis County Staff and consultants, and the team plans to use these comments as they 
continue moving forward to plan for the future. All comments are included in complete form in 
Appendices A-C. The following are highlights of comments received through the survey, and those that 
were submitted by email or in writing.  
 
 
From August 15 to October 1,  2014:  

 342 comments were shared in the survey relating to 
Land Conservation 

 347 comments were shared in the survey relating to 
Transportation and Development 

 39 comments were shared via email or written comment card  
 

Transportation 

Traffic Congestion and Roadway Improvements 

 Solutions to relieve traffic congestion were major concerns of survey participants. Frustration 
with traffic congestion, transportation infrastructure not keeping up with growth and increased 
travel times were the most identifiable comments from respondents. 

 Of those that cite traffic congestion and growth as a major concern, over two thirds specifically 
mention the RM 620, RM 2222 area in western Travis County as needing transportation 
improvements. No other areas in Travis County were as identifiable as the RM 620, RM 2222 
area. 

 Safety was mentioned numerous times with specific requests to improve access to Vandegrift 
High School. 

Alternative Modes of Travel 

 A predominance of responses indicated support for alternative modes of transportation within 
Travis County. Many of the responses requested bicycle facilities and pedestrian facilities. 
Several respondents requested that bicycle facilities be separated from traffic lanes and that 
more education be provided about bicycle traffic. 

 Bus transit facilities and service were the next requested mode with many requests for 
increasing service in the suburbs and unincorporated areas of the County. Emphasis was also 
given to providing better access at transit stops including sidewalk connections. 

27

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

 Rail facilities were requested at about half the frequency of bus facilities. 

 When commenting on alternative modes of transportation, the majority of responses made 
were favorable. Most unsupportive comments for alternative modes were made against the 
need for bicycle facilities. 

Development 

 Of the comments reported regarding Activity Centers, over 75% were favorable. Many of the 
participants identified support for compact development and walkable neighborhoods without 
specifically calling this type of development an Activity Center and a small number of 
participants reported confusion about what an Activity Center is. 

 Very few comments showed preferences on support of prioritizing transportation corridors or 
supporting Activity Center development in the SH 130 corridor and the RM 620 corridors. 

 Of the responses received against incentivizing Centers, more than half responded that funding 
should occur on current roadways or in existing neighborhoods. This was followed by that 
development should pay for itself and that incentives were not needed. 

 Many survey participants requested that the County take measures to limit growth, particularly 
sprawling growth outside of the urban area of Austin. Additionally, many respondents 
requested limiting growth in western Travis County along the RM 620 and RM 2222 corridors 
until infrastructure can support it. 

Conservation 

 There is strong support for conserving land in Travis County. Many respondents caution, 
however, that it must be done so wisely. Conservation should not supersede the need to 
develop a transportation system that adequately serves the growing population nor be 
prioritized over public safety relative to mobility and roadway connectivity when hazardous 
events occur (e.g., flooding and wild fires). The impact of investing in conservation on 
affordability and taxes also is a significant concern. 

 Respondents identified conserving land to protect water resources as a top priority. Barton 
Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds, in particular, were identified as important water 
resources to protect. 

 Respondents advocate conserving land for public use, particularly for walking and bicycling; and 
many want these pathways to be part of a larger network of pedestrian and bicycle facilities. 
They also value conserving land for agricultural purposes, or protecting natural areas.  

 In addition to protecting water resources through land conservation, respondents cite land 
management techniques (e.g., cedar removal and use of xeriscaping), water conservation, and 

28

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

greater regulation of water (e.g., having a western Travis County Water Conservation District) 
as tools for protecting the quality and supply of surface and groundwater. 

 Respondents cite different strategies for conserving land with the most frequent ones 
pertaining to the need to partner and leverage County dollars with other entities including 
developers, acquiring land in areas of Travis County where it is most affordable, and 
establishing conservation easements with willing landowners instead of using fee simple 
purchases to conserve land.  

 

29

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Appendix 

Appendix A: General Written Comments ................................................................................................. 31 

Appendix B: Survey Comments on Land Conservation ............................................................................ 42 

Appendix C: Survey Comments on Development and Transportation .................................................... 61 

Appendix D: Community Meeting Notes .................................................................................................. 80 

Appendix E: Public Meeting Notes ........................................................................................................... 97 

Appendix F: Website Analytics ............................................................................................................... 101 

Appendix G: Comments Received After October 1, 2014 ...................................................................... 102 

 

30

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Appendix A: General Written Comments  

A total of 39 general written comments were received from either comment cards 
turned in at the public meetings or via email.   

 

Background report mentions only Lick Creek and aggregate mining as public opinion about water resources? 
Get real—unless I’m missing it, you’ve got to be addressing both groundwater and surface water.  Surely there 
are more informed opinions from TCEQ or TWDB or BSEACD or COA or LCRA. 
The plan is entitled LWTP.  Show me the W.  Groundwater regulation in western Travis County MUST be 
addressed. 
Thank you. 

Thanks for your presentation last night. I like your plans, and wish you had more authority to implement them. 
I asked a couple of questions. I did take the online survey, but would like the following questions added to your 
data bank. 
1. Are you aware of the 2,800ac tract owned by the City of Austin that occupies most of the Post Oak Savanna 
area on your map? I hope you can find out what plans the City has for that area that your plan prioritizes and 
influence what they do with it. Austin Energy's Solar Farm is located on the former farmland in the south part of 
the POS. 
2. Obtain information on the two proposed PGA golf courses to be built on 735ac of land adjacent to Walter 
Long Lake. Then update your plan to include that possibility.    
http://www.mystatesman.com/news/news/local-govt-politics/pga-level-golf-courses-could-be-built-at-east-
aust/nhNNC/?icmp=statesman_internallink_textlink_apr2013_statesmanstubtomystatesman_launch#a9514bf2.
3562768.735492  

I do not support using taxpayer dollars for unproductive large tract set-asides UNLESS they are wildfie managed 
and allow a taxpayer benefit, such as public access to a park or trail. 
I do not support encouraging increased density "Acitity Centers" on already severely overcrowded roads in our 
Western area of town along 2222, 620, 2244 and 71 UNLESS coupled with significant and appropriate roadway 
expansion, and roads must always come first. 

I just wanted to send a follow-up note about the meeting last night. I am sorry I was unable to stay until the end 
to thank you for your time personally. 
I thought you and all of the Travis County team did a great job with the presentation and the meeting. I am sorry 
to see that we did not have better attendance from our area, but we appreciate the staff effort to come out and 
hold a meeting in this area. We know it is difficult to balance all of the different program demands of the county, 
so we appreciate the staff taking time to hold information sessions and get public input. 
Thanks for your personal time to discuss the transportation issues. I know it is a difficult challenge. 
Please pass along my thanks to all of your team. I thought all of the presentations were very good and each staff 
person I talked to were very helpful. 
We appreciate your work. 

Dear Sir 
Please include Barton Creek and its tributaries in the watersheds to be protected under the new Land, Water 
and Transportation Plan. 
Thank you 

Please limit the traffic at 360 and 2222 : This area is growing and ply getting worse by the day. Why has the 
roads widened or the building stopped. 
Thousands have moved in in the last two years and commutes are dangerous and long. 

31

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.mystatesman.com/news/news/local-govt-politics/pga-level-golf-courses-could-be-built-at-east-aust/nhNNC/?icmp=statesman_internallink_textlink_apr2013_statesmanstubtomystatesman_launch#a9514bf2.3562768.735492
http://www.mystatesman.com/news/news/local-govt-politics/pga-level-golf-courses-could-be-built-at-east-aust/nhNNC/?icmp=statesman_internallink_textlink_apr2013_statesmanstubtomystatesman_launch#a9514bf2.3562768.735492
http://www.mystatesman.com/news/news/local-govt-politics/pga-level-golf-courses-could-be-built-at-east-aust/nhNNC/?icmp=statesman_internallink_textlink_apr2013_statesmanstubtomystatesman_launch#a9514bf2.3562768.735492


 

Judge Biscoe: 
I received your letter of August 29, 2014, soliciting my comments on the draft plan. Thank you very much for this 
opportunity.  First, I want to commend Travis County on this project. I am somewhat familiar with the 
constraints that Texas counties face when it comes to land use and transportation planning, and I applaud your 
efforts. A county supported plan will have many benefits and is certainly a worthwhile undertaking. The 
executive summary of the plan starts out by stating, "Taking the lead from the six county Capital Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) policy board, this plan strives to minimize conventional urban 
sprawl and encourage an alternative pattern of development." This theme is repeated throughout the plan. In 
essence, the mission of the draft plan seems to be to fundamentally change the way Travis County residents live 
and commute. 
While this is a worthy goal, I argue that it may not be the best way to plan for the future transportation needs of 
Travis County given the reality of the real estate market in our region and the commuting preferences of the 
region's residents. 
Referring to a proposed transit oriented development, City Manager Kent Cagle told Leander City Council during 
a January 3, 2013 planning session, 'We can't find development of this scope size scale anywhere in the United 
States that's been built in this kind of area. We're suburbia. I'm not saying we can't do this-I'm not making 
excuses. I'm saying it has not been done." Attempting to influence change in the lifestyles of area residents 
might not be the most successful strategy for solving our transportation problems.   
Some area residents already have access to public transportation, namely train orexpress bus. While these 
modes of transit have been somewhat successful, the vast majority of residents who have access to them still 
choose to drive their personal vehicles. I believe that is a meaningful fact. 
The draft LWTP appears to essentially emulate the CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, which is heavily 
biased toward public transportation. My response to that is to refer you to a news report aired by local radio 
station KUT on July 9, 2014. The following is an excerpt from that report: 
Ginger Goodin works at the Texas Transportation Institute (TTl). She says the study examined the 2035 plan 
from the Capital Area Metro Planning Organization (CAMPO), which includes improvements to U.S. Highway 
183,1-35, 
MoPac and urban rail lines, among other improvements. 
"[F]or 2035, with all of the improvements implemented in the plan," Goodin said. "We are still seeing commute 
times between downtown and Round Rock of two to three hours." 
In essence, Ms. Goodin said that the CAMPO 2035 plan does not work. In less diplomatic words, the CAMPO 
2035 Regional Transportation Plan is a plan for failure. 
In that same report, former CAMPO director Maureen McCoy said, "Something will change in Austin. Either 
people will change their behavior, and they'll start finding other ways to do their business - whether it's 
electronically, whether they'll start taking transit - they'll shift their trips to other times of the day." 
Those statements are telling. They suggest that CAMPO's twenty-five year transportation plan is to hope that 
"something will change." In other words, our longrange transportation plan is to change the way our residents 
live, and hope that will somehow solve our transportation problems. That does not seem to be a wellconceived 
transportation plan. 
Perhaps Travis County should take a different approach to the way it plans future transportation projects. 
Perhaps it should change the focus toward a more fundamental approach to transportation planning, such as 
planning a regional system of freeways to accommodate the mode of travel that county residents prefer and will 
use. 
There are those who say that planning highways is unproductive. Surely, it is more productive than hoping that 
"something will change." 
Thank you again for this opportunity to have some input into the process. 

interested in conservation easement at 14650 Graef Rd.;  +/- 85 ac on Hays/Travis Line 

32

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Here is my position as a citizen who will be directly affected by any changes in the Four Points area: 
Response to Campo "Activity Center" concept- 
Absolutely NO NEW DEVELOPMENT ON 2222 and 620 until the roads are improved to handle the existing traffic 
safely and efficiently.  I and many neighbors along 2222 and 620 have lost friends and family members to traffic 
related accidents recently along those very roads because no effort has been made to mitigate the obvious 
danger.  It is simply inconceivable that any government entity would consider any new development along a 
route that is already deadly.  Regarding the Activity Center concept, people are not hamsters and will not 
confine 100% of their daily business to a “habi-trail” like mini metropolis.  That is a daydream and not realistic.  
What is real is the significant traffic increase that will happen due to errands and school attendance, the latter of 
which puts the youngest members of our driving population in grave danger.  Please be responsible and table 
any plans for new development until sufficient road improvements are made.  Make that a prime and 
immediate priority. 
Reponse to buying and setting aside large land tracts- 
I DO NOT WANT MORE LAND TO BE PURCHASED BY THE GOVERNMENT AND RESTRICTED AGAINST PUBLIC USE.  
The only land in government hands should be that which is set aside for parks and those lands should be 
maintained so as to mitigate this area’s obvious wildfire danger.  I DO NOT agree with setting aside large swaths 
of forbidden land merely for the purpose of protecting endangered species.  I believe that these species can and 
will coexist with responsible human activity  and it is not necessary to deny taxpayers access to the land that 
their tax dollars have paid for.  Furthermore, the unintended consequence of fencing land is that larger wildlife 
is unable to follow familiar paths to water sources and deer in particular have begun to perish along city park 
road because of this.  Those fences are unsightly and smack of government oppression and should be taken 
down. 

Hello…. 
My wife and I live on Hamilton Pool Rd, very near little Barton Creek. 
We realize that Barton Creek, and its tributaries, does not flow directly into Lake Travis. 
But, it is in the contributing zone of the Edwards Acquifer, a major source of drinking water. 
With all the development out our way, it is not prudent to assume the Creek is sufficiently protected. 
We would strongly urge that Barton Creek and its tributaries be protected under the Plan. 
Thank you. 
With respect, 

To whom it may concern: 
Please take into account the impact on the 2222/River Place Blvd. intersection with any projects that affect the 
620/2222 intersection.  There are cascading impacts to 2222/River Place Blvd. when changes are made to the 
620/2222 intersection.  Travis County should contemplate and seek to mitigate the negative impacts as part of 
any traffic redesign project in the area.  Thank you. 
Regards, 

Hello, 
I tried to take the online survey and I was connected to survey monkey.  They were asking for way too much 
personal information.  Where do I shop and eat. Really? 
Anyway.  I like the concept of density and activity centers along corridors but would rather see you spend that 
money on a western outer loop. It’s going to happen eventually so let’s put our resources towards that instead.  
In an ideal world I would toll IH 35 and have 130 and 45 free!  Barring that I would make them affordable 
enough that truckers would use them.   

After reviewing the Travis County Land, Water and Transportation Plan I’m really disappointed that Barton Creek 
and its tributaries were not selected as part of this plan. This watershed and area out on Hamilton Pool road is 
growing so rapidly the impact on the environmental features need help. It seems very short-sighted to leave off 
this critical area. 

We would like you to put your efforst on parks and hike/bike trails 

33

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

I hope you are doing well and keeping your head above water these days! The Plan looks great.  I am very happy 
to see that Travis County is so passionate about conserving these important resources while providing the 
necessary transportation options.  
Hill Country Conservancy’s comments follow.  You will see that we are acutely interested in ensuring that our 
threatened drinking water supply is protected.  
p. 19 (Figure 6) – For further context, it may be helpful for Note 1 to add something like “as well as land that has 
been conserved by Travis County and land trust partners”. 
p. 58 (Figure 11) – It should be noted that the Colorado River “Protects a Regionally Significant Resource”, given 
that it is the primary water supply for many residents in the County.   
p. 58 (Priority One Corridors) – In the descriptions of the Colorado and Pedernales Rivers, there should be 
explicit mention of drinking water supply.    
p. 59-60 (Priority Two Corridors) – In the descriptions of Cypress Creek, Hamilton Creek, and Cow Creek, 
Bingham Creek and Big Sandy Creek (tributaries to the Colorado), their contribution to the drinking water supply 
should be mentioned as well.    
p. 60 (Conservation Initiatives West) 
 - HCC suggests that, due to its contribution to drinking water, the Colorado River (and its tributaries) should be 
priorities for land conservation.  Better yet, this could be more broadly stated as “Conserve land that protects 
the drinking water supply for Travis county residents”. 
- Also, although it is not as common, note that there is some prime farmland in the western part of the County.  
As evidenced by farms in the eastern part of the County, several acres of prime farmland may be enough for 
many small-scale farms to provide abundant produce and eggs, etc. to local citizens.  When we think of farms in 
the County, we are not necessarily thinking only of 50, 100 acres or more of prime farmland. It would be good to 
protect farmland throughout the County.  
p. 63 (LAND) – In addition to protecting “land with numerous springs”, it would be wise to also protect the land 
that provides recharge to those springs, what I like to refer to informally as the “springshed”.  For instance, 
protecting the Barton Springs Edwards Aquifer recharge  and contributing zones ensure Barton Springs 
continues to discharge clean, abundant water.    
p. 64 (WATER) – Should also include a bullet that says something like “Focus on conservation projects that 
protect the drinking water supplies of Travis County residents and communities”.  
Thank you, 

Re the "Water" portion of the proposed LWT Plan:  This seems to have neglected any mention of protection of 
some of the tributaries of Barton Creek, namely Little Barton Creek and Rocky Creek, in unincorporated western 
Travis County, part of the contributing zone of the Edwards Aquifer. These creeks both feed into Barton Creek. 
and are under increasing pressure as far as degradation of water quality. The land around these creeks has been 
subject to nearly-unregulated intense development as the county has very weak authority in these matters. I 
have been a resident of western Travis County for the past 20 years and have seen the change in creeks as the 
area of impervious cover continues to mount. These local creeks were once spring-fed year-round streams with 
abundant and varied aquatic and riparian fauna and flora, but over the years the run-off from development has 
sent massive quantities of silt into the creeks, clogging the springs, and if not checked will continue to transform 
them into wet-weather drainage ditches with increasing negative impact on Barton Creek.  
Another problem out here is the continued lack of a groundwater conservation district. Private commercial and 
municipal wells abound and proliferate, and it seems that every time a new subdivision is built, the developers 
immediately drill a well to irrigate the landscaping and water features. This "free" water is being mined from the 
Trinity, a slow recharge aquifer, but one that hundreds of local families with home wells depend upon as the 
sole source for essential water needs. Any land that can be taken out of development will also benefit all of us 
who rely on our wells.  
Thank you for your consideration. 

34

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Dear Judge Biscoe, Commissioners, and County Staff: 
I attended today’s public hearing on the LWTP Draft Plan.  I was impressed by the planning that has taken place 
thus far and the approach that the County is taking to address planning issues in the unincorporated areas.  I 
also appreciate the many opportunities that the county has given for public input. 
First, I will state in writing two comments that I made during the question and answer portion of the meeting 
today. 
1.        Given the Conservation Priorities in the Land Conservation section of the plan (which include Endangered 
Species protection and springs), I suggest adding the Barton Creek Watershed to the list of priority Conservation 
Areas. 
2.       I affirm the emphasis on improvements to existing roadways (over the construction of new major 
roadways) when addressing transportation problems in Western Travis County. 
Additionally, I would like to make the following comments regarding the Draft Guidance Policies. 
Policy L-11.  I especially appreciate the emphasis on Dark Skies.   As I also noted in the comments for the online 
survey, there is great public benefit (tranquility, physical and mental health, wildlife habitat) to protecting our 
natural soundscapes as well.  I hope that staff will look into model policies that improve the quality of our 
conservation lands and our communities generally through mandatory and voluntary approaches to noise 
abatement.  As I find good model polices , I will forward these along to staff as well. 
Policy W-4.  For years now, I have been a strong advocate for an effective and financially sustainable 
groundwater conservation district in Western Travis County.  I strongly affirm the county’s involvement in 
working to see that such a district is created as soon as possible. 
Policies T-4 and T-11.  I believe these policies will create the context for appropriate solutions to real 
transportation problems throughout Travis County and in Western Travis County in particular. 
Policy GGT-2.  I strongly encourage Travis County commissioners and staff to work with other counties to obtain 
additional regulatory authority to plan for and manage growth, especially in the unincorporated areas. 
Again,  thank you for the opportunity to provide input to this planning process. 
Sincerely, 

To whom it may concern, 
I am a concerned business owner that owns and operates the 7-11 convenience store at the corner of this 
intersection and the past 5 years have seen astronomical growth to where coming from each direction at 
different times of the day, it is IMPOSSIBLE for patrons to come into my business both in the AM and the PM.  
The AM is absurd to where it will take someone going either North on 620 or east towards town on 2222, over 
10-15 minutes just to get out of the parking lot. The traffic is backed up down Bullick Hollow road anywhere 
from 50-100 cars depending on the time and the light stays green for about 10 seconds. As such, no one lets 
anyone out because they have already been waiting for over 20-25 minutes at ONE light.  Same problem coming 
from the South.  Since it is backed up all they way to Steiner Ranch, over 2 miles, you woudl be a fool to add 
another 20 minutes to your trip just to pull in for some coffee.  
Evenings are no better, 620 is an absolute zoo going north from Steiner again....backed up to Commanche Trail, 
and 2222 is backed up to Riverplace and then from McNeil Road(Vandegrift High School sometimes to Jester or 
even City Park Road. That is over 3 miles of bumper to bumper stop light traffic. 
I URGE anyone thinking of adding any additional high density development to come out to this area between 
7:00-9:00 AM and 4:00-6:30 PM to see the mess that has been created.  Without road expansion, it CANNOT 
handle any more density.   Believe me, I would love to see more traffic in our store, but not at the expense of 
people, including my employees waiting 20-25 minutes just to get through a light.  It is out of control 
Please take this along with the many other emails I know you have received and take a serious look at this area 
and how to develop it smartly without compromising its beauty. There are ways that it can be done.  It is time 
Austin faces reality and works with environmentalist and other land protecting entities to both protect our 
animals....AND our people.   
Thank you. 

35

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Dear Sir or Madam:  I attended the open house in Bee Cave last week.  I asked a question about the fact that 
Barton Creek and its tributaries are not included in the LWTP conservation plan. I was advised to provide my 
views to your agency in writing by no later than the end of September. This e-mail provides my views by that 
deadline. 
Please note that a significant portion of Barton Creek and its tributaries (e.g., Little Barton Creek) lie within 
unincorporated Travis County.  Furthermore, the portions within the western portion of Travis County lie 
upstream from Austin and from the majority of Travis County residents.  Therefore, I strongly believe that the 
LWTP plan should encompass the Barton Creek watershed in western Travis County. 
Additional relevant information is outlined as follows:  
(1) Attached is a City of Austin ordinance that makes clear the critical connection between the Barton Creek 
watershed and clean water supply, natural environment and recreational opportunities for citizens of Austin and 
Travis County.  Here are some key quotes from the ordinance: 
“Barton Creek is a significant source of Austin’s water supply.” 
“Development activities in the Barton Creek Watershed can result in irreparable damage to 
the natural environment of, the recreational qualities of, and the quality of the water in, Barton 
Creek, Barton Springs and the Barton Creek Watershed.” 
 http://www.epa.gov/safewater/sourcewater/pubs/techguide_ord_tx_austin_zoningnewdiv4.pdf  
(2) Barton Creek and its tributaries are inextricably tied to the Edwards Aquifer and to the drinking water for 
thousands of people.  See the following study--- 
http://www.beg.utexas.edu/environqlty/vadose/bartonsprings.htm  
(3) Frankly, the LWTP conservation plan is weighted towards the eastern side of the county and pays little 
attention to the southwestern corner where I live.  While the Pedernales River is included in the plan, none of 
the creeks in our area is included.  On the other hand, multiple creeks in the eastern and northeastern sectors of 
the county are included in the plan.  Shouldn’t there be some balance across the entire county in this regard? 
Thank you for time and for your attention to this issue. 
Sincerely,  

Travis County Commissioners Court and TNR Staff: 
Thank you for your efforts on the TLWT plan. Please consider the following thoughts and comments as you move 
forward in this process: 
The preferred growth corridor along and east of I-35 should remain high priority for transportation and activity 
center planning and investment. 
Investments that have already been made by the County and the City of Austin should be honored and 
protected. A considerable amount of public investment has been made to conserve lands for water supply and 
habitat protection.  All conserved lands, whether they be public or private conservation areas should remain 
protected and honored. Conservation easements and preserves should not be considered for future road plans. 
Investments in upgrading and improving existing roadways in western Travis County should take priority over 
new roadway construction. 
The County should seek opportunities to protect dark skies and protect scenic highways by controlling 
billboards. 
The County should seek opportunities to deal with incompatible land use issues such as the proposed Covert 
facility on Hwy 71. 
The County should work with area developers to encourage a regional, connected trail plan. 
The County should continue to seek opportunities to invest in conservation lands both fee simple purchases and 
also conservation easement funding. 
The County should revisit the final recommendations of the Regional Water Quality Protection Plan 
(www.waterqualityplan.org ) and the SW Travis County Growth Dialog. 
Thank you, 

36

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.epa.gov/safewater/sourcewater/pubs/techguide_ord_tx_austin_zoningnewdiv4.pdf
http://www.beg.utexas.edu/environqlty/vadose/bartonsprings.htm


 

Dear Judge Biscoe: 
I would like to thank you for providing the City of Leander the opportunity to review and provide comments on 
the County's draft Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (L WTP). As you 
know, the City of Leander is experiencing rapid growth. Our city includes land in both Travis and Williamson 
counties and we are seeing significant growth in both counties. 
In reviewing the draft L WTP, the primary comment that the City has is related to the accuracy of the maps 
reflecting current and projected growth in the area within Leander's city limits and ETJ. Specifically in the 
western portion of our City, the draft L WTP maps do not reflect the Travisso development which includes over 
1,000 acres and over 3,000 residential lots. Specifically, map 3 should be updated to reflect the significant 
number of new platted lots in western Leander. Map 4 should be updated to reflect the 1431 corridor from 
Lakeline to Travisso Parkway as an emerging growth area. Map 5 should be updated to reflect the parkland that 
has been dedicated through the development process in western Leander. 
The City is happy to assist the County by providing updated maps, demographic data and any other information 
that would be helpful in the County's effort to complete the L WTP. Thank you again for allowing us the 
opportunity to review the draft plan. 

*The overarching themes(maps,statements, etc) appear excellent. 
*Strongly support the conservation concept of waterways.  This allows control/management of flooding, 
greenbelt/recreation development for the ever increasing population...providing open spaces which are useable 
enhancing quality of life while preserving natural resources.  In particular, I support the future 
preservation/planned development of the upper Wilbarger basin...with the hope to keep it a clean waterway for 
public usage(not impaired or on the TCEQ list as Gilleland is). 
Likewise the preservation of the fertile Blackland Prairie. The Prairie is endangered as we continually see the 
accelerating shrinkage of family farms being overlaid with concrete/asphalt in the promotion of economic 
development. Likewise in the grocery store it's more challenging to find foods grown in USA. 
 *Support activity centers with density hopefully some control of sprawling rooftops. 
 *Support bike lanes and safe roads. Grave issue of municipalities annexing roads and unable to maintain or 
safely accommodate the suburb traffic. Inaction & slow process with finger pointing when with overlapping 
projects involving several governmental bodies(i.e. TC/City).  The county has been the most responsive to citizen 
needs. Thank you! 
* NE TC is where the land is available relatively cheap compared to West TC. So visionary leaders can create the 
"new" design/ control the development. While economic incentives are offered with taxpayers carrying the 
burden...please emphasize developers should be fiscally responsible for contributing larger portions to the 
infrastructure.  Presently unbalanced with corporate getting the "free" ride with incentives which places more 
burden on home owners with taxes rising. 
Governmental groups(ACC, Central Texas Health, ISD's, ESD's, COP, COA, etc) continue to want MORE for M&O 
budgets.  

As a Former Fire Commissioner with Lake Travis Fire Rescue ESD6 and current member of the Bee Cave 
Economic Development Corp. I am especially interested in the plan as it relates to Southwest Travis County. 
 I noticed that you utilized the City of Bee Cave Comprehensive Plan in some of your work. That plan is 
essentially 10+ years old and the City will be beginning an extensive update soon. Hopefully the LWTP will prove 
useful as the City embarks on this. 
 Very thoughtful and comprehensive document. I look forward to seeing the final version. 
Thank you. 

Please accept this request for staff to consider and add the above referenced project as an “Activity Center”.  
Qualico met with County staff on October 1, 2014 and provided backup for their review and consideration. 
If anything further is required from our end please feel free to contact me. 
Best Regards 

The TNR team did a nice job. I feel confident they are looking out for our best interest. 

37

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

City of Pflugerville staff has received and reviewed a copy of the proposed LWTP, attended the public meeting 
held on September 29, 2014 and respectfully submits the following comments for your consideration. 
Good regional planning, to be effective, must be coordinated. When a multitude of jurisdictions and entities are 
involved and impacted as a result of the proposed plan, the ultimate intentions should be as transparent as 
possible. Many of the maps included in the various LWTP documents show current city limit boundaries for 
jurisdictions in Travis County, but none show city limits and their respective extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). The 
intention of this plan upon such areas needs to be clarified. As shown on the attached map, only 18% of Travis 
County is neither within a city limit nor a city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). 
To be effective in our respective jurisdictions, collaboration is absolutely essential given the legislative 
framework with which to operate. We are fully prepared to re-engage on subdivision development issues in the 
Pflugerville ETJ. However, we do not support measures in the proposed plan or resulting from the plan that 
erode municipal authority in any way particularly in the ETJ, impose an unfunded mandate, or otherwise be 
detrimental to cities. 
Pflugerville’s Comprehensive Plan is referenced as not having any known conflicts with the plan and policies of 
the County, but since the Plan was adopted in 2010, much has occurred. 
While Travis County has identified prime farmland and river and creek corridors for conservation, the City of 
Pflugerville, like others in the region, is already leveraging existing tools to accomplish this in our full purpose 
city limits as well as our statutory extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). Legislative requirements have non-
annexation development agreements preserving farmland for 3,121.87 acres until such time the property owner 
chooses to develop or otherwise voluntarily surrenders their agricultural exemption. In addition, the City’s 
comprehensive planning efforts have identified creeks, corridors and future right of way needs for floodplain 
management, wildlife corridors, trail corridors and connections and ultimate roadway needs to serve a 
projected population of over 250,000 people upon build out of the city. Implementation of these requirements 
occurs through the platting and development process. 
The city’s current comprehensive land use plan shows a utility service area boundary demising the Wilbarger 
Creek and Cottonwood Creek basins. The intent of this boundary is to focus municipal infrastructure in the two 
basins where infrastructure is generally available to service existing and new development.  In addition, over the 
last 24 months or so, the City Council has adopted a revised wastewater master plan and approved its first water 
master plan. Essential to the sustainability of central Texas is water, and the wholesale and retail distribution of 
water resources to our residents and utility customers. These are fundamental to municipal long range planning 
efforts. The City of Pflugerville has firmed up plans to expand its existing wastewater treatment facility, and has 
already acquired land and TCEQ permits for two additional discharge points in our ETJ. Septic systems are highly 
discouraged, to the benefit of water quality and the general health and welfare of the area. Further, the City has 
secured an expanded wastewater CCN (Certificate of Convenience and Necessity) area to encompass the current 
ETJ. 
We support your efforts to improve growth related tools in the unincorporated areas, but urge the plan and the 
process to be respectful of the existing plans various jurisdictions, including Pflugerville and its ETJ, that have 
authority to promulgate comprehensive plans have established. Further, we welcome the opportunity to work 
with you in this endeavor. 

I am writing to express the strong opposition to the development of the planned Masonwood West Subdivision 
on Hamilton Pool Road in Travis County. The completion of that development will endanger water sources in the 
Barton Creek water shed. The plan to distribute treated sewage water on the land directly associated with the 
drainage system for the very critical and sensitive ecosystem in the Barton Creek  system is a very dangerous 
plan and should not be allowed to continue. 

Please include Barton Creek and its watershed in your conservation plans.  

Thanks for reaching out and sharing your vision 

Very good job on LWTP. Only topic I found was not covered for future protection was historic properties in 
unincorporated and ETJ (municipal) areas. Would like to see the Travis County Historical surveys referenced on 
any future projects 

38

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

To Whom It May Concern: 
Save Our Springs Alliance, Inc., (SOS) appreciates this opportunity to submit comments on the draft Travis 
County Land Water and Transportation Plan (PLAN). In general, SOS is encouraged that the County has 
dedicated resources to studying these important issues as growth in our area continues at a high rate. 
Specifically, SOS is pleased that the County is promoting growth east of I-35 and near the SH-130 corridor, and 
hopes the County continues to advance sensible, responsible and fair development solutions in these areas, 
which are downstream of the aquifer and more protective of our area’s water resources. 
Second, SOS recognizes that the Capitol Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) plays an integral part 
in mapping the transportation needs of our area.  However, the County does not always need to defer to 
CAMPO and should advocate that available funding be directed towards projects within the city limits 
maintaining an efficient transportation infrastructure in an already existing, dense development setting. 
Third, as indicated in the PLAN, many residents of the County would welcome service extensions of public 
transportation to those areas not currently served. SOS supports efforts on the part of Travis County to help 
facilitate fiscally responsible and environmentally sound extensions of public transportation to areas lacking 
service. 
Fourth, SOS is cognizant that because of development in the eastern part of Travis County is occurring at a high 
rate; the County must move quickly to ensure conservation measures are taken in these areas. However, SOS 
would like to see efforts doubled on the Pedernales River so that the goal of conserving 6,000 acres as 
recommended by the Southwest Travis County Growth Dialogue is met as soon as possible. 
Fifth, the Barton Creek watershed should be designated as a conservation area in the PLAN. This designation 
would protect the area from irresponsible and unsustainable development practices that have already resulted 
in the degradation of our area’s water resources. The County should continue to evaluate, and when reasonable 
purchase, watershed protection lands. 
Sixth, SOS encourages the County to consider recognizing and implementing the recommendations of the Austin 
Water Task Force. Specifically, SOS would like to see the County promote greater water conservation and reuse 
measures and advocate against the importation of groundwater from adjacent counties. 
Finally, the PLAN does indicate the next draft will address water conservation priority lands. See Pg. 9 of the 
Growth Guidance Plan.  SOS would encourage the County to accept comments limited to land conservation 
scenarios given the omission of this conservation scenario from the PLAN. 
Again, SOS genuinely welcomes and is pleased with the intent of Travis County in commissioning this PLAN. Any 
consideration these comments are given is appreciated.  

290, Parmer Lane, Howard Lane and Cameron Road. These higher density areas, with their excellent road access 
and utilities, will limit the urban sprawl that would otherwise be created by the future demand for new housing 
and employment. 
I would be pleased to meet you to discuss any aspect of this letter at any time convenient to you. 
Yours most sincerely, 

1. Travis County needs to make working TxDot to have improvement projects shovel ready for 2222 and 620. 
Funding needs to happen for Western Travis County. 
2. Travis County needs to acknowledge that 2222 and 620 are not only impacted by growth in Travis County, but 
the corridors are significantly impacted by growth in Williamson County. Commuter traffic from Cedar Park, 
Leander, and lakeway are going to continue to create more issues for 620 and 2222. Plans should consider this. 
3. Taxpayers in Western Travis County are frustrated to see their tax dollars funding roads for Eastern Travis 
County only. 

Is any consideration being given to development set backs below the earthen dam at Lake Walter E. Long 
(Decker Lake)? Until recently, Austin Energy would have to open the floodgates of the dam so that flood waters 
would not over top the dam. The released water would flow down Decker Creek, cross FM 969 (joining flood 
waters from Gilleland Creek) and flow into the rest of Gilleland and then to the Colorado River. 

39

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Dear Judge Biscoe, 
Thank you for your open letter, dated August 24, inviting comment on the draft Travis County Land Water and 
Transportation Plan (the "Plan"). 
As a long-time land owner in Travis County and as someone who has worked and invested in the development of 
northeastern Travis County for several years, I would like to offer the following comments. 
A. THE PLAN NEEDS TO MORE FULLY BUILD ON THE EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE. 
The Plan correctly sets a strategy to "Encourage new growth along the SH 130 Corridor" But the Plan needs to 
more fully recognize the major investment in road, utility and social infrastructure in northeast Travis County 
along, and west of, SH 130: 
1. SH 130 is the most important road built in Travis County in the last 50 years costing $900 million. Travis 
County spent $90 million on right-of-way. 
2. Manor Expressway is a $623 million expressway linking Austin to Manor. 
3. Howard Lane is now under construction and this $20 million road is the last link to connect SH 130 with I-35, 
Techridge and Dell. 
4. Cameron Road is a $15 million major thoroughfare now under design and will link US 290 and SH 130. 
5. Major Utilities. Austin Water Utility has invested $12.59 million on trunk water and wastewater lines and is 
planning a further $16.81 million in trunk utilities to serve this area. 
6. New Schools. Manor ISD has a Middle School planned on Cameron Road. Pflugerville ISD has a High 
School/Middle School complex planned just west of Cameron Road. 
7. Green Space. Travis County is investing a further $6.9 million in the Northeast Metropolitan Park and an 
additional $16.7 million in greenways - providing valuable green space "lungs" for future residents and 
employees in this area. 
B. THE PLAN SHOULD ALSO ADRESS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND JOB CREATION. 
This new road, utility and social infrastructure is concentrated along, and to the west of, SH 130. The depth and 
quality of this infrastructure will support higher-density, mixeduse housing, high-tech, bio-tech, shopping 
amenities and hospitals -leading to significant economic development and job growth. 
C. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WILL CLUSTER AROUND KEY SH 130 INTERSECTIONS. 
Existing Growth Nodes. Pflugerville has trunk utilities installed along SH 130. Economic development is already 
arising at the SH 130 intersections with: 
1. SH 45 with the regional Stone Hill Town Center 
2. Pflugerville Parkway with the Hawaiian Falls Water Park and the proposed SunTech Office Park and Sunshine 
Village. 
3. Pecan Street with the Pflugerville Economic Development Commercial Park and its new high tech buildings, 
employment centers and proposed new hotel. Future Growth Nodes. As the trunk utilities are completed, 
development will occur at the following additional intersections in northeast Travis County along SH 130. 
1. US 290. This intersection of two major toll roads provides the best access of any area of Travis County 
2. Parmer Lane. This intersection will link SH 130 with Dell, Sam sung, Applied Materials and the planned $ I 
billion Karlin/Trammell Crow development. 
3. Howard Lane. This important new thoroughfare links SH 130 with 1-35 and Techridge and Dell. 
4. Cameron Road. Provides a parallel arterial to SH 130 and links employment centers to the new Austin 
Executive Airport 
D. SUGGESTED PLAN REVISIONS. 
I respectfully suggest that the Plan and its Exhibits, for northeast Travis County, need revision to more fully: 
1. Build on the existing and planned major road, utility and social infrastructure. 
2. Reflect that the SH 130 Corridor, and land to the west of SH 130, will predominantly be higher-density, mixed- 
use development and that this area of northeast Austin will become the engine for economic development and 
job creation in Travis County. 
3. Show the desirability of higher density, more urban development, at the intersections of SH 130 with: US 290, 
Parmer Lane, Howard Lane and Cameron Road.  These higher density areas, with their excellent road access and 
utilities, will limit the urban sprawl that would otherwise be created by the future demand for new housing and 
employment.  
I would be pleased to meet you to discuss any aspect of this letter at any time convenient to you.   40

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Hello, 
My name is Carmalene Churba my husband,  four children and I recently moved here from PA.  We bought a 
home in Belvedere off of Hamilton Pool Road.  I have two concerns with the projected growth. One is Hamilton 
Pool road it’s dangerous and desperately needs to be widened.   It’s my least favorite part of living in the 
beautiful hill country.  
 I’m also very concerned about the water supply.  Is there enough water to support the projected growth of this 
area?  Current water levels are approaching a drought worse than the drought of record. Would it be possible to 
provide enough water at current levels if there were forty to fifty percent more people living here?  The water 
utility director predicted lake travis would run dry by 2016. April of this year Spicewood beach was still receiving 
trucked in water, they were out of water for two years and had to drill a forty foot well and have water pipped 
in from over a mile away.  The city of Brownwood, about 80 miles south of Abilene is running out of water and 
will have to use recycled waste water.   There are droughts occurring across the state of Texas. 
Water is the most important resource on earth.   Money and development should not trump current 
homeowners and businesses water supplies.  We invested a lot of money in our home and the water situation 
makes me extremely nervous.  
I'm all for development, however, it should be done responsibly and developed with the water supply being of 
the most utmost importance.   Our home is our largest investment and it will be worthless without water.  
Thank you, 

Suburban rail connections Elgin & Manor to Austin with a transportation hub in or near Manor would help 
support an Activity Center in Manor. ; An information clearinghouse for developers, cities, and other planning 
authorities would be helpful for coordinated planning. This would include informaiton on demographics, 
business to population projections, tax incentives for activity centers, transportation plans, environmental 
contacts, and related information. 

A key point made in these studies was that the areas served by the WTCPUA were two of the three fastest 
growing areas in Metropolitan Austin - the Greater Bee Cave area and the U.S. 290 area out to Dripping Springs. 
The third place growth was The greater Manor area. Eastern Travis County was far behind. We are looking at 25 
year projections as well as 10 year projections here. This runs counter to the thinking predominant in City of 
Austin wishful thinking. (NOTE - Comments sent with link to view their demographic study via dropbox) 

Please add Barton Creek and its tributaries in SW Travis County to the list of watersheds to be protected through 
land acquisition, etc. This is the contributing zone of the Barton Springs segment of the Edwards Aquifer. 
Protecting water quality in the Springs and Aquifer has been a priority for a number of public entities including 
the LCRA/WTCPUA, TCEQ and US Fish & Wildlife Service. It should be a priority for Travis County as well. While it 
is true that some of the Barton Creek watershed is already in conservation and some is protected by Austin 
subdivision rules (SOS), further protection in the unincorporated areas remains a necessity. 
Sincerely, 

 

41

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Appendix B: Survey Comments on Land 
Conservation  

A total of 342 comments were collected from the Land Conservation section of the 
survey: Question 6. Is there anything else you would like to share with Travis County 
regarding land conservation? 
 

Travis County has too many parks, we need to conserve land. 

Land around growing cities should be put to its best use.   There are millions of acres of land to conserve that are 
not near our growing cities.  We need infrastructure in Travis County; not conservation.   Why are you guys on 
this Conservation kick? 

We in the east side of Travis county need to get our share of tax monies to help in the conservation of some of 
our property and keep this part of county clean of unwanted companies that cause more harm than help our part 
of the county. 

The waterways including creeks and streams are being used as dumping grounds for rubbish.  Travis County 
needs to do a better job of notifying homeowners in the rural areas of their violations of the dumping of rubbish 
and trash on their properties including non-working vehicles.  This is a problem in NE Travis County. 

As the population grows the entire county will become urban or sub-urban.  It is important that we concerve 
some natural areas in the county.  I really like the acquisitions of Reimers Ranch, Pogue Springs, and other 
Pedernales river corridor land.  I would like to see more acquisitions that serve dual conservation and 
recreatioonal values.  An example to consider is Dead Man's hole swiming area near Hamilton Pool. 

The County should NOT be telling landowners what can be done with land they own. 

Please do not buy up all the land.  I moved to Austin in the hopes of finding affordable housing.  If the county 
buys up much of the available land or severely restricts its development, then the housing costs will become 
unaffordible to the younger generation. 

We would strongly support the adoption of a Groundwater Conservation District for Travis County to protect the 
aquifer and tributaries. 

Your statements in No. 4 are ridiculous.  Who wouldn't agree with all?  The real question should be "At what 
cost". 

We're already experiencing considerable light pollution and loss of conserved/preserved rural land in and around 
West Austin and Travis County. Immediate action needs to be taken to protect what is remaining. Additionally, 
there are very little to no landscaping requirements for new commercial developments in ETJ areas, and as such 
developers are allowed to do only what they feel is necessary to "enhance" the appearance of their project as 
opposed to being forced to include the costs associated with fully landscaping their properties (such as those 
within Austin and nearly all other Central Texas cities) within their pro forma. 

Any land intiatitves should be well thought out and not benefit just the few but everyone.  You cannot take 
someones land rights or water rights away from them. however I do think limits are reasonable.  Taxing the 
entire county for one area  of infrastructure is wrong.  Rural areas should not have to pay for everything the city 
is doing.  If the city is incurring additional costs due to development, that should be passed on to the developer 
and the taxpayers in that particular area.  In no circumstance should the County be allowed to take land without 
due process. 

42

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Travis County should NOT purchase land in downtown Austin for a new county courthouse.  The land that it has 
already purchased should be sold to a private developer so that it can be put back on the tax rolls, and Travis 
County should build the court in a less expensive location. 

While conserving land is important, so our improved infrastructure like roads as traffic is getting horrible. In my 
opinion, we have over invested in conserving land and under invested in building roads to improve traffic. 

Land conservation is directly tied to water supply - must be addressed. 

NO 

Conserve water now! 

travis county should be developed with dense nodes of multi-use mini-cities that are connected by rail and trail, 
leaving open natural spaces, farms and sparsely populated areas in between.  each node needs to provide the 
basic services so that nearby residents can get the majority of their needs met without commuting (maybe even 
by foot or bike) and then hop a train into the main urban core for other activities/needs.  we can't preserve open 
space and protect water supplies/quality if everyone has to drive to do anything they need to do. 

yes.  Very little water supply is provided to the Cities of the County through groundwater, its a huge 
misconception, especially Austin.  All water used in incorporated Austin is resevoir stored. Parkland and 
conservation land are two different things:  parkland is for public use and recreation, conservation land is often 
times off limits to general public use.  The county's character has already changed and will continue to do so. 
Overlaying easements to protect farms is costly and ineffective. If protection means endless bond packages to do 
so, I am opposed.  Some easement overlay to protect wetlands and aquifer is reasonable. Springs can be 
protected, and should, but dont need thousands of acres to do so. 
thanks for the survey 

quit allowing so many mining operations - the trucks are dangerous and it erodes land 

Travis County already ownes huge tracts of land alot of it conservation land.  If Travis County uses public dollarts 
or voter approved bonds to support land consevation then they need to include in their land management plan 
ingress and egress for emergency services, payment for fire protection of the land co ordination with Travis 
County muncipalities for coordination of traffic, fire breaks, land management and other impacting effects. 

If you conserve land for public use then make sure we have public transportation to get there. Using more fossil 
fuels to get to conserved land is counter-intuitive. 

Do it now; once it's developed, it's gone. 

The lake level of Lake Travis should be included in this. 

Reimer's Ranch, Shield's Ranch are excellent examples of what can be done.  Thank you for those and the many 
others. 

Quit giving tax breaks to corporations and asking folks to subsidize developers. 

Special care should be taken around Aquifer recharge areas. 

NO 

Please use judgement when allowing growth.   Particularly related to making sure the roads can handle the 
growth before the growth happens 

County should work with the City on implementing Imagine Austin. We need more compact and connected 
development with household affordability and green infrastructure. 

Need to balance construction, roadways, conservation to preserve quality of life. 

Land conservation in rural areas has to go hand in hand with intensification of development in urban areas.  Any 
money spent on "conservation" within urban core is not only wasted, but backwards.  Conserve rural land 
through more development in already urban places. 

In regards to the rural character--- density should be encouraged as much as possible in order to limit sprawl, 
thus preserving the area's rural character outside of the densely populated areas. Sprawl/suburbs are the worst 
of both worlds and should be discouraged as much as possible. 

Protection of water resources and habitat for sensitive species should be priorities. 

43

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

It is not more important than quality of life issues for residents such as traffic congestion. 

I wish you would make property owners to maintain their property in a neat and orderly manner, with grass 
being cut and garbage picked up...neighborhoods are being run over by rats due to messy neighbors in Manchaca 
and on Twin Creek road. 

Travis County should discourage urban sprawl and encourage denser development with a variety of housing 
types and uses represented in order to conserve land and natural resources. 

If you want to conserve it, buy the rights or reach some agreement with the landowner. 

The burden of county taxes is excessive.  Less government is better government. 

I strongly advocate supporting local food production (i.e., agriculture and animal husbandry). Farmers should 
receive ag exemptions on land, as well as water rights and reduced rates. A large city, and Austin in particular, 
benefits from a local, healthy food supply. 

It is sad to see subdivisions like Sweetwater building unattractive houses on top of houses. At least 7-10 acre 
estate sized lots keep the Hill Country a little bit pristine like in the Travis Settlement or the Reserve. 
Overdeveloping out on Hwy. 71 West is draining the water supply, making the Hill Country unattractive and not 
allowing wildlife to survive. 

Hold builders to a stricter code on conserving land and water. 

Work to reduce numbers of ashe junipers which tend to use too much water.. 

eliminate many cedar trees 

Strongly think apartment units be put on hold until roads to accommodate the 100's more residents that would 
be residing in them, hit the existing roads, that are already so crowded, the the existing roads are like parking 
lots. 

Farming rice in a drought-prone state such as Texas is illogical and undesirable. Travis county should not be using 
scarce water resources for this activity, contracts or no contracts. 

Don't go overboard by protecting every rare species at great cost to the public. 

Don't worry about blind salamanders, spiders, or rare birds. 

PLEASE, PLEASE, STOP BUILDING MORE APARTMENTS AND HOUSES!!!!   
The traffic is atrocious.  And the more people and homes that come in, the more water will be used. 
Can you place a moratorium on building for a year?  Is it possible? 
How do you expect to conserve water or land when building is still permitted? 

There is not enough water now or in the future to support existing population, much less the anticipated growth. 
Rick Perry needs to stop encouraging out-of-state business to move to Texas 

Regarding lake travis. Travis county should manage it better to bring it back to at least 70% of it's capacity. It is a 
disgrace to see the result of current policies. 

we don't want to become a round rock. lakeway is a very unique community and conserving land will put a stop 
to over building and keep it a beautiful community that holds its property value. 

Elimination of juniper cedars would TREMENDOUSLY improve the amount of ground water available.  They are 
not native to TX and consume a lot more than their share of water. 

without water there is no life 

We will have so much growth in the next few years and we need to manage that growth wisely.  Do we have 
enough water?....do we have the roads to take care of traffic?.....do we have recreational areas to enjoy?.....do 
we need to limit growth until we can take care of these issues?  We should not spend money we don't have!!!!!  
Can't we manage growth without making it burdensome on those of us who already live here? 

This should be done primarily for parks and recreation. It's a good thing as long as common sense is used, but 
tying up a lot of land to protect lizzards,birds, etc is lunacy! 

44

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

The problem with a survey such as this is that in real life everything is a tradeoff and you are asking point 
questions without addressing the implications of these positions.  I might be willing to devote tax dollars to fund 
some of these initiatives but that has a limit and you carefully avoid the key question of how much for such 
conservation initiatives?  I think this approach tends to create misleading responses that are in general, more 
conservative than the population really feels. 

Discontinue all building permits county-wide in an effort to conserve water usage. Citizen already here should 
have access to water over and above future residences and businesses. 

off tax incentives for property owners to conserve private land 

If we lose the beauty of the hill country than we might as well move downtown. 

Travis County should enact the most stringent development regulations allowed by state and federal law to 
prevent development in flood-prone areas. 

County should try to produce a master plan for land conservation with forethought to both short and long-term 
preservation  (the latter being measured in decades and possibly centuries). In addition, this master plan should 
strive for clarity and transparency to the general public, with built-in safeguards to prevent spoilage by land 
speculators and developers. 

It would be nice to seea buildings cap in Austin. The city has become way over populated. I understand some 
people want more people to move in for what they believe to be "better Business" but the truth is, the more 
people crammed into this county, the faster land diminishes and local recourses will go away. All the condos, 
apartments and business suites that keep going up, just take away from the natural beauty here in central Texas. 
I love the natural beauty here.  It just eats me up inside to see these complexes go up and take it away.  On 
another note, the noise pollution act that was put on Austin. Austin was once known as the music Capitol of the 
World. What happened?  I don't understand people. If you don't like hearing music throughout the night, Don't 
Move To Austin.  I'd like to see the noise pollution law go away in Austin, in regards to music. 

Fight the use of the BCCP, ESA and EPA as they are used to take land and the use thereof. 

Need to outlaw "straws" draining water out of Lake Travis.  Need to use more gray water! 

Travis County currently has substantial amounts of conservation land in the BCCP and other areas.  I don't feel 
that more land needs to be conserved than already has been.  The "dark skies" issue has passed it's time.  Travis 
County is no longer rural in the majority, and it is VERY dangerous for drivers at night because there are no street 
lights on main roadways such as Ranch Road 620.  You can barely see the lines on the roads or where to turn at 
street corners due to this out-dated ordinance preventing proper lighting at night on roadways.  We need street 
lights on Ranch Road 620. 

Do not believe this should be a function of government. 

Build large regional detention ponds/lakes with help from Corps of Engineers 

Developers have been given free reign to rip up millions of trees and pack in as many plywood paradises as they 
can fit on each tract. Much of what makes Austin unique in Texas is being destroyed. Fewer trees and more 
impervious cover on the land means more heat, less water going back into the ground, etc. It's a pernicious cycle 
that just compounds the protracted historic drought the southwestern US is experiencing. None of this will lead 
to anything good. 

Purchase from "willing" landlords, is the key word. We need to balance these goals with rights of landowners. 

We should modify our thoughts around Land conservation for the purpose of land conservation.  There should be 
a purpose (i.e. to protect natural springs....), otherwise we should utilize some of our sacred cows to fix 
infrastructure issues. 

Land that is farmed with good husbandry and sustainable practices is land that is not only conserved but also 
productive and preserved. Make it easier for young farmers to get started and have access to affordable land 
through conservation or sustainability easements, rebates or grants. 

45

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Please expand and elevate current roads to help with traffic problems, instead of creating new roads through 
existing preserve and natural areas. The natural areas are the most important part of Travis County - they are 
what make us unique and set us apart from the other large cities in Texas. 

Travis County should enable more public access to Lake Travis. 

Conduct studies of the impact of cycling on BCP lands taking into account the landmark study done at Fort Hood 
in regard to endangered species habitat.  The Ft. Hood study showed no impact on the wildlife due to live fire of 
small arms and large caliber weapons like tanks, simulated chemical and nuclear warfare, vehicle activity, and 
even cycling. 

East Travis County has tremendous potential to meet open space& conservation goals art a reasonable cost. 

VERY STRONGLY OPPOSED to  RPPS-7 ( the proposed feasability study) and LW01(Proposed Elevated Toll Road SH 
45 West connecting 620 at RM 2222 to SH 45 SW/RM 1826).  Period. 

Land Conservation is the only hope for saving trees in travis county. 

Barton Creek and its tributaries in unincorporated Travis County should be designated as conservation corridors 

High priority should be given to protect the areas of Travis County that belong to the Barton Creek Contributing 
Zone. 

Keep pushing the legislature to give Counties some zoning controls. 

The county should use areas of the county that are sand and gravel pits as storage and percolation areas to save 
water that would other wise run off. 

Slow growth, both commercial and residential. Mandate environmental protections for growth that cannot be 
deterred.  Only allow growth in areas where adequate roadways have been built BEFORE development begins.  
Greatly expand park and ride options for commuters. 

I am STRONGLY opposed to the SH 45 bridge from Route 620, proposed by Lakeway, over Bee Caves Rd, 
through/above residential ares,  the Nature Conservancy, above Barton Creek waters, etc. 
Property values will plummet, affecting homeowner equity, TCAD home valuations, Travis County and EISD tax 
revenues. 
Additionally, protected natural resouces and lands will likely be impacted in a negative way. 

I do not think I will be able to continue to live in Travis County once I retire. I will not be able to afford the taxes. 
You spend way too much money on liberal causes that give me no benefit. 

In the Highland Lakes, floods are caused by natural events ONLY in combination with poor management of the 
basin.  Excessive erosion is most often caused by poor erosion control & detention at improvement projects and 
excess wave action related to zero limitations on boat traffic on the lakes.  Buying land makes no sense and 
shows poor understanding of the systemic problem.  EROSION CONTROL and RUNOFF DETENTION MUST BE 
MANDATED by law for the whole basin (county) and enforced.  Taking land and prohibiting improvements seems 
easier for the Travis County budget, but the county cannot buy all land needed to make a difference and this 
severely damages the local economy.  A good example of Travis County's ineffective and economically damaging 
management is the excessive prohibition of improvements to Lake Travis.   Sure its easier than actual 
enforcement of good land management practice, but at what cost?   Poor systemic management caused a knee 
jerk reaction of the government to just prohibit everything.  How innovative.  Watch the tax base dwindle. 

There should be public access to conservation land (parks with trails open to the public) as there is in every other 
city in the US. 

Support early study which identified trails along the Wilbarger Creek basin. This provides conservations, 
receation, controls pollution & could conserve water with the inclusion of mini-lakes in designated topographical 
terrain. 

lake travis was not meant to be a sustainable source of water for the immensely growing population, and 
especially neighboring cities/counties 

46

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

I believe Barton Creek/Little Barton and its tributaries should be designated as a conservation corridor. Provide 
'transfer of development right' so that landowners outside preferred growth centers can transfer development 
rights to property owners within a growth center and be compensated. Incentivize land conservation. 

Significantly limit high-density development until the drought has been eliminated 

Explore the use of hoards made up of local individuals to regulate land development by approving / disapproving 
individual development projects based upon standard criteria. Promotion of high density, low environmental 
impact development and discourage sprawl. Allow only new development with exceptionally high environmental 
standards. Redevelopment standards can be slightly less to promote redevelopment towards higher density. Also 
utilize tiered development fees to promote density and sustainable building methods and materials. 

Land conservation should occur but money should not just be thrown at it.  Careful consideration should be given 
to the ecological effect of both growth and conservation with some overarching principles to guide the process.  
Principles should include water needs for all purposes, insuring food production in compatible rural areas, 
protection of natural resources and wildlife and preserving a sense of community for residents and reduction of 
traffic through use of innovative work locations. 

Taking this survey without being informed on the implications of each decision seems wrong. :( 

Tree conservation should be high on the priority enforcement list in granting permits to developers for all new 
construction.  Just moving a tree is not conserving it (i.e. the heritage oak moved in the Hwy 290 work - it died). 

Travis County should ask for landowners, corporations, and wealthy families to donate land and give money to 
help purchase land for conservation purposes.  The cost burden should not be put on low- and middle-income 
families. 

STOP OVER DEVELOPING AUSTIN! We Austinites do not want any more development, our natural resources 
cannot support further growth. 

It is important for property owners to have the freedom to protect their land. The city, county, state, and/or 
federal government should have no rights on the property owned by the people. 

Promote clustered development to the extent feasible and focus growth in existing developed areas 

If Travis County gets zoning rights at some point, it should not limit development everywhere, thereby 
encouraging sprawl. 

Don't approve new developments if the homeowners association or business does not allow for flexibility in 
landscaping.  Change development codes to make xeriscaping and planting native plants required and lawns of 
St. Augustine or other water thirsty plants illegal. 

I speak for the trees!  Tree removal must be controlled.  Who controls developers?  Replacing trees with concrete 
in this semi desert climate shows no regard for the State's future and could only lead to disaster.  Wanton tree 
removal increases temperatures, reduces rainfall and increases erosion (should rain fall).  Without water all life is 
unsustainable.  I also speak for sustainability. 

It would be nice if the county had some political means by which to encourage smaller footprint, denser housing 
developments in order to maximize undeveloped green space. 

The City of Lakeway is proposing a toll road that will destroy conservation land and bring massive noise and air 
pollution to residential neighborhoods along its intended path. This project must be stopped before it ruins the 
last open land in the western part of the county between 2244 and Southwest Parkway. 

I agreed that it is important to conserve working farms and ranches, but would like to qualify that answer.  I 
strongly agree with conserving farms and ranches that are diversified and use sustainable production practices 
and am not in favor of perpetuating the model of monocultured and heavily amended agricultural production. 

Make sure there is enough water before approving housing projects.  Limit impervious ground cover in 
watersheds 

Here in Texas we have much less "open space" than other states I've lived in and visited.  I wonder why that is 
and if we might see a trend toward more conservation and public lands? I think it would be wise.  thank you 

Encourage conservator ships by reducing taxes in the years before the transfer of ownership 

47

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Don't believe government has a reason to be involved in land purchases.  Let the market decide. 

The BCP has been a sore spot because of the approach by COA management. We definitely miss Rose Farmer. It 
could be seen as a good organization for our community,and not shoved down our throats. 

Some type of jurisdictional standard needs to be established to protect residents from municipals annexation 
when municipality has no plan to ensure basic services or maintenance. 

"Progress" shouldn't be defined as building & covering with concrete every square inch of land.  Destruction of 
our world is not "progress". 

N/A 

More conservation is needed in southeast Travis County. 

I think a distinct delineation of city to rural should be a goal. Sprawl and subdivisions should be avoided because 
they cover up valuable farm land and create commuting difficulties. In most of Europe you will see this concept in 
practice. It's refreshing to have a distinct boundary and know where city ends and farmland and rural begin. 
Development nodes where density is accomplished are a preference to scattered development. 

Conservation of land is important, but not to the extent that it will make taxes increase. 

Please become more fiscally conservative.  Do not issue more bonds, even for land conservation. 

By all means, let's keep wasting water like we have an unlimited supply. Day time watering, commercial 
landscaping, and car washes; why not? People are in an uproar about lowering the water levels of "Decker" Lake 
but we don't seem to care about the levels of the Highland Lakes enough to do anything about it. 
Instead of petitioning the local government to NOT take steps to meet our gluttonous water demands; why don't 
we pressure the HOAs to reduce landscaping demands or to offer tax breaks to businesses that put down 
artificial grass like Rudy's in Round Rock? How about a petition to give larger rebates to homeowners that install 
rainwater retention devices? 
Water conservation is going to require a culture change, make no mistake. As we round out another consecutive 
drought year with more "below normal" rainfall, the issue is only going to become more crucial. There are 
thousands of ways to prevent draining lakes like Walter E. Long, but if we don't change our habits it will become 
yet another sad "remember when" story. 
Let's save Decker Lake, but let's do it the right way. 

We need to keep a keen eye on all development and the county & city both need to do financial analysis of the 
costs for infrastructure to support /extend and reach / sustain to the new development BEFORE giving ANY TAX 
ABATEMENTS!!!!!! 

I am so glad to see the future of Travis County being addressed. The preservation and conservation of land with 
native grasses and springs is vital to our future water needs. Additionally, it is unfortunate to see much of the 
county's lands being lost to big developments. 

Reduce urban sprawl by encouraging development along rail or highway transportation corridors.  Discourage 
development in remote areas, farming areas, or undeveloped regions. 

Did you know that while the Civil War was taking place President Abraham Lincoln signed an 1864 bill granting 
Yosemite Valley and the Mariposa Grove to the State of California. John Muir helped spark the creation of 
Yosemite National Park in 1890. President Lincoln did not even see Yosemite before he died. The reason I am 
bringing this up , is because we live here and we need to preserve land, the animals , water now !!!!!! So that 
generations for future generations can enjoy the beautiful hill country of Austin for all time. 

please save  our  land in  Austin  Growth is good,  but  open, land for  people and  animals   makes a city  speical  
not  just  a  concrete  jungle 

Severely limit new construction!!!!!!!!!!! 

Re-evaluate current funding and operating expenses and re-prioritize. 

More needs to be done with public/private collaboration for preservation of land so the county and cities aren't 
growing on the backs of residential tax payers. We must get support at all levels of government to get a better 
tax appraisal system 

48

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Buy land in eastern Travis Co while it is relatively inexpensive. You don't have to improve or spend maintenance 
money on it  - just let it return to whatever state it can. 

Right now, it appears that there is no plan to generate growth centers, it's just sprawl along any road that is 
build. 

Land isn't getting any cheaper! But conservation easements are a great alternative than having to buy everything 
in fee simple. 

In general... Texas is late to the party. Other states have strong conservation/development plans that support 
balance and maintain natural habitats. 

Make good use of city owned agricultural land 

Evaluate the best use of  particular tracts of land.  If it's rare habitat, preserve it.  If it's best for farming, make 
sure it is farmland, and so on. 

Dense development within existing urban areas is more efficient for cost in the long run. 

Increasing public-accessible green space in populated areas should be priority. 

So far, this is an awful survey.  It doesn't weigh cost/benefits in questioning.  It like asking  if you support the right 
to eat apple, but doesn't say that you'll gain weight. 

We should not be buying owners out for either poor decisions (flood plains) or for eminent domain (roads). 

I see houses being torn down and the developers are chopping down beautiful trees. This should be illegal and 
happens in crestview all the time 

The city if Austin has no business buying land off 45th and bull creek 

Land ownership is of Private Property Right / ownsers, and NOT for state/coutny ownership.. 

Thank you for caring about land conservation, and providing this survey. 

There are certain situations when conservation of land is a threat to the community. 
i am referring to the 2nd road to Vandrrfrift High School. 

Conservation was for the 1960's, it's now 2014 (some people on the Austin City Council need to be told this) and 
big companies are being sought to move their HQ here. How can we support the growth when we are more 
worried about the salamanders and birds! 

Land should be conserved where it can but not to the point that infrastructure that is needed to support the 
development not be put in place. Four Points area is a great example of Land Conservation over infrastructure to 
support the massive growth in the area. 

I put education before land conservation. 

The problem with "land conservation" is it's not applicable when a commercial development needs to go in.  Out 
in Steiner they are continuing to build!  Now a new 150 complex has just been approved when for years we have 
tried to conserve this land and add to the existing trail system.  We were always told this land was not to be 
developed?  There is an ongoing joke...we need to relocate some salamanders to the area ASAP!  Then we would 
get someones attention.  WE DON'T NEED MORE BUILDING!  SOMEONE PLEASE START PAYING ATTENTION!!! 

STOP BUILDING IN STEINER RANCH.  TRAFFIC IS HORRIBLE. 

It is important to use land for its highest and best use. Infill is preferable to suburban sprawl. 

Need to develop 620 and 2222! 

Travis County should consider the importance of designing and building sufficient roads to protect human life 
while balancing environmental issues instead of letting the environmentalists waste time and taxpayer money. 

Construction causing small mudslides in areas, I'd hate to see when we have really prolonged heavy rain. People 
need to watch where they build. The air quality is also terrible. Our environment is being destroyed. 

Traffic on 2222 and 620 needs to be improved !!! 

Proper infrastructure should be the top priority. People will continue to move here and delaying roads for the 
sake of land conservation is not good planning. Southwest parkway & barton creek preserve are excellent models 
for maintaining a balance between the desire to conserve land and the needs of a growing population. 

49

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Bill the developers for building in a floodplain, don't make us bail people out for their poor home-purchase 
decisions. 

The metro area has already lost much of its natural beauty. We don't want Austin to become another Dallas. Part 
of what attracts people to this city is the greenness of it. 

Travis county should balance land conservation with build better and more roadways. 

LIMIT development and work toward maintaining land, space, water... too much growth too fast is hurting all of 
Central Texas 

We need to preserve our ecosystems and the beauty of ourgeographic areas 

620 NEEDS MORE LANES! 

I would like the land conservation to take into account saving water as much as possible. For example, doing 
more to protect more parcels like the edwards aquifer recharge zone. Water is a precious and quickly depleting 
resource.  
I also believe keeping farmlands close and functioning is extremely important. There should be more focus put on 
sustainability and permaculture. 

We need to do the best we can to protect the quality of life.  Clean air, clean drinking water being the most 
important, to me. 

Conserve, yes. But also help secure safe alternative route to/from Vandegrift HS please! What would you do if 
your own child attended this school? Please test out trying to pick up a person at dismissal during the week-it's a 
nightmare! Scared for what would happen if evacuation was needed. 

I really like the Hill Country Conservancy's model. 

Without conservation we will become just another used up overpopulated county unable to support its residents 
or enjoy it's resources. 

It is great that Travis County is concerned with land conservation. I support land and wildlife conservation but 
recognize there has to be a balance when human safety is concerned. The county has botched the management 
of the land sale to LISD for Vandegrift HS and Four Points MS. The county has allowed two schools and two 
apartments to be built on a lot with one exit (the second option to get out only allows a right turn on 2222 which 
forces traffic back to intersecting exiting traffic at McNeil and 2222). Did you not learn anything from the Steiner 
Ranch fires? It took 2-3 hours for anyone leaving to get out of Steiner via Steiner Ranch Blvd. when Quinlan Park 
was closed to traffic.  There was hope for a second exit via a service road that already existed but then a bird or a 
salamander was discovered. The county chose an animal over our children, teachers and apartment residents 
safety should a disaster like the fires ever happen anywhere near VHS. 
The same thought goes to Steiner Ranch. The city continues to grant permits to allow multifamily housing to be 
built in an area that already has overcrowded schools and roads. Where is an endangered animal to halt more 
apartments from being built? The last duplex project that is being started now was denied permits twice by the 
city due to inadequate exits. The permit has been granted on the third try and nothing has changed about the 
exits! There is clearly a lack of regard for human safety when tax revenues can be collected. 

Allow homeowners to have a vote for remaining land use inside Steiner Ranch. No more development until 
infrastructure is greatly improved. 

Manage expectations early on and stop catering to developers (Sweetwater Sub). Make developers foot the bill 
conservation protections, not Travjs county voters 

It is important but there are more important issues where the county should spend its resources 

Make sure there is some that is a desirable place to visit or for wildlife habit. 

Nature is keeping this planet alive. Don't ruin it. 

Infrastructure should be considered when deciding zoning and land conservation as well. 

50

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Conservation of land at the cost of increased traffic and congestion due to not being able to use available land for 
roadways results in more time on the roadways and thus more pollution and a lower quality of life.  Conservation 
is important, but too much land has been set aside currently, thus restricting possible solutions for improved 
mobility. 

Build more roads! 

I can't answer these questions bc they are so vague and out of context. 

Care about safety of humans too! Stop going in circles with who can build on land and which agreements in past 
should count. Developers,city, and transportation should all be on the same plan. No building if land or 
community  does not support or traffic has not been dealt with first. 

Widen much needed roads 

There must be a balance. A couple of voices concerned about land conservation shouldn't override data that 
shows humans are in dangerous conditions because land is conserved. (Like roads where there are frequent 
accidents not being expanded because of wildlife. The people aren't going away, and human lives and safety 
should be priority.) 

Land conservation is important for many reasons however I believe when it comes to protecting human life vs 
wildlife we need to choose human life. 

The toll road proposed by the city of Lakeway should not be allowed or even considered. 

Please be mindful of our property taxes. Operate as if you were spending your own money. 

Land conservation must be for the benefit of all residents. 

I strongly support land conservation for a variety of reasons, but I believe it's important to balance conservation 
needs with smart development. 

None 

The County should be working with the COA to conserve land and limit sprawl. 

Don't compromise safety to preserve wildlife or land 

Land is not a commodity; it is ground of all life! Conservation is our obligation as educated citizens. 

Yes, there is no mention of safety, there is no " good soil" in the Four Points area, so that question is irrelevant. In 
addition there are many acres of protected acres in this area for wildlife, and I think it is appropriate for some of 
it to be released to protect human life. In addition, stop authorizing dense housing if you are not going to fix 
current traffic problems. 

Need to consider traffic issues on 620/2222 

It is possible to conserve land by not providing building permits or allowing development without spending 
taxpayer money. 

Ensure safety of its citizens by improving road systems where population had exploded. Build roads that are 
needed for the safety of students and workers where there is one outlet for evacuation only the Steiner fires are 
an example of a travesty of safety due to lack of roads. The same goes for the Four Points area schools 

We need contiguous tracts.  We need effective land management.  We need clear distinctions between parks and 
preserves.  Parks have public access, preserves do not. 

Lower Property Taxes 

Areas that are flood prone cost the consumer and the county money. Purchase that area to save the consumer 
headaches and dollars and conserve land. 

My agree and strongly agree answers are only if they do not sacrifice public safety. 

Land conservation is important, but there needs to be a balance. What are you trying to save? Is it something 
that is indigenous to the area? Can the area be preserved with some changes? 

Land conservation should not be for setting aside the land only. The land should be used responsibly for parks, 
trails, reserves, etc. 

It seems ironic that Travis County is concerned with land conservation while allowing Taylor Morris to overbuild 
in already congested master planned communities like Steiner Ranch. 

51

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Has to be a balance on these issues between conservation and rights of land owners. Some regulations can go to 
far. 

People comfort, facilities and quality of life  takes priority than other things 

Travis County will not stay rural, focus on protecting specific resources rather than keeping things "rural". Dark 
skies cannot be maintained. That's what truly rural areas are good for (Burnet County, Milam County, etc.) 

Stop putting critters and land in front of safety and total gridlock. 

I am the Executive Director of Farmshare Austin and we believe it is critically important to protect good farmland 
in the County. Central Texas is poised to become a really innovative food and agriculture center for the country 
but only if we can balance these interests with the other demands of development.  

don't think Travis County is responsible to buy flood prone properties, my tax dollars should not be used to buy 
out homes.  I have to spend my own money to keep my house from flooding.  The process used to determine 
"who/what" should be bought out and "who/what" shouldn't is not done in a fair/just manner. 

Manor area roads need attention while you're at it 

I DO NOT support using taxpayer dollars for unproductive large tract set-asides. The 6000 acres of land Travis 
County already owned needs to be wildfire-managed and allow a taxpayer benefit, such as public access to a park 
or trail. 

Travis County and local cities should encourage businesses (especially those relocating to the area) to purchase 
or contribute to the purchase and conservation of lands -- perhaps as part of a new program that provides tax or 
other offsets in response to their up-front purchase/conservation/restoration of acreage. 

We must learn to live with our natural surroundings and the ecosystems that were already here. 

Please limit development in central Austin! Why did the zero development policy stop? 

Travis County appears to have no plans and limited authority over the development in the west.  Road safety, 
schools and most importantly water need to be taken into consideration when developers bring projects for mass 
growth to the commissioners court. Seems like Travis County cares ONLY about more property tax income. It 
starts with a smart plan for land conservation.  Get your act together.  Period. 

We need wealth developing growth and density. http://www.strongtowns.org/journal/2014/9/3/a-wealth-
creating-pattern-of-development.html  

Highest priority is improved traffic and lower property taxes 

Traffic on 620 is really bad, specially from N Quinlan Park till 620/2222. There is only one road which is always 
blocked. 

Conserving land to protect the water supply and natural features is very important. Especially interested in Little 
Barton Creek which runs thru my subdivision. 

stop inviting people and companies to move here. 

emphasis should be placed on reforesting lands in floodplains 

I've liven in Travis county my entire life. I grew up in Westlake and now reside in Manor. The differences are 
astonishing. I believe if you create a beautiful place to live, then it boosts the self esteem of the residents and 
make the county stronger as a whole.  P.S. If you could tell McDonalds on 290 their lights are obscenely bright 
and the majority of uninformed folks who eat there already recognize the arches of death without the bright 
lights - it would be marvie. (Sorry for the run on sentence, but I'm doing this on an iPhone) 

I don't support government land grabs for conservation, though I do support a limited amount of parkland.  In 
general, the land belongs in the hands of private citizens and organizations.  
I also don't support government legislation and decisions made in the area of global warming as this is unsettled 
science.  
I believe that the protection of endangered species is a claim that is often abused to allow for government 
control of property and citizens.  More unbiased oversight should be done when decisions are made on behalf of 
endangered species, especially when human life and safety is an immediate factor. 

52

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.strongtowns.org/journal/2014/9/3/a-wealth-creating-pattern-of-development.html
http://www.strongtowns.org/journal/2014/9/3/a-wealth-creating-pattern-of-development.html


 

 
 

Where safety of the existing community has become at risk due to growth, adjustments to conservation 
easements should be encouraged. Future growth should be appropriately controlled and guided to prevent 
further pressure on easements. Everything from traffic to fire risk, to schools need to be considered in planning 
for SAFE growth. 

Limit apartment building concentration in the 360-2222 area.  Roads cannot support density development. 

The focus on conservation to exclusion of planning for the population growth ie infrastructure and roads is 
irresponsible.  Growth is coming regardless of what we want.  Trying to use conservation measures to limit 
growth is not going to work.  A plan which allows for the anticipated growth in concert which conservation is the 
appropriate response. 

We choose to move into our area because it was less developed and had a lot of greenbelt around us. With in 13 
years this area has become so overdeveloped with little or no planning on traffic flow . If this will continue this 
area is going to look like Houston. 

There should  traffic control and fire management should strongly factor in to ALL decisions re development on 
620 and 2222. Rules should be more stringent on matching growth to improved traffic management. 

Transparency is Key to determining the best course of action regarding conservation. 

The overbuilding in the Four Points area and throughout Austin is out of control.   It's dangerous and our traffic 
problem is reducing quality of life, our schools are overcrowding and we have reduced safety on our roads. Stop 
the poor planning and overbuilding in our city.  It's time for the roads to catch up to the extreme growth that is 
occurring in our city. 

wetlands is a trojan horse for the EPA which bypasses law from Congress. 

Land conservation should be a part of the Travis County's charter, but not the over-riding objective.  Taxes are 
too high, so land conservation should be done in the most efficient way possible.  If it is too expensive, it should 
not be pursued. 

Find uses for conserved land that do not negatively impact that land (if possible) - including parks and sports 
fields for flood prone areas. 

Yes,  I understand Lakeway has proposed extending SH45 through the Dell Ranch and other preserve lands.   I 
strongly object to this plan and request that funds for the feasibility study be denied.  Besides my primary 
objection that we should not destroy preserves to build new roads, I object that the funds would be provided to 
Lakeway to conduct their own, and therefore biased, study. 

Strongly opposing the proposal of toll road between lake way and bee caves road. This is too disruptive to wild 
life. 

Small farm-to-table local farms operating adjacent to sections of dense residence/ mixed-use centers would be 
ideal. Greenbelts in sensitive areas provides for conservation and recreation. Finding the best use of particular 
soils / watersheds / topography is difficult, but would lead to the highest and best use of the highly varied 
topography we find in western Travis county. 

In the same way that local governments are working to protect dark skies, there are many reasons to protect 
natural soundscapes as well (tranquility, physical and mental health, quality of habitat for wildlife species).  I 
recommend staff look into model policies that promote quality soundscapes through noise abatement policies. 

There is a way to conserve land and make it useful to citizens through parks, bike trails and in some cases, even 
roads.  Lets start using common sense growth and development to move people AND protect animals as Austin 
continues to EXPLODE growthwise.  We cannot continue to 100% protect the land that has been reserved.  There 
are ways to build where once completed, the areas remain very rural and protected from development.  See 
Mopac and 290 over Barton Creek or Loop 360 over Bull Creek.   We must move people to keep this city 
booming. 

Every parcel of land the county buys or owns eliminates those properties from the tax roll and therefore, the 
citizens make up the difference with higher taxes. 

53

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Land that has been conserved needs to be off limits for roads, transmission lines or other infrastructure 
proposals. Conserved land needs to be protected for the long-term, honored and valued. I have seen proposals to 
build roads through preserves, this is completely unacceptable. 

Please consider including the Barton Creek watershed in Conservation Areas. This is a critical watershed and 
needs protection. 

Local government is the voice of the people, reflecting our values, I chose Austin becasue of its' liberal, 
progressive politics and gentle climate.  I was disappointed when we voted down light rail 11 or so years ago.  My 
fear is our growth will outstretch our ability to keep quality of life good.  Traffic comes to mind.  thank you for 
asking the question about light pollution and dark skies.  Keep going!  Charla 

Land conservation is important but I want to make sure if tax dollars are used that tax payers are allowed to use 
it.  I am opposed to agreements with Nature Conservancy where only the "elite" are allowed to make 
appointments to enjoy the land (St. Edwards Park is a prime example). 

Discourage watering of "lawns" and encourage substituting native plantings for grasses and such that belong only 
in west coast marine type climates. Encourage commercial enterprises to use native plantings and self draining 
type pavements. 

Austin zoning is a mess. TravisCo should not attempt anything similar.  
Direct ownership and conservation easements are the best way  for TravisCo to conserve and control property.  
Then the appetite to control is limited by the willingness to tax. 
Also, public recreation needs in TravisCo are increasing with population and since Austin gives such large portions 
of parkland to private event promoters. 

Local government take over of lands is a no no 

It wasn't clear on question 4 if you were referring to the behavior of private citizens or the government. All of 
them are important to a degree. The Travis County government does not have the wisdom to efficiently spend 
tax money to do any of them. Hell you cannot build the Consolidated Vehicle Service Center on Blue Bluff Rd 
without royally screwing it up. How much did that bridge over the creek (that goes no where) set you idiots back? 
No amount of tossing my tax money around will atone for the environmental screw up that project turned into. 
Famous last words, "We don't need building permits, were Travis County". 

Travis County already has a ton of preserved land. 

Need to encourage denser land use by developing population nodes, connected by commuter rail and cease 
developing new roads to accommodate sprawl. 

Over growth will be a disaster to the county as we need to maintain the water needs and the infrastructure 
needed to enable people to travel and live . The limitations need to be put in place in the housing developments 
as the roads , schools and over all quality of life will be depleted. A perfect example is the growth along 969 from 
Austin. Any morning during the week travel is backed up at Austin Colony and can take sitting through many 
lights to get through this intersection and if more homes are built this will only magnify. 

The focus should be on protecting existing green spaces.  The county should work with land trusts, 
neighborhoods and individuals who want to protect green spaces, and should encourage the use of conservation 
easements.  Not all conservation needs to be done by the county - the county can reduce it's costs by helping & 
partnering with private individuals and land trusts.  The theory that developing very densely will result in 
preserving green spaces farther out is false, and creates dense sprawl.  Green spaces should be protected 
whenever and where ever they can be (where ever nearby residents are ready to help protect them), and they 
should be protected and conserved as development spreads. 

land conservation should be an adjunct to protect and filter the water supply 

Building restrictions in flood plains are key! It is in the best interest of future generations for Travis County to 
purchase prime conservation lands in floodplains for green infrastructure that can serve regional storm water 
quality purposes and serve as recreational amenities. This is a great survey - thanks for reaching out to the 
community. 

54

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Make developers pay large sums in environmental fees to build in environmentally sensitive zones. Use county 
and city resources to sue developers. 

I would rather Travis County purchase land for conservation rather than "parkland" which has so many 
restrictions.  The goals should be preservation.  If a commercial use is able to build in a way that supports the 
conservation goal, this should be an option. 

Key lands and creek/ river corridors should be squired before development to ensure continuous corridors. 

Future development approval must be in concert with the reality of this land. We have large rains and flash 
floods, we have long droughts and deplete our drinking water supply. These are facts and any development that 
does not consider land density, runoff water and green building practices should not be approved. In addition, 
any development should be near existing roads and not expect new roads for their benefit. 

Floodplain acquisition could be more costly as it may include homes, businesses, etc and may not be in the right 
location for a well-planned land conservation program, so, it should be evaluated based on those goals rather 
than just buying flood-prone properties 

Use common English instead of resorting to back-formed words, such as "incent." 
"Identify where the county will INCENT development 
Identify where the county will INCENT conservation" 

Clearly I am in favor.  As an outdoor recreationalist - this area is significantly underserved - just visit a swimming 
hole or ladybird lake trail - we have too many people on too little land.  Best of luck finding ways to preserve 
more land for the enjoyment of all. 

Make the conservation areas open to the public.  The Balcones reserve on City Park Rd is closed to the public.  A 
high fence has been erected that prohibits the movement of wildlife.  This is wrong! 

This plan is extremely important for the livability and sustainability of our region. In order for people to live here 
with dignity, we must be able to have some self-sufficiency in supplying our most basic needs - food and water. 
This requires resource allocation in terms of staff time and dedicated bueget allocations to coordinate efforts 
with community partners and to leverage public and private funds increasingly available for these purposes. This 
plan is prudent. We have already lost time and potetial opportunites to preseve land for these purposes. These 
elements of resource preservation must consistently be part of the County budget and staff priorities given the 
population and development pressure this area is facing. Thank you so much for the opportunity to weigh in. 

Conservation is so important. I bought my house 6 years ago and am now surrounded by subdivisions and light 
and it breaks my heart. 

Land conservation itself should rarely be used as a reason to limit walking and bicycling mobility, e.g. we should 
not use the excuse that we can't build a trail because we've already built a freeway and can't afford to destroy 
more of the natural environment to build the trail 

Bike facilities take up small areas of public land and should be used to promote access to preserved land in ways 
other than cars. 

Growth in western Travis county is too fast with little plan to keep it sustainable.  Lake Travis and the Pedernales 
River are huge symbols of the potential disaster we are facing if we do not start doing this more wisely.  Please 
slow it down until we have something that can work into the future, not just help developers make money today. 

Travis County should prioritize conserving inexpensive land far away from downtown Austin.  It should not put 
any resources into "conserving" land in Austin, where people should live more densely.  Keep the city city and the 
country country. 

Travis County should use/acquire easements to create bike and pedestrian trails.  

It's hard to answer questions without the details of "protect, conserve and support".  I would rather see any 
major monetary expenditure be on the Commissioner's agenda 

Please protect the land over the Edwards Aquifer Recharge Zone by withdrawing support for SH 45 SW. 

Please start modeling cumulative effects on the watershed when looking to approve gray infrastructure impacts 
like development. 

55

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

Protect bottomland riparian forests 

Recreational trails are an effective way to increase residents' understanding of and attachment to conserved 
lands. 

Restrict run off from development land.  Do Not allow our limestone creeks in Travis County to be turned into 
storm drains as it has been done in Austin.  I've owned land along the Travis/Hays countyline for twenty years.  
Be responsible for the development impact to our land and accountable to the citizens/taxpayers/voters that 
cherish our unique Travis county landscape. 

Urban development in the city is equally as important as conserving existing natural spaces. 

Land is a resource for the future, and once damaged represents a debt. Since the population is growing so fast I 
believe it has never been more important to conserve land than today. 

Conserved land can also support low-impact transportation corridors for those who walk and cycle to work. 

Increase transportation options, particularly bike infrastructure. 

Do not allow tax breaks for corporations. Protect the aquifers. 

Investing in improved water and soil quality now mean billions of dollars saved later that would be wasted on 
healthcare costs/productivity losses 

Provide bikeways through conserved land. 

Having conservation land in part use for ease of mobility for bicycles and pedestrians. 

The 620 corridor is already clogged beyond capacity.  The plan admits there are few options to improving it.  The 
plan still calls for promoted growth at an activity center at Four Points?  This is not logically consistent.  Increase 
density, no transportation options, promote more growth.  The current transportation plan is simply trying to 
catch up to needs already present.  Do not make it worse by promoting more/denser growth there. 

Land conservation may also provide much needed greenways where walking and biking infrastructure can be 
built to support recreation, exercise and (most importantly) alternative transportation. 
We need more corridors for safe biking access OFF the streets to all neighborhoods and downtown. South 
Walnut Creek is a great example. It just falls short of linking Manor to downtown. The NW, SW, and SE zones 
need similar access on these greenways. 

Protecting our lands will keep Austin from becoming Houston, a fate far worse than death! 

Water is the number one issue and will depend greatly on curtailing or regulating over development and urban 
sprawl. 

Travis County should invest in land conservation in areas that have been identified as high priority conservation 
lands that meet multiple conservation goals (ie water quality, habitat, farm land). The county should also work 
closely with surrounding cities to encourage more dense development in already urbanize areas, thereby 
maximizing existing infrastructure and taking growth pressure off undeveloped land. Sprawling single-family 
subdivisions are NOT what we need more of if we want to deal with traffic congestion and environment 
preservation needs. 

I could "strongly agree" with all of the conservation statements above, but I don't trust you to use this 
information fairly.  I strongly support all the ideals listed in the conservation statements, but I don't trust you to 
implement policies that are fair to private land owners.  Development/building in Austin city limits is already a 
nightmare and we are losing important businesses and segments of our population because of the over 
regulation.  Please be judicious with your power and learn from the City of Austin - don't be like them. 

Greenbelt committee may be beneficial in working along with developers and construction for preventing the 
demise of the local wildlife. 

As long a conserve doesn't = keep the public out, I'm all for conservation. There are responsible ways humans & 
nature/wildlife can co-exist & make use of the same tracts of land for recreation (humans) and to live (wildlife) 

Travis County should mitigate flooding by restricting development in flood plains, limiting impervious cover, and 
requiring detention ponds for all developments. 

56

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

I am not in favor of things that will continue to drive our property taxes up.  We need to spend within the given 
budget.  Additionally, IF tax money gets spent on buying land, I feel it should be for the purpose of public use.  I 
have a very strong dissatisfaction with what happened with the BCCP acreage.  Bonds were voted in by the 
public, then we were essentially written out of the use of that land we paid for. 

springs, streams, and all bodies of water in Travis county is so special and important, the conservation and 
protection of these natural resources should be a priority 

I would like to see more dense urban areas in order to minimize the area of human impact (sprawl) as a way to 
preserve wild spaces outside of the urban zones. 

Having green space reserved within communities was one of the reasons that I chose to live in Austin.  I'd like to 
ensure that we have as much conservation space as possible, but ensure that active folks can still access the trails 
within for biking, hiking, etc. within reason. 

I love Reimer's Ranch Park the most - thanks! 
Pace Bend is great to, too bad about the drought. 

Density is much better use of land than sprawling development. 

Thank you for planning for our future! 

More needs to be done regarding water conservation. 

Travis County should do everything in it's power to protect our water sources and conserve land.  Water is 
becoming the number one issue we face.  Investment now will pay off later. 

Uncontrolled growth of the suburban area is the biggest threat to quality of life in central texas.  Land 
conservation provides a valuable tool in the presence of state laws that do not allow stronger urban growth 
boundary regulation. 

We need more transportation trails or biking and hiking ilk the Violet Crown Trail 

Our county is unique as an urban area in Texas. It will continue to draw people.  We should be mindful of 
maintaining character and that may mean forgoing revenues. 

all of the charm of this place comes from people living in harmony with the native landscape. cotton farming, 
over grazing and over urbanizing leads to ugliness, dead spaces. we can manage our growth better than that 

This plan is extremely important for the livability and sustainability of our region. Travis County's governmental 
role must  include real support for self-sufficiency and resiliency in supplying our population's most basic needs - 
food and water. This requires resource allocation in terms of staff time, as well as dedicated budget allocations to 
coordinate efforts with community partners and to leverage public and private funds that are increasingly 
available for these purposes. This plan is prudent. We have already lost time and potential opportunities to 
preserve land for these purposes. Critical elements of resource preservation (i.e., land, soil, water), must 
consistently be part of the County budget and staff priorities given the population and development pressure this 
area is facing. Support for food production - and related economic food sector drivers like distribution, storage, 
processing, and recovery - must be integrated into county planning, in addition to water and soil conservation. 
Thank you so much for the opportunity to weigh in. 

Encourage smart growth, low impact development, and protection of limited water resources in this increasingly 
dry/drought-prone region. 

Farmland and green space are vital to the health and well being of Travis County. Conserving land for these 
purposes should not go undervalued. We cannot afford for our farmers to be priced out for another development 
or our streams and tributaries forever sealed by more pavement. The future of Austin depends on these 
resources and serious conservation steps are necessary to preserve and reserve them. 

With the growing population the land area for recreational purposes -hike and bike trails, mountain bike tails, 
swimming pools - should also proportionally increase. The corporations who buy up land and build condos for the 
wealthy should pay for this. 

Use public lands to build a network of bicycle trails. 

57

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

When conserving land for farming, I think it would be beneficial to support small-scale, family-owned enterprises, 
especially those producing a variety of fruit and vegetable crops, and especially those using sustainable farming 
practices. 

Conservation easements are paid for with local tax dollars in Routt Co Colorado. They are called purchase of 
development rights and they are very well supported and were refunded by popular vote. I think Travis Co needs 
to be aggressive and in catch up mode to protect undeveloped lands. Please be BOLD! 

Parkland pays for itself over time by reducing flood mitgation costs, erosion costs, and by increasing property 
values!  Lets catch up before for there isn't anything to conserve. 

out here in the hill country, we need to be able to better limit how a developer can alter te topography. ie; in-
filling ravines and leveling hillsides as is being done along highland blvd in Lakeway. It's a tragedy. 

TC should spend money to do the right thing, conserving natural resources regardless of voter approval. 

Need to protect creeks and aquifers from pollution and overuse 

These questions are not fully informative. I'd like to know what alternatives there are in order to make a better 
informed decision. Without knowing all the items on the table, I feel like I'm just agreeing to general abstract 
ideas instead of realistic representations of concrete actions. Maybe present what amount of money is currently 
budgeted towards conservation, and whether that is increasing or not, and also present the other projects that 
would be losing funds as consequence. 

Conserved lands should be maintained to include natural areas that enhance indigenous plants and animals, and 
include some trails to allow people to enjoy them, by foot. Land as it is, is as it is, for a reason. Do not try to out-
think the land. That usually ruins it. 

maximize funds; matching local dollars; matching county dollars and matching state and federal dollars.  "Bang 
for your buck" 

Be bold in the roll-out of these conservation programs. 

Like to see park land or hiking trails or county owned green space in the Manchaca/San Leanna/Onion Creek 
areas.  There is no Travis County Parks easily accessible to the Manchaca area without driving at least 30 to 40 
minutes. 

These questions are oddly skewed towards promoting land conservation as opposed to getting an accurate 
accounting of what people feels needs to be done in the area of conservation. 

Development of property for home sites should be done with strong consideration of the impact on water quality 
and availability for both surface and ground water supplies. Travis County must do a better job looking at future 
water sources for development and the impact development will have on surface run off especially in sensitive 
areas such as the Barton Springs Ecosystem. 

No more new subdivisions on Hamilton Pool Road 

Barton Creek and its tributaries should be included in the watersheds to be protected under the Land, Water and 
Transportation Plan. 

The county needs to stop using conservation land as parks. No ATVS in the preserves! 

I was on the board of The Northcentral Pennsylvania Conservancy, before moving here in June.   NPC currently 
holds 43 conservation easements and 1 facade easement on over 4,735 acres.  Another 6,300 acres were 
protected through ownership. I'm currently a stay at home Mom with all four of my children in School full time.  I 
have time to volunteer, If you need someone.  I also took a community planning and zoning class through Penn 
State Extension and was in the Paralegal program at Penn College before moving to Austin.  Carmalene Churba 
610-389-3220 

Support repeals of mandatory landscape in HOA communities; urge more xeriscape in community public spaces. 

Minimize development, stop cutting trees down for toll roads, educate the public more on why we should 
prioritize protection of natural resources and natural lands for animals and for ourselves. Travis counting is 
populating at an alarming rate and with that there are many consequences. Conserve, water, land and trees for if 
we don't we will suffer. 

58

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

I strongly support land conservation -- primarily through regulation. . . . Buy only if you have to.  But to 
accommodate growth and preserve our open areas, we have to add density.   Density is the single greatest tool 
we have to save our open spaces and the environment. 

There are aggregate mining areas that seem to be used and abandoned in Eastern Travis County. This land needs 
to be reclaimed for positive future use, instead of just being wasted. 

It's great that Travis County is being so proactive about conservation--especially in Eastern Travis County which is 
going to experience the most pressure.  Conservation easements are a very cost effective way to protect open 
space, water and wildlife. 

It should NEVER be okay to violate protected wildlife areas!  Development and growth need to conform to these 
essential limitations.  There will always be more cars until we create alternative transportation systems. 

We must conserve our groundwater resources and need to embrace a western Travis county GCD that has real 
power to stop unmeasured commercial exploitation that unfairly disenfranchises our homeowners and wildlife. 
DO NOT allow a GCD to be defined that does not have regulatory power as has been proposed and defeated 
before. 

All efforts should be used to steer development away from sensitive lands. If that does not work, substantial 
money should be used to buy those sensitive lands. Preserving and improving water quality should be a high 
priority when planning land use. Preserving land for wildlife should also be a high priority. As should be 
preserving land to protect native plant life. Setting aside land for public parks should also be a priority but water, 
wildlife and native plants should come first. I would also support strong ordinances and public education to save 
what "dark skies" we have remaining on the outskirts of Austin. This would include being smart about bill board 
lighting and large highway signs. 

We should concentrate much of our future growth in centers (downtown or other established areas of residential 
+ commercial + jobs) as opposed to spreading out horizontally across the environmentally sensitive county. 

We need protection of our underground aquifer to protect the dependence of west Travis county residents on 
wells by limiting large subdivisions and small lot sizes. We should have a minimum of 1 acre lots and no ability of 
developers to put in "amenity" pools that use groundwater in new developments. 

We need to look at the big picture and down the line 

Need more roads! 

Do something, anything, to assist in the congestion  on RR 620 and fM 2222. It is unsafe . Do whatever it takes to 
resolve the Steiner Ranch traffic issue. 

Water preservation and reduction of use need to be among the most significant priorities.  Zero lawn scapes 
should be allowed in all home owner associations and encouraged. 

Land conservation should be considered ONLY when traffic and access requirements are also being considered. 

Use dies to determine where water flows, not what someone guesses. 

Land conservation and environment must be protected but a compromise, practical attitude and common sense 
need to be used.  Instead of an intransigent attitude defend a few feet of protected land when the benefit to the 
community could be great and economical. 

Private ownership is superior to govn't intervention for  conservation 

We should leave the preserves alone; thats why we live here 

Land conservation pales in comparison to quality of life for the average person.  Prioritization of those living and 
paying taxes needs to be prioritized over any other environmental concerns.  Anyone on the other side is just 
trying to come up with a good excuse to try and create population control, which is a feeble attempt to try and 
stop what cannot be stopped. 

We need more land to help with traffic 

59

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
 

The ash juniper (cedar) tree is depleting alot of water in Travis County.  Look at Texas Parks and Wildlife's studies 
on this.  Part of our land conservation should include remediation of runoff and soil conservation as well as the 
removal of invasive non-native vegetation that is destroying habit for birds and animals.  Something has to be 
done about the loss of our creeks and streams due to non-native vegetation. 

Conserving land will make affordability an even greater challenge.  affordable housing and commercial needs 
considered at the same time as conservation. 

Common sense should be used to conserve land, water and wildlife while adopting to a growing population's 
transpoetation and land needs. 

 
 

  

60

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Appendix C: Survey Comments on 
Development and Transportation  

A total of 347 comments were collected from the Development and Transportation 
section of the survey: Question 12. Is there anything else you would like to share with 
Travis County regarding development and transportation?  

 

Stop building new roads! If a developer wants to build in the unincorporated areas of Travis County then make the 
developer pay for roads. Stop passing the developers obligation to your constituents. 

We need an Activity Center in West Travis County on Hwy 290 West.   That area if FULL of people and it is only 
growing.  If we had an Activity Center near the TC border, we could save ALOT of those people from driving into 
downtown Austin.   Also, Hwy 290 West should be a Transportation Corridor since it is linking with Dripping 
Springs.   We can't close our eyes to REALITY. 

We are limited in the growth of hiways in our area, 969, 973, and 130. We see alot of trucks in our area and they 
tear up the roads,mostly overloads and the county does nothing to stop the over loadsl 

I think for new development that land developers should bear much of the cost for new infrastructure.  It is unfair 
for the country to subsidize development through buliding new roads.  I would rather the county use its road 
funds to widen existing congested roads.  I would also like to see more dedicated bike lanes. 

Too much emphasis is put on bike lanes. A very small percentage of the city uses or benfits from them. There also 
seems to be little or no enforcement of traffic laws for bicyle riders and increased focus can only encourage the 
same dangerous and, often, illegal, behavior. 

No more Tax Abatement Incentives for business relocations. 

Please focus on widening the freeways and adding more non-toll roads to reduce the traffic.  I perfer to drive to 
work, instead of using public transportation. 

I hate toll roads.   I think roads should be, for the most part, public domain and paid for via tax revenues and 
developer fees. 

New developments should be supported by the tax revenues from that surronding area.  There are plenty of 
existing developments where taxpayers have lived there for many many years and not getting improvements 
because tax dollars are going to support new developments.  This should be fair, existiing infrastructure 
improvement is as important or more important than new developments.  Fairness is the key here. 

Enough bike lanes already!!!!!!   STOP! 

Manage the natural growth of the county and build roads accordingly. 

BUT if the support of Activity Centers detracts from overall transportation developments across the region, I 
would strongly oppose the use of such funding at the expense of other projects. 
The emphasis of funding for bicycling across Travis Co at the expense of roadways is ludicrous. And I'm a bicyclist.  
Priority on roadways, rail, busing.... 
As I have a company with over 300 employees who must travel across Travis Co, Williamson and Hays Co., it is 
imperative that we work on long term traffic solution of intra and inter county travel.  Roads are the only answer 
for many individuals and companies.  We are not against alternatives, just not at the expense of realistic road 
projects.  and we do support rail. 

Travis County should sell the parcel it bought in downtown Austin and build the new courthouse in a more cost 
effective location.  That land should be sold to a private developer and returned to the tax rolls.  It is ridiculous 
that the County is that irresponsible with tax dollars. 

61

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Should participate in commuter light rail costs with City of Austin and Cap Metro to access the major work 
centers, ie downtown, state complex, and UT. 

I don't understand Activity Centers, but doubtful they will work in Austin. 

I don't trust the Commissioners to make the most taxpayer-beneficial decisions; too much influenced by 
developers. 

The activity center concept sounds like social engineering. Counties shouldn't be involved in land use, that is a 
municipal function. 

more legitimate and simple bike "superhighways" to get people from the outskirts into the urban core without 
interruption, danger or thinking much.  this will be the key to connecting the final mile or two between a 
destination and a rail service. 

the questions are too simplistic, as if what I want is significant re. where I CAN work, re. jobs 

If you are discussing existing Activity Centers I agree with most of the above, but its unclear.  Development will 
occur where land is least expensive or close to Activity Centers.  There is very little Counties can do to influence 
that growth.  Investments in transportation should be where known growth is occuring, and where employers are, 
are seem likely to locate.  Say, Parmer Lane east. 

I do not work so there questions do not apply. 

Any company or organization benefitting from an Activity Center should be required to pay for the use of the 
property. Taxpayers don't need to support more profit making businesses. In this area we are not hurting for 
viable businesses. 

It is my humble opinion that if you build a transportation corridor, the business will migrate to be near the 
corridor.  No need to lose tax money for that purpose.  Save it for something else. 

More busses, trains, and sidewalks please. 

MANCHACA TX NEEDS BUS SERVICE LOTS OF PEOPLE OUT HERE DON'T HAVE TRANSPORTATION AND THE 
NEAREST BUS STOP IS 5 MILES AWAY AT SLAUGHTER AND MANCHACA RD 

Do not use toll roads to solve transportation woes. 

The county should not be building or widening roads in environmentally sensitive areas. It is now well-established 
that adding untolled roadway capacity results in more trips being taken and does not "relieve" congestion. The 
county should focus on maintaining existing roadways and improving their efficiency while also creating more 
choices for residents by supporting biking, walking and transit use. Above all, the county should do what it can to 
support growth patterns like activity centers that are not auto-dependent. 

Household affordability should be calculated in terms of housing, transportation, and utility costs. 

"Activity Centers" is jargon terminology that is not useful for communicating with the public.  Anybody could take 
it to mean whatever they like. 

If traffic gets any worse, I will change my job before I change where I live.  These questions are trying to lead me a 
certain way and I do not want to justify any new taxes for individuals while developers get tax breaks and create 
more congestion without creating more infrastructure. 

We should develop centers, but not in rural areas like along 620 or SH 130. Centers should be mainly in existing 
urban area. We should prioritize transit access to and within centers. Minimize construction of new roads as much 
as possible. 

Congestion along 1626 is horrible and needs to be improved. 

If you allow new housing, you must provide roads to accommodate all these people.  I 45 extension is a must if 
you allow houses and apartments to be built in southern Travis County.  Already, we are grid locked...So stop the 
housing permits or put in roads..It is quite simple. 

Building more roads/expanding lanes is not the solution.  We cannot build our way out of congestion.  It is 
imperative to incentive development in these activity centers that supports alternative forms of transportation 
(bike, walk, transit)  and DISINCENTIVE development that perpetuates car dependency, in order to improve quality 
of life in the region and conserve our natural resources. 

Public transportation is a terrible waste of tax dollars. 

62

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Streets and highways must be connected and rerouted for efficient transportation BEFORE they are built or 
improved. 

The most important focus should be on improving, widening and creating new roads for cars. The congestion in 
our area is awful! 

Transportation, mainly lack of adequate roads is the biggest problem in Western Travis county and the Lakeway 
Area. 

People in Texas use cars....get used to it. 

Wheelchair travel on most city buses is cumbersome. Being required to raise the front seat and strap in a 
wheelchair forces the wheelchair user to become a burden on the driver and other riders. It also makes a 
spectacle of what should be a simple commute. Other large cities have purchased buses that allow a wheelchair 
user to simply board and exit on their own without any assistance--like non-disabled passengers. 

I don't believe development should continue down Hwy. 71 West into the Hill Country ...... we don't need busses, 
public transit, trails, bike paths, etc. 

Improve all main road corridors to/from Austin, north/south and east/west.  620 is a major mess as is MOPAC 
south of the river. 

There should be public transportation between Lakeway & downtown Austin. 

Your questions 7 and 8 are not specific enough.  Transportation corridors are already formed and they are the 
problem.  They are congested and will always remain so - even with public transit. Every major city in the world 
has congested roads regardless of its public transit systems, so it is disingenuous to think this will change.  My 
specific concern is RR620 because it is not designed for the current traffic load and I prefer a bypass of some sort 
somewhere other than Lakeway.  Travis County AND Lakeway should have master planned development by 
professional/national firms that know how to resolve these issues. 

I would like to have access to public transportation in Lakeway. Presently there is no way to get from Lakweay to 
downtown Austin or any other part of Austin unless one uses private transportation. 

Public transportation and bicycle transportation for daily commuting are unrealistic alternatives for most working 
adults. Using public transportation would not allow me to drop my children off on my way to work, or allow me 
the flexibility to leave work if they need me. In addition to those concerns, much of the year, it is simply too hot to 
bike to work and still present a professional appearance. 

Do not make tax incentives to large companies to locate in what should be protected Hill Country areas. 

Focus on the needs not the wants of the community. 

Please support improved infrastructure including a loop around Austin - the West side needs a new road to 
connect 45 for a loop.  Expanding 620 will only slightly improve our situation - right of ways would prove 
expensive.  Trying to change the population to accept Activity Centers is a waste of time.  Population is moving 
away from Downtown, not toward it.  The current CAMPO plan if completely done will fail according to all of the 
studies done.  Scrap it and look for new ways to improve traffic flow with grade separated roadways. 

My answers may sound contradictory but I don't want any new growth except for bikes, walking and running 
paths. 

Stop the growth in Travis County. The proposed RR 620 Corridor by Joe Bain is a joke 

Please do not invest in subways or light rail.  I worked for the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority 
(Washington, DC) for 20 years and saw first hand how extremely expensive they are relative to the number of 
people they service.  Expanding roads to accommodate cars is a MUCH better solution to transportation 
problems. 

Public transportation is non existent. Bus route to downtown Austin/UT area is a must to be able to commute and 
ease traffic in 620 (a nightmare ) and 71. 

RR 620 Corridor is not needed; another bridge over Lake Austin would be a disaster 

We need to have faster routes to downtown. There have been times I've been stuck in traffic on 2244 because 
there are no alternatives. Mass transit is a must for the future! 

63

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

I live in Lakeway.  We have two main routes into Austin and both are always bumper to bumper in the morning.  
We have NO public transportation into Austin.  NONE. 

no bike lanes on FM620 due to congestion 

Work with TxDOT to fix RR620 and RM 2222 congestion.  Take a lesson from Williamson and Hays Counties and 
spend county $$ to fix congestion on city and TxDOT roads. 

As a community we go overboard on our green and transit solutions.  It is a joke to spend so much per capita on 
light rail or the toll road corridor when the mass of the population does not live or travel in that area. 

620 traffic has gotten really awful so before more housing developments/apartment buildings are conceived a 
traffic plan needs to be developed to provide alternate routes 

Given the dispersed nature of county growth, only large-scale investment in a wide-ranging bus system would 
provide any significant improvement to road/traffic congestion.  Such a system is especially needed to bring low-
wage earners to the abundant service jobs increasingly difficult to fill in western Travis. 

need to have public transportation to austin from lakeway 

Because of the growth of population that Travis County continues to promote here, I've thought about moving toa 
less congested area. The only reasons I have not is because, I'd like to finish my college and my fiancé loves the 
greenbelt. I use to love going on a drive through down town Austin 6 years ago. I do everything I can to stay away 
from that area now, because of the traffic. The population has become too much. Pretty soon it'll be like 
Sacramento and San Francisco in California. The next stage would be close to Los Angeles. I've lived around all 
three of these areas and, honestly,  attracting tourist is OK, but stop, please stop, allowing more, apartments, and 
high rise condos (that are way too expensive and ugly) that take away the natural Beauty and will bring this county 
to a place to be even harder to get around in. 

I support Activity Centers only as as they originate and grow organically as dictated by free market influences.  
Government should not be allowed to pick winners and losers. 

Make rail airport accessible! 

Traffic on Ranch Rd. 620 is getting worse every day, more roadways to and from the Lakeway area are greatly 
needed. 

Build or improve roads where the traffic is.  Let people make their own choices of where they live. 

I have asked Mr. Jones twice, several years ago, about bus transportation or carpool. He told me twice he was not 
interested in bus or van transportation and that I should advertise on my own. 

shoulder should be marked appropriately so people do not use them as turning lanes when bikes may be present 
and other people are turning from the right hand travel lane. Example on RR620 in Lakeway at Lohman's crossing 
(both sides of the road) and at Lohman's spur. Also turning right into Target, in Bee Cave. 

All new developments need to have an accessment charged to it based on how it and any additional phases of 
that development will impact the roads connecting it the traffic system. As the phases of construction start, 
monies should be deposited with County transportation department. That money will be spent only on identified 
improvements to asymilate that phase to the traffic system. Potential tax base income increase based on property 
tax revenue increase should be considered when calculating the accessment to the developer. The goal is to 
identify impact, cost to accommodate impact, specify dollars needed to relieve impact to traffic system, collect as 
previously discussed and construct improvements immediately. 

It is important to me to prioritize transportation funding to address air quality problems in the region. 

I would love a shorter commute, but I had to move to where the schools are decent (not the case with AISD). I 
would love to use public transportation, but those options are nonexistent in Western Travis County. I would love 
to be able to walk to places, but most Texans seem to hate the very idea of both public transportation and 
walking. 

Travis County and City of Austin need to support and help fund TxDot improvements to Loop 360, 620, 2222, 71, 
and 290. 

64

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

You need to prioritize funding for the 620 corridor now.  We cannot wait until 2040 for a solution.  There are many 
options like widening roads, adding turn control medians, converting to curb & gutter that will help traffic flow.  I 
have lived in Lakeway for 15 years, little has been done on this road to help with the congestion and our 
population has almost quadrupled in that time frame.  There are several areas between Lohman's Crossing and 
Lakeway Blvd, that are very dangerous at peak times, especially around the post office. 

Would really like a bus system connecting Lakeway...my young adult daughter has a disability and can't drive. 

I would like to see Travis County study successful bicycle transportation plans around the nation and the globe.  
Bicycles are part of the solution to the obesity problem and traffic congestion and should be a sizable part of 
Austin's infrastructure. 

No more toll roads.  Use our tax dollars for toads 

It's it true this region has spent more on roads than any other region on the country? If so, let's try to spend more 
money on alternatives. 

Fast trains needed, metro type, more fast buses. 

There should be development right exchanges so that landowners outside of activity centers can transfer 
development rights to developers within activity centers. This might create broader acceptance of concentrating 
development. 

There has to be solutions for the I35 mess around downtown. There's also the on and off ramp for 183/35 which is 
INSANE. I live 20 mins from work when there isn't traffic, 40 minutes when there is, and it would take me 2 hours 
to ride the bus. That's unacceptable. Thank God I'm not totally poor. 

No more privately owned toll roads, we need to stop selling our infrastructure 

I'm retired - travel to work is a non-issue for me, but I'd like convenient access to non-work necessities - grocery 
store, medical. 

Need less investments in roads and highways, and more investments in public transit. Have to make tough 
decisions for the long term. 

I have no idea what you are talking about in question 9  - you need to briefly describe these jargon laden options 
in order to actually get public opinion on the best ones....... 

The county needs more transit to connect different parts of the county to one another so individuals can travel 
across the county in a seamless manner. 

Development needs to focus in infill of areas already developed to create a more dense urban core. The county 
should limit development in unincorporated areas, and instead focus on conservation of those areas. The county 
should not use my tax dollars to promote development in unincorporated areas. Period. Development along 
SH130 makes some sense, however it needs to take into account preservation of prime farmland, much of which 
lies in or near that corridor. 

when building new roads or up grading old one, the County should look to the use of elevated roadways  at major 
intersections to speed traffic along. Look at Florida 17 in Clearwater Florida as an example of the concept. 

What the hell is an "activity center"? You act like regular people understand what you are talking about. We don't. 

Bicycles sould have to pay a vehicle registration as well if they are going to be using the roads most of the road 
ways are payed by vehicle registration and taxes and sould only be used by registered taxed vehicles 

Bus route up and down Bee Caves Rd. from Bee Cave/Galleria areas to existing CapMetro stops at Walsh Tarleton/ 
Bee Caves Rd., Barton Creek Mall, as well as selected stops at retail sites in Rollingwood, is a big priority. 
Stops should be at residential developments, retail sites where there are signal lights for crossing Bee Caves Rd. 
and Route 71 to retail area across 71 from Gallerua. 
The more the community ages, the more necessary bus routes will be, to give potentially unsafe drivers the 
oppirtunity to " age in pkace" in their homes, take short safe walks to buses for exercise, and renain independent. 
The Silver Tsunami is already here. 

We cannot even let our kids walk up our street because of the high-speed through traffic.  Sidewalks and 
pedestrian-friendly speed limits in existing communities are very important, 

65

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Support Impact Fees for developers who bring in hundreds + homes dumping commute traffic + school traffic + 
regular traffic on 2 land winding county roads.  Developers should be responsible for assisting/providing for 
adequate public roadways to their new subdivisions rather than expecting other property owners to foot "their" 
bill/new residents/profit margin. 

Devellopment should have to limit irrigation and new housing should only be drip irrigation  to hep reduce 
evaporative losses. 

620 needs a major overhaul in the area of Anderson mill and 2222. 

The steps to building should begin from the bottom:  grid patterned development with sidewalks for pedestrians, 
bicycle lanes, buses, then roadways. 

The Manor commuter bus needs to connect with the North Austin Transit Center. 

The issue with activity centers is that the City of Austin has annexed them all.  We need activity centers that also 
include areas in the unincorporated areas. 

Mass transit should be a planning priority. I personally see greatest benefits from rail, bicycle, and pedestrian 
improvements. Transportation funds should be used to create more bike and pedestrian paths as these are much 
less expensive. These paths should also be completely separate from car roadways, which should result in more 
people using them, fewer carbon emissions, and better health. Money towards car roadways in high density areas 
should de-emphasize cars by utilizing speed decreasing infrastructure and empower the pedestrian with wider 
sidewalks, etc. 

Special consideration should be given to the elderly and the difficulty for the elderly to be mobile, transport 
packages, shop and keep medical appointments. Most elderly prefer independence rather than dependency on 
providers yet need careful, innovative, thought given to the above difficulties. 

Instead of accommodating cars (more roads and parking lots), spend the money on accommodating commuters 
and pedestrians! 
Cars are dangerous, polluting, and destroy social habitat. 

STOP OVER DEVELOPING AUSTIN!!!! 

It is very important to also work with other governmental entities to leverage resources and dollars to accomplish 
these goals. 

I strongly support focusing growth in activity centers. 

More development like The Triangle & The Domain (but with an Austin / Local vibe). 

Activity centers create super congestion even if they protect land.  Witness Austin's changes in the last ten years.  
Constant road construction, street detours, lane changes due to construction and "densifying."  Makes 
everywhere a pain in the rear to get to.  I totally hate new bus lanes on the only major north/south streets in 
downtown (Guadalupe/Lavaca) and refuse to ever take the bus again.  Not your problem I know.  Please don't 
create this sort of issue for the rest of Travis County. 

Transportation in this state is disastrous.  There has obviously been no long term planning & the only solution 
appears to be flyovers.  Every city should have a long term plan.  Road reserves should be planned & mapped for 
long term expansion.  The absence of sidewalks & pedramps (despite the 1992 Disabilities Act) demonstrates an 
absence of leadership.  TXDot needs exposure to developments in modern cities & to recruit specialists in various 
aspects of transportation.    (Transportation is more than filling potholes.)  Also, City lifestyles have changed & 
public transportation must be expanded & employee commute options explored. The pick-up replaced the buggy, 
but we're not in 1820 any more.  Transportation is time, time is money.  This poor transportation system will 
render the state uncompetitive in the future. 

No more roads. No more sprawl. Infill central Austin. 

66

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Travis County should not be encouraging more growth on the fringes of the current urbanized area. That is 
essentially business as usual. Instead, the county should focus on working with cities, especially Austin, to create 
infill development on the sea of surface parking lots and big box stores that currently blights our corner of the 
world. There is plenty of space within the current urbanized area to avoid greenfield development entirely. The 
question is whether that space will be used. Higher taxes levied on lots held mostly vacant and hostage by 
speculators in central locations could advance this cause. Increase the tax rate on land value and decrease the tax 
rate on improvements to accomplish this. 

Your focus on roads is short-sighted. We don't need more roads designed to foster sprawl, and we don't need to 
encourage growth along 130 and 620 if it's not happening organically. We need to build Austin up as a dense, 
walkable city. Travis County should support that goal by NOT building more useless sprawling roads and instead 
prioritizing bike paths and making our current roads more conducive to walkable development. An example would 
be more bike lanes, more sidewalks, and investing in road connectivity - reconnecting the grid wherever possible 
to make traffic flow better. 

More oversight of small municipalities. 

A working rail system that is woven throughout the county would be excellent and reduce road congestion 

Retired. I don't travel to work. 

I have not had the opportunity to research the Activity Center concept. 
As a longtime resident of Austin, it has become absolutely impossible to drive on the roads. The most important 
issue to me is transit other than car; bike, bus, subway/commuter rail. Roads are so clogged and congested that 
people have got to get out of their cars if this city is ever to be a truly robust hub. 

Regional commuter rail is essential to address the 86% of traffic congestion that is generated locally during peak 
hours. We need viable alternatives other than just roads. There isn't enough concrete and asphalt, and available 
space in the world to address the needs. 

The Manor commuter bus needs to connect with the North Austin Transit Center. 

I am a farmer and only commute to do deliveries or farmer's markets. I need my truck and can't deliver using 
public transportation. I do want a commuter train from Austin to Manor and Elgin. I would use this for non work 
related commuting and believe this would relieve car traffic for work commuters along 290 and thusly in Austin. 

I believe if a developer is going to build and make a profit then he should build in what is needed for his 
development.  I do not believe that should be the counties responsibility.  this includes roadways into his 
development. 

Focus on improving already existing community areas and access to them. 

Stop wasting taxpayer money on frivolous activites like: •Item 26: Authorize a $1.2 million agreement for artwork 
at the Consolidated Rental Car Facility at Austin-Bergstrom International Airport. 
•Item 67: Sign contracts with Planned Living Assistance Network of Central Texas and Caritas of Austin to provide 
life skill training and classes to people in need for a total of six years for $2.17 million (please let private charities 
take care of this). 

I want to BIKE TO WORK , I WANT TO BIKE TO THE GROCERY STORE !!!! Can we become an active community ? 

Against activity centers.  Against paying for alternative forms of transportation.  For driving and roads.  Please 
quite pushing progressive agenda on us. 

Activity centers are just a buzzword for more development. Growth needs to be severely limited and discouraged 
as much as possible. Not building more roads, schools, etc. would discourage growth 

Build the roads BEFORE developments take place. 

Austin is not Portland Oregon. Few bikers are actually biking to work because of our hot weather. 

67

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

I don't mind taking a combination of bike & bus routes to work, but the bike routes can be scary! Currently I do 
more bike riding to events instead of commuting to work. 
Would like to see more separated bike paths (see Denver, CO's example of the E470 & Platte River trails) for 
transportation. 
Also, the COTA track did very little to put in bike lanes - I know this may not be your jurisdiction, but jeez! I can't 
belive it was ignored. 

Time to right size roadways... return neighborhood streets to two lanes... correct markings on pavement or make 
islands/round a bouts... Encourage pedestrian and biking in a safe environment. Control speeding vehicles by 
making roads winding and use medians... 

The length of my commute to work is an important factor in deciding where I work, not where I live. 

Yes to supporting development along 130 bc it is controlled access. No to supporting development along 620 bc it 
is already a safety disaster as uncontrolled access. 

I feel strongly that new developments should be designed with a variety of transportation modes in mind, not just 
reliance on cars. We cannot afford to let sprawling bedroom communities reinforce already bad traffic patterns. I 
love that I can commute 5 minutes from my central home to work, and more people need to have that option. 

infracture projects to be from appropriate funding sources... i.e. roads from gas tax and vehilce registrations.. bike 
paths from bike tax and bicylce registration tax (so if none, then none).. plain and simple...  NO more peter 
pan...(i.e, no more 'rob peter, to pay paul')... 

VHS access is congested  
Steiner Ranch needs more emergency exits 

Retrofitting old neighborhoods to be activity centers and old roads to be transportation corridors are actions I 
strongly disagree with. I am in favor of the activity center concept in areas where the other transportation options 
are more easily implemented. Changing Burnet Rd to accommodate bike lanes, for example, has created a more 
dangerous roadway for cars and cyclists (who I never see biking in those bike lanes anyway) and the added 
congestion from the "density" projects in this area have made it very difficult to get around. The idea of urban 
density only works when there is existing alternative transportation available that actually works for the people 
living there. Now we just have more traffic than the roads can handle and it takes me 40 minutes to get home 
from work - this is a 6 mile trip from downtown to Crestview. 

Travis County needs to put some emphasis on protecting and restoring Blackland prairie.  Government agencies 
and the conservationists in general tend to ignore the need for restoration of some prairie in favor of protecting 
the Hill Country.  In other words, don't sacrifice the east for the west, one ecosystem (largely destroy -- Blackland 
prairie) for one that is already highly protected (Hill Country through preserve lands, water quality lands, and 
federal wildlife refuge.)      
Development questions should have somehow gotten at water conservation issues and failed to do so. 

More bike lanes please! 

I strongly advocate public transportation. Austin needs better transport with rail reaching all areas of the city. 

Bus servive is needed in this area. 

Public Transportation in Travis county is insufficient, so car traffic will continue to grow and clog all roads in the 
area with traffic. 
Public Transportation should be separated from car traffic. Corridors for mass transit rail systems, subways,  and 
buses is the best solution to the traffic problem.  Separate bike ways, completely isolated from car traffic would 
provide safe passage for bicycle commuters. 

Beware of developers who promise to abide by a contract with the city, then do whatever they please. 

The light rail and other public mass transit developments should go in existing high density corridors like 
North/South Lamar. 

Need to fix up RM620/FM2222/LOOP360 

620/2222 is exremely congested. Publoc transportation into town woyld significantly reduce the congestion. 

68

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Development in highly congested areas should be discouraged until a transportation plan is both planned and 
funded (ex, 620 at 2222) 

Home/apartment Developers should be required to participate in funding for infrastructure to support their 
developments - water, roads, schools, etc 

Please help the Four Points area. This area cannot be supported with the same roads used in the 1960's. 

I will restate that the lack of roads in the Four Points area is decades behind the development that was allowed to 
happen. Austin has never kept up with traffic demands, but has encouraged more and more people to move here. 
You can't keep selling seats to the show if it is sold out. You must build roads or halt development. 

We need someone to pay attention to the Four Points area!  This community does not want more building - we 
need more roads...but of course I'm sure the salamander is hanging out where the road need to go right next to 
the new 500 new apartments! 

Stop wasting taxpayer money trying to social engineer the population and focus on the needs of the citizens.  We 
do not need buses in our area, they are always completely empty.  Budget the mass transit funds to build roads! 

It was awful getting to work when two people share one car. If we ever had an accident,  we'd be done. 

Please stop building before road improvements are made to the area in which the building will take place. The 
increase in apartments, homes, business' that have been approved and built without a single improvement to 
roads was and is wrong for all the people living  and working in the area. 620/2222 is proof that the care in the 
safety for humans means less than all money these developers can make. Development can be so fantastic if it is 
done correctly. Stop and fix the roads first! 

Please please help fix the traffic mess on 620 especially at Four points. Coming out of 620 to four points. And 
coming back up 2222 towards 620. Thanks!! 

Growth does not need to be incentivized in the Travis County area. The money for the infrastructure in the SH130 
area has already been spent, the excellent road system over there is incentive enough for employers and 
developers to locate there.  
Western Travis County needs to play catch-up and CAMPO needs to determine how, when and where to place 45 
on the western and southern side of the city.  
Further improvements to 183 and I35 need to be made to fix the traffic problems in downtown. Here is an idea - 
what if Travis County were to pay the tolls for trucks to bypass I35 via SH130 - on a trial basis to see the impact 
this would have on I35 traffic. 

When you say 'private-public partnership' all I see is tax payers getting fleeced while a corporation takes home all 
the profits; just like is happening on many of our toll roads. We pony up the capital, they take home the profits. 
Please don't fall into the same trap as TxDOT has. 

I would never live in a neighborhood that is not buyable or bikeable, and I dislike visiting them, or spending money 
in them. 

better and wider roads - traffic is unsustainable - reality is that people who live more than 2 miles outside of 
downtown will drive - so support that reality. 

We need to to have left turn lanes on 1431 and Lohmans as well as traffic signals at Park and 1431, 
Main(Jonestown) and 1431, Lake Oaks and 1431(Jonestown) Ridgeview Road and 1431 Lago, Run traffic Study... 

Improve the nightmare that is 620 at 7am and 4pm. 

Please allocated funding and expedite fixed to the mess that exists on 620 and particularly at 620&2222. There are 
many downtown commuters using 2222 and more parents and students trying to get to Vandegrift HS. If a parent 
leaves Steiner Ranch after 7:15AM on a school day, they must allow almost an hour to get their child to school and 
return home. Yes, I support riding the bus and send my own kids on the bus but there are days that they must 
arrive early for band or sports. The commute is ridiculous and it could be fixed with road improvements. VHS has 
been open for five years and there is still a single turn lane to get off of 2222 and a single turn lane from McNeil to 
turn on to 2222? Why? 

We need more rail. Cross town. West side (N to S). 

69

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Please help us solve the horrific traffic conditions at the 620/2222 area. Coming from Los Angeles, it is shameful to 
see this disorganized and often dangerous traffic. Help!! 

I like this idea of focusing development on Activity Centers, I just don't know how you prevent 
growth/development between them. 

It is not feasible for most people to bike or walk to work in the Texas heat. Expecting people to is unrealistic, 
especially when most people (like myself) need to present a professional appearance while at work. I don't have a 
shower or convenient place to change clothes at work. And I can't roll up dress clothes in a backpack and still look 
presentable. 

Commuting from Steiner Ranch has become dramatically worse over the last five years.  Given the growth in the 
area, this is going to get worse before it gets better. Improvements need to be prioritized now and projects need 
to start to stop from getting further behind.  As a 15 year resident of Steiner Ranch, traffic is the one reason that 
has made us start thinking about leaving the area. 

We need a  north-south bridge across Lake Travis, probably west of Pace Bend. 

No need for public transportation options, just better through way on existing or additional roads. 

Not everyone wears tight pants, sports handle bar mustaches and claims to be gluten free - the rest of us have to 
pay for their hipster ways - like bike lanes, boardwalks and a slew of other nice-to-haves. Start requiring 
developers to civet the cost of captial improvements. 

The first priority needs to be improvement of existing roads to move the volume of traffic - there are 
developments underway that will put an even greater strain on the 620/2222 corridors and the roads are already 
overtaxed 

Re-assess the traffic light times to make them last longer for traffic during peak hours. Especially between 360 and 
620 on 2222 

The infrastructure, or lack thereof, in the unicorporated area of Travis County in which I live should be trying to 
catch up with the growth out here. We are tired of paying taxes that don't support our community (and we vote!) 

Infrastructure needs to support current population centers as well as plan for new growth.  Tens of thousands of 
individuals aren't suddenly going to move to an "activity center".  "Activity centers" are a 30 year plan.  County 
needs to deal with current issues NOW!  Don't use current tax payer money on theoretical when they sit in traffic 
for an hour. 

We desperately need improvements & public transportation into DT Austin from 2222 

While I support the idea of Activity Centers as part of future planning, funding for these should not take away 
from addressing current transportation issues and need for more roads. 

Widen 620 to account fOr growth 

It is important to me that my children have a safe place to drive as they learn to drive and not have to navigate 
such confusing and unnecessary traffic. 

I don't really understand this Activity Center. If it's trying to build mini-downtowns to concentrate homes and 
businesses together, I don't think that is a good strategy for resolving traffic issues or conserving land. People in 
Travis County live where they live and work where they work. If their job changes, they are unlikely to move 
homes to be closer to work. Employment changes too frequently to base where you live on where you work. 
There are also households where 2 people work, so the location is based on 2 work locations. I just don't see the 
'if you build it they will come' here. 

We need more bike trails. 

Need to fix the traffic at 620 and 2222 ASAP 

Transportation must be senior friendly. 

I don't know enough about Activity Centers to offer a real assessment. This is the first I've heard of them. 
Therefore, I'm neutral on the subject. 

Work harder to get Rollingwood to add stop. Or make mall stop or Walsh Talrtlon stop more connective.(Westlake 
area) 

70

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Development cannot come without the necessary infrastructure to guarantee safety of our children.  The situation 
@ 620 and 2222 is unsafe for young drivers 

The 620/2222 corridor MUST be fixed.  This area is a complete mess and impacting a large population in western 
Travis County.  Please help! 

Please do something to alleviate the dangerous and horrific traffic on 620!! 

Trains are built all over the world to facilitate transportation. Surely Travis County can figure out how to construct 
a system here. 

So what if biking  and pedestrian transportation are simply unfeasible in the corridor? 

Need to fix traffic flow issues at 620/2222 and on 2222 near river place and the high school. 

There are too many incomplete roads that will allow for thoroughfares. As well, there MUST be a compromise on 
these protected land areas. Otherwise Austin will come to a standstill with all of the increased populations, new 
housing communities and resulting traffic from it. 

Develop parks and libraries in unincorporated distericts of Travis County. 

The morning and evening commute along the 620/2222 corridor is frankly, atrocious.  It affects everyone for hours 
per day:kids getting to school, parents going to work, getting to late-day activities, etc.  I'm very concerned for 
property values in Steiner- people are relocating away from Steiner, just because if traffic. 

all new and improved roads should have bike lanes and pedestrian sidewalks! This should be a requirement in 
public and private developments. 

Stop building multi unit buildings and strip malls where the infrastructure can't handle it 

Need to build roads where people want to live, not just to government preferred activity centers. 

Need to develop more east-west connections 

We are way behind in our infrastructure - need better roads structured transportation. 

Cost is the primary factor in deciding where to live. The suburbs are cheaper and you get more for your money. I 
support rail. I will not ride buses. I want transit that does not get stuck in traffic with cars. Maybe buses that run 
on HOV or toll lanes. I support toll roads. I support roadways that may involve construction over sensitive areas, 
however good construction and drainage practices to prevent decimation of resources are a must. Developers 
should be responsible for protecting,not just mitigating. 

Build the roads to support the growth. 

more companies should allow workers to work from home to avoid traffic congestion. workers who need to 
commute should be allowed to have "flex" hours.  If there were "flex" hours, county/city offices could open before 
8 and stay open past 5...that way, if people had to work specifically from 8-5, they would be able to get things 
done before or after work 

I do not want to see public monies go towards any development of, or around, toll roads.  These roads & 
developments such as Activity Centers must be kept funded separately.  Developments in those areas should 
come out of toll revenue, not general revenue. City Planning should dictate how developments are done.  Taxes 
should not be used as incentives until we find a more progressive tax system.  Property taxes are too high and 
extremely regressive! 

I DO NOT support encouraging increased density "Activity Centers" on already severely overcrowded roads in our 
Western area of town along 2222, 620, 2244 and 71 UNLESS coupled with significant and appropriate roadway 
expansion, and roads must always come first. 

Travis County should focus on planning for multiple modes of transportation infrastructure (both in existing 
communities and in newly planned communities)PRIOR TO recruiting high-density development.  Do not give 
incentives to new developments or employers if you do not have the infrastructure to accommodate the growth 
already planned or in place.  Stop taking traffic surveys in the "summer" or during "school breaks"; these 
measures are false representations of traffic in the Austin area. 

Additional roads are needed in western Travis county.  Both North/south and east/west directions.  Funding the 
extension of the 45 toll road from 183 to highway 71 was needed years ago and should not wait any longer.   Once 
business start moving away because of traffic congestion with no hope of fixing the problem.....Austin will loose 

71

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

More bike lanes like along Guadalupe with a barrier of parking spaces between car traffic and bike traffic to 
protect cyclists. 

What are you doing to make Hamilton Pool Road safer?  I understand it is a State road but it affects safety for 
those in western Travis County and you keep approving new development on a road not built to support it.  Who 
is responsible for coordinating development growth with the State? 

Development should not be approved on roads that cannot handle the added traffic created by the new 
development.  Road improvement should be approved and moving forward before new development that will 
bring added traffic is approved.  Hamilton Pool Road is a case in point.  No road improvements are being made (or 
planned insofar as I am aware) yet more and more development is taking place along the corridor.  An unsafe 
situaiton has been created by adding more and more homes (an commuters) along the road without planning for 
the future. 

Kill the Stroads  
http://www.strongtowns.org/journal/2013/3/4/the-stroad.html  

More public transportation in the eastern part of county, especially the 130/290 area. 

Build denser closer in. Protect the outlining areas by NOT BUILDING ROADS THERE. 

It is a huge personal priority of mine to find ways to make the Bee Cave area more bike and pedestrian friendly. 

Austin used to be a great place to live, but there are too many people here now and not enough open spaces and 
property taxes are too high. 

Utilize the Envision Central Texas "vision" in developing policies and regulations, and cooperate/"link up" with the 
Imagine Austin plan vision (including continuing designated transit transportation corridors out into the county, 
past City of Austin city limits). 

"Compact and Connected" is one of the keys to a healthier future for Travis County. 

Existing roadways have not been improved to handle the increase in traffic.  Dangerous road conditions are not 
being addressed 

People on the east side need walking/biking paths more than those on the west side. People on the west side can 
afford to drive, the east side struggles more and have to walk on streets without sidewalks to get to the store, bus 
stop, park, etc... Look at Westlake drive (no path) and then look at Greg Manor. More people (many children) walk 
on  Greg Manor because they don't have a ride/car, etc.... Rarely anyone walks on Westlake Dr, because they will 
almost alway have transportation available. I once saw a man and a woman on a very dangerous stretch of road 
after dark. (It was winter and so it was only around 6:15- 6:30 or so... ) their car had broken down and they had to 
take the bus to work. It was about 3 or 4 mile walk from the bus stop to their subdivision. They could ride a bike, 
one because they were too old, and two because it says NO BiKING on the only stretch of road between the bus 
stop and their subdivision. That is FUCKED UP. 

Improve the roads and make them safe for individually driven automobiles before you spend one dollar to 
encourage more cars to drive on 2222 and 620.  High density "Activity Centers" Do Not solve the problem.  They 
will bring more people who will drive their cars in our area.  Do NOT add more TPD's to these dangerously 
overcrowded roadways.  Spend the money first to mitigate the existing danger.  Human lives are at risk. 

620/2222 is heavy car dependant and there are many teenage drivers due to so many schools located in this area. 
This congested area is an unsafe commute. Please allocate $$ and solutions to this area quickly. 

Water availability needs to be considered as future development is planned.  Rice farming should not be a priority 
use of water.  The area is naturally too arid to support this form of agriculture. 

Once again it appear as though you are attempting to limit the growth that is going to come regardless.  That is a 
recipe for disaster. 

We need road improvements in the Four Points and along 620.  Traffic is so congested it has caused us and many 
to consider moving to other cities outside of Austin.  Long-term plans are needed ASAP with real solutions that 
apply to the majority of people.  Expensive mass transit that will not be utilized is a waste of tax payers money.  
We need real solid solutions. 

72

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.strongtowns.org/journal/2013/3/4/the-stroad.html


 
 

Travis County needs to do more to improve the roads.  Cars are the number one mode of transportation and have 
been ignored for too long.  Improve the roads and good things will happen.  Ignore them and commutes become 
intolerable and economic development will be hampered. 

Instead of trying to micromanage the growth in Austin, why don't you try to deal with it in creative ways.  For 
years all the new migration into town has been along the 620 corridor.  Even the Statesman noted that years ago.  
Nothing has been done.  There is no reason 620 and 2222 cannot be made into 6 lane roads like Parmer. 

Walking, biking, and taking transit are paramount. Development (location of businesses and services) needs to 
happen in places that are reachable by transit (activity centers), and most of all roadways MUST be constructed as 
Complete Streets so that EVERYONE can use the roadway, whether they are in a motor vehicle, in a wheelchair, on 
a bus, walking, or bicycling. 

I would like to see alternatives to driving alone made available for commuters from outside Austin to reach work 
in Austin.   Public transport into the city or incentives to employers to place their offices closer to the commuters 
residences.  
Don't ruin Austin trying to get more commuters into downtown. 

Build roads and bikeways that move people. Look at building bikepaths through preserve land to keep bikers safe 
and allow many that dont, to ride bikes to work.  Many would if it were safer.  Also city offices should not be in 
Business centers if land is too expensive.  Taxpayer money should not be wasted just to give government 
employees access to trains etc. Trains should be used to move everyone and if everyone doesnt benefit, they 
should not be used. Spend the money on roads if a plan cannot be enacted. 

Fix the current, congested roads that we all use everyday before anything else. The traffic is out of control 

We should invest in roads along the ECT preferred growth corridor and, we should let it be known that 
conservation lands and environmentally sensitive areas are not preferred for commuters. 

no 

Let's live and work close to home, see our neighbors as we trasit, have time to walk neighborhoods, shop and buy 
in stores that we can walk to or take a bus. 

Need a bus route on Springdale Rd. Through Walnut creek area. Install speed bumps in Walnut creek area of 
Ferguson Rd.. 

Quit spending money 

Let the market decide where people live.  Central planning has never worked (example, USSR). 

Why don't you guys concentrate on roads, police and fire departments? Those are the things you need to be 
doing. Leave the sexy social engineering experiments in California were they belong. People there seem to not 
mind when you waste their money. 

The county should encourage development or commuter rail on all major corridors to include I-35, US 290, and SH 
71. 

Limit the growth where these activity centers are not feasible. I live in rural part of county on acreage in the 
county and do not want to see these housing developments come in and tear up and monopolize the roads we 
currently have as traffic is bad enough already. I do not understand how when we  are in severe drought that this 
building is not being limited. Where do people think the water is going to come from to maintain the growth? I 
have lived out here for 30 years and moved out here to have a peaceful lifestyle and  to appreciate the quality of 
life in a rural area. 

Travis County has no discernible traffic control. A simple thing like timing traffic lights would be a great 
improvement. 

Sidewalks need to be the top priority for non-road connectivity.  Many more people are able to use sidewalks than 
those able to bike. 

grouping walking and biking could be misleading since I believe sidewalks should precede bikeways which require 
significantly more impervious cover and roadway space. 

Please make every effort to communicate the fact that focusing our development in activity centers is the only 
way to save our open space, parkland, and farmland. 

73

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

We ask that Barton Creek and its tributaries (including Little Barton Creek and Rocky Creek) be included in the 
watersheds to be protected under the Land, Water and Transportation Plan. 

Travis County is growing and we need to exhaust all other options before we build new roads anywhere. We need 
to stop any toll roads. We need to build a rail system to move people comfortably and quickly and we need to get 
started. We are thirty years behind on getting a rail system in this area. 

There is a lot of potential for Travis Coubty to be the leader in bike and pedestrian friendly travel. 

More light rail! Buy the MOPAC line and turn it into the commuter rail we need! 

Why keep approving development when the existing roadways can not handle the current volume of traffic!  If a 
developer wants to build they should be required to contribute to roadway improvements. 

We need to curb growth,  Travis county is getting too many people.  We do not need more people. We do not 
have enough water for them.  In fact, we have no more water for them at all. 

I don't think that businesses will need incentives to locate in these activity centers if they are designed in a way 
that it makes sense for the market. I generally commute by bicycle in work and non-work activities and believe 
more people would do so if they could interact less with motorized traffic. More money should be put into 
dedicated and protected bikeways that are ample and surfaced to attract more users, rather than put into more 
roads and highways. The cost for infrastructure development is way less and the pay off high on many levels (e.g., 
human and environmental health). 
Public transportation is also critical, as not everyone will be comfortable riding bikes. Our reliance on cars must be 
minimized for improved quality of life in this region. 

I moved to the country to live in the country. I am not interested in it becoming incorporated as a part of the city. 

We need to focus more on providing excellent walking, bicycling, and transit access from "day one" in new 
developments. 

Bike and walking facilities are VERY important 

More separated bike paths please, more coordination of land use and transportation, more density in activity 
centers 

Tax developers so they are helping pay for infrastructure needed to support their developments. 

Building infrastructure to allow the use of bicycles (includes electric assisted bicycles) will give people the option 
to not use an automobile which is expensive and causes traffic congestion. It will encourage a healthy and active 
population. Electric assisted bicycles make travel of 5, 10, 15, 20 miles much more realistic, in our hot climate, and 
at 20mph top speed speed, they need separated infrastructure to operate safely, rather than on roads with high 
speed autos. These ebikes have immense potential to provide an excellent means of transportation, but only if our 
gov'ts allow non-auto transportation by providing safe infrastructure.  We don't have the money or resources to 
continue to allow our growing population to travel by auto everywhere, without congestion, pollution and 
casualties caused by the auto-dependent society. We do have the money and resources to build a much more 
sustainable bicycle transportation network. Thank you. 

Please withdraw support for SH 45 SW and invest Travis County's tax dollars in ways that benefit Travis County 
residents. 

I would like to see activity centers with good bicycle and transit connections all throughout the metro area.   
Sort of what the Mueller Development is like but with even better bicycle and transit access and new urbanism.   
Protected bike lanes and separated paths that connect residences, businesses, schools, and shopping so that 
people of all ages feel safe riding. 

It's all about having options for trips based on time and distance constraints. 

More funds allocated to ensure local roadways and sidewalks are maintained on an annual basis. Finding 
continuous sidewalks in my area is a huge problem. They start and stop randomly and the ones in my immediate 
area are in such poor shape they are unusable. Would prefer to see more money and work put into making the 
whole of the city accessible to pedestrians and cyclists who would prefer to not ride on the road. 

Austin cycling routes have improved dramatically in recent years, but are still nowhere near where they need to 
be. 

74

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Create bicycle infrastructure that can split mode-share 50:50. 

Studies have shown that adding roads or lanes only temporarily reduces traffic congestion and that the new 
infrastructure quickly refills to (and beyond) capacity with new users; transit is a more effective investment. 

Having Complete Streets built for all roadway users, including bicyclists and pedestrians, is important to me and 
for all roadways and development in Travis County.  I support the adoption of a Vision Zero policy in Austin, and 
state-wide. 

Alternative and mass transit systems are the key to building urban density 

Development that covers the recharge zone of our water supplies is Not Acceptable.  The higher demand for 
water with increasing population and the aridification in Central Texas demands support for our underground 
aquifers.  Support and develop heathly, sustainable communites that work for future generations and preserve 
the unique Hill Country landscape. 

More hiking and bike trails. 

Travis County should Partner with TxDOT & COA to make FM1325 Bike friendly noth of Duval to Round Rock. 

It is high time to make strong efforts to encourage people to use non-automotive transportation, and to make 
bus, bike, and foot more rewarding choices. My tax dollars should be used to promote the kind of development 
that will allow people to choose to not drive a car everywhere they go. 

More frequent buses that run later. More protected bike lanes. A protected bike lane on East Riverside 

We desperately need more and better bike lanes/thoroughfares, improved/completed sidewalks for those who 
cannot ride bikes, and MOST of all, education to the public on the rules and safety of sharing roadways with 
bicyclists! 

Please move forward with the Bike Master Plan. 

More bike trails please. 

What about rail? 

I hope there can be more coordination between the County and City of Austin as it relates to public 
transportation. 

We need more night owl buses and more frequent service in general - also more options for vanpools and getting 
to San Antonio, Dallas and Houston - give people incentives/ tax breaks to use public transportation 

More safe bicycle route away from traffic 

keep developing rail access and extend rail days/hours of operation 

Fund more separated bike facilities and off street paths. Focus on activity centers 

The key to Austins traffic problem is getting cars off the road.  You can only do that if there are other VIABLE 
options.  Bus's, bike lanes, etc.  People who use those methods of transport do all of Austin a huge favor. 

Clearly a multi-modal solution to transportation is needed. The degree to which the county can actually have an 
impact on where job centers end up is unclear but partnerships with surrounding cities and counties, as well as 
groups like the Chamber of Commerce, can help our entire region have a more coherent growth strategy rather 
than "every jurisdiction for itself" and Travis County can help be a leader in this regard. 

Increased accommodation/infrastructure for bike roads would be preferred 

I cannot support the activity center concept if you insist on targeting areas like Four Points and Lakeway that are 
already clogged by prior growth patterns.  There are no feasible options to improve those transportation corridors 
so you should strike them from the activity center concept.  Provide all the incentives you want to steer growth to 
130 where the roadway and space supports it.  Heck, there's even room for a beloved light rail line over there. 

I'm tired of pretending that biking is an actual alternative mode of transportation.  There are numerous bike lanes 
in my neighborhood - no one uses them to transport themselves to work or run errands.  Bike lanes are used for 
exercise.  We are supporting/spending millions so that groups of people have safe places to exercise.  I might be 
more supportive if we were honest about it.  Around UT campus there are still lots of people using bikes as a 
means of transportation; but in my neighborhood it is a joke.  Working moms can't put their multiple children on 
bikes and drop them off at day care.  The contractors that live in my neighborhood can't bike to a construction site 
with their work tools.  Get real. 

75

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Make major arterials wider for cars 

Existing Arroyo Doble Dr and should NOT be used as transit to new development in the surrounding area of Arroyo 
Doble neighborhood. The developers should fund the new roads to avoid traffic congestion in small rural 
communities. 

Make it easier for people to get around without the need for a car. More bike lanes, bike paths, trails, public 
transportation via bus, train, etc. 

No tax incentives for development. 

There are a few questions in this section that state- "use voter approved funding".  Is this CURRENT funding or 
future voter approved funding?  If its future, then I disagree with all of the ones that state this in the question.  I 
want my city to remain inside its current spending budget.  I do not want more tax increases.   
I do bicycle regularly for exercise and work.  I occasionally walk to work.  My decisions on where to live do take 
these things into account. 

We need more bike lines along heavily trafficked corridors and peripheral corridors like Montopolis road. The 
stretch of Montopolis to the bend where it transitions to Stassney is not bike friendly. With a bike lane installed 
from Grove Blvd and Riverside to Montopolis I would never need to drive to work again! I could bike there in 30 
minutes instead of a 20 minute car ride 

Improving bus service (routes, schedules, etc.) is a cost effective way to make public transportation a viable 
alternative, since the infrastructure is already there.  The 2 rapid bus lines in Austin are great and I want to see 
more of these throughout the county. 

you can change the bus route IF (intramural fields) for students at UT to reach their classes and not affect people 
who use the bus 5 which will work to the south?. Some buses are full and can't hold more people. 

Don't build any more roads until I can safely bike everywhere cars currently go. 

Love Bikes! 

We need a better connected bicycle infrastructure in which takes full use of urban trails and cycle tracks. Bicycle 
lanes on every road are nice but what would be better is strategically placed trails/lanes which separates bicycles 
from car and bus emissions and reduces the risk of cyclists being hit by these vehicles. 

Please continue to support bicycle infrastructure. More bikes=less cars! 

Have chosen not to own an automobile - using bicycle instead as my primary transportation (since 2001).  Some 
parts of Austin ok for bicycle transport, but a lot more can and should be done. 

I am skeptical of activity centers on the outskirts of Austin/Travis County.  We should focus more growth in 
existing, central areas, not on new activity centers out on SH 130 or other far flung areas.  This is just sprawl by 
another name. 

Less people driving cars is the only way to improve our situation, other transport options are the answer 

More safe bike routes! 

Roadway investments should not only focus on non-incorperated areas.  Investment in undeveloped areas that do 
not support walking, bicycling and transit use only generate more low density development sprawl.  We have to 
stop this cycle and invest in strategic ways rather than bailing our developers who locate on the outskirts of town 
along roadways that do not support the traffic demands generated by their single mode developement. 

We shouldn't widen the roadways to make it more convenient for the people who choose to live in the suburbs. 
Put in urban rails. 

Activity Center is a new term to me. 

Travis County has the potential to reverse sprawl by developing infrastructure that removes the need/perceived 
need to drive. 

76

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

I don't think that businesses will need incentives to locate in these activity centers if they are designed in a way 
that attracts market. I generally commute by bicycle for work and non-work activities and believe more people 
would do so if they could interact less with motorized traffic. More money should be put into dedicated and 
protected bikeways that are ample and surfaced to attract diverse users, rather than put into more roads and 
highways. The cost for bicycle infrastructure development is way less than roadway infrastructure and the pay off 
high on many levels related to human and environmental health. 

build complete streets 

Please create walkable and bike able  infrastructure 

PLEASE help make roads safer for cyclists!! I'm a young female and I have nearly been run off the road in a couple 
places where there is no shoulder or bike lane. People don't understand the safety rule for cyclists or the need to 
share the road. It's dangerous - we need more investment in education and cycling lanes! 

We need to realize that the answer to our transportation problems lies in offering various transportation options 
such as biking, walking, rail and other forms of tranpsortation outside of single occupant motor vehicles. 

All transportation projects should consider the needs of all citizens, many of whom cannot drive or afford to own, 
maintain, and insure a car. 

More bike paths and bike trails 

it's too late to add transportation sources. Texas is too much of a car/truck state. Coming from Philadelphia, which 
has buses, subways, trolleys. el's, and regional connections to the NE corridor, i could travel easily from suburbs to 
destinations hundreds of miles a way. It ain't gonna happen here. LOL 

It would be great to see a rail line in low income areas  such as southeast austin and northeast Austin. Having bike 
paths and walk ways makes a community safer and allows people to connect together 

Many of the roads I use to commute to work do not have proper bike lanes, especially Rundberg. and the 183 
area. I feel at risk of getting hit every time I bike to work. 

Activity Centers should be defined both as things that currently exist (downtown, Arboretum/Domain, Oakhill, 
Westlake) and new expansion. More emphasis should be placed on what already exists, rather than just building 
new. 

more multimodal (bike, ped, transit) options! 

Do anything to stop sprawl, for the love of god, please. 

I am tepid on supporting development along SH 130 because I am strongly opposed to SH 130 itself. It was an 
unfortunate farce that was forced upon us by corrupt politician who were paid off by private corporations. I 
normally would support Activity Centers, but I am opposed to anything that will make SH 130 look like it was a 
good idea. 

Yes, these so-called activity centers should prioritize mixed-income development. Until that is made a priority, any 
attempts at making more livable cities is a joke. 
None of your questions ask about encouraging lower income development, revealing a bias for the type of high-
end, exclusionary development that is displacing people who can't afford it or don't buy into the urbanism trend. 
I'm a huge supporter of denser housing/commercial. I bike to work every day. But what is happening is only being 
developed for those who can afford it. I don't support public funds being used if it's to 'encourage' or 'assist' 
developers who have to be begged to build affordable housing. 

Traffic congestion currently is a major problem and without action will only grow worse in the future. 

Stop perpetuating low-density sprawl in western part of the county. 

Public transportation servicing East Travis County has been brought up Many times...  But still does not exist. 

Lightrail from far southern Travis County through downtown is needed now. 

Safer roadways, better public transit support, potentially a monorail or gondola system that can exist above street 
level, so that there is minimal impact on current infrastructure. One thing that I would particularly like to see is a 
public transit system along Lamar, something like the MetroRail. I believe that Lamar is probably the place that 
needs it most. 

77

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Watch the documentary, 'The End of Suburbia' and think about the future. Suburbs need mass transit as much as 
do inner cities. LIke the body, mass transit must have free-flowing arteries - not enlarged ones, not blocked ones, 
but free-flowing. Rail has been shown internationally to be the superior form of artery. Money spent needs to 
feed into the future, and not to the ways it was done in the past. The auto age is not a permanent fixture; there 
will be cars but not like today. Cars waste time and destroy resources. The one-person car increases isolation of 
human from human. Not good! 

Existing funds should be used toimprove exisitng neighborhoods so that these areas have bike paths, sidewalks, 
public transport options.  Seems like all funds are being pushed for areas like Activity Centers that already exist.  
Those are new neighborhoods.  No such funds are being used in my already existing neighborhood that would 
benefits from these things.  It feels these activity centers are catering to rich people.  I am offended that my tax 
dollas are being used for these areas instead of sprucing up already existing neighborhoods like mine.  We don't 
have street lights or sidewalks.  i am tired of being discriminated against. 

Please develop and enlarge the existing route to accommodate current traffic patterns.  My commute time has 
doubled in the last 7 years.  There has not been any adjustment to the road system other than changing the timing 
of the lights.  All this does is change the traffic from one area to another.  Drivers are becoming increasingly 
frustrated.  The wait time to exit our subdivision if you happen to miss the light is 15 minutes.  Sometimes it takes 
2 light cycles to make it through the light.  Our subdivision is built out so the outgoing traffic is relatively constant.  
30 minutes to exit a subdivision is a long time and then add the traffic from 2222 or 620 to the commute... 

I do not support providing bus or public transit to areas outside of city limits.  Granted it does provide for good 
people to get from point A to B, but it also provides the criminal element a means of transport to reach areas 
outside of his or her local area.  Crime rates in rural areas would increase with public transit systems. 

My home is where I can easily use means other than cars but my workplace is not accessible by any means other 
than a car. (Adjoins only a highway access road and is not served by a sidewalk.) So even though theoretically I live 
in a community where I can take transit, walk or bike to work in reality I can't if I like my job (which I do). So for 
me a community where I can walk or bike to work would be one where you could walk and/or bike everywhere 
safely because employers don't always stay put. (Mine was downtown when I started 14 years ago.) If the county 
can't achieve both walking/biking is more important than transit access because if there is not safe walking or 
biking from the transit stop to the home or workplace people won't use it. (If I have to use a car for part of a trip I 
will use it for the whole trip, and I don't think I'm at all unusual in that.) 

Bike and pedestrian paths should be physically separate from auto traffic wherever possible. 

I live in the country atmosphere and would like to keep it that way.. Bicycles do not belong on country two lane 
roads. It is too dangerous for everyone. 

Stop building roads for developers!  If developers want to build in the county then they can PAY for their 
infrastructure. Stop using my tax dollars for developers interest! 

Is there enough water to support the projected growth of this area?  Current water levels are approaching a 
Drought Worse Than the Drought of Record. Would it be possible to provide enough water at current levels if 
there were forty to fifty percent more people living here?   We invested a lot of money in our home and the water 
situation makes me extremely nervous.  The water utility director predicted lake travis would run dry by 2016. I'm 
all for development, however, it should be done responsibly and developed with our water supply being of the 
most utmost importance.   Our home is our largest investment and it will be worthless without water.  Water is 
the most important resource on earth.  Money and development should not trump our right to water. 

Today, I don't have much choice but to drive.   I ride a bike occasionally, but I don't interact well with cars (they 
win).   I have learned that multi-modal works.   Transit improvements to dense activity centers works. We must do 
this to address our transportation woes. 

Is it possible for Travis County to partner with Capitol Metro to provide bus/train service to unincorporated areas? 

Please make every effort to protect our environment by creating bus, bike, and walking friendly transportation 
corridors!! 

78

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

"Build it and they will come" - if you make it possible for people to walk and bike safely, a considerable number 
will. Transportation money should be spent not only only improving roads but also on providing and improving 
alternatives to auto transportation. One of the reasons I choose to live in the inner city is because of the options I 
have of walking and biking. In my opinion, the quality of life in suburbs and rural Travis County could be improved 
significantly by adding dedicated bike paths and trails. 

We have an overabundance of single-family auto-oriented housing nationwide and in Travis and Williamson 
Counties. It's time to focus on different housing products, whether apartments, townhomes, or cottages, to meet 
the pent up demand for walkable urban housing in activity centers. 

Developers should contribute to our infrastructure rather than merely creating more living spaces and commercial 
users without having to help accommodate for the increased traffic their developments will being to the area.  We 
are not keeping our infrastructure up with our population increase. 

Improve the traffic situation at the intersection of 620 and 2222 

Sometimes people move further away from cities and compact development on purpose. 

Focus on the congestion on 620 and 2222. Please 

The traffic congestion in the 620/2222 area has become unbearable. My evening commute is commonly one hour 
and I fear for my children's safety as they approach age 16. Simply getting to high school next year is something 
already causing us great concern given the increased traffic concerns near Vandergrift High School. I fear it will 
ultimately force us to leave this beautiful part of the city. 

620 particularly the 2222 intersection needs to be a high priority 

Improve road planning to remove or minimize traffic light delays on higher-speed roads such as 620 and 2222. 
Prioritize the general good of the road users over individual business concerns. 

In the four points area development is outpacing roadway improvements leading to severe congestion.  620/2222 
should be highest priority for traffic improvements. 

We need bus transit to 620 corridor and 2222. We need help with severe traffic congestion in 620/2222. All hourly 
workers coming here drive to get to work  - many drive solo - buses would be better. 

Unless a public transportation can connect any two points with less than 1/2 mile walking is a waste of resources 
that benefits very few at enormous cost.   Fund and Build the roads. 

Something must be done along 620 and 2222.  Traffic becomes an issue at various times throughout the day and 
continues to get worse with the additional growth. 

We need help out in northwest austin. Traffic is horrible. Safety is a major concern 

Focus on congestion closer to center of town rather than out near 620 or 130 

Please come to the 620/2222 intersection at 7:45am or 5:00pm and see how we desperately need some 
immediate improvement to the infrastructure in our area.  It should not take high school students 45 minutes to 
drive to a high school that is located 5 miles away.  I commute from Steiner Ranch to East Austin and the busiest 
part of my commute by far is around 620/2222.  2222 clears up past the high school and 360 and 183 are a breeze 
compared to 620/2222.  Besides the traffic, these roads are so dangerous as well.  We desperately need the 
bypass they talked about putting from 620 over to 2222 to avoid the Four Points intersection.  I don't think we can 
wait 3 years (or whatever is the plan).  We also desperately need a double turn lane into Vandegrift high school.  
We need some traffic engineers to sort out the traffic lights as well since some improvement could definitely be 
made there.  Going northbound on 620 can also be a nightmare due to the light at Anderson Mill or El Salido. 

Strongly support roadway assistance in the 2222/620 exchange. 

Travis County should stop trying to control where developers want to build.  Just make sure the regulations are 
followed and shut down the development if not.  Fines and lost time in development is the way to control things.  
Stop throwing money at a problem.  Having too many people in one area causes problems also.  Diseases spread 
more rapidly in condensed communities.  Air Quality and Water Quality are affected negatively by condensed 
communities.  Activity Centers should be reserved for elderly people who have problems with mobility. 

 

79

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

Appendix D: Community Meeting Notes 

 

80

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Real Estate Council of Austin 

August 11, 2014, 12:00 noon 

98 San Jacinto, Austin, Texas 78701 

30 

Wendy Scaperotta, Charlie Watts, Melissa Zone, Arin Gray 

Presentation Details:   Wendy Scaperotta presented on conservation, Charlie Watts 

presented on transportation corridors and activity centers, and Arin 

shared public involvement details. 

Questions/Comments   

 What is the annual budget for conservation?  
o Approximately $80 million for parks with $8 million allocated for conservation easement 

projects were approved in 2011 bond election  

 What does the County pay for waterfront land?  
o There is no general price and Greg Chico can share more details on prices/values  

 If a road is not included in the Plan or does not connect an activity center, does it have to be added 
before it can become a project?  

o No, the roads identified in the Plan would be priorities if adopted and staff would imagine 
some percentage of funds going to road/infrastructure that supports activity centers, but 
there are several other plans (such as CAMPO and others) that include future projects 

 If the LWTP becomes a policy, but the County has no zoning authority, how would this plan be used?  
o Plan would identify priorities  

 How often would TNR update the LWTP as don’t want to participate if it just sits on a shelf?  
o Would envision the LWTP being updated every 5 to 10 years  

 How does the Court feel?  
o Commissioner Daugherty has spoken against activity centers, and others are looking 

forward to hearing what the public thinks of the draft plan  

 What sort of incentives is Travis County considering for activity centers?  
o Still working on gathering input on the activity center concepts  

 Asked what known developments were  
o Walked through identified developments  

 Is the Colorado Activity Center in the CAMPO 2040 Plan?  
o Yes, though the CAMPO 2040 Plan is still being developed  

81

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Sustainable Food Policy Board   

August 11, 2014, 6:00 p.m.  

1000 East 11th Street, Suite 400A, Austin, Texas 78702 

21 

Wendy Scaperotta, Melissa Zone, Arin Gray 

Presentation Details:   Wendy Scaperotta gave a condensed version of the presentation 

focusing on farmland and conservation, and shared the 

transportation corridor map, and Melissa Zone shared public 

involvement details. 

Questions/Comments   

 What constitutes prime farmland?  
o Prime farmland is defined by the US Agriculture Department  

 Mentioned that the LWTP focus on larger properties worries them as they are working with a lot of 
smaller family size farms that would be interested in conservation  

o Noted that this is exactly the type of input we are seeking and the County will continue to 
work with all sizes of property for land conservation.   

82

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Austin Independent School District – Back to School Bash  

August 16, 2014, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon   

Austin Convention Center, 500 E. Cesar Chavez, Austin, TX 78701 

9,000 total attendees, approximately 250 reached at the LWTP table 

Arin Gray, Julie Richey, Albert Castro  

Presentation Details:   No formal presentation, distributed LWTP information from table 

Summary:    

An LWTP table was set up where project information was distributed to event attendees. Flyers 

promoting the public meetings and survey were distributed in English and Spanish. Copies of the Draft 

LWTP and large format maps were also available for review. Children who visited the table received 

LWTP Volunteer Planner stickers and were able to draw with dry erase markers on large plotted Travis 

County maps to give them an idea of how the County plans for the future as they were given a chance to 

identify where parks, preservation areas, and roads should be. These activities gave team members an 

opportunity to visit with parents to explain the LWTP, promote attendance at public meetings and 

participation in the online survey, and collect email addresses from interested stakeholders. Team 

members visited with both English and several Spanish speaking attendees.  

 

83

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

 

Rotary Club of Bee Cave 

August 19, 2014, 7:00 a.m. 

Mimi's Café, 12613 Galleria Cr., Bee Cave, TX 78738 

10 

Arin Gray, Albert Castro  

Presentation Details:   Arin Gray presented on the LWTP and the public engagement 

details. 

Questions/Comments   

 Is there a way we would be able to view the project maps electronically?  
o Maps and the draft plan are available on the LWTP website in PDF format  

 Does this plan tie into Williamson County and other counties to work together?    
o Yes, Travis County is working with other counties and most significantly they are working 

very closely with Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization, (CAMPO), which is a 
collaborative effort of the 6 counties in the Central Texas Region. 

 Is the Galleria Area an example of an ‘Activity Center’ and Onion Creek floodplains an example of 
areas covered by the LWTP.   

o Yes, both are good examples.  

 How does this plan hope to fix traffic problems?  
o This plan focuses on RM 620 and SH 130 corridors.  The plan would help to connect Activity 

Centers along the corridors which would help growth and congestion.   

 How will this plan protect real estate values?  
o One of this plan’s goals is to protect water supply and this will help to protect current real 

estate values.   

 When would these projects start?  
o There is no start date for these projects, but if approved, there could be a bond in 

coordination with other agencies. This is a broad planning effort which will help guide where 
priorities could be moving forward in the future.   

 Which CAMPO plan are we currently under?  
o Currently the CAMPO 2035 Plan is in effect. The 2040 Plan is expected to be approved in 

2015.  

 Noted that there are several developers that don’t coordinate with long range plans.    

 Noted that Loop 360 and Westlake Drive have huge congestion problems.  Bee Cave Road also 
needs to be looked at as a traffic problem.  SH 620 not going through Lakeway needs to be a 
priority. Steiner Ranch from SH 620 to RM 2222 has horrible traffic and congestion problems.   

 

84

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Kiwanis Club—Northwest Austin 

August 19, 2014, 7:00 a.m. 

Marie Calendars, 9503 Research Blvd. Austin, TX 78759 

15 

Melissa Zone, Julie Richey 

Presentation Details:   Melissa Zone presented on the LWTP and Julie Richey presented 

public engagement details. 

Questions/Comments   

 What authority does Travis County have regarding planning, relative to FEMA, CAMPO, etc.? Does 
the County supersede these agencies?  

o FEMA provides mandates that must be met and CAMPO is the funnel for federal dollars in 
the region. Travis County does not have the regulatory authority, but rather is providing 
guidelines and possible incentives for locating future development and infrastructure.  

 How does the County work with the City of Austin?  
o The County’s jurisdiction lies outside of incorporated areas. When drafting the LWTP, the 

county used research and planning documents developed by the City of Austin. When there 
are oportunites for the county to cooperate with municipal jurisdictions on development 
issues such as permitting, the County does work with these entities to try to streamline the 
process.  

 Is Mueller an example of an Activity Center? 
o Yes 

 When someone wants to build do they have to go through every local agency?  
o If building or developing in an unincorporated area of the County, it’s a one stop shop. If in 

the ETJ or other jurisdiction, it can be several agencies. 

 Does the County have any involvement in the development in Northwest Hills near Mopac? 
o No, that is within the City of Austin.  

 It looks as though the County is encouraging development in the SH 130 area. Is there attention 
being given to east/west connections? 

o Much development is occurring in this area and many of the identified transportation 
corridors in the plan are east/west connections in this area. Much of the needed 
infrastructure lies within municipal jurisdictions and the County’s control is limited. 

 Are there any plans for a full loop within the County? What is the process for making this happen? 
o No formal plans for a loop. There are roadways that can connect to form a loop, however 

there is no established consensus supporting this concept on the part of the public, 
responsible entities, and elected officials. 

o The process could start with local coordination, public expressing desire for this solution to 
elected officials and/or elected officials carry this to CAMPO. 

85

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Manor Independent School District – School Resource Fair   

August 22, 2014, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon   

Manor New Tech High School, 10323 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX 78653 

300 Total attendees with approximately 60 reached at the LWTP table 

Arin Gray, Albert Castro  

Presentation Details:   No formal presentation, distributed LWTP information from table 

Summary:    

An LWTP table was set up where project information was distributed to event attendees. Flyers 

promoting the public meetings and survey were distributed in English and Spanish. Copies of the Draft 

LWTP and large format maps were also available for review. Children who visited the table received 

LWTP Volunteer Planner stickers and were able to draw with dry erase markers on large plotted Travis 

County maps to give them an idea of how the County plans for the future as they were given a chance to 

identify where parks, preservation areas, and roads should be. These activities gave team members an 

opportunity to visit with parents to explain the LWTP, promote attendance at public meetings and 

participation in the online survey, and collect email addresses from interested stakeholders. Team 

members visited with both English and several Spanish speaking attendees.  

 

86

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:  Austin Neighborhoods Council  

Date/Time:  August 27, 2014, 6:00 p.m.  

Location:  Austin Energy Building, 721 Barton Springs Road, Austin, TX 78704 

Number of Attendees:  40 

Travis County/Consultant Staff:  Melissa Zone, Arin Gray  

Presentation Details:   No formal presentation, distributed LWTP information from table 

Summary:    

An LWTP table was set up where project information was distributed as attendees entered the meeting. 

Flyers promoting the public meetings and survey were distributed in English and Spanish. Copies of the 

Draft LWTP were also available for review. The team explained the LWTP, promoted attendance at the 

public meetings and participation in the online survey, and collected email addresses from interested 

stakeholders.   

 

87

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

SFC Farmers Market – East Austin 

September 2, 2014, 3:00 – 7:00 p.m.  

2835 E. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd, Austin, TX  78702 

50 Total attendees with approximately 10 reached at the LWTP table 

Julie Richey, Albert Castro  

Presentation Details:   No formal presentation, distributed LWTP information from table 

Summary:    

An LWTP table was set up where project information was distributed to event attendees. Flyers 

promoting the public meetings and survey were distributed in English and Spanish. Copies of the Draft 

LWTP and large format maps were also available for review. The team explained the LWTP, promoted 

attendance at the public meetings and participation in the online survey, and collected email addresses 

from interested stakeholders.  Team members visited with both English and Spanish speaking attendees.  

 

88

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

 

Austin Chamber of Commerce, Transportation Committee  

September 4, 2014, 4:00 p.m. 

Austin Chamber Board Room ‐ 535 E. 5th St, Austin, TX 78701 

10 

Wendy Scaperotta, Charlie Watts, Arin Gray

Presentation Details:   Wendy Scaperotta presented on conservation and public 

involvement details and Charlie Watts presented on transportation 

corridors and activity centers. 

Questions/Comments   

 Noted that projects within city limits were not included and hoped that Travis County would still 
participate in other projects as well   

 

89

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Hope Farmers Market – East Austin 

September 7, 2014, 11:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.  

Saltillo Street Metro Station ‐ 412 Comal St, Austin, TX  78702 

60 total attendees, approximately 15 reached at the LWTP table 

Julie Richey, Albert Castro  

Presentation Details:   No formal presentation, distributed LWTP information from table 

Summary:    

An LWTP table was set up where project information was distributed to event attendees. Flyers 

promoting the public meetings and survey were distributed in English and Spanish. Copies of the Draft 

LWTP and large format maps were also available for review. The team explained the LWTP, promoted 

attendance at the public meetings and participation in the online survey, and collected email addresses 

from interested stakeholders.   

90

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:    Lago Vista Planning and Zoning Commission  

Date/Time:      September 11, 2014, 7:00 – 8:00 p.m. 

Location:      Lago Vista City Hall, 5803 Thunderbird St., Lago Vista, TX 78645 

Number of Attendees:    11 

Travis County/Consultant Staff: Wendy Scaperotta, Charlie Watts   

Presentation Details:    Wendy Scaperotta and Charlie Watts presented on the LWTP and the 

public engagement details. 

Questions/Comments: 

 Why Activity Centers and can you make people live in them?  
o The County is looking to expand development options on where people live, work, and 

play.  Staff expects these new options will help protect the County’s land and water 
resources.   

 In reference to the 1431 Corridor, why not get ahead and not be like RM 620?  
o Access onto State roadways is reviewed by TxDOT.  Applicants are required to get a 

driveway permit from TxDOT. 

 What is the status of Lohman’s Ford Road in the CAMPO Plan?  
o Lohmans Ford Road is included in the CAMPO 2035 Illustrative Project list.  It is 

proposed as a future four lane divided major arterial from FM 1431 to Sylvester Ford Rd. 
and a four lane minor arterial from Sylvester Ford Rd. to Point Venture.   

 Who is funding LWTP? 
o Future projects will be identified and funded through a bond funded capital 

improvement program. 

 What is the plan amendment process?  
o There is a process defined by CAMPO staff that allows jurisdictions to amend Activity 

Center locations in the CAMPO long range transportation plan. 

 Can Lago Vista have an amendment?  
o If Lago Vista creates an Activity Center, the LWTP and CAMPO Plan can be amended to 

include the Center at the jurisdiction’s request.   

 Noted the traffic load on Lohman’s Ford Road near the high school and that they are waiting to 
see the impact.  

 City Manager noted necessity for Lago Vista to complete their comp plan.  

 What standards designate certain areas as activity centers?  
o There are no adopted standards the County has to identify Centers.  Discussions 

continue at CAMPO to establish a formal definition. 

 How do we get funding for Lohman’s Ford Road improvements?  
o Discussed last 2011 bond election process and the removal of Lohmans Ford Road as a 

project.  Discussed Bond Committee and project selection process. 

 Noted Lago Vista working on comp plan and the status of Arkansas Bend Park.  

91

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Lakeway City Council Meeting   

September 15, 2014, 6:30 – 7:30 p.m.  

City Council Chamber, 1102 Lohmans Crossing, Lakeway, TX 78734 

50 

Steve Manilla, Wendy Scaperotta, Charlie Watts, Albert Castro  

Presentation Details:   Wendy Scaperotta and Charlie Watts presented on the LWTP and 

the public engagement details. 

Questions/Comments:    

 Why is there little detail to the Western side of the County?  

o This is due to the limited Activity Center Development in the Western side of the County  

 Is there a solution for the Western part of the County?  

o This is not a Transportation Plan.  This will be used to set up prioritization for Transportation 

Corridors and connecting Activity Centers.  In the western part of the County, we will need 

to use existing infrastructure to support Transportation Corridors.  

 What is the plan for RM 620?  

o While the CAMPO 2035 plan does not discuss RM 620, the CAMPO 2040 Plan proposes to 

add capacity to RM 620, although Right of Way would be an issue.    

 It is 2014, and traffic congestion is a serious issue.  In 20‐30 years it will be a total gridlock.  Eastern 

Travis County has SH 130, Western Travis County needs another option besides RM 620.  

 Noted that we want Travis County to create their own Transportation Plan and not just use the 

CAMPO Plan 

o After the LWTP is passed by the Commissioner’s Court, the County would begin working on 

its own transportation plan.  

 How does the LWTP pertain to water supply as part of development?  

o The LWTP would protect water supply through land conservation.  

92

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:  Lake Travis Chamber of Commerce Luncheon 

Date/Time:  September 17, 2014, 11:00 a.m. 

Location:  Lakeway Resort and Spa, 101 Lakeway Drive, Austin 78734 

Number of Attendees:  40 

Travis County/Consultant Staff:  Julie Richey 

Presentation Details:   No formal presentation, distributed LWTP information from table 

Summary:    

An LWTP table was set up where project information was distributed to event attendees. Flyers 

promoting the public meetings and survey were distributed in English and Spanish. Copies of the Draft 

LWTP and large format maps were also available for review. The team explained the LWTP, promoted 

attendance at the public meetings and participation in the online survey, and collected email addresses 

from interested stakeholders.   

 

93

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:     

Date/Time:       

Location: 

Number of Attendees:   

Travis County/Consultant Staff: 

Lakeway Men’s Breakfast Club   

September 25, 2014, 7:30 – 9:00 a.m.  

Lakeway Activity Center, 105 Cross Creek, Lakeway, TX 78734 

55 

Melissa Zone, Albert Castro  

Presentation Details:    Melissa Zone presented on the LWTP and the public engagement 

details.  

Questions/Comments:    

 Noted that one member did not want his tax money going to develop the Eastern part of Travis 

County (prefer investments stay in the west)  

o The County has made significant investments in the past 25 years to develop the western 

side of Travis County, and now that the eastern side is growing, this is an area of focus. The 

Plan addresses both sides.  

 Who is paying for the Onion Creek buyout?  

o The City of Austin and Travis County have been paying for the buyout with the Federal 

government matching funds.  

 Are there plans for mass transit?  

o Capital Metro is responsible for transit, but we anticipate transit routes will be identified as 

more density in Activity Centers occurs.  

 Can roads be built through the Balcones Canyonlands Preserve with Federal regulations?   

o Private land owners can go through the permitting and environmental process.  Currently, 

land conserved by County and other agencies cannot accommodate roads or transit.    

 A discussion was held on why County staff recommended removing the Lakeway Loop Proposal 

(extension of SH 45).   

 

94

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Organization/Group:  City of Austin Staff representatives from Economic Development, 

Planning and Development Review, and Office of Sustainability 

Date/Time:      September 29, 2014, 2:00 p.m.    

Location:      Travis County Admin, 700 Lavaca St., Austin, TX 78701 

Number of Attendees:    9 

Travis County/Consultant Staff: Melissa Zone, Wendy Scaperotta, Charlie Watts, Arin Gray   

Presentation Details:   Wendy Scaperotta presented on conservation, Charlie Watts presented 

on transportation corridors and activity centers, and Arin shared public 

involvement details. 

Questions/Comments:   

An open dialogue was held after the presentation with several comments and discussions including:  

 Will the County go to the legislature for limited land use control?  

o Yes, we plan to go back for land use authority  

 At the City, how can we best promote a partnership involving Imagine Austin?  

o We can coordinate on several planning efforts. For example, the trail and bike plan.   

 What kind of tool kit does County have to influence growth patterns?  

o We are limited, but can use partnerships, tax incentives to locate in Activity Centers, and 

use transportation dollars to encourage growth there  

 What is success on SH 130?  

o Reduction in congestion, strong greener presence, and working towards less sprawl  

 Discussed impact of growth along SH 130 on affordability because people will not be able to get 

on and off without paying toll.  Discussed transit on SH 130. 

o Travis County does not have land use control or zoning powers; therefore, the LWTP 

provides means to incentivize developers toward areas that can accommodate growth. 

The area is attracting new development due to lower land costs, not because the county 

is directing growth along the SH 130 corridor.   

 Will Activity Centers be job centers?  

o Staff explained that the County doesn’t develop centers but activity centers should 

include job opportunities to meet the definition of mixed use   

 Noted that in Imagine Austin they have identified trails and habitats in flood plains  

o Noted that the Draft LWTP has river and creek corridors which will include trails and 

natural areas 

 Edwin asked for the CAMPO Center GIS File  

o File was sent after meeting  

95

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

 Noted that from 2007‐2012 there was a 70% increase in local sales of fruits and vegetables  

 Had a discussion of Manor  

 How does County preserve farmland?   

o Noted that in 2011 had an $8 million bond for conservation easements  

 Is Hill Country Conservancy involved?  

o Yes, they helped establish the Wilbarger Creek Conservation Alliance   

 What is Hamilton Pool Road status?  

o Design included in 2005 bond, staff is currently working on safety alternatives to help 

guide the design of future road improvements 

 Noted in the Community Impact story that western Travis County was having a hard time filling 

some jobs due to lack of affordable living  

 Mentioned east and west connectivity  

 Noted that COA is looking at updating subdivision regulations 

o County commented that they would like to work with City as they do this  

 

  

96

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Appendix E: Public Meeting Notes 

During the question and answer session of the Public Meetings, the following topics were discussed: 
 
Paredes Middle School (Precinct 4) 
September 17, 2014 
Attendance: 8 

 Desire to keep development low in the Manchaca area 

 Asked about the South Austin Regional Center  

o Staff indicated that this center encompasses what is anticipated in the I‐35/SH 45 area 

 Concern for lack of attendance at the meeting 

o Consultant noted that the team has provided many other ways to participate besides 
attendance at the public meeting 

 
Manor Tech High School (Precinct 1) 
September 18, 2014 
Attendance: 17 

 Asked about impacts of the Draft LWTP on eastern Travis County 

o Staff indicated that the Manor area may see more PUDs which can lead to different 
types of roadway options 

 Staff explained that they work with cities regarding the ETJ and future annexation areas; that 
there is the opportunity for collaboration during the review process 

 Gilliland Creek is an example of a conservation priority in eastern Travis County 

 Impact of population growth on sewage infrastructure 

 Hike and bike plan along Wilbarger Creek 

 The speed limit decrease to 55 on 290E access roads 

 Development restrictions near the earthen dam at Lake Walter E Long 

 Plans for transportation options from east Austin to Manor 

 Development caused erosion and flooding 

 Bridge on Gregg Lane at Wilbarger Creek needed 

 
McCallum High School (Precinct 2) 
September 22, 2014 
Attendance: 11 

 Will the pattern to annex development continue? 

o Travis County makes it appealing for cities to annex developments when the developer 
is required to provide the infrastructure 

97

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 Have there been many requests for approval of activity center type development 

o Staff indicated that some have been requested 

 Is the type of compact development described for activity centers occurring in the places 
identified as activity centers 

o Staff indicated yes, they are starting to see it occurring 

 Does the County consider existing developments that have evolved and grown into similar types 
of developments activity centers? For example, Wells Branch, Milwood 

o Staff indicated not at this time, may need to examine this further 

 Does the County expedite this kind of development 

 Concern that too many resources will be allocated to this type of development 

 What tools does the County have to regulate water resources 

o Developers have to prove that water is available 

 Concern that existing water infrastructure and supply won't support more dense development 

 
Vandegrift High School (Precinct 3) 

September 24, 2014 
Attendance: 12 

 Would like to see more bicycle facilities on roadways to get across larger areas and to work to 
connect existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities (specifically within developments) 

o Staff noted that all proposed roadways would include bicycle/pedestrian facilities 

o Also noted that the next steps would be for County to develop their own transportation 
plan and would incorporate bicycle/pedestrian facilities 

 Asked if County had availability to provide water  

o Not currently, but developers do have to prove they will have access to water prior to 
building 

 Discussion of negotiations with developers to provide infrastructure and areas for public 
services (like fire stations) and noted some feel County needs to do more while others feel 
County does too much 

 Asked if County works with other counties and cities to plan 

o Yes County will partner with other entities 

 Noted that County needs to update future growth map 

 Western Travis County residents value land and spring conservation but feel transportation 
needs to be the priority; seems like more focus is given to the east side of the County in the 
LWTP 

 Noted that the CAMPO 2040 Plan does include improvements to 620 

 Who decides if a developer gets access to state highways 

98

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

o TxDOT 

 Didn’t feel Plan should focus on Activity Centers if the market is not there; don’t want to see 
infrastructure built before centers exist 

 
Bee Cave City Council Chambers (Precinct 3) 

September 25, 2014 
Attendance: 16 

 Asked why Little Barton Creek and Barton Creek are not listed even though they are in the 
unincorporated areas  

o Staff noted that focus in the Plan was on drinking water supply, and noted that there is 
already established preserve area on Barton Creek 

 How do you protect Little Barton Creek and Barton Creek 

o Through conservation easements, and normal State regulations also apply to these 
areas 

 Noted that Barton Creek feeds into Edwards Aquifer so it should also be preserved 

 Asked how Pedernales River is a water source considering its state in the current drought 

o Staff noted that it is still considered a water source because of its relationship with the 
reservoir 

 How is the County going to balance conservation and development 

o  County will continue to work with developers and at the same time make efforts to 
conserve land 

 Are the corridors, specifically 620 toll roads 

o  Based on the CAMPO Plan, 620 elevated road is going to be tolled 

 Felt that because only 5% of population lives in unincorporated they don’t have a say even 
though they contribute money 

 Concern that conservation could impede development and that water availability needs to be 
the first priority 

o Staff noted ground water is not covered in presentation but is a growing issue; also 
noted it is hard to control ground water with the tools the County has 

 Asked if County was coordinating with the PUA and their growth projections as growth will 
continue in west part of county 

 Noted that Plan should focus on infrastructure, water, and utilities; This seems to be about what 
happens in 2040 and environmental conservation 

 
  

99

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Travis County Administration Building 
12 Noon Meeting, September 29, 2014 
Attendance: 18 

 Need to focus on straightening many roads with S curves out 

 Want to work together for legal changes on County’s authority in the future 

 Asked about encouraging growth on 620 and what plans have been done for this 

 Asked about the water plan for growth 

o Staff noted that there are many state and regional planning efforts and Travis County is 
planning for conservation; LWTP does focus on water but the County is not a supplier, 
so will continue to work with partners 

 Asked if could make all developers include reclaimed water 

 What happens if Plan not adopted 

 Staff indicated that the County would rely on CAMPO plans and could change when CAMPO 
changes 

 How can County work with employment and development centers 

o The County can use this tool for incentives 

 Why is Barton Springs watershed not included 

o The project team will look into this 

 Are there any definitions for size or focus of Activity Centers? 

o Yes, the County is following CAMPO definitions 

 Staff noted that the County is not creating new activity centers, but plan is summarizing existing 
centers and will work in the future to use all tools available for development 

 
Evening Meeting, September 29, 2014 
Attendance: 4 
No presentation was given during the evening meeting as there were only a few attendees 
and all visited with staff throughout the open house 

100

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Appendix F: Website Analytics  

The graph and tables below share information on the number and timing of visitors to the LWTP page on 

the Travis County website from August 15, 2014 to October 1, 2014.  

 

101

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Appendix G: Comments Received after 
October 1, 2014 

A total of 5 written comments were received after October 1, 2014 via email.    

 

Hi Wendy, 
I’m writing to you to submit a comment on the proposed Land, Water, and Transportation Plan. I would like to 
encourage LWTP and Travis County to support existing and future farms in our county by conserving prime 
farmland, as well as existing and future farms, through a variety of means. Purchasing conservation 
easements and putting this land aside for agricultural use would be one way to do so. Leasing county owned 
land to new, beginning farmers for little to nothing would go a long way to increasing our regional food 
security and spurring local economic activity. LWTP might also consider requiring new developers to include 
ways in which they will incorporate local foods and farms into their plans. Also, ample consideration as to how 
we conserve our current water supply - and how we are going to address this issue into the future - is of 
paramount importance for farmers in Travis County.  
Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Wonderful.  Thank you for this connection, and for your speedy reply. 
The Hill Country Alliance is interested in promoting more robust land and water planning by the area’s 
counties especially where there is little authority in the unincorporated areas. 
I wonder if you can give me a sense of how robust Travis County’s development efforts are in relation to other 
Hill Country counties, especially to those (if any) that are taking a similarly pro-active position? 
AND, who are your contemporaries in the neighboring counties that I should contact to establish a dialog? 
Thank you Mr. Watts,  

Wendy and Charlie, 
Over the weekend I came across an article on the proposed LWTP.  I currently manage a commercial office 
development at the corner of 360 and Bee Cave, Dimensional Place, and would like to know more about the 
Transportation Corridor concept.  A Google search produced a presentation from September but details are 
slim. Would either or both of you have time to meet to present this plan?   

Good afternoon Mr. Watts, 
I just read a very nice article in the Community Impact Newspaper that featured information about Travis 
County’s draft Land, Water and Transportation Plan, and wonder if I could get a copy. 
Thank you,  

102

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

SUSTAINABLE FOOD POLICY BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
WHEREAS, the Land Water and Transportation Plan (LWTP) will provide a framework for formulating policies 
and developing capital improvement programs to guide growth and protect land and water resources in 
unincorporated Travis County (areas outside of city limits) as it faces a tremendous amount of population 
growth; and  
WHEREAS, Travis County will be incorporating public input into the draft LWTP over the next two months for 
final approval by the Travis County Commissioner's court in late 2014, which will guide resource allocation 
and policy development that will impact land availability for food production; and 
WHEREAS, the market value of Travis county's agricultural products was an approximate $41.7 million in 
2012; and  
WHEREAS, Travis County voters in 2011 passed Bond Proposition 2, which earmarked $8.3 million to preserve 
open space, and agricultural lands through the purchase of conservation easements; and 
WHEREAS, the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) provides millions of dollars in funding annually 
to assist with the purchase of conservation easements in Texas in order to help conserve agricultural lands 
and wetlands and their related benefits, whereby Travis County could effectively leverage local funding; and  
WHEREAS, the method and incentives to preserve farmland as contained in the Travis County Conservation 
Easement Program provides an example of how Central Texas can take immediate and effective action; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the FARMLAND PRESERVATION AND ACCESS WORKING GROUP of 
the Sustainable Food Policy Board recommends that the Travis County Commissioners' Court ensure that the 
final Land, Water, and Transportation Plan includes strong support for conserving land for food production 
and that prime agricultural soils, wherever they occur, should be a priority in selecting land parcels while, 
when possible, also preserving other important conservation values such as water quality, wildlife habitat, 
scenic views and cultural resources. 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funding adequate staff and resources to develop and implement related 
policies, programs, and collaborations also be a priority in the final version of the LWTP. 
Date of Approval: October 13th, 2014 
Record of the vote: (Unanimous on a 7-0 vote) 

 

103

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



L A N D  WAT E R  A N D  T R A N S P O R TAT I O N  P L A N

T R A V I S  C O U N T Y

EXHIBIT B:
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS

NOVEMBER 2014

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photo Credits for Cover Page from Top left moving clockwise: 
Wildflowers photographed by Jason Spangler; Colorado River photograph courtesy of Bosse & Associates (Colorado 
River Plan); Development photograph courtesy of Bosse & Associates (Colorado River Plan); SH 130 photograph courtesy 
of Bosse & Associates (Colorado River Plan); Sign photograph courtesy of Dwyer Realty; East Travis County farmland 
photograph courtesy of Travis County; Hamilton Pool photograph courtesy of Travis County 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

Judge Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 

Commissioner Ron Davis, Precinct 1 
 

Commissioner Bruce Todd, Precinct 2 
  

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Precinct 3 
   

Commissioner Margaret Gómez, Precinct 4  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Prepared by Transportation and Natural Resources 
Steve M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive 

 

 

Land Conservation 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 

 

 

Development and Transportation 
Charlie Watts, Planning Project Manager 

 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Table of Contents  

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

Conservation ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

 Survey Findings and Conclusions .................................................................................................... 2 

 Written Comments and Responses  ............................................................................................... 6 

 Recommended Plan Revisions ........................................................................................................ 8 

Development............................................................................................................................................... 9 

 Survey Findings and Recommendations ......................................................................................... 9 

Written Comments and Responses  ............................................................................................. 12 

Recommended Plan Revisions ...................................................................................................... 13 

Transportation .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

Survey Findings and Recommendations ....................................................................................... 14 

Written Comments and Responses  ............................................................................................. 16 

Recommended Plan Revisions ...................................................................................................... 17 

 

 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Introduction 
Staff’s analysis of input received from the public and associated recommendations are provided herein. 
The comments addressed in this report were received through two venues.  Respondents could 
complete the online Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (LWTP) Survey and they could submit 
comments via email, mail, or Comment Cards completed at public meetings.  
 
Survey results include answers to both specific and open-ended questions about conservation, 
development, and transportation.  Although questions were based on proposed LWTP policies, 
answering them did not require knowledge of the LWTP.  Responses to open-ended questions also were 
not specific to the LWTP.  This input, however, indirectly indicates the level of support for LWTP proposed 
policies and will help guide future growth-related planning, policy development, and capital 
improvement programs. Conversely, Written Comments address the LWTP specifically. 
 
Survey results and written comments are provided in the Public Engagement Report. 
 

 
 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            1 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Conservation 

SURVEY FINDINGS 
 

Conservation Priorities 
Conservation priorities are probed in Question 4 in which respondents were asked to indicate their level 
of agreement with statements about conservation and resource protection in Travis County. Overall, 
respondents indicate strong support for protecting all listed resources.  The relative strength of support, 
however, is shown in Table 1: Question 4 Responses which lists resources by highest to lowest level of 
support (as based on cumulative “Agree Strongly” and “Agree” percentages). 
 

 Agree 
Strongly 

 
Agree 

 
Neutral 

 
Disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 

It is important to conserve land to protect water quality and supply. 
 

71% 22% 5% 1% 1% 

It is important to protect natural springs. 
 

69% 24% 5% 1% 1% 

It is important to protect woodlands, prairies, wetlands, and other 
natural areas. 

54% 32% 10% 3% 1% 

It is important to conserve land for public recreational use. 
 

49% 37% 10% 2% 2% 

It is important to conserve land to protect wildlife. 
 

55% 27% 12% 4% 2% 

It is important to conserve land with the best soils for producing 
crops. 
 

41% 34% 18% 5% 3% 

It is important to support “dark skies” by limiting light pollution. 
 

42% 31% 18% 5% 3% 

It is important to conserve working farms and ranches. 
 

39% 34% 17% 7% 3% 

It is important to preserve the rural character of the county. 
 

33% 28% 23% 10% 5% 

Note: Percentage total may not equal 100% because of rounding 
Table 1: Question 4 Responses 

 
Water resource protection has strongest support  
There is near unanimous support for protecting water resources through land conservation.  When asked 
about the importance of protecting water quality and supply, an overwhelming majority (93%) feels that 
it is important to conserve land for this purpose.  An equal number (93%) also think it is important to 
protect natural springs.   

 
Written survey responses support these values as well.  More respondents commented on water 
resource protection than any other single conservation issue.  They cite land management techniques 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            2 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



(such as cedar removal and xeriscaping), water conservation, and regulation of water use (through a 
Groundwater Conservation District in western Travis County, for example) as required tools for 
protecting the quality and supply of surface and groundwater. 

 
Protecting natural areas and wildlife are top motivators for land conservation 
An overwhelming majority of the respondents (86%) agree that it is important to protect woodlands, 
prairies, wetlands, and other natural areas.  And an almost equal number (82%) agree that it is important 
to conserve land to protect wildlife.  Their support also is particularly strong: for each query, more than 
one-half indicate that conserving land for these purposes is very important.  
 
The importance of protecting natural areas and wildlife habitat were frequently mentioned in open-
ended responses as well. 
 
Conserving land for recreational use is equally important 
An equal number of the respondents (86%) agree that it is important to conserve land for recreational 
use as agree that it is important to protect natural areas, making recreational use an equally strong 
motivator for conserving land.  Comments provided in open-ended questions also indicated strong 
support for recreational access to conservation lands, particularly by way of an interconnected bike and 
pedestrian trail system. 
 
There is strong support for conserving agricultural resources 
Three-quarters of the respondents (75%) indicate that it is important to conserve land with the best soils 
for growing crops. And an almost equal number (73%) indicate that it’s important to conserve working 
farms and ranches.  The importance of maintaining local sustainable, food production is frequently 
mentioned in written survey comments. 
 
Protecting dark skies is a top priority  
Approximately three-quarters of the respondents (73%) indicate that it is important to limit light 
pollution.  The importance of maintaining dark skies in Travis County was frequently mentioned in open-
ended question comments as well.  
 
Protecting rural character has the least amount of support  
Nearly two-thirds of the respondents (61%) indicate that it is important to preserve the rural character 
of the county, which is robust support but nevertheless, the least amount of support indicated for 
resource protection or conservation.   
 
Conservation Strategies 
Respondents’ support for conservation strategies is probed in Question 5 in which they are asked to 
indicate their level of agreement with different types of strategies. The strength of their support for the 
different strategies is shown in Table 2: Question 5 Responses which lists strategies by decreasing level 
of support (as based on cumulative “Agree” and “Strongly Agree” percentages). 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            3 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

 Agree 
Strongly 

 
Agree 

 
Neutral 

 
Disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 

Travis County should use agreements with willing landowners to 
conserve land. 

55% 33% 8% 2% 2% 

Travis County should purchase parkland to conserve land. 
 

45% 31% 15% 6% 3% 

Travis County should use voter-approved portions of tax revenues to 
support land conservation. 

40% 34% 13% 8% 5% 

Travis County should use voter-approved bonds to support land 
conservation. 

39% 31% 15% 9% 5% 

Travis County should conserve land by buying flood-prone properties. 
 

26% 27% 27% 11% 9% 

Travis County cannot afford to conserve land and should use public 
dollars for other purposes 

8% 9% 16% 31% 36% 

Note: Percentage total may not equal 100% because of rounding 
Table 5: Question 5 Responses 

 
Conserving land through agreements with willing landowners has the greatest support 
An overwhelming majority (88%) of respondents agree with the statement that county should purchase 
parkland as a means to conserve land.  
 
Parkland acquisition is a popular strategy as well  
Approximately three-quarters of the respondents (76%) agree with purchasing parkland as a means to 
conserve land.  
 
Strong support for County investments using voter-approved funding 
Respondents support county investments in land conservation: less than one-fifth (17%) of the 
respondents agree that “The County cannot afford to conserve land and should use public dollars for 
other purposes.” With respect to funding land conservation, approximately three-quarters (74%) agree 
that portions of tax revenues be dedicated – with voter approval – to funding land conservation and an 
almost equal number (70%) agree that voter-approved bond funds be used for this purpose. 
 
Acquisition of flood-prone properties has the least support  
Although supported by a clear majority (53%), conserving land by buying flood-prone properties has the 
lease amount of support of all the conservation strategies.  
 

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            4 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Conclusions 
 
Conservation Priorities 
Past Travis County practices and proposed LWTP conservation priorities and policies are consistent with 
survey findings about conservation priorities (Question 4).   
 
 Water quality and supply have been and will continue to be directly protected through 

conservation of floodplains and development of river and creek corridors.  Natural springs also 
will be protected through the newly proposed conservation of Post Oak Savanna, a region where 
they are concentrated. 

 Natural areas and wildlife habitat have been and will continue be protected on privately-owned 
properties through conservation easements and in undeveloped areas of parks. 

 Recreational use has been and will continue to be accommodated in county parks and, where 
appropriate, on non-park conservation lands. 

 Agricultural resources have been and will continue to be protected through the county 
conservation easement program as well as the incidental purchase of prime farmland for park 
greenways. 

 Rural character will be protected by way of protecting natural areas, wildlife habitat, and working 
farms and ranches. 

 The county currently does not have policies or procedures in place supporting “dark skies” but 
the LWTP include the action item to consider the role the County might assume in protecting this 
resource. 

 
Conservation Strategies 
Past Travis County practices and proposed LWTP conservation policies and practices are consistent with 
survey findings about conservation strategies (Question 5). 
 
 Travis County initiated a program in 2011 to establish agreements with willing land owners to 

conserve land.  
 Travis County purchases parkland with the intent of conserving land. 
 Travis County uses voter-approved funding for acquiring parkland and establishing land 

conservation easements. The county, however, has not used voter-approved portions of tax 
revenues to support land conservation. 

 Travis County conserves land by purchasing flood-prone properties. 
 

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            5 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



WRITTEN COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 
 
Land Conservation Priorities 
 
Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek Watersheds 
Numerous respondents requested prioritizing conservation of the Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek 
watersheds in southwest Travis County.  They maintain that this land is regionally significant because it 
is within the contributing zone of the Edwards Aquifer and recharges iconic Barton Springs, helping to 
protect it as intended by the City of Austin through its Barton Creek Watershed Ordinance.   
 
Staff concurs and recommends that the Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds be identified as 
LWTP conservation priorities. 
 
Colorado River and Tributaries in western Travis County 
A request was made to prioritize conservation of the Colorado River and its tributaries as a specific 
initiative in western Travis County so as to protect the county’s drinking water supply.   
 
Staff recommends maintaining the current prioritization of corridor conservation in western Travis County 
on the Pedernales River and currently designated creeks. A more broadly stated conservation initiative may 
result in more fragmented and less connected corridors. There are also programs and regulations in place 
to protect Lake Travis water quality including the LCRA’s Highland Watershed Ordinance and TCEQ’s 
prohibition of wastewater discharge into Lake Travis.    
 
Prime Farmland in western Travis County 
A request was made to prioritize conservation of prime farmland as a specific initiative in western Travis 
County. 
 
Although conservation of prime farmland is a priority throughout the county, staff does not recommend 
prioritizing conservation of prime farmland as an initiative in western Travis County: there are no large 
expanses of prime farmland in this region and therefore difficult to assemble “conservation areas” (i.e., 
large, contiguous tracts of land which provide greater natural and cultural benefits than smaller, isolated 
tracts) in accordance with LWTP conservation concept.  
 

Geographic Distribution of Proposed Land Conservation Initiatives 
 
A respondent questioned the geographic distribution of land targeted for conservation, stating that the 
“…LWTP is weighted towards the eastern side of the county and pays little attention to the southwestern 
corner where I live.”  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            6 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Staff maintains that the LWTP balances conservation throughout the county for several reasons: 
 
 The number of conservation projects does not correlate to the amount of land actually conserved: since 

2001, Travis County has acquired approximately 3,100 acres in southwest Travis County for one project 
(i.e., the Pedernales River corridor) and 2,100 for three corridor projects in eastern Travis County. 

 Staff is recommending that Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds be added as conservation 
priorities in the LWTP. 

 

Map Changes 
 

Leander Parks 
A request was made to add new City of Leander parks to the maps. 
 
City of Leander parks that are not shown on maps are either within Leander’s city limits or have not yet 
been officially dedicated as parks.   
 
Land Use Information 
An individual referenced both the large tract of Austin Energy property in the Webberville area and the 
proposed PGA golf course(s) adjacent to Walter Long Lake as information that needs to be factored into 
the LWTP. 
 
Staff will include this information into future conservation plans that require this level of detail.   

 

Water-Related Public Opinion Information 
An individual questioned the completeness of the public opinion section on water resources because it 
only discusses Lick Creek and the aggregate mining controversies that the Commissioners Court dealt 
with.  
 
Section D: Public Opinion of the Background Report includes information taken from either statistically 
valid surveys or “petitions” to the Travis County Commissioners Court (i.e., ongoing citizen communications 
about a specific issued by a significant number of constituents). To the best of staff’s knowledge, there are 
no statistically valid surveys pertaining to public opinion about water resources in Travis County. 
 

Farmland Conservation (received after October 1 deadline) 
Comments regarding the importance of supporting sustainable food production and conserving 
prime farmland were submitted after the October 1 deadline.  A specific request was made of the 
County to provide adequate staff and resources to develop and implement policies and programs 
prioritizing conservation of prime agricultural soils. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            7 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



There are two potential actions in the LWTP that pertain to protecting agricultural resources.  First 
is the action to update the Conservation Easement program and second is preparing a parks and 
land conservation package for a tentative bond referendum.  
 

RECOMMENDED PLAN REVISIONS 
 

Executive Summary (EXHIBIT C) 
Page viii: Add Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds to Land Conservation Concept map  
Page ix: Add Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek Watershed conservation initiative 
 
Guiding Growth Plan (EXHIBIT D) 
Revise Opportunities and Challenges Section 
Page 19: Edit Figure 6 notes to include reference to land that is conserved by Travis County and land 
trust partners  
Page 25: Add description of Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds to Land Resources section 
Page 28: Add “Watershed” map showing location of Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds 
Page 34: Add Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds to Opportunities and Challenges in 
Unincorporated Travis County map  
Page 41: Describe Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds in “Rural Southwest Travis County” 
section 
Revise Growth Guidance Plan Section 
Page 57: Add Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds to Land Conservation Concept map 
Page 58: Add Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds to “Conservation Areas” priorities 
Page 60: Revise description of the Colorado River and Pedernales River to note them as sources of 
drinking water 
Page 60: Revise description of the western creeks to note them as contributors to drinking water supply 
Page 62: Add initiative to conserve land in the Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds  
Page 64: Add Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds to LWTP Growth Guidance Concept map 
Page 65: Revise Policy L-3 to include Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds 
 
Background Report (EXHIBIT E) 
Page 77: Delete reference to water forum  
 
Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules (EXHIBIT F) 
Revise as required to update land and water-related Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            8 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Development 

SURVEY FINDINGS 
 

Overall Support for Activity Center and Transportation Corridor Concept 
On-line Survey Results  
The use of the Activity Center concept to provide for new opportunities and choices in how land can be 
developed in the unincorporated area of Travis County is strongly supported.   This support is shown 
through a general question (Question 7) asking whether “Travis County should create policies to 
encourage new growth to locate in Activity Centers, supported by investments in Transportation 
Corridors”, it received a 71.5% approval.     In comparison, the statement that current growth patterns 
should continue with little focus on Activity Centers received 14.7% of the responses.   
 
Question 10 and Question 11 look at a respondent’s level of agreement and willingness to live in 
developments that support the Activity Center development concept.  Question 10, shows that over 
82% of respondents agree that the length of their commute is an important factor in where they live.  
Respondents also show strong support for multi-modal connectivity in areas where they live and work, 
agreeing at nearly 79%.  Agreement that it is important to live where bus, bicycle or pedestrian 
facilities are available to commute to work is approximately 50%, with 28% disagreeing. 
 
Question 11 indicates that driving remains an important mode in determining where people live.  For 
non-work related travel 61% agree that the ability to drive to make these trips is important in their 
community.  The agreement that other transportation modes are available in a community for non-
work trips is at 52%. 
 
Survey Written Comments  
Of the written comments from the survey, regarding Activity Centers, over 75% are favorable.  Many 
respondents identified support for compact development and walkable neighborhoods without calling 
this type of development an Activity Center.  Many written comments indicate support for alternative 
transportation modes (bicycle/pedestrian, bus transit and rail transit) to improve mobility within Travis 
County.  These comments ran 86% in support of to 14 % against.  Again, support for the Activity Center 
and Transportation Corridor concept can be associated to these type comments since respondents are 
requesting improvements that will be provided through the development of Transportation Corridors.   
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff recommends no changes to the proposed concept of providing for an alternative way to develop 
land that encourages new growth to locate into “Activity Centers”.  Strong support is shown in on-line 
survey results and to a lesser degree in written comments in support of the concept.  Staff also 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            9 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



recommends emphasizing in the LWTP that traditional single family residential development 
transportation needs will continue to be supported through traditional planning and capital 
improvement funding. 
 

Supporting Activity Center Development along SH 130 and RM 620 
On-line Survey Results 
The LWTP identifies two areas of emphasis to support Activity Center development through investing 
in Transportation Corridors, the SH 130 corridor and the RM 620 corridor.  Question 8 asks for the level 
of agreement in the prioritization of these two corridors.  More respondents support funding 
improvements in the RM 620 corridor (51%) than in the SH 130 corridor (38%).  Disagreement with 
prioritizing these corridors for funding is at 32% for the SH 130 corridor and 25% for the RM 620 
corridor.   
 
Survey Written Comments 
Many respondents through the on-line survey’s written comments pointed to needed transportation 
infrastructure improvements for western Travis County to relieve growth related impacts especially 
along the RM 620 and RM 2222 corridors.   Off those comments citing congestion and growth as a 
major concern, two thirds specifically mention the RM 620/RM2222 corridor.  Very few survey written 
comments show preferences on support of prioritizing transportation corridors or supporting Activity 
Center development in the SH 130 corridor and the RM 620 corridors. 
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
As mentioned, more respondents support prioritizing roadway funding for the RM 620 corridor in support 
of Activity Centers than the SH 130 corridor; however, emerging developments that are market driven 
are occurring along the SH 130 corridor.  With eastern Travis County experiencing rapid growth and 
many natural and cultural resources in need of protection, staff recommends balancing development 
with conservation in both eastern and western Travis County by implementing the Growth Guidance 
Concept.  Staff recommends no changes to the draft recommendations that emphasize supporting 
Activity Center development through investing in Transportation Corridors along SH 130 and in the RM 
620 corridor.   

Incentives to Support Activity Centers 
On-line Survey Results 
Question 9 looked at the level of agreement to use incentives to support Activity Center development.  
Responses to all incentives listed have over a 50% approval rating for use except for the use of tax 
abatements to employers locating in Activity Centers.  That approval rating is just over 45%. 
Three of the seven incentives listed have over a 60% agreement for use.  These are: 

• Reconstructing roadways within and supporting Activity Centers to be more bicycle, bus and 
pedestrian friendly (67%) 

• Locating public facilities in Activity Centers (67%) 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            10 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



• Prioritizing funding transportation improvements that support Activity Centers (63%) 
It is important to note that there is strong support from the survey showing agreement to prioritize 
transportation funding that support Activity Centers which supports the LWTP concept to develop 
“Transportation Corridors” to support Activity Centers. 

 
Survey Written Comments  
Written comments received through the on-line survey reveal some reservations on using incentives to 
support Activity Centers and Transportation Corridors.  Sixty-two comments of the 559 comments 
identified were grouped in the following areas:  

• Funding should occur on current roadways,  
• Fund improvements in existing neighborhoods, and 
• Fund roads before providing incentives to support Activity Centers. 

Of responses against incentivizing Centers, most respond that funding should occur on current 
roadways, followed by incentives are not needed to support Activity Centers. 
 
Another grouping of comments found that the County should be looking at other ways to plan for 
growth.  Of the 559 comments identified, 29 cited the following ways the County should respond: 

• Limit growth,  
• Let market determine growth, and  
• Development should pay for growth   

 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
There are no changes required.  Future policy decisions will be brought back to the Court for discussion 
that will identify mechanisms to support the development Activity Centers.  These questions were 
developed to gauge the public’s level of support for these implementation tools. 

 
County Needs to Limit Growth  
Survey Written Comments  
As mentioned, written comments from the survey against the use of Activity Centers requested that 
the County take measures to limit growth and specifically along the RM 620 corridor until adequate 
infrastructure is funded to support new growth.   
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff does not recommend providing measures in the LWTP to limit growth.   

Activity Center/Transportation Corridor Confusion 
Written comments from the survey reveal some confusion of what an Activity Center represents.  Also, 
discussions with meeting attendees sometimes required visual aides to describe Activity Centers and 
Transportation Corridors. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            11 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff is aware that the Activity Center definition needs to have a better understanding especially with the 
public.  Staff will work to make the Activity Center and Transportation Corridor concept more 
understandable and clear in the LWTP and will work with CAMPO staff in that regard.  

 
WRITTEN COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 
 

Limit Growth  
A few written comments requested that the County take measures to limit growth and specifically 
along the RM 620 corridor until adequate infrastructure is funded to support new growth.   
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff does not recommend providing measures in the LWTP to limit growth.   
 

Request for Adding New Activity Center 
Staff received a written request from Qualico Communities to include the Sun Chase development off 
of Pearce Lane as an Activity Center.  Staff met with the developer and reviewed the development’s 
proposed land uses and density and found them to be closer to traditional single family development 
than those of the proposed Activity Center concept.  Staff recognizes changes in proposed 
developments do occur.  TNR staff monitors emerging and proposed developments and if it is 
determined changes are needed in Activity Center locations; the LWTP amendments will be brought 
back to the Commissioners Court for approval and submitted to CAMPO for its plan amendment 
process. 
 
Staff’s responses and recommendations: 
No changes are required.  Staff does not recommend identifying the Sun Chase development as an 
Activity Center.   

Request for Jurisdictional Plan Coordination 
The City of Pflugerville has concerns that the LWTP has policies that may conflict with the City’s current 
comprehensive plan especially in the ETJ of the City.  City staff also suggested that maps should show 
the ETJ’s of municipal jurisdictions to allow for better coordination between agencies.  It requests that 
County staff coordinate its future conservation and development plans identified through the LWTP 
with the staff from the City of Pflugerville. 
 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            12 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff recognizes the planning overlap of municipal extraterritorial jurisdictions in the unincorporated area 
of Travis County.  TNR staff will work to identify where additional planning coordination is needed with 
all jurisdictions and agencies as new polices and plans evolve from the LWTP Action Plan. 

Request for Revision to Emerging Growth Map 
The City of Leander requested that TNR staff add new developments occurring in the western portions 
of the City along FM 1431 to the LWTP Emerging Growth Map.   
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
The City of Leander has annexed these areas and the emerging development currently lies within its 
limits.  Staff is aware of the rapid growth throughout the County and will keep reviewing its Emerging 
Growth Map in relation to policies developed through the LWTP. 
 

RECOMMENDED PLAN REVISIONS 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (EXHIBIT C) 
 
Page i:  Insert comment regarding traditional single family residential development continuing to be 
supported through planning and funding of transportation capital improvements. 
 
Page v:  Map 2:  Development Concept Map revised.  Add labels to Activity Centers at periphery of 
Travis County boundary. 
 
GUIDING GROWTH PLAN (EXHIBIT D) 

 
Page 7:  Revise outdated Centers information.  
 
Page 8:  Replace Figure 3: CAMPO Centers with updated 2040 Activity Center location map for Travis 
County.   
 
Page 52:  Map 14:  Development Concept Map revised.  Add labels to Activity Centers at periphery of 
Travis County boundary. 
 
BACKGROUND REPORT (EXHIBIT E) 
No revisions. 
 
SUMMARY OF SELECT PLANS, ORDINANCES, AND RULES (EXHIBIT F) 
Revisions were made as required to update select Plans, Ordinances and Rules related to development 
and transportation issues. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            13 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Transportation 

SURVEY FINDINGS 
  

Requests for Alternative Modes of Transportation 
Survey Written Comments 
The predominant comment received requests or supports providing for alternative transportation 
modes to improve mobility within Travis County.  Specifically, most, 161 comments of the 559 
identified, respond requesting bicycle facilities and pedestrian facilities to relieve congestion and 
provide for an option or alternative to driving.   
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
The LWTP proposes to expand options and choice on how people live, work, play and how they travel.  
With respect to transportation, staff recommends providing for a transportation system that 
accommodates multiple modes of transportation – motor vehicles, walking, bicycling and transit.  The 
Transportation Corridor Concept as well as Travis County’s arterial policy to provide residents a full range 
of travel options is consistent with the request of the respondents. 

Requests for Transit Service and Facilities  
Survey Written Comments 
Bus transit facilities and service are the next requested mode followed by the need for rail facilities at 
about half of the response for bus transit facilities.   
 
Staff’s response and recommendations:   
Staff recommends no changes.  The expansion of transit service in unincorporated Travis County is not 
part of the LWTP.  However, the County can do more in helping transit providers expand their service 
areas and enhance the quality of those services by partnering on infrastructure improvements.  
Additionally, transportation corridors are to be developed with transit facilities when transit services are 
available. 
 

Traffic Congestion  
Survey Written Comments 
Solutions to relieve traffic congestion are the next major concerns of survey participants.  Frustration 
with existing traffic congestion, transportation infrastructure not keeping up with growth and current 
needs and increased travel times are the most identifiable comments from respondents. 
 
Of those that cite traffic congestion and growth as a major concern, over two thirds specifically 
mention the RM 620, RM 2222 area in western Travis County as needing transportation improvements.  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            14 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



No other areas in Travis County are identifiable in the survey comments as the RM 620, RM222 
corridors.  Most concerns cite needed improvements along the existing State system roadways. 
 
Staff’s response and recommendations are as follows: 
Much of the LWTP planning effort has been in response to the effects of a tremendous amount of growth 
that has occurred and continues within Travis County.  Congestion is major result of the effects of growth 
and the inability to provide needed infrastructure to support that growth.  While many of the 
respondents point to State system’s roadways such as RM 620, RM 2222, Loop 360 as congested 
corridors and the need for relief, this may signal potential public support of providing for new options 
and alternatives such as the Activity Center and Transportation Corridor Concept proposed in the draft 
LWTP. 
 

Prioritizing Transportation Corridors to Support Activity Centers 
On-line Survey Results 
Part of Question 9 asked for respondents’ level of agreement to incentivize Activity Centers by 
prioritizing funding of transportation improvements that support Activity Centers.  Sixty-three percent 
of the responses were in agreement to prioritize transportation funding that support Activity Centers. 
 
The LWTP identifies two areas of emphasis, the SH 130 corridor and the RM 620 corridor.  As 
mentioned, many respondents pointed to needed improvements for western Travis County to relieve 
traffic.  Limited response was received supporting or not supporting the SH 130 corridor. 
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff recommends no changes to the draft LWTP recommendations that emphasize funding 
Transportation Corridors along SH 130 and RM 620 to support existing and future Activity Centers.  The 
LWTP does not establish the level of priority associated with funding improvements to the Transportation 
Corridors that serve the SH 130 and RM 620 corridors.  Future discussions will be brought before the 
Court for consideration to determine level of priority. 

   

Traffic Safety 
Survey Written Comments 
Safety was mentioned numerous times with specific requests to improve access to Vandegrift High 
School. 
 
Staff’s response and recommendations: 
TNR traffic engineering staff is working with TXDoT on providing additional access to Vandegrift High 
School.  Safety improvement funding is outside the scope of the LWTP.  Safety improvements are 
identified and developed by traffic engineering staff and are funded as needed and through the capital 
improvement bond funding process. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            15 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



WRITTEN COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 
Lakeway Letter   
A written response from Lakeway and a few comments from the survey do not support adding 
additional lane capacity to existing RM 620 and ask for the County to seek additional traffic relief 
through developing additional new capacity.  Lakeway comments also state that providing options that 
can change travel behavior is not a well-conceived transportation plan. They also state that the plan 
should focus on planning a regional system of freeways that accommodate the mode of travel that 
county residents prefer and will use. 

Staff’s response and recommendations: 
The survey responses and Lakeway’s concerns show that solutions to congestion especially along the RM 
620 corridor are an important issue for this region.  Staff is in agreement that a regional system of 
roadways that are well connected is a part of the mobility solution for the region.  However, it is a part of 
the solution, not all of the solution.  County staff believes that the LWTP sets forth the ability to expand 
beyond just planning for and funding only added lane capacity to one that expands transportation 
options and development choices.  Options related to where people can live, work, play and how they 
commute and options that support new ways to develop.  The LWTP recommends building a 
transportation system that accommodates multiple modes of transportation, and recognizes that 
automobiles are the predominant mode of transportation and will continue to be in the future.  Staff 
recognizes that the choice of traditional, low density development will continue and the County will 
continue supporting the transportation improvements needed for those type developments.  
Transportation staff will continue to seek solutions to the region’s congestion problems through 
“traditional” transportation planning; however, staff recommends through the LWTP that we look 
further and provide for new options that will lead to improvements to the region’s mobility.   

 
LWTP vs. County Transportation Plan 
Discussions with the public during public and community meetings revealed confusion with the LWTP 
transportation component and the County’s transportation plan – the CAMPO 2035 Regional 
Transportation Plan.  Many residents misunderstood the Development Concept Map and thought that 
the only transportation improvements being planned and implemented were those shown as 
“Transportation Corridors”.  Staff explained that the County uses the CAMPO 2035 Plan as its 
transportation plan, used in development review and capital improvement planning.  The LWTP, 
through the Development Concept, provides for an alternative to accommodate new growth, “Activity 
Centers”, and support those new growth areas through “Transportation Corridors”.  Transportation 
Corridors are arterials that have expanded travel choices that connect to and serve “Activity Centers”.  
The LWTP identifies the locations of these existing and future “Transportation Corridors”. 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            16 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff will clarify the term “Transportation Corridor” in Development Concept section of LWTP to help 
alleviate the confusion of the LWTP and the County’s transportation plan and clarify the uses of the two 
Plans. 
 

Highlight Planning in SH 130 Corridor 
A comment was received to expand discussion on the existing and future development and 
transportation investment occurring in the SH 130 corridor.  Also, show the benefits of these new 
Activity Center type developments related to limiting sprawl and providing for economic development. 

Staff’s response and recommendations: 
Staff provided a discussion of emerging developments in the C. Opportunities and Challenges section of 
the LWTP.  Within that section, existing and future development is described by quadrants within the 
County.  Benefits of providing for this type development are also provided in the D. Growth Guidance 
Plan section of the LWTP. 
 

RECOMMENDED PLAN REVISIONS 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (EXHIBIT C) 
Page vi:  Add note after Transportation Corridor bullets that clarifies “Transportation Corridor” term 
and role of LWTP and CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan. 
 
GUIDING GROWTH PLAN (EXHIBIT D) 
No revisions. 
 
BACKGROUND REPORT (EXHIBIT E) 
No Revisions. 
 
SUMMARY OF SELECT PLANS, ORDINANCES, AND RULES (EXHIBIT F) 
Revisions were made as required to update select Plans, Ordinances and Rules related to development 
and transportation issues. 
 

 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Staff Report\TNR Staff FINAL.docx            17 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Travis County 
Executive Summary 
LAND, WATER, AND TRANSPORTATION PLAN  

Exhibit C: Revised Executive Summary 
 

DRAFT 
November 25, 2014 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

Judge Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 

Commissioner Ron Davis, Precinct 1 
 

Commissioner Bruce Todd, Precinct 2 
  

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Precinct 3 
   

Commissioner Margaret Gómez, Precinct 4  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

PREPARED BY TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Randy Nicholson, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
 
 
PLANNING AND GIS TEAM 
Charlie Watts, Planning Project Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
Sara Dilbert, GIS Specialist Intern 
 
 

POLICY AND TECHNICAL ADVISORS 
 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
Robert Armistead, Division Manager Parks 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director Development Services 
Charles Bergh, Division Director Parks 
Wendy Connally, Program Manager Resource Management 
Program 
Rose Farmer, Program Manager Resource Management Program 
Stacey Scheffel, Floodplain Manager 
Thomas Weber, Program Manager Environmental Quality 
Jon White, Division Director Natural Resources and 
Environmental Quality 
Melissa Zone, Senior Planner 
 
County Attorney’s Office 
Thomas Nuckols, County Attorney 
 
Commissioner Aides 
Deone Wilhite, Precinct 1  
Peter Einhorn, Precinct 2 
Bob Moore, Precinct 3  
Edith Moreida, Precinct 4 

 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 

Executive Summary 
 

A plan for Travis County 
The Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (LWTP) is the framework for formulating and enacting policies and developing capital 
improvement programs to guide growth and protect land and water resources in unincorporated Travis County (map 1).  The 
planning area covers nearly two-thirds of the county, is outside the limits of the county’s 22 municipalities, and is governed by the 
Travis County Commissioners Court.  The plan specifically addresses County services, provided through its Transportation and 
Natural Resources (TNR) department, for planning, building, and maintaining roads, parks and drainage systems, regulating 
development, mitigating hazards, and protecting land and water resources under its jurisdiction. 
 

Population growing in unincorporated areas 
The Commissioners Court approved TNR’s recommendation to undertake this planning effort because of the population growth 
occurring in their jurisdiction and corresponding impact on demand for County services.  If current trends continue, many of the 
estimated 1.5 million people residing in the county in 2035 will have settled on the fringe of existing urban areas, and many of these 
people will be residing in unincorporated areas (one-quarter of the approximately 212,000 people added to county-wide population 
between 2000 and 2010 located outside municipalities).  Taking the lead from the six county Capital Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (CAMPO) policy board, this plan strives to minimize conventional urban sprawl and encourage an alternative pattern of 
development. 
 
It’s about choice 
The LWTP is about choice, about expanding the options people have when choosing where they live, work, and play and how they 
travel on a daily basis. It’s about providing options that enhance Travis County residents’ quality of life, protect land and water 
resources for future generations, and use County resources wisely.  With respect to transportation, the LWTP recommends building 
a transportation system that accommodates multiple modes of transportation – motor vehicles, walking, bicycling, and transit.  
Automobiles will continue to be the predominant mode of transportation for the foreseeable future, and building new roadways or 
adding lanes to existing roadways will continue to be a strategy for reducing congestion.   Also, the County will continue to see 
traditional, low density, single family developments occurring in the unincorporated area of the County.  The County will continue to 
support mobility through the planning and funding of transportation infrastructure improvements to these areas.  But people are  
  

 
i 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



±

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

Austin

Lago
Vista

Lakeway

Leander

Volente

West Lake
Hills

Bee Cave

Jonestown

Webberville

Creedmoor

Briarcliff

Pflugerville

The Hills

Manor

Point Venture

Sunset Valley

Elgin

Cedar Park

Rollingwood

Round Rock

Mustang Ridge

San Leanna

Buda

Hutto

Georgetown

Kyle

Taylor

NM

LA

TX

OK AR

0 150 30075 Miles

DATA SOURCE YEAR

City Limit Boundaries Travis County 2013

Roads Travis County 2013

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

Bear
Creek

Dripping Springs

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

January 22, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 A

re
a
s

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 A

re
a
s

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Incorporated Areas

Travis County

Map 1

Square Miles Acres

Incorporated 371 237,181

Unincorporated 654 418,662

Total Area 1025 655,843

Note: The figures above are based on data as of June, 2013.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 
more receptive to using other modes of transportation for personal travel1 as traffic congestion worsens, and with this in mind, the 
LWTP seeks to provide residents with a full range of travel options to supplement motor vehicle travel.   Similarly, the LWTP 
supports the new housing options that a segment of the population is seeking and the market is providing.  It is expected that the 
choice of low density, single family housing will continue to be available but so will the mixed-use, compact, walkable developments 
that are being planned and built by developers in the SH 130 growth corridor.      
 

Balancing Development and Conservation 
 
The LWTP seeks to balance development with conservation and subsequently has two main components: the Development Concept and the 
Land Conservation Concept, which feed into the Growth Guidance Concept.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Activity Centers and Transportation Corridors 
The LWTP encourages growth that follows CAMPO’s “Activity Centers and Transportation Corridors”2 land use patterns. “Activity 
Centers” are mixed-use developments that have the density and design attributes that accommodate vehicular traffic, support 
walking and bicycling, and are conducive to transit. “Transportation Corridors” accommodate multiple modes of transportation -- 
automobiles, pedestrians, bicyclists, and transit -- and connect Activity Centers.  Travis County encourages this type of development 
pattern because it provides housing and transportation options consistent with community values and market trends and, due to its 
compactness, reduces vehicle-miles-traveled, service area requiring roadway infrastructure, and size of footprint impacting land and 
water resources. 

1 CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, Public Involvement Surveys, 2010; City of Austin Strategic Mobility Plan, Community Objectives, April 2010. 
2 “Activity Centers are planned and built mixed use developments that have the density and diversity of land use and design attributes that produce lower 
vehicle miles traveled and support transit, bicycling and walking.”  CAMPO definition created for draft CAMPO 2040 Plan, Dec. 2013.  

DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT  
Activity Centers & Transportation Corridors 

LAND CONSERVATION CONCEPT  
Conservation Areas & River and Creek Corridors  

 

 

GROWTH GUIDANCE CONCEPT  

 
iii 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 
 
NOTE: CAMPO’s policy and TNR’s recommendation to support activity centers and transportation growth management strategies are 
not intended to preclude the use of any mode of travel.  However high-cost modes, such as rail, require careful consideration of cost-
effectiveness and the support of market forces.  TNR’s plan is not intended to get the County into the transit business but it is 
suggested that the County can do more to help existing service providers expand their service areas and enhance the quality of those 
services by partnering on infrastructure improvements such as those that were funded by Capital Metro (Cap Metro) through its Build 
Greater Austin Program (BGAP)/Build Central Texas (BCT) and sharing facilities such as the County’s Interlocal Agreement with 
Capital Area Rural Transportation Services (CARTS) to utilize part of the Southeast Metropolitan Park  (SE Metro Park) as a transfer 
station. 
 
Conservation Areas and River and Creek Corridors 
The LWTP encourages conservation that follows “Conservation Areas and River and Creek Corridors” land use patterns.  
“Conservation Areas” are large, contiguous tracts of land that has been prioritized for conservation – such as prime farmland – and 
are preferred because they protect land and water resources better and provide richer nature-related recreational and educational 
experiences than smaller, isolated tracts. “River and Creek Corridors” are minimally developed, often used for passive recreation or 
agriculture, and ideally connect conservation areas. In eastern Travis County, they typically include floodplains and riparian zones. 
They are a preferred configuration because they lessen stormwater impacts, facilitate filtering of runoff and groundwater recharge, 
provide wildlife and multi-purpose trail corridors, and provide recreational and educational access to rivers and creeks.  Strategically 
locating conservation areas and corridors near or within population centers mitigates impacts of increased impervious cover on land 
and water resources, brings nature close to where people live, and positively affects real estate values. 
 

Development Concept (map 2) 
 
The Development Concept provides an alternative to how new growth will be accommodated and supported in the unincorporated 
areas of Travis County.  The Concept allows for expanded choices for residents living in these areas through the encouragement of 
new alternatives for land development (Activity Centers) and through choices in the ways residents commute (Transportation 
Corridors).   

 
iv 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



£¤290

£¤290

") 620 

")2222

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")1626

UV130

UV45 

UV 45

UV 45 

UV130

Sunfield
MUD

Pilot Knob

Pflugerville-
SH 130 Corridor

Whisper
Valley PUD

Barton
Creek

Mall

IH-35 & SH 45

Manor

SH 130 &
US 290/

Wildhorse

Lakeway

Bee Cave

South Austin
Regional Center

Goodnight
Ranch

Mustang
Ridge

South Park
Meadows

Tech Ridge

Circuit of the
Americas

Four Points

Colorado River
Plan Center

Pflugerville-
Downtown

SH 130 &
Decker Lake Rd

Buda

Kyle

Dripping Springs

Elgin

Taylor

Hutto

Round Rock
Downtown

Cedar Park

Leander

Georgetown

Oak Hill

Lakeline
Station

Area

Avery
Center

University
Boulevard

Robinson
Ranch

0 2 4 6 81

Miles D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
c
e
p
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
c
e
p
t

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

. DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

November 06, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

Highway

Railroad

Incorporated Areas

County Maintained Rd

Major Rd

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Corridors City of Austin, CAMPO, Travis County TNR 2012-2014

Centers (2040 Plan Draft) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization Draft 2013

Subdivision Data Travis County 2012

Transportation
Corridors

SH 130 Corridor

Activity Centers

(2040 Plan - Draft)
(Boundaries as defined by Sponsor)

W
e
is

s
W

e
is

s

Howard

Howard

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

Slaughter

Slaughter

D
e
ss

a
u

D
e
ss

a
u

T
h
ax

to
n

T
h
ax

to
n

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

Parmer

Parmer

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

Braker

Braker

Pearce
Pearce

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
a
ll
e
y

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
a
ll
e
y

A
rte

ria
l A

A
rte

ria
l A

Elroy
Elroy

Kelly
Kelly

Pecan
Pecan

Pflugerville

Pflugerville

Pkwy
Pkwy

C
am

e
ro

n

C
am

e
ro

n

Map 2
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 
Activity Centers are: 
 Compact, multi-use, developments that are well connected by all transportation modes (autos, pedestrians, bikes and transit), 
 Designed to allow for an alternative land development pattern and increased housing options, 
 Locations identified through the local Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) transportation planning process in the 

preparation for the CAMPO 2040 long range transportation plan. 

Transportation Corridors provide:  
 Connectivity within and between Activity Centers and other transportation corridors,  
 Opportunities to add automobile lane capacity and multi-modal options that allow commuters’ transportation choices and 

encourage and support locations of new growth.  

Benefits of the Development Concept 
Benefits of encouraging this type of growth pattern can lead to reductions in traffic congestion and travel times, increased natural 
resource opportunities, reduced impact of surrounding sensitive natural resources, cost savings related to transportation travel, and 
public infrastructure cost savings.  
 

Development Concept Map 
As mentioned, all Activity Centers were identified and supported by area jurisdictions and other implementing planning agencies, 
see Map 2.  The cities of Austin, Pflugerville and Bee Cave provided locations derived from approved comprehensive plans and Travis 
County used its Colorado River Corridor Plan as a guide in locating an Activity Center in eastern Travis County.  Other locations, such 
as Whisper Valley, Pilot Knob MUD, South Austin Regional Center and SH 130 & US 290/Wildhorse MUD have development 
agreements and in many cases roadway public/private partnerships that provide and enhance connectivity within and to Activity 
Centers.   Finally, adjacency to existing utilities along municipal boundaries where growth has been accommodated through 
traditional development provide opportunities for new Activity Centers.  Goodnight Ranch and the Decker Lake Road Centers are 
examples of these locations supported by roadway public/private partnerships.     

Map 2 also identifies the location of Transportation Corridors that support Activity Centers within the unincorporated areas of the 
County.   Identified are two areas of emphasis, the SH 130 corridor and the RM 620 corridor.  In many areas, the market has already 
begun to plan and develop using this land and transportation development concept especially in eastern Travis County along the SH 
130 corridor.   Travis County will continue to use the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) long range 
transportation plan as its transportation plan to plan for future transportation infrastructure improvements.  The current plan, 

 
vi 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 
CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, is used by the County to assess transportation needs during development review, 
develop capital improvement projects, direct regional transportation policy, and identify needs and connectivity between other 
jurisdictions and agencies.  Part of the CAMPO 2035 Plan identifies future arterial improvements for the region and in the 
unincorporated area of the County.  In the LWTP, the Development Concept map identifies which arterials in the CAMPO 2035 Plan 
are Transportation Corridors.  In the future, the Commissioners Court may look to prioritize these Corridors to help support the 
Activity Center concept.  

Development concentrated in SH 130 corridor 
In the unincorporated area, most new development is emerging along the SH 130 corridor where numerous single-family and multi-
family subdivisions are under construction and large mixed-use centers have been planned or are underway.  Development is 
particularly concentrated in the northern part of the corridor, near the SH 130 and SH 45 intersection, but extends linearly along SH 
130 and SH 45 SE.  Growth in this area will require additional roadway capacity provided through new and improved Transportation 
Corridors, including a proposed new crossing of the Colorado River in eastern Travis County.    

RM 620 Transportation corridor   
Although projects are emerging in western Travis County, development constraints create smaller and less intensely developed 
locations than those in the eastern part of the county.  The jurisdictions of Bee Cave, Lakeway and Cedar Park have identified 
portions of their communities as Activity Centers; however, limited improvements to existing western Transportation Corridors have 
impacted the quality of life for residents living within the area.  These Centers will require improvements to all transportation modes 
(automobile, pedestrian, bicycle and transit) within the Transportation Corridor along RM 620 and connecting to RM 620 (RM 2244, 
RM 2222, and SH 71 West). 
 

Conservation Concept (map 3) 
 

A Conservation Tradition 
The conservation component of the LWTP is built upon twenty years of conserving land in unincorporated Travis County.   Through 
previous plans and programs, all of which were vetted by the public and adopted by the Commissioners Court, the County developed 
and subsequently implemented two major initiatives: to develop a preserve for endangered species habitat protection (Balcones 
Canyonland Conservation Plan, 1995) and to acquire parkland (Travis County Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan, 2006 and 
Colorado River Corridor Plan, 2012).  In 2012 it also initiated its Conservation Easement Program to establish conservation  

 
vii 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



#0

#0

#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0
#0 #0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0

#0

#0#0#0

#0#0#0
#0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0 #0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0
#0

#0

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV45 

UV360

UV 45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

W
ilb
a
r
g
e
r
C
r

Co
lorado Ri

ve
r

Lake
Travis

P
e
d
e
rn

al
es
Riv
er

Ham
ilton

Cr

B
ig
S
a
n
d
y
C
re
e
k

C
o
w
C
re
e
k

Bingha
m
C
re
e
k

CypressCreek

G
illela

n
d
C
r

O n io n

Cr

#0

#0

#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0
#0 #0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0

#0

#0#0#0

#0#0#0
#0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0 #0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0
#0

#0

£¤290

£¤290

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1626

UV130

UV45 

UV130

L
a
n
d
 C

o
n
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

L
a
n
d
 C

o
n
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

Shingle Hills

!(

Existing Conserved Lands
(Parkland, Preserves, City of Austin
WQPL, & Travis County Non-BCP
Conservation Easement Properties)

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 2)

Map 3

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

November 13, 2014 

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

HAYSHAYS

Incorporated Areas

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Parkland Travis County, City of Austin, TPWD, LCRA 2012-2013

Preserve Areas Travis County, City of Austin, LCRA, USFWS 2011-2012

GCW & BCV Habitat & Karst Zones Travis County, City of Austin, BCCP 1996

Listed Salamander Habitat U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 2013

Post Oak Savanna Ecoregion U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2005

Prime Farmland USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2002

Floodplain Federal Emergency Management Agency 2008

Springs
USGS, TWDB, Capitol Environmental Services, 

TPWD
2013

Barton Creek & Little Barton Creek 

Watershed

Travis County, City of Austin Watershed 

Protection Department
2013

Waterbodies, Creeks U.S. Geological Survey NHD 2003

Elevation U.S. Geological Survey NED 10m 2002

Threatened &
Endangered
Species Habitat

100- yr Floodplain

Prime Farmland

Post Oak Savanna

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 1)

Springs#0

Barton Creek/ Little
Barton Creek Watersheds

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 
easements on private properties, most of which are working farms, in partnership with willing landowners. The purpose of this plan 
is to chart a course for conserving land in over the next twenty years. 
 
Conservation Opportunities and Challenges 
 
 Travis County is ecologically diverse and differs dramatically east from west  
 Far more land has been conserved in the western part of the county than the eastern part: approximately one-quarter of 

unincorporated western Travis County is conserved while only approximately 2% of eastern Travis County is conserved 
(because protecting endangered species habitat, all of which is in western Travis County, has been a major driver of 
conservation)  

 Virtually all 100-year floodplain is in eastern Travis County and provides a template for the Colorado River and eastern creeks  
 Virtually all Prime Farmland is in eastern Travis and can be conserved ahead of development 
 The Post Oak Savanna and adjacent Blackland Prairies and Colorado River Floodplain region is the most ecologically diverse 

area in the county  
 Many springs are co-located with high priority resources -- endangered species habitat in western Travis County and Post Oak 

Savanna in eastern Travis County 
 Careful consideration needs to be given to future acquisitions to ensure they do not conflict with access needed in areas 

susceptible to wildfires or floods or areas having severe safety or congestion issues. 
 
Conservation Initiatives West  
 Complete land acquisition for the Balcones Canyonland Preserve (BCP) 
 Continue land conservation for the Pedernales River Corridor 
 Initiate land conservation in Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds 
 Maintain Hamilton Creek and Cypress Creek corridors as secondary priorities 
 Maintain Cow Creek and Bingham/Big Sandy Creek corridors as secondary priorities 

 

  

 
ix 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 
Conservation Initiatives East  
 Complete Onion Creek Greenway (Bluff Springs, McKinney Falls Parkway to Colorado River) 
 Complete Gilleland Creek Greenway (Northeast Metro Park to Colorado River) 
 Continue land conservation for the Colorado River Corridor  
 Initiate land conservation for the Wilbarger Creek corridor 
 Initiate farmland conservation program 
 Initiate Post Oak Savanna conservation program (including adjacent Blackland Prairie and Colorado River Floodplain and 

Terraces eco-regions) 
 

Growth Guidance Concept (map 4) 
 
 The Growth Guidance Concept identifies areas where both development and conservation interests need to be considered. 
 Development pressure on land and water resources is greater in the eastern part of the county than the western part but 

compact development along the SH 130 corridor allows conservation to occur ahead of development 
 Development associated with Elgin Activity Center in Bastrop County is pressing northeast Travis County where prime 

farmland and potential conservation corridors are located. 
 The Manor Activity Center is notable because it is a bridge between the Wilbarger Creek corridor on its northeast side and the 

Gilleland Creek Corridor on its southwest side  
 A comprehensive bike and pedestrian trail system – interconnecting transportation and conservation corridors – can be 

developed in the SH 130 corridor 
 The Colorado River and eastern creek corridors connect to Activity Centers and help mitigate the environmental impacts of 

development and bring nature and recreational opportunities close to where people live 
 Transportation Corridors cross numerous flood plains, including the Colorado River’s broad floodplain, and are areas of 

potential conflicts 
 Conservation of the Post Oak Savanna and adjacent Blackland Prairie and Colorado River Floodplain is time sensitive because 

development is encroaching from the west  
 Location of BCP limits Transportation Corridor development in western Travis County. 

 
x 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



W
ilb
a
r
g
e
r
C
r

Co
lorado Ri

ve
r

Lake
Travis

P
e
d
e
rn

al
es
Riv
er

Ham
ilton

Cr

B
ig
S
a
n
d
y
C
re
e
k

C
o
w
C
re
e
k

Bingha
m
C
re
e
k

CypressCreek

G
illela

n
d
C
r

O n io n

Cr

#0

#0

#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0
#0 #0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0

#0

#0#0#0

#0#0#0
#0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0 #0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0
#0

#0

£¤290

£¤290

") 620 

")2222

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")1626

UV130

UV45 

UV 45

UV 45 

UV130

BASTROPBASTROP

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

November 07, 2014 

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

LW
T

P
 G

ro
w

th
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

LW
T

P
 G

ro
w

th
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

HAYSHAYS

Development Concept

Incorporated Areas

Major Creeks

Rivers & Lakes

Existing Conserved Lands
(Parkland, Preserves, City of Austin
WQPL, & Travis County Non-BCP
Conservation Easement Properties)

Transportation Corridors

SH 130 Corridor
W

e
is

s
W

e
is

s

Howard

Howard

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

Slaughter

Slaughter

D
e
ss

a
u

D
e
ss

a
u

T
h
ax

to
n

T
h
ax

to
n

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

Parmer

Parmer

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

Braker

Braker

Pearce
Pearce

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
al

le
y

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
al

le
y

A
rte

ria
l A

A
rte

ria
l A

Elroy
Elroy

Kelly
Kelly

Pecan
Pecan

Pflugerville

Pflugerville

Pkwy
Pkwy

C
am

e
ro

n

C
am

e
ro

n

Activity Centers

(2040 Plan - Draft)
(Boundaries as defined by Sponsor)

Map 4

Barton Creek/ Little
Barton Creek
Watersheds

Springs#0

Threatened &
Endangered
Species Habitat

100- yr Floodplain

Prime Farmland

Post Oak Savanna

Land Conservation
Concept

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 1)

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 2)

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Parkland Travis County, City of Austin, TPWD, LCRA 2012-2013

Preserve Areas Travis County, City of Austin, LCRA, USFWS 2011-2012

GCW & BCV Habitat & Karst Zones Travis County, City of Austin, BCCP 1996

Listed Salamander Habitat U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 2013

Post Oak Savanna Ecoregion U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2005

Prime Farmland USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2002

Floodplain Federal Emergency Management Agency 2008

Springs
USGS, TWDB, Capitol Environmental Services, 

TPWD
2013

Barton Creek & Little Barton Creek 

Watershed

Travis County, City of Austin Watershed 

Protection Department
2013

Waterbodies, Creeks U.S. Geological Survey NHD 2003

Elevation U.S. Geological Survey NED 10m 2002

Corridors City of Austin, CAMPO, Travis County TNR 2012-2014

Centers (2040 Plan Draft) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization Draft 2013

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



LWTP DRAFT – November 25, 2014 
Funding Capital Improvements 
Travis County’s traditional revenue sources for capital improvements have been General Funds, Certificates of Obligations, and 
General Obligation Bonds, of which only General Obligation Bonds require voter approval.  Less commonly-used sources are 
Participation Agreements (public/private partnerships), Tax Abatements, and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Bonds.  Transportation 
Infrastructure Reinvestments Zones (TIRZ) and 380/381 Agreements have not been used but are potential funding sources. 
 
State and federal funding distributed through CAMPO is more and more difficult to obtain due to increased competition and CAMPO 
allocation policies.  All demands will force us to seek new or unconventional funds such as federal transit monies that could be used 
to improve infrastructure such as sidewalks that support transit, walking, and biking. 
 
Unprecedented growth has also demanded collaboration among city, county, TXDoT, the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
(CTRMA) and developers.  Of particular concern is the State’s continuing funding shortage leading to the County’s increasing funding 
of improvement to the state highway system, improvements demanded by frustrated county residents who do not care about 
jurisdictional boundaries but care greatly about the safety and congestion on the roads they rely upon for work, school, shopping, 
etc. 
  
LWTP Use 
 Sets priorities for transportation and conservation-related Capital Improvement Programs (CIPs) 
 Guides formulation of growth-related policies and practices 
 Guides long range, collaborative planning efforts such as the Colorado River Corridor Plan (CRCP) 
 Guides transportation and conservation-related public/private partnership  
 Sets Travis County’s growth-related agenda for Texas State legislative action 
 Guides Travis County Annual Work Plans and Annual Budgets 

 
An Umbrella Plan 

The LWTP is an umbrella plan for growth-related capital improvement plans, regulations, permits, programs, and services.  Many are 
already in place and only need to be monitored and updated as required.  Other actions, however, need to be undertaken to 
accomplish the plan’s goals to improve the quality of life of Travis County residents, optimize the benefits of land and water 
resources, and use Travis County resources wisely. 
 

 
xii 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Executive Summary\EXEC_SUMMARY_11_25_14.docx 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Travis County 
Guiding Growth 
LAND, WATER, AND TRANSPORTATION PLAN  

Exhibit D: Revised Growth Guidance Plan 
 

DRAFT 
November 25, 2014 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

Judge Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 

Commissioner Ron Davis, Precinct 1 
 

Commissioner Bruce Todd, Precinct 2 
  

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Precinct 3 
   

Commissioner Margaret Gómez, Precinct 4  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 
PREPARED BY TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Growth Guidance Plan 
Randy Nicholson, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
 
Public Engagement Plan 
Melissa Zone, Senior Planner 
 
PLANNING AND GIS TEAM 
 
Charlie Watts, Planning Project Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
David Shore, GIS Coordinator 
Frank Martin, GIS Analyst  
Sara Dilbert, GIS Specialist Intern 
 
 

POLICY AND TECHNICAL ADVISORS 
 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
Robert Armistead, Division Manager Parks 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director Development Services 
Charles Bergh, Division Director Parks 
Wendy Connally, Program Manager Resource Management 
Program 
Rose Farmer, Program Manager Resource Management Program 
Stacey Scheffel, Floodplain Manager 
Thomas Weber, Program Manager Environmental Quality 
Jon White, Division Director Natural Resources and 
Environmental Quality 
Melissa Zone, Senior Planner 
 
County Attorney’s Office 
Thomas Nuckols, County Attorney 
 
Commissioner Aides 
Deone Wilhite, Precinct 1  
Peter Einhorn, Precinct 2 
Bob Moore, Precinct 3  
Edith Moreida, Precinct 4 

 
 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
A. INTRODUCTION 

Travis County Plans for the Future .................................................................................................................................................. 1 
Vision, Guiding Values, and Mission ............................................................................................................................................... 1 
Transportation and Natural Resources Department ....................................................................................................................... 2 
Public Engagement ......................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Planning Horizon and Geographic Study Area ................................................................................................................................. 3 
Horizon Issues ................................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

  
B. FORECASTED DISTRIBUTION OF POPULATION 

Historical and Forecasted Population ............................................................................................................................................. 5 
Forecasted Distribution of Population ............................................................................................................................................ 7 
 

C. OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES 
Land Conversion Analysis ............................................................................................................................................................... 9 
Existing and Future Development ................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Land Resources ............................................................................................................................................................................ 17 
Water Resources .......................................................................................................................................................................2829 
Opportunities and Challenges ...................................................................................................................................................3233 
 

D. Growth Guidance Plan 
Goals and Objectives .................................................................................................................................................................4546 
Balancing Development and Land Conservation ........................................................................................................................4647 
Development Concept ...............................................................................................................................................................5051 
Land Conservation Concept .......................................................................................................................................................5556 
Growth Guidance Concept ........................................................................................................................................................6163 
Growth Guidance Policies ..........................................................................................................................................................6365 

 
E. ACTION PLAN 

Funding Capital Improvements ..................................................................................................................................................6871 
LWTP Applications .....................................................................................................................................................................6871 
An Umbrella Plan.......................................................................................................................................................................6972 

i 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
APPENDICES 

Appendix A: Funding for Capital Improvements........................................................................................................................... A-1 
 
LIST OF FIGURES  

Figure 1: Historical Population and Forecast by County .................................................................................................................. 5 
Figure 2: Travis County Incorporated vs. Unincorporated Population (2000 and 2010) ................................................................... 7 
Figure 3: CAMPO Centers ............................................................................................................................................................... 8 
Figure 4: Land Requirement to Accommodate Population Growth to 2035 .................................................................................. 10 
Figure 5: Unincorporated Developable Land (Unprioritized) Acreage ........................................................................................... 11 
Figure 6: Land Conserved in Unincorporated Travis County .......................................................................................................... 19 
Figure 7: Travis County’s Role in Conserving Land in Unincorporated Travis County ..................................................................... 20 
Figure 8: Threatened and Endangered Species in Travis County ................................................................................................... 23 
Figure 9: Growth Guidance Maps ................................................................................................................................................. 46 
Figure 10: Activity Center Information .......................................................................................................................................... 52 
Figure 11: River and Creek Corridor Priority Conditions ................................................................................................................ 58 

 
LIST OF MAPS 

Map 1: Travis County Incorporated Areas ....................................................................................................................................... 4 
Map 2: Travis County Future Growth .............................................................................................................................................. 6 
Map 3: Development Activity ....................................................................................................................................................... 13 
Map 4: Activity Centers and Emerging Development .................................................................................................................... 14 
Map 5: Lands Conserved in Unincorporated Travis County ........................................................................................................... 18 
Map 6: Ecoregions ........................................................................................................................................................................ 21 
Map 7: Prime Farmland ................................................................................................................................................................ 24 
Map 8: Threatened and Endangered Species Habitat ................................................................................................................... 26 
Map 9: Hydrology ......................................................................................................................................................................... 27 
Map 10: Groundwater Resources ................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Map 11: Springs............................................................................................................................................................................ 31 
Map 12:  Watershed Boundaries .................................................................................................................................................. 32 
Map 1213: Opportunities and Challenges ..................................................................................................................................3334 
Map 1314: Development Concept .............................................................................................................................................5152 
Map 1415: Land Conservation Concept .....................................................................................................................................5657 
Map 1516: LWTP Growth Guidance Concept ................................................................................................................................ 62 

ii 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

A: INTRODUCTION 
 

Travis County Plans for the Future 
 
The population of Travis County is forecasted to grow to approximately 1.5 million people by 2035, and demand for county services 
will grow accordingly.  The Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (LWTP) provides Travis County a framework for protecting land and 
water resources, building transportation and park systems, and efficiently delivering related services while maintaining a balanced 
budget.  It is a set of long-term goals and policies that the Commissioners Court will use to guide orderly development and the 
appropriate conservation of land and water resources within the unincorporated areas of Travis County.   
 
 Identify where the county will incent development 
 Identify where the county will incent conservation 
 Provide guidance to minimize incompatible land uses 
 Guide consistent collaboration with other governments and agencies at the regional and local level 
 Help coordinate private and public investment 

 
As with all Texas counties, Travis County must accomplish these objectives within the context of the legislative authority granted to 
counties by the state legislature.  While cities need to determine whether a proposed ordinance violates state law, counties need to 
determine whether a proposed ordinance is allowed by state law.  Travis County and other urban counties are seeking additional 
authority so they can effectively manage growth within their jurisdiction. 
 

Vision, Guiding Values, and Mission 
 
VISION FOR TRAVIS COUNTY 
Travis County’s vision for the county is one of an open, diverse community where all people are safe and healthy and can fulfill their 
hopes and dreams; where people enjoy a good quality of life and natural and cultural resources are protected for us and future 
generations. 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     1 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

VALUES THAT GUIDE TRAVIS COUNTY GOVERNMENT  
Taking responsibility and being accountable, fostering public trust, providing good customer service and excellence in performance, 
practicing sound fiscal policy, respecting and caring for the individual, acting with transparency, honesty and openness, and working 
in collaboration and cooperation with others. 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY MISSION 
Our mission is to preserve health, provide a safety net for the needy, ensure the public safety, facilitate the resolution of disputes, 
foster an efficient transportation system, promote recreational opportunities, and manage county resources in order to meet the 
changing needs of the community in an effective manner. 
 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department 
 
Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) is the department completing the LWTP.  Its mission is to provide citizens living in 
unincorporated areas of the county with transportation, natural and cultural resource protection, park, and land development 
services to promote public safety, health, and welfare in compliance with Texas laws and mandates of the Travis County 
Commissioners Court. TNR is completing the LWTP to facilitate more comprehensive decision-making across its different programs 
and leverage program resources so departmental services are delivered in the most cost-effective way.  The specific TNR functions 
addressed in the LWTP are as follows: 
 
 Planning and implementing park, land conservation, drainage, and transportation capital improvement programs 
 Managing parks, land conservation, endangered species habitat, water resource protection, and hazard mitigation programs 
 Regulating the subdivision of property, construction of streets and drainage in subdivisions, and development in floodplains 

 

Public Engagement 
 
The LWTP is built on existing transportation, resource protection, park, hazard mitigation, and land development plans, ordinances, 
and rules.  The public input process for the LWTP began, then, with information received from the public when these plans and 
ordinances were originally developed and adopted. Additional information about public opinions was also obtained from surveys 
completed by other agencies in recent years (see the LWTP Background Report).  THE COMPLETE REVIEW PROCESS WILL BE 
DESCRIBED WHEN COMPLETED.   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     2 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Planning Horizon and Geographic Study Area 
The planning horizon is 25 years and uses the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) population and growth 
projections for planning purposes.   This is aligned with the Travis County Central Campus Master Plan 2010 timeframe as well.  The 
geographic study area is the Extra-Territorial Jurisdictions (ETJs) of the 22 municipalities in Travis County and the unincorporated 
area outside these limits.   It is approximately 419,000 acres, or 654 square miles (see Map 1). 

Horizon Issues 
 
WILDLAND FIRE MITIGATION 
The recent occurrences of severe wildfires in central Texas at the urban interface with undeveloped land has increased public 
concern about loss of life and property damage from these events.  This problem is currently being addressed by the Joint City-
County Wildland Fire Task Force and Community Wildfire Protection Plan template but will need to be addressed in greater detail in 
the County’s Hazard Mitigation Plan.   
 
PUBLIC TRANSIT 
The County has historically opted to leave transit services to other providers including Capital Metro (CMTA) and Capital Area Rural 
Transportation System [CARTS].  However, it is apparent that the County will be sought as a partner in the development and funding 
of the system as the region moves forward in its effort to provide for a regional high capacity transit system.  For example, in June 
2012, the County was approached by Lone Star Rail (Austin-San Antonio passenger rail) to enter into an inter-local agreement with 
other jurisdictions to develop a tax increment finance zone to help finance the system (County Commissioners directed 
representatives from Lone Star Rail to return to report on how their discussions with other partners have proceeded). 

 
TRANSPORTATION FUNDING 
The current federal transportation funding system has not been able to keep pace with transportation infrastructure needs 
especially in rapidly growing areas such as the Central Texas region.  Construction costs are rising, federal and state gas taxes remain 
unchanged, leading to reduced spending power.  In the hopes of finding more sustainable revenue sources, Travis County has sought 
new ways to increase local revenues to help offset property tax based funding, shifting the financing  burden of larger, regional, 
more costly projects from public taxpayers to the users and private development that generate additional traffic.   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     3 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



±

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

Austin

Lago
Vista

Lakeway

Leander

Volente

West Lake
Hills

Bee Cave

Jonestown

Webberville

Creedmoor

Briarcliff

Pflugerville

The Hills

Manor

Point Venture

Sunset Valley

Elgin

Cedar Park

Rollingwood

Round Rock

Mustang Ridge

San Leanna

Buda

Hutto

Georgetown

Kyle

Taylor

NM

LA

TX

OK AR

0 150 30075 Miles

DATA SOURCE YEAR

City Limit Boundaries Travis County 2013

Roads Travis County 2013

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

Bear
Creek

Dripping Springs

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

January 22, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 A

re
a
s

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 A

re
a
s

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Incorporated Areas

Travis County

Map 1

Square Miles Acres

Incorporated 371 237,181

Unincorporated 654 418,662

Total Area 1025 655,843

Note: The figures above are based on data as of June, 2013.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

B: FORECASTED DISTRIBUTION OF POPULATION 
Historical and Forecasted Population Growth 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY VS METROPOLITAN PLANNING AREA GROWTH 
From 1980 to 2010, the population of Travis County grew at an average rate of 3.02% per year, from 419,573 residents in 1980 to 
1,024,266 in 2010.  In comparison, population of the five counties (Travis, Williamson, Hays, Bastrop and Caldwell) that make-up the 
region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) grew at a combined average rate of 3.65% per year.  This trend is expected to 
continue: in 2010, nearly two-thirds (60%) of the 5-county population resided in Travis County; by 2035, Travis County’s share of the 
5-county population is forecasted to decline to approximately one-half (48%) of the total 5-county population (see Figure 1).  See 
Map 2 for projected population within the unincorporated area of the County.   
 

Figure 1:  Historical Population and Forecast by County 
 

County 1980 Census 1990 Census 2000 Census 2010 Census 2025 Forecast 2035 Forecast 
Travis 419,573 576,407 812,280 1,024,266 1,318,000 1,555,300 
Williamson 76,521 139,551 249,967 422,679 702,700 1,026,500 
Hays 40,594 65,614 97,589 157,107 271,600 371,200 
Bastrop 24,726 38,263 57,733 74,171 149,200 215,500 
Caldwell 23,637 26,392 32,194 38,066 65,300 82,100 
5-County Total 585,501 846,227 1,249,763 1,716,289 2,506,800 3,250,600 

         Source:  CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, June 2010. 
 
INCORPORATED VS UNINCORPORATED GROWTH 
Between 1980 and 2010, much of the new population in the region located in low density single family housing on the fringe of 
existing urban areas, and much of it occurred outside municipal boundaries.  An additional 53,677 persons are living in 
unincorporated Travis County (see Figure 2) since 2000.  The percentage of the total county population living in unincorporated 
Travis County has increased as well, growing from 15.4% in 2000 to 17.5% in 2010. 
 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     5 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

Austin

Lago
Vista

Lakeway

Leander

Volente

West Lake
Hills

Bee Cave

Jonestown

Webberville

Creedmoor

Briarcliff

Pflugerville

The Hills

Manor

Point Venture

Sunset Valley

Elgin

Cedar Park

Rollingwood

Round Rock

Mustang Ridge

San Leanna

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.
DATA SOURCE

Population Projection (2035) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization

Hutto

Population Projection

2010 CAMPO Population

2035 CAMPO
Projection Increase

1 Dot = 10 People

Buda

Georgetown

Kyle

Taylor

Bear
Creek

Dripping Springs

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

January 22, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
u
tu

re
 G

ro
w

th
T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
u
tu

re
 G

ro
w

th

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Map 2
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Figure 2:  Travis County Incorporated vs. Unincorporated Population (2000 and 2010) 
 

Travis County 2000 Census % of County Total 2010 Census % of County Total 
Incorporated 687,062 84.6% 845,371 82.5% 
Unincorporated 125,218 15.4% 178,895 17.5% 
Total 812,280  1,024,266  

           Source:  2000 and 2010 US Census. 
 

Forecasted Distribution of Population 
 
ALLOCATION OF FORECASTED POPULATION 
CAMPO Centers Concept- As part of the demographic forecast prepared by the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(CAMPO), a Centers Growth Concept scenario was developed to guide where future population would be allocated.  The Centers 
Growth Concept is the implementation of a network of high density mixed use centers oriented around transportation investments 
included in the CAMPO long range transportation plan.  In Travis County, there are currently 18 32 centers located mainly at the 
intersections of existing and/or future planned transportation systems which include rail, transit and roadway improvements.  See 
Figure 3 for the draft CAMPO 2040 Centers locations.  Currently, CAMPO staff and local jurisdictional planning staff are working to 
refine the Center’s map geography in preparation for development of the CAMPO 2040 transportation plan.   Refinement to the plan 
will allow for a better alignment with local land use plans and approved development plans within the region.  While current 
forecast data is representative of Center’s geography in the CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, this data will be updated as 
the region refines that geography (see Figure 3).   
 
By implementing the Center’s concept, Travis County expects to direct its transportation investments and other incentives to target 
new growth and encourage development of a connected regional network of dense, mixed use centers that provide the ability to 
improve the region’s quality of life.  Currently, Webberville is the only center located completely within the unincorporated area of 
Travis County.  Six centers, (Pflugerville, SH 130 and US 290, Manor, Webberville, SH 130 and SH 71, and Mustang Ridge) are located 
along the SH 130 corridor.  Another six centers are located in the I-35 corridor (Ben White, Central Austin, Mueller, Highland Mall, 
Tech Ridge and I-35 and SH 45 N.  The population target ranges for medium centers range from 9,000 – 75,000 persons; the range 
for small centers is 1,000 – 10,000 persons.   
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     7 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3: CAMPO Centers  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     8 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 

C. OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES 
Opportunities and challenges arise from the interaction of development with the foundational land and water resources of 
unincorporated Travis County.   Because understanding these relationships provides insight into how the County can best guide 
growth and conservation in its jurisdiction, analyses were completed to answer the following questions: 
 
 How much land is needed to accommodate development over the next 25 years and is there enough? 
 What are the existing and emerging development patterns in unincorporated Travis County? 
 What are the county’s land and water resources and where are they located? 
 Where do development trends and conservation values clash or complement one another? 
 What opportunities and challenges can be “exploited” to balance development and conservation needs?  

 
Land Conversion Analysis 
 
The region continues to see high growth rates and long-term forecasts of continued growth in residential housing and employment 
that will require areas within unincorporated Travis County to be developed.  Some areas of the County will develop at faster rates 
and will be looked at to accommodate the region’s new growth.  An analysis of how much developable land in the unincorporated 
area is available is provided below.  Population forecasts for the next 25 years and the associated land development requirements to 
support that growth and current land supply data suggest that the unincorporated area will have more than enough developable 
land to accommodate expected growth. 
 
Two different Scenarios were examined to see if there were limitations to the amount of developable land required to 
accommodate growth in the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  Scenario 1 examined the developable acreage remaining if all 
prioritized land identified in the GreenPrint for Growth was preserved.  Scenario 2 looked further and examined the amount of 
developable land remaining if prime farmland was also conserved in addition to the prioritized lands identified in the GreenPrint for 
Growth.  A third Scenario that included water conservation priority lands was not evaluated and will be finalized in the next draft. 
 
Land requirements to support the population increase from 2012 were calculated for a forecasted 2035 population.   To determine 
the amount of land needed, first an analysis of the land requirements to support the existing 2012 population was performed (see 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     9 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Figure 4).  The analysis uses Travis County Appraisal District (TCAD) data to identify current land use acreage in the unincorporated 
areas of the County.  From this data, five land use categories (residential, commercial, industrial, civic, and unclassified) were 
selected that provide a representation of which parcels are considered developed land.   For 2012, it is estimated that 104,846 acres 
are developed within the unincorporated areas.  This equates to approximately .59 acres per person.  With an additional 111,706 
persons forecasted to reside within the unincorporated area and the acreage requirement for that growth at .59 acres per person, 
an additional 65,468 acres will be required to accommodate this population growth. 

 
Figure 4:  Land Requirement to Accommodate Population Growth to 2035 

 
Land Use 2012 

(Unincorporated Area) 
Unincorporated 

Acreage 2012 
Acreage/ 

Person 2012 
Additional Acreage 

Required for Pop Increase to 2035 
 

Residential 73,883 0.41 46,134  
Commercial 16,155 0.09 10,088  
Industrial 478 0.003 298  
Civic 10,196 0.06 6,367  
Unclassified 4,134 0.02 2,581  
Total Developed  Area 104,846 0.59 65,468  
   
2010 Unincorporated Population:  178,895 
2035 Forecasted Unincorporated Population:  290,601 
Additional Unincorporated Population (2010 – 2035):  111,706 

 
Translating the growth forecasts into demand for land requires assumptions regarding the future density of new developments. 
Using this type analysis produced a worst case scenario since it would extrapolate a trends based Scenario that is characterized by 
densities developed from an auto dependent population.   It is hoped that the density at which future land is developed will be 
influenced by policies within this plan which allow more dense development that protects the region’s natural resources. 
 
An analysis of available land for development was completed for the two Scenarios.  In Scenario 1, GreenPrint lands that were 
identified as high priority to be preserved were identified as not to be developed.   Within the unincorporated area, 179,840 acres 
were identified as being developable, meaning land that had no priority for preservation.  After removing the amount of acreage 
required for new growth, approximately 114,000 acres remain or 64% of the estimated 2012 unincorporated developable 
(unprioritized) acreage (see Figure 5). 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     10 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
Scenario 2 provides a more aggressive preservation scenario that includes the GreenPrint high priority lands as well as the Prime 
Agriculture lands.    Within the unincorporated area, 118,400 acres were identified as being developable.  After removing the 
amount of acreage required for the new growth, approximately 53,000 acres remain or 45% of the estimated 2012 unincorporated 
developable (unprioritized) acreage.   
 

Figure 5: Unincorporated Developable Land (Unprioritized) Acreage 
 
 Unincorporated 

Developable 
(Unprioritized) Acres 

2012 

Acreage Required to 
Accommodate Population 

Growth to 2035 

Unincorporated 
Developable 

(Unprioritized) Acreage 
Remaining 2035 

% of Developable 
(Unprioritized) Acres 
Remaining after 2035 

Scenario 1 - GreenPrint 179,840 65,468 114,372 64% 
     
Scenario 2 – GreenPrint 
with Prime Agricultural 
Lands 

118,400 65,468 52,932 45% 

 
During the next 25 years, population forecasts and current land supply data suggest that the unincorporated area will have more 
than enough developable land to accommodate expected growth.  It was estimated that new development will require 
approximately 66,000 acres, which will vary depending on how densely developers build and the implementation of the Centers 
Growth concept.  Developable (unprioritized) land in the unincorporated area totaled between 118,000 to 180,000 acres, depending 
on the Scenario.  The development requirements for the next 25 years result in a surplus of developable land that can adequately 
accommodate the expected growth to 2035. 
 

Existing and Future Development 
 
Identifying opportunities and constraints in existing and future development will help determine where growth is occurring and is 
expected to occur in the future.  Within Travis County, development identifiers help focus where lands are susceptible to being 
developed or may become developed within the planning horizon.  Development Activity (see Map 3) and Activity Centers and 
Emerging Development (see Map 4) comprise the following development identifiers: 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     11 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
 Final and Preliminary Plat Subdivisions 
 Vacant Platted Lot Inventory 
 Emerging Projects 
 CAMPO Centers 
 Growth Along County Boundaries 

 
Final and Preliminary Plat Subdivisions (Map 3): An indicator of where growth will occur is provided through land parcel status in the 
land development process.  Locations of preliminary platted subdivisions, undeveloped platted subdivisions and existing platted 
subdivisions with vacant lots reveal areas that could more easily receive growth than areas that would need to begin the land 
development process.   
 
 Directing growth to areas that have existing infrastructure requires less infrastructure investment. 
 Northeastern Travis County, much of the preliminary platting is found east of SH 130 abutting the incorporated limits of the 

City of Pflugerville.   
 Southeastern Travis County, large subdivisions that were platted before the 1900’s that have large lots that could be re-

subdivided. 
 Southwestern Travis County, large preliminary plans exist along SH 71 W. 
 Western Travis County has more vacant lots in final platted subdivisions than in eastern Travis County.  While housing costs 

may be a large factor in this result, these areas may be more available to new housing starts as the economy rebounds. 
 Far Northwestern Travis County shows little subdivision activity.  Most activity in the unincorporated area has occurred along 

FM 1431 in Jonestown.    
 

Emerging Development (Map 4)  
Emerging projects reveal the beginnings of plans and agreements between developers and local jurisdictions on proposed 
developments.  These type projects usually are more long term, potentially mixed use and are larger scale than normal single family 
developments.  
   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     12 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

0 2 4 6 81

Miles D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti

v
it

y

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

. DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

February 10, 2014 

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Subdivisions

Final Plats - Percent Built

(as of July, 2012)

Unplated Land

0% - 25%

25.01% - 50%

75.01% - 100%

50.01% - 75%

Incorporated Areas

Highway

Preliminary Plats

Map 3

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Subdivision Data Travis County 2012

HAYSHAYS

County Maintained Rd

Major Rd

Railroad

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV45 

UV360

UV 45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

0 2 4 6 81

Miles A
c
ti

v
it

y
 C

e
n
te

rs
 a

n
d
 E

m
e
rg

in
g
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

A
c
ti

v
it

y
 C

e
n
te

rs
 a

n
d
 E

m
e
rg

in
g
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

. DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

July 15, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Imagine Austin

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

Activity Centers 
for Redevelopment 
in Sensitive 
Environmental Areas

Regional Center

Job Center

Town Center

Neighborhood Center

Imagine Austin Corridors

Map 4

Highway

Railroad

Incorporated Areas

County Maintained Rd

Major Rd

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Imagine Austin Centers & Corridors City of Austin Planning & Development Review Dept. 2012

Activity Centers (2040 Plan Draft) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization Draft 2013

Subdivision Data Travis County 2012

Emerging Growth

Activity Centers

(2040 Plan - Draft)
(Boundaries as defined by Sponsor)

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 Most emerging projects are occurring along the SH 130 corridor and along planned corridors that have proposed public 
private partnerships. 

 Large area of emerging projects identified along SH 130 between US 290 East and FM 969. 
 Emerging Projects in southeastern Travis County are adjacent to City of Austin limits except for Southeast Travis County 

MUDs along Pearce Lane. 
 Emerging projects in western Travis County are smaller in size and development intensity.  

 
NORTHEAST QUADRANT 
Pflugerville to US 290 E: New growth will be occurring in the City of Pflugerville and its ETJ.  This area is expected to see continued 
growth especially to the east of its incorporated area.  Much of this future growth is characterized by single family preliminary plats 
adjacent to existing residential development in eastern Pflugerville.  Current preliminary plats show approximately 3,000 residential 
units slated for development.  Further east, there are large areas of mainly agricultural land that do not show potential for new 
development to occur and have no emerging projects.  These are located mainly northeast of the City of Pflugerville and to some 
extent east of the SH 130 corridor.     South of Pflugerville and west of SH 130, existing large residential developments (Pioneer 
Crossing and Harris Branch) continue to be developed.  Newer residential developments (Cantarra, Entrada and Fossil Creek) have 
begun and will provide approximately 3,000 residential units at build-out.  Just to the east and north of US 290 E, Shadow Glen, a 
mixed use development will provide another 3,000 units at build-out. 
 
SH 130: Large, mixed use tracts that include single and multi-family residential uses are being planned that access this new 
transportation corridor that runs mostly in the unincorporated area of the County.  South of US 290 East to the Colorado River along 
the SH 130 corridor is identified as a major future growth area in the next 25 years.  The 2,047 acre Whisper Valley PUD is expected 
to include 4,737 single family homes; 1,451 multi-family units; 231,070 sq. ft. of office space and 429,130 sq. ft. of retail space.  Wild 
Horse PUD, bisected by SH 130 expects to develop over 5,800 residential units and non- residential development that will occupy 6.3 
million sq. ft.  Additionally, single family residential developments (Eastwood and Wolf Subdivisions) will create just over 3,000 new 
single family residential units.  Another area along Decker Lake Road will see 1,700 single family units and over 1,500 multifamily 
units developed at the Indian Hills, Lariat B Ranch and Gilbert Lane Subdivisions.  In total, approximately 15,200 new single family 
residential units will be provided in this area.   
 
South of FM 969, the proposed Rio de Vida MUD is shown as a future town center in the City of Austin’s comprehensive plan, 
Imagine Austin.  The development currently has no MUD agreement with the City of Austin; however, plans to develop over 8,000 
single and multi-family units with commercial and retail uses continue.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     15 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
SOUTHEAST QUADRANT   
Another area of high growth is planned to occur in southeastern Travis County just west of SH 130 along the extensions of Slaughter 
Lane and William Cannon Drive.  Two large mixed-use developments, Goodnight Ranch (Slaughter Lane and Thaxton Road) and Pilot 
Knob MUD (along future Slaughter Lane and William Cannon Drive west of US 183 S) have just over 19,500 residential units planned.  
 
Additionally, further to the east of SH 130 is the new Formula One (F1) site.  While, the project was not included in the current 
population forecast, the impact on the surrounding area will be dramatic especially in the potential for new job growth.   Northeast 
of the F1 site is another MUD development.  Southeast Travis County MUDs propose nearly 4,000 units of single and multifamily 
residential and additional retail space.   Another proposed high growth area lies at the intersection of IH 35 S and SH 45 SE.  Sunfield 
development along the Hays County line is proposing the development of a master planned community of single and multi-family, 
commercial and light industrial land uses.  Also, the City of Austin has identified the area surrounding the intersection as a Regional 
Center in its Imagine Austin Plan.  
 
A large area of southeast Travis County is shown as final platted and with a majority of those lots developed.  However, this was an 
early plat of large lots.  While these lots are shown to be developed, it is possible that new development could occur in his area with 
the acquisition of lots and a re-subdivision of the properties. 
 
SOUTHWEST QUADRANT 
In southwest Travis County, large amounts of land are held as preserve lands and water quality protection lands.  These acquisitions 
have lessened the potential acreage for future development.   Areas that are forecasted to see growth in the next 25 years include, 
the Village of Bee Cave located at RM 620 and SH 71 W along the SH 71 West highway corridor.  Just west of Bee Cave, nearly 3,600 
residential units are planned at Sweetwater Ranch, Lazy Nine MUD and West Cypress Hills; all take access off of SH 71W.  While not 
a defined center, the City of Lakeway will grow along its southern boundary, west of the new medical center, and along Bee Creek 
Road.  Additionally, at Lake Travis along Bee Creek Road, Vizcaya subdivision is planned for 275 residential lots. 
 
NORTHWEST QUADRANT 
A large portion of northwest Travis County is part of the Balcones Canyonlands National Wildlife refuge.  As with southwest Travis 
County, a large amount of acreage is in preserve and water quality protection lands.  Limits to infrastructure and opportunities to 
develop outside endangered species habitat reduce this quadrant as a high growth area for the future.  The cities of Jonestown and 
Lago Vista show continued growth north of Lake Travis.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     16 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
CAMPO Centers (Draft 2040) (Map 4) 
The CAMPO Center concept is designed to direct future growth to areas with adequate public facilities including new development 
alternatives and compact mixed use centers that provide alternative transportation modes making it easier to live work and play.  By 
directing the growth trend from traditional subdivision development to a “centers” type concept, more opportunities become 
available to provide for parkland, greenways, conservation of prime farmland and allow for sustainable water sources.   Locations of 
existing and proposed centers provide opportunities to evaluate connections between centers and needs for supporting 
infrastructure.   
 
 Many of existing CAMPO Centers have proposed emerging projects. 
 Predominant center locations are in and along SH 130 and proposed transportation corridors. 
 City of Austin identified neighborhood centers along northern city limits along proposed corridors.   
 Opportunities exist to expand and connect centers in the unincorporated area along transportation corridors. 
 Western Travis County has limited center development, connectivity will be problematic.  

 
Growth on County Boundaries 
Significant growth will also occur just outside the County’s boundary.  In northern Travis County, a medium center (Robinson Ranch) 
is located west of Burnet Road along SH 45 and will include 10,000 new residential units.  In southern Travis County, growth will 
continue in the Buda and Kyle areas and new development is planned along I-35 at Estancia and the old Heap Ranch.  
 

Land Resources 
LAND CONSERVED IN UNINCORPORATED TRAVIS COUNTY 
Approximately 60,000 acres, or 14% of unincorporated Travis County, has been conserved as parks, preserves, or conservation 
easements by Travis County, the State of Texas, Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA), and the City of Austin (see Map 5).   Most of 
this land has been conserved to protect endangered species habitat, and because this type of habitat is found exclusively west of the 
Balcones Escarpment, more land has been conserved in western Travis County than eastern: approximately one-quarter of western 
Travis County is conserved while approximately 2% of eastern Travis County is conserved (see Figure 6). 
 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     17 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



M
a

ha Creek

W
il b

arger Creek

Dry Creek

W
il

lo

w Cree k

M
a

r
b

le
C

reek

Elm

Creek

Slau ghte r Creek

W
e

ll
s

B
ra

n
ch

C
o

tto
n

w
o

o
d

C
r

e
e

k

G
r

a
p

e
C

r
e

e
k

Bear Creek

Bull Cre ek

C
o

le
m

a
n

B
ra

n
ch

L
it

tl
e

W
il

lo
w

C
r

e
e

k

Cowpen Creek

Sou th

Fork Dry Cree k

Honey Creek

B arton Creek

Walter E.

Long Lake

W
alnut

C
re

e
k

Gilleland
Cre

e
k

Boggy Creek

Cotton
w

ood
C

r
e

e
k

Dry C r ee k

Colo
rado River

R
in

a
r

d
C

r
e

e
k

D
r

y
C

reek

Decker Creek

Harriso n Hollow

Lake
Travis

Fall Creek

P
e

d
e

rn
ale

s Riv
er

H
am

ilton
Creek

L
ic

k
C

r
e

e
k

Spring Creek

Sulph ur Creek

Post
O

a
k

C
reek

Collier Hollow

B
ig

S
a

n
d

y
C

re
e

k

Lim
e

Creek

Neg
ro

B
r

a
n

ch

C
o

w
C

re
e

k

B
ee

C
re

ek

Bingham
C

re
e

k

L
o

n
g

H
ol

lo

w
C

r
e

e
k

C yp
r

e
ss

C
re

ek

CypressCreek

B
ee

Cree
k

B ear Cre ek

Little Barton Creek

Branch Rocky
C

r
e

e
k

Rocky Cre

ek

M
y

r
tl

e
C

re
ek

T
h

o
m

a
s

S
p

rin
g

s

B
ra

n
c

h

Bar ton Cre
e

k

Bee Creek (Westlake)

Cow
Fork

B
u

l l C reek

Onion Creek

City of 

Pflugerville

City of

Lago Vista

City of

Lakeway

City of 

Leander

Village of

Volente

City of

West Lake Hills

Village of 

Bee Cave

Elgin

Village of

Webberville

Village of 

Point 
Venture

City of

Sunset Valley

Village of 

Briarcliff

City
of

Cedar
Park

Village of 

The Hills

City of

Rollingwood

City of
Round

Rock

City of

Manor

Mustang 

Ridge

Village of 

San Leanna

City of

Jonestown

Village of

Creedmoor

City of
Austin

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Parkland Travis County, City of Austin, TPWD, LCRA 2012-2013

Preserve Areas Travis County, City of Austin, USFWS 2011-2012

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

February 19, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

L
a
n
d
s 

C
o
n
se

rv
e
d
 i
n
 U

n
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 T

ra
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

L
a
n
d
s 

C
o
n
se

rv
e
d
 i
n
 U

n
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 T

ra
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

City of Austin (CoA), LCRA,
State, and Other Jurisdiction Parkland

Travis County Owned Parkland

Travis County Conservation
Easement Properties (Non-BCP)

BCP (Non-Travis County), CoA Water
Quality Protection Lands, and U.S.
Fish & Wildlife Preserve Areas

Travis County BCP

Map 5
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Figure 6: Land Conserved in Unincorporated Travis County  

 
TRAVIS COUNTY’S ROLE 
The County plays a significant role in conserving land in unincorporated Travis County: it has conserved approximately one-half of all 
parkland in the area; and contributes to the preserve inventory as a holder of Balcones Canyonland Preserve (BCP) land.  More 
recently, the county has taken on the role – and is the only governmental entity doing so – of executing conservation easements not 
specifically intended to protect endangered species habitat or water quality (see Figure 7). 
  

UNINCORPORATED  
TRAVIS COUNTY   LAND CONSERVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY 

 

LAND CONSERVED BY OTHERS 
(USFW, State, LCRA, Municipalities) 

 

TOTAL 
CONSERVED 

LAND 

Area Acres   
Park 
Acres 

Preserve 
Acres 

CE 
Acres 

Total 
Acres 

Land Area 
Conserved 

 

Park 
Acres 

Preserve 
Acres 

CE 
Acres 

Total 
Acres 

Land Area 
Conserved 

 

 
Acres 

Land Area 
Conserved 

NE 122,333   1,607 0 531 2,139 1.7% 
 

132 0 0 132 0.1% 
 

2,271 1.9% 
SE 62,970   1,107 0 0 1,107 1.8% 

 
16 0 0 16 0.0% 

 
1,123 1.8% 

SW 127,912   3,532 403 0 3,935 3.1% 
 

2,663 18,875 0 21,538 16.8% 
 

25,473 19.9% 
NW  105,446   203 5,346 0 5,549 5.3% 

 
3,789 20,430 0 24,219 23.0% 

 
29,767 28.2% 

TOTAL 418,662   6,450 5,749 531 12,729 3.0% 
 

6,600 39,305 0 45,905 11.0% 
 

58,635 14.0% 

Note 1:  "LAND CONSERVED BY TRAVIS COUNTY" includes Travis County-owned land and land conserved in partnership with land trusts that either a) is in 
unincorporated Travis County, b) has at least 15% of its area in unincorporated Travis County, or c) is adjacent to county-owned land in unincorporated Travis 
County. 
Note 2:  Northeast (NE), southeast (SE), southwest (SW), and northwest (NW) geographic areas are defined east-west by IH 35 and north-south by the centerline 
of the Colorado River. 
Note 3: Balcones Canyonland Preserve or City of Austin water quality protection conservation easements are included in the "Preserve Acres" category.  Other 
types of conservation easements are included in the "CE Acres" category. 
    

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     19 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
Figure 7: Travis County’s Role in Conserving Land in Unincorporated Travis County 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSERVATION OPPORTUNITIES 
Travis County has opportunities to conserve resources that have critical natural functions and that are integral to the rural character 
of the county.  It has diverse ecoregions, prime farmland, threatened and endangered species habitat, and floodplains, and critical 
watersheds. 
 
ECOREGIONS 
An ecoregion is an area of similar ecosystems identified through the analysis of the patterns and composition of biological 
communities and physical characteristics such as geology, climate, soils, land use, and hydrology.  Travis County is an unusual Texas 
county because it has four ecoregions and rich ecological diversity that is not found in most other Texas counties.  The four 
ecoregions are the Edwards Plateau, Texas Blackland Prairie, East Central Plains (hereafter referred to as Post Oak Savanna), and 
Floodplains and Low Terraces (see Map 6).  Ecoregions, per se, have not been identified for conservation in previous County plans. 
 

Edwards Plateau: The Edwards Plateau ecoregion is found in western Travis County. It is highly dissected by erosion and 
solution of porous limestone by springs, streams, and rivers both above and below ground. Its limestone geology also supports 
formation of crevices, cracks, sinkholes, caverns and grottos known as “karst” that provide vulnerable habitats for solitary and 
colonial bats, unique isolated invertebrates, and colonial birds like swifts and swallows.  Karst also provides conduit for surface 
waters to reach the Edwards and Edwards–Trinity aquifers and for artesian groundwater to surface as springs.  This portion of 
the Plateau in Travis County, i.e., the Balcones Canyonlands, has a higher representation of deciduous woodland than 
elsewhere on the Plateau, with plateau live oak, escarpment black cherry, Texas mountain-laurel, madrone, and Lacey oak.   

 

PROVIDER Acres Percent Acres Percent Acres Percent Acres Percent
Travis County 6,450 49% 6,600 14% 531 100% 13,581 23%
Other 6,600 51% 39,305 86% 0 0% 45,905 77%
Total 13,050 100% 45,905 100% 531 100% 59,486 100%

PARKS PRESERVES
CONSERVATION

EASEMENTS TOTAL

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     20 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

E
c
o
re
g
io
n
s

E
c
o
re
g
io
n
s

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

February 05, 2014 

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Ecoregions U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2007

Map 6

Ecoregions

Edwards Plateau

Floodplains and Low Terraces

Texas Blackland Prairie

Post Oak Savanna

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Mature, large Ashe juniper – known locally as “cedar” – within mixed hardwood woodlands are also found in deep canyons.  
Some remnants of eastern swamp communities, including bald cypress, American sycamore, and black willow, occur along 
major stream courses. It is likely that these trees have persisted as relics of moister, cooler climates following the Pleistocene 
glacial epoch.  Elevations in Travis County drop sharply from the top of the Plateau off the eastern edge of the Escarpment to 
the Blackland Prairies. 
 
Texas Blackland Prairie: The Texas Blackland Prairie ecoregion is found in eastern Travis County.  It is underlain by Upper 
Cretaceous marine chalks, marls, limestones, and shales which give rise to the characteristic black, calcareous, alkaline, heavy 
clay soils. Early settlers were drawn to this region by these productive soils, gentle topography, and luxuriant native grasslands. 
Although historically a region of tall-grass prairies, today much of the land is devoted to cropland, non-native pasture, and 
expanding urban uses. Few remnant native prairie sites remain. Historical vegetation was dominated by little bluestem, big 
bluestem, yellow Indiangrass, needlegrass, and tall dropseed. Woody vegetation including mesquite, sugar hackberry, cedar 
elm, Osage orange, and other woody species grow along fence lines and field borders. On steep or sloping terrains not subject 
to cultivation, it is common to find eastern red cedar, Ashe juniper, Texas persimmon, elbowbush, possumhaw holly, and live 
oak1. Stream bottoms may be wooded with bur oak, Shumard oak, elm, ash, eastern cottonwood, and pecan. 
 
Post Oak Savanna: The Post Oak Savanna ecoregion is found in far eastern Travis County, starting a transition zone between 
the Texas Blackland Prairie and east Texas pine forests, changing in small ways in soils, vegetation, plant communities, fish and 
wildlife. It is gently rolling to hilly, supporting a mosaic of woodlands mixed with prairie pockets, and cross-cutting streams. The 
dominant vegetation is an open deciduous forest or woodland of post oak, blackjack oak, and other drought-tolerant 
southeastern species. The Post Oak Savanna represents the southernmost extension of the transitional oak forests that 
separate the eastern United States and the Great Plains.  
 
Floodplains and Low Terraces: The Floodplains and Low Terraces ecoregion is found along the Colorado River corridor in 
eastern Travis County. While there are many finer-scale floodplains (e.g. Onion Creek, Pedernales River) in our county, the 
Floodplains and Low Terraces is a larger category floodplain following the mainstem Colorado River. This ecoregion maps 
primarily the recent alluvial deposits and not the older, high terraces. These bottomland forests contain bur oak, Shumard oak, 
sugar hackberry, elm, ash, eastern cottonwood, and pecan; however, most of these forests have been converted to cropland 
and pasture. 
 

1  http://www.tpwd.state.tx.us/landwater/land/habitats/cross_timbers/ecoregions/blackland.phtml 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     22 
 

                                                      

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

PRIME FARMLAND 
The US Department of Agriculture (USDA) defines prime farmland as having the combination of soil properties, growing season, and 
moisture supply to produce sustained, high yields of food, forage, and fiber crops if managed according to acceptable farming 
methods.  In Travis County, almost all prime farmland is found in eastern Travis County (Map 6).  It is valued for its agricultural 
productivity and rural character.  Its conservation has been previously identified as a priority in Travis County’s Parks Master Plan, 
Conservation Subdivision Ordinance, and the Colorado River Corridor Plan (CRCP).  More recently, Travis County partnered with the 
USDA to conserve prime farmland through the federal Farms and Ranchland Protection Program (FRPP).  
 
THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES HABITAT  
An endangered species is a population of organisms which is at risk of becoming extinct because it is very limited in range, few in 
numbers, and/or threatened by environmental conditions such as habitat loss, predation, or disease. In Travis County, several bird, 
aquatic, and cave-dwelling species are federally listed as threatened or endangered (see Figure 8). Of these, two endangered song 
birds and six endangered karst invertebrates are protected under the Balcones Canyonland Conservation Plan (BCCP)2.  Although not 
protected under the BCCP, several rare salamander species that inhabit Travis County were recently federally listed as threatened or 
endangered species: the Barton Springs salamander (Eurycea sosorum) and Austin Blind salamander (Eurycea waterlooensis) are 
listed as endangered and the Jollyville Plateau salamander (Eurycea tonkawae) is listed as threatened. 
 

Figure 8:  Threatened and Endangered Species in Travis County 
Scientific Name Common Name 
Vireo atricapillus Black-Capped vireo 
Setophaga chrysoparia Golden-Cheeked warbler 
Neoleptoneta myopica Tooth Cave spider 
Texella reddelli Bee Creek Cave harvestman 
Texella reyesi Bone Cave harvestman 
Tartarocreagris texana Tooth Cave pseudoscorpion 
Rhadine persephone Tooth Cave ground beetle 
Texamaurops reddelli Kretschmarr Cave mold beetle 
Eurycea sosorum Barton Springs salamander 
Eurycea waterlooensis Austin Blind salamander 
Eurycea tonkawae Jollyville Plateau salamander 

2 In 1996, the USFWS issued a 10 (a) “incidental take” permit to Travis County and the City of Austin authorizing the implementation of the Balcones 
Canyonlands Conservation Plan (BCCP) thereby providing a method for landowners to develop their property by mitigating impact of their land use activities on 
protected endangered species. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     23 
 

                                                      

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



DATA SOURCE YEAR

Soils USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2002

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

January 22, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

P
r
im

e
 F

a
r
m

la
n
d

P
r
im

e
 F

a
r
m

la
n
d

Prime Farmland

Map 7
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

As shown on Map 8, known habitat for threatened and endangered species is found in the western half of Travis County. The Barton 
Springs and Austin Blind salamanders are confined to the outlets at Barton Springs near central Austin; the Jollyville Plateau 
salamander lives primarily in the springs and streams of northwest Travis County; habitat for cave-dwelling species is found in the 
areas of outcrop of the Edwards Limestone running north-south through the county and northwest along the Williamson County 
boundary; and areas where, as of 1996, there have been confirmed sightings of Golden-Cheeked warblers and Black-Capped vireos 
are concentrated in north-central part of the county but scattered throughout western Travis County.  The Balcones Canyonland 
Conservation Plan (BCCP) obligates Travis County to conserve endangered species habitat covered by the plan and protect other non 
–BCCP protected species as required by the Endangered Species Act passed by Congress in 1973. 
 
FLOODPLAINS 
The largest expanses of floodplain are found in eastern Travis County, along the Colorado River and its tributaries (see Map 9).  As 
transitional zones between waterways and uplands, these areas play an important role in attenuating polluted runoff, maximizing 
groundwater recharge and storage, and mitigating storm water damage. In their proper functioning condition, that is, vegetated 
with bottomland forest, grassland, riparian, and upland species, their natural benefits are most pronounced.  In Travis County, these 
benefits have been compromised through the historic clearing of land for timber and farming, the damming of the Colorado River, 
and, most recently, land use changes associated with development, road construction, and aggregate mining of alluvial deposits.  
Conserving floodplains along the Colorado River and its tributaries are high priorities in the Parks Master Plan, the Trust for Public 
Lands Travis County Greenprint for Growth, and Colorado River Corridor Plan (CRCP). 
 
BARTON CREEK AND LITTLE BARTON CREEK WATERSHEDS 
Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds are regionally significant areas in unincorporated southwest Travis County (see 
Map 10).  They contribute to the recharge of the remarkable, iconic Barton Springs in Austin.  Their protection through land 
conservation and minimization of pervious cover is consistent with community values as embodied in the City of Austin Barton Creek 
Watershed Ordinance.  conservation of these lands also is consistent with the Southwest Travis County Growth Dialogue goal to 
conserve 6,000 acres in this part of the county. 

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     25 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

January 23, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

T
h
re

a
te

n
e
d
 &

 E
n
d
a
n
g
e
re

d
 S

p
e
c
ie

s 
H

a
b
it

a
t

T
h
re

a
te

n
e
d
 &

 E
n
d
a
n
g
e
re

d
 S

p
e
c
ie

s 
H

a
b
it

a
t

DATA SOURCE YEAR

GCW & BCV Habitat & Karst Zones Travis County, City of Austin, BCCP 1996

Listed Salamander Habitat U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 2013

Known Locations  (2013)

Austin Blind Salamander

Karst Zones (1996)

Jollyville Plateau Salamander
Known Locations (2013)

Golden Cheeked Warbler

Confirmed Habitat  (1996)

Black Capped Vireo

Confirmed Habitat  (1996)

Map 8
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



M
a

ha Creek

S
h

o
a

l
C

reek

W
i l b

arger Creek

Dry Creek

W
il

lo

w Cree k

Boggy C reek

M
a

r
b

le
C

reek

Elm

Creek

Slau ghte r Creek

W
e

ll
s

B
ra

n
ch

C
o

tto
n

w
o

o
d

C
r

e
e

k

G
r

a
p

e
C

r
e

e
k

B

lu
n

n
C

re
e

k

Bear Creek

Bull Cre ek

C
o

le
m

a
n

B
ra

n
ch

L
it

tl
e

W
il

lo
w

C
r

e
e

k

Gaines Creek

Cowpen Creek

Sou th

Fork Dry Cree k

Honey Creek

E
a

s
t

B
o

u
ld

in
C

re
e

k

Little Bee Creek

B arton Creek

W
est

B
u

ll
C

r
e

e
k

L
ittle

W
a

l n

ut Creek

Walter E.

Long Lake

W
alnut

C
re

e
k

Gilleland
Cre

ek

Boggy Creek

Cotton
w

ood
C

r
e

e
k

Dry C r ee k

Colo
rado River

R
in

a
r

d
C

r
e

e
k

D
r

y
C

reek

Decker Creek

Harriso n Hollow

Lake
Travis

Fall Creek

P
e

d
e

rn
ale

s Riv
er

H
am

ilton
Creek

L
ic

k
C

re
ek

Spring Creek

Sulph ur Creek

Post
O

a
k

C
re

ek

Collier Hollow

B
ig

S
a

n
d

y
C

re
e

k

Lim
e Creek

Fisher Hollow

Neg
ro

B
r

a
n

ch

C
o

w
C

re
e

k

B
ee

C
re

ek

Bingham
C

re
e

k

L
o

n
g

H
o

llo

w
C

r
e

e
k

C yp
r

e
ss

C
re

ek

CypressCreek

B
ee

Cree
k H

u
rs

t
C

re
e

k

Ya
u

p
o

n
C

r
e

e
k

C
ottonwood

B
ra

n
c

h

Mansfield
Dam

B e a r Cree k

Little Barton Creek

Branch Rocky
C

r
e

e
k

Rocky Cre

ek

M
y

r
tl

e
C

re
ek

T
h

o
m

a
s

S
p

r
in

g
s

B
ra

n
c

h

Tom Miller
Dam

Longhorn
DamTravis County Cr eek

Bar ton Cre
e

k

Bee Creek (Westlake)

Cow
Fork

B
u

l l C reek

W
e

s
t

B
o

u
ld

in
C

r
e

e
k

Onion Creek

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Creeks U.S. Geological Survey NHD 2003

Floodplain

Federal Emergency 

Management Agency 2008

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

February 06, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

H
y
d
ro

lo
g
y

H
y
d
ro

lo
g
y

100 Year Floodplain

Water Body

Creek

Map 9
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ONI

LKT

BAR

WLB

COL

BRU

BSD

CDR

GIL

DRE

WLN

MAH

CTW

SLA

PED

BER

WMS

PLM

BUL

LBR

LKA

LKC

WLW

COW

DNE

DKR

BEE

SHL

SBR

ELS

LBA

HRS

LOC

LWA

SFD

POK

RIN

LIC

LBL
ELM

RAT

HAM

LIM

BCP

WBL

BOG

CAR

WLR

CTM

SBG

HUR

PAN

TAN

MAR

EAN

NFD

FOR

HNY

RDR

CCW

CRN

TRK

CMF

DRN

CCE

STN

BMK

BWL

FAL

CYP

CHW

WBO

HRN

BRW

YAU

EBO

JOH

TYN

STP

LBE

CWR

BOH

TYS

CED

BLU

CNR

HRP

HOG

HUK

M

aha

Cre
ek

S
h

o
a

l
C

reek

W
ilbarger Creek

Dry Creek

W
il

lo
w Creek

Boggy Cr eek

M
a

r
b

le
C

reek

Elm
Creek

Slaughter Creek

W
e

ll
s

B
r

a
n

ch

C
o

tto
n

w
o

o
d

C
r

e
e

k

G
r

a
p

e
C

r
e

e
k

B
lu

n
n

C
r

e
e

k

Bear Creek

Bull Cree k

C
o

le
m

a
n

B
r

a
n

ch

L
it

tl
e

W
il

lo
w

C
r

e
e

k

Gaine

s Creek

Cowpen Creek

Sou
th

Fork Dry Creek

H
oney Creek

E
a

s
t

B
o

u
ld

in
C

r
e

e
k

Litt le Bee Creek

Barton C reek

W
est

B
u

ll
C

r
e

e
k L

it tle
W

a
ln

ut

Creek

Walter E.

Long Lake

W
alnut

C
re

e
k

Gilleland

Creek

Boggy Creek

Co
tton

w
ood

Cre
e

k

Dry
Cr eek

Colo
rado River

R
i n

a
r

d
C

r
e

e
k

D
r

y
C

reek

Decker Creek

Harris on Hollow

Lake
Travis

Fall Creek

P
e

d
e

rn
al

es Rive r

Ham
ilton

Creek

L
ic

k
C

r
e

e
k

Sprin
g Creek

Sulphur Creek

Po
st

O
a

k
C

reek

Collier Hollow

B
ig

S
a

n
d

y
C

re
e

k

Li m
e

Creek

Fisher Hollow

N
eg

ro
B

ra
n

ch

C
o

w
C

re
e

k

B
ee

C
re

ek

Bing
h

a
m

C
re

e
k

L
o

n
g

H
ollo

w
C

r
e

e
k

C

y
p

r
e

ss
C

re
e

k

CypressCreek

B
ee

Creek H
u

rs
t

C
re

ek

Y
a

u
p

o
n

C
re

e
k

C
ottonwood

B
ra

n
c

h

Mansfield
Dam

B ear Cree k

Lit tle Barton Creek

Branch
Rocky

C
r

e
e

k

Rocky Cr
e

e

k

M
y

r
tl

e
C

re
ek

T
h

o
m

a
s

S
p

rin
g

s

B
ra

n
c

h

Tom Miller
Dam

Longhorn
Dam

Trav is County Cree k

Bar t on Cre
e

k

Bee Creek (Westla
k

e
)

Cow
Fork

B
u

l l
Cr eek

W
e

s
t

B
o

u
ld

in

C
re

ek

Onion Creek

October 21, 2014 

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 
an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 

property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 
purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness.

BASTROPBASTROP

CALDWELLCALDWELL

HAYSHAYS

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

W
a
te

rs
h
e
d
s

W
a
te

rs
h
e
d
s.

0 2.5 5

Miles

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Cow Creek Watershed

Bee Watershed (BEE)

Big Sandy Watershed (BSD)

Collier Hollow (CHW)

Cow Watershed (COW)

Hurst Watershed (HUR)

Lake Travis (LKT)

Lime Watershed (LIM)

Post Oak Watershed (POK)

Yaupon Watershed (YAU)

Lower Colorado River Watershed

Colorado River (COL)

Cottonmouth Watershed (CTM)

Cottonwood Watershed (CTW)

Decker Watershed (DKR)

Dry Watershed (Northeast) (DNE)

Dry Watershed (East) (DRE)

Elm Watershed (ELM)

Gilleland Watershed (GIL)

Harris Branch Watershed (HRS)

Lockwood Watershed (LOC)

North Fork Watershed (NFD)

South Fork Watershed (SFD)

Wilbarger Watershed (WLB)

Willow Watershed (WLW)

Onion Creek Watershed

Bear Watershed (BER)

Carson Watershed (CAR)

Little Bear Watershed (LBR)

Marble Watershed (MAR)

Onion Watershed (ONI)

Rinard Watershed (RIN)

Slaughter Watershed (SLA)

South Boggy Watershed (SBG)

Williamson Watershed (WMS)

Pedernales River Watershed

Cypress Watershed (CYP)

Fall Watershed (FAL)

Hamilton Watershed (HAM)

Lick Watershed (LIC)

Pedernales River (PED)

Plum Creek Watershed

Elm Creek S Watershed (ELS)

Plum Watershed (PLM)

Walnut Creek - Cedar Creek Watershed

Cedar Watershed (CDR)

Maha Watershed (MAH)

City of Austin Watershed

Barton Watershed (BAR)

Bear West Watershed (BRW)

Bee Watershed (Westlake) (BWL)

Blunn Watershed (BLU)

Boggy Watershed (BOG)

Bohls Hollow Watershed (BOH)

Bull Watershed (BUL)

Buttermilk Watershed (BMK)

Cedar Hollow Watershed (CED)

Coldwater Watershed (CWR)

Commons Ford Watershed (CMF)

Connors Watershed (CNR)

Country Club E Watershed (CCE)

Country Club W Watershed (CCW)

Cuernavaca Watershed (CRN)

Dry Watershed (North) (DRN)

Eanes Watershed (EAN)

East Bouldin Watershed (EBO)

Fort Watershed (FOR)

Harper's Branch (HRP)

Harrison Hollow (HRN)

Hog Pen Watershed (HOG)

Honey Watershed (HNY)

Huck's Slough (HUK)

Johnson Watershed (JOH)

Lady Bird Lake Watershed (LBL)

Lake Austin (LKA)

Little Barton Watershed (LBA)

Little Bee Watershed (LBE)

Little Walnut Watershed (LWA)

Panther Hollow Watershed (PAN)

Running Deer Watershed (RDR)

Shoal Watershed (SHL)

St. Stephens Watershed (STP)

Steiner Watershed (STN)

Tannehill Watershed (TAN)

Taylor Slough North (TYN)

Taylor Slough South (TYS)

Turkey Watershed (TRK)

Waller Watershed (WLR)

Walnut Watershed (WLN)

West Bouldin Watershed (WBO)

West Bull Watershed (WBL)

Watershed Boundary

(Primarily based on the National
Hydrography Dataset (NHD) HU 10
boundary delineations)

Subwatershed Boundary

(Primarily based on the City of Austin Water
Protection Dept.'s watershed boundary delineations)

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Waterbodies, Creeks U.S. Geological Survey NHD 2003

Watersheds

City of Austin Watershed Protection Dept., Travis 

County Transportation & Natural Resources Dept., 

U.S. Geological Survey NHD

2013/2003

Recharge Zone
City of Austin - Watershed Protection & 

Development Review: Planning & GIS
2008

Map 10
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 

Water Resources 
 
Unincorporated Travis County has significant water resources that need to be protected for ecological purposes and domestic, 
agricultural, recreational, commercial, and industrial uses.  Surface water resources include Lake Travis and its tributaries and the 
Colorado River and its tributaries (see Map 9).  Groundwater resources include the Trinity and Edwards outcrop regions in western 
Travis County and the Colorado River Alluvial Aquifer in eastern Travis County (see Map 1011).  Springs are also found throughout 
the county (see Map 11). 
 
LAKE TRAVIS AND TRIBUTARIES 
Lake Travis is formed by the impoundment of the Colorado River at Mansfield Dam and is the most significant reservoir on the river 
because of its tremendous water storage capacity.  It is a primary source of fresh water for communities and major industries 
throughout Travis County and helps drive the area’s strong economy and population growth.   It also is a major recreational resource 
that is estimated to generate, when full, approximately $200 million in revenue for state and local governments.  The Pedernales 
River is the largest tributary to Lake Travis in the county.  As of April 2013, in its Current Water Quality Report, the LCRA rated both 
Lake Travis and the Pedernales River as having “excellent” water.  Bee Creek, Cow Creek, Cypress Creek, Hurst Creek, and Sandy 
Creek are major creek tributaries of the lake.   
 
COLORADO RIVER AND TRIBUTARIES 
The Colorado River provides water for local residential, agricultural, and commercial uses but it’s also a source of water for the City 
of Pflugerville in the northern part of the county. Major tributaries are Onion Creek, with a watershed of approximately 343 square 
miles, and Gilleland Creek.  The water quality of the Colorado River at Austin was rated “fair” in the LCRA’s April 2013 Current Water 
Quality Report. 
 
EDWARDS OUTCROP 
The Edwards Outcrop is an environmentally important recharge zone allowing fresh water to replenish the Edwards Aquifer.  Much 
of it is located within incorporated parts of the county, however, so Travis County has limited responsibility for its protection. 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     29 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

TRINITY OUTCROP 
The Trinity Outcrop, west of the Edwards Outcrop, allows fresh water to percolate downward into the Trinity Aquifer that is the 
main source of well-water for both public and private users in unincorporated western Travis County.   Its supply is threatened, 
however, by increased consumption by a growing population and limited recharge of its supply as multi-year droughts continue. This 
situation was so dire that in October 2010, the Travis County Commissioners Court suspended approval of subdivisions using Trinity 
Aquifer groundwater and created a stakeholder committee to develop new subdivision regulations regarding water availability.  The 
Commissioners Court subsequently adopted the Water Availability Rule in January 2012 thereby requiring a subdivider of land to 
demonstrate that a sound and adequate source of water is available commensurate with projected population demand. 
 
COLORADO RIVER ALLUVIAL AQUIFER 
The Colorado River Alluvium is the only fresh groundwater supply east of the Edwards artesian zone in eastern Travis County (see 
Map 11).  It is a locally important public and private well-water supply but its small size and limited capacity cannot support growth 
in that area.  The quality of its water is already degraded in some locations due to elevated nitrate levels and is further threatened 
by polluted runoff from agriculture and aggregate mining operations. 
 
SPRINGS 
Springs are locations where groundwater naturally comes to the surface (see Map 12).  They are found throughout Travis County.  
Many are protected as part of the Balcones Canyonland Preserve (BCP) but unprotected areas of concentrated springs are found in 
the Post Oak Savanna region of eastern Travis County and in the vicinity of Hamilton Creek and Hamilton Pool in southwest Travis 
County. 
 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     30 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

Lake 

Travis

Walter E.

Long

Lake

G
ille

la
n

d
C

re
e

k

Onion Creek

Wilbarger C reek

Bart

on Creek

B
ig

S
a

n
d

y

Creek

W
a

ln
u

t
C

r
e

e
k

Williamson
Creek

S
h

o
a

l
C

r
e

e
k

P
e

d
e

r
n

a
le

s

R
i v

e
r

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

October 21, 2014 

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

G
r
o
u
n
d
w

a
t
e
r
 R

e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s

G
r
o
u
n
d
w

a
t
e
r
 R

e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s

Edwards Downdip

Trinity Outcrop

Hickory Downdip

No Aquifer

Trinity Downdip

Alluvial

C
ol

orado River

Edwards Outcrop

HAYSHAYS

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Aquifers Texas Water Development Board 2006

Map 11
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



#0

#0

#0#0

#0

#0#0#0
#0 #0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0
#0

#0#0#0

#0#0#0 #0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0#0

#0#0

#0
#0
#0
#0

#0

M
a

ha Creek

W
i l b

arger Creek

Dry Creek

W
il

lo

w Cree k

M
a

r
b

le
C

reek

Elm

Creek

Slaughter Creek

W
e

ll
s

B
ra

n
ch

C
o

tto
n

w
o

o
d

C
r

e
e

k

G
r

a
p

e
C

r
e

e
k

Bear Creek

Bull Creek

L
it

tl
e

W
il

lo
w

C
r

e
e

k

Cowpen Creek

South

Fork Dry Cree k

Honey Creek

B arton Creek

Walter E.

Long Lake

W
alnut

C
re

e
k

Gillela
n

d
C

r
e

e
k

Boggy Creek

Cotton
w

ood
C

r
e

e
k

Dry C ree k

Colo
rado River

R
in

a
r

d
C

r
e

e
k

D
r

y
C

reek

Decker Creek

Harriso n Hollow

Lake
Travis

Fall Creek

P
e

d
e

rn
ale

s Riv
er

Ham
ilton

Creek

L
ic

k
C

r
e

e
k

Spring Creek

Sulph ur Creek

Post
O

a
k

C
reek

Collier Hollow

B
ig

S
a

n
d

y
C

re
e

k

Lim
e

Creek

Neg
ro

B
r

a
n

ch

C
o

w
C

re
e

k

B
ee

C
re

ek

Bingha
m

C
re

e
k

Cypress

Cr
e

e
k

CypressCreek

B
ee

Cree
k

B ear Cre ek

Little Barton Creek

Branch Rocky
C

r
e

e
k

Rocky Cre

ek

M
y

r
tl

e
C

re
ek

T
h

o
m

a
s

S
p

r
in

g
s

B
ra

n
c

h

Bar ton Cre
e

k

Bee Creek (Westlake)

Cow
Fork

B
u

l l Creek

L
o

n
g

H
o

ll
o

w
 C

r
e

e
k

Onion Creek

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

October 21, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

S
p
ri
n
g
s

S
p
ri
n
g
s

NOTE:  The springs dataset represented on this map should not
be used to make final decisions on the existence of springs in Travis
County. Other springs may exist, but are not recorded in this dataset.

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Springs
USGS, TWDB, Capitol 

Environmental Services, TPWD
2013

Map 12

Springs#0

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Opportunities and Challenges 
 
For LWTP purposes, unincorporated Travis County is divided into areas that have similar development patterns and land and water 
characteristics and, subsequently, similar opportunities and challenges with respect to how the County guides growth and conserves 
land.   The specific “Opportunities-Challenge Areas” (see Map 1213) discussed in this section are as follows:  
 
 SH 130 North Growth Corridor  
 SH 130 South Growth Corridor  
 Rural Northeast Travis County 
 Colorado River Corridor 
 Rural Southwest Travis County 
 Lake Travis  
 Rural Northwest Travis County 
 Balcones Canyonlands  

 
SH 130 North Growth Corridor (Precinct 1) 
The SH 130 North Growth Corridor is a crescent-shaped area that roughly follows the alignment of SH 130 and extends from 
Williamson County to FM 969.   Most of the corridor is located within the municipal and ETJ boundaries of the cities of Austin, 
Manor, and Pflugerville.  
 
High Growth Area: Construction of SH 130 and SH45 toll roads and the availability of developable land are spurring growth in this 
area.  Numerous single-family and multi-family subdivisions have been developed; and the number of plans for large, mixed-use 
developments is making this one of the potentially most concentrated area of new growth in unincorporated Travis County.  
Tremendous growth continues in the region.  Forbes magazine estimated Austin’s population growth at 2.5 percent in 2013 making 
it the highest of all geographic regions in the country.  The City of Austin’s demographer estimates that this growth equates to 110 
new residents moving into the Austin Metro area each day.  The potential location of this new growth is shown through the 
numerous emerging projects identified along the corridor.  These future projects have estimates of nearly 80,000 new residential 
units along the corridor.   
 
Need Private Sector Investments in Infrastructure: The city of Austin views the corridor as a suitable place for dense, mixed-use 
development in their Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).  However, much of the area requires infrastructure investments to support   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     33 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



#0

#0

#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0

#0

#0
#0#0

#0#0#0
#0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0 #0

#0#0

#0

#0
#0
#0

#0

#0#0

#0

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV45 

UV360

UV 45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

SH 130

North

Growth

Corridor

Rural NW

Travis County

Colorado River

Corridor

Balcones

Canyonlands

Rural
SW Travis

County

Rural

NE Travis

County

SH 130 South

Growth Corridor

Lake

Travis

Sources: Esri, USGS, NOAA

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

October 27, 2014 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

&
 C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s 

in
 U

n
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 T

ra
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

&
 C

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s 

in
 U

n
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 T

ra
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

Shingle Hills !(

HAYSHAYS

Emerging Development &
2040 Centers (Draft)

Incorporated Areas

Between Springs & Emerging
Development & 2040 Centers

Between Groundwater 
Conservation Resources
& Emerging Development
& 2040 Centers

Challenge Areas

Between Land Conservation
Resources & Emerging
Development & 2040 Centers

Planning Areas
(Approx. Limits)

(Draft)

(Draft)

(Draft)

Groundwater Conservation 
Resources
(Edwards & Trinity Outcrops
& Alluvial Aquifers)

#0Springs

Existing Conserved Lands

(Parkland, Preserves, City of Austin
WQPL, & Travis County
Non-BCP Conservation Easement
Properties)

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

#0

Map 13

Land Conservation
Resources
(Threatened & Endangered Species
Habitat, Karst Zones, Prime
Farmland, Barton Creek & Little
Barton Creek Watersheds, 100-yr
Floodplain, & Post Oak Savanna)

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Parkland Travis County, City of Austin, TPWD, LCRA 2012-2013

Preserve Areas Travis County, City of Austin, LCRA, USFWS 2011-2012

Habitat and Karst Zones Travis County, City of Austin, BCCP, USFWS 1996, 2013

Ecoregions U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2007

Prime Farmland USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2002

Barton Creek & Little 

Barton Creek Watershed

Travis County, City of Austin Watershed 

Protection Department
2013

Floodplain Federal Emergency Management Agency 2008

Springs
USGS, TWDB, Capitol Environmental Services, 

TPWD
2013

Aquifers Texas Water Development Board 2006

Subdivision Data Travis County 2012

Centers (2040 Plan Draft) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization Draft 2013

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
the intensity of the development proposed.  In 2006, the City of Austin completed a study looking at the creation of an infrastructure 
district to fund needed water transmission lines, major wastewater collection lines, arterial roadway improvements and regional 
drainage facilities along the corridor.   The study, however, found that the costs of the required infrastructure exceeded the district’s 
forecasted revenues, requiring the city to finance the difference.  Because the city was unwilling to take on this debt, a district was 
not established, and large scale infrastructure investments have not been made.  While the city was unwilling to assume debt to 
build the infrastructure required for mixed-use development, improvements are being financed through other means: Municipal 
Utility Districts (MUDs), Public Improvement Districts (PIDs), and partnerships to an extent not seen elsewhere in unincorporated 
Travis County.   
 
Current planning continues to point to this area as a “desired” area for growth in that the City of Austin’s comprehensive plan, 
Imagine Austin,  promotes a compact and connected city by directing development away from sensitive environmental resources, 
and protects existing open space and natural resources.  Much of the future growth areas found on the City of Austin’s Growth 
Concept Map follow along the SH 130 corridor.  
 
Arterial Roadways Improved: Travis County and City of Austin have been investing in arterial roadway infrastructure to facilitate 
mobility within the corridor.  Improvements are planned or already completed for Pecan Street, Howard Lane, Wells Branch 
Parkway, Parmer Lane, Braker Lane, and Decker Lake Road to improve connections to SH 130 and movement within the corridor.   
Additionally, the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA) is completing toll improvements to US 290 E from US 183 to the 
east of Parmer Lane.  Once completed, the Manor Expressway will be a 6.2-mile limited-access toll road with three lanes in each 
direction.  The existing US 290 E will be widened and will remain non-tolled.   As these new improvements provide for more mobility, 
it is expected that development will occur along these arterials as other types of infrastructure are provided. 
 
Development Outpaces Prime Farmland Conservation: This is the part of the county where the most development is occurring and 
where there is a corresponding loss of farmland.  There are still opportunities to protect this resource, however, through 
conservation developments (in accordance with the County’s Conservation Subdivision Ordinance) and conservation easements.   
 
Land Conserved through Parkland Acquisition: Of the land conserved in the corridor, most of it is done so through parkland 
acquisition: the County has purchased approximately 1,000 acres since 1995 for Northeast Metro Park near Pflugerville and the 
Gilleland Creek Greenway that runs the length of the corridor.  Most of the land is obtained through fee simple purchase, but a 
significant amount is gained through landowner dedications required by the County and City of Austin’s parkland dedication 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     35 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

ordinances.   In some cases, the dedications exceed the amount required by the ordinance because developers appreciate the 
marketability of having greenways adjacent to their subdivisions as well as the savings realized from not having to maintain the 
property or pay taxes on the land.   
 
Creek Corridor Potential: Wilbarger Creek is a major creek with corridor potential.  It connects cities of Pflugerville and Manor.  Like 
the Gilleland Creek Greenway, it can serve multiple purposes: recreation, wildlife corridor, groundwater recharge, flood mitigation, 
and water quality mitigation. 
 
SH 130 South Growth Corridor (Precinct 4) 
The SH 130/45SE Southeast Growth Corridor is separated from the northern crescent by the Colorado River Corridor.  As with the 
northern corridor, the Southeast Growth Corridor follows the approximate alignment of SH 130 and includes SH 45 SE.  Most of the 
corridor is located within the municipal and ETJ bounds of the cities of Austin, Mustang Ridge and Creedmoor.   
 
Development is Imminent: The SH 130 South Growth Corridor has less proposed new development than the northern part of the 
corridor.   However, with the Circuit of the Americas track located in this area, and availability of suitable land for development, it is 
expected that growth will occur at the same levels as seen in the northern part of the corridor.    This new development is already 
being realized through the creation of the 1,600 acre Southeast Travis County MUD planned along Pearce Lane.  The municipal utility 
district will be able to tax residents so that water, sewage, drainage and other infrastructure can be developed.  The development 
will be predominately single family residential.  Another sizeable planned development is the Pilot Knob MUD’s located near the 
intersection of US 183 S and FM 1625.  Approximately 14,500 residences and 3.8 million square feet of commercial space is planned 
to be developed over the next 40 years.  Further west, surrounding the intersection of IH 35 S and SH 45 SE are the proposed 
Sunfield and Estancia developments.  These large mixed use developments are proposed to add approximately 20,000 and 8,000 
residential units respectively within the corridor. 
 
Arterial Roadways Improved:  Since the opening of SH 130, Travis County has invested in roadway infrastructure to make 
connections to the toll road through improvements to Slaughter Lane, William Cannon Drive and Elroy Road.   Improvements have 
also been made to provide better access to the residents living in the Del Valle and Elroy communities.  Court approved funding of a 
new road, Maha Loop Road, will provide increased connectivity to SH 71 E and additional access to Del Valle School facilities and the 
Circuit of the Americas site.   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     36 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Land Conserved through Parkland Acquisition: As in the northern part of the corridor, land has been conserved through parkland 
acquisition:  the County has acquired approximately 1,235 acres since 1995 for the Onion Creek Greenway.  As elsewhere in the 
county, there are opportunities to conserve land through conservation developments and conservation easements.    
 
 
Rural Northeast Travis County (Precinct 1) 
Rural Northeast Travis County extends from Williamson County to the Colorado River Corridor, bounded by the SH130 North Growth 
Corridor to the west and Bastrop County line to the east.  A small portion is within the City of Elgin but it is mostly unincorporated 
land.  Much of this area is unincorporated and located outside of any jurisdiction’s ETJ. 
 
Slower Pace of Development: This area has limited utilities and a network of two-lane county roads serving rural areas.  As the cities 
of Elgin, Manor and Pflugerville grow, however, utilities will become more available and development can be expected to expand 
into the area.  This growth, though, is expected to be much slower than that occurring in both the SH 130 corridor to the west.   
 
Diverse Eco-regions to Protect Ahead of Development: Because of relatively low development pressure, there is an opportunity to 
conserve land ahead of development.  This is particularly advantageous because this is an ecologically diverse part of the county: it 
has two different eco-regions -- Blackland Prairie and Post Oak Savanna -- one of which -- Post Oak Savanna -- is only found in this 
part of the county.   
 
Land Protected through parkland Acquisitions and Conservation Easements: To date, he County has conserved land in this area 
through parkland acquisition and conservation easements: in 2001, it purchased approximately 273 acres for the East Metro Park; 
more recently approximately 530 acres of prime farmland have been conserved through the County’s conservation easement 
program that is being implemented in partnership with landowners and the USDA’s Farm and Ranch Protection Program (FRPP).   
Although this program is available to landowners in other parts of the county, landowners acted proactively in this area and 
established the Wilbarger Creek Conservation Alliance to pursue conservation easement partnerships with the County and USDA.   
 
Creek Corridor Potential: As in the SH 130 North Growth Corridor, Wilbarger Creek has corridor potential.  It extends from the City of 
Manor to privately conserved lands further east, and it can be relatively easy to connect it to East Metro Park.  Similarly, it can serve 
multiple purposes and be established through different public and private initiatives. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     37 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Numerous Springs: As seen in Map 12, springs are concentrated in the Post Oak Savanna eco-region that can be protected ahead of 
development. 
 
Colorado River Corridor (Precincts 1 and 4) 
The Colorado River Corridor, for these planning purposes, extends from the eastern limit of incorporated City of Austin to the 
Bastrop County line.  Its northern and southern boundaries follow the approximate limits of the river’s 100-year floodplain.  Most of 
it lies within the ETJs of the cities of Austin and Webberville.   
 
Residents and Mining Interests Clash:  Spurred on by the recent permitting of large tracts of land for mining, residents lobbied the 
county to address their concerns about the impact of mining operations on their quality of life: they expect dust, noise, impairment 
of water resources, loss of agricultural lands and rural character, and negative impacts on their property values to worsen as mining 
operations expand. The county’s limited authority, however, to enforce land use regulations restricts the type of actions the county 
can take to protect landowners.  In this particular case, the county undertook several actions to mitigate the impacts of incompatible 
land uses occurring side-by-side: 1) executed the Agreement for the Acquisition of Open Space Parkland in Lieu of Condemnation 
with TXI, 2) contracted services for monitoring the impact of mining on noise levels and air and water quality, and 3) contracted 
services to complete the Colorado River Corridor Plan (CRCP), a conceptual plan for the corridor that identifies preferred land use 
patterns that has growth along the major highways, large tracts of rural land preserved, and clashes of incompatible land uses 
minimized.   
 
Infrastructure Drives Pace of Development: The extent and pace of residential and mixed-use development in the corridor is 
dependent in large part on the availability of water and sanitary sewer infrastructure.   The proposed development of Rio de Vida, a 
mining reuse project for mixed use municipal utility district (MUD) that would yield over 8,000 homes and apartments, 
demonstrates this point.  In this case, a MUD was established to finance infrastructure.  The City of Austin and district, however, 
could not reach an agreement over water and sewer rights so the district was dissolved in 2012.  Although this MUD was dissolved, 
the developer has expressed his desire to develop the area and is exploring other opportunities. 
 
Residents Lobby for Annexation: Residents of Austin Colony are actively seeking opportunities to provide land use protection, 
infrastructure improvements, and quality of life improvements through annexation by the City of Austin or municipal incorporation 
of the area.  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     38 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Congestion a Local Problem: Additional residential development has led to increased congestion and travel times within the 
corridor.  As a response to these conditions, improvements to provide better access to the new middle school were funded in 2011 
and a partnership with TXDoT to add capacity to FM 969 from FM 3177 to Austin Colony Blvd was established.   
 
New Bridge to Improve Regional Mobility: Construction of a bridge over the Colorado River connecting Burleson Manor Road to SH 
71 E is proposed in the CAMPO 2035 plan.  This major transportation improvement will improve connectivity and regional mobility 
and also stimulate development in areas that are not currently served by a well-developed roadway network.       
 
Prime Farmland Lost to Aggregate Mining: The Colorado River corridor is home to the largest contiguous area of Prime farmland in 
the county.  Aggregate mining, driven by demand for building materials, however, is superseding agricultural use of the land.  
Although mining is an historic activity, it is now occurring on a larger scale than previously experienced and it is planned to continue 
over the next few decades.  
 
“Concurrent Reclamation” Softens Impacts of Mining: There are several legacy quarries and mines in the corridor which have 
matured, without human intervention, into wildlife habitat with some wetland functions.   But without the softening effects of time, 
traditional drag line operations close with unsightly spoil piles and unnatural land contours that are not suitable for reuse.  More 
recent requirements for closing mines, though, dictate that post-mining landscapes have contours and elevations that approximate 
pre-mining landscapes.  Mines are closed with agreed upon slopes, re-vegetation, and stabilization that make the post-mined land 
environmentally sustainable and suitable for agricultural, residential, or commercial uses.  
 
Land Conserved through Parkland Acquisition: As in other parts of the county, land is primarily conserved through parkland 
acquisition: the County has acquired approximately 320 acres along Gilleland Creek and the Colorado River.  At this time, the only 
farmland being conserved in the corridor is that which is acquired incidentally for the greenways and river corridor (There is, 
however, landowner interest in protecting their working farms through conservation easements). 
 
River Corridor Potential:  In addition to the Gilleland Creek corridor, that crosses the Colorado River floodplain, there is potential to 
develop a corridor along the Colorado River.  Travis County currently has parkland along the river that could be the foundation of a 
Colorado River corridor. 
 
Alluvial Aquifer Impacted by Development: The Colorado River Alluvial Aquifer is a locally important source of water that could be 
altered by the removal of alluvial material.    The extent and nature of the impact of this activity on the aquifer is not known, but the 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     39 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

County is monitoring water quality in the area for the purpose of understanding the potential impacts on the aquifer from mining.  
The aquifer has met local demand for water historically for agriculture and limited domestic use but its capacity is inadequate to 
support additional urbanizing trends.  As a result, the County has prohibited its use as a water supply for new subdivisions.  
 
Rural Southwest Travis County (Precinct 3) 
Rural Southwest Travis County extends from the eastern edges of the cities of Lakeway and Bee Cave west to Blanco County and 
southwest to Hays County. Its northern boundary is Lake Travis. Much of this area is unincorporated and located outside of any 
jurisdiction’s ETJ. 
 
Growth Hinges on Infrastructure Development: This area is attractive for development because it is the last area in the county that 
has large, contiguous tracts of undeveloped land and it is served by the SH 71 and Hamilton Pool Road transportation corridors.  The 
degree this area develops, however, hinges on whether transportation improvements are provided and water is available to support 
growth.  Limited water infrastructure has slowed development and road improvements have been controversial: some residents 
have objected to and delayed improvements to Hamilton Pool Road and the construction of the Reimers-Peacock arterial.   
 
Development Threatens Water Quality: Southwest Travis County has important ground and surface water resources: it lies over the 
Trinity Aquifer, a locally important source of water, and includes the Pedernales River and other tributaries of Lake Travis – a 
regionally important source of water.  Mitigating the impact of increased impervious cover on both groundwater and surface water 
quality and facilitating recharge of the aquifer are therefore critical objectives, and time sensitive along SH 71 and Hamilton Pool 
Road. 
 
Best Construction Practices Needed:  When development pressure began in the early-to-mid 2000’s, several instance of water 
pollution of local waters, including Lick Creek, Hamilton Creek and Hamilton Pool, has occurred.  Although primary regulatory 
responsibility fell to the LCRA and Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), residents lobbied Travis County to help 
resolve the problem.  The County did issue violation notices for storm water management failures, but these events prompted the 
county to strengthen its regulatory powers for protecting water quality.  Beginning in 2005, the county adopted more stringent 
water quality protection rules as part of its development regulations. 
 
Land Protected through Parkland Acquisition and Water Conservation Easements: Travis County has been conserving land in this 
part of the county through parkland acquisition.  Since 2001, it has assembled more than 3,000 acres on the Pedernales River, 
adjacent to Hamilton Pool Preserve.  This is in accordance with the Southwest Travis County Growth Dialogue (SWTCGD) 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     40 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

recommendation to conserve approximately 6000 acres in the area (SWTCGD was a forum organized by the LCRA and Travis County 
to facilitate a discussion about development and conservation issues in their community). The City of Austin has also assembled 
large tracts of land for water quality protection that are protected through conservation easements. 
 
Potential Barton Springs Protection: Protection of Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds can play a significant role in the 
protection and recharge of Barton Springs. 
 
Creek and River Corridor Potential: Hamilton Creek runs from the county highpoint at Shingle Hill to the Hamilton Pool Preserve, 
making it a particularly critical water way and strong candidate for corridor development.  Hamilton Pool, in fact, was recently 
contaminated by runoff from a construction site in Hays County, forcing Travis County to take legal action against the developer of 
the property that generated the pollution for its cleanup.  The creek also flows into the Pedernales River, the major tributary of Lake 
Travis in Travis County along which the County has purchased parkland as the foundation of a corridor system. 
 
Numerous Springs: As seen in Map 12, there numerous springs in the vicinity of Hamilton Creek and Hamilton Pool that can be 
protected ahead of development. 
 
Lake Travis (Precinct 3) 
The Lake Travis area extends east-west from Burnet County to Mansfield Dam and captures the north and south shore of the lake. It 
includes portions of the cities of Lakeway, Volente, Lago Vista, Jonestown, Point Venture, and Briarcliff, communities that developed 
around populations attracted to a lake-centered lifestyle.  
 
An Economic Driver: Lake Travis is a natural resource that drives the economy at both the regional and local level.  It is a primary 
source of fresh water for communities and major industries throughout Travis County and helps drive the area’s strong economy 
and population growth.   It also is a major recreational resource that is estimated to generate, when full, approximately $200 million 
in revenue for state and local governments.  That is not the case at this time: due to an ongoing drought, many businesses lake-
related activities are closing, on either a temporary or permanent basis.  And property values are affected as well: the overall value 
of waterfront property and real property in the general area of the Highland Lakes typically experiences downward pressure that 
parallels the decline in water levels and associated economic activities. 
 
Population Concentrated in Incorporated Lake Communities:  Much of the population within this area is concentrated in 
incorporated areas along Lake Travis.  The north shore communities of Lago Vista, Jonestown and Volente and south shore 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     41 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

communities of Lakeway and Briarcliff have experienced the same rapid growth occurring in the Central Texas region.  With an 
increased aging population and many of these communities supporting retirement developments, population growth is forecasted 
to continue to impact the quality of life for the citizens within this area.    
 
Unincorporated land in this area has seen less development due to the inability and high cost to provide supportive infrastructure.  
However, growth continues along the two main corridors that serve this area, RR 620 and FM 1431 
 
Limited Transportation Corridors Cause Congestion:  Increased local traffic and increased through traffic using RR 620 are impacting 
residents living within the area.  RR 620 provides local access to south shore communities, but also is the last crossing of the 
Highland Lakes/Colorado River before US Hwy 281 in Marble Falls.   With limited alternatives to relieve this major traffic corridor, 
congestion continues to increase along RR 620.  Currently, no improvements are identified for this section of RR 620 in the CAMPO 
2035 Transportation Plan.   The Plan does call for a transportation study to be undertaken; however, with these limited options, 
communities have begun voicing and undertaking plans to address this congestion.  The City of Lakeway has taken the lead to look at 
an “ambitious” transportation plan to increase mobility within the corridor.  This plan calls for elevated tollways and crossings of BCP 
lands that would require “cooperation and compromise” from many of the stakeholders within this area.  
 
Environmental Conditions Limit Mobility Options in RR 620 Corridor:   Proposed improvements to transportation are limited due to 
topography inherent to western Travis County, crossing of the Lake, and surrounding BCP lands.  Desires to develop new 
transportation corridors and/or provide for added capacity not only are impacted by the natural environment, but also public 
opinions about preserving the “Texas Hill Country environment”, scenic vistas, recreational opportunities and water quality.  Rapid 
growth in the area challenges the balance of protection of critical natural and water resources and providing efficient, safe and 
reliable transportation. 
 
No Identified CAMPO Activity Centers and Emerging Growth Developments in Unincorporated Area:  Changes in land use and 
development practices has been one solution undertaken by the CAMPO region to reduce congestion.  The allowance for dense, 
mixed use development served by a mix of transportation choices can lead to changes in mobility patterns within the region.  
However, currently, this type development has not been identified within this area of Travis County.  Challenges are seen in whether 
the development community and the residents in the area will see that this type of development is compatible with values of many 
of the residents.  The County’s conservation development ordinance is another opportunity allowing for changes in how 
development impacts the area’s natural resources.  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     42 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Large Tracts of Land Conserved by LCRA: The LCRA obtained large tracts of land beyond what they needed to build Lake Travis, and 
subsequently established 10 new parks on surplus land above lake level (seven of which are managed by Travis County).  With 
ownership of approximately 2,200 acres of the nearly 2,400 acres of parkland on the lake, the LCRA is clearly the most significant 
conserver of land in this area.   
 
Changing Lake Levels Challenge Recreation Providers:  Lake Travis is designed to rise and fall, with extremes that have ranged from 
its current low – lowest elevation since 1964 – of approximately 628 feet mean sea level (ft msl) to a high of 710 ft msl in 1991.  Both 
conditions create special engineering, construction management challenges and expenses for recreation providers.   Facilities have 
to be designed and built to withstand inundation.  Conversely, facilities do not function as intended when lake levels drop 
dramatically: boat ramps are not useable and amenities, such as restrooms, are too far from park visitors to be useful.   
 
Rural Northwest Travis County (Precinct 3) 
Rural Northwest Travis County is bounded on its east side by the cities of Leander, Jonestown, and Lago Vista, the north and west by 
Williamson and Burnet counties, and south by Lake Travis.  Much of this area is unincorporated and located outside of any 
jurisdiction’s ETJ. 
 
Little Imminent Development:  There is limited development emerging in this area because there is limited infrastructure in place to 
support large scale developments.  No road improvements are planned within this region. 
 
Land Conserved Through Habitat Protection: The US Fish and Wildlife Refuge is the largest preserves in the county, established to 
protect threatened and endangered species habitat, and according to plan it will get larger.   
 
Creek Corridor Potential: Both Big Sandy Creek and Cow Creek have corridor potential.  As elsewhere in the county, they can serve 
multiple purposes and be established through a combination of public and private initiatives. 
 
Water Resources Protected Through Habitat Preservation: Although habitat protection is the primary purpose of the US Fish and 
Wildlife Refuge, the preserve also protects the important Trinity and Edwards outcrops, headwaters of tributaries flowing into Lake 
Travis and numerous springs.  
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     43 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Balcones Canyonland Area (Precincts 2 and 3) 
The Balcones Canyonland area extends from the northern Travis County boundary to approximately the “Y” at Oak Hill.  It includes 
incorporated areas of the cities of Austin, Bee Cave, Lakeway, Oak Hill, Volente, and West Lake.   
 
Development Constrained:  This area is distinguished by land use pattern of scattered, densely developed areas adjacent to and 
within the mosaic of Balcones Canyonland Preserve (BCP).   Several factors constrain development of new subdivisions: protected 
species limited amount of land available for development, and steep, costly-to-develop terrain.  However, suitable sites can be 
planned, permitted and mitigated through several regionally available processes. 
 
BCP Substantially Complete and a Success:  The Balcones Canyonland Conservation Plan (BCCP), an Endangered Species Act (ESA) 
incidental take permit, facilitates continued development in western Travis County by acquiring and managing the Preserve system 
that offsets impacts from development to certain federally protected species.  Land acquisition for the preserve is substantially 
complete: as of February 2014, the Preserve is comprised of 30,516 acres for the benefit the golden-cheeked warbler (Warbler) and 
black-capped vireo (Vireo); and 47 of the 62 karst features listed in the BCCP protected. Travis County is currently managing 
approximately 7600 acres of the BCP.   Although the Preserve exceeds the minimum size of the required 30,428, permit holders still 
need to acquire habitat for the Warbler and Vireo to meet the Preserve design configuration specifications outlined in the Permit.   
 
New Federally Listed Species: In September 2013, two new springs- and groundwater-dependent species which occur in western 
Travis County were listed under the ESA – Jollyville Plateau Salamander and Austin Blind Salamander.  Neither are covered by the 
BCCP incidental take permit, meaning that landowners’ and developers’ projects which may affect these species will not have the 
expedited ESA compliance mechanisms to address their mitigation needs.  Project sponsors will need to pursue individual incidental 
take permits with US Fish and Wildlife Service; this is a lengthy process.  A regional incidental take permit for Jollyville Plateau 
Salamander, similar to the BCCP could put protective and permitting measures in place to facilitate development in western Travis 
County. 
 
Water Resources Protected Through Habitat Preservation: Although habitat protection is the primary purpose of the BCP, the 
preserve also protects the important Trinity and Edwards outcrops (karst terrain which provides aquifer recharge), headwaters of 
tributaries flowing into Lake Travis and numerous springs. 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     44 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     45 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

D: GROWTH GUIDANCE PLAN 
 
Introduction  
The LWTP Growth Guidance Plan consists of the goals, objectives, concepts, and policies described herein.  It integrates market 
trends and community values relative to both development patterns and conservation priorities.  It provides the framework for 
developing TNR’s annual work plans, setting budget and capital improvement priorities, developing growth-related policies and 
practices, and determining TNR’s legislative agenda.   
 

Goals and Objectives  
 
Goal A: Improve the Quality of Life of Travis County Residents 
Objective A-1: Maintain or improve standard of living including access to clean water and affordable transportation.  
Objective A-2: Maintain or improve community safety through hazard mitigation 
Objective A-3: Maintain or improve roadway and pedestrian safety 
Objective A-4: Provide facilities including parks and bike and pedestrian trails to support healthy lifestyles 
 

Goal B: Optimize Benefits of Land and Water Resources 
Objective B-1: Protect the rural and natural character of Travis County 
Objective B-2: Protect water resources 
Objective B-3: Protect outdoor recreational opportunities 
Objective B-4: Protect ecosystems and wild life habitat 
Objective B-5: Enhance property values 
 

Goal C: Optimize Use of Travis County Resources 
Objective C-1: Maximize value of CIP investments 
Objective C-2: Distribute Travis County resources effectively 
Objective C-3: Minimize loss-of-life and damages to residents and county property 
Objective C-4: Improve cost effectiveness of long-term operation and maintenance activities 
Objective C-5: Optimize Travis County resources through leveraging 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     46 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Balancing Development and Land Conservation 
This plan seeks to balance development with land conservation and subsequently has two main components: the Development 
Concept and the Land Conservation Concept which feed into the Growth Guidance Concept. 
 

Figure 9: Growth Guidance Maps 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Activity Centers and Transportation Corridors”  
 
ACTIVITY CENTERS 
Traffic congestion continues to be a major concern for residents in the region.  More and more the region views the solution to 
congestion through expanding choices through the provision of alternatives in land development and mobility options.  The 
continuance of relieving congestion through expanding traditional transportation modes; i.e., adding lane capacity to roadways, 
remains an important role for Travis County as part of the  regional solution.  However, local public transportation survey results 
have shown a desire to look at additional transportation choices, including the link between land use and transportation.  The 
surveys were completed as part of the development of the CAMPO 2035 Plan and the City of Austin Strategic Mobility Plan.  A 
summary of the surveys can be found in the LWTP Background Report, Section D. Public Opinion, under Transportation. 
 
Where and how the region grows will impact the progress of improving the region’s congestion problem and quality of life.  One way 
to improve the traffic created by future growth is through providing for an alternative way to develop land known as Activity 
Centers.  While traditional subdivision developments will continue throughout the County, Activity Centers allow for another choice 
in how people, live, work and play.  Taking its lead from the six county CAMPO policy board, TNR's plan strives to minimize 
conventional urban sprawl and encourage an alternative choice for managing growth through multiple activity centers.  CAMPO 

DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT  
Activity Centers & Transportation Corridors 

LAND CONSERVATION CONCEPT   
Conservation Areas & River and Creek Corridors  

 

 

GROWTH GUIDANCE CONCEPT MAP 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     47 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

defines Activity Centers as planned and built mixed use developments that have the density and diversity of land use and design 
attributes that produce lower personal vehicle miles traveled that are supported through vehicular, pedestrian, bicycle and transit 
traffic (Transportation Corridors).  Current Activity Center locations were approved by the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board for 
use in the development of the CAMPO 2040 long range transportation plan.  Locations were identified by local jurisdictions and 
implementing agencies to provide a framework for regional transportation planning and in many cases are included in local plans 
and have received development approvals.    
 
Activity Centers provide another development choice that creates the ability to locate new growth in higher density, mixed 
developments that can be oriented around planned transportation investments.  The market has already begun to plan and develop 
using this type growth concept especially in eastern Travis County along the SH 130 corridor.  Examples such as Whisper Valley along 
FM 973, Pilot Knob MUDs at William Cannon Dr. and US 183 S and the development occurring in the South Austin Regional Center 
show that an alternative to existing residential growth is an option in the market today.     
 
Benefits of encouraging an alternative growth pattern can lead to: 
 
Improvements in quality of life  
 Reduces time in congestion; housing located near jobs (reduced work trip length) 
 Increases choice for all transportation options (motor vehicles, walking, bicycling, and transit) 
 Increases housing options through new types of residential development (live, work ,play) 
 Compact growth allows for increased natural resource opportunities 
 Improves air quality 

 
Benefits to land and water resources 
 Accommodates new growth away from sensitive natural resources 
 Compact growth reduces impact on surrounding natural resources 
 Encourages efficient use of land and water resources in all parts of the County 

 
Reduced transportation costs 
 Reduces fuel consumption and travel times related to personal travel  
 Compact development area reduces infrastructure and maintenance costs 
 Provides transportation choice for all modes (motor vehicles, walking, bicycling, and transit) 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     48 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 Reduces infrastructure redundancy 
 
TRANSPORTATION CORRIDORS 
Transportation Corridors are roadways that accommodate motor vehicles, pedestrians, bicyclists, and transit and provide 
connectivity to and between Activity Centers.  Corridors support and influence new and existing development that surrounds that 
infrastructure.   By linking multiple Activity Centers and other transportation features through the movement of people and freight 
successfully, direct impacts to economic development occur within the corridor.   Successful Transportation Corridors will continue 
to emphasize the automobile as the primary mode of transportation and will continue to be into the foreseeable future.  
Automobiles will always be a transportation choice and these corridors will help provide additional choices such as sidewalks, trails, 
bicycle facilities and transit options where appropriate.   
 
Transportation Corridors help to: 
 
 Provide connectivity to and between Activity Centers and other transportation features, SH 130, IH 35, transit centers, etc. 
 Provide opportunity to increase transportation choice (motor vehicles, walking, bicycling, and transit) 
 Provide opportunities for economic development along the corridor 
 Provide economic benefits through increased mobility thereby improving fuel consumption cost and time savings  

 
Transit and Transportation Corridors 
CAMPO's policy and TNR's recommendation to support Activity Center and Transportation Corridor growth management strategies 
is not intended to preclude the use of any mode of travel.  However high cost modes, such as rail and regular bus service, require 
careful consideration of cost-effectiveness and the support of market forces.   
 
TNR's plan is not intended to get the County into the transit business but it is suggested that the County can do more to help existing 
service providers expand their service areas and enhance the quality of those services by partnering on infrastructure improvements 
with Cap Metro and the Capital Area Rural Transportation Services (CARTS).  There are limited transit options (regular bus service) in 
the unincorporated areas of the County.  Most unincorporated areas that lie outside the Capital Metro service area must rely on 
rural transit services provided by CARTS.  While these services are an important part or the regions’ mobility, improved daily transit 
service and the ability to access these services will be required to support residents that desire to choose a transit option over taking 
their motor vehicle.    
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     49 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Currently, Cap Metro, CARTS and Travis County are working on ways to improve service including identifying funding mechanisms 
and partnerships to improve service and the access to service within and especially outside the Cap Metro service area.   Before 
providing transit services, areas must meet certain service criteria.  While the County has limited authority to influence density, 
ridership, and land use, other factors can be improved.   
 
Road improvements, service partnerships and new funding sources are areas where the County can look to bring about or improve 
existing transit services to unincorporated areas.  Currently, the County makes improvements to roadways through the building of 
new arterials and new sidewalks that improve connectivity and access to transit stops.  Partnerships that allow for the sharing of 
facilities such as the County’s Interlocal Agreement with CARTS to utilize part of the SE Metro Park as a transit station is another type 
opportunity that can be expanded.  Finally, new funding sources to provide for improvements to improve or establish transit 
services have been identified. Areas in the Austin/Round Rock urbanized area that are outside the Cap Metro service area have 
access to 5307 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) federal funds.  The County has identified these funds as a new opportunity to 
provide for sidewalk improvements to transit stops or transit centers.  The County would be a sub-recipient of these funds and work 
with Cap Metro and CARTS to identify areas needing improvement.   In the future, TNR will be bringing forward to the 
Commissioners Court additional information on 5307 funds. 
 
 
“Conservation Areas and River and Creek Corridors”  
 
CONSERVATION AREAS 
Conservation Areas are comprised of contiguous, uninterrupted tracts of land that has been prioritized for conservation – such as 
prime farmland – and is a configuration that is preferred over smaller, isolated tracts because it optimizes the benefits of conserving 
land:     
 
 Preserves water-shed based natural drainage patterns and groundwater systems 
 Reduces fragmentation of wildlife habitat and ecosystems 
 Increases opportunities for recreational wilderness experience 
 Preserves area-wide rural landscapes and vistas 
 Enhances property values of residences with scenic views 

 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     50 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

RIVER AND CREEK CORRIDORS 
River and Creek Corridors are minimally developed lands following waterways, often used for passive recreation or agriculture, and 
ideally connect conservation areas.  In eastern Travis County, they typically include floodplains and riparian zones.  It is configuration 
preferred over non-linear, land-locked parcels because it optimizes benefits of conserving land: 
 
 Leaves flood-prone areas in a natural or restored state, reducing non-point source pollution of waterways 
 Facilitates storm water treatment through pollutant attenuation 
 Reduces land erosion and stream bed scouring   
 Provides wildlife corridors 
 Accommodates trails and supports connectivity 
 Provides recreational access to rivers and creeks  
 Maximizes impact on property values 

 
DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT  
Texas counties have limited authority to control land.  However, Travis County seeks to increase its ability to guide new growth using 
expanded subdivision development authority and powers related to the regulation and development of supporting transportation 
infrastructure.  The Development Concept map (see Map 1314) identifies the areas where the County will encourage the location of 
new growth in the unincorporated area.   Identified by the County and other municipal jurisdictions through the MPO transportation 
planning process, these Activity Center locations and Transportation Corridors allow additional choices in land development; one 
that is compact, connected and supports opportunities to protect land and water resources. 
 
ACTIVITY CENTERS 
Map 13 defines the location of Activity Centers and provides the name of the Center as provided by its sponsoring agency to 
CAMPO.  The Activity Centers shown on the map are located in or partly in the unincorporated area of Travis County or lie in close 
proximity to the unincorporated area.  Some Activity Centers locations are farther along in the development process than others.  
Those that have MUD and PUD agreements or approved site plans are usually shown with boundaries as defined in the agreements.  
Others in earlier stages of the land development process may be in conceptual and/or planning stages and are identified with 
circular symbols related to the proposed size and type of Activity Center proposed.  More information on Activity Centers is found in 
Figure 10:  Activity Center Information.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     51 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



£¤290

£¤290

") 620 

")2222

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")1626

UV130

UV45 

UV 45

UV 45 

UV130

Sunfield
MUD

Pilot Knob

Pflugerville-
SH 130 Corridor

Whisper
Valley PUD

Barton
Creek

Mall

IH-35 & SH 45

Manor

SH 130 &
US 290/

Wildhorse

Lakeway

Bee Cave

South Austin
Regional Center

Goodnight
Ranch

Mustang
Ridge

South Park
Meadows

Tech Ridge

Circuit of the
Americas

Four Points

Colorado River
Plan Center

Pflugerville-
Downtown

SH 130 &
Decker Lake Rd

Buda

Kyle

Dripping Springs

Elgin

Taylor

Hutto

Round Rock
Downtown

Cedar Park

Leander

Georgetown

Oak Hill

Lakeline
Station

Area

Avery
Center

University
Boulevard

Robinson
Ranch

0 2 4 6 81

Miles D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
c
e
p
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
c
e
p
t

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

. DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

November 06, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

Highway

Railroad

Incorporated Areas

County Maintained Rd

Major Rd

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Corridors City of Austin, CAMPO, Travis County TNR 2012-2014

Centers (2040 Plan Draft) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization Draft 2013

Subdivision Data Travis County 2012

Transportation
Corridors

SH 130 Corridor

Activity Centers

(2040 Plan - Draft)
(Boundaries as defined by Sponsor)

W
e
is

s
W

e
is

s

Howard

Howard

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

Slaughter

Slaughter

D
e
ss

a
u

D
e
ss

a
u

T
h
ax

to
n

T
h
ax

to
n

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

Parmer

Parmer

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

Braker

Braker

Pearce
Pearce

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
a
ll
e
y

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
a
ll
e
y

A
rte

ria
l A

A
rte

ria
l A

Elroy
Elroy

Kelly
Kelly

Pecan
Pecan

Pflugerville

Pflugerville

Pkwy
Pkwy

C
am

e
ro

n

C
am

e
ro

n

Map 14
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Figure 10:  Activity Center Information 
Center Name Sponsor Type Boundary Source 

Robinson Ranch Austin Regional Center Undefined Imagine Austin 
Pflugerville SH 130 Corridor Pflugerville Community Center Defined Pflugerville 2030 Comprehensive Plan 
Pflugerville Downtown Pflugerville Regional Center Undefined Pflugerville 2030 Comprehensive Plan 
Tech Ridge Austin Neighborhood Center Undefined Imagine Austin 
Manor Manor  Undefined  
SH130 & US 290/Wildhorse Austin Town Center Defined Approved PUD 
Whisper Valley PUD Travis Town Center Defined Approved PUD 
SH 130 and Decker Lake Road Travis Neighborhood Center Undefined Approved Site Plan 
Colorado River Plan Center Travis Town Center Undefined Colorado River Corridor Plan, Imagine 

Austin 
Circuit of the Americas Austin Job Center Undefined Imagine Austin 
Pilot Knob MUD Travis Town Center Defined Approved MUD 
Goodnight Ranch Travis Neighborhood Center Defined Approved PUD 
Mustang Ridge Mustang Ridge  Undefined  
South Austin Regional Center Travis Regional Center Undefined Approved Site Plan 
Sunfield MUD Buda Community Node/Business Defined Approved Site Plan 
Oakhill Austin Activity Center for Redevelopment in 

Sensitive Environmental Areas 
Undefined Imagine Austin 

Bee Cave Bee Cave Town Center Defined Comprehensive Plan 
Lakeway Lakeway  Undefined Comprehensive Plan 
Four Points Austin Activity Center for Redevelopment in 

Sensitive Environmental Areas 
Defined Imagine Austin 

 
The location of these Activity Centers as well as the Transportation Corridors that support them were identified through the 
following: 
 
Development Master Plans and Comprehensive Plans:  Activity Centers were identified and supported by jurisdictions and other 
implementing planning agencies through previous comprehensive or development plan approvals.  These locations in the 
unincorporated area within jurisdictional ETJ’s allow local jurisdictions to achieve the objectives of their approved local plans.  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     53 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Examples include the City of Pflugerville’s SH 130 Corridor which is identified as a specific boundary that is centered along future 
growth planned along the SH 130 corridor.  Others comprehensive plans provided locations that show the City of Bee Cave boundary 
and locations identified in the City of Austin’s Imagine Austin Plan.   Additional locations are identified related to forecasted growth 
around the South Austin Regional Center (Estancia Development Plan) and from future development identified in the Colorado River 
Corridor Plan.   
 
Developer Agreements and Arterial Partnerships:  In some cases, the County has entered into arterial public/private agreements 
with developers to support the development of Activity Centers.  The City of Austin and Travis County have worked with developers 
in east and southeast Travis County; Pilot Knob MUD’s and in the Manor area, Whisper Valley PID and SH130 & US 290/Wildhorse 
MUD, to allow for connected, more dense type developments through the use of public/private arterial partnerships that help 
establish Transportation Corridors.   
 
Adjacency to Utilities Drives Locations of New Development:  Undeveloped land near developing or recently developed tracts that 
have adequate infrastructure are identified as “lands most susceptible” to change.  Past trends within the region show that this 
growth was accommodated in low density single family developments along the edges of existing urban areas.  Opportunities exist 
to help direct a more dense growth pattern to these areas along the periphery of the incorporated areas of the County away from 
sensitive natural resources and proposed conservation areas.  Goodnight Ranch and SH 130 and Decker Lake Road Centers are 
examples of this type development supported by arterial public/private partnerships. 
 
SH 130 Growth Corridor:  Forecasted growth is occurring along the SH 130 Corridor.   Many of the large mixed use centers are 
located along this corridor as population continues to locate linearly.  As utilities are provided, transportation connectivity utilizing 
Transportation Corridors will be the critical element in the success of Activity Centers within this area of the County.   It is not only 
important to consider that supporting growth in this corridor helps limit the pressure to develop environmentally sensitive lands in 
western Travis County, but wise siting of activity centers could also result in protection of natural resources in eastern Travis County.  
These opportunities lie in land areas unconstrained by flood plains, endangered species habitat, water resources, or prime farmland 
areas.   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     54 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

RM 620 Corridor:  Jurisdictions in western Travis County, Bee Cave, Lakeway and Cedar Park have identified portions of their 
communities as Activity Centers.  These centers will require improved multi-modal transportation corridors along RM 620 and 
connecting to RM 620 from other Activity Centers and the City of Austin. 
 
TRANSPORTATION CORRIDORS 
Transportation Corridors are defined as roadways that provide connectivity within and between Activity Centers and other 
transportation features.  Travis County can use transportation investments as a tool to encourage where growth should be 
accommodated.  By improving these Corridors with additional roadways or adding lanes to existing roadways, capacity and multi-
modal options that allow commuters transportation choices, changes in where growth is planned for can be made.   
 
Map 13 also identifies the location of Transportation Corridors within the unincorporated areas of the County.   Identified are two 
areas of emphasis in the development of the Transportation Corridor concept, the SH 130 corridor and the RM 620 corridor.  
Predominantly, the Development Concept has Transportation Corridors planned along the SH 130 corridor which provide 
connectivity to: 

 SH 130 
 Activity Centers (supporting and connecting to other Activity Centers) 
 Austin’s urban area 
 Regional population centers 

 
Transportation Corridors such as Howard Lane, Parmer Lane, Braker Lane, FM 969, Pearce Lane, FM 812 and Slaughter Lane support 
east/west connectivity from Center locations occurring along the SH 130 Corridor and to Austin’s urban core.  Improved Corridors to 
the east, north and south make connecting to the major highways (US 290 E, SH 71 E, and IH 35) that connect to major population 
centers of Dallas/Fort Worth, San Antonio and Houston an important part of the Corridor plan.    
 
The RM 620 corridor is a major western Travis County Transportation Corridor connecting the Activity Centers of Bee Cave, Lakeway, 
Four Points and the City of Cedar Park.  SH 71 W, RM 2222 and RM 2244 are also identified as Transportation Corridors in that they 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     55 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

provide connectivity from western Activity Centers into Austin’s urbanized area.  As with the SH 130 corridor, prioritized investments 
in transportation infrastructure should be made to support these western Activity Centers. 
 

LAND CONSERVATION CONCEPT  
A CONSERVATION TRADITION 
The conservation component of the LWTP is built upon twenty years of conserving land in unincorporated Travis County.   Through 
previous plans and programs, all of which were vetted by the public and adopted by the Commissioners Court, the County developed 
and subsequently implemented two major initiatives: to develop a preserve for endangered species habitat protection (Balcones 
Canyonland Conservation Plan, 1995) and to acquire parkland (Travis County Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan, 2006 and 
Colorado River Corridor Plan, 2012).  In 2012 it also initiated its Conservation Easement Program to establish conservation 
easements on private properties, most of which are working farms, in partnership with willing landowners. The purpose of this plan 
is to chart a course for conserving land in over the next twenty years. 
 
The Land Conservation Concept (see Map 1415) and shows the locations of a) natural resources prioritized for protection as 
“Conservation Areas” and b) waterways prioritized for protection as “Rivers and Creeks Corridors”.   
 
CONSERVATION AREAS 
Specific “Conservation Areas” are not shown on the Land Conservation Concept map because they will be established as 
opportunities arise related to funding, land owner initiatives, and public/private partnerships. Prime farmland and floodplains may 
also be conserved as part of river and creek corridors. 
 
100-year Floodplains: The limits of the 100-year floodplains are the minimum limits of proposed corridors and thus flood plains are 
protected through corridor conservation, particularly in eastern Travis County where broad 100-year flood plains are found.  
  
Prime Farmland: Prime farmland will continue to be conserved along corridors in eastern Travis County where floodplain and prime 
farmland are co-located.  Prime farmland located within the Post Oak Savannah will be conserved as Post Oak Savannah is  
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     56 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



#0

#0

#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0
#0 #0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0

#0

#0#0#0

#0#0#0
#0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0 #0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0
#0

#0

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV45 

UV360

UV 45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

W
ilb
a
r
g
e
r
C
r

Co
lorado Ri

ve
r

Lake
Travis

P
e
d
e
rn

al
es
Riv
er

Ham
ilton

Cr

B
ig
S
a
n
d
y
C
re
e
k

C
o
w
C
re
e
k

Bingha
m
C
re
e
k

CypressCreek

G
illela

n
d
C
r

O n io n

Cr

#0

#0

#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0
#0 #0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0

#0

#0#0#0

#0#0#0
#0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0 #0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0
#0

#0

£¤290

£¤290

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1626

UV130

UV45 

UV130

L
a
n
d
 C

o
n
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

L
a
n
d
 C

o
n
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

Shingle Hills

!(

Existing Conserved Lands
(Parkland, Preserves, City of Austin
WQPL, & Travis County Non-BCP
Conservation Easement Properties)

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 2)

Map 15

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

November 14, 2014 

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

HAYSHAYS

Incorporated Areas

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Parkland Travis County, City of Austin, TPWD, LCRA 2012-2013

Preserve Areas Travis County, City of Austin, LCRA, USFWS 2011-2012

GCW & BCV Habitat & Karst Zones Travis County, City of Austin, BCCP 1996

Listed Salamander Habitat U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 2013

Post Oak Savanna Ecoregion U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2005

Prime Farmland USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2002

Floodplain Federal Emergency Management Agency 2008

Springs
USGS, TWDB, Capitol Environmental Services, 

TPWD
2013

Barton Creek & Little Barton Creek 

Watershed

Travis County, City of Austin Watershed 

Protection Department
2013

Waterbodies, Creeks U.S. Geological Survey NHD 2003

Elevation U.S. Geological Survey NED 10m 2002

Threatened &
Endangered
Species Habitat

100- yr Floodplain

Prime Farmland

Post Oak Savanna

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 1)

Springs#0

Barton Creek/ Little
Barton Creek Watersheds

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

conserved.  In other circumstances, prime farmland will be conserved to establish new or expand existing conservation areas 
dedicated to protecting prime agricultural lands. 
 
Post Oak Savannah:  Post Oak Savannah will be conserved to optimize protection of springs and prime farmland within this eco-
region, preserves interface with adjacent Blackland Prairie and Floodplain and Lower Terraces eco-regions, and to establish new or 
expand existing conservation areas within the Post Oak Savannah region.   
 
Threatened and Endangered Species Habitat: Threatened and endangered species habitat will be conserved to meet the 
configuration requirements of the Balcones Canyonland Conservation Program (BCCP). 
 
Springs: The cluster of springs in southwest Travis County and nearby areas contributing to their recharge will be protected through 
conservation of the Hamilton Creek Corridor.   Springs located within the Post Oak Savannah eco-region of eastern Travis County will 
be conserved in conjunction with Post Oak Savannah conservation. 
 
Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek Watersheds: Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds will be protected through land 
conservation to support the water quality and supply of Barton Springs. 
 
RIVER AND CREEK CORRIDORS 
A river or creek is targeted for protection and ranked as “Priority 1” or “Priority 2” according to the extent it satisfies the following 
conditions (see figure 11): 
 
 Protects regionally significant resource (Priority 1) 
 Indirectly protects regionally significant resource (Priority 2) 
 Connects to Activity Center(s) (see map 13) 
 Balances distribution of conservation lands  
 Protects Travis County conservation investments  
 Supports other corridor plans 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     58 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     59 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Figure 11: River and Creek Corridor Priority Conditions 
 Protects 

Regionally 
Significant 
Resource 

Indirectly Protects 
Regionally 
Significant 
Resource 

 
 

Connects to 
Activity Center 

 
Balances 

Distribution of 
Lands Conserved 

 
Protects County 

Conservation 
Investments 

 
 

Supports Other 
Corridor Plans 

PRIORITY 1 CORRIDORS       
Pedernales River       
Colorado River       
Onion Creek       
Gilleland Creek       
Wilbarger Creek       
PRIORITY 2 CORRIDORS       
Cypress Creek       
Hamilton Creek       
Cow Creek       
Bingham/Big Sandy Creeks       

 
PRIORITY ONE CORRIDORS  
Pedernales River Corridor (underway):   This phase of the Pedernales River Corridor builds upon the County’s previous commitments 
to protect the river as both a place that attracts visitors, from central Texas and beyond -- for rock climbing, white bass fishing, and 
enjoying the Hill Country landscape -- and -- as the largest tributary of Lake Travis -- contributes to the regional drinking water 
supply.  The intent is to protect the Hill Country character and environmental quality of the area, in general, and the view shed and 
environmental quality of the river canyon, in particular, and in doing so, protect the County’s investment in Hamilton Pool Preserve 
and Milton Reimers Ranch Park.   This proposal is consistent with goals of the Southwest Travis County Growth Dialogue and The 
Nature Conservancy’s Pedernales River Project.   
 
Colorado River Corridor (underway): The Colorado River is a significant resource in eastern Travis County, providing drinking water to 
nearby residents, City of Pflugerville, and downstream communities.  It is popular for fishing, boating, and wildlife viewing, 
particularly birding.  The corridor will extend from the “Activity Center” at the SH 130 crossing of the river to Webberville Park, near 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     60 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

the Bastrop County line.  Protecting this resource will increase the inventory of conservation lands in eastern Travis County and help 
balance the distribution of conserved land throughout the county.  It also builds upon investments the County has made in parkland 
along the river corridor. The corridor plan is consistent with the conservation priorities set in The Travis County Greenprint for 
Growth and Discovering the Colorado: A Vision for the Austin-Bastrop Colorado River Corridor.   
 
Onion Creek Corridor (underway):  The Onion Creek Corridor -- a large portion of which is already protected as City of Austin, 
County, or State of Texas parkland -- connects several centers in the SH 130 corridor.  Travis County parkland has been acquired 
most recently and extends (including ABIA outparcels) from approximately US 183 to the Colorado River. This greenway increases 
the inventory of conserved land in eastern Travis County and is consistent with the conservation priorities set in The Travis County 
Greenprint for Growth and the City of Austin Urban Trails Master Plan. 
  

Gilleland Creek Corridor (underway): The Gilleland Creek Corridor has been completed in part as the Gilleland Creek Greenway, the 
second greenway project undertaken with Travis County resources.  It connects to centers near the City of Manor, linking them to 
Northeast Metro Park near Pflugerville and the Colorado River to the south.  Protecting this resource will increase the inventory of 
conserved lands in eastern Travis County and help balance the distribution of conservation land throughout the county.  It also 
builds upon investments the County has made in parkland along the creek.  It is consistent with conservation priorities set in The 
Travis County Greenprint for Growth and the City of Austin Urban Trails Master Plan, Pflugerville’s Parks, Recreation, and Open Space 
Master Plan, and the private-sector Emerald Star of Texas Regional Trail. 
 

Wilbarger Creek Corridor:  The Wilbarger Creek Corridor will run from Pflugerville city limits, past the City of Manor, to land, near the 
Bastrop County line, that was conserved in a three-way partnership of the landowner, Travis County, and USDA through its Farm and 
Ranchland Protection Program (FRPP).  The Wilbarger Creek Corridor is consistent with priorities set in The Travis County Greenprint 
for Growth, the Pflugerville’s Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Master Plan, the private-sector Emerald Star of Texas Regional Trail 
Plan, and the landowner-initiated Wilbarger Watershed Conservation Plan.  
 
PRIORITY TWO CORRIDORS 
Cypress Creek Corridor: Cypress Creek is prioritized for protection as a corridor because it is both an exceptionally scenic creek and 
flows into the regionally significant Pedernales River which contributes to the regional drinking water supply.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     61 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 
Hamilton Creek Corridor:  Although not a regionally significant resource in and of itself, Hamilton Creek flows through Hamilton Pool 
to the Pedernales River, thereby indirectly protecting two regionally significant resources that the County has invested in.  In fact, 
Hamilton Pool was recently degraded by pollution when runoff from a construction site drained into the pool via the creek, and 
Travis County was forced to take legal action against the developer of the property that generated the pollution and was 
subsequently awarded damages from the suit that resulted in remediation and restoration of the creek and pool.  
 
Cow Creek Corridor and Bingham Creek/Big Sandy Creek Corridor:  Cow Creek and Bingham Creek/Big Sandy Creek are prioritized for 
protection because they are major tributaries of Lake Travis, a regional source of drinking water . Bingham Creek/Big Sandy Creek 
Corridor also supports the Leander Trails Master Plan. 
 
CONSERVATION INITIATIVES WEST  
 Complete land acquisition for the Balcones Canyonland Preserve (BCP) 
 Continue to conserve land for the Pedernales River Corridor 
 Initiate land conservation in Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek Watersheds  
 Maintain Hamilton Creek and Cypress Creek corridors as secondary priorities 
 Maintain Cow Creek and Bingham/Big Sandy Creek corridors as secondary priorities 

 
CONSERVATION INITIATIVES EAST  
 Complete Onion Creek Greenway (Bluff Springs, McKinney Falls Parkway to Colorado River) 
 Complete Gilleland Creek Greenway (Northeast Metro Park to Colorado River) 
 Continue to conserve land for the Colorado River Corridor  
 Initiate land conservation for the Wilbarger Creek corridor 
 Initiate farmland conservation program 
 Initiate Post Oak Savanna conservation program to include adjacent Blackland Prairie and Colorado River Floodplain eco-

regions  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     62 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

GROWTH GUIDANCE CONCEPT  
 
The Growth Guidance Concept map illustrates an integrated view of Travis County’s preferred development and conservation land 
use patterns (see Map 1516).  Key aspects of the plan are: 
 
 The Growth Guidance Concept focuses attention on the areas where both development and conservation interests need to 

be considered. 
 Development pressure on land and water resources is greater in the eastern part of the county than the western part but 

compact development along the SH 130 corridor allows conservation to occur ahead of development 
 Development associated with Elgin Activity Center in Bastrop County is pressing northeast Travis County where prime 

farmland and potential conservation corridors are located. 
 The Manor Activity Center is notable because it is a bridge between the Wilbarger Creek corridor on its northeast side and 

the Gilleland Creek Corridor on its southwest side  
 A comprehensive bike and pedestrian trail system – interconnecting transportation and conservation corridors – can be 

developed in the SH 130 corridor 
 The Colorado River and eastern creek corridors connect to Activity Centers and mitigate impacts of increased impervious 

cover on land and water resources, bring nature close to where people live, and positively affect real estate values.  
 Transportation Corridors cross numerous flood plains, including the Colorado River’s broad floodplain, and are areas of 

potential conflicts 
 Conservation of the Post Oak Savanna and adjacent Blackland Prairie and Colorado River Floodplain is time sensitive because 

development is encroaching from the west  
 Location of BCP limits Transportation Corridor development in western Travis County. 

 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     63 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



W
ilb
a
r
g
e
r
C
r

Co
lorado Ri

ve
r

Lake
Travis

P
e
d
e
rn

al
es
Riv
er

Ham
ilton

Cr

B
ig
S
a
n
d
y
C
re
e
k

C
o
w
C
re
e
k

Bingha
m
C
re
e
k

CypressCreek

G
illela

n
d
C
r

O n io n

Cr

#0

#0

#0
#0

#0

#0#0#0
#0 #0

#0

#0#0#0#0

#0

#0

#0

#0

#0#0#0

#0#0#0
#0#0

#0
#0

#0

#0 #0#0#0#0#0 #0
#0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0 #0

#0#0

#0
#0

#0
#0

#0

£¤290

£¤290

") 620 

")2222

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")1626

UV130

UV45 

UV 45

UV 45 

UV130

BASTROPBASTROP

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

October 21, 2014 

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

LW
T

P
 G

ro
w

th
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

LW
T

P
 G

ro
w

th
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 C

o
n
c
e
p
t

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

HAYSHAYS

Development Concept

Incorporated Areas

Major Creeks

Rivers & Lakes

Existing Conserved Lands
(Parkland, Preserves, City of Austin
WQPL, & Travis County Non-BCP
Conservation Easement Properties)

Transportation Corridors

SH 130 Corridor
W

e
is

s
W

e
is

s

Howard

Howard

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
lake

 M
an

o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

B
u
rl

e
so

n
 M

an
o
r

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

M
a
h
a
 L

o
o
p

Slaughter

Slaughter

D
e
ss

a
u

D
e
ss

a
u

T
h
ax

to
n

T
h
ax

to
n

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

W
e
lls B

ran
ch

Parmer

Parmer

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

9
7
3
 B

yp
as

s

Braker

Braker

Pearce
Pearce

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
al

le
y

P
le

a
sa

n
t 

V
al

le
y

A
rte

ria
l A

A
rte

ria
l A

Elroy
Elroy

Kelly
Kelly

Pecan
Pecan

Pflugerville

Pflugerville

Pkwy
Pkwy

C
am

e
ro

n

C
am

e
ro

n

Activity Centers

(2040 Plan - Draft)
(Boundaries as defined by Sponsor)

Map 16

Barton Creek/ Little
Barton Creek
Watersheds

Springs#0

Threatened &
Endangered
Species Habitat

100- yr Floodplain

Prime Farmland

Post Oak Savanna

Land Conservation
Concept

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 1)

Conservation Corridors
(Priority 2)

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Parkland Travis County, City of Austin, TPWD, LCRA 2012-2013

Preserve Areas Travis County, City of Austin, LCRA, USFWS 2011-2012

GCW & BCV Habitat & Karst Zones Travis County, City of Austin, BCCP 1996

Listed Salamander Habitat U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 2013

Post Oak Savanna Ecoregion U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2005

Prime Farmland USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2002

Floodplain Federal Emergency Management Agency 2008

Springs
USGS, TWDB, Capitol Environmental Services, 

TPWD
2013

Barton Creek & Little Barton Creek 

Watershed

Travis County, City of Austin Watershed 

Protection Department
2013

Waterbodies, Creeks U.S. Geological Survey NHD 2003

Elevation U.S. Geological Survey NED 10m 2002

Corridors City of Austin, CAMPO, Travis County TNR 2012-2014

Centers (2040 Plan Draft) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization Draft 2013

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

GROWTH GUIDANCE POLICIES  
 
LAND 

POLICY L-1: Encourage development that is consistent with the County’s “Activity Centers and Transportation Corridors”  concept 
and has minimal impact on land and water resources. 

POLICY L-2: Develop an interconnected, multi-purpose, system of parks, preserves, privately conserved properties, and conservation 
subdivisions that protect high-priority land and water resources and complement “Activity Centers and Transportation Corridors” 
land use patterns.  

POLICY L-3:  Prioritize conservation of the following lands: 

 Prime Farmland (designated by the USDA) 
 Post Oak Savanna 
 Threatened and endangered species habitat protected by the Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan3 (BCCP) 
 Barton Creek and Little Barton Creek watersheds 
 Land with numerous springs 
 Land along the Colorado River and its major tributaries 
 Land along the Pedernales River and other Lake Travis tributaries 

POLICY L-4: Support conservation in eastern Travis County that helps balance conservation county-wide and protects land and water 
resources in advance of development in high growth areas.  

POLICY L-5: Develop a park and preserve system that provides opportunities for the public to enjoy nature-based recreation 
throughout the county. 

3 Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan (“BCCP”)-Travis County and the City of Austin were jointly issued a regional permit from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service that allows 
incidental “take” of eight locally occurring federally-listed endangered species under Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the Endangered Species Act. “Take” is the removal of occupied endangered 
species habitat or species displacement due to development of habitat areas. This community-based solution, referred to as the Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan (“BCCP”), 
calls for the creation of a preserve system to protect these eight endangered species as well as 27 other species believed to be at risk. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     65 
 

                                                      

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

POLICY L-6: Manage the Balcones Canyonland Preserve4 (BCP) with best practices to conserve rare, threatened, and endangered 
species habitats and systems. 

POLICY L-7:  Use best management practices to maintain or restore native woodlands, prairies, riparian zones and other ecosystems 
and control invasive species on County-owned land. 

POLICY L-8:  Regulate development to decrease loss-of-life and property damage from flooding, fire, and other hazards. 

POLICY L-9:  Reduce wildfire potentials in parks and preserves through forest management, prescribed fire, site and ecotype-
appropriate fuels management, adjacent landowner outreach promoting FireWise and Community Wildfire Protection Plan 
recommendations, and other best management practices.  

POLICY L-10:  Require best management practices for the construction of streets, structures, and drainage facilities in subdivision 
developments and transition to sustainable construction and O&M practices.  

POLICY L-11: Develop and implement strategies for minimizing light pollution and maintaining dark skies.   

POLICY L-12: Support state, county, and local regulation of billboards. 

POLICY L-13: Develop and implement design standards for protecting the natural and rural character of county roads. 

POLICY L-14:  Provide information and resources to private landowners to promote best conservation and management of native 
ecosystems, especially on sites adjacent to parks and preserves. 

POLICY L-15:  Support local government decisions regarding the location of Activity Centers and Corridors.  

WATER  
POLICY W-1:  Encourage and support residents and businesses on best methods to manage water resources including rainwater 
harvesting and xeriscape practices. 

4 Balcones Canyonlands Preserve (“BCP”) To minimize and mitigate the impacts of take, the Permit Holders agreed to: 1) assemble a minimum of 30,428 acres of endangered 
species habitat in western Travis County known as the Balcones Canyonlands Preserve (“BCP”), 2) secure protection for a series of karst (cave) features and rare plants throughout 
Travis County 3) provide for ongoing maintenance, patrolling, and biological management of the preserved habitat; and 4) conduct biological monitoring and research activities 
supporting the BCCP permit terms and conditions. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     66 
 

                                                      

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

POLICY W-2: Support efforts to reduce reliance upon Lake Travis and groundwater resources including conservation, piping from 
other sources, and new impoundments. 

POLICY W-3:  Use water quality protection rules to protect ground and surface water resources throughout our jurisdiction from 
potential land development impacts.  

POLICY W-4:  Use regulatory authority to ensure adequate groundwater is available for future subdivision needs and establish a 
groundwater conservation district in SW Travis County to protect the Trinity Aquifer from further unsustainable withdrawals. 

POLICY W-5:  Protect Lake Travis water quality in accordance with the Travis County water quality protection standards and by 
conserving land along tributaries.  

POLICY W-6:  Protect the Colorado River Alluvial Aquifer.  

POLICY W-7: Protect watersheds and headwaters up-gradient of spring sites known to be habitat of the Jollyville Plateau 
salamanders. 

POLICY W-8:  Integrate storm water, flood mitigation, and water resource protection planning and programming.  

POLICY W-9:  Develop and implement protocols for designing, constructing, and maintaining sustainable Rights-of-Way (ROWs). 

POLICY W-10:  Use sustainable practices to reduce water consumption in County parks. 

POLICY W-11: Promote and use best management practices to control invasive aquatic species on County-owned properties. 

POLICY W-12: Promote and educate public on invasive species management. 

TRANSPORTATION 
POLICY T-1:  Support development of high density, mixed use Activity Centers through the use of transportation investments that 
integrate land use and transportation.  

POLICY T-2:  Reduce demand on the region’s roadway system by developing a transportation network that provides people with 
multiple ways to travel.  

POLICY T-3:  Prioritize transportation options that allow for choice within and connecting Activity Centers.  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     67 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

POLICY T-4: Avoid and minimize impacts of transportation on sensitive natural and cultural resources, especially threatened and 
endangered species habitat. 

POLICY T-5:  Provide bike lanes, sidewalks or shared use paths on arterial roads. 

POLICY T-6:  Connect multi-use trails in County parks to the regional bike and pedestrian system. 

POLICY T-7:  Formulate policies guiding County’s role in transit. 

POLICY T-8: Incorporate regional transit plans in the planning and development of County transportation facilities. 

POLICY T-9:  Plan for and develop a road network that facilitates emergency access and evacuation. 

POLICY T-10:  Support efforts to minimize residents’ harmful exposure to hazardous materials transported by road, rail or pipeline.  

POLICY T-11: Consider the total project context during the design process that balances transportation, land use, economic, social 
and environmental goals and objectives. 

GROWTH GUIDANCE TOOLS 
POLICY GGT-1:  Use existing regulatory authority to guide development. 

POLICY GGT-2:  Pursue additional authority to prevent incompatible land use conflicts in unincorporated Travis County. 

POLICY GGT-3:  Allocate funds for capital improvements supporting “Activity Centers”, “Corridors”, or conservation of County-
prioritized lands. 

POLICY GGT-4:  Support incentives for capital improvements supporting “Activity Centers”, “Corridors”, or conservation of County-
prioritized lands. 

POLICY GGT-5:  Protect County-prioritized land and water resources through park and preserve land acquisitions, parkland 
dedications, conservation easements, floodplain buy-out programs, and the Conservation Subdivision Ordinance.  

POLICY GGT-6:  Coordinate with local jurisdictions, agencies and the private sector to promote connectivity and compatible 
development of land, water, and transportation systems.   
POLICY GGT-7:  Prioritize investments in arterials connecting to SH 130.  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     68 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

POLICY GGT-8:  Use platting, permitting, other growth information to identify market-driven Activity Center and Corridors.  

 

PLANNING AND POLICY FORMULATION   
POLICY PPF-1: Comply with all applicable local, state and federal rules, regulations and permits. 

POLICY PPF-2: Engage county residents, stakeholders, and experts in planning and policy formulation processes. 

POLICY PPF-3: Use statistically valid data to identify Travis County residents’ opinions and preferences. 

POLICY PPF-4:  Coordinate departmental planning to optimize use of County resources.  

POLICY PPF-5: Ensure that public facilities are planned in advance of public need. 

POLICY PPF-6: Complete and regularly update departmental plans and studies to guide development of county-wide bond programs 
and other capital investment decisions. 

POLICY PPF-7: Monitor growth in unincorporated Travis County to identify “horizon issues”.  

POLICY PPF-8:  Coordinate land use and transportation policies with local jurisdictions, agencies and the private sector.  

POLICY PPF-9: Specify procedures for waiving conditions of a plan or policy when environmental, fiscal, or other types of constraints 
make its implementation unfeasible. 

FINANCE 
POLICY F-1:  Leverage County capital improvement funds with federal and state grants, private sector partnerships, contributions 
from other jurisdictions and agencies, and user and impact fees (see Appendix A: Funding for Capital Improvements). 

POLICY F-2: Assess impacts of capital improvements, program expansions, and federal/state mandates on the O&M costs.  

POLICY F-3:  Analyze efficiency and cost effectiveness of capital investments and seek innovative ways to reduce costs. 

POLICY F-4:  Analyze the fiscal impact on County resources of providing new types of services or facilities. 

POLICY F-5: Analyze fiscal impact of creating Transportation Reinvestment Zones (TRZs). 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     69 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     70 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

E: ACTION PLAN 

 
Funding Capital Improvements 
Travis County’s traditional revenue sources for capital improvements have been General Funds, Certificates of Obligations, and 
General Obligation Bonds, of which only General Obligation Bonds require voter approval.  Less commonly-used sources are 
Participation Agreements (public/private partnerships), Tax Abatements, and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Bonds.  Transportation 
Infrastructure Reinvestments Zones (TIRZ) and 380/381 Agreements have not been used but are potential funding sources. 
 
State and federal funding distributed through CAMPO is more and more difficult to obtain due to increased competition and CAMPO 
allocation policies.  All demands will force us to seek new or unconventional funds such as federal transit monies that could be used 
to improve infrastructure such as sidewalks that support transit, walking, and biking. 
 
Unprecedented growth has also demanded collaboration among city, county, TXDoT, the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
(CTRMA) and developers.  Of particular concern is the State’s continuing funding shortage leading to the County’s increasing funding 
of improvement to the state highway system, improvements demanded by frustrated county residents who do not care about 
jurisdictional boundaries but care greatly about the safety and congestion on the roads they rely upon for work, school, shopping, 
etc. 
  

LWTP Applications 
 Sets priorities for growth-related funding in Travis County’s Annual Budget  
 Sets priorities for transportation and conservation-related Capital Improvement Programs (CIPs) 
 Guides formulation of growth-related policies and practices 
 Guides long range, collaborative planning efforts such as the Colorado River Corridor Plan (CRCP) 
 Guides transportation and conservation-related public/private partnership  
 Sets Travis County’s growth-related agenda for Texas State legislative action 
 Guides Travis County Annual Work Plans 

 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     71 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

An Umbrella Plan 
The LWTP is an umbrella plan for growth-related capital improvement plans, regulations, permits, programs, and services.  Many are 
already in place and only need to be monitored and updated as required.  Other actions, however, need to be undertaken to 
accomplish the plan’s goals to improve the quality of life of Travis county residents, optimize the benefits of land and water 
resources, and use Travis County resources wisely.  Key actions follow:  
 
Capital Improvement Planning 
 
Land 
Parks and Land Conservation Master Plan 
Update the Parks Master Plan in accordance with Texas Parks and Wildlife Department (TPWD) master plan guidelines, Conservation 
Subdivision Ordinance requirements, and Travis County growth guidance planning policies.  
Parks and Land Conservation Bond Program 
Develop project selection and prioritization criteria consistent with Travis County growth guidance policies and prepare a 
preliminary list of parks and land conservation projects to be finalized by a citizen bond advisory committee (appointed by 
Commissioners Court). 
Conservation Easement Program Update 
Review Travis County Conservation Easement Program Guidelines with the Land Conservation Work Group and revise as necessary 
for consistency with Travis County growth guidance policies. 
Water 
Drainage Bond Program 
Develop project selection and prioritization criteria consistent with Travis County growth guidance policies and prepare a 
preliminary list of drainage projects to be finalized by a citizen bond advisory committee (appointed by Commissioners Court). 
Transportation 
Transportation Plan 
Develop a comprehensive multimodal transportation plan for the unincorporated area of Travis County in accordance with growth 
guidance planning polices and is coordinated with the development of CAMPO’s regional transportation plan. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     72 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Bike/Ped/Trail Plan 
Develop a comprehensive plan that integrates pedestrian, bicycle and trail facilities. 
High Accident Study 
Update study to identify and provide recommendations for improving high accident locations within unincorporated Travis County. 
Transportation Bond Program 
Develop project selection and prioritization criteria consistent with Travis County growth guidance policies and prepare a 
preliminary list of transportation projects to be finalized by a citizen bond advisory committee (appointed by Commissioners Court). 
Extreme Weather Vulnerability Assessment 
Participate with stakeholders in an assessment that allows the region to identify and rank transportation system components that 
are vulnerable to extreme weather events such as flooding, drought, extreme heat events and wildfires. 
Inter-related 
Natural Disaster Mitigation Plan 
Update the plan to identify and prioritize capital improvement projects for mitigating natural disasters. 
 
Regulation and Permitting 
 
Land 
Conservation Subdivision Ordinance 
Review, update, and obtain Court approval of a revised Conservation Subdivision Ordinance. 
Single Office Agreements  
Identify opportunities to establish Inter-local Agreements (ILAs) with willing municipalities to regulate subdivision plats and permits 
in ETJs and execute where feasible.  
Threatened and Endangered Species Monitoring 
Monitor listing of new threatened and endangered species and identify impacts of habitat on development. 
Water  
Trinity Aquifer Groundwater Conservation District 
Establish a stakeholders group and facilitate establishment of a Trinity Aquifer Groundwater Conservation District. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     73 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Colorado River Alluvial Aquifer 
Assess the impacts of growth on the quality and quantity of the Colorado River Alluvial Aquifer and develop water resource 
protection rules. 
Regional Water Issues Organization 
Support Commissioners Court’s participation in a collaborative regional organization for the purpose of identifying needs and 
options assuring adequate water supply service for the region. 
Transportation 
Transportation Criteria Manual 
Participate with the City of Austin in the updating of transportation guidelines and design criteria for use in the unincorporated area 
of Travis County. 
Inter-related 
Growth Guidance Legislative Issues 
Identify growth guidance issues related to land, water, and transportation that require legislative action. 
 
New Programs and Services 
 
Land 
Dark Skies Initiative 
Research and report on “dark skies” issues and opportunities, including an assessment of the fiscal, quality of life, and 
environmental benefits and disadvantages of the initiative. 
Farmland Preservation Initiative 
Research and report on preserving prime farmland issues and opportunities, including an assessment of the fiscal, quality of life, and 
environmental benefits and disadvantages of the initiative. 
Scenic Roadways Initiative 
Research and report on scenic roadway issues and opportunities, including an assessment of the fiscal, quality of life, and 
environmental benefits and disadvantages of the initiative. 
Public Outreach Program: Best Land Conservation Practices 
Propose a program for promoting best land conservation practices including an assessment of the fiscal, quality of life, and 
environmental benefits and disadvantages of implementing the program. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     74 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Growth Guidance Plan 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Public Outreach Program: FireWise 
Propose a program for promoting FireWise practices including an assessment of the public safety, fiscal, and environmental benefits 
and disadvantages of implementing the program. 
Water 
Sustainable Roadside Protocols 
Research and report on Sustainable Roadside issues and opportunities, including an assessment of the fiscal, quality of life, and 
environmental benefits and disadvantages of implementing the protocols. 
Integrated Storm water, Floodplain Management, and Water Quality Program 
Consider further integration of development reviews related to drainage, storm water, floodplain, and water quality. 
Water Supply Service 
Research and report on water supply service issues and opportunities, including an assessment of the fiscal, quality of life, and 
environmental benefits and disadvantages of implementing the protocols. 
Inter-related 
Resource Leveraging Program 
Research and report on a program for proactively leveraging resources to implement the LWTP, including an assessment of the fiscal 
benefits and disadvantages of implementing the program. 
Public Needs and Preference Studies 
Research and evaluate opportunities to partner with local entities for regular, scientific surveys of county residents’ needs and 
preferences. 
Prosperous Places Program 
Evaluate feasibility of using CAPCOG’s Prosperous Places Program’s advanced strategic planning and community analytics effort for 
County purposes.  
Sustainability Indicators Project 
Evaluate feasibility of participating in the Central Texas Sustainability Indicators Project analytics program. 
Growth Monitoring and Impacts Report 
Research and report annually on growth in unincorporated areas of the County and its fiscal and environmental impacts. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Policy Report\GGP_Body_11_25_14.docx     75 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Travis County 
Background Report 
LAND, WATER, AND TRANSPORTATION PLAN  

Exhibit E: Revised Background Report 
 

DRAFT 
November 25, 2014 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

Judge Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 

Commissioner Ron Davis, Precinct 1 
 

Commissioner Bruce Todd and Commissioner Sarah Eckhardt, Precinct 2 
  

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty and Commissioner Karen Huber, Precinct 3 
   

Commissioner Margaret Gómez, Precinct 4  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
PREPARED BY TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Randy Nicholson, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
 
AUTHORS 
Wendy Connally, Resource Management Program Manager 
Rose Farmer, Resource Management Program Manager 
Randy Nicholson, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
Charlie Watts, Planning Project Manager 
Thomas Weber, Environmental Quality Program Manager 
Melissa Zone, Senior Planner 
 
MAPS 
David Shore, GIS Coordinator 
Sara Dilbert, GIS Intern 
Angela Smith, GIS Intern 

POLICY AND TECHNICAL ADVISORS 
Robert Armistead, Division Manager Parks 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director Development Services 
Charles Bergh, Division Director Parks 
Wendy Connally, Program Manager Resource Management 
Program 
Rose Farmer, Program Manager Resource Management Program 
Stacey Scheffel, Floodplain Manager 
Thomas Weber, Program Manager Environmental Quality 
Jon White, Division Director Natural Resources and 
Environmental Quality 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
Thomas Nuckols, County Attorney 
 
COMMISSIONERS AIDES 
Deonne Wilhite, Precinct 1  
Peter Einhorn, Precinct 2 
Jacob Cottingham and Bob Moore, Precinct 3  
Edith Moreida, Precinct 4 

 
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
A. INTRODUCTION 

Land, Water, and Transportation Plan ............................................................................................................................................. 1 
The Background Report ................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
 

B. NATURAL CONDITIONS 
Physical Setting ............................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Surface Hydrology ........................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Surface Geology .............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 
Travis County Aquifers .................................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Soils .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 14 
Prime Farmlands ........................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
Ecoregions .................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 
Endangered Species ...................................................................................................................................................................... 21 
 

C. PLANNING CONTEXT 
The People  ................................................................................................................................................................................... 27 
Land Use ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 40 
Forecasted Distribution of Population ........................................................................................................................................... 45 
County Land Use and Development Regulatory Authority ............................................................................................................. 52 
Summary of Local Comprehensive Plans ....................................................................................................................................... 56 
 

D. PUBLIC OPINION 
Planning Priorities ......................................................................................................................................................................... 65 
Incompatible Land Uses ................................................................................................................................................................ 68 
Parks and Outdoor Recreation ...................................................................................................................................................... 69 
Land Conservation ........................................................................................................................................................................ 73 
Water Resources ........................................................................................................................................................................... 77 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\TOC_3_14_14.docx                              i 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Transportation .............................................................................................................................................................................. 79 
 

APPENDICES  
Appendix A: Lands Conserved in Unincorporated Travis County .................................................................................................. A-1 
Appendix B: Imagine Austin Growth Concept Map ...................................................................................................................... B-1 
Appendix C: Municipal Collaboration Opportunities .................................................................................................................... C-1 

 
LIST OF FIGURES  
 

Figure 1: Travis County Lakes: Surface Area and Storage Capacity .......................................................................................... 5 
Figure 2: Travis County Aquifers:  DFC and MAG ................................................................................................................... 13 
Figure 3: 2013 State and Federally Listed Species in Travis County ....................................................................................... 21 
Figure 4: Endangered Species Protected Under BCCP ........................................................................................................... 23 
Figure 5: Population Growth (1990-2010) (Travis County vs. State of Texas)......................................................................... 29 
Figure 6: Travis County Population (2000 and 2010) (Incorporated and Unincorporated) ..................................................... 29 
Figure 7: Travis County Population by Age (1990 – 2010) ..................................................................................................... 32 
Figure 8: 2010 Population by Age (Travis County vs. State of Texas) ..................................................................................... 33 
Figure 9: Travis County Population (2000 and 2010) (Incorporated and Unincorporated) ..................................................... 34 
Figure 10: Travis County vs. State of Texas Population (2010)................................................................................................. 35 
Figure 11: Population by Race and Ethnicity for 2010 (Travis County, State of Texas and the United States) .......................... 38 
Figure 12: Land Use Calculations ............................................................................................................................................ 44 
Figure 13: Historical Population and Forecast by County ........................................................................................................ 45 
Figure 14: Travis County Incorporated vs. Unincorporated Population (2000 and 2010) ......................................................... 46 
Figure 15:  List of Legal Tools to Address Development Issues ................................................................................................. 52 
Figure 16: Travis County Greenprint ....................................................................................................................................... 75 
Figure 17: Importance of Regional Transportation System...................................................................................................... 83 
Figure 18: Choice of Land Use and Transportation Concepts .................................................................................................. 84 
Figure 19: Regional Transportation System Project Priorities .................................................................................................. 85 
Figure 20: Willingness to Use Alternatives to Driving .............................................................................................................. 88 
Figure 21: Importance of Transportation Modes .................................................................................................................... 89 
Figure 22: Voter Approved Transportation Bond Referendums (1997-2011) .......................................................................... 94 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\TOC_3_14_14.docx                              ii 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

LIST OF MAPS  
 

Map 1: Travis County Elevation ............................................................................................................................................... 4 
Map 2: Travis County Hydrology ............................................................................................................................................. 6 
Map 3: Travis County Geology .............................................................................................................................................. 10 
Map 4: Travis County Aquifers .............................................................................................................................................. 12 
Map 5: Travis County General Soil Map ................................................................................................................................ 15 
Map 6: Travis County Prime Farmland .................................................................................................................................. 17 
Map 7: Travis County EcoRegions ......................................................................................................................................... 20 
Map 8: Travis County Endangered Species Habitat ............................................................................................................... 25 
Map 9: Travis County Incorporated Areas ............................................................................................................................. 30 
Map 10: Travis County Population .......................................................................................................................................... 31 
Map 11: Travis County Racial Make-up ................................................................................................................................... 36 
Map 12: Travis County Racial Make-up ................................................................................................................................... 37 
Map 13: TCAD Land Use Categories ........................................................................................................................................ 41 
Map 14: CAMPO Centers in Travis County .............................................................................................................................. 49 
Map 15: Travis County Future Growth .................................................................................................................................... 50 
Map 16: Travis County Future Growth Area (2010) ................................................................................................................. 51 
 
 
 

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\TOC_3_14_14.docx                              iii 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\TOC_3_14_14.docx                              iv 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 

A. INTRODUCTION 
 
 

Land, Water, Water and Transportation Plan 
 
Travis County’s Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (LWTP) provides a framework for protecting land and water resources, 
building transportation and park systems, and efficiently delivering services while maintaining a balanced budget.   It is a set of long-
term goals and policies that the Commissioners Court will use to guide orderly development and the appropriate conservation of 
land and water resources within the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The LWTP consists of three documents: 
 
 The Growth Guidance Plan includes an analysis of growth-related opportunities and challenges in unincorporated Travis 

County, the goals, objectives, principles, and policies guiding growth, and maps illustrating preferred growth and 
conservation areas. 

 The Background Report (see below) 
 The Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules includes growth-related policies and practices currently used by the 

County for regulating the subdivision property, construction of streets and drainage in subdivisions, and development in 
floodplains, protecting endangered species, mitigating hazards, managing storm water programs, and planning and 
implementing capital improvements projects. 

 

Background Report 
 
The Background Report provides contextual information for the LWTP.  It includes information about natural conditions, 
demographics, land use patterns, legislative authority granted to counties for guiding growth, municipal planning in the county, and 
public opinion about growth-related issues.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc              1 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    2 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

B. NATURAL CONDITIONS  

 

Physical Setting 

Travis County is in Central Texas, 150 miles inland from the Gulf of Mexico. Austin, the state capital and county seat, is 100 miles 
southwest of Waco and seventy-five miles northeast of San Antonio.  Travis County comprises 1,025 square miles on the eastern 
edge of the Edwards Plateau and is divided in half from lower land below the plateau by the Balcones Escarpment. The lower land is 
flat to rolling prairies and woodlands and considered a part of the Gulf Coastal Plain. The Colorado River, which bisects the county 
from northwest to southeast, flows from the Edwards Plateau onto the Gulf Coastal Plain and provides drainage for the entire area. 
Map 1 illustrates the distinct contrasts in elevation from west to east across the county and the faults prominent along the 
escarpment. Elevations in Travis County range from 350 feet along the Colorado River east of Webberville to a high point of 1425 
feet above sea level in the Shingle Hills west of the City of Bee Cave. The Edwards Plateau, commonly referred to as the Texas Hill 
Country, has a terrain deeply dissected by the headward erosion of major streams with steep gradients from the plateau to the base 
of the Balcones Escarpment. The Balcones Escarpment was formed by faulting along the Balcones fault zone. The land west of the 
escarpment is more arid than that to the east, and the vegetation varies accordingly.  

The climate of Travis County is subtropical, with an average low temperature in January of 38° F and an average high in July of 96°. 
The average yearly rainfall is thirty-two inches, and the growing season is 270 days.  

Surface Hydrology 
Nearly all land in Travis County is within the Colorado River watershed, a major river that flows 862 miles from Dawson County, 
Texas (south of Lubbock) into Matagorda Bay on the Gulf coast. There are no natural lakes in Travis County. However, the Colorado 
River has been impounded with dams and reservoirs in three places, forming Lake Travis behind Mansfield Dam, Lake Austin behind 
Tom Miller Dam, and Lady Bird Lake behind Longhorn Dam. Other than the impoundments along the Colorado River, Walter E. Long  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    3 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Highest Point in Travis County: 1,425 ft.
Vicinity of Shingle Hills

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Elevation U.S. Geological Survey NED 10m 2002

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
le

v
a
ti

o
n

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
le

v
a
ti

o
n

1,425 ft

350 ft

Map 1
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Lake impounds Decker Creek in eastern Travis County. Walter E. Long Lake was impounded to provide storage of water for cooling at 
the Decker electric generation facility owned by Austin Energy (see Figure 1). 

Figure 1: Travis County Lakes: Surface Area and Storage Capacity 

Reservoir Surface 
Acreage 

Storage Capacity(acre-
feet) 

Lake Travis 18,662 1,135,000 
Lake Austin 1,599 21,725 

Lady Bird Lake (formerly Town Lake) 468 3,520 
Walter E. Long Lake (also Decker Lake) 1,269 33,940 

Map 2 shows the Colorado River and its most significant tributaries and impoundments. It also shows the areas along rivers and 
streams that are designated 100-year floodplain. These areas are at a high risk of being inundated by flood waters after 
extraordinary rainfall occurs and therefore places where human habitation and built structures should be avoided. There is at least a 
one percent chance of flooding occurring in each and every year within a 100-year floodplain. Floodplains are broad and wide in the 
portion of Travis County within the Gulf Coastal Plain due to the lack of significant topographic relief. In the Edwards Plateau, 
floodplains are narrower due to the steep relief. Although narrower, rivers and streams can rise suddenly after significant rainfall 
events and flash flooding is common.  

The riparian corridors in Travis County have been less prone to development pressure due to the inherent risk of flooding and 
therefore remnants of bottomland hardwood forest exist in some places. Lake Travis, Lake Austin, and streams including Onion 
Creek, Barton Creek, Bull Creek, Hamilton Creek, Walnut Creek, Wilbarger Creek, and the Colorado River downstream from 
Longhorn Dam offer unique and popular recreational opportunities that includes swimming, canoeing, kayaking, sculling, boating, 
and nature exploration.  Although conditions in floodplains discourage residential and commercial development, floodplains are 
farmed, ranched, and frequently mined for sand and gravel materials. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    5 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



M
a

ha Creek

S
h

o
a

l
C

reek

W
i l b

arger Creek

Dry Creek

W
il

lo

w Cree k

Boggy C reek

M
a

r
b

le
C

reek

Elm

Creek

Slau ghte r Creek

W
e

ll
s

B
ra

n
ch

C
o

tto
n

w
o

o
d

C
r

e
e

k

G
r

a
p

e
C

r
e

e
k

B

lu
n

n
C

re
e

k

Bear Creek

Bull Cre ek

C
o

le
m

a
n

B
ra

n
ch

L
it

tl
e

W
il

lo
w

C
r

e
e

k

Gaines Creek

Cowpen Creek

Sou th

Fork Dry Cree k

Honey Creek

E
a

s
t

B
o

u
ld

in
C

re
e

k

Little Bee Creek

B arton Creek

W
est

B
u

ll
C

r
e

e
k

L
ittle

W
a

l n

ut Creek

Walter E.

Long Lake

W
alnut

C
re

e
k

Gilleland
Cre

ek

Boggy Creek

Cotton
w

ood
C

r
e

e
k

Dry C r ee k

Colo
rado River

R
in

a
r

d
C

r
e

e
k

D
r

y
C

reek

Decker Creek

Harriso n Hollow

Lake
Travis

Fall Creek

P
e

d
e

rn
ale

s Riv
er

H
am

ilton
Creek

L
ic

k
C

re
ek

Spring Creek

Sulph ur Creek

Post
O

a
k

C
re

ek

Collier Hollow

B
ig

S
a

n
d

y
C

re
e

k

Lim
e Creek

Fisher Hollow

Neg
ro

B
r

a
n

ch

C
o

w
C

re
e

k

B
ee

C
re

ek

Bingham
C

re
e

k

L
o

n
g

H
o

llo

w
C

r
e

e
k

C yp
r

e
ss

C
re

ek

CypressCreek

B
ee

Cree
k H

u
rs

t
C

re
e

k

Ya
u

p
o

n
C

r
e

e
k

C
ottonwood

B
ra

n
c

h

Mansfield
Dam

B e a r Cree k

Little Barton Creek

Branch Rocky
C

r
e

e
k

Rocky Cre

ek

M
y

r
tl

e
C

re
ek

T
h

o
m

a
s

S
p

r
in

g
s

B
ra

n
c

h

Tom Miller
Dam

Longhorn
DamTravis County Cr eek

Bar ton Cre
e

k

Bee Creek (Westlake)

Cow
Fork

B
u

l l C reek

W
e

s
t

B
o

u
ld

in
C

r
e

e
k

Onion Creek

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Creeks U.S. Geological Survey NHD 2003

Floodplain

Federal Emergency 

Management Agency 2008

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u

n
ty

 H
y
d

ro
lo

g
y

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u

n
ty

 H
y
d

ro
lo

g
y

100 Year Floodplain

Water Body

Creek

Map 2
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF LAKE TRAVIS 

Lake Travis is the most significant impoundment on the Colorado River due to its tremendous water storage capacity.  It is the 
primary source of water for communities and major industries – including the semiconductor industry – throughout Travis County 
and a driver of the area’s strong economy and population growth.  The Lake Travis Economic Impact Report (LTEIR) states that 
“Without a consistently available supply of water, the Metro-Austin economy likely would not function in the way it does today, nor 
would it have grown to the size it is today.” 

The effect of Lake Travis on the economy in the immediate area surrounding the lake is striking as well.  In their study of fiscal and 
economic impacts of fluctuating lake levels, LTEIR found that in-season, below average lake levels have measureable negative fiscal 
and economic impacts, some of which impact county park and property tax revenues.  Their analysis shows that at “…lake levels 
below 650 feet, visitation sharply declines, driven by the closure of most of the lake’s boat ramps as well as media attention which 
highlights safety and accessibility issues…”  This leads to estimated decreases in revenue of $16.4 and $21.9 million, most of which 
are primarily “…attributed to likely decreases in property values driven by the loss of the ‘premium’ for property on or in close 
proximity to the lake.”  The economic impact of fluctuating lake levels is even greater.  LTEIR reports that spending losses associated 
with either droughts or floods could reduce total spending of $168.8 million “…by $23.6 million to $33.8 million.”  And at low lake 
levels, the approximately 23 utilities using the lake water supply incur pumping and water treatment expenses associated, for 
example, with moving barges, buying new equipment, and using more electricity for pumping. 

While not measureable, LTEIR reports that diminishing water quality would likely have a negative effect on the locally economy:  
recreational use of the lake would likely decrease and lake- related businesses close; water treatment costs would probably 
increase; and it could possibly negatively affect real estate values. 

FLOODING 

Travis County is located in an area known as “flash flood alley” due to its vulnerability to flooding from intense storms combined 
with steep terrain in western Travis County that feeds lower lying areas in the eastern part of the County.  There are over 6800 
structures, mostly residences, within the unincorporated areas of the county that are within the floodplain.  Many more flood due to 
poor localized drainage.  There are 21,630 parcels in the County with at least some overlap with the floodplain.  In addition the 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    7 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

county has 72 miles of roads in the floodplain and numerous stream crossings that are subject to flooding.   Driving into water is the 
number one weather-related cause of death in Central Texas.  Between 1950 and 2009, Travis County experienced 113 floods.   
Most recently, the County has been impacted by four significant flood events: in 1997, 1998, 2001, and 2007.   The greatest flood on 
record in Travis County occurred on July 7, 1869. This flood event created flood heights in area creeks and rivers greater than any 
recorded flood.   Historically floods have resulted in loss of life and property; and have resulted in extraordinary public expenditure 
for flood protection and relief. 

Travis County has participated in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) since January 29, 1976. Participation in the NFIP 
allows citizens to purchase federally subsidized flood insurance to protect their property.  As of January 2010, policies were in-force 
on 1,905 structures in the unincorporated areas of the county. This represents a dollar value of property and contents coverage in 
excess of $469 million.  In order to participate, the County regulates development in all areas of the County in order to minimize the 
danger of flooding on both new development and existing development.  The development regulations are also intended to reduce 
loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public 
expenditures for flood protection and relief; and impairment of the tax base caused by floods.  Although the County has participated 
in the NFIP since 1976, a detail county wide Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and Flood Insurance Study (FIS) was not developed 
until April 1, 1982.  The FIRM and FIS are used to identify areas with a high risk of flooding, specifically areas with a 1% change in any 
given year of flooding (commonly known as the 100-year floodplain). The most recent FIRM and FIS are dated September 28, 2008. 

Surface Geology1 

Fossilized remains of fish, marine invertebrates, and plant life reveal that Travis County was once the floor of a shallow sea. The sea 
had advanced and covered most of Central Texas by the Cretaceous period (135 million years ago). The transgression and regression 
of the sea resulted in the present day deposits and sequence of sandstones, shales, and limestones of the present day. During the 
late Cretaceous period, volcanoes rose from the sea. Later, during the Eocene epoch of the Tertiary period (50 million years ago), 
seas again transgressed over far eastern Travis County laying down the Midway group sediments. During the Miocene and Pliocene 
epochs of the Tertiary period (2 to 26 million years ago), much readjustment and uplifting of deposited sediments occurred, 

1  Brune, G. and Duffin, G.L. June 1983. Occurrence, Availability, and Quality of Ground Water in Travis County, Texas. Texas Department of Water Resources, 
Report 276 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    8 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

resulting in the extensive faulting in the Balcones fault zone. Remnants of an extinct volcano (Pilot Knob in southeast Austin [see Ki 
in Map 3]) and the easily recognized Balcones Escarpment trending northeast to southwest through the middle of Travis County 
stand as testaments to this violent geological past. Finally, during the Recent and Pleistocene epochs of the Quaternary period (up to 
2 million years ago), the many rivers alluvial, terraces and high gravel deposits were laid down upon the older sediments. 

These phenomena resulted in the extremely varied and complex surface geology visible today on the land surface of Travis County. 
Map 3 describes the stratigraphic units that outcrop throughout the county. In the eastern portion of the county, the more recent 
alluvial, terrace, and high terrace units (Qa, Qt, Qo, Qhg) appear, particularly near the Colorado River, tributaries, and places where 
streams once meandered. The eastern portion of the county has significant outcrops of the Midway, Navarro, Taylor, and Marlbrook 
units (PAmi, Knt, Knb, Knm), composed of marl, shale, limestone and igneous rock. In a north to south orientation, outcrops of the 
Austin Chalk, Eagle Ford Shale, Del Rio Clay, and Georgetown Limestone (Kau, Keb, Kdg) outcrop throughout the City of Austin. The 
outcrop of the Edwards Limestone (Ked) occurs in and proximate to the Balcones Escarpment. This outcrop is an area of significant 
recharge of water. The areas of Travis County west of the escarpment are dominated by the Trinity Group units, a series of 
formations including from most recent to oldest the Glen Rose Limestone, Hensell Sand, Cow Creek Limestone, Hammett Shale, and 
Sycamore Sands (Kgr, Kh, Kcs).  

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    9 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Kgr

Knt
Kau

Knb

Kfr

Ko

Ked

Kwa

Qt

Qal

Qt

Qt

Ko

Kau

Kpg

Qt

Kcs

Qhg

Qhg

Qt

Qt

Kh

Knb

Kpg

Ki

Kh

PAmi

Knb

Qt

Kau

Knm

PAmi

Keb

Kh

Keb

Qhg

Qhg

Knm

Knm

Qhg

Kdg

Kdg

Qhg

Kdg

PAmi

Qhg

Qt

PAmi

Qt

Kh

Kcs

Kh

Kdg

Kh

Kau

Keb

Kh

Qt

Kcs

Kh

Qhg

Qhg

Qhg

Kwa

Qhg

Qhg

Qhg

Qhg

Kgr

Ked

Qhg

Kec

Ked

Kwa

Colorado River

The cross section is based on the work by Brune and Duffin (1983)

Qhg PAmi
1200

800

400

400

800

1200

1600

2000

2400

2800

3200

A A'

Sea Level

A
lt
it
id

e
, 

in
 f

e
e

t

Kgr

Ked

Kau

Ko
KnbKgrKcs

Kcs

Kwa

Kdg

Kh

QtBarton Spring

Geologic Section A-A'

0

Normal Faults

DATA SOURCE

Geology U.S. Geological Survey

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

. DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 G
e
o
lo

g
y

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 G
e
o
lo

g
y

A

A'

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Surface Geology

Kau, Austin Chalk

Ko, Ozan Formation

Kpg, Pecan Gap Chalk

PAmi, Midway Group; undivided

Qt, Terrace deposits

Qo, Onion Creek Marl

Ki, Igneous rocks of Austin age

Qal, Alluvium

Qhg, High gravel deposits

Keb, Eagle Ford Formation and Buda
Limestone; undivided

Knm, Neylandville and Marlbrook 
Marls; undivided

Knb, Navarro Group and Marlbrook
Marl; undivided

Knt, Navarro and Taylor 
Groups; undivided Kdg, Del Rio Clay and

Georgetown Limestone; undivided

Kh, Hensell Sand

Kgr, Glen Rose Limestone

Kfr, Fredericksburg Group

Kwa, Walnut Clay

Ked, Edwards Limestone

Kcs, Cow Creek Limestone; Hammett 
Shale; and Sycamore Sand; undivided

Kec, Edwards and Comanche
Peak Limestone

Map 3
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Travis County Aquifers 
Travis County is underlain by significant groundwater aquifers that supply approximately 27,500 acre-feet of fresh water per year for 
domestic, agricultural, and industrial usage. Groundwater in Travis County emerges to the surface at world-renowned springs and 
water courses that nourish aquatic life and provide critical habitat to biological communities that support endangered species. These 
underground sources of groundwater include the Barton Springs and Northern Segments of the Edwards Aquifer, the Trinity Group 
Aquifers, and the Colorado River Alluvial Aquifer.  

Map 4 depicts these aquifers present in Travis County. The Trinity-Edwards Aquifer system is the dominant aquifer in Travis County. 
The updip Trinity Aquifer west of the Balcones Escarpment is generally fresh water while the downdip Trinity Aquifer is saline. The 
Edwards Aquifer is symbolized on Map 4 using pattern over the Trinity Aquifer boundaries. The downdip and artesian portion of the 
Edwards Aquifer provides fresh water eastward until a “bad water line” beyond which saline water occurs. An important local 
aquifer, the Colorado River Alluvial Aquifer, shown in green stripping, is located in eastern Travis County. A minor aquifer, the 
downdip Hickory Aquifer also exists in the western portions of the county, also symbolized with pattern. The Hickory in this location 
is saline. No aquifers are present in the southeast portion of the county. 

The recharge of water into these aquifers is almost completely dependent upon rainfall and the flow of surface water in streams 
that pass over surface outcrops of these aquifers12. Groundwater availability in Travis County is vulnerable to over-pumpage due to 
both continuing population growth and the occurrence of drought conditions. Southwestern Travis County has been formally 
designated by the State of Texas as a Priority Groundwater Management Area (PGMA) because this area experiences critical 
groundwater problems, including shortages of supply. Groundwater quality in Travis County is threatened by pollutant discharges of 
urban storm water and wastewater that have a high potential to seep and recharge into our aquifers. 
 
 

 
2 Mace, R.E., etal. September, 2000. Groundwater Availability of the Trinity Aquifer, Hill Country Area, Texas:  Numerical Simulations through 2050. Texas 
Water Development Board, Report 353. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    11 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

Lake 

Travis

Walter E.

Long

Lake

G
ille

la
n

d
C

re
e

k

Onion Creek

Wilbarger Creek

Bart

on Creek

B
ig

S
a

n
d

y

Creek

W
a

ln
u

t
C

r
e

e
k

Williamson
Creek

S
h

o
a

l
C

r
e

e
k

P
e

d
e

r
n

a
le

s

R
i v

e
r

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 A
q
u
if

e
rs

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 A
q
u
if

e
rs

Edwards Downdip

Trinity Outcrop

Hickory Downdip

No Aquifer

Trinity Downdip

Alluvial

C
ol

orado River

Edwards Outcrop

HAYSHAYS

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Aquifers Texas Water Development Board 2006

Map 4
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

The Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) has approved quantitative estimates of groundwater available, called modeled 
available groundwater (MAG). The MAG is the quantity that can be sustainably pumped and still result in a desired future condition 
(DFC) of groundwater to remain. MAGs and DFCs were developed for each major and minor aquifer in each Groundwater 
Management Area (GMA) and county. MAGs were adopted by the TWDB and described as acre-feet/year of available pumpage and 
adopted DFCs are described as either a drawdown elevation in feet or a minimum spring flow at aquifer outlets. Figure 2 shows the 
MAG and DFC for aquifers in Travis County. However, due to its classification as a “less than minor” or local aquifer, the Colorado 
River Alluvial Aquifer has no established MAG and DFC. The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) estimated that the 
alluvial aquifer north of the Colorado River has 5,553 acre-feet/year of groundwater available. An unknown quantity is available 
from the alluvial aquifer south of the Colorado River3. 
 

Figure 2:  Travis County Aquifers:  DFC and MAG 
GMA  
(location) 

Aquifer Aquifer 
Condition 

DFC  
(feet drawdown unless otherwise described) 

MAG  
(acre-feet per year) 

8  (Travis Co N) Trinity All 61 to 124 3,890 
8  (Travis Co N) Edwards All Maintain at least 42 acre-feet per month of aggregated 

stream/spring flow during a repeat of the drought of record 
5,237 

9  (Travis Co SW) Trinity All 28 8,598 
10  (Travis Co SE) Trinity All 25 641 
10  (Travis Co SE) Edwards Average 

Recharge 
Springflow of Barton Springs shall be no less than 49.7 cfs 
averaged over an 84-month period 

3,578 

10  (Travis Co SE) Edwards Extreme 
Drought 

Springflow of Barton Springs shall be no less than 6.5 cfs, 
averaged on a monthly basis 

1,166 

 
 

3  Berehe, A.K. November 2005. Updated Evaluation for the Williamson, Burnet, and Northern Travis Counties Priority Groundwater Management Study Area. 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, PGMA File Report. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    13 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Soils4 

The Travis County General Soil Map (see Map 5) shows the county divided into three soil associations: Edwards Plateau in western 
Travis County, Blackland Prairies in eastern Travis County, and Terraces and Flood Plains along the Colorado River. 

Edwards Plateau: The Edwards Plateau association consists of mainly shallow soils over a rolling to steep sloped landscape.  
Approximately two-thirds of the plateau – including Lake Travis, Lake Austin, and Pedernales River areas – is covered with Brackett 
soils.  These are soils that are gravelly, calcareous, and clayey, approximately 18” deep, overlying inter-bedded limestone and marl.   
The shallower Tarrant soils found in fingers extending into the plateau from the north are intermingled stony, calcareous, clayey 
soils, approximately 8” deep, overlying limestone.  They often cap high ridges above Brackett soils.  Speck-Tarrant soils are found in 
the southeastern part of the plateau, covering a nearly level, gently sloping, undulating landscape.  It is stony, loamy, and clayey – 
ranging from approximately 8” to 18”deep – overlying limestone. 

Most of the soils of the Edwards Plateau are suitable for range but are generally too shallow, stony, gravelly, or steep for farming.  
Urban development in Tarrant and Speck-Tarrant soils is particularly difficult because massive limestone bedrock needs to be broken 
and moved to allow for site leveling, street grading, or septic tank installation. 

Blackland Prairies:  The Blackland Prairies association in eastern Travis County consists primarily of deep, mostly clay soils, over a 
nearly level or gently sloping landscape.   Their high shrink-swell potential affects the structural integrity of foundations and streets.  
They are poorly suited for septic systems.  Blackland Prairie soils are mainly used for cultivation and pastures.  

The largest area of the prairie is the Houston Black-Heiden association, in the northeast and southeast quadrants of the prairie.  This 
is a landscape of broad ridges and valleys with approximately 9’ deep, calcareous, clayey soils overlying marl.  Alluvial deposits are 

 

4 USDA Soils Survey 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    14 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



11 77

44

44

66

55

22

33

22

22

66

66

55

99

1010

88

1010

99

99

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Soil Associations USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2007

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

. DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
S
o
il
 M

a
p

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
S
o
il
 M

a
p

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Mainly deep, gently sloping soils of
the Blackland Prairies

Mainly deep, nearly level and gently sloping
soil of terraces and flood plains adjacent to

the Colorado River

Mainly shallow, rolling, and steep soils of
the Edward Plateau

Travis-Chaney: Deep, acid, loamy soils
overlying old alluvium

Lewisville-Patrick: Deep and moderately
deep, calcareous, clayey soils overlying
old gravelly alluvium

Brackett: Shallow, gravelly, calcareous,
loamy soils overlying interbedded
limestone and marl

Speck-Tarrant: Shallow, stony, loamy
soils and very shallow, stony, clayey
soils overlying limestone

Tarrant: Very shallow, stony, calcareous,
clayey soils intermingled with
shallow soils overlying limestone

Houston Black-Heiden: Deep, nearly
level and gently sloping, calcareous,
clayey soils overlying marl

Burleson-Wilson: Deep, clayey and
loamy soils overlying marl

Austin-Eddy: Moderately deep and
shallow, calcareous, clayey and
loamy soils overlying chalk

Ferris-Heiden: Deep, rolling and
moderately steep, calcareous,
clayey soils overlying marl

Bergstrom-Norwood: Deep, calcareous,
loamy soils overlying recent and old
alluvium

11

22

33

44

55

66

77

1010

99

88

Map 5
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

found in creek bottomlands.  On the western side of the prairie are the Austin-Eddy soils, running north-south along the edge of the 
Edwards Plateau.  Ridges in this area start to narrow and soils – approximately 1’ to 3’ thick – shallow.   Burleson-Wilson soils are 
found along the eastern edge of the county.  This is a landscape of nearly level to undulating slopes with soils approximately 5’ to 8’ 
deep.  They have a crusty clay surface, with areas that either crack, allowing water to infiltrate, or don’t crack, so water runs off.   
Ferris-Heiden soils are found north of the Colorado River flood plains and terraces, in an area that includes Walter E. Lake.  This is a 
landscape of irregular-shaped, rolling and moderately steep slopes, ridges, valleys, and deep gullies.  Soils are approximately 3’ deep, 
calcareous, clayey, overlying marl.  When dry, the soil has wide, deep cracks; when wet, cracks close, and infiltration slows.  This land 
is mainly used for range and is too steep and erodible for farming. 

Terraces and Flood Plains of the Colorado River:  The landscape of the Terraces and Flood Plains of the Colorado River is nearly level 
or gently sloping.  The soils are mostly calcareous, loamy, and clayey, up to 3’ deep, overlying recent and old alluvium.  They are 
well-suited for crops and pasture, and are mined in many areas for sand and gravel.   Bergstrom-Norwood soils are found mainly in 
bottom-land and low terraces of the linear flood plains adjacent to the river.   The land is nearly level with short escarpments and 
gently sloping, shallow drainage ways.  Travis-Chaney soils are found on high terraces and are acid, loamy soils which, unlike other 
terrace and flood plain soils, have development limitations associated with corrosion of buried utilities.   Lewisville-Patrick soils are 
also found on terraces along creeks and rivers.   The underlying material is a more gravelly alluvium than that underlying the other 
terrace and flood plain soils. 

Prime Farmland5 

As seen in Map 6, Prime farmland is almost exclusively found in the eastern part of Travis County.  As defined by the USDA Natural 
Resources and Conservation Service, this is land that has the best combination of physical and chemical characteristics for producing 
food, forge, fiber, and oilseed crops and that is available for these uses.  It has the combination of soil properties, growing season, 
and moisture supply needed to produce sustained high yields of crops in an economic manner if it is treated and managed according  

5 http://soils.usda.gov/technical/handbook/contents/part622.html (United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Services, NSSH 
Part 622, Ecological and Interpretative Groups 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    16 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://soils.usda.gov/technical/handbook/contents/part622.html


DATA SOURCE YEAR

Soils USDA National Resources Conservation Service 2002

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 P
ri

m
e
 F

a
rm

la
n
d

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 P
ri

m
e
 F

a
rm

la
n
d

Prime Farmland

Map 6
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

to acceptable farming methods.  In general, prime farmland has an adequate and dependable water supply from precipitation or 
irrigation, a favorable temperature and growing season, an acceptable level of acidity or alkalinity, an acceptable content of salt or 
sodium, and few or no rocks.  Its soils are permeable to water and air.  Prime farmland is not excessively eroded or saturated with 
water for long periods of time, and it either does not flood frequently during the growing season or is protected from flooding. 

Ecoregions6 
 
An ecoregion is an area of general similarity in ecosystems and in the type, quality, and quantity of environmental resources. 
Ecoregions are designed to serve as geographic frameworks for the research, assessment, management, and monitoring of 
ecosystems and ecosystem components. Ecoregions can be identified broadly or more specifically through the analysis of the 
patterns and the composition of biological communities and physical characteristics (such as geology, climate, soils, land use, and 
hydrology).  In Texas, ecoregion boundaries and descriptions have been recently updated.  In Travis County, three ecoregions 
intersect:  Edwards Plateau, Texas Blackland Prairies, and the East Central Texas Plains (also known as Post Oak Savanna). A 
subregion, Floodplains and Low Terraces, intersects both the prairies and plains ecoregions in our county, following the Colorado 
River corridor (see Map 7). 
 
Within the Edwards Plateau ecoregion, the Balcones Canyonlands subregion is highly dissected through the erosion and solution of 
porous limestone by springs, streams, and rivers working both above and below ground. Limestone geology also supports formation 
of crevices, cracks, sinkholes, caverns and grottos known as “karst;” these features provide vulnerable habitats for solitary and 
colonial bats, unique isolated invertebrates, and colonial birds like swifts and swallows. Karst also provides conduit for surface 
waters to reach groundwater aquifers (e.g. Edwards and Edwards – Trinity) and for artesian groundwater resources to surface (e.g. 
springs). This subregion has a higher representation of deciduous woodland than elsewhere on the Edwards Plateau, with plateau 
live oak, escarpment black cherry, Texas mountain-laurel, madrone, and Lacey oak. Mature, large Ashe juniper –known locally as 
“cedar” – within mixed hardwood woodlands are also characteristic in deep canyons throughout the Edwards Plateau. Some relicts 
of eastern swamp communities, such as bald cypress, American sycamore, and black willow, occur along major stream courses. It is 
likely that these trees have persisted as relics of moister, cooler climates following the Pleistocene glacial epoch. Towards the west, 

6  Griffith, G.E., Bryce, S.A., Omernik, J.M., Comstock, J.A., Rogers, A.C., Harrison, B., Hatch, S.L., and Bezanson, D., 2004, Ecoregions of Texas (color poster with 
map, descriptive text, and photographs): Reston, Virginia, U.S. Geological Survey (map scale 1:2,500,000). 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    18 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

the vegetation changes gradually as the climate becomes more arid.  Elevations in Travis County drop sharply from the top of the 
Plateau off the eastern edge of the Escarpment to the Blackland Prairies. 
 
The Texas Blackland Prairie ecoregion is underlain by Upper Cretaceous marine chalks, marls, limestone, and shale which give rise to 
the characteristic black, calcareous, alkaline, heavy clay soils. Early settlers were drawn to this region by these productive soils, 
gentle topography, and luxuriant native grasslands. Although historically a region of tall-grass prairies, today much of the land is 
devoted to cropland, non-native pasture, and expanding urban uses. Few remnant native prairie sites remain. Historical vegetation 
was dominated by little bluestem, big bluestem, yellow Indiangrass, needlegrass, and tall dropseed. Woody vegetation including 
mesquite, sugar hackberry, cedar elm, Osage orange, and other woody species grow along fence lines and field borders. On steep or 
sloping terrains not subject to cultivation, it is common to find eastern red cedar, Ashe juniper, Texas persimmon, elbowbush, 
possumhaw holly, and live oak. Stream bottoms may be wooded with bur oak, Shumard oak, elm, ash, eastern cottonwood, and 
pecan. 
 
The Post Oak Savanna (East Central Texas Plains) ecoregion extends more than 300 miles in a northeast-southwest strip extending 
from Oklahoma to Bexar and Atascosa counties in South Texas. This ecoregion is found in far eastern Travis County, starting a 
transition zone between the Texas Blackland Prairie and east Texas pine forests, changing in small ways in soils, vegetation, plant 
communities, fish and wildlife. Topography is gently rolling to hilly, supporting a mosaic of woodlands mixed with prairie pockets, 
cross-cutting streams and rivers on their way to the Gulf of Mexico, and some unique rare wetland features. The dominant 
vegetation is an open deciduous forest or woodland of post oak, blackjack oak, and other drought-tolerant southeastern species. 
The Post Oak Savanna separates the Pineywoods from the former tall grasslands of the Blackland Prairie and represents the 
southernmost extension of the transitional oak forests that separate the eastern United States and the Great Plains. Historical 
accounts describe the Post Oak Savannas as a mixture of open or closed woodlands and prairie openings.  
 
While there are many finer-scale floodplains (e.g. Onion Creek, Pedernales River) in our county, the Floodplains and Low Terraces 
subregion is a larger category floodplain following the main stem Colorado River. This ecoregion maps primarily the recent alluvial 
deposits and not the older, high terraces. These bottomland forests contain bur oak, Shumard oak, sugar hackberry, elm, ash, 
eastern cottonwood, and pecan; however, most of these forests have been converted to cropland and pasture. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    19 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
c
o
re

g
io

n
s

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
c
o
re

g
io

n
s

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Ecoregions U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2007

Map 7

Ecoregions

Edwards Plateau

Floodplains and Low Terraces

Texas Blackland Prairie

Post Oak Savanna

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Endangered Species  
 
An endangered species is a population of organisms which is at risk of becoming extinct because it is very limited in range, few in 
numbers, and/or threatened by environmental conditions such as habitat loss, predation, or disease. Congress passed the 
Endangered Species Act (ESA) in 1973 with the purpose of protecting and recovering imperiled species, habitat, and the ecosystems 
upon which they depend. The ESA is administered by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Department (TPWD) protects state-listed species under Chapter 68 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code, covering species 
considered to be threatened with extinction within Texas.7  
 
While western Travis County harbors all known occurrences of federally protected species, certain species listed by the state may 
occur throughout Travis County.  Figure 3 shows the list of species maintained by TPWD as potentially occurring in our county, either 
resident or migratory.  Not all of these species occur throughout the county; most are habitat specialists. Some species have been 
deleted from this list as they are known to be extirpated (e.g. Red wolf) from this area. This list is updated regularly by TPWD.8 
 

Figure 3: 2013 State and Federally Listed Species in Travis County 
Taxon Common Name Scientific Name Federal Status State Status 
Amphibians  Barton Springs salamander  Eurycea sosorum  LE E 
Amphibians  Pedernales River springs salamander  Eurycea sp 6    
Amphibians  Jollyville Plateau salamander  Eurycea tonkawae  C  
Amphibians  Austin blind salamander  Eurycea waterlooensis  C  
Arachnids  Bandit Cave spider  Cicurina bandida    
Arachnids  Warton's cave meshweaver  Cicurina wartoni  C  
Arachnids  Tooth Cave spider  Neoleptoneta myopica  LE  
Arachnids  Tooth Cave pseudoscorpion  Tartarocreagris texana  LE  
Arachnids  Bee Creek Cave harvestman  Texella reddelli  LE  
Arachnids  Bone Cave harvestman  Texella reyesi  LE  
Birds  Sprague's Pipit  Anthus spragueii  C  

7 http://www.tpwd.state.tx.us/huntwild/wild/wildlife_diversity/habitat_assessment/laws.phtml 
8 http://www.tpwd.state.tx.us/gis/ris/es/SpeciesList.aspx?parm=Travis  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    21 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.tpwd.state.tx.us/gis/ris/es/SpeciesList.aspx?parm=Travis


Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Birds  Western Burrowing Owl  Athene cunicularia hypugaea    
Birds  Mountain Plover  Charadrius montanus    
Birds  Peregrine Falcon  Falco peregrinus  DL T 
Birds  American Peregrine Falcon  Falco peregrinus anatum  DL T 
Birds  Arctic Peregrine Falcon  Falco peregrinus tundrius  DL  
Birds  Whooping Crane  Grus americana  LE E 
Birds  Bald Eagle  Haliaeetus leucocephalus  DL T 
Birds  Golden-cheeked Warbler  Setophaga chrysoparia  LE E 
Birds  Interior Least Tern  Sterna antillarum athalassos  LE E 
Birds  Black-capped Vireo  Vireo atricapilla  LE E 
Crustaceans  Balcones Cave amphipod  Stygobromus balconis    
Crustaceans  Bifurcated cave amphipod  Stygobromus bifurcatus    
Crustaceans  An amphipod  Stygobromus russelli    
Fishes  Guadalupe bass  Micropterus treculii    
Fishes  Smalleye shiner  Notropis buccula  C  
Insects  Leonora's dancer damselfly  Argia leonorae    
Insects  Rawson's metalmark  Calephelis rawsoni    
Insects  Tooth Cave blind rove beetle  Cylindropsis sp 1    
Insects  Tooth Cave ground beetle  Rhadine persephone  LE  
Insects  Kretschmarr Cave mold beetle  Texamaurops reddelli  LE  
Mammals  Cave myotis bat  Myotis velifer    
Mammals  Plains spotted skunk  Spilogale putorius interrupta    
Freshwater Mussel  Texas fatmucket  Lampsilis bracteata  C T 
Freshwater Mussel Smooth pimpleback  Quadrula houstonensis  C T 
Freshwater Mussel False spike mussel  Quadrula mitchelli   T 
Freshwater Mussel Texas pimpleback  Quadrula petrina  C T 
Freshwater Mussel Creeper (squawfoot)  Strophitus undulatus    
Freshwater Mussel Texas fawnsfoot  Truncilla macrodon  C T 
Plants  Basin bellflower  Campanula reverchonii    
Plants  Texabama croton  Croton alabamensis var texensis    
Plants  Warnock's coral-root  Hexalectris warnockii    
Plants  Boerne bean  Phaseolus texensis    
Plants  Correll's false dragon-head  Physostegia correllii    

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    22 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Plants  Bracted twistflower  Streptanthus bracteatus  C  
Reptiles  Spot-tailed earless lizard  Holbrookia lacerata    
Reptiles  Texas horned lizard  Phrynosoma cornutum   T 
Reptiles  Texas garter snake  Thamnophis sirtalis annectens    
 
In Travis County, several bird, aquatic, and cave-dwelling species are federally listed or proposed listed as threatened or endangered. 
Of these, two endangered song birds and six endangered karst invertebrates (see Figure 4) are protected under the Balcones 
Canyonland Conservation Plan (BCCP)9.  Another 27 karst and plant species of concern are also protected under the BCCP. 
 

Figure 4:  Endangered Species Protected Under the BCCP 
Scientific Name Common Name 
Vireo atricapillus Black-Capped vireo 
Setophaga chrysoparia Golden-Cheeked warbler 
Neoleptoneta myopica Tooth Cave spider 
Texella reddelli Bee Creek Cave harvestman 
Texella reyesi Bone Cave harvestman 
Tartarocreagris texana Tooth Cave pseudoscorpion 
Rhadine persephone Tooth Cave ground beetle 
Texamaurops reddelli Kretschmarr Cave mold beetle 

 
In addition to the species protected under the BCCP, there are several rare salamander species that inhabit Travis County, three of 
which are federally protected.  Two of these salamanders are listed endangered – Barton Springs salamander (Eurycea sosorum) and 
Austin Blind salamander (Eurycea waterlooensis) –and one is listed as threatened, Jollyville Plateau salamander (Eurycea tonkawae). 
The Barton Springs and Austin Blind salamanders are confined to the outlets at Barton Springs near central Austin. The Jollyville 
Plateau salamander lives primarily in the springs and streams of northwest Travis County and southern Williamson County. All three 
species are fully aquatic and are known as the lungless salamanders. Habitat protection for these species depends on protecting 

9 In 1996, the USFWS issued a 10 (a) “incidental take” permit to Travis County and the City of Austin authorizing the implementation of the Balcones 
Canyonlands Conservation Plan (BCCP) thereby providing a method for landowners to develop their property by mitigating impact of their land use activities on 
protected endangered species. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    23 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

water quality up gradient of (recharge) and directly in the aquifers that source the springs and the surface watersheds supporting 
these animals, their prey and habitat. Spring and spring-run river and creek habitat protection is also directly important. 
 
Map 8 shows in cross-hatching the areas of outcrop of the Edwards Limestone which is critical to the protection of habitat for cave-
dwelling species. Additionally, the figure shows the areas where, as of 1996, there have been confirmed sightings of Golden-
Cheeked warblers and Black-Capped vireos.  These lands protect rare, threatened, and endangered species and also contribute to 
healthy surface and aquifer water quality, air quality, and the visual landscape that defines the Hill Country and western Travis 
County.  Eastern Travis County also harbors significant habitats for resident and migratory rare species; however, these have not yet 
been mapped with the same level of information as those shown on Map 8. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    24 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

T
h
re

a
te

n
e
d
 &

 E
n
d
a
n
g
e
re

d
 S

p
e
c
ie

s 
H

a
b
it

a
t

T
h
re

a
te

n
e
d
 &

 E
n
d
a
n
g
e
re

d
 S

p
e
c
ie

s 
H

a
b
it

a
t

DATA SOURCE YEAR

GCW & BCV Habitat & Karst Zones Travis County, City of Austin, BCCP 1996

Listed Salamander Habitat U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 2013

Known Locations  (2013)

Austin Blind Salamander

Karst Zones (1996)

Jollyville Plateau Salamander
Known Locations (2013)

Golden Cheeked Warbler

Confirmed Habitat  (1996)

Black Capped Vireo

Confirmed Habitat  (1996)

Map 8
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    26 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

C. PLANNING CONTEXT  

 
The Planning Context chapter provides information about external conditions impacting county planning efforts.  This includes 
information about the characteristics of people living in the county and how they use the land; how the population is forecasted to 
grow and be distributed throughout the county; the legislative authority the county has to influence future land use; and municipal 
comprehensive planning efforts that represent potential opportunities or constraints to county planning efforts.   
 

THE PEOPLE 
 
Demographic indicators help describe the characteristics of populations and population segments within regions. By looking at 
characteristics of a region, implications of demographic change can better be understood and useful to local governments in 
determining needs and where funding for specific resources should be allocated.  A synopsis of population and demographic 
characteristics of Travis County will help to provide a general understanding of the residents who receive county services.  Below are 
recent trends observed for Travis County from the 2010 Census. 
 

• Travis County has continued to see increased growth from 2000 to 2010.  The CAMPO five-county region grew by 37% with 
Travis County growing at 26.1% making it the fastest growing county among Texas’s five most populous counties.  This 
growth rate has increased with estimates released by the US Census Bureau for the period between April 2010 and July 2011 
where Travis County saw a population increase of 38,858, nearly a 3.8% increase during the period.   

 
• Population growth is occurring in Incorporated Population.  Travis County is comprised of 22 cities or villages.  The largest 

incorporated area, City of Austin, makes up approximately 73.7% (754,691) of the County’s total population (1,024,266) in 
2010.  The unincorporated area population, currently at 178,895, has grown since 2000, from 15.4% to 17.4% of the County’s 
total population, even as the unincorporated areas of the county have shrunk due to municipal annexation. 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    27 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

• Population growth occurring outside City of Austin incorporated area.  Much of the geographic distribution of this growth in 
the last decade has occurred in census tracts outside the City of Austin.  Part of this growth can be attributed to low-income 
populations and African American populations shifting away from the City of Austin into eastern portions of Travis County.  
Many census tracts within incorporated limits of Austin saw negative or little growth.    Additionally, a shift in more persons 
living outside the City of Austin’s limits may relate to lower income residents seeking more affordable housing further from 
Austin’s urban core. 

 
• Hispanic share of population is increasing as Anglo share declines.  Hispanics have increased as a proportion of Travis 

County’s population (from 28.2% in 2000 to 33.5% in 2010).  Of Non-Hispanics in 2010 (66.5%), Non-Hispanic Whites have 
decreased the most from 56% in 2000 to 51% in 2010.   

 
• Rises seen in aging population.  The 65 and over population in Travis County grew by 28% between 2000 and 2009.  The 45-

64 age group increased 48% over the same time period.  Given this substantial growth, and as the population ages, it is likely 
that individuals 65 and over will comprise a larger percentage of the total population in the future.1   
 

• Over the past decade, the median household income in Travis County has consistently exceeded that of the United States 
and Texas.1  For 2006-2010, the median household income for Travis County was $54,074, Texas $49,646 and the United 
States $51,914. 

 
• Approximately 15% of Travis County residents, or 144,055 people, are living in poverty.  Hispanic/Latino and Black/African 

American children under five years of age have some of the highest poverty rates in Travis County, at 37% and 44% 
respectively.1   

 
Total Population  
In the 2010 US Census, Travis County had a population of 1,024,266 (see Figure 5).  Since 1990, Travis County’s population grew 
nearly 78% with the addition of nearly 450,000 people.  In comparison, the population of Texas as a whole grew by 48% over the 
same period.  Growth continued in the last decade; Travis County added over approximately, 212,000 persons which is a 26.1% 
increase since 2000 while the State of Texas increased 20.6% to 25.1 million people which led the United States in population 
growth in the last ten years. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    28 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Figure 5 
Population Growth (1990-2010) (Travis County vs. State of Texas) Source: US Census 1990, 2000 

and 2010  
Year Texas % Increase 

(1990-2010) 
Travis County % Increase 

(1990-2010) 
1990 16,986,510  576,407  
2000 20,851,820  812,280  
2010 25,145,561 48% 1,024,266 78% 

1 Travis County, TX Consolidated Plan and Action Plan, PY2011-2013, Travis County Health and Human Services Department, 2011.  
 
Population by Location 
Approximately 83% of the 2010 population in Travis County lives within incorporated areas.   The most populous area, City of Austin, 
is home to approximately 73.7% of the County’s population (754,691).  The remaining incorporated areas make up approximately 
8.9% of the County’s population with 90,680 persons.   The cities include Bee Cave, Briarcliff, Cedar Park, Creedmoor, Elgin, 
Jonestown, Lago Vista, Lakeway, Leander, Manor, Mustang Ridge, Pflugerville, Point Venture, Rollingwood, Round Rock, San Leanna, 
Sunset Valley, The Hills, Volente, Webberville and West Lake Hills.  See Map 9 for location of incorporated areas within the County.   
 
Figure 6 describes the incorporated population and unincorporated population growth since 2000.  In 2010, the number of persons 
living in the unincorporated area of Travis County was estimated at 178,895 persons or approximately 17% of the total population.   
This percentage has grown since 2000 from 15% to 17% in 2010.  A representation of the 2010 Travis County population is shown in 
Map 10. 

Figure 6 
Travis County Population (2000 and 2010) (Incorporated and Unincorporated) (Source:  US Census 2000 and 2010) 

 2010 2000 
 Population Percent Population Percent 
Incorporated Area (City of Austin) 754,691 73.7% 644,752 79.4% 
Incorporated Area (Other Incorporated Areas) 90,680 8.9% 42,310 5.2% 
Total Incorporated Population within Travis County 845,371 82.6% 687,062 84.6% 
Unincorporated Population within Travis County 178,895 17.4% 125,218 15.4% 
Travis County (Total Population) 1,024,266 100.0% 812,280 100.0% 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    29 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



±

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

Austin

Lago
Vista

Lakeway

Leander

Volente

West Lake
Hills

Bee Cave

Jonestown

Webberville

Creedmoor

Briarcliff

Pflugerville

The Hills

Manor

Point Venture

Sunset Valley

Elgin

Cedar Park

Rollingwood

Round Rock

Mustang Ridge

San Leanna

Buda

Hutto

Georgetown

Kyle

Taylor

NM

LA

TX

OK AR

0 150 30075 Miles

DATA SOURCE YEAR

City Limit Boundaries Travis County 2013

Roads Travis County 2013

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

Bear
Creek

Dripping Springs

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 A

re
a
s

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 I
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 A

re
a
s

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Incorporated Areas

Travis County

Square Miles Acres

Incorporated 371 237,181

Unincorporated 654 418,662

Total Area 1025 655,843

Note: The figures above are based on data as of June, 2013.

Map 9
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Population (2010) United States Census Bureau 2010

City Limit Boundaries Capital Area Council of Governments 2011

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

2010 Population
1 Dot=10 People

Incorporated Areas

Map 10
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Population by Age 
For 2010, the median age in Travis County is 31.9, which is slightly younger than Texas which is 33.1.  However, since 1990, the 
percentage of total population for ages 45-64 has increased in Travis County while ages 18-44 has decreased in the same time period 
(see Figure 7).  
 

Figure 7 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Population by Age (1990 – 2010) 
 Number Percent 

1990 2000 2010 1990 2000 2010 
Population  
Total population  576,407  812,280  1,024,266  100%  100%  100%  
Male  288,256  415,901  516,637  50%  51%  50%  
Female  288,151  396,379  507,629  50%  49%  50%  
Median Age  
Median age  29.5  30.4  31.9  - - - 
Age Distribution  
Under 5 years  44,113  58,840  75,774  8%  7%  7%  
5 to 9 years  40,447  54,192  70,686  7%  7%  7%  
10 to 14 years  33,984  50,171  62,789  6%  6%  6%  
15 to 17 years  19,667  29,741  35,788  3%  4%  3%  
18 to 24 years  91,217  119,727  130,115  16%  15%  13%  
25 to 34 years  128,194  161,292  192,573  22%  20%  19%  
35 to 44 years  94,427  135,428  154,525  16%  17%  15%  
45 to 54 years  48,598  99,736  132,397  8%  12%  13%  
55 to 64 years  33,899  48,329  94,860  6%  6%  9%  
65 to 79 years  32,621  41,111  55,688  6%  5%  5%  
80 years and over  9,240  13,713  19,071  2%  2%  2%  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    32 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Figure 8 compares Travis County’s population by age with the State of Texas for 2010.  At 68.8%, Travis County continues to have a 
large working age population (18-64 year olds).   In comparison, the same age group in the State of Texas comprises 62% of Texas’ 
population.  Additionally, percentage of population of individuals under 18 years old and 65 years and older were less in Travis 
County as compared to the State of Texas. 
 

Figure 8 
2010 Population by Age (Travis County vs. State of Texas) 

Age Travis Co. 
Population 

Percent State of Texas 
Population 

Percent 

Under 18 245,037 23.9% 6,865,824 27.3% 
18 to 24 130,115 12.7% 2,572,969 10.2% 
25 to 44 347,098 33.9% 7,071,855 28.1% 
45 to 64 227,257 22.2% 6,033,027 24.0% 

65 and over 74,759 7.3% 2,601,886 10.4% 
Total 1,024,266 100% 25,145,561 100.0% 

Source:  US Census 2010 
 
In the coming years, there will be a rapid rise in elderly populations which will cause competition for funding with programs already 
stretched for children and lower income families.  These shifting demographics will place a larger burden of caring for the elderly on 
minority populations who have long not had the wages or resources to provide such support. 
 
Population by Race/Ethnicity 
As of 2010, the U.S. Census reported that there were 1,024,266 people in Travis County. The racial makeup of the County, starting 
with the largest group, was 709,814 White (69.3%), followed by 124,706 Some other race alone (12.18%), 87,308 Black or African 
American (8.52%), 59,333 Asian (5.79%), 8,555 Native American (0.84%) 33,832 Two or more races (3.30%); and the smallest census-
classified group was Pacific Islander with 718 people (0.07%).  Hispanic or Latino of any race was 342,766 of the total population 
(33.46%).  Hispanics have increased as a percentage of the total population from 28.20% in 2000 to 33.46% in 2010.  All other races 
increased slightly as a percentage of total population from 2000 to 2010, except for two races which have declined in percentage of 
total population since 2000.  Black/African American slipped from 9.26% of the population to 8.52% in 2010 and some other race 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    33 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

alone fell from 14.56% in 2000 to 12.18% in 2010.  Figure 9 shows Travis County’s population by race and ethnicity in 2000 and 2010 
and Figure B-3e compares the 2010 population by race and ethnicity to that of the State of Texas. 
 

Figure 9 
Travis County Population (2000 and 2010) (Incorporated and Unincorporated) 

 2000 Census 2010 Census 2000-2010 Change 
 Population Percent Population Percent Change Percent 
Race       

Amer. Indian/Alaska native 4,684 0.58% 8,555 0.84% 3,871 0.48% 
Asian alone 36,286 4.47% 59,333 5.79% 23,047 2.84% 
Black/African American alone 75,247 9.26% 87,308 8.52% 12,061 1.48% 
Native Hawaiian and Other 
Pacific native alone 559 0.07% 718 0.07% 159 0.02% 

Some other race alone 118,294 14.56% 124,706 12.18% 6,412 0.79% 
Two or more races 23,152 2.85% 33,832 3.30% 10,680 1.31% 
White alone 554,058 68.21% 709,814 69.30% 155,756 19.18% 
Total Population 812,280 100.00% 1,024,266 100.00% 211,986 26.10% 

       

Ethnicity*       
Persons not of Hispanic or 
Latino Origin 583,232 71.80% 681,500 66.54% 98,268 12.10% 

Persons of Hispanic or Latino 
Origin 229,048 28.20% 342,766 33.46% 113,718 14.00% 

*Hispanic population can be of any race. 
 
Hispanics have increased as a proportion of Travis County’s population (from 28.2% in 2000 to 33.5% in 2010).  Of Non-Hispanics in 
2010 (66.5%), Non-Hispanic Whites have decreased the most from 56% in 2000 to 51% in 2010.  Maps 11 and Map 12 provide 
locational information for each race and people of Hispanic origin in Travis County by Census block for 2010.  Figure 10 provides a 
comparison of race and ethnicity population percentages for Travis County, the State of Texas and the United States for 2010. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    34 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
Figure 10 

Travis County vs. State of Texas Population (2010) 
 State of Texas Travis 
 Population Percent Population Percent 
Race     

American Indian and Alaska 
native alone 170,972 0.7% 8,555 0.84% 

Asian alone 964,596 3.8% 59,333 5.79% 
Black or African American 
alone 2,979,598 11.8% 87,308 8.52% 

Native Hawaiian and Other 
Pacific native alone 21,656 0.1% 718 0.07% 

Some other race alone 2,628,186 10.5% 124,706 12.18% 
Two or more races 679,001 2.7% 33,832 3.30% 
White alone 17,701,552 70.4% 709,814 69.30% 
Total Population 25,145,561 100.00% 1,024,266 100.00% 

     
Ethnicity     

Persons not of Hispanic or 
Latino Origin 15,684,640 62.4% 681,500 66.54% 

Persons of Hispanic or Latino 
Origin 9,460,921 37.6% 342,766 33.46% 

 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010  
Data Note: Total population is the number of people who consider the area their primary residence. It does not include persons residing here less than half the 
year or persons who are here temporarily only for work (unless they consider this area their primary residence).  
Population Reporting Two or More Races includes special counts of the population who reported at least two races.  
Hispanic Population Reporting Two or More Races includes special counts of the Hispanic population who reported at least two races. 
Population by Race and Hispanic Origin3 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    35 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Parmer Ln

F
M

 9
73

FM 1100

FM 2222

R
M

 6
20

FM 1431

FM 2
769

FM 3
228

FM 969

F
M

 9
73

F
M

 1
62

5

FM 1327

F
M

 6
8
5

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35

Parmer Ln

F
M

 9
73

FM 1100

FM 2222

R
M

 6
20

FM 1431

FM 2
769

FM 3
228

FM 969

F
M

 9
73

F
M

 1
62

5

FM 1327

F
M

 6
8
5

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35
Parmer Ln

F
M

 9
73

FM 1100

FM 2222

R
M

 6
2
0

FM 1431

FM 2
769

FM 3
228

FM 969

F
M

 9
73

F
M

 1
62

5

FM 1327
F
M

 6
8
5

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35

Parmer Ln

F
M

 9
73

FM 1100

FM 2222

R
M

 6
20

FM 1431

FM 2
769

FM 3
228

FM 969

F
M

 9
73

F
M

 1
62

5

FM 1327

F
M

 6
8
5

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35

±

March 12, 2014 

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 R
a
c
ia

l 
M

a
k
e
u
p

Tr
a
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 R
a
c
ia

l 
M

a
k
e
u
p

1 Dot = 1 Person

Native
American

Asian

White Black

Race Population % of Population 
White 709,814 69.30 

Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 

Native American 8,555 0.84  

Asian 59,333 5.79 

Pacific Islander 718 0.07 

Other races 124,706 12.18 

2 or more races 33,832 3.30 

Total Population 1,024,266  

Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 
 

 

Race Population % of Population 
White 709,814 69.30 

Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 

Native American 8,555 0.84  

Asian 59,333 5.79 

Pacific Islander 718 0.07 

Other races 124,706 12.18 

2 or more races 33,832 3.30 

Total Population 1,024,266  

Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 
 

 

Race Population % of Population 
White 709,814 69.30 

Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 

Native American 8,555 0.84  

Asian 59,333 5.79 

Pacific Islander 718 0.07 

Other races 124,706 12.18 

2 or more races 33,832 3.30 

Total Population 1,024,266  

Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 
 

 

±

± ±

1 Dot = 1 Person

1 Dot = 1 Person

BURNETBURNET

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

HAYSHAYS

BASTROPBASTROP

BLANCOBLANCO

Travis County 

Transportation & 

Natural Resources

Race Population % of Population 

White 709,814 69.30 

Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 

Native American 8,555 0.84  

Asian 59,333 5.79 

Pacific Islander 718 0.07 

Other races 124,706 12.18 

2 or more races 33,832 3.30 

Total Population 1,024,266  

Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 

 

*Dot size increased relative to other maps due to low population.

1 Dot* = 1 Person

Data Source Date 

Population Esri and US Census Bureau 2010 

 

0 5 102.5

Miles

0 5 102.5
Miles

0 5 102.5

Miles

0 5 102.5
Miles

BURNETBURNET

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

HAYSHAYS

BASTROPBASTROP

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET
WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

BASTROPBASTROP

BLANCOBLANCO

HAYSHAYS

BURNETBURNET

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

HAYSHAYS

BASTROPBASTROP

BLANCOBLANCO

Map 11Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Parmer Ln

FM
 9

73

FM 1100

FM 2222

RM
 6

20

FM 1431

FM 2769

FM 3228

FM 969

FM
 9

73

FM
 1

62
5

FM 1327

FM
 6

85

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35

Parmer Ln

FM
 9

73

FM 1100

FM 2222

RM
 6

20

FM 1431

FM 2769

FM 3228

FM 969

FM
 9

73

FM
 1

62
5

FM 1327

FM
 6

85

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35
Parmer Ln

FM
 9

73

FM 1100

FM 2222

RM
 6

20

FM 1431

FM 2769

FM 3228

FM 969

FM
 9

73

FM
 1

62
5

FM 1327
FM

 6
85

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35

Parmer Ln

FM
 9

73

FM 1100

FM 2222

RM
 6

20

FM 1431

FM 2769

FM 3228

FM 969

FM
 9

73

FM
 1

62
5

FM 1327

FM
 6

85

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

¬«45

¬«45

§̈¦35

±

March 12, 2014 

Tra
vis

 Co
un

ty 
Ra

cia
l M

ak
eu

p
Tra

vis
 Co

un
ty 

Ra
cia

l M
ak

eu
p

2 or More
Races Hispanic

Pacific
Islander

Other
Races

Race Population % of Population 
White 709,814 69.30 
Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 
Native American 8,555 0.84  
Asian 59,333 5.79 
Pacific Islander 718 0.07 
Other races 124,706 12.18 
2 or more races 33,832 3.30 
Total Population 1,024,266  
Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 
 

 

Race Population % of Population 
White 709,814 69.30 
Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 
Native American 8,555 0.84  
Asian 59,333 5.79 
Pacific Islander 718 0.07 
Other races 124,706 12.18 
2 or more races 33,832 3.30 
Total Population 1,024,266  
Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 
 

 

Race Population % of Population 
White 709,814 69.30 
Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 
Native American 8,555 0.84  
Asian 59,333 5.79 
Pacific Islander 718 0.07 
Other races 124,706 12.18 
2 or more races 33,832 3.30 
Total Population 1,024,266  
Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 

 

Race Population % of Population 
White 709,814 69.30 
Black or African 
American 

87,308 8.52 
Native American 8,555 0.84  
Asian 59,333 5.79 
Pacific Islander 718 0.07 
Other races 124,706 12.18 
2 or more races 33,832 3.30 
Total Population 1,024,266  
Hispanic or Latino 
of any race 

342,766 33.46 

 

±

± ±

1 Dot = 1 Person

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

*Dot size increased relative to other maps due to low population.

*Dot size increased relative to other maps due to low population.

1 Dot = 1 Person1 Dot*= 1 Person

1 Dot* = 1 Person

Data Source Date 
Population Esri and US Census Bureau 2010 
 

0 5 102.5
Miles

0 5 102.5
Miles

0 5 102.5
Miles

0 5 102.5
Miles

Map 12Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Figure 11:  Population by Race and Ethnicity for 2010 (Travis County, State of Texas and the United States) 

0.7%

3.8%

11.8%

0.1%

10.5%

2.7%

70.4%

37.6%

0.8%

5.8%
8.5%

0.1%

12.2%

3.3%

69.3%

33.5%

0.9%

4.8%

12.6%

0.2%

6.2%

2.9%

72.4%

16.3%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

Indian/Alaska
Native

Asian Black Native
Hawaiian/Other

Pacific Native

Some other race Two or more
races

White Hispanic Origin

Texas

Travis County

United States

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    38 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
Poverty1 
The following observations were developed by the Travis County Health and Human Services Department in the creation of the 
Travis County, TX Consolidated Plan and Action Plan, PY2011-2013.  Much of the data was excerpted from Focus on Poverty in Travis 
County, prepared by Travis County Health and Human Services. 
 

• Approximately 15% of Travis County residents, or 144,055 people, are living in poverty.* 
 
• The number of people below the poverty threshold in Travis County has increased steadily from 1990, while the overall 

poverty rate fluctuated from 16% in 1990, to 13% in 2000, and returned to 15% in the 2005-2009 dataset.  Children 
consistently have the highest poverty rate (21% in current data set) across sub-groups. 

 
• An analysis of poverty rates in the U.S., Texas and Travis County since 1990 reveal that, in most age groups and years, Travis 

County fares better than Texas overall but worse than the U.S. 
 
• Areas along the I-35 corridor and areas east of I-35 have higher rates of individuals living in poverty. 
 
• In Travis County, the poverty rate among females (17%) is moderately higher than among males (14%). 
 
• Poverty rates are highest among children and young adults.  In Travis County, 75% of those living in poverty are under the 

age of 35 (compared with 68% of those in Texas and 63% in the U.S.). 
 
• Hispanic/Latino children under age 18 make up a significant share of the Travis County population living in poverty.  

Hispanic/Latino and Black/African American children under 5 years of age have some of the highest poverty rates in Travis 
County, 37% and 44% respectively. 

 
*Poverty Threshold:  For this data, in 2010, the most recent year available, the Poverty Threshold was $11,369 for a single adult and 
$22,162 for a household of two adults and two children.  Households with annual incomes under 100% of the Poverty Threshold are 
counted as living in poverty.  The Poverty Threshold is adjusted annually for inflation using the Consumer Price Index.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    39 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

  LAND USE 

 
The following information describes the land area of Travis County and its existing land use patterns. This section of the LWTP has 
been created to assist in the understanding of the different land use categories within the County. Travis County has experienced a 
significant amount of change to its rural landscape due to population growth and development. The once rural communities are 
rapidly evolving into suburban subdivisions. This section provides an analytical assessment of these land use patterns accompanied 
by a GIS map of the current land use distribution within the County. The County uses Travis Central Appraisal District (TCAD) March 
2012 data to create the land category map which illustrates the current land uses in the County.  
 
The LWTP utilizes the TCAD property classifications which have been divided into the following categories: Agriculture, Single-Family, 
Multi-Family, Commercial, Industrial, Civic and Vacant Land. A general description of each land use category and two maps follow 
the descriptions. TCAD follows the current property use and land cover data as the primary consideration for determining 
appropriate property classification for tax assessments. The TCAD Land Use Categories Map (Map 13) depicts the current land use 
patterns throughout Travis County.  
 
TCAD does not have a land use category for parks and preserves so park and preserve land has generally retained its TCAD land 
category designation assigned to it prior to a government agency or civic organization purchase (see Appendix A for the location of 
parks, preserves, and conservation easements in unincorporated Travis County). Furthermore, TCAD does not have a land use 
category for active mining operations. Therefore, depending on the type of business operation, some land falls under Industrial or 
Commercial, and if the land owner is just extracting layers of dirt it could fall under a nonexempt agricultural category. Typically, 
mineral processing and crushing plants fall under Industrial use, whereas, selling of aggregate could be classified under Commercial. 
 
Land Use Categories 
 
It is important to emphasize that the land use categories used in the LWTP are intentionally broad. While it is noted that these land 
use categories have unique purposes solely related to the collection of property taxes, the data provides insight into the land use 
character of each unincorporated area of the County. The County Land Use Map on the following page depicts the locations for each 
type of land use in the unincorporated area of the County and is a snapshot in time.  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    40 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

DATA SOURCE YEAR

Land Use Travis Central Appraisal District 2012

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

. DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

BASTROPBASTROP

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

T
C
A
D

 L
a
n
d
 U

se
 C

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s

T
C
A
D

 L
a
n
d
 U

se
 C

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s

Civic

Vacant Parcels

Industrial

Commercial

Multi-Family

Residential

Agriculture/Farm & Ranch

Map 13
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Agriculture/Farm & Ranch: All acreage qualified for use in agriculture and farm and ranch productivity and the improvements 
associated with land. These improvements include all houses, barns, sheds, silos, garages and other structures associated with 
farming or ranching. Included is all land areas associated with agricultural production. The greatest amount of these lands would be 
areas used in the active cultivation of crops, both row and field crops. Also included, however, are pasturelands and grazing lands 
associated with horse or cattle raising operations, orchards, vineyards, nurseries and other horticultural areas and confined feeding 
operations. In addition, other lands used in support of the agricultural activities, such as the farmsteads, associated barns, stables, 
and corrals are also included. 
 
Single-Family Residential: Single-Family Residential property includes land on which homes are situated. Townhouses, 
condominiums, row houses and owner-occupied duplexes are included in this category as well as mobile homes located on land 
owned by occupants. 
 
Multi-Family Residential: Properties that fall under this category are residential structures containing two or more residential units 
under single ownership and include apartment complexes. 
 
Vacant Parcels: These properties may be idle tracts in various stages of development or awaiting construction, tracts planned for 
residential structures, recreational lots or commercial and industrial building sites. Because property use determines classification, 
there is no minimum or maximum acreage requirement for this category.   
 
Commercial: These properties include land and improvements associated with businesses that sell goods or services to the general 
public. Some examples of commercial businesses are: wholesale and retail stores, shopping centers, office buildings, restaurants, 
hotels and motels, gas stations, parking garages and lots, auto dealers, repair shops, finance companies, insurance companies, 
savings and loan associations, banks, credit unions, clinics, nursing homes, hospitals, marinas, bowling alleys, golf courses and 
mobile home parks. 
 
Industrial: Properties that add value to products through development, manufacturing, fabrication or processing of those products. 
Some examples of industrial businesses are: cotton gins, processing plants, paper mills, steel mills, refineries, warehouse storing for 
a manufacturing facility, cement plants, chemical plants, canning companies and clothing manufacturers. Warehouses that receive 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    42 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

goods from only one manufacturer to hold for distribution or that provide storage as part of a manufacturing process are classified 
as industrial real property. 
 
Civic: Tax exempt properties are school property, religious organizations, property owned by the federal, state, county or city 
government and used for public purposes, charitable organizations, cemeteries, youth spiritual, mental and physical development 
associations and low-income housing. 
 
Unclassified Parcels: The parcel boundaries are identified by TCAD but were not given a classification.  
 
 
Land Use Categories not Identified by TCAD 
 
Preserve: Highly sensitive lands that have been set aside for conservation that might otherwise have been used for development of 
subdivisions.  
 
Parks: Land that has been set aside for public recreational use and open space. 
 
 
Land Use Inventory 
 
The county has an area of approximately 1,024 square miles (including incorporated areas) which is roughly 599,718 acres. The 
unincorporated area is 402,769 acres (628 square miles), the incorporated area is 196,319 acres (306 square miles) and, according to 
the Texas Water Development Board, the water bodies are approximately 33 square miles. These numbers do not account for the 
remaining 57 square miles of dedicated rights-of-way, railroad lines and utility easements. The table below identifies the 
approximate proportion of land associated with each land use category in the unincorporated areas of the county. Agricultural uses 
make up approximately 52.3 percent of the land, residential uses make up 18.3 percent, nonresidential uses make up almost 5 
percent and civic uses make up 2.5 percent of the county. The data shows that agriculture and farm and ranch are the predominant 
land uses covering over 210,710 acres of the total land area, followed by vacant parcels at 87,213 acres which is 21.65 percent. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    43 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Agricultural and rural lands are being developed into housing subdivisions because of the pressures created by growth, which points 
to a future of relatively dense development for a once relatively isolated and stable rural county. The eastern portion of the county, 
generally, is ideal for Agricultural use. Much of this area is currently farmed and is characterized by flat land and good soils. Effort 
should be made to plan for the stabilization of those areas which might be best retained in their rural-like character, promoting their 
value as agricultural resources and/or adequate land reserves for the future.  
 
The Land Use Map was created to assist policy makers to guide land use-related decision making. Until the State Legislature grants 
land use and zoning control to counties, the risk of inconsistent and incompatible development will remain.  The changing social, 
cultural, economic and environmental dynamics of the county make it crucial to have an effective, ongoing review mechanism that 
will measure actual change and adjust land use needs in line with these evolving dynamics.  
 
Land use is only one element of this background report, but knowledge about land use and land cover has become increasingly 
important as the county strives to overcome the problems of uncontrolled development, loss of prime agricultural lands and loss of 
wildlife habitat. Land use data is needed in the analysis of environmental processes and problems that must be understood if living 
conditions and standards are to be maintained at current levels or improved. 

 
Land Use Calculations for Unincorporated Travis County 
 

Figure 12:  Land Use Calculations 
 
TCAD  
Land Use 
Categories 

Agriculture Residential Commercial Industrial Civic 
Vacant 
Parcels 

Unclassified 
Parcels 

Totals 

Acreage 210,710 73,883 16,155 478 10,196 87,213 4,134 402,769 

Square Miles 329 115 25 1 16 136 6 628 
Percentage of 
unincorporated 
Travis County 

52.31% 18.34% 4.01% 0.12% 2.54% 21.65% 1.02% 99.99% 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    44 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

FORECASTED DISTRIBUTION OF POPULATION 
 
Historical Population  
From 1980 to 2010, the population of Travis County grew at an average rate of 3.02% per year from 419,573 residents in 1980 to 
1,024,266 in 2010.  In comparison, population of the five counties (Travis, Williamson, Hays, Bastrop and Caldwell) that make-up the 
region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) grew at a combined average rate of 3.65%.  In 2010, most of the population 
within the 5-county region, 60%, resides within Travis County.  By 2035, the County’s percentage of the 5-county region will decline 
to 48%.  See Figure 13. 
 

Figure 13:  Historical Population and Forecast by County 
 

County 1980 Census 1990 Census 2000 Census 2010 Census 2025 Forecast 2035 Forecast 
Travis 419,573 576,407 812,280 1,024,266 1,318,000 1,555,300 
Williamson 76,521 139,551 249,967 422,679 702,700 1,026,500 
Hays 40,594 65,614 97,589 157,107 271,600 371,200 
Bastrop 24,726 38,263 57,733 74,171 149,200 215,500 
Caldwell 23,637 26,392 32,194 38,066 65,300 82,100 
5-County Total 585,501 846,227 1,249,763 1,716,289 2,506,800 3,250,600 

Source:  CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, June 2010. 
 
Much of the new population in the region between 1980 and 2010 has located in low density single family uses on the fringe of the 
existing urban areas.   A large percentage of the region’s growth is occurring outside municipal boundaries, with limited land use 
control powers.  Travis County continues to have little ability to regulate the location, quality, and impacts of development.  An 
example of the extent of this continued growth is represented in the increase in estimates of Travis County’s unincorporated 
population.  Since 2000, an additional 100,000 persons are living in the unincorporated area of Travis County.  See Figure 14.  In the 
2010 Census, it is estimated that the unincorporated population of Travis County makes up 17.5% of Travis County’s total 
population.  This unincorporated population percentage has increased from the 2000 Census which showed approximately 9.1% of 
the total population living in the unincorporated portion of the County. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    45 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Figure 14:  Travis County Incorporated vs. Unincorporated Population (2000 and 2010) 

Travis County 2000 Census % of County Total 2010 Census % of County Total 
Incorporated 740,119 90.9% 845,371 82.5% 

Unincorporated 72,161 9.1% 178,895 17.5% 
Total 812,280 1,024,266 

Source:  2000 and 2010 US Census. 

Population Forecast 
The Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 will use the same demographic forecast that was developed in the Capital Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) 2035 Regional Transportation Plan.  Reasons for using the same forecast include: the 
current CAMPO forecast is relatively current (June 2010), it has been adopted by various jurisdictions within the region, and the 
forecast is based on a new growth allocation approach known as the CAMPO Centers Concept which was vetted during the long 
range transportation plan adoption.  The use of a centers growth allocation concept has been held up in the region as an 
opportunity to take a different approach to growth developed from the previously based trends forecasts.  The Centers concept 
allows for higher density, mixed use developments located around public transportation and incorporates alternative mobility 
options with the goal of reducing investment that has been made in regional infrastructure that have been based on previous trends 
forecasts.   

County Control Totals- CAMPO develops population and employment forecasts for use in the development of the region’s long 
range transportation plan.  In each plan, the CAMPO policy board adopts County control totals that will be used in the development 
of the travel demand model.  CAMPO reviewed several forecast scenarios with the board which adopted an averaged scenario of the 
Texas State Demographer’s highest (1.0) and medium growth (0.5) scenarios.  The 1.0 Scenario assumes that trends from growth 
between1990-2000 will continue into the future and is identified as being a high growth scenario.  Since the 1990s were 
characterized by rapid growth in the region, demographers view the 1.0 Scenario as being unsustainable over time.   Scenario (0.5) is 
an average of the zero (0.0) and (1.0) scenarios.  It assumes rates of net migration to be one-half of those of those in Scenario (1.0). 
This scenario projects rates of population growth that are slower than Scenario (1.0), but show steady growth.  After reviewing the 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc 46

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

two scenarios, the Board felt that a Scenario that was between the two would allow for a forecast where in-migration occurs at a 
rate slightly lower than the high growth rate of Scenario (1.0).  

In June 2010, the long range plan, CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, was approved by the Transportation Policy Board and 
showed the five county total population was expected to grow to approximately 3.25 million residents by 2035.  By 2035, Travis 
County will have added approximately 525,000 persons and will make-up 48% of the five county total.  This amount of growth would 
equal, if the birth rare and death rates were held constant, 58 new persons, per day for 25 years (see Figure 13).     

Allocation of Forecasted Population 
As part of the demographic forecast, a Centers Growth Concept scenario was developed to guide where future population would be 
allocated forming the basis for the 2035 regional transportation plan and the travel demand model.  The Centers Growth Concept is 
the implementation of a network of high density mixed use centers oriented around transportation investments included in the long 
range transportation plan.  In Travis County, there are currently 18 centers, located mainly at the intersections of existing and/or 
future planned transportation systems which include rail, transit and roadway improvements (see Map 14).   

Of these, only one center, (Webberville) is located completely within the unincorporated area of Travis County.  Six of the centers, 
(Pflugerville, SH 130 and US 290, Manor, Webberville, SH 130 and SH 71, and Mustang Ridge) are located along the SH 130 corridor. 
Another six centers are located in the I-35 corridor (Ben White, Central Austin, Mueller, Highland Mall, Tech Ridge and I-35 and SH 
45 N.  To implement the Centers concept, it is expected that regional partners will implement strategies to encourage development. 
Targets have been identified to increase the percentage of regional population.  For medium centers, the population target ranges 
from 9,000 – 75,000 persons, for small centers, the range is 1,000 – 10,000 persons.  Locations of future population show in the 
forecast that growth has been allocated to these center locations (see Map 15). 

Staff also expects that new Centers will be established at future transit stations being planned for in the City of Austin’s Urban Rail 
project and more importantly for unincorporated Travis County along the rail stations being planned for in the Lone Star Rail project.  

Emerging Projects and Preliminary and Final Plat Subdivisions as Growth Indicators - Another indicator of where growth will occur 
is through locations of undeveloped platted and existing platted subdivisions.  In Map 15, for Travis County, there still are large areas 
of mainly agricultural land that do not show potential for new development to occur and have no emerging projects.  These are 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc 47

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

located mainly in northeast Travis County and to some extent large areas remain within the SH 130 corridor.  In western Travis 
County, many potential areas for development are protected lands under the BCCP and cannot be developed.  However, changes in 
future growth can be identified in the location of emerging projects. 
 
SH 130 Corridor- Much of the forecasted growth is planned to occur along the SH 130 corridor.  Large mixed use tracts that include 
single and multi-family residential are being planned that access the new transportation corridor that runs mostly in the 
unincorporated area of the County.  Shown in Map 15, mixed use developments are planned at Wildhorse Ranch (US 290 west of the 
City of Manor), Whisper Valley (east of SH 130 along future Barker Lane) and Rio de Vida (along SH 130 between SH 71 E and FM 
969).  These three developments represent over 20,000 new planned residential units at build out. 
 
SE Travis County- Another area of high growth is planned to occur in southeastern Travis County just west of SH 130.  Two large 
mixed use developments, Goodnight Ranch (Slaughter Lane and Thaxton Rd.) and Brookfield (along future Slaughter Lane and 
William Cannon Drive west of US 183 S) have just over 19,500 residential units planned for these new mixed use developments.  
Additionally, further to the east of SH 130 is the new F1 site.  While, the project was not included in the current population forecast, 
the impact on the surrounding area will be dramatic especially in the potential for new job growth. 
 
Center Locations- Other new growth will be occurring in new and existing centers planned within Travis County, see Map B-5c.   In 
northeastern Travis County, the City Pflugerville and its ETJ are expected to see continued growth especially to the east of its 
incorporated area.  In southwest Travis County, the Village of Bee Cave located at RM 620 and SH 71 W will see growth spreading 
along highway corridors.  In northwestern Travis County, the cities of Jonestown and Lago Vista show continued growth north of 
Lake Travis.  While it is not a defined center, the City of Lakeway will grow along its sourthern boundary west of the new medical 
Center and along Bee Creek Road. 
 
Growth on County Boundaries- Other significant growth areas will impact Travis County just outside the County’s boundary.  In 
northern Travis County, a medium center (Robinson Ranch) is located west of Burnet Road along SH 45 and will include 10,000 new 
residential units.  In southern Travis County, continued growth in Buda and Kyle is impacting the quality of life of residents in 
southwest Travis County along FM 1626.  Plans for new development along I-35 at Estancia and the old Heap Ranch will continue to 
impact the people living in this area of the County.   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    48 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



F
M

 9
7
3

FM
 2222

R
M

 6
2
0

FM 1431

FM
 2

769

FM
 3

228

FM 969

F
M

 9
7
3

F
M

 1
6
2
5

FM
 1327

§̈¦35

£¤183

£¤183

¬«360

¬«71

¬«71

£¤290

£¤290¬«1

¬«130

¬«130

§̈¦35

CentralCentral

AustinAustin

PflugervillePflugerville

Howard Ln.Howard Ln.

North BurnetNorth Burnet

GatewayGateway

ManorManor

MuellerMueller

Oak HillOak Hill

Bee CaveBee Cave

Ben WhiteBen White

Tech RidgeTech Ridge

WebbervilleWebberville

Highland MallHighland Mall

Mustang RidgeMustang Ridge

I-35 & SH 45 NI-35 & SH 45 N

SH 130 & US 71SH 130 & US 71

SH 130 & US 290SH 130 & US 290

FM 2222 & FM 620FM 2222 & FM 620

South AustinSouth Austin

StationStation

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 12, 2014 

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

HAYSHAYS

C
A

M
P
O

 C
e
n
te

rs
 i
n
 T

ra
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

C
A

M
P
O

 C
e
n
te

rs
 i
n
 T

ra
v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

DATA SOURCE YEAR

CAMPO Centers (2035 Plan) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization Approved 2010

Centers

0.5 miles

Large

Medium

Small

2 miles

Railroad

1 mile

Map 14
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

Austin

Lago
Vista

Lakeway

Leander

Volente

West Lake
Hills

Bee Cave

Jonestown

Webberville

Creedmoor

Briarcliff

Pflugerville

The Hills

Manor

Point Venture

Sunset Valley

Elgin

Cedar Park

Rollingwood

Round Rock

Mustang Ridge

San Leanna

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.
DATA SOURCE

Population Projection (2035) Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization

Hutto

Population Projection

2010 CAMPO Population

2035 CAMPO
Projection Increase

1 Dot = 10 People

Buda

Georgetown

Kyle

Taylor

Bear
Creek

Dripping Springs

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 13, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
u
tu

re
 G

ro
w

th
T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
u
tu

re
 G

ro
w

th

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

Map 15
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

£¤290

£¤290

") 973 

")1431

") 620 

") 969 

")2222

") 812 

")2244

")2769

")1327

")3238

")1100

") 685 

")3177

")1625

")2322

")1826

")1626

")1825

") 973 

UV130

UV71

UV71

UV 1 

UV 45 

UV360

UV45

UV 45 

§̈¦ 35 

£¤183

UV130

0 2 4 6 81

Miles

.

BASTROPBASTROP

WILLIAMSONWILLIAMSON

CALDWELLCALDWELL

Travis County 
Transportation & 
Natural Resources

DISCLAIMER:
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared 

for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent 

an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of 
property boundaries. Travis County has produced this product for reference 

purposes only and offers no warranties for the product’s accuracy or completeness. 

TNR GIS Coordinator: (512) 854-7591

March 13, 2014 

HAYSHAYS

BLANCOBLANCO

BURNETBURNET

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
u
tu

re
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a
s

T
ra

v
is

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
u
tu

re
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
a
s

(2
0
1
0
)

(2
0
1
0
)

Incorporated Areas

ETJs

(Parkland, Preserves, City of Austin WQPL, &
Travis County Non-BCP Conservation
Easement Properties)

Conserved Lands

Future Projects

Subdivisions (preliminary and existing)

Note: Future projects represented on this map are from 2010 data.

Map 16
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

COUNTY LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT REGULATORY AUTHORITY 
 
Texas counties have no comprehensive land use and development regulatory authority and for this reason Travis County has limited 
authority to regulate new development. However, the Texas Constitution and State Law granted some counties legal authority to 
handle growth. As a result Travis County has authority to approve subdivision of land and require land owners/developers to comply 
with state regulations for water supply.  Construct and maintain subdivision roads in unincorporated area and assess costs to 
landowners, and specify minimum standards for roads construction and drainage facilities.  
 
Below is a list of legal tools that Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) currently utilizes to address development issues when 
handling new growth within the unincorporated areas.  
 

Figure 15: List of Legal Tools to Address Development Issues 
LWT Plan Section Statutory Rule County Legal Authority and Procedures 

Land  Chapter 109.33, Alcoholic Beverage Code Sales near school, church, or hospital: May prohibit within 
300 feet of church, school, or hospital, or within 1,000 
feet of a school if school board requests. 

Land  Chapters 361.111 and 361.112, Health & Safety Code 
(unincorporated area). Chapter 364.011, Health & 
Safety code (unincorporated area outside 
extraterritorial jurisdiction). 

Solid Waste Disposal Act: May regulate manner of 
collection, handling or disposal of solid waste. May 
regulate location of facilities, but may not exclude from 
county.  

Land  Chapter 341.012, Health & Safety Code Minimum standards of sanitation and health protection 
measures: County health authority may order landowner 
to abate nuisance. 

Land  Chapter 751, Health & Safety Code Texas Mass Gatherings Act: May grant or deny a permit 
based on various public health and safety criteria. Applies 
to gatherings of over 2,500 persons or over 500 persons if 
half are under 21 years old. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    52 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

LWT Plan Section Statutory Rule County Legal Authority and Procedures 

Land  Chapters 232.001 and 232.101, Local Govt. Code. 
Also subject to Chapter 242, Local Govt. code. 

Subdivision platting requirements of property: Requires 
county approval of plat “to promote the health, safety, 
morals or general welfare” and “safer, orderly, and 
healthful development.”  May not regulate use; bulk, 
height, or number of buildings; size of buildings; or 
number of residential units per acre.  

Land  Subchapter B, Chapter 233, Local Govt. Code Establish building and set-back lines: Limited to 50 feet 
from major highways and 25 feet from other roads.  

Land  Subchapter C, Chapter 233, Local Govt. Code May require compliance with International Fire Code, 
Uniform Fire Code, or more protective local-adopted 
measures: Applies only in a county of over 250,000 
population adjacent to another county of over 250,000 
population. Affects improvement of building for 
commercial or public use or multi-family dwelling. 

Land  Subchapter F, Chapter 233, Local Govt. Code Allows a local jurisdiction to require that builders give 
notice to the jurisdiction of the location of construction, 
approximate date of construction and the version of the 
International Residential Code that will be used to 
construct a new home or duplex.  In addition, a local 
jurisdiction can require a builder to submit a summary 
notice of the inspections (foundation, 
framing/mechanical, and final) after construction is 
completed.  The law also allows a jurisdiction to enforce 
the notice provisions, but not the building code itself.    

Land and  
Transportation 

Subchapter A, Chapter 234, Local Govt. Code, 
Chapter 396, Transportation Code 

Automotive wrecking or salvage yards, flea markets, 
outdoor resale businesses: Statute sets minimums for 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    53 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

LWT Plan Section Statutory Rule County Legal Authority and Procedures 

screening and setbacks from roads and houses. County 
may adopt rules for screening and other visual and 
aesthetic standards. Statute requires operator to comply, 
“to the extent practicable.” 

Land Subchapter D, Chapter 234, Local Govt. Code Massage parlors: May prohibit or regulate to promote 
public health, safety and welfare. 

Land Subchapter A, Chapter 235, Local Govt. Code Matters relating to explosives and weapons: May regulate 
production, distribution, transport, transfer, use, handling, 
storage and possession. Applies only in a county of over 1 
million population. 

Land Subchapter B and C, Chapter 235, Local Govt. Code Discharge of firearms or hunting with bows and arrows on 
platted lot over 10 acres: May prohibit or regulate.    

Land Subchapter A, Chapter 240, Local Govt. Code Establish regulations for keeping of wild animals: May 
prohibit or regulate the keeping of non-domestic animals 
found to be dangerous and in need of control. 

Land Chapter 241, Local Govt. Code County zoning authority around airports: May specify 
permissible land uses, regulate type of structures and 
restrict height of structures and objects of natural growth. 

Land Chapter 243, Local Govt. Code Establish reasonable and uniform regulations for sexually 
oriented businesses: May regulate as necessary to 
promote the public health, safety or welfare. 

Land Subchapter A, Chapter 244, Local Govt. Code Location of correctional or rehabilitation facilities and 
shelter: May prohibit within 1,000 feet of a residential 
area, school, public park or place of worship.  

Land Chapter 250.002, Local Govt. Code Regulation of amateur radio antennas: May require 
compliance with minimal practicable regulations for 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    54 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

LWT Plan Section Statutory Rule County Legal Authority and Procedures 

placement, height, and screening. 
Land Subchapter A, Chapter 183, Natural Resources Code County Financing for Acquisition of Conservation 

Easement: Authorizes a county, in addition to other 
methods of financing, including the use of the county's 
general fund, to finance the acquisition of a conservation 
easement. 

Land Chapter 13.304, Parks & Wildlife Code Wildlife management areas, sanctuaries and preserves: 
Acquire land for public recreation areas. Construct 
facilities for public use on land acquired for public 
recreation. 

Land Chapter 83.013, Parks & Wildlife Code Habitat conservation plans: May participate in the study, 
development and creation of a habitat conservation plan. 

Land Chapter 203, Property Code Enforcement of land use restrictions: If authorized by a 
commissioner’s court, the county attorney may enforce 
plat and deed restrictions. 

Transportation Chapters 251.003, 251.0016, and 251.017 
Transportation Code 

General County authority relating to roads and bridges: 
May make and enforce all necessary rules for construction 
and maintenance of public roads and exercise general 
control over all roads, highways and bridges. 

Water Chapter 366, Health & Safety Code Establish regulations to eliminate and prevent health 
hazards: General authority over the location, design, 
construction, installation and proper functioning of on-site 
sewage disposal systems. Rules are subject to TCEQ 
approval. 

Water Chapter 232.007, Local Govt. Code Enforce minimum infrastructure standards for 
manufactured home: May require compliance with 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    55 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

LWT Plan Section Statutory Rule County Legal Authority and Procedures 

standards for drainage, water and wastewater services, 
and roads. 

Water Chapter 573, Local Govt. Code Regulate stormwater management: Applies to a county 
with a population of 800,000 or more that contains a 
portion of the Edwards Aquifer. May require development 
to comply with stormwater quality regulations. 

Water Subchapter I, Chapter 16, Water Code Flood Insurance Act: Allows a local jurisdiction to adopt 
necessary regulations and measures to prevent and 
reduce flooding throughout the jurisdiction.   

Water Chapter 31.092, Parks & Wildlife Code Water Safety Act: May designate areas for bathing, 
fishing, swimming or otherwise restrict operation of boats 
and equipment of public lakes. 

Water Chapter 35.019, Water Code Water availability for Counties in priority groundwater 
management areas: Requirements and standards for 
determining whether an adequate supply of water for a 
proposed subdivision is available. 

 
 

SUMMARY OF LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLANS 
 
This section focuses on Travis County’s local jurisdictions’ comprehensive plans and is intended to promote consistency between this 
Plan and comprehensive plans of the neighboring jurisdictions. The intent of the County is to focus on beneficial intergovernmental 
relations with nearby and overlapping jurisdictions and to coordinate plans, policies, and programs in order to address and resolve 
land use, transportation, natural resource, utility, facility, services or other issues of mutual interest. Intergovernmental 
communication, coordination, and cooperation are critical in implementing some of the recommendations in this Plan.  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    56 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Of the 22 local jurisdictions, only 12 have adopted comprehensive plans. This section discusses which cities have adopted 
comprehensive plans and their key policies for relations with other agencies. Because many of the County’s goals and objectives 
relate to issues that transcend municipal boundaries (e.g., transportation, natural resource, farmland preservation, land use), the 
County intends to maintain an active and open dialogue with surrounding cities and neighboring counties. See the Appendix C for a 
list of opportunities where the County can collaborate with local jurisdictions. 

There is consistency among the 12 jurisdiction-adopted comprehensive plans that rural character and open spaces are important 
community amenities and should be preserved as much as is feasible. The methods by which rural character and open space 
preservation could be accomplished vary among the different jurisdictions; however, the idea of permanently preserving rural open 
space is common to all of the Plans. 

In addition to the overall rural character of the County, there is consensus that certain natural resources need protection. These 
include, but are not limited to, water quality, farmland and streams. Flood control and the need for stricter environmental standards 
are important values, as is the conservation of water. Many are concerned about the quality and quantity of water resources and 
the capacity of the current water supply to keep up with growth. 

There is consensus that transportation is an important issue affecting quality of life. Whereas, many of the complaints about traffic 
are associated with municipal growth, the timing of improvements to the transportation network concurrent with the impacts of 
development is a primary concern. 

The City of Austin on June 15, 2012 adopted a new comprehensive plan called Imagine Austin which defines a vision and framework 
for how the city should grow and develop. The City first Comprehensive Plan, the Austin Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan (ATCP), was 
developed during the 1970s and adopted in 1979. It was amended numerous times through the adoption of neighborhood and 
transportation plans. However, Imagine Austin is based on sustainable growth by encouraging investments to support mixed-use 
development, transit and the creation of compact and walkable places. The policies prioritize City investments into 
transportation/utility/mixed-use corridors and include City incentives to help foster this type of development within the City and its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ).  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc 57

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

The Imagine Austin Growth Concept Map (see Appendix B) applies the Imagine Austin vision statement and existing development 
patterns to illustrate the desired manner to accommodate new residents, jobs, mixed-use areas, open space and transportation 
infrastructure over the next 30 years. This map illustrates how, in the future, Austin should coordinate transportation features—
roads, transit, and urban trails with activity centers and corridors, in such a way as to reduce degradation of Austin’s environmental 
resources. 
 
Austin is the largest city in Travis County comprising 306 square miles and over 300 square miles in the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ). The City limits are in three different counties, Hays, Travis and Williamson. The 2010 estimated population of the City within 
Travis County is 754,691 residents. There are no known conflicts between the City of Austin’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and 
policies of the County. 
 
The City of Bee Cave is located in the southwest quadrant of the County about 12 miles west of the City of Austin. In 2010, the City 
had an estimated population of 3,925 residents. Their Plan emphasizes that the City should establish itself as a progressive and 
growing community that intends to plan for future growth and development while maintaining the integrity and security of a family-
oriented, sub-rural or suburban community. They intend to achieve these goals by designing the City on a human-scale by limiting 
the size of nonresidential buildings and the density of residential development and by emphasizing pedestrian traffic, whenever 
possible.  
 
One of the City’s goals is to protect their watershed areas, especially Little Barton Creek. Another goal is creating a greenbelt system 
along the local creeks with hike and bike trails within large parks and developments. The third goal is to establish and maintain 
scenic roadways. The City strives to develop a local transportation planning process that ensures coordination with the regional 
planning goals by having stronger coordination with surrounding municipalities, CAMPO and the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TXDoT) on roadway planning issues. The plan also provides a clear statement of future roadway alignments, 
capacities (i.e., number of lanes) and right-of-way requirements within the City and its ETJ. There are no known conflicts between 
the City of Bee Cave’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and policies of the County. 
 
The Village of Briarcliff is located in the southwest quadrant of Travis County on the South shore of Lake Travis 30 miles west of 
Austin, and in 2010 had an estimated population of 1,438 residents. The Village of Briarcliff does not have an adopted 
Comprehensive Plan. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    58 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
The City of Cedar Park is located in the northwest quadrant of the County, and a portion of the City is located in Williamson County. 
In 2010, the City’s estimated population was 56,072 of which only 489 residents lived within Travis County. In 1998, the City of Cedar 
Park adopted its first Comprehensive Plan, and the last update was in 2007. The updated Comprehensive Plan builds on and refines 
the 1998 Plan to include the mission that Cedar Park is a place to live, work and play. In order for the City to achieve that goal, there 
need to be residents, employment centers, retail and entertainment, and parks and recreation. The stated Goals and Objectives only 
apply to the jurisdictional lines. The plan makes a brief reference that they intend to continue to annex land within their ETJ, but 
nothing is specified in their Plan. There are no known conflicts between the City of Cedar Park’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans 
and policies of the County. 
 
The Village of Creedmoor is located in the southeast quadrant of the County and is about 15 miles south of the City of Austin. In 
2010, the estimated population was 202. The Village of Creedmoor does not have an adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The City of Elgin is located in the northeast quadrant of Travis County 19 miles east of Austin. Most of the City is located in Bastrop 
County and in 2010 had an estimated population of 9,917 residents of which 909 were in Travis County. In 1998, the City of Elgin 
adopted its first Comprehensive Plan and the last update was in 2008. The stated Goals and Objectives only apply within the 
jurisdictional lines, Bastrop and Williamson Counties. The plan makes a brief reference that they intend to continue to annex land 
within their ETJ, but nothing is specified in their Plan. There are no known conflicts between the City of Elgin’s Comprehensive Plan 
and the plans and policies of the County. 
 
The City of Jonestown is located in the northwest quadrant of the County and is about 20 miles northwest of the City of Austin. In 
2010 the estimated population was 1,834. The Plan calls for slow, steady growth and to become a disaster-resistant community 
through an active understanding of its floodplains, creek systems, drainage patterns and the City’s role in the management of 
floodplain resources. The plan suggests a desire for retail and commercial service areas in identified nodes on FM 1431 to increase 
opportunities for residents and business development. A transition of compatible land uses is encouraged in the ETJ. As areas 
become incorporated, zoning decisions should account for future adjacent uses with the intent of protecting property values. 
 
The Plan calls for the City to coordinate with FEMA, the LCRA, Travis County and private development to study the drainage systems 
to minimize duplication of efforts and individual entity costs, to actively pursue the acquisition of flood-prone properties and to 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    59 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

explore partnerships with Travis County, Pedernales Electric Cooperative and the Lower Colorado River Authority in order to 
leverage resources for expanded park, recreation and open space development/preservation.  
 
The City of Jonestown adopted their first Comprehensive Plan in 2002, and it was last updated in 2006. There are no known conflicts 
between the City of Jonestown’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and policies of the County. 
 
The City of Lago Vista is located in the northwest quadrant of the County and on the north shore of Lake Travis 20 miles northwest 
of Austin. In 2010, the City had an estimated population of 6,041 residents. The original Lago Vista Comprehensive Master Plan was 
adopted in 1988. Since then the Plan has been revised several times, and in 2001 the City adopted a new master Plan which was 
amended in 2008 and 2010.  
 
Their Plan proposes to maximize future benefits for its residential neighborhoods while maintaining a viable business and economic 
environment. The policies are written to ensure that all new development (both residential and nonresidential) is environmentally 
sensitive, aesthetically pleasing, improves the tax base, does not adversely affect existing neighborhoods and businesses, and is not 
a fiscal burden.  
 
The City anticipates growth and the need for an expansion of the “park and ride” program by examining the feasibility of additional 
bus routes within Lago Vista and into Austin and the surrounding areas to assist in minimizing traffic. The City also wants to expand 
existing hiking and scenic viewing trails throughout the community and consider linking these trails to the Balcones Canyonlands 
National Wildlife Refuge. There are no known conflicts between the City of Lago Vista’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and 
policies of the County. 
 
The City of Lakeway is located in the southwest quadrant of the County 16 miles west of Austin. In 2010, the City had an estimated 
population of 11,391 residents.  Retirees continue to comprise a significant segment of the city’s population, but there is a surge of 
urban working families with children that have started to make Lakeway their home.  Lakeway’s popularity among new residents will 
continue to grow, and careful planning is required to assure that the culture and character of the community are preserved. The City 
adopted their first Comprehensive Plan in 1999 and it was last updated in 2006.  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    60 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

The City will continue to be a unique, prestigious, growth-managed community that will meet the needs of its citizens through the 
efforts of its local government and civic-minded volunteers, who will ensure a continued high quality of life by providing safe, secure 
neighborhoods and cost effective government services. One of their goals is to ensure that improvements are made along the 
intersection of RR 620 and SH 71. The plan also calls for the development of other commercial corridors in a manner that reflects the 
special character while protecting the residents’ quality of life. The City wants to work with Travis County to ensure the timely 
completion of the County bond project that will build a new road from the Flintrock Subdivision area south to SH 71 and to consider 
an inter-local agreement with Travis County and the Village of the Hills in making improvements to Serene Hills Drive. There are no 
known conflicts between the City of Lakeway’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and policies of the County. 
 
The City of Leander is located in the northwest quadrant of the County is located about 22 miles northwest of Austin and the 
majority of the city is located in Williamson County. In 2010, the City had an estimated population of 26,551, of which 1,077 
residents were within Travis County. The original Leander Comprehensive Plan was only partially adopted from the draft 
comprehensive plan submitted in 2001. Since then, the Plan has been revised several times, and in 2001 the City adopted a new 
Master Plan which was amended in 2008 and 2010.  
 
The Plan calls for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall quality of life and economic viability. 
The Plan has taken an approach that encourages density at major intersections of arterials and collectors while respecting existing 
developments and neighborhoods. While the City is expecting growth to occur, they also want to protect the Old Town area and 
assure that it maintains a pedestrian-oriented atmosphere with a greater flexibility of land uses as well as unique local retail 
services. The Plan’s goals and objectives are focused on the growth that is occurring in Williamson County rather than the Travis 
County portion of the City. There are no known conflicts between the City of Leander’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and 
policies of the County. 
 
The City of Manor is located in the northeast quadrant of the County 12 miles northeast of downtown Austin. In 2010, the City had 
an estimated population of 5,037 residents. The City of Manor does not have an adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The City of Mustang Ridge is located in the southeast quadrant of the County about 18 miles southeast of downtown Austin. In 
2010, the City had an estimated population of 434 residents. The City of Mustang Ridge does not have an adopted Comprehensive 
Plan. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    61 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
The City of Pflugerville is located in the northeast quadrant of the County 14 miles northeast of downtown Austin. In 2010, the City 
had an estimated population of 46,936 residents. In 1998, the City adopted its first Comprehensive Plan and amended in 2004 and 
2007. The City adopted Pflugerville 2030 Comprehensive Plan in 2010, and this plan updates and superseded the 2004 Land Use and 
Transportation Plans.  
 
The Plan’s vision for Pflugerville is a vibrant community center, and new development will be planned by promoting a mix of uses, in-
fill development, and higher densities to limit the amount of sprawl and to minimize impacts on government services and finances. 
The goal is to concentrate growth along the recently opened toll roads of SH 130 and SH 45 because the City anticipates that these 
corridors will be the primary drivers of economic growth in Pflugerville. The City also intends to minimize development in the 
unincorporated areas, which will promote open space preservation and allow for the continuation of viable agricultural enterprises, 
as appropriate. There are no known conflicts between the City of Pflugerville’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and policies of the 
County. 
 
The Village of Point Venture is a residential community on the north bank of Lake Travis located in the northwest quadrant of the 
County. In 2010, the community had an estimated population of 800 residents. The Village of Point Venture does not have an 
adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The City of Rollingwood is a located in the southwest quadrant of the County and is located three miles west of downtown Austin. In 
2010, the City had an estimated population of 1,412 residents. The City of Rollingwood does not have an adopted Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
The City of Round Rock is a city in Travis and Williamson counties. A small portion of the City is located in the northeast quadrant of 
Travis County and is located 20 miles north of downtown Austin. In 2010, the City had an estimated population of 105,412 residents 
of which 1,362 resided within Travis County. The City last amended their Comprehensive Plan in 2000, and in 2010 the City adopted 
Places and Spaces: General Plan 2020, which updated and superseded the 2000 Comprehensive Plan. This Plan seeks to diversify the 
City’s economy by including diverse economic sectors and a range of employment, provide a range of transportation options, and 
ensure there is a diversity of housing choices, a diversity of cultural and recreational options and a diversity of educational 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    62 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

opportunities. There are no known conflicts between the City of Round Rock’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and policies of the 
County. 
 
The Village of San Leanna is a located in the southwest quadrant of the County 11 miles south of downtown Austin.  According to 
the 2010 U.S. Census, San Leanna has a total population of 497. In 2002, the Village of San Leanna adopted its first Comprehensive 
Plan and no other amendments have been subsequently adopted. The Plan does not intend to seek out annexation, but all the goals 
and policies are concentrated within the Village limits. There are no known conflicts between the Village of San Leanna’s 
Comprehensive Plan and the plans and policies of the County. 
 
The City of Sunset Valley is a located in the southwest quadrant of the County and is five miles south of downtown Austin. According 
to the 2010 U.S. Census, Sunset Valley has a total population of 749. The City of Sunset Valley does not have an adopted 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Village of The Hills is a located in the southwest quadrant of the County 16 miles west of downtown Austin. In 2010, the City had 
an estimated population of 2,472 residents. The Hills does not have an adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Village of Volente is a located in the northwest quadrant of the County on the north shore of Lake Travis. In 2010, the City had 
an estimated population of 520 residents. In 2004, Village of Volente adopted its first Comprehensive Plan and there are no known 
conflicts between the Village of Volente’s Comprehensive Plan and the plans and policies of the County. 
 
The Village of Webberville is a located in the northeast quadrant of the County 16 miles east of downtown Austin. In 2010, the City 
had an estimated population of 392 residents. The Village of Webberville does not have an adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The City of West Lake Hills is a located in the southwest quadrant of the County five miles west of downtown Austin. In 2010, the 
City had an estimated population of 3,063 residents. The City of West Lake Hills does not have an adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    63 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    64 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

D. PUBLIC OPINION 
 
PLANNING PRIORITIES 
 
Overview 
 
Information about planning priorities is taken from the 2010 Community Survey Executive Summary Report (Community Survey) 
completed for the City of Austin in 2010.  In summary, it revealed the following: 
 
 Transportation is a top priority.   The survey shows that the respondents feel that the largest share -- 25% -- of capital 

improvement dollars should be allocated to transportation improvements, and identifies “reduced traffic congestion” as a 
top priority for the future. 

 
 Availability of parks and open-space is a “major strength” of the city and having parks, recreation, sports facilities and 

biking/walking trails and sidewalks nearby is “very important”.   The survey also shows that there is a willingness to invest in 
parks and land acquisition.  

 
 
2010 Community Survey Executive Summary Report10 
 
The City of Austin conducted the “Community Survey”11 in 2010 as part of their comprehensive long range planning process. 
Statistically valid information from households throughout Austin was gathered via both mail and telephone surveys. The survey was 
tailored to strategic issues related to planning the future. Major survey findings are provided below. 

10 Insert reference 
11 Insert reference 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    65 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
Major strengths for the City:  
 Arts, music, and cultural amenities (79%)  
 University of Texas (76%)  
 State Capital (75%) 
 Unique local identity (74%) 
 Availability of parks and open space (73%) 
 Quality of local businesses (73%) 

 
Nearby facilities that were deemed “very important” by the greatest number of households included:  
 Fire stations (93%) 
 Grocery stores (92%) 
 Hospitals and medical facilities (91%) 
 Parks, recreation, and sports facilities (87%) 
 Shopping (84%) 
 Place of employment (82%) 
 Biking/walking trails, sidewalks (80%) 
 Schools (80%) 

 
Potential Areas for Growth and Development- The areas where households most support growth and development occurring are: 
near public transportation stations, stops, and routes (56%), centers outside of downtown (50%), and along roadway corridors 
(43%). 
 
Transportation issues to emphasize next two years: 
 Ease of travel on freeways (49%) 
 North/south travel in Austin (37%) 
 Quality of public transportation-bus service (33%) 
 Major streets (31%) 
 East/west travel in Austin (30%) 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    66 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
Allocation of $100 for transportation: 
 Public transportation -$33 
 Freeways -$27 
 Major streets- $18 
 Neighborhood streets -$13 
 Walking and biking -$12 
 Other -$2 

 
Best represents household’s vision for the future: 
 Quality of public schools-38% 
 Affordable tax rate -32% 
 Affordable housing-28% 
 High paying jobs/employment opportunities -27% 
 Reduced traffic congestion – 26% 

 
Allocation of $100 for Capital Improvements: 
 Transportation- $25 
 Health and human services-$21 
 Repair/restore infrastructure-$16 
 Public safety-$13 
 Parks and recreation (trails)- $9 
 Acquire open space- $6 
 Community facilities (libraries, arts, music, etc.)- $5 
 Other-$2 

 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    67 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

INCOMPATIBLE LAND USE 
 
Overview 
 
Public opinion regarding incompatible land uses in unincorporated Travis County is determined through citizens’ requests to the 
court for regulatory action.  Siting and expansion of landfills and sewage sludge farms and permitting of aggregate mining operations 
have emerged as the most contentious issues that residents have asked the county to regulate better.  
 
Landfill Siting and Expansion 
 
Over the years, residents living near landfills in northeast Travis County have pushed for the closure of these sites.  “The landfills 
have been the subject of more than 800 odor complaints since 2001 and were cited by the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality in 2002 for storm water violations…”12  Windborne trash is reported as a constant problem.  Citizen lobbying of the 
Commissioners Court intensified in 2005 when permit applications were submitted to TCEQ to expand existing landfills.   In 
protracted public hearings with the court, citizens lobbied them to not support the applications nor engage in negotiations with 
waste management operations to adopt performance standards.   
 
Sewage Sludge Siting 
 
Numerous sewage sludge land application projects brought before the court over the past ten years garnered strong opposition 
from the community.  Citizens objected to a proposal for a sludge land application farm near Manor in 2003, a proposal for a site 
near the intersection of Taylor Lane and FM 969 in 2005, and most recently, a proposal for a site near Richards Drive and State 
Highway 71.  Opponents were concerned about companies’ failure to comply with conditions of permits, lax monitoring, runoff 
polluting surrounding land and water, health hazards of being exposed to water and wind borne contaminants, quality of sludge 
trucked in from other counties, noxious odors, and degradation of the rural character of their community.  Citizens lobbied the court 
to request TCEQ to deny permits. 
 

12 The Austin Chronicle, Naked City, edited by Lee Nichols and Cheryl Smith, August 19, 2005. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    68 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Aggregate Mining 
 
In October2008, an application was submitted to Travis County for development permits for a proposed Hornsby Bend sand and 
gravel mining operation near the junction of Dunlap and Hunters Bend roads. The mine activity would occur on 786 acres near the 
north bank of the Colorado River and bisect three adjacent watersheds where they converge (Gilleland Creek, Decker Creek, and Elm 
Creek).   
 
In a series of public meetings held by the commissioners court In late 2009 and early 2010, citizens who reside near the proposed 
operation -- in Austin’s Colony, Chaparral Crossing, Twin Creek Meadows, and other areas – made their concerns known relative to 
the closeness of mining to their homes: excessive noise, truck traffic, and blowing dust would negatively impact their standard of 
living and quality of life.   Opponents vigorously lobbied the court to deny the permits. 
 

PARKS AND OUTDOOR RECREATION  
 
Overview 
 
As shown in the 2010 Community Survey results above, parks, open space, and trails are highly valued by the community.  The 
“Recreation Survey for the City of Austin and Travis County, Texas” completed by the US Corps of Engineers (USCOE), citizens’ 
requests to the county for park improvements, and voters’ approval of county park bond packages confirm this support.  More 
specifically, public opinion with respect to parks and outdoor recreational preferences is as follows: 
 
 The USCOE study showed that walking and nature-based recreation are the most popular outdoor recreational activities; and 

that “lack of trails” and “not knowing where trails are located” were the top constraints to not running, jogging, and walking 
on paved or unpaved trails more (whereas “not having time” to recreate more is the single greatest constraint to 
participating in other activities). 

 Residents of the Oak Hill and Lake Way areas would like the county to provide additional ball fields in their community 
 Residents and elected officials in the City of Lago Vista would like the county to improve Arkansas Bend Parks as a 

recreational and economic resource for their community. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    69 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 Travis County voters have demonstrated their support for county park improvements by passing four park bond packages for 
land acquisition and park improvements.  
 

A Recreation Survey for the City of Austin and Travis County, Texas 
 
The USCOE contracted Responsive Management in 2004 to study recreational needs in the Austin Metropolitan Area (AMA) for their 
Onion Creek Flood Damage Evaluation project (The results of the survey were used in an economic analysis of the costs and benefits 
of buying out flood-prone residences and converting land to parks).  A total of 1,228 statistically representative households in the 
AMA were interviewed about their participation in ninety-nine different recreational activities.  Reported findings of the survey 
relevant to outdoor recreation are as follows13. 
 
Outdoor Recreation: Most of the top-ten recreational activities are outdoor activities.  Walking and swimming were the most 
popular activities. Cultural activities were also an important activity in which more than half the residents participated.  Swimming in 
natural waters and picnicking are the most popular nature-based activities. 
 
 Walking (General) – 81% 
 Swimming in Outdoor Pools – 67% 
 Walking on Roads/Sidewalks – 64% 
 Outdoor Cultural/Arts Activities – 57% 
 General Fitness – 56% 
 Indoors Cultural/Arts Activities – 55% 
 Swimming in Natural Waters – 54% 
 Picnicking – 52% 
 Running, Jogging (General) – 49% 
 Using Playgrounds – 48% 

 

13 The full study can be viewed at www.responsivemanagement.com  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    70 
 

                                                   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.responsivemanagement.com/


Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Recreational Interests: “Interest” is a measure of the combined number of people who participate in an outdoor activity and the 
number of people who would like to participate in that activity.   The activities that respondents are most interested in are walking 
on roads and sidewalks, swimming in outdoor pools, visiting nature/outdoor recreational centers, and cultural activities.  The three 
nature-based activities with the greatest interest are visiting nature centers, picnicking, and swimming in natural waters. 
 
 Walking on Roads and Sidewalks – 79% 
 Swimming in Outdoor Pools – 75% 
 Visiting nature/Outdoor Educational Centers – 72 % 
 Outdoor Cultural Activities or Arts –72 % 
 Picnicking – 69% 
 Walking on Paved Trails – 68% 
 Swimming in Natural Waters – 67% 
 Walking on Unpaved Trails – 63% 
 Using Water Parks – 56% 
 Using Playgrounds – 54% 

 
Constraints to Participation: Time was the most important constraint against participation overall. Nonetheless, facility related 
constraints (lack of nearby facilities/areas, lack of information about facilities/areas, expensive fees, and perception of safety/health 
problems) were also important for many activities.  For running, jogging, and walking on paved or unpaved trails, lack of trails and 
not knowing where the trails are located were the top constraints, followed by time constraints. 
 
Demand for Ball Fields in Southwest Travis County 
 
Residents of southwest Travis County, particularly those living in Oakhill and Lakeway areas have asked the county – as well as the 
City of Austin – to provide baseball and soccer facilities because they maintain that existing facilities do not meet the demands in 
their community. 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    71 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Arkansas Bend Park Improvements 
 
Elected and appointed officials and residents of Lago Vista have lobbied the county in recent years to improve Arkansas Bend Park.  
Because they only have access to Lake Travis on Property Owner Association (POA) lands, they rely on Arkansas Bend Park for 
recreational access to the lake.  Little investment has been made in this park, however, so it isn’t a comfortable or attractive place, is 
perceived by many to be unsafe, and therefore underutilized.  Improving it, they argue, will greatly enhance its recreational value to 
the community, and an improved Arkansas Bend Park will also be an economic development resource for the city (As a result of this 
lobbying and strong community support for improving this park, funding for park improvements were included in the 2011 bond 
package approved by voters). 
 
 
Voter-Approved Park Bond Referendums 
 
Travis County voters have consistently demonstrated their support for improving the county’s park system by passing four park bond 
referendums over the past 15 years: they approved approximately $19 million in 1997, $28.6 million in 2001, $62 in 2005, and $74 
million in 2011 to purchase parkland and build recreational facilities in Travis County parks (an additional $8,332,500 was included in 
2011 bond proposition for acquisition of land conservation easements). 
 
Although bond planning processes start with staff proposing specific bond projects, for each of these elections, a 15-member citizen 
bond advisory committee is appointed by the court to vet the projects through public meetings and hearings, thereby ensuring that 
the projects meet the needs of Travis County residents.  A focus on building metropolitan parks – parks that are at least 200 acres 
and have both developed recreational facilities and preserved natural areas and are sited in the developing parts of unincorporated 
Travis County -- dominated the 1997 and 2001 bond programs.   Although metropolitan park development was a large part of the 
2005 bond package, an initiative to protect natural areas kicked off in the 2005 bond program and continued in the 2011 bond 
program. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    72 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

LAND CONSERVATION 
 
Overview 
 
Findings of both the 2010 Community Survey and Imagine Austin Priority Program Survey, as described above, show that the public 
values “open space”: approximately three-fourths of the respondents identify “availability of parks and open space” as a major 
strength for the city, and are willing to allocate $6 out of $100 to acquire open space; and a “network of parks, trails, and natural 
areas” is a top planning priority. 
 
More evidence of public support for land conservation is demonstrated through community-based planning initiatives, petitions to 
the court, and market behavior.  Highlights of these opinions are as follows: 
 
 Residents in both southwest Travis County and along Wilbarger Creek, in far eastern Travis County, advocate for land 

conservation in those specific regions. 
 Conservation of floodplains along the Colorado River and creeks in eastern Travis County emerge as critical lands to be 

conserved (note: much critical land in western Travis County has already been protected). 
 The development community supports and participates in the implementation of the Balcones Canyon Conservation Plan. 
 Land conservation advocates prompted the 2011 Texas State Legislature to give Texas counties authority to acquire 

conservation easements; Travis County voters, in turn, approved the bond referendum allocating funds for this purpose. 
 
Southwest Travis County Growth Dialogue 
 
In 2004, people living in far southwestern Travis County feared that the character of the region was threatened as market forces 
made the area more attractive to home buyers and growth was poorly planned. This concern was exacerbated when the LCRA Board 
of Directors approved extension of water service to Sweetwater Ranch on SH 71 W. west of Bee Cave.  In response, the Hill Country 
Alliance (HCA) formed to “…raise public awareness and build community support around the need to preserve the heritage of the 
Central Texas Hill Country”.  At the same time, Travis County and the LCRA co-sponsored the Southwest Travis County Growth 
Dialogue (SWGD) to facilitate discussions with concerned citizens.  The SWGD subsequently issued its report, recommending 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    73 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

preservation of 6,000 acres through the “…combined initiatives for open space preservation, historic ranch land conservation…” and 
conservation developments.  The SWGD also prompted the development and adoption by the county of the Conservation 
Development Ordinance, which is applicable to the entire county.  Detailed recommendations of the SWGD are provided in the 
SOUTHWEST TRAVIS COUNTY GROWTH DIALOG, Advisory Panel Final Report, May 31, 2005. 
 
The Travis County Greenprint for Growth 
 
In 2005, The Trust for Public Land (TPL) undertook, with technical assistance from Travis County, City of Austin, Capital Area Planning 
Councils of Government (CAPCOG), and the University of Texas, a comprehensive study to systematically identify land conservation 
priorities in Travis County.  The Travis County Greenprint for Growth was developed using a GIS process that incorporates 
community values into the spatial analysis of high conservation priorities.  The process consisted of collecting the best available GIS 
data about natural and cultural conditions in the county, setting and weighting prioritization criteria, and mapping of high priority 
lands.  TPL worked closely with a stakeholder group comprised of citizens, advocates, and civic and business leaders throughout the 
process.  Based on their input, the following were set as the criteria for prioritizing conservation needs: a) protecting water quality 
and supply, b) providing recreational opportunities, c) protecting sensitive and rare environmental features, and d) protecting 
cultural resources.  As can be seen in Figure 16, the floodplains of the Colorado River and its tributaries emerged as the highest land 
conservation priorities.  Much of the land prioritized for conservation in western Travis County – such as endangered species habitat 
– has already been preserved. 
  
Willbarger Creek Conservation Alliance 
 
The Willbarger Creek Conservation Alliance (WCCA) formed in 2011 for the purpose of “conserving cultural heritage and sustaining 
ecosystem services in the Wilbarger Creek watershed”.  They are particularly concerned with conserving farms and ranches in an 
area of prime agricultural soils, protecting the heritage of the historically African-American Littig community, and preserving scenic 
views and natural functions of the land relative to flood control, wildlife habitat, erosion control, water quality, and riparian and 
upland ecosystems in an approximately 2100-acre area in far eastern Travis County. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    74 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

1

3

2

4

Travis County GreenprintTravis County Greenprint Figure 16 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    75 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

2011 Legislative Action 
 
WCCA’s first project was the conservation of a 287-acre ranch on Wilbarger Creek funded through a landowner donation, grant from 
the USDA Natural Resources and Conservation Services’ Farm and Ranchland Protection Program, and public-private participation.  It 
is notable because the landowner’s request for county participation spurred the 2011 Texas State Legislature – at Travis County’s 
behest -- to grant counties authority to purchase conservation easements.  Travis County agreed to participate in this conservation 
project as a co-holder of the easement following the granting of this authority. 
 
2011 Voter-Approved Land Conservation Referendum 
 
While the initial request for county participation was made by one landowner, the 2011 Citizen Bond Advisory Committee (CBAC) -- 
charged with recommending a community-vetted bond package to the Travis County Commissioners Court -- heard strong support 
for a county-initiated land conservation program at the public meetings they held throughout the county in mid-2011.   With its 
newly acquired legislative authority and CBAC’s recommendation to fund a land conservation easement program, Travis County 
Commissioners allocated $8.3 million of the 2011 park bond package to this purpose.  Voters approved the park bond package in 
November 2011.   
 
Balcones Canyonland Conservation Plan: A Win-Win Situation 
 
In 1973, the United States Congress passed the Endangered Species Act (ESA). While this act protected species, it increasingly set up 
conflicts between environmental protection agencies and landowners and resulted in increased restrictions on landowners and 
concerns for economic development. Lawmakers responded to the situation by amending section 10 of the ESA in 1982 to authorize 
the "incidental take" of a species following the creation of a Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP).  An HCP requires study of what 
impacts an activity will have on a species and their habitat and then lays out a strategy for minimizing and mitigating that 
disturbance. An HCP accompanies a request for an incidental take permit. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    76 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

 

In 1996, Travis County and the City of Austin were jointly issued a regional permit from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service that allows 
“incidental take” of eight locally occurring, federally-listed, endangered species under Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the Endangered Species 
Act (“Take” includes both killing, harassing, or harming an endangered species including the removal of occupied endangered 
species habitat or species displacement due to development of habitat areas).  It was the first multi-species, regional permit issued 
in the nation and is based on the agreement with Permit Holders that they would implement the Balcones Canyonlands 
Conservation Plan (BCCP) which requires, in part, assembling a minimum of 30,428 acres of endangered species habitat in western 
Travis County in the Balcones Canyonlands Preserve (BCP) to protect habitat for two endangered bird species, six karsts (cave) 
invertebrates, and twenty-seven species of concern (including two rare plants and twenty-five karst species) by 2016.   This is being 
accomplished in partnership with the Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA), The Nature Conservancy, and the Travis Audubon 
Society.  
 
By participating in the BCCP, private landowners are provided a streamlined method of mitigating for “take” of endangered species 
habitat and do not have to pursue their own 10(a) permit with the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service; they are able to develop land within 
the Permit area without further endangered species restrictions.  To date, the Permit Holders have processed 660 Habitat 
Determination Applications with landowners, and have issued 246 Participation Certificates to landowners allowing for 11,856 acres 
of endangered species habitat in Western Travis County to be “taken” and mitigated under the Permit.  In 2005, the Home Builders 
Association of Greater Austin called the BCCP a “win-win situation for both developers and endangered species by establishing (1) a 
habitat preserve, and (2) the ability of developers to pay into the BCCP in return for development rights elsewhere.” 
 

WATER RESOURCES 
 
Overview 
 
Public opinion about water resources is based on two particular cases in which residents petitioned the county to take greater action 
to protect water resources. and a stakeholder forum assembled by the county to address water issues.  Findings are as follows: 
 
 Residents of Lick Creek in southwestern Travis County petitioned the court to take greater regulatory action regarding a 

problem plagued detention pond. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Background Report\PAGE_11_25_14.doc                                   77 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 Residents near existing and proposed aggregate mining operations in eastern Travis County, near the Colorado River, 
petitioned the court to not permit the operations. 

 
Lick Creek 
 
In June, 2004, the Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA) shut down construction of a master-planned community off SHWY 71 in 
western Travis County.  For nearly a year, residents along Lick Creek watched as sediment from a “problem plagued” detention pond 
and dam at the headwaters of the east fork of Lick Creek, darkened creek water.   Although primary regulatory responsibility fell to 
the LCRA and Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), residents were surprised to learn, as they lobbied the county for 
help, that counties have little regulatory control on developments.  And although the county could – and did – issue violation notices 
for silt-containment failures, it had more limited enforcement powers at that time. 
 
Aggregate Mining 
 
As described above, residents living close to the proposed Hornsby Bend sand and gravel mining operation objected to its permitting 
on the basis of it being incompatible with nearby residential land use.   They were concerned, however, with the impact of 
excavations on groundwater wells and lobbied the court to not approve the permit for this reason as well.  Whereas the surface 
geology of the project area, consisting of alluvium and fluviatile terrace deposits with layers of clay, silt, sand, and gravel lain down 
within the floodplain of the ancestral Colorado River, makes it attractive for mining, it is also, as an alluvial aquifer, a plentiful supply 
of groundwater. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    78 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

TRANSPORTATION 
 
Overview 
 
In the last 5 years, many surveys and forums have been completed to gauge transportation preferences and values within the 
Central Texas region. This type of public participation has been the most common tool used to identify community values used in 
guiding the development of transportation planning documents.  It provides insight into what is valuable or preferable to a 
community and is used to articulate the framework to guide the plan and any proposed improvements to the transportation system.  
In this region, many of the identified regional values are long-standing and have been consistently identified during the region’s high 
growth rate over the last 20 years.  However, more recent surveys show new values or values that have not been as accepted within 
the region are becoming more identifiable and recognized as viable solutions to area concerns.  These values have emerged as 
changes to how transportation services and improvements are or are not being provided within the region and as fuel costs continue 
to rise. 
 
“Relief of congestion” continues to be a major concern for most residents within the region.  This value is demonstrated most 
recently in the release of the 2010 Urban Mobility Report by the Texas Transportation Institute (TTI) for the Austin Metro area.  The 
report shows that congestion continues to be a major challenge with too little progress being made to ensure that the future 
transportation system can keep up with future job growth.   
 
Public comment views congestion as a major concern for the area; additional concerns attributable to congestion can also be 
identified.  Congestion in the region can reduce quality of life, impact public safety, and an area’s economic vitality.   Some 
associated impacts are: 
 

• Poor air quality can result from idling and slow-moving vehicles. 
• Economic impacts associated with rising costs from business deliveries and shipments stuck in traffic. 
• Commuter frustration with constant delays and increasing travel times. 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    79 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

While congestion concerns stay constant, responses to how the region should work towards reducing congestion have begun to 
change.  Previously, “adding capacity” was the popular solution.  Now, more opportunities for mobility options are viewed by the 
public as a more responsible solution to the problem.  Public views are shifting to include providing for more choice in transportation 
modes and new mobility options.  More and more, the idea that congestion relief will not occur through the widening of roadways 
for single occupancy vehicles are being voiced.  Views now include that improvements in mobility will only occur through a multi-
modal transportation system. While the views of adding more capacity to the transportation network remain, desires for additional 
and more efficient transit alternatives, new modes such as commuter and urban rail, and new development patterns that provide 
for walkable and transit oriented development are being expressed.  Finally, efficiency in the provision of these alternatives is being 
voiced not only in the operation and management of the transportation network, but through more responsible financing of 
projects, ones that leverage multi-modal opportunities. 
 
Other opinions on transportation are brought forward through discussions with the public at Commissioners Court and at regional 
planning meetings such as the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board meetings. 
 
 
CAMPO Public Participation Surveys 
 
The Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) has developed many surveys to measure local values and preferences 
in transportation especially during the update of the region’s long range transportation plan adopted in May 2010.  Two main 
surveys used in the plan’s development were Round 1 and Round 2 public participation surveys. 
 
CAMPO 2035 Plan Round 1 Public Involvement  
As part of its planning effort in the development of the CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan (adopted May 24, 2010), CAMPO 
staff developed a survey to identify the region’s key transportation challenges and asked how transportation funding should be 
allocated in the region.  The survey was completed in March 2009 and approximately 1,200 surveys were received.   
 
Question 1 asked respondents whether they agreed with a list of regional challenges (created by CAMPO staff) and to add additional 
challenges they felt were left off the list.  Sixty five percent of the responses agreed that the following were the key regional 
challenges:   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    80 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
• continued population growth  
• population growing older  
• economic instability  
• infrastructure aging  
• congestion and system reliability  
• gas tax revenues not keeping up with inflation  
• project costs increasing  
• energy and fuel costs increasing  
• preserving air quality  
• climate change  
• preserving our environment and quality of life  
• safety and security of the transportation system  
• low-density development patterns (may be transportation in-efficient) 

 
Additional challenges from Question 1 found the following important views within the region: 
 
Importance of Providing for Mobility Choices, Multimodal Opportunities “Overall, comments expressed preference for a 
multimodal transportation system that offers choice and balance for the region. Among the most common interests were rail 
service, and enhanced bus services, resource protection, maintaining existing infrastructure, and reaching system 
affordability.”  
 
Better and Enhanced Transit Service  
“Respondents voiced that more transit services should be provided, whether through newly planned services or enhanced 
services from better coordinated efforts among existing transit providers.  Several requests for reliable transit connections 
between rural, suburban, and urban communities were made, and respondents expressed interest in creating better 
connections for commuters from periphery and surrounding communities to Austin.”  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    81 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Land Use and Transportation Connection   
Interest in transit-oriented development and land-use transportation planning integration region-wide was identified.  
 
No to new Tolls and Tolling Existing Roadways 
Survey found that residents prefer that policy makers not create additional toll roads or impose tolls on existing roadways.  
 

Congestion Reduction, Connectivity, and Safety Concerns Remain Important to Region   
“On the region’s major roadways, congestion was reported, and safety concerns were voiced. Respondents asked that 
CAMPO properly plan for freight travel and minimize safety hazards that freight travel may create. Maintaining aging 
infrastructure and reducing levels of congestion were wide-spread concerns. Also, comments reflected the community’s 
desire to create adequate connections among the region’s major roadways and provide better connections between the 
eastern and western portions of the region.”  
 

In Question 2, the importance of providing additional and improved mobility choices is shown.  The two most popular transportation 
improvements where residents think funding should be allocated relate to rail and transit.  These ranked above adding capacity and 
building new roadways.   The results were as follows: 

Question 2: If you had a dollar to spend toward transportation improvements between now and the year 2035, how would you 
spend it? Allocate 0-100¢ toward each of the following activities. Total sums to 100¢.  

Responses: 
• Build new passenger rail lines- 20¢ 
• Implement new transit routes and improve bus service- 14¢ 
• Add lanes to existing roadways- 12¢ 
• Make safety and operational improvements to the existing transportation system- 11¢  
• Improve maintenance of existing transportation system- 11¢ 
• Construct bicycle lanes and sidewalks- 10¢ 
• Build new freeways- 8¢ 
• Build new arterial roadways- 7¢ 
• Add high-occupancy vehicle or other managed lanes to highways- 7¢ 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    82 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

CAMPO 2035 Plan Round 2 Public Involvement  
CAMPO staff developed a public input survey for Round 2 to receive comments on transportation priorities, growth preferences, and 
prioritization of projects. Since the survey was an open survey, it is not considered a representative survey.  Approximately 4,100 
responses were received during September - October 2009.  Results from this survey show that the region would accept a change in 
how future growth was being forecasted through the CAMPO Centers Concept of higher density, mixed use centers around the 
region. 
 

Question 1: Please indicate how important each of the following is to you regarding the development of the regional 
transportation system.   Respondents were asked to rank using Less Important, Moderately Important, or Very Important (see 
Figure 17). 

Figure 17 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    83 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 Question 2: Which of the following statements best describes your opinion?  
Respondents were asked to choose among three basic land use and transportation concepts, or define an “other” recommendation 
(see Figure 18).  

• The region should put in place policies to encourage more growth in mixed use development centers throughout the region, 
and transportation system investments should be made to support development of these centers.  

• Growth trends should continue in the region and transportation system investments should be made according to the 
location of current and future growth.  

• Past growth trends should continue in the region and no major projects should be added to the regional transportation 
system. Available funding should be used to support improved operation and maintenance of the existing system instead.  

 
Figure 18 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    84 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Question 3: How should CAMPO prioritize regional transportation system projects over the next 10-30 years?  
Please rank the following in order of importance to you, with 1 being most important, and 5 being least important (see Figure 19). 

  
Figure 19 

  
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    85 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

City of Austin Strategic Mobility Plan (ASMP) Community Objectives (April 2010) 
 
In the development of the City of Austin’s Strategic Mobility Plan (Spring, Summer 2010) that lead to a voter approved $85 million 
Mobility Bond election in November 2010, City staff developed a survey to help rank a set of community values that were used in 
the ASMP Project Prioritization Process.  Staff developed the eight values from previous work used in the CAMPO 2035 planning 
process, Envision Central Texas, and the US Department of Transportation’s new principles for livability.  Through forums and an on-
line survey, the eight criteria were ranked with efficiency, regional integration and mobility choices receiving just over 50%. 
 

• Efficiency  19% 
• Regional Integration  18% 
• Mobility Choices  14% 
• Sustainable Growth  12% 
• Environmental Stewardship  11% 
• Investment and Economic Development  10% 
• Safety  9% 
• Neighborhood Connectivity  7% 

 
Community Mobility Forums (February 2010) 
Community Forums during February and March 2010, participants were asked to identify which four of eight community objectives 
were most important to them.  The results were as follows: 

• Mobility Choices (172) Rank 1 
• Sustainable Growth  (140) Rank 2 
• Regional Integration  (126) Rank 3 
• Efficiency   (110) Rank 4 
• Safety  (96) Rank 5 
• Investment and Economic Development  (81) Rank 6 
• Environmental Stewardship  (80) Rank 7 
• Neighborhood Connectivity  (63) Rank 8 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    86 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Online Survey (March 2010) 
Question:  You have $40 to spend.  Look at the following eight statements and indicate how much of your $40 you’d spend to 
achieve each of these objectives.  You can spend $40 on one, $5 on each, or any other combination you choose, but you must spend 
all $40.   

• Efficiency  $8.02 
• Regional Integration  $7.28 
• Mobility Choices  $5.16 
• Investment and Economic Development  $4.59 
• Sustainable Growth  $4.58 
• Environmental Stewardship  $4.27 
• Safety  $3.16 
• Neighborhood Connectivity  $2.91 

 
CAMPO /Central Texas Sustainability Indicators Project 
 
Since 2000, the Central Texas Sustainability Indicators project has been measuring sustainability indicators where there is no 
adequate or publically available data.  In 2008 and 2010, CAMPO collaborated with CTSIP to add transportation related survey 
questions.  Two surveys have been completed, 2008 and 2010.  CAMPO plans on continuing to ask transportation questions to 
measure travel data, and receive input on values within the region. 
 
CAMPO /Central Texas Sustainability Indicators Project 2008 Community Survey 
In 2008, 2,392 surveys were completed for the six-county region which includes the five County CAMPO region plus Burnet County.  
Of the transportation questions asked, two questions examine the values and preferences of persons within Central Texas.   
 
In Question 1, concerning alternatives to driving, riding commuter rail or train was the most favored alternative to driving followed 
by carpooling and riding the bus.  The least favorite alternative was walking, followed by riding a bike (see Figure 20). 
 
Results of the survey are as follows: 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    87 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Figure 20:  Willingness to Use Alternatives to Driving 

 
 
In the following question, a mixture of transportation alternatives is shown to be either “very important” or “somewhat important” 
within the region with most alternatives receiving around 60-69 % response in those categories except for “more toll roads” which 
showed a strong negative opinion as an alternative for the region (see Figure 21). 
 
Results of the survey are follows: 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    88 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Figure 21:  Importance of Transportation Modes 
 

 
Surveys on Environmental Justice Populations 
 
2008 Toll Road Opinion Survey “An Examination of Use and Opinion for Targeted Communities in the Austin Metropolitan Area” 
The first survey, 2008 Toll Road Opinion Survey, was conducted by the Texas Transportation Institute.  The purpose of the survey 
was to assess the use of existing toll roads in the Austin area by members of Environmental Justice (EJ) communities.  EJ 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    89 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

communities are defined as traditionally under-represented groups made up of racial and ethnic minorities and low income 
individuals and families.  This survey provided input into the CAMPO 2035 plan update.  In short, the survey found that 
disadvantaged communities do not have a disproportionate reaction to existing toll roads, and have the same negative opinion 
regarding new toll roads as do other segments of the region. 
 
Summary of Results from the Report: 

• “Respondents use toll roads to the same extent as all regional travelers. 
• Respondents were more likely to use transit and use it frequently. Almost 20 percent of all Core (EJ) respondents claim to use 

transit once a week or more. 
• Respondents are more likely to use toll roads for non-discretionary trips, with the primary reasons for using the toll roads are 

congestion avoidance and convenience for trip making. 
• Respondents were more likely not to use toll roads because they were not convenient (alternate routes provided easier ways 

to reach their destinations).  
• Respondents perceived toll roads as less congested and saving time. 
• As to raising new revenues, respondents perceived tolling as unfavorable, but increasing gas taxes were even more 

unfavorable.” 
 
Transportation Needs Survey for Environmental Justice Populations in the CAMPO Area - July 2008 
Another survey was conducted on behalf of the Environmental Justice Workgroup.  The survey results were derived from 734 
completed surveys of persons within EJ areas.  The survey was offered in English and Spanish.   
 
Summary of results: 
Top 3 concerns:  

• Existing roadway conditions 
• Not enough bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
• Cost of gas or diesel 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    90 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

“Not surprisingly, the cost of gas and diesel was selected by the most people as their primary transportation concern. Lack of bicycle 
and pedestrian facilities, existing roadway conditions and transit routes were also identified by many people as major transportation 
concerns.” 
 
Top 3 safety issues: 

• Not enough sidewalks 
• Not enough bicycle lanes 
• Speeding in your neighborhood 

 
“Insufficient sidewalks and bicycle lanes and neighborhood speeding were the top safety concerns identified during the survey on 
both the English and Spanish surveys. Additionally, respondents on the Spanish survey ranked school crossings as a main 
transportation safety concern.” 
  
Top 3 solutions to Areas Transportation Problems: 

• More transit options 
• More bicycle lanes 
• More sidewalks 

 
“The number one solution identified was increasing transit options. Nearly 60 percent of participants identified this solution. 
Participants were asked to rank their top five solutions.  Increasing the number of roads, making improvements to existing local 
roads, more bicycle lanes, and increasing the number of buses were all highly ranked as solutions to the CAMPO area’s 
transportation problems.” 
 
Envision Central Texas Infrastructure Forum 
 
In March, 2010, Envision Central Texas (ECT) convened approximately 250 Central Texans from the public, private and civic sectors 
to discuss the challenges facing our region in providing efficient and coordinated infrastructure in a time of limited resources. 
Leaders and subject-matter experts from public sector entities and private firms shared their knowledge and insights on the issues 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    91 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

through a series of presentations and panel discussions. Attendees at the Forum participated in table discussions and a real-time 
polling process through which they provided their input on a series of questions about the topics. 
 
Results of Interactive Poll: The audience participants voted on what they perceived to be the two most important challenges to 
regional coordination. The results of interactive polling are shown below. (# of Respondents: 226) 
 
Challenges to Coordination… (Top two)       Responses 
Lack of common goals and objectives     107  23% 
Thinking local rather than regional        76   17% 
Conflicting / competing funding priorities       76  17% 
Political will           67   15% 
Lack of regional authority          43   10% 
Different priorities between urban and rural      46   10% 
Lack of education on regional issues         37    8% 

Totals 452  100% 
 
Results of Interactive Poll: The audience participants voted on what they perceived to be the two most important consequences if 
we do nothing different in the future. The results of interactive polling are shown below. (# of Respondents: 225) 
 
Consequences for our Region... (Top two)       Responses 
Declining quality of life       135  30% 
Declining economic vitality         92   20% 
Unsustainable growth          85   19% 
Increased cost of infrastructure        61  14% 
Increased taxes          34     7% 
Silos remain / become more entrenched        22     5% 
Chaos             21     5% 

Totals   450 100% 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    92 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
Results of Interactive Poll: The audience participants voted on what they perceived to be the two most important near-term tools 
needed to improve regional coordination of infrastructure. The results of interactive polling are shown below.  
 
 
Near-Term Tools Needed... (Multiple choice - top two)     Responses 
Legislative reform to permit local funding       98  27% 
More intergovernmental collaboration       73  20%  
County land use authority         73  20% 
Regional comprehensive plan        64  17% 
Implement optional transportation modes      31    8% 
Inventory of plans          30    8% 
 

Totals   369 100% 
 
2011 Bond  
Part of Travis County’s Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) responsibilities are to ensure that available 
transportation funding is allocated to address short-range and long-range prioritized needs.   A main product of that planning 
process is the development of the County’s long-range transportation plan and development of the County’s roadway capital 
improvement projects.  Travis County is a member of the area’s metropolitan planning organization, Capital Area Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (CAMPO), along with other key transportation stakeholders.  The main transportation function of the MPO 
and member jurisdictions is the development of the Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) and the Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP).  The area’s current long-range transportation plan and the plan that is adopted by Travis County is known as the 
CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan.  This document is updated every five years and provides information on what arterial 
roadway projects are expected to be completed in the next 25 years.  The long range plan is a resource that provides identification 
of future transportation needs.   

Traditionally, the County has used voter approved general obligation bond elections to fund large investments into its transportation 
system (see Figure 22).  The most recent bond election occurred in November 2011.  In February 2011, the Travis County 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    93 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

Commissioners Court appointed a 15-member Citizens Bond Advisory Committee (CBAC) to help with determining whether an 
election was needed, and if so, what would be a potential capital improvement budget and potential projects.  The CBAC worked 
with County staff to develop a preliminary list of projects that were presented at six public meetings held throughout the County 
during June 2011.  After receiving public comment, the CBAC presented their recommendations to the Commissioners Court in July 
2011.  In August 2011, the Commissioners Court approved holding a November 2011 bond election and a list of projects were put 
forward in two Propositions totaling $214,945,000.  Proposition One was formed to include roadway, drainage, bridge and 
bike/pedestrian projects and totaled $132,840,000.  Over $400 Million of mobility improvements have been approved by voters 
since 1997.  Below are the funding totals for the last five bond elections with the 2011 bond election showing the second highest 
amount of funding for mobility improvements since 1997.  

 Figure 22:  Voter Approved Transportation Bond Referendums (1997-2011) (Roads, Bridges, Right-of-Way, Sidewalks/Trails) 

1997   $45.2 Million 
2000   $28.0 Million 
2001   $153.2 Million 
2005   $62.8 Million 
2011    $132.8 Million 
Total:  $422.0 Million 
 

 Bicycle Task Force 
In March 2011 Travis County Commissioners Court approved the formation of a Bicycle Task Force that included representatives 
from TXDOT, the City of Austin, the bicycle community, TNR and others to address bicycle safety on Travis County roads in the 
unincorporated area.   State law allows that bicyclists may ride on public roadways; however, the condition of some roads can make 
bicycling difficult.  As Travis County’s population continues to grow, more people are bicycling and using rural roads for recreation 
and commuting.  However, funding for roadway construction and maintenance is declining thereby increasing risks for bicyclists.  
The Task Force was charged to:   

• Develop materials and methods to educate the public, cyclists, and elected officials about the issues of cycling on rural roads. 
• The cycling community can report bicycle obstacles and potential hazards to jurisdictions for quicker response and better 

planning. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    94 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

• Build partnerships between cyclists and elected officials and agency staff. 
 
At the same time this group was created, the Citizens Bond Advisory Committee was formed by the Commissioners Court to 
investigate whether to hold a capital improvement bond election, and if so, recommend a size and a draft list of proposed projects 
for the Courts consideration.  The Task Force took this opportunity to ask for funding to help in providing for safer roadways for the 
bicycling community.  In November 2011, voters approved $3,333,000 to make improvements for bicycle safety.  Currently, the 
group is going to compare their local use maps with CAMPO 2035 Priority Bicycle Corridors to come up with a list of priority projects.   
A portion of the funds allocated to Bicycle Safety may be used to help in the planning for project identification.   
 
Views on Transportation Funding 
 
INADEQUATE TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING SOURCES 
County transportation improvements have traditionally been provided by developer participation through the subdivision platting 
process and tax financed voter approved bond funding.  With unprecedented population growth continuing within the County, both 
are viewed as inadequate sources to fund comprehensive regional transportation improvements.  Competing budgets and 
inadequate funding sources have required the County to seek alternative ways to fund new transportation infrastructure.    
 
Currently, through the County’s subdivision platting process, the private sector is required to provide for localized arterial 
improvements within or abutting (boundary street) their proposed subdivisions.  Off-site improvements to intersections and 
additional lanes have been funded by the private sector when identified as directly related to the traffic generated from the 
subdivision.  Regional transportation needs have relied on taxpayer funded revenue (bond funds) to fund major transportation 
improvements.   Travis County staff views these processes as localized piecemeal approaches (development by development) with 
the burden of larger, regional, more costly projects being funded by the public through tax revenues and not from the developments 
that generate the additional traffic.  The County seeks to shift the cost of providing transportation capital improvements from the 
taxpayer to new development generating the demand for the improvements.   
 
The Commissioners Court has discussed the need for a regional solution to deal with large development projects that place tens of 
thousands of vehicle trips on an existing roadway network that doesn't have the capacity to accommodate future traffic at an 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    95 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

acceptable level of service.  The following are alternative mechanisms the County has or may use to finance future transportation 
projects: 
 
Developers Pay Their Share Under a Regional Phasing Agreement 
Historically, the main way of financing road improvements necessitated by development is for the developer of a large tract of land, 
as a condition of preliminary plan approval by the County, to enter into a phasing agreement with the County requiring the 
developer to improve the arterials providing access to the project as individual plats are approved for each phase of the project. The 
developer pays for 100% of the improvements by obtaining a loan and/or equity contribution from private sources.  
 
The Public- Private Partnerships (P3’s) under the 2005 and 2011 bonds involved large tracts and built on this historical model.  As 
would have happened under a phasing agreement, the developer obtained private capital to pay to build two new lanes of road.  
The County used bond funds to pay the developer to build a third and fourth lane.  P3s where the developer has paid its share using 
private financing include Elroy Road, Scofield Ridge Parkway, Wells Branch Parkway, and Heatherwilde Boulevard. 
 
Another way phasing agreements can be used to finance arterial improvements is for the developer to pay to the County a fixed sum 
of money each time a lot in the project is platted or sold. Once enough money is deposited or collected, the County can use it to pay 
for improving the arterials necessitated by the development projects. This technique allows the developer to avoid some of the cost 
or difficulty of raising private capital. 
 
Developers Pay Their Share Using a District 
Another mechanism developers in Travis County are currently using to finance arterial improvements necessitated by their projects 
is to create a special district that generates revenue to pay those costs by levying ad valorem taxes or special assessments on the 
land owners who benefit most from the arterials. Three basic types of special districts are currently being used: road districts, 
municipal utility districts, and public improvement districts.  
 

County Road Districts - State law allows the Commissioners Court to create a road district without the consent of landowners 
in the district. However, Chapter 83, Travis County Code, provides that the Commissioners Court will consider creation of a 
road district only upon application of a landowner.  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    96 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

The governing body of a road district is the Commissioners Court, but the district itself is a political subdivision separate from 
the county. The district may levy an ad valorem tax and use the proceeds to issue bonds to purchase or construct an arterial 
or other road. However, issuance of bonds must be approved at an election of all landowners in the district.  
 
Travis County’s most recent use of a road district to pay for arterial improvements was the creation of the Travis County Bee 
Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) in 2007. The district issued bonds to pay for Galleria Parkway, which linked RR 2244 and RR 
620 and was necessitated by construction of the Hill Country Galleria Mall. 
 
Municipal Utility Districts (MUD) and Other Special Districts - Like a county road district, MUDs, water control and 
improvements districts (WCID), and various other special districts are independent political subdivisions. However, MUDs 
and special districts have their own governing board.  
 
Only the Texas Legislature can give a MUD or other special district the power to levy an ad valorem tax and use the proceeds 
to issue bonds to construct roads.  The Legislature has authorized the following special districts in Travis County to pay for 
road construction: Pilot Knob MUD (Easton), Rio de Vida Planning and Improvement District No. 1, Travis-Creedmore MUD, 
Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17, and Southeast Travis County MUD (Brookfield Residential).  
 
Brookfield Residential has proposed using the Southeast Travis County MUD to pay for arterial improvements to both William 
Cannon Drive and Slaughter Lane under a P3 agreement with Travis County using 2011 bonds.  
 
Public Improvement Districts (PID) - Unlike county road districts, MUDs, and other special districts, PIDs are not independent 
political subdivisions. Rather, PIDs are simply a mechanism a county can use to levy special assessments on a defined group 
of landowners to pay for roads or other public improvements that benefit these landowners more than citizens countywide.  
A county may use the revenue from these assessments to issue bonds to pay for the improvements. Or, instead of issuing 
debt, the county may let the assessments accrue over time until a certain amount has accumulated and then use the accrued 
funds to pay for the improvements.   
 
A county can create a PID only upon petition of (i) the owners of land constituting 50% of the total appraised value of all land 
in the PID, and either (ii) 50% of the total number of land owners in the PID, or (iii) owners of 50% of the land area in the PID. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    97 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan 2035 – Background Report 
Draft – March 14, 2014 

 
Currently, the developers of the Indian Hills project are using PIDs to pay for their share of the cost to construct Decker Lake 
Road under a P3 agreement with Travis County. Travis County is paying its share with 2005 bond funds. The same developers 
are using PIDs to pay their share of the cost to construct Braker Lane through the Whisper Valley project, also under a P3 
agreement in which Travis County is paying its share with 2005 bond funds. 
 

Funding of Developer Share by Tax Increment Financing by the County 
Another mechanism raised by developer stakeholders in the stakeholder meetings is for the Commissioners Court to divert the 
incremental increase in ad valorem tax revenue from growth in the area in question away from general county services. Instead, it 
would be used to pay for improvement of the arterials necessitated by the five large development projects in the area. Travis County 
has never done this before. 
 
Issues 
Developers are reluctant to commit to any funding mechanism that would not apply equally to all developers who benefit from the 
project. They believe that, unless all developers who they believe benefit from the roads commit to the funding mechanism, it 
unfairly creates a competitive advantage or disadvantage among them.    
 
Financing mechanisms tied to per lot fees under a regional phasing agreement or the collection of PID assessments over time, can 
take years to accumulate sufficient funds to carry out a project. MUD’s can make improvements faster; however, MUD’s require 
legislative action and risk not passing. 
 
The most significant downside of tax increment financing are the diversion of revenue away from basic County services and the 
uncertainty that property values will increase as projected and accumulate sufficient funds to carry out a project. 
 
Rough Proportionality 
Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) staff and the City of Austin continue to work on a mechanism that derives what a 
subdivision’s proportionate share is (rough proportionality) of the cost of the future regional transportation system thereby making 
growth pay for attributable costs of the needed transportation infrastructure.  The County identifies a “rough proportionality” 
between the burden a subdivision places on the transportation system and the cost of the burden to system.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\Comp Plan 2035\1 WENDY\Background Report\Background_3_14_14\ALL_3_14_14.doc                                    98 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



  
 

  
  
 

 

APPENDIX A: Lands Conserved in Unincorporated Travis County 

A-1 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



APPENDIX B: IMAGINE AUSTIN GROWTH CONCEPT PLAN 

 

B-1 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



APPENDIX C: MUNICIPAL COLLABORATION OPPORTUNITIES  
The following municipal comprehensive plans were reviewed to identify opportunities as of 2012 for collaborating on land, water, 
and transportation issues. Language from each plan is noted in each category followed by comments on Partnerships and County 
Related Initiatives. 

Municipality        Page 

1. Bee Cave Comprehensive Plan……………………………………………………..C-2 
2. Cedar Park Comprehensive Plan…………………………………………………..C-3 
3. Elgin Comprehensive Plan…………………………………………………………….C-4 
4. Imagine Austin Comprehensive Plan…………………………………………….C-6 
5. Jonestown Comprehensive Plan………………………………………………….C-14 
6. Lago Vista Comprehensive Plan…………………………………………………..C-16 
7. Lakeway Comprehensive Plan……………………………………………………..C-17 
8. Leander Comprehensive Plan………………………………………………………C-20 
9. Pflugerville Comprehensive Plan………………………………………………….C-21 
10. Round Rock Comprehensive Plan…………………………………………………C-23 
11. San Leanna Comprehensive Plan………………………………………………….C-25 
12. Volente Comprehensive Plan……………………………………………………….C-25 

  

        C - 1 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Bee Cave Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. It is in the best interest of the City of Bee Cave, to require areas within the ETJ to be annexed prior to development rather than 

after development has occurred. Page 10-5 
2. Establish and/or enhance green space and natural areas along existing floodways and within the 100-year flood plain.  Page 3-8 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Maintain guidelines to ensure the protection of watershed areas, especially the area in and around Little Barton Creek.  Page 3-8 
 
TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 

1. Coordinate land use and roadway decisions within Bee Cave and its ETJ area and with other communities in the vicinity, future 
compatibility problems between roads and adjacent land uses can be minimized. 4-17 

2. The basic major thoroughfare system should be considered as the structuring framework for future neighborhoods and as the 
framework for any redevelopment and rehabilitation of existing areas within the City, as well as neighborhoods located within 
the ETJ. Page 4-24 

        C - 2 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



3. Continued local efforts will be necessary to finance future thoroughfare development and, in some cases, require widening of 
rights-of-way at the time of subdivision platting and development. Page 4-25 

4. The City of Bee Cave should coordinate with TXDOT and other local jurisdictions, such as surrounding communities and Travis 
County, when planning transportation improvements. Page 4-26 

5. Develop a regular proactive program to coordinate with and lobby CAMPO and TXDOT to promote transportation and roadway 
planning, funding, and construction.  Page 10-7 

 
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Coordinating with/lobbying CAMPO and TXDOT to influence roadway planning, funding, and construction. Page 10-4 

 

Cedar Park Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Utilize the current GIS technology to its fullest potential in order to assist City personnel and offer developers and residents 

increased information services. Page 53 
2. Pursue the collection of additional statistical information to assist in tracking the City’s growth, as well as indicating the relative 

success of various policies and initiatives.  Page 53 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
None 
 

        C - 3 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Address the ever increasing commuter traffic volumes through the City. 51 
2. Develop a comprehensive inventory of bicycle routes and sidewalks to formulate a building plan. Page 51 
 
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Strategic Prioritization—“Prime the Pump to put money and resources where the best long-term impact will result. Page 54 
 

Elgin Comprehensive Plan 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
1. Work with regional and national land conservancy organizations, such as the Pines and Prairies Land Trust, and/or the American 

Farmland Trust to hold a community presentation or to meet with farmers and landowners who are interested in learning about 
options for farmland preservation and supporting the tools necessary to preserve the land for family farming and/or ranching. 
Page 153 

Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Accommodating population growth using existing streets and infrastructure rather than needing to extend services to outlying 

areas of the City. Page 35 
2. Protecting the rural landscape by establishing policies to direct annexation and service provision away from agricultural areas. 

Page 35 
3. Work with local farmers and the Texas Department of Agriculture to determine if there is interest and significant benefit in 

establishing an agricultural district to promote active farming and agricultural business.  Page 159 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 

        C - 4 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



None  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
None 
 
TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing, Mid/Long Term 
1. Work with TXDOT and the Counties to examine the intersection improvement locations identified as problem areas as part of the 

Comprehensive Plan effort. Page 158 
2. Taylor Road- Preserving rural character in areas where existing conditions and land use designations do not require the need for 

additional capacity. Page 79 
3. Promoting efforts in providing additional capacity through transit improvements along important arterial corridors, as 

appropriate. Page 79 
 
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Work with regional and national land conservancy organizations, such as the Pines and Prairies Land Trust, and/or the American 

Farmland Trust to hold a community presentation or to meet with farmers and landowners who are interested in learning about 
options for farmland preservation and supporting the tools necessary to preserve the land for family farming and/or ranching. 
Page 153 

 

Imagine Austin Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Use green infrastructure to protect environmentally sensitive areas and integrate nature into the city. 

 
Actions Short Term (1-3yrs) Pages 177-178 
1. Create an integrated green infrastructure plan and ongoing green infrastructure program. 
2. The plan should: 

        C - 5 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



a. Perform an initial inventory and evaluation of existing green infrastructure resources, such as conserved land, the urban 
forest, habitat, trails and bike paths, greenbelts, community gardens, urban farms, parks and recreation areas, and green 
streets. Identify current plans, such as the Travis and Hays County Greenprint plans, networks, and identify gaps.  

b. Develop green infrastructure targets (such as percentage of tree cover, connectivity, or current or anticipated residents 
within walking distance of parks, see Figure 4.11) and priorities for new areas for conservation, parks and open space, green 
streets, and urban trails. 

c. Include a series of interactive maps illustrating the components of the green infrastructure network, along with priority c  
d. Include implementation strategies and approaches to promote interdepartmental, intergovernmental, and interagency 

coordination. 
e. Calculate direct and indirect costs and savings from green infrastructure projects, when compared with traditional “grey” 

infrastructure, including the asset value of ecosystem services and contribution to long-term risk management. 
f. Develop and implement unified, comprehensive land management of all City of Austin lands for integrated environmental 

sustainability, including carbon sequestration, wildlife habitat, water quality and quantity, and education. 
g. Identify a lead to oversee ongoing implementation of the plan and program conservation and restoration areas. 

3. Continue funding support and acquisition of land in the Balcones Canyonlands Preserves and in other environmentally significant 
areas to protect water quality conserve endangered species habitat, and provide open space for passive public use. 

4. Protect farmland and conduct and stimulate research to facilitate growing techniques that minimize water usage and build 
healthy soils accounting for regional climate change. 

5. Identify approaches to track and monitor the costs and savings associated with green infrastructure projects. Solicit research and 
funding partners, such as the University of Texas’ Lady Bird Johnson Wildflower Research Center and the Trust for Public Lands. 

6. Promote Austin's and the surrounding area's green infrastructure by utilizing web-based tools such as maps and other resources. 
Page 213 

7. Create a system for identifying, defining, and mapping environmentally sensitive areas for their protection. Page 222. 
8. Create a green infrastructure program to protect environmentally sensitive areas and integrate nature into the city. Page 222 
9. Collaborate regionally to align conservation and sustainable development regulations and policies to protect environmentally 

sensitive areas that cross political boundaries. Page 222 
10. Encourage designs and building practices that reduce the environmental impact of development and that result in accessible 

green space. Page 222 
11. Identify existing areas with limited access to parks, open space, and trails and create mechanisms to address these gaps (P 223). 
12. Develop regulations and incentives to protect prime farmland such as transferable development rights, farmland trusts, farmland 

mitigation, and conservation easements. Page 223 

        C - 6 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



13. Support local farmers by creating incentives and removing regulatory barriers, offering tailored small business support, and 
creating public information campaigns to promote local food. Page 223 

14. Expand the City of Austin’s acquisition of environmentally significant land, conservation easements, and/or development rights 
for the protection of sensitive areas. Page 223 

15. Develop and implement unified, comprehensive land management of all City of Austin lands for integrated environmental 
sustainability, including carbon sequestration, wildlife habitat, water quality and quantity and education. Page 223 

16. Limit, buffer, or prohibit public access to certain environmentally sensitive areas to maintain their value (i.e. wildlife protection 
and erosion control). Page 225 

17. Expand partnerships between local organizations and the City of Austin to maintain and improve local parks and open spaces. 
Page 225 

18. Restore trees and vegetation along degraded waterways, especially in eastern watersheds. Page 226 
19. Create a trails master plan to ensure connectivity and provide consistency with regional, city and neighborhood-level trail and 

transportation goals to provide pedestrian and bicycle connections between neighborhoods and destinations; incorporate trails 
throughout the city and region; encourage developers to connect to or complete the trail system; and use protected land along 
creeks and floodplains in an environmentally sustainable way. Page 226 

20. Develop multi-disciplinary, cross-jurisdictional planning teams for projects that involve major natural features, such as the 
Colorado River or Onion Creek Greenway. Page 226 

 
County Related Initiatives: 

o Travis County Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan (2006) 
o The Travis County Greenprint for Growth (2006) 
o Concept Plan for the Onion Creek Greenway (2010) 
o 2011 Park Bonds Program (2011) 
o 2011 Conservation Easement Program (2012) 
o Colorado River Corridor Plan (2012) 
o Tri-Party Agreement (TXI, COA, County, TBD) 

 
Create a “Healthy Austin” program Page 187 

 
Actions Short Term (1-3yrs) Page 187 

        C - 7 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1. Create a Healthy Austin Program plan to develop and document program priorities; findings, recommendations, and outcomes 
related to: 
a. Increasing healthy behaviors; 
b. Educating the public and providing better access to information on healthy lifestyles and community health resources; 
c. Expanding access to health care services in underserved populations; 
d. Promoting healthy foods and discouraging unhealthy ones; and 
e. Improving coordination between the Health and Human Services Department, other City of Austin and Travis County 

departments, non-profits, and the community. 
2. Create a healthy community code, including revisions to Austin’s land development ordinances that make it easier to produce 

and access healthy, sustainable food and to lead a more active lifestyle.  
a. Support and expand farm direct programs that link local farmers and food vendors to consumers. 
b. Expand the market for local food producers by connection them to hunger-relief organizations, community institutions, 

restaurants, and retail food markets. 
3. Encourage use of public land for community gardens. 
4. Establish strategies, incentives, or investments in healthful outdoor activities and venues that generate economic benefits to 

local businesses while promoting wellness. Page 221 
5. Identify and map food deserts and provide incentives for full service grocery stores and farmers markets to locate in these 

underserved areas. Page 223 
 

County Related Initiatives: 
o Travis County Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan (2006) 
o Concept Plan for the Onion Creek Greenway (2010) 
o Colorado River Corridor Plan (2012) 
o Onion Creek Farmers Market (TBD) 

 
Develop and maintain household affordability throughout Austin. Page 185 
 
Actions Ongoing and Long Term (3+yrs) Page 185 

        C - 8 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1. Replicate and adopt best practice models for affordable housing in Texas to make state lawmakers aware of the statutory 
barriers that impede household affordability, such as the inability of cities to provide property tax relief to low-income renters 
and the challenges of meeting market demand. 
 

Revise Austin’s development regulations and processes to promote a compact and connected city. 
 
Generally, these actions: 
1. Integrate nature into the city and protect environmental sensitive areas.  
2. Implement a transfer of development rights program to transfer development rights from environmentally sensitive areas to 

areas identified on the growth concept map for new development or redevelopment. 
 

County Related Initiatives: 
o Conservation Development Ordinances (to be revised) 

 
Annexation Page 201  
Annexation is an important tool to guide growth and development and is the only way to expand municipal boundaries. The City of 
Austin uses annexation to apply zoning and development regulations, to protect and expand the tax base, to more efficiently deliver 
municipal services such as public safety and utilities, and to provide these services to developing areas. To be consistent with 
Imagine Austin, provide efficient, equitable, and environmentally sensitive utility services, and coordinate the extension of municipal 
services, the City of Austin should continue to maintain its annexation program. This program should be based on the following 
policies: 
 
1. Annex areas that can be the most economically served with existing and proposed infrastructure and services. 
2. Annex areas that will be provided with municipal services and utilities through coordinated municipal utility and service 

extension plans and the capital improvements program. 
3. Continue to annex major industrial and commercial areas on the periphery of the city.  
4. Use limited purpose annexation in cooperation with landowners to expand environmental, land use, and development 

regulations on land currently in the extraterritorial jurisdictions. 
5. Consider annexing areas served by aging or substandard septic systems where quality degradation is probable or citizens have 

submitted petitions for annexation. 
6. Annex residential areas to broadly distribute the cost of services. 

        C - 9 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



7. Provide City consent to independent utility or improvement districts only where the City is the water and wastewater utility 
provider. The districts must promote sustainable development in accordance with the growth concept map. Proposed districts 
must be financially viable, located entirely within Austin’s extraterritorial jurisdiction, and provide extraordinary public benefits. 

 
WATER RESOURCES 
 
Sustainably manage our water resources. Page 173 
 
Actions Short Term (1-3yrs) Page 173 
1. Enact a new watershed protection ordinance to streamline, expand protection of headwaters and to promote low-impact 

stormwater management strategies, and to reduce capital expenditures required to mitigate water quality problems, erosion, 
and flooding. 

Actions Ongoing and Long Term (3+yrs) Page 174 
1. Participate in state and regional water resources planning, including regional efforts to improve water quality and quantity of the 

Edwards Aquifer. 
2. Develop a regulatory framework to incentivize the use of Low Impact Development (LID) design features such as rainwater 

harvesting, increased permeable surfaces, rain gardens, green roofs, green streets, and natural-looking water quality features 
such as bioswales to manage stormwater. 

3. Create a system for identifying, defining, and mapping environmentally sensitive areas for their protection. Page 222.  
4. Establish regulations, programs, and funding sources to allow offsite, including regional, stormwater detention and water quality 

controls to be used in concert with green infrastructure and low-impact development techniques in areas identified for compact, 
walkable development or redevelopment and identify opportunities for recreational uses and habitat creation or restoration. 
Page 230  

5. Participate in national, state, and local efforts to identify, assess, and reduce emerging contaminants in water, such as 
pharmaceuticals and personal care products. Page 231 

6. Strengthen flood control, erosion, and water quality programs, incentives, regulations, and enforcement to incorporate best 
practices and meet or exceed national standards. Page 231 

 
County Related Initiatives: 

o Travis County Greenway (Park land acquisition and bottomland restoration) 

        C - 10 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



o Water Quantity Availably Rules 
o Water Quality Protection Rules 
o Conservation Development Ordinances (to be revised) 

 
TRANSPORTATION 
Invest in a compact and connected Austin Work Program. Page 170 

 
Actions Short Term (1-3yrs) Page 170 
1. Develop criteria and guidelines for coordinating business recruitment, expansion, and retention to support activity centers and 

corridors, transit, and urban trails plans in line with Imagine Austin and the growth concept map. 
Actions Ongoing and Long Term (3+yrs) Page 174 
1. Work with federal, state, and local public and private agencies, organizations, and businesses to identify potential funding 

sources for partnerships to implement transportation improvements. 
2. Coordinate with Travis County and local school districts to manage infrastructure investments.  
3. Give priority to City of Austin investments to support mixed use, transit, and the creation of compact walkable, and bikeable 

places. (CIP) Page 208 Use incentives and regulations to direct growth to areas consistent with the growth concept map that 
have existing infrastructure capacity including roads, water, wastewater, drainage and schools.  

4. Add Park and Ride Facilities Page 210  
5. Implement first and last mile solutions such as carpooling, vanpools and bicycle and car sharing Page 210 
6. Ensure that the construction, operation, and management of rail, bus rapid transit, local bus systems, and future public 

transportation are integrated and coordinated across City Departments and with our partners such as other local governments, 
agencies and districts. Page 210 

7. Create a network of on and off-street physically separated bicycle and walking routes or trails linking all parts of Austin and the 
region. Page 211 

8. Encourage the relocation of the Missouri-Pacific road freight line from its current alignment through the middle of Austin.  
9. Work with employers to locate their place of business along activity centers and corridors in proximity to residential areas that 

could provide housing for their employees. Page 216 
10. Improve Austin's transportation and economic connections between other major cities in Texas by supporting the construction 

of a high speed rail network. Page 218 

        C - 11 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



11. Collaborate with sponsoring organizations, sponsors, and transportation companies to develop special Event transportation 
plans to mitigate traffic congestion associated with these events. Page 238 

 
County Related Initiatives: 

o Waller Creek TIF 
o Lone Star Rail TIF 
o Transportation, Parks CIP 
o Comprehensive Bike/Pedestrian Plan (to be completed) 
o Thoroughfare Plan (to be completed) 

 
PARTNERSHIPS ACTIONS, Page 201 
1. The City of Austin cannot implement Imagine Austin by itself. It will need to enter into Partnerships with public, private, and non-

profit organizations and develop coalitions with our regional neighbors to address mutual concerns. The City of Austin currently 
has relationships with a number of surrounding local governments and agencies such as Travis County, the Capital Metropolitan 
Transportation Agency, and Central Health. To implement Imagine Austin these relationships may need to be strengthened and 
those with other organizations such as area school districts, colleges, and universities made more firm. For example, to achieve 
the desired land use patterns, transportation improvements, environmental protections, and service coordination within 
Austin’s extraterritorial jurisdiction, coordination with Travis County is essential.  

2. Create a regional planning initiative to encourage local governments in Central Texas to promote a mix of housing and land uses 
for diverse populations and income groups, located near work, shopping, and services. 

3. Preserve and promote iconic and unique Austin facilities and events that attract tourists, convention business, corporate 
relocations, and the recruitment of skilled workers. Page 219 

4. Develop economic development programs and incentives to promote the employment of historically under-employed segments 
of the population. Page 220 

5. Create a regional economic development task force, led by the Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce, that includes the City of 
Austin, nearby municipalities and surrounding counties; the University of Texas, Austin Community College and other area 
institutions of higher learning; area transportation providers such the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Agency, Texas 
Department of Transportation, Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority, and Capital Metropolitan Transportation Agency, 
major Employers and representatives from major industries, and other regional partners to develop a strategic direction for the 
Austin region by (Page 221): 
a. Developing a shared direction for the region; 

        C - 12 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



b. Sharing information between the public and private sector; 
c. Establishing collaborative communication links among regional planning efforts; 
d. Analyzing the impacts of publically-owned land; 
e. Collaborating and co-locating institutional uses; 
f. Attracting and supporting target industries; 
g. Assisting with grant research and writing. 

6. Create a public-private task force between the State of Texas, the City of Austin, Travis County, local universities, the Chamber of 
Commerce, and local industries to invest in research and development and green tech, biotech, high tech, and other emerging 
technologies. 

7. Create a regional task force to address inter-jurisdictional environmental sustainability issues. Page 224 
8. Conduct and maintain a comprehensive existing Austin Fire Department and Austin-Travis County Emergency Management 

Services building condition report to assess the need for remodeling, expansion, replacement, or consolidation of facilities. Page 
227 

9. Develop an integrated emergency mitigation and response plan through coordination with our public and private sector regional 
partners: -Surrounding municipalities and counties… Page 227 

10. Improve communication between City of Austin departments, as well as other local governments and school districts, regarding 
future facility planning to ensure that opportunities for shared facilities are discussed at the earliest stage of the planning 
process. Page 227 

11. Continue expansion of public safety regional service delivery model. This may be accomplished though Interlocal agreements 
with surrounding municipalities and agencies or a confederation or consolidation of public safety agency operations. Page 227 

12. Collaborate with counties, the hospital district, and school districts to dedicate funding to mental health & substance abuse 
programming. Page 231 

 
County Related Initiatives: 

o Waller Creek TIF 
o Lone Star Rail TIF 
o Transportation, Parks CIP 
o Comprehensive Bike/Pedestrian Plan (to be completed) 
o Thoroughfare Plan (to be completed) 
o Greenway Development (working with PARD) 

 

        C - 13 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Jonestown Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Maintain a continuous and coordinated planning process and dialogue that involves citizens, stakeholders, the City Council, 

Planning and Zoning Commission, city departments, and other local entities in deliberations concerning policy development and 
decision-making.  Page 21 

2. A transitioning of compatible land uses is encouraged in the ETJ. As areas become incorporated, zoning decisions should be 
cognizant of future adjacent uses, with the intent of protecting property values. Page 23 

3. Begin discussions and coordination with the Travis County Emergency Services District #1, which provides fire services and 
Austin/Travis County EMS, which provides emergency medical services, to determine optimum locations for future stations. Page 
23-24 

4. Explore partnerships with Travis County, Pedernales Electric Cooperative, and the Lower Colorado River Authority in order to 
leverage resources for expanded park, recreation, and open space development/preservation. Page 30 

 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. It is in the City’s long-term interest to work toward and incrementally developed community wastewater service system in order 

to protect the environment and to achieve development in desired areas.  Page 22 
2. Coordinate with FEMA, the LCRA, Travis County and private development in studying the drainage systems, to minimize 

duplication of efforts and individual entity costs. Page 23 
3. Actively pursue the acquisition of flood-prone properties. Page 23 
 

        C - 14 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
None 
  
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Intergovernmental cooperation can be another tool to work on implementation of the Goals, Policies, and Programs contained in 

this Plan. Page 43 
 

Lago Vista Comprehensive Plan 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Protect Lago Vista's environment by acquiring or protecting significant drainageways, maintaining healthy forests and protecting 

wildlife and natural resources. Page 5 of updated plan 
2. Develop a comprehensive drainage plan and ensure that it adequately addresses decreasing flood damage and protection of the 

environment. . Page 5 of updated plan 
3. Consider annexation for the purpose of encouraging nonresidential development and increasing the tax base. Page 9 of updated 

plan 
4. Alleviate the occurrence of substandard and/or deteriorated development within the City and its extraterritorial jurisdiction 

through the use of regular, consistent development review and code enforcement practices. Page 10 of updated plan 
5. Alleviate the occurrence of substandard and/or deteriorated development within the City and its ETJ through the use of regular, 

consistent development review and code enforcement practices. Page 12 of updated plan 
6. Fully develop existing hiking trails and scenic viewing trails throughout the community. Consider possibly linking these trails to 

the Balcones Canyonlands National Wildlife Refuge. Page 16 of updated plan 
7. Ensuring annexations are consistent with the Plan.  Page 18 of updated plan 
 

        C - 15 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



WATER RESOURCES 

Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 

1. Utilize as much of the City’s drainage corridors and floodplain areas as possible for open space, parks, wildlife habitat and 
other uses that are compatible with the flood hazard. Develop a system of walking trails throughout the community and 
coordinate with surrounding communities to develop a regional hike and bike trail. Page 16 of updated plan 
 

TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Proactively pursue state and county planning and funding that benefit the city transportation system.  Page 15 of updated plan 
 
PARTNERSHIPS 
None   
 

Lakeway Comprehensive Plan1 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 

1. WORK WITH LAKEWAY CITY PLANNERS TO ENSURE THAT LAND AVAILABLE FOR FUTURE PARKS AND GREENBELTS IS 
DEVELOPED ON A TIMELY BASIS, CONSISTENT WITH AVAILABLE RESOURCES, COMMUNITY NEEDS, AND TOPOGRAPHICAL 
LIMITATIONS. Page 6-9 

1 Note: The Plans GOALS are all caps. Other statements are plan “Objectives”. 

        C - 16 
 

                                                             

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



2. Establish cooperative relationships with public agencies and other private organizations having mutual interests in improving 
the physical integrity of park and recreation resources.  Page 6-11 

Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. THE CITY WILL SERVE AS A STEWARD OF THE ENVIRONMENT TO PROTECT CRITICAL AREAS, MAINTAIN WATER QUALITY, AND 

CONSERVE LAND, AIR, AND ENERGY RESOURCES BY ASSURING THAT PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT MEETS ENVIRONMENTAL 
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS. Page 2-1 

2. Where possible, ensure site design protects existing terrain, preserves vegetation and scenic views, and incorporates native 
shrubbery into landscape plans. 

3. Control development in sensitive/critical environmental areas. 
4. Ensure plant and wildlife habitat areas are protected in accordance with Federal and State requirements. 
5. Ensure that no new development is detrimental to air or water quality. 
6. PROTECT AND PRESERVE EXCEPTIONAL TREES THREATENED BY DEVELOPMENT. Page 2-11 
7. Continue to educate builders and developers on the importance of protecting trees throughout the entire construction 

process. Page 2-11 
8. REDUCE THE THREAT OF WILDFIRE IN THE GREENBELTS. Page 2-13 
9. Educate property owners living along the greenbelts on the importance of creating defensible space around their homes. 

Page 2-13 
10. Maintain a constant surveillance to ensure that large, new residential developments will be adequately served by streets, 

utilities, schools, parks, greenbelts, City services, and other community facilities.  Page 3-2 
11. ENCOURAGE MAINTENANCE OF CURRENT LAND USE PATTERNS TO ENSURE CONSISTENCY BETWEEN CURRENT LAND USE 

AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE ETJ. Page 3-3 
12. While recognizing the rights of individuals to use and develop private property in the ETJ, encourage compliance with the 

City’s development and building ordinances for new construction in order to accommodate future annexation if desired. 
Page 3-3 

13. ALL LAND IN THE CITY’S ETJ SHALL BE EVALUATED FOR ANNEXATION POTENTIAL. Page 3-9 
14. Identify potential annexation areas that are developed and appropriate for inclusion in the City’s Municipal Annexation Plan. 

Page 3-9 
 

        C - 17 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
1. Encourage sewer service to new construction and discourage individual septic systems. Page 2-1 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. PLAY A LEADERSHIP ROLE IN PROVIDING ASSISTANCE TO AFFECTED RESIDENTS, SHOULD THEY DECIDE TO PURSUE INSTALLATION 

OF SANITARY SEWERS IN THEIR AREAS OF LAKEWAY, AND TAKE A PROACTIVE ROLE SHOULD ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES ARISE 
REGARDING LAKE TRAVIS THAT COULD HARM PROPERTY VALUES. Page 5-2 

2. MONITOR THE IMPACT OF NEW DEVELOPMENT ON EXISTING STORMWATER SYSTEMS AND REACT TO EMERGING PROBLEMS 
WITH ENGINEERING STUDIES LEADING TO FISCALLY RESPONSIBLE SOLUTIONS. Page 5-5 

 
TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
1. Working with Travis County, ensure the timely completion of the County bond project that would build a new road from the 

Flintrock Subdivision area south to SH 71. Page 4-2 
2. At the completion of this County bond project, consider joining with Travis County and the Village of the Hills in making 

improvements to Serene Hills Drive.  Page 4-2 
3. Work with TXDOT and Travis County in establishing an access management policy. Page 4-8 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Discourage commercial development that may cause serious traffic problems unless the impact can be mitigated through project 

engineering to the satisfaction of the City Council. Page 3-2 
2. Promote ease of travel through the residential sectors of the City while respecting the character of these areas. Page 4-1 
3. PLAY AN ACTIVE ROLE IN PLANNING FOR AND CONTINUE TO SUPPORT ANY TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (TXDOT), 

CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION (CARTPO), THE CAPITAL AREA METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION (CAMPO), AND TRAVIS COUNTY TRANSPORTATION INITIATIVES TO IMPROVE ROADWAY SYSTEMS 
THAT DIRECTLY AFFECT LAKEWAY RESIDENTS. Page 4-1 

 
 

        C - 18 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Transportation- County should work closely with Lakeway on several transportation projects.  

 

Leander Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Identify entities and agencies that preserve and regulate for endangered species and establish a line of communication for the 

benefit of the City so that future listings will not have an unintended consequence to facilities and needs of the Citizens. Page 68. 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
1. None are listed. The County regulates general storm runoff volume, which limits runoff from a developed track to no more than 

“undeveloped” volume, to protect the downstream property owners from increased flood waters.  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Consider the creation of a Drainage Utility to manage storm water projects and facilities and to provide protection for Leander’s 

waterways. Page 77 
 

TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 

Actions Immediate/Short Term 
1. Adopt inter-connectivity requirements for adjacent developments that may be phased, over time. 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Consider taking all County roadways over for operation and maintenance so that the City would have control of access, 

signalization and safety patrol of these facilities. Page 34 

        C - 19 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Create cooperative efforts with other jurisdictions. Page 71 
2. Explore the possibility of Master Funding Agreements with TXDOT, Travis County and Williamson County. Page 72 and page 77 
3. Identify policy agreements that the City can make with local and County jurisdictions. Page 72 
4. Initiate an equipment and resource catalog for municipal and public works efforts and explore opportunities to share with other 

cities. Page 72 
 

Pflugerville Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Study the opportunities and benefits of future annexations to guide implementation of the Preferred Land Use Vision Map. Page 

57 
2. Work with land owners in the ETJ to secure Non-Annexation Development Agreements that will prevent annexation if land 

owners do not develop the land. Page 57 
3. Proactively solicit partnerships and coordinate the provision of parks and recreational programs with other governmental bodies, 

community organizations, and private entities that exist in Pflugerville. Page 69 
4. Open Space Acquisition and/or Improvement and Trail Acquisition and/or Improvement. Page 139 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 

        C - 20 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1. Gilleland Creek and Wilbarger Creek and portions of their watershed areas were considered to be ‘Moderate’ through ‘High’ 
Priority areas for conservation. Page 65 

2. Continue cooperative initiatives with other governmental entities to adopt and implement measures to reduce pollutants in the 
City’s creeks. Page 108 

3. Apply appropriate preventative measures to protect against the risks of flooding and implement mitigation strategies to avoid 
future losses. Page 109 

4. When new municipal utility districts (MUDs) are created in the City’s ETJ, the City must give consent.  Page 134 
a. Requiring annexation of drainage infrastructure. 
b. Requiring green building practices (though cities are specifically restricted from exercising building code standards in the 

ETJ). 
 

TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Cooperate with local, county, and state governmental entities in the expansion, maintenance, and enhancement of the roadway 

system. Page 91 
2. Evaluate the potential for developing public transportation options. Page 91 
3. Creating tax increment reinvestment zone (TIRZ) in areas the plan calls for commercial or mixed use development along SH 45 

and SH 130 so as to attract developers to those locations by reimbursing them for installation or extension of public utilities, 
street networks, and other infrastructure. Page 133 

4. Reinforcement of Centers.  Page 139 
 
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Coordination with other Organizations. Page 139 

 

        C - 21 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



City of Round Rock Comprehensive Plan2 3 4 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Protect and preserve the natural areas of the City to include parks, floodplains and open spaces. Page 6-1 
2. Foster transportation systems that would support the development of major density centers. Page 6-1 
3. …., to enhance the value of Round Rock’s parkland and other open spaces, compatible uses, such as residential development or 

office parks, should be encouraged to locate adjacent to parkland and other open spaces while incompatible uses, such as low-
end industry, should be restricted. Page 7-3 

4. Acquire development rights to key properties: Prevent key properties from being developed by acquiring the development rights 
to each property. Conservation easements may also be used to preserve property. This technique is recommended for the 
preservation of farmland, ranch land, or prairies in key areas. Funding to acquire development rights must be identified. Page 
6.27 

 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Provide for effective management of stormwater. Page 7-1 
2. …, to better regulate water use and pollutants which contaminate stormwater runoff, a regional partnership can be developed 

so that all municipalities which are built on the local aquifer can have a legitimate stake in its protection, and coordinate 
protection measures. Page 7-3 

2 City of Round Rock Comprehensive Transportation Master Plan, 2010 
3 Places & Spaces: Round Rock General Plan 2020,  July 2010 
4 The Round Rock Strategic Parks and Recreation Master Plan,  

        C - 22 
 

                                                             

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



3. Native or adaptive vegetation, soil management, and other physical design solutions should be introduced and/or protected in 
creek corridors to assist in flood control and maintaining the quality of stormwater runoff. Ordinances should be amended 
accordingly. Page 7-8 

 
TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
1. Identify and plan for future connectivity and mobility needs and options. Page 8-1 
2. Streets which provide access to open spaces should be single-loaded where possible and ordinances should be amended to 

maximize public access to open space. Page 7-8 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Improvements to the City’s transportation system should be planned methodically to avoid costly mistakes that could be 

detrimental to the system’s integrity in the future. This may require amendments to City ordinances and policies to protect 
future rights-of-way requirements. (SP 21.0) Page 13-3 

 
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Goal 22.0 Foster transportation systems that would support the development of major density centers. Page A-2 
 

San Leanna Village Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
None 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
None 
 
TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
None 

        C - 23 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
PARTNERSHIPS 
Due to its limited system of small rural roads the Village restricts development to a scale conducive to lower traffic and reduced 
trips. The County and primarily the City of Austin should collaborate with the Village to maintain or improve their stated desires. 
 

Volente Comprehensive Plan 
 
LAND RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Enact a Village Subdivision Ordinance to implement the guidelines, proposals, and standards recommended within the 

Comprehensive Plan. Page 11-6 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None  
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Enact a Village Water Quality Ordinance to implement the guidelines, proposals, and standards recommended within the 

Comprehensive Plan.  Page 11-6 
 
TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES 
Actions Immediate/Short Term 
None 
Actions Ongoing Mid/Long Term 
1. Create a transportation system that will minimize the impact on the Environmental Quality of the Village. 4-33 

        C - 24 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



2. Many of the major streets and thoroughfares that are improved in the Village of Volente will involve cooperation with TXDOT, 
Travis County and, in some cases, will involve some financial participation by the Village itself… It should be of prime importance 
for the Village to work with CAMPO and TXDOT on major improvement projects. Page 4-33 

 
PARTNERSHIPS 
1. Coordinating with/lobbying CAMPO and TXDOT to influence roadway planning, funding, and construction.  Page 11-3 

        C - 25 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

Exhibit F: Revised Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
 

DRAFT 
November 25, 2014 

 

Travis County 
Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
LAND, WATER, AND TRANSPORTATION PLAN  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

Judge Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 

Commissioner Ron Davis, Precinct 1 
 

Commissioner Bruce Todd and Commissioner Sarah Eckhardt, Precinct 2 
  

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty and Commissioner Karen Huber, Precinct 3 
   

Commissioner Margaret Gómez, Precinct 4  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

 
PREPARED BY TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Randy Nicholson, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
 
AUTHORS 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director Development Services 
Wendy Connally, Resource Management Program Manager 
Rose Farmer, Resource Management Program Manager 
Michael Hettenhausen, Senior Planner 
Randy Nicholson, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager 
Stacey Scheffel, Floodplain Manager 
Charlie Watts, Planning Project Manager 
Thomas Weber, Environmental Quality Program Manager 
Melissa Zone, Senior Planner 
 
MAPS 
David Shore, GIS Coordinator 
Sara Dilbert, GIS Intern 
Angela Smith, GIS Intern 

 

 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



   

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 1 

 

LAND 
Chapter 64, Travis County Regulations for Floodplain Management and Guidelines and Procedures for Development Permits ........... 3 
Chapter 82, Travis County Development Regulation ................................................................................................................................. 4 
Chapter 48, Travis County Rules for Onsite Sewage Facilities .................................................................................................................... 5 
Conservation Development Ordinance ...................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Travis County Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan ................................................................................................................................ 11 
Lake Travis Parks Master Plan ................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
Concept Plan for Onion Creek Greenway ................................................................................................................................................. 19 
Colorado River Corridor Plan .................................................................................................................................................................... 23 
Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan (BCCP) .................................................................................................................................... 26 

 

WATER 
Travis County Drainage Basin Study 2009 ................................................................................................................................................ 31 
2010/2011 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update .............................................................................................................................................. 34 
Travis County Storm Water Management Program (SWMP) ................................................................................................................... 37 
Water Availability Rule.............................................................................................................................................................................. 41 
Water Quality Protection Rule .................................................................................................................................................................. 43 
 

TRANSPORTATION 
CAMPO 2035 Plan ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 45 
Pavement Management Work Plan .......................................................................................................................................................... 67 
Sidewalk Policy .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 76 
 
LIST OF FIGURES  

 

Figure 1: Western Travis County Concept Plan ............................................................................................................................... 12 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\TOC_11_25_14.docx                            i 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Figure 2: Eastern Travis County Concept Plan ................................................................................................................................. 12 
Figure 3: Priorities and Estimated Budgets ...................................................................................................................................... 13 
Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan .................................................................................................................................... 15 
Figure 5: Bob Wentz at Windy Point Park Concept Plan ................................................................................................................. 15 
Figure 6: Cypress Creek Park Concept Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 15 
Figure 7: Dink Pearson Park Concept Plan ....................................................................................................................................... 15 
Figure 8: Hippie Hollow Park Concept Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 16 
Figure 9: Mansfield Dam Park Concept Plan.................................................................................................................................... 16 
Figure 10: Pace Bend Park Concept Plan ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
Figure 11:  Sandy Creek Park Concept Plan ........................................................................................................................................ 16 
Figure 12: Tom Hughes Park Concept Plan ........................................................................................................................................ 17 
Figure 13: Onion Creek Greenway Vision .......................................................................................................................................... 20 
Figure 14: Onion Creek Capital Improvement Program .................................................................................................................... 21 
Figure 15: Ozone Standard and Non-Attainment Update…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….46   
Figure 1615: Regional Transportation Goals and Objectives ................................................................................................................ 56 
Figure 1716: Regional Transportation Policies ...................................................................................................................................... 60 
Figure 1817: Historical Roadway Condition Surveys ............................................................................................................................. 69 
Figure 1918: Pavement Condition Scores (Historical) ........................................................................................................................... 70 
Figure 2019: Fine and Fee Revenues ..................................................................................................................................................... 73 
Figure 2120: Five Year Projection by Funding Levels ............................................................................................................................. 74 
Figure 2221: Remediation Fees ......................................................................................................................................................... 8179 
Figure 2322: Weighted Average Score................................................................................................................................................... 82 
Figure 2423: Prioritization Process ........................................................................................................................................................ 83 
Figure 2524: Linear Feet of Pedestrian Way Sidewalks/Curb Ramps .................................................................................................... 84 
 
LIST OF MAPS  
 
Map 1: CAMPO Centers in Travis County ...................................................................................................................................... 50 
Map 2: 2035 Regional Roadway System ....................................................................................................................................... 51 
Map 3: 2035 Regional Public Transportation System ................................................................................................................... 53 
Map 4: Travis County Roads .......................................................................................................................................................... 68 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\TOC_11_25_14.docx                            ii 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – November 25, 2014 

Introduction 
 
The Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (LWTP) is built upon existing growth-related plans, ordinances, and rules that have been 
vetted by the public and adopted by the Commissioners Court.  They pertain to a) regulating the subdivision of property, 
construction of streets and drainage in subdivisions, and development in floodplains, b) implementing endangered species 
protection, hazards mitigation, and storm water management programs, c) planning and implementing capital improvement 
programs, and d) maintaining roadways.  The purposes, goals, capital improvement programs, implementation strategies, horizon 
issues, and next steps for each plan, ordinance, or rule are summarized in this chapter.   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc  1 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 2 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

CHAPTER 64, TRAVIS COUNTY REGULATIONS FOR FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND 
GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMITS 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
December 15, 1975: Travis County Commissioners’ Court originally approved Regulations for Floodplain Management. 
January 29, 1976:  County residents became eligible to purchase federally subsidized flood insurance. 
May 3, 1976:  Development permits are required for all new development within the unincorporated areas of the County. 
September 28, 2008:  Travis County Commissioners’ Court adopted a new comprehensive floodplain management order. 
 
2. PURPOSE 
The flood hazard areas of Travis County are subject to periodic inundation which can result in loss of life and property, health and 
safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and 
relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect public health, safety and general welfare.  The purpose of the 
regulation is to protect human life and health and enable Travis County to qualify for the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) so 
that property owners may obtain federally subsidized flood insurance.  Flood Insurance through the NFIP is mandatory for federally 
backed mortgages on properties in flood hazard areas.   In addition, On May 24, 1999 House Bill 1018 was approved requiring all 
political subdivisions of the State to adopt measures necessary to participate in the NFIP. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
Chapter 64 provides a regulatory system to manage land use in the County in order to reduce the likelihood that land use will 
increase the dangers of flooding on both new and existing development.  The chapter applies to all properties in the unincorporated 
areas of the County.  As land is subdivided, flood hazard areas are restricted to drainage easements to ensure that the land is not 
developed in a manner incompatible with flood hazard areas.   On existing platted or exempt tracts, the regulation does not prevent 
or restrict development rather it seeks to ensure that development does not increase the risk of flooding with in the County.  A 
person may build a structure in a flood hazard area, but that structure would have to be elevated to reduce the likelihood that it is 
inundated.  Additionally the structure could not cause an increase in flood heights or velocities.  Development outside a flood hazard 
area is also required to mitigate the effects of the increase in run off caused by the development.  Certain land uses, such as the 
placement new solid waste facilities, are prohibited in flood hazard areas. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 3 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

CHAPTER 82, TRAVIS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
Travis County’s Standards for Construction of Streets and Drainage in Subdivisions (Chapter 82) was originally adopted on January 
28, 1980.  Amendments effective 7/26/2005 established storm water quality, riparian corridor, and other environmental 
requirements for development in unincorporated areas outside of municipal ETJs. Amendments effective x/x/2012 established 
water availability requirements for subdivision matters. On 8/14/12, Chapter 82 was amended with a new title “Travis County 
Development Regulations” and new subchapters H – L set out expanded water quality protection requirements. 
 
2. PURPOSE 
The primary purpose of Chapter 82 is to provide for the safety and well-being of the general public by requiring roadways, streets, 
structures, and drainage facilities consistent with good practice and established standards of constructions for subdivision and other 
development. By following these requirements the facilities constructed during the development process, for the use by citizens of 
Travis County, will be able to be maintained without imposing a burden to taxpayers.  
 
The requirements of Chapter 82 also assure that public facilities that meet requirements will be completed prior to public need and 
within a reasonable time. The subdivision of real property must also comply with the applicable portions of the County’s current 
Rules for Private Sewage Facilities and the County’s Regulations for Flood Plain Management and Guidelines and Procedures for 
Development Permits. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
Travis County regulates the subdivision of real property under the authority set forth in Chapter 232 of the Texas Local Government 
Code and other statutes applicable to counties. Chapter 82 has been amended several times since it was originally adopted to reflect 
changes in our regulatory authority and in response to challenges associated with a rapidly growing population. Some of the more 
notable amendments have been to add manufactured home rental community regulations, water quality regulations, conservation 
subdivision regulations, and water availability requirements. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 4 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

CHAPTER 48, TRAVIS COUNTY RULES FOR ONSITE SEWAGE FACILITIES 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
March 28, 1995:  Travis County Commissioners’ Court originally approved the Travis County Rules for Onsite Sewage Facilities 
June 20, 2000:  The current version of Chapter 48 was adopted by the Travis County Commissioners’ Court 
 
2. PURPOSE 
The State is the primary regulator of onsite sewage facilities (OSSF) and as such they have established minimum criteria for the 
installation and maintenance of OSSFs within the State.  The State did not have the resources to adequately review and inspect 
OSSFs in rapidly growing areas of the State like Travis County.  Additionally, the States rules did not adequately address the unique 
geography and topography of the County.  In order to address these issues, the County became an Authorized Agent of the State for 
OSSFs within its jurisdiction.  This allowed the County to establish its own program for review and inspection of OSSFs.  It also 
allowed the County to adopt more stringent regulations. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
Onsite sewage facilities (OSSF) allow development on land that is not served by a municipal sewage treatment plant.  They are 
typically located on a single tract and designed to process less than 5000 gallons of water per day.  There are currently 35,000 OSSFs 
within the unincorporated areas of the County.  The State is the primary regulator of onsite sewage facilities (OSSF) and as such they 
have established minimum criteria for the installation and maintenance of OSSFs within the State.  The County acts as an Authorized 
Agent of the State for OSSFs.  The County adopted Chapter 48 in order to enhance the States minimum criteria.  It provides 
additional protection for the health and safety of its citizens.  It also provides greater protection for the quality of ground and 
surface water. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 5 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
The Commissioners Court adopted the Travis County Conservation Development Design Ordinance and associated Conservation 
Development Design Manual on December 19, 2006. 
  
2. PURPOSE 
The primary purpose of the Conservation Development Ordinance is the promotion of safe, orderly, and healthful development of 
the unincorporated areas of the County. The intent of the ordinance is to reduce the threat of flooding by limiting the amount of 
development in watersheds, conserve endangered species habitat, and encourage the type of economic development the County 
desires to promote.  
 
The primary purpose of the Conservation Development Design Manual is to provide guidance for the practical execution of property 
development per the Conservation Development Ordinance. Key components of the manual include application submittal 
requirements, information for identifying conservation areas, and examples of ecological assessments and land plans. Incentives 
available to the developer for subdividing property under the Conservation Development Ordinance include: the County Executive 
will designate and assign a lead staff reviewer who will facilitate the timely processing and review of the application and County 
Executive will exempt the application of the parkland dedication or parkland fees-in-lieu of dedication requirement as well as all 
county fees associated with the processing of the application, inspection, and permit review. In addition to these incentives, the 
developer may benefit from lower infrastructure costs due to the potential to cluster subdivision improvements. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
The Conservation Development Ordinance is the first set of guidelines adopted by Travis County that allows and promotes non-
traditional subdivision development. The ordinance only applies to property located outside any municipality’s extra-territorial 
jurisdiction (ETJ).  
 
One of the first steps in subdividing property per the Conservation Development Ordinance is the submittal and approval of a 
conservation development agreement, which the property owner shall enter into with the county. The development agreement 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 6 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

shall: require the property to be developed only in compliance with the ordinance as it exists at the time the agreement is executed, 
constitute a conservation easement and covenant running with the property in favor of the county, include provisions for any 
conservation development incentive payments outlined in the ordinance, be approved or amended only by the Commissioners 
Court, and be recorded in the Official Public Records of Travis County. 
Please note: an owner proposing to enter into a conservation development agreement with the County and/or to file a preliminary 
plan or final plat application under the ordinance shall follow each step of the process below in sequence unless steps are combined 
by the County Executive. 
 
Step 1: The owner shall prepare and submit to the County Executive preliminary drafts of an ecological assessment of and a 
conceptual land plan for the property meeting the requirements of the Conservation Development Design Manual. The owner shall 
meet with the County Executive and staff in a pre-application meeting to acquaint staff with the proposed development, including 
its ecological assessment and conceptual land plan, to obtain preliminary staff comments, and to identify major issues or needs for 
additional information. The County Executive may require the owner to visit the property with County staff. 
 
Step 2: At any time after the pre-application meeting, the owner may file a preliminary plan or final plat application meeting the 
requirements of the Travis County Code and shall provide the following materials and information meeting the requirements of the 
Conservation Development Design Manual: an ecological assessment; a land plan delineating the conservation areas and setting out 
planned development of the remainder of the property; a scenic view preservation plan; a historic site preservation plan and/or 
historic structure or relocation or preservation plan (if historic structures or sites are located on the property); an integrated pest 
management plan; an ecological assets management plan; any variance, waiver, and exemption requests, and a list and copies of all 
legal documents necessary for the proposed development, including the following: 
 
(A) Draft conservation development agreement, if not yet executed by the owner and the County. 
(B) Conservation easement for the conservation areas, if not yet executed by the owner and the County. 
(C) Title commitment including copies of all relevant deeds, easements, etc., if not yet provided to the County. 
(D) Conditions, covenants, and restrictions. 
(E) Excess or available creditable acreage or impervious cover transfer documents, with an accompanying narrative explaining 

the document’s general provisions, purpose or justification. 
(F) Property owners association documents, including charter, bylaws, and any architectural and landscape design standards. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 7 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

 
Step 3: To be considered complete, an application filed under the ordinance must indicate that approval under the ordinance is 
sought and must include the items outlined above.  
 
Step 4: An application under the ordinance shall meet all requirements of the Travis County Code except as expressly or modified, 
waived, or exempted by the ordinance or the design manual. Unless otherwise specifically authorized by the Commissioners Court, 
for a development project to receive approval, reserved uses must be prohibited by covenants, conditions, and restrictions or other 
means approved by the County. 
 
Step 5: The conservation development agreement, preliminary plan and/or final plat application, and all items required to be 
submitted under the ordinance are subject to the approval of the County. To implement this ordinance and ensure both that 
development will comply with this ordinance and that the ecological, historic, and other values of the conservation areas and buffers 
will be maintained, the owner must establish legally binding mechanisms, such as preliminary plan and plat notes, contracts, 
licenses, covenants, conditions, and restrictions, or property owners’ association charters and bylaws enforceable by the County and 
other entities deemed necessary by the County. Historic structures or sites ranked as significant features in the ecological 
assessment may only be relocated or removed as approved by the County. A property owners association or other entity established 
in association with development of the property may be required to hold a license or enter into another contract for the operation 
and maintenance of the stormwater management facilities and/or the maintenance of the conservation areas and historic and rural 
buffers. 
 
Step 6: If the County Executive determines that a preliminary plan or final plat application meets all requirements of the Travis 
County Code, the County Executive may approve it administratively. Also, the County Executive may administratively approve 
amendments or variances. 
 
4. CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT GOALS 
The goals of the Conservation Development Ordinance include:  
• allowing for greater flexibility and creativity in the design of subdivisions;  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 8 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

• encouraging the permanent preservation of open space, ranch and agricultural lands, woodlands and native prairie, wildlife 
habitat, natural resources including aquifers, water bodies and wetlands, and historical and archeological resources, and to 
promote interconnected green space and corridors throughout the county; 

• protection of county water supplies; 
• minimizing the amount of storm water runoff that flows into the floodplain as a result of development through limiting 

impervious cover; 
• encouraging development that conforms to existing topography and natural features; 
• facilitating the construction and maintenance of housing, streets, utilities, and public service in a more economical and 

efficient manner; 
• facilitating the provision of community services in a more economical and efficient manner; 
• encouraging economic development that is desirable for the affected area; 
• fostering stewardship or caring for the land and wildlife as well as surrounding neighborhoods; and  
• Preservation of the natural character of Travis County and central Texas. 
 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
N/A 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
There are several different types of incentives for conservation development projects. For instance, a lead staff reviewer is 
designated and assigned to the application to assist in facilitating the timely processing and review of the application. Other 
incentives for landowners to utilize the conservation development policy include: 
1. Fee Waivers.  
These include waivers of application review fees, construction plan review and construction inspection fees, driveway permit fees, 
and parkland dedication or fees in lieu of parkland dedication; 
2. Reimbursement Payments 
An ecological assessment of the property is required as part of the conservation subdivision application. The County may reimburse 
the owner an amount equal to reasonable costs and fees associated with conducting, preparing, and reporting of an ecological 
assessment or conservation development design/plan recommendations, including conservation area design. 
3. Incentive Payments 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 9 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

In exchange for the owner’s commitment to develop the property as a conservation development, the Commissioners Court may 
agree to make annual and/or lump sum payments to the owner up until the time of development. The Commissioners Court may 
also agree to make payments after the development is complete that must be used to for management of the area set aside for 
conservation; 
 
4. Grandfathering 
At the owner’s option, simultaneous with pursuing a conservation development project, the owner may also prepare and submit to 
the County a master plan for a traditional subdivision. If the County subsequently breaches or fails to make any incentive payments 
under the conservation development agreement, the owner has the opportunity to pursue the alternative project free of any 
additional regulations that the County may have adopted since the effective date of the conservation development agreement. 
5. Transfer of Impervious Cover and Conservation Area Credits 
If the owner provides more conservation area than the minimum required or less impervious cover than the maximum allowed, the 
amount of the extra conservation acreage or impervious cover can be transferred to other conservation development projects. 
 
7. HORIZON ISSUES 
Although staff has conducted several meetings in 2006 and 2007 with interested property owners, no applications for a conservation 
subdivision have been submitted to Travis County. Chapter 82.237(c)(2) states the incentives for developing under the conservation 
development ordinance will expire after five years from the adoption of the ordinance or after five projects are given incentives; any 
new conservation subdivision applications will likely fall into the latter category. 
 
8. NEXT STEPS 
Several sections of the Conservation Subdivision Design Manual will need to be completed or updated. For instance, the Preferred 
Commercial Development Areas and Authorized Reserve Uses section (Section XIII) lists eastern and northwestern Travis County as 
areas where the preserved and reserved uses were to be determined at the time of manual’s adoption. Southwestern Travis County 
identifies five preferred commercial development areas and authorized reserve uses yet does not state the exact distances. These 
areas of the manual will need to be reviewed by staff and completed.  
  
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 10 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY PARKS AND NATURAL AREAS MASTER PLAN 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
The Commissioners Court adopted the “Travis County Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan” (plan) on May 23, 2006.  
 
2. PURPOSE 
This plan describes Travis County’s intentions for developing, operating, and managing its park system.  It provides the framework 
for capital improvement programs that have typically been funded through voter-approved bonds.  It also is a means for developing 
more competitive applications to Texas Parks and Wildlife Department (TPWD) grant programs: although not a requirement for 
submitting an application, having a TPWD approved master plan generates additional points in the grant application process.  TPWD 
approved the County’s parks master plan following Commissioners Court adoption by resolution in May 2006. 
 
3. OVERVIEW  
This plan continues the County’s commitment to improving Lake Travis parks (as prioritized in the County’s previous parks master 
plan) but limits investments in new metropolitan (metro) parks (also a previous priority) because the County has built three new 
metro parks in the SH 130 Corridor that address needs for this type of facility.  The plan also kicks off the County’s initiative to build 
linear parks along waterways. 
 
Projects proposed for western Travis County include improving Lake Travis parks, developing a linear Pedernales River park, 
developing a Northwest Metro Park, and developing a Big Sandy Creek greenway (see Figure 1).  Projects proposed for eastern Travis 
County, include developing greenways along eastern creeks (see Figure 2).  This includes a Gilleland-Wilbarger Creek greenway north 
of the river and Onion Creek greenway south of the river.  Rural conservation districts (orange circles) and spring protection zones 
(blue circles) are also included in the parks concept plan as “…desirable areas and features for conservation”. 
 
4. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
Most funding for park improvements is obtained through voter-approved bond programs: since 1997, voters have approved 
approximately $183 million for park projects.   TPWD grants and parkland dedications are also used to acquire land and build 
improvements.   Project priorities and estimated budgets for the current plan are as follows: 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 11 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

 
 

Figure 1: Western Travis County Concept Plan Figure 2: Eastern Travis County Concept Plan 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 12 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 

Figure 3: Priorities and Estimated Budgets 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. HORIZON ISSUES 
The most pressing horizon issue is funding the operation and maintenance of county parks at an amount that ensures the current 
level of services in county parks and that new responsibilities – managing more extensive natural areas – are met.  
 
6. NEXT STEPS 
Update the parks master plan and obtain TPWD approval; complete 2005 and 2011 capital improvement projects; and complete a 
land conservation plan that complements the parks master plan.  

Project  Budget 
NE Planning Area   
East Metro Park Phase II Improvements  $7,080,000 
NE Metro Park Phase III Improvements  $4,000,000 
NE Natural Areas/Greenways  TBD 
NW Planning Area   
Arkansas Bend Park Improvements  TBD 
NW Metro Park Phase I  TBD 
SW Planning Area   
SW Metro Park Phase II  $7,580,000 
SW Natural Areas  $18,030,000 
SE Planning Area   
Southeast Metro Park Phase III Improvements  $3,310,000 
Onion Creek Greenway  $8,600,000 
NE and/or SE Planning Areas   
Unallocated Proposition 2 Proceeds  $6,400,000 
   

Total  $55,000,000 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc 13 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

LAKE TRAVIS PARKS MASTER PLAN 
 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
The Commissioners Court adopted the “Lake Travis Parks Master Plan” (LTPMP) in September, 2010.  
 
2. PURPOSE 
The purpose of the LTPMP is to provide a comprehensive framework for capital improvements in the nine parks Travis County owns and/or 
manages on Lake Travis.   
 
3. OVERVIEW  
Of the nine parks that Travis County manages on the lake, six of them – Arkansas Bend, Cypress Creek, Hippie Hollow, Mansfield Dam, Pace 
Bend, and Sandy Creek parks – are owned by the Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA), one – Bob Wentz at Windy Point Park – is 
comprised of both LCRA-owned and county-owned land, and two – Dink Pearson and Tom Hughes parks – are owned by the county.  As 
popular destinations, these parks are in danger of being “loved to death” by the growing population of nearby Austin and more distant 
central Texas.  Investments in their infrastructure, buildings, amenities, and natural environment are required for them to be safe, 
comfortable, attractive places to visit (see Figures 4-12).  Highlights of the plan are as follows: 
 
 The most extensive capital improvement will be made at Arkansas Bend Park and Pace Bend Park. 
 Camping will be eliminated at Cypress Creek Park because of its small size which makes it costly to operate.  Campsites will continue 

to be available at nearby Sandy Creek Park. 
 The feasibility of acquiring Windy Point (a private park adjacent to the county’s Bob Wentz at Windy Point Park) will be investigated. 
 A boat ramp and related facilities will be built at Dink Pearson Park. 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
Arkansas Bend Park: Development of new facilities including improved entrance, beach/day use area, campground with improved camp 
sites, extensive bike/pedestrian and hiking trail system, boat ramp, and maintenance yard improvements. 
 
Pace Bend Park: Development of new facilities including a ranger/administration center, beach/day use area, campground with improved 
camp sites, extensive bike/pedestrian and hiking trail system, and boat ramps. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            14 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 

 

 

  

Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

          
 

 
 

 

Figure 7: Dink Pearson Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

  

Figure 5: Bob Wentz at Windy Point Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan   

Figure 6: Cypress Creek Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

          
  

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            15 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

  

  

  

Figure 8: Hippie Hollow Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

          
  

  

Figure 9: Mansfield Dam Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

          
  

  

Figure 10: Pace Bend Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

          
  

  

Figure 11: Sandy Creek Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

          
  

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            16 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bob Wentz at Windy Point Parks: Development of new and redevelopment of existing facilities including improved entrance, beach/day use 
area, bike/pedestrian trail system (including pedestrian bridge over causeway), pavilions, playground, and maintenance yard. 
 
Cypress Creek Park:  Development of new and redevelopment of existing facilities including improved entrance, boat ramp/parking, 
bike/pedestrian trail system including a pedestrian bridge over Cypress Creek. 
 
Hippie Hollow Park: Redevelopment of existing facilities including improved entrance and parking lot, bike/ pedestrian trail system, fencing, 
and lockers at restrooms. 
 
Sandy Creek Park: Redevelopment of existing facilities including improved entrance and vehicular circulation, bike/pedestrian and nature 
trails, restroom renovations, and courtesy dock for boat ramp.  
 
Alternate: Joint LCRA/TC CIP Account Funded Projects (if no park bonds are approved by voters) 
Cypress Creek Park Entrance:  Replace fee booth and park entrance sign. 

 

Figure 12: Tom Hughes Park Concept Plan 
 Figure 4: Arkansas Bend Park Concept Plan 

          
  

  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            17 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
Hippie Hollow Park Entrance: Replace fee booth and park entrance sign. 
 
Sandy Creek Park Entrance: Replace fee booth and park entrance sign. 
 
Park Land Acquisition/Sale (in accordance with Chapter 26 of The Texas Parks and Wildlife Code)    
 
Purchase privately-owned Windy Point Park that is for sale, and which is adjacent to the County’s Bob Wentz at Windy Point Park (the 
County has spoken to the land owner but no agreement has been reached). 
 
Purchase land adjacent to Dink Pearson Park to extend the park to the water edge and accommodate boat ramp improvements (the county 
has investigated this but complicated land ownership issues might make it difficult to accomplish). 
 
4. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
Voter-approved bond funding is required to implement the major improvements proposed in this master plan.  In November, 2011, voters 
approved a park bond package that includes approximately $9.4 million for improving Arkansas Bend Park as described herein. 
 
5. HORIZON ISSUES 
Pressure on Lake Travis parks will increase as the population of Central Texas grows, threatening the environmental quality and recreational 
experience of the parks and lake.  The need to fund and build the appropriate infrastructure to accommodate use increases accordingly, 
and as lake parks are improved, staff will need to grow as well to adequately maintain new facilities and manage restored habitat. 
 
6. NEXT STEPS 
The most immediate “next step” is to contract professional services for the design and construction of Arkansas Bend Park improvements.  
Advocacy for improving the Lake Travis parks also needs to continue to generate support for implementing additional large capital 
improvement projects.  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            18 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

CONCEPT PLAN FOR ONION CREEK GREENWAY 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
The Commissioners Court adopted “Concept Plan for the Onion Creek Greenway” (greenway plan) on March 16, 2010.  
 
2. PURPOSE 
The purpose of the plan is to provide a comprehensive framework for investing approximately $8 million in bond funds that voters 
approved in 2005 for parkland acquisition along the creek.  It is also a guide for developing future bond programs and coordinating with 
other public agencies owning land along the creek. 
 
3. OVERVIEW  
As shown in Figure 13, Onion Creek Concept Plan below, the greenway plan defines the broad limits of an approximately 21-mile linear park 
extending from the confluences of Onion Creek with Slaughter Creek to the Colorado River.  It includes a conceptual trail alignment for a 
hike and bike trail extending its length that connects an array of nature-based facilities and active, capital intensive athletic complexes.   
Trails heads are sited strategically in both existing and new parks.  Preservation of exiting ecosystems and restoration of degraded areas is a 
critical part of this plan also. 
 
4. GREENWAY PLAN GOALS 
The goals of the greenway plan are as follows: 
 
 Support the health and wellbeing of county residents by providing access to parks and natural areas 
 Protect water resources by conserving and restoring bottomland woods 
 Provide recreational opportunities that people want 
 Provide connectivity between parks, neighborhoods, schools and civic and commercial centers for recreational and active 

transportation purposes 
 Enrich county residents lives by preserving our natural and cultural roots 
 Provide open-air opportunities to learn about the natural environment 
 Develop a strong “sense of place” 
 Support the economic vitality of the community 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            19 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
Figure 13:  Onion Creek Greenway Vision 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            20 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
The capital improvements program is shown in Figure 14. 
 

Figure 14: Onion Creek Capital Improvement Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
Obtaining voter-approved bond funding of improvements is the primary strategy for implementing the plan.  These funds will be leveraged 
when possible to match other local, state, and federal grants.  Other agencies will fund improvements on their properties according to their 
capital improvement programs.  
 
7. HORIZON ISSUES 
The most pressing horizon issue is the funding of parkland acquisition and capital improvements.   Budgeting for the additional staffing, 
operation, and maintenance of the greenway is another horizon issue, particularly as it relates to the management of large natural areas 
that are to be preserved or restored. 
 
8. NEXT STEPS 
 Parkland acquisition with 2005 bond funds has been ongoing; the first phase of improvements is being designed.  

Project  Budget 
   
1 Colorado Confluence Park  $2,500,000 
2 Barkley Meadows  $2,500,000 
3 Airport  $500,000 
4 Moore’s Crossing  $800,000 
5 Pilot Knob  $1,000,000 
6 Nueve Parques  $3,000,000 
7 Slaughter Confluence  $1,000,000 

   
Total  $11,300,000 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            21 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 Additional parkland will be acquired with a portion of $approximately $16.7 million allocated for parkland acquisition on eastern 
creeks and the Colorado River;  major capital improvements will be made with 2011 bond funds totaling approximately $13.3 million 
for the Onion Creek Greenway. 

 Complete a land management plan.  
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            22 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

COLORADO RIVER CORRIDOR PLAN 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED  
      Commissioners Court approved the CRCP on May 15, 2012 by unanimous vote. 
 
2. PURPOSE  
The purpose of the Colorado River Corridor Plan is to coordinate regional and local planning to facilitate the preservation and enhancement 
of the many valuable environmental, economic, recreational, and cultural resources of this region over the next 25 years. The Plan includes 
objectives for improved protection of local bio-diversity, preservation and restoration of floodplains and natural areas; the creation of 
parks, open spaces and greenways; enhancement of Corridor quality of life through the long-term reclamation of mined sites; and 
enhancement of mobility through capital project development and new transportation alternatives. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
Travis County, the City of Austin (COA), and the Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA) partnered in the development of this plan. The 
project team sought to identify priorities, concerns of stakeholders and opportunities to proactively address these issues in the Colorado 
River Corridor.  The study area covers over 30,565 acres on a 32-mile stretch of the Colorado River in eastern Travis County, bounded by US 
183 on the west, the Travis-Bastrop County line on the east, FM 969 on the north, and SH 71 on the south. 
 
4. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES 
The Corridor Plan identifies long- and short-term strategies for improving one of the Travis County’s most important natural resources, the 
Colorado River. The Corridor Plan provides a framework for protecting and enhancing the scenic beauty and ecological integrity of the 
corridor and outlines goals, objectives and policies to increase the public’s opportunities to enjoy the natural resources offered.  
 
The Corridor serves multiple functions. The suggested goals and actions acknowledge the need to balance competing desires, as different 
strategies may be appropriate according to context (e.g., rural versus urban/village). The goals for the Corridor Plan were established by the 
advisory group and involved a consensus with stakeholders. 
 
GOAL 1: Conserve and Protect Natural Resources 
Protecting natural systems is critical to human, plant, and animal health and well-being. The concept of natural community planning calls for 
the protection of natural communities and habitats. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            23 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

GOAL 2: Improve Quality of Life 
Quality of life is an essential consideration in a person's decision to live in a community or a business' decision to locate there. In order to 
attract new residents as well as make the corridor livable for those already residing there, an attractive physical environment and necessary 
services and facilities need to be provided. 
 
GOAL 3: Provide Improved Mobility and Transportation Choices. 
Transportation has and will have a profound impact on the Corridor. Therefore, we must plan and design our transportation system with 
consideration for those who live with it as well as those who use it. 
 
The Corridor Concept Plan is envisioned to maintain a rural, agricultural character while still allowing for the planned growth expected to 
occur over the next 25 years.  In achieving this goal, high density growth would occur closer to the city limits in the western half of the 
Corridor and along major transportation corridors, but would scale down in density near the river and the county line to a more 
rural/agrarian lifestyle in the eastern half.  Large areas of the Corridor would be used as working lands, providing food for the table, hay for 
livestock, growing grounds for nurseries and natural resources that the region needs to sustain itself.  People living in this area would 
continue to enjoy a suburban-rural way of life.  Rural roadway setbacks along FM 969 would help preserve the visual character of the 
Corridor as you drive into the city. 
 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
The Colorado River Corridor Plan communicates the values and intentions of the respective partners and helps ensure continuity in policy 
application and capital improvement project expenditures within and across jurisdictions. Capital improvement projects will compete for 
scarce funding sources which will require local jurisdictions to identify the most beneficial cost-effective improvements for mobility.    
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
Plan implementation requires intergovernmental cooperation since multiple government entities are responsible for the various aspects of 
transportation, natural resource conservation and environmental protection in the Corridor. Based on these various factors, including ease 
of implementation, agencies involved, and funding availability, priority focus areas have been identified. The implementation strategy 
identifies and describes the projects and procedures that the County will need to initiate and carry out to successfully achieve its vision for 
the Colorado River Corridor.  
 
From the onset of developing the implementation strategies staff engage in extensive discussions with stakeholders and the public to 
develop a time frame. Implementation does not occur over night and the recommended strategies reflect how the specific projects could be 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            24 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

implemented over time. Some projects might be triggered by the economy or political actions taken at a regional or state level; however, 
the main objective of the implementation strategy is to identify a course of action that allows the County to be at the forefront rather than 
reacting to change. Certain projects may take priority over others and be completed within 2 years, while others would be expected to 
occur 10 or 15 years from now, while some will be ongoing. The consensus was to phase the goals and objectives due to factors such as 
funding, operational constraints, physical constraints, and or community impacts.  
 
7. NEXT STEPS 
The Corridor Plan was developed in response to the need for a comprehensive plan that provides a vision and a framework for a positive 
long-range future for the Colorado River Corridor. At its heart, this plan acknowledges the unique and exemplary geographical and historic 
role for Austin and Travis County. This Plan is a first step. It will require periodic updates to account for changing community and resource 
protection needs and strategies as indicated by new information or research. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            25 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

BALCONES CANYONLANDS CONSERVATION PLAN (BCCP)/ BALCONES CANYONLANDS 
PRESERVE (BCP) 

 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
August 3, 1995:  Interlocal Agreement/Shared Vision Agreement with City of Austin  
May 2, 1996:  US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) 10(a)1(B) Permit - BCCP 
The acquisition and management of BCP land is the mitigation required by the permit.  
 
2. IMPETUS FOR THE PROJECT 
In the late 1980’s and early 1990’s, several species were listed as endangered in Travis County which were impacting the ability of 
landowners to develop their land.  From 1988 through 1996, in order to help facilitate the continuation of development projects in western 
Travis County, a collaboration of local concerned citizens, business leaders, landowners, developers, environmental groups, scientists and 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) worked together to create a Habitat Conservation Plan under the Endangered Species Act (ESA) 
for the Austin Area that led to the issuance of the following permit.   
 
3. PURPOSE  
The BCCP provides a quick and efficient pathway for the Permit Holders and private landowners to comply with federal law and mitigate for 
impacts that their land use practices may have on protected species.  The Permit provides a streamlined alternative to the normal USFWS 
consultation and determination process.   
 
4. OVERVIEW OF PROCESS 
On May 2, 1996, the City of Austin (COA) and Travis County (TC) were jointly issued a regional USFWS Incidental Take (or Section 10(a)1(B)) 
permit as a result of this community effort. The 30 year Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan (BCCP) allows for the “incidental take” of 
two endangered bird species and six endangered karst species within Western Travis County.  
 
An incidental take permit authorizes the loss of endangered species or their habitat associated with otherwise legal activities in exchange 
for minimization and mitigation measures that benefit the affected species.  The BCCP is such a permit, and provides coverage for the 
following endangered species listed here, plus 27 additional species of concern: 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            26 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Black-capped vireo (Vireo atricapillus) Bee Creek Cave harvestman (Texella reddelli) 
Golden-cheeked warbler (Dendroica chrysoparia) Bone Cave harvestman (Texella reyesi) 
Tooth Cave spider (Neoleptoneta myopica)  Tooth Cave ground beetle (Rhadine persephone) 
Tooth Cave pseudoscorpion (Tartarocreagris texana)  
Kretschmarr Cave Mold Beetle (Texamaurops reddelli)  
 
In return, the COA and TC agreed to create the BCP to protect the 8 endangered species and 27 species of concern throughout 7 watersheds 
in western Travis County.  Requirements of the Permit include: 
1) Minimum Preserve Acreage - the BCCP Permit set a Preserve size of 30,428 acres and 62 specific karst features (including three cave 
clusters) as the minimum size. 
2) Priority Macrosites - the Permit identified four priority macrosites that are considered critical to the success of the BCCP, and lists these 
according to acquisition priority:  Bull Creek, Cypress Creek, South Lake Austin, and North Lake Austin.  
3) Configuration: Minimum Specifications for Priority Macrosites - the BCCP requires that specific minimum acreage totals be acquired 
within each macrosite and also lists target acreage goals for each.   When all target acreages in the seven macrosites are added together, 
they equal 30,428 acres, the minimum Permit acreage required.  Configuration of each Preserve macrosite block must meet or surpass the 
minimum Preserve design standards that minimize the effects of habitat fragmentation, with no more than 20 percent of the total Preserve 
area occurring within 330 feet of the edge in each of the five largest macrosites.  
 
5. RESULTS OF EACH PHASE (E.G., INVENTORY, DEMAND, NEEDS ASSESSMENT, PUBLIC INPUT, GOPS, ETC ) 
The permit was issued to the COA and TC, but its success is a multi-agency effort with BCP acreage managed by the COA, TC, Lower 
Colorado River Authority, Travis Audubon Society, The Nature Conservancy of Texas, St. Edwards University, Concordia University, Texas 
Cave Management Association, and numerous private land owners. 
 
The BCP protects a unique cross section of the flora and fauna along the Balcones Escarpment of the Edward's Plateau and strives to 
maintain functioning ecosystems by managing for the benefit of all our native wildlife and plants, regardless of their regulatory status. 
 
The Balcones Canyonlands Preserve not only provides habitat and protection for the endangered species, but also provides important air 
quality, water quality and open space benefits to communities in Central Texas. 
 
6. FISCAL IMPACT/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
Funding for the program comes from several sources: the General Fund, funds received from landowners mitigating under the BCCP permit, 
Tax Benefit Financing, USFWS Section 6 grants, developer funding received as payment for management of landowner’s individual 10(a) 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            27 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

permit requirements.   Currently, the source of the majority of both land acquisition and land management funding is from Tax Benefit 
Financing.    

 
7. CONCLUSIONS 
The BCCP was the first Regional multi-species Habitat Conservation Plan in the nation and continues to serve as a national model for 
community-based conservation that seeks to balance a healthy economy with healthy ecosystems. 
 
The Permit Holders are intensively managing the BCP to protect the endangered birds and karst species and all of the native flora and fauna 
found on the preserve. Management activities include surveys (for endangered species habitat, sensitive areas, creeks, springs, caves, rare 
plants, etc.); census and monitoring of golden-cheeked warbler, black-capped vireo, karst species, and Jollyville Plateau salamander; 
maintaining fences, signs, roads and trails; management of populations of deer, feral hogs, brown-headed cowbirds, and red imported fire 
ants; monitoring of adjacent development to prevent damage from erosion and sedimentation; and patrols to protect the tracts. 
 
In a 2005 letter, the Home Builders Association of Greater Austin called the BCCP a “win-win situation for both developers and endangered 
species by establishing (1) a habitat preserve, and (2) the ability of developers to pay into the BCCP in return for development rights 
elsewhere. These arrangements allows for growth in parts of west Travis County where more and more people want to live, shop and work 
while supporting large, uninterrupted areas of endangered species habitat and natural beauty.”  
 
The Permit Holders provide BCP education and outreach opportunities for the community. Students from elementary grades to graduate 
schools visit and explore the preserve each year. The BCP Hike and Lecture Series provides monthly guided hikes on the BCP as well as 
opportunities for the public to delve into the issues related to managing wild lands from some of the leading experts in the field of 
conservation.   In Fiscal Year 2010, Travis County BCP provided education and outreach programs to 2,032 individuals. In 2010, City of Austin 
and Travis County BCP programs provided education and outreach events attended by over 6,700 citizens. 
 
Volunteers annually dedicate thousands of hours to maintaining and restoring the different habitats found in the BCP. In 2010, almost 1,000 
volunteers contributed over 6,000 hours of service on projects throughout the City of Austin and Travis County lands of the BCP. 
 
Approximately 1/3 of the Preserve is currently open to the public including Barton Creek Greenbelt, Emma Long Park, Commons Ford Park, 
St. Edwards Park, Mount Bonnell Park, Wild Basin Preserve, Hamilton Pool, and Westcave Preserve.  The public can visit other parts of the 
Preserve on regularly scheduled tours, on Hike and Lecture Series tours, and through Preserve Volunteer programs.   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            28 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

The Preserve serves as a living laboratory for Universities and researchers from across the nation studying the area’s unique native wildlife.  
Recent and ongoing research on the BCP includes the U.S. Forest Service, University of Texas, St. Edwards University, Concordia University, 
Texas State University, Baylor University, Texas A&M University, Duke University, New Mexico State, San Diego State and others. 
 
8. STATUS OF PLAN 
To date, the Permit Holders have processed 660 Habitat Determination Applications with landowners, and have issued 246 Participation 
Certificates for 11,856 acres of land in Western Travis County which have been mitigated allowing development under the Permit.   
 
As of June 2011, the Preserve includes 29,975 acres of the minimum 30,428 acres required for the benefit the golden-cheeked warbler 
(Warbler) and black-capped vireo (Vireo), and 45 of the 62 karst features listed in the BCCP have some form of protection.  
 
As of June 2011, Travis County is currently managing about 7,000 acres out of this total acreage with the remainder of the BCP acres 
managed by the City of Austin or other partners.    

 
9. NEXT STEPS 
Travis County and the City of Austin as Permit Holders will continue with acquisition and management of the Balcones Canyonlands 
Preserve land and continue to administer the BCCP Public Participation process as required by the BCCP Permit.   
 
A Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan: Completion Task Group Report was recently completed.  The report found that Permit Holders 
still need to acquire 453 acres of habitat for the Warbler and Vireo to meet the minimum acreage requirement, plus an additional 17 karst 
features (including two cave clusters) for approximately 355 acres to complete the minimum acreage and caves required by the Permit. In 
addition, to meet the Preserve design configuration specifications outlined in the Permit, the Permit Holders are estimating that 
approximately 792 to 992 additional acres will be needed for the Warbler and Vireo. Therefore, the total acreage still needed for BCCP 
completion is approximately 1600 to 1800 acres.  This is an estimate since the USFWS will make the final determination on the amount of 
additional acreage needed to meet the Preserve design configuration specifications.  
 
Once all required actions are completed and a final “Completion Report” is submitted to USFWS, they will then review it and determinate 
compliance.  USFWS may determine that the mitigation requirement has been completed or they may determine that additional acres or 
actions are still needed, and the BCCP Permit Holders will then work to complete these actions. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            29 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

This report estimated that acquisition of this remaining 1600 to 1800 acres may cost from $24 million to $54 million.  The majority of this 
acquisition cost is expected to be borne by Travis County, though some of the needed acreage may be acquired by the City of Austin or 
other parties.  Funding for Travis County's portion of the land acquisition effort will come from Travis County's Tax Benefit Financing funds, 
and also BCCP Participation Certificate fees, grants, and land donations.  
 
Biological monitoring and management of the Preserve will continue since they are requirements of the Permit.  Long term funding for the 
management of Travis County's portion of the Preserve land will be paid using the BCCP’s Tax Benefit Financing mechanism which is a 
funding source for Travis County that provides funding for Preserve land acquisition and long term land management as established in the 
City of Austin and Travis County Interlocal Agreement/Shared Vision Agreement and included in the BCCP 10(a) permit.   
 
Monitoring and management activities include boundary fence installation; baseline biological survey of all significant biological features 
(endangered species habitat, sensitive areas, creeks, springs, caves, rare plants, etc) and ongoing monitoring of these features for biological 
health; GIS mapping of all roads, trails and environmental features; developing and conducting golden-cheeked warbler presence/absence 
surveys; maintaining roads and trails for staff use; management of populations of deer, feral hogs, brown-headed cowbirds, and red 
imported fire ants; management and oversight of adjacent developer activities on all preserve boundaries easements to prevent damage 
from erosion and sedimentation.  
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            30 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

TRAVIS COUNTY DRAINAGE BASIN STUDY 2009 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED  
The Travis County Drainage Basin Study was completed in March 2009.   
 
2. PURPOSE  
The purpose of the study is to develop a plan to address flood problems though an evaluation of problems on a watershed-wide basis to 
help guide Travis County in implementing measures to reduce the threat of flooding to structures and roadways. Travis County maintains 
over 1,200 miles of roads in the unincorporated area, and over 72 miles of the roads are located within the 100-year floodplain. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
The drainage basin study focused on areas of the County that were not being evaluated by others.  Almost 100 preliminary areas of interest 
were identified by County staff and citizens.  Detailed evaluation was conducted for each area.  Criteria were developed as a basis for 
screening and ranking the areas of interest for additional study and alternative analysis.  Criteria included threat to public safety, impact to 
emergency access, flooding of habitable structures and severity of the flood condition.  Engineering analysis was performed to narrow down 
the list to 40 priority areas of interest for which mitigation alternatives were developed.  Six of the areas include drainage retrofits to 
existing subdivisions; the remaining 34 are improvements to low-water crossings. 
 
4. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES 
Travis County is located is an area well known as “flash flood alley”.  With 72 miles of roads and nearly 7600 residents located within the 
100-year floodplain, flooding poses a serious threat to public health and safety and the potential for loss of life.  The primary goal of the 
study was to identify areas where flooding is a threat and to develop mitigation actions for each area. 
 
Travis County has floodplain management regulations (Chapter 64 of the Travis County Code) and drainage design regulations. In order to 
accomplish its purpose and objectives, this chapter utilizes methods and provisions to: 
 restrict or prohibit land uses that are dangerous to health, safety, or property in times of flood or cause excessive increases in erosion, 

flood heights, or velocities; 
 require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of 

initial construction; 
 control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers, which help accommodate or channel 

flood waters; 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            31 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 control filling, grading, dredging, and other development which may increase flood damage; and 
 regulate, including prohibiting, the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert flood waters or which may otherwise 

increase flood hazards in other areas. 
 
Travis County has drainage design regulations (Chapter 82 of the Travis County Code) in place for new development. In order to accomplish 
its purpose and objectives, this chapter utilizes methods and provisions to: 
 establish width requirements for right-of-way in Subdivision; 
 adopt based on the amount and kind of travel over each street or road in a Subdivision, reasonable specifications for the construction 

of each street or road; 
 adopt reasonable specifications to provide adequate drainage for each street or road in a subdivision in accordance with standard 

engineering practices; 
 adopt reasonable specifications that provide for drainage in the subdivision to efficiently manage the flow of stormwater runoff in the 

subdivision and coordinate subdivision drainage with the general storm drainage pattern for the area; and 
 require lot and block monumentation to be set by a registered professional surveyor before recordation of the plat. 

 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
The study identified $50,000,000 of mitigation actions.  The improvements will require several years to implement.  The County can use its 
own staff to implement some of the structural up grades.  However, most are beyond the current capabilities of staff and will require 
additional expertise and funding. 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
The detailed ranking criteria developed in the study prioritized the potential flood mitigation projects, thereby allowing the County to focus 
in its budget and annual work plans on the most severe flooding problems first. 
 
7. STATUS 
TNR Road and Bridge Division is addressing 7 of the low water crossings as a part of its annual work plan.  Two of the low-water crossing 
projects are included in TNR’s CIP.  An additional 2 projects to improve low water crossings were approved by voters in the 2011 Bond 
referendum. 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            32 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

8. NEXT STEPS 
The Drainage Basin Study should not be considered an all-inclusive study for Travis County; many watersheds were excluded for the study 
because they were being studied by others.  With the majority of the studies completed, it is important for the County to consolidate the 
results so that County wide priorities for flood mitigation can be developed. 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            33 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

2010/2011 HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN UPDATE 
 

1. DATE ADOPTED 
The completed plan was presented to the Commissioner’s Court on January 20, 2011 in a work session, and then submitted to the Texas 
Department of Public Safety Division of Emergency Management. When the State review is complete, the plan will go to FEMA for 
review and approval. It will be re-submitted to the Commissioners’ Court for adoption after any changes required by the State and 
FEMA are incorporated. 

 
2. PURPOSE (SPECIFIC REASONS WHY THE COUNTY COMPLETED OR USES THE PLAN) 

• FEMA requires local jurisdictions to update Hazard Mitigation Plans every 5 years to maintain eligibility for mitigation grants, 
including federal funds that become available after a declared disaster. 

• Plans keep local understanding of risks of natural disasters current 
• Updates to plans identify new mitigation projects 

 
3. OVERVIEW 
The plan examines Travis County’s risks from natural hazards, analyzes hazards that have occurred in the past, and identifies measures 
to be taken to reduce life and loss of property due to hazards in the future.   
 
Eight hazards were profiled: floods, tornadoes, wildland grass/brush fire, drought, severe storms, winter storms, seismic/earthquakes, 
and landslides. The hazards were ranked and evaluated using five criteria to identify those with the most potential impact to the County: 
1) history, 2) potential for mitigation, 3) presence of susceptible areas, 4) data availability, and 5) federal disaster declarations and local 
emergency declarations. A detailed risk assessment was then undertaken for the two hazards of greatest significance to Travis County, 
floods and tornadoes. 
 
Flooding remains the most significant risk in Travis County. An estimated 20% of buildings in the County are exposed to some degree of 
flooding. Nearly 6,800 buildings are located within flood hazard areas on FEMA maps. 

 
4. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES 
Develop long-term disaster resistance to protect people and property from losses due to natural hazards. 

a. Review actions that can be taken to reduce the exposure of people and property to natural hazards, identified in 2004 HMP. 
b. Report on progress made implementing actions since original plan approval  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            34 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

c. Re-evaluate and update risks to the community from natural hazards 
d. Identify new mitigation actions and/or update original actions  

 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
No capital projects are associated with this plan. 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
New action items for 2010/11 HMP Update: 

• Evaluate feasibility of structural elevations as flood mitigation on Lake Travis 
• Consider mitigation alternatives for Lake Travis properties, in light of new data and apply for grants to implement cost effective 

projects: 
o Elevation 
o Mitigation reconstruction 
o Acquisition / demolition 

• Establish central information line for County residents to call for information during post-disaster recovery, cleanup, mitigation, 
permitting 

• Complete acquisitions and demolition in Timber Creek to remove all remaining properties in 25-year floodplain 
• Continue acquisition/demolition on Citation Ave  
• Post information from Elevation mark Database on County web site 

 
Continue progress on original, 2004 actions items: 

• Improve consistency and efficiency of communications with public before and after natural disasters 
• Review flood history and vulnerability of flood-prone roads and bridges; work with TXDOT to factor safety considerations into 

upgrade reviews 
• Provide community outreach and education concerning winter storm alerts and preparatory actions for homes and businesses 
• Encourage the construction of tornado-safe community shelters 

 
7. STATUS 
The State review is underway. When complete, the plan will go to FEMA for review and approval. It will be re-submitted to the 
Commissioners’ Court for adoption after any changes required by the State and FEMA are incorporated. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            35 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

8. NEXT STEPS 
• Incorporate changes required by State and FEMA 
• Adopt Plan in final form 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            36 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

TRAVIS COUNTY STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (SWMP) 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED  
The first Travis County Storm Water Management Program (SWMP) 5-year Plan was approved by the Commissioners’ Court on January 29, 
2008 and submitted to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) for their approval. On May 4, 2009, TCEQ approved the 
SWMP Plan. This 5-year Permit TermThe term for the SWMP is ran from August 13, 2007 through August December 12, 20122013. On June 
19, 2009 the governor signed SB 1299 into law, amending Chapter 573 of the Texas Local Government Code to give Travis County 
additional, and explicit water quality authority to develop and enforce all aspects of the SWMP and to assess fees to support the program.  
A new SWMP was submitted to the TCEQ on June 10, 2014.  The SWMP is expected to be approved by the TCEQ and will be implemented 
through December 12, 2018, the end of current permit term.  
 
2. PURPOSE  
The SWMP is a comprehensive long-range plan of on-going activities performed by the County to prevent and reduce storm water pollution 
to our streams and lakes from storm water runoff and pollution discharges. The SWMP is mandated by the Texas Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (TPDES) State regulations for Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Operators under the Federal Clean 
Water Act. The SWMP requirements apply in the County MS4 area, which includes all unincorporated areas outside all municipal city limits, 
where Travis County is considered the MS4 Operator.  

 
3. OVERVIEW 
The SWMP activities are grouped into seven six primary areas, called Minimum Control Measures (MCMs). Each MCM consists of multiple 
specific Best Management Practices (BMPs) which are tasks that must be performed as scheduled in the 5-year planSWMP. The 5-year plan 
is required to be performed by the County within the Permit Term. At the conclusion of the first 5-year Permit Term, a new 5-year SWMP 
plan will be implemented. The second SWMP Permit Term is expected to run from August 13, 2012 to August 12, 2017, with the Permit 
Term and a new SWMP repeating every five years. 
 
TNR performs the majority of the SWMP activities through the Natural Resources and Environmental Quality (NREQ) Division and a core 
group of SWMP staff.  In TNR, the Development Services Division, Road and Fleet Maintenance Division, and the Public Works/Capital 
Improvements Project (CIP) Division also have a large role in these activities. Other key County SWMP activities are performed by the Travis 
County Attorney’s Office and  the Travis County Sheriff’s Office (Environmental Crimes Unit), the Texas AgriLife Extension Office in Travis 
County, the Austin/Travis County Health and Human Services Department (Environmental and Consumer Health Unit), and the Travis 
County Department of Emergency Services.  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            37 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 
4. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES 
The mandated goal is to prevent and reduce pollutant discharges of storm water from the urban storm drainage system or MS4. Seven 
Minimum Control Measures (MCMs) are the objectives that include more specific implementation strategies, tasks, and schedules. The 
seven six MCMs applicable to Travis county include:  

1. Public Education, Participation, and Involvement 
2. Public Participation 
3.2. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination  
4.3. Construction Site Runoff Controls (applies to Development Permits) 
5.4. Post-Construction Storm Water Management (applies to Development Permits) 
6.5. Pollution Prevention for County Operations (applies to Maintenance Operations) 
7.6. Authorization of County Construction Activities (applies to TNR capital road projects) 

 
Each MCM has multiple specific Best Management Practices (BMPs) tasks with measurable goals that must be performed. These BMP 
objectives were developed and implemented with specific strategies and policies in mind, as explained below. 
 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 
The TNR Capital Improvement Program implements MCM #7 of the SWMP, through the review and permitting of the CIP construction 
projects. Sufficient revenue must be included in bond project budgets to cover the cost of the temporary construction runoff controls and 
the permanent post-construction storm water ponds and controls required. 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 

 
The County selected the BMPs and measurable goals for the SWMP using the following strategies. The County evaluated the MS4 General 
Permit requirements, potential sources of pollution, the BMPs used by existing local storm water programs, and other established, similar 
programs. Existing County efforts, legal authorities, organizational resources and constraints, recent community input, and County revenue 
sources were evaluated. The BMPs in the SWMP were then selected in order to: 

 
• Meet the TCEQ-issued Small MS4 General Permit TXR040000 legal requirements; 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            38 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

• Use practices that have achieved success for other MS4 operators when performed correctly; 
• Prevent and reduce storm water pollution to the maximum extent practicable (MEP) from the sources required in the SWMP;  
• Adopt a level of storm water regulations county-wide which is equivalent and consistent with the other existing jurisdictions in the 

County and appropriate for the local community; 
• Include all eligible Travis County program efforts already being performed; 
• Keep program costs reasonable and affordable; 
• Integrate new water quality protection practices into existing related County programs (particularly TNR operations) where feasible; 
• Avoid duplication or redundancy with existing storm water jurisdictions, and partner with these jurisdictions where mutually desirable 

and beneficial to achieving SWMP goals; 
• Address any significant sources of storm water pollution not being emphasized by other jurisdictions; 
• Further address ongoing, significant construction activities in the County through additional construction runoff and post-construction BMPs, 

and consider the input of recent community storm water initiatives in this effort. 
 
The SWMP was is required to cover only the urbanized areas in the County (as described in the 2000 2010 Census) as a minimum. However, the 
following rationale was used in designating the scope of the MS4 county-wide: 

• Major sensitive water resources and storm water jurisdictions outside of urban areas made exclusion of these areas difficult, particularly 
the Edwards Aquifer, Austin ETJ, and Lake Travis (these areas already exceed MS4 General Permit requirements and there is a higher 
local community standard); 

• Adoption of storm water standards county-wide will ensure an equitable, minimum standard everywhere and not leave out any areas or 
residents; 

• Existing County drainage and storm water programs are already county-wide, making implementation of new BMPs only in urbanized 
areas inconsistent with existing practice and making administration more difficult; 

• Roadway infrastructure county-wide will benefit from BMPs to improve conveyance, flood control, erosion control; reduce sediment 
discharges, and extend pavement and embankment life. 

• Significant land development in Travis County is projected to continue into the foreseeable future and will continually expand the areas 
qualifying as urban. 

 
7. STATUS 
The SWMP is currently in the final first year of the first second 5-year plan. Travis County TNR has the resources and expects We are poised 
to fulfill with all requirements scheduled in the SWMP. A key implementation strategy being completed at this time is the adoption of 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            39 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

amendments to the Travis County to upgrade the environmental and storm water management requirements (Chapter 82) that must be 
implemented by the development community. The strategy also includes adoption of new Chapter 104 describing prohibitions against illicit 
discharges into the County’s MS4. 
 
8. NEXT STEPS 
The next steps for the SWMP are to complete the remaining Year 5 requirements. Also, before the end of Year 5, a new 5-year plan (SWMP) 
must be developed and submitted to TCEQ to be approved for the Second Permit Term. 
 
Key short term issues (five year horizon or less) must be addressed to fully implement the SWMP into the near future. These issues include: 
 
• Funding to maintain county-owned water quality treatment structures was increased for FY 2013.  As the county continuews to develop 

land and roadways, additional structures will be constructed and operated and funding for routine, long-term maintenance will be Road 
and bridge funds cannot be used outside of the accepted County right-of-way, even when funds would be used for on-going 
maintenance of County road drainage ways, drainage structures, ponds, and easements. Additional revenues sources will be necessary, 
such as a drainage fee,  in order to fully implement this key part of the SWMP responsibilities.  

• The staffing level and data management necessary to optimize SWMP implementation is expected to grow as regulations become more 
refined, as staggering growth continues in unincorporated areas, and in order to eliminate duplicative permitting efforts between 
jurisdictions (for instance, LCRA).  

• Bond-related CIP project estimates must include an adequate budget for all temporary controls during construction disturbance, 
permanent storm water controls, and land acquisition for placement of controls required by the SWMP.  

 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            40 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

WATER AVAILABILITY RULE 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
The rule was adopted by the Commissioners’ Court on January 31, 2012. 
 
2. PURPOSE 
The Water Availability Rule was established to provide a stopgap level of management concerning the current rates of over pumping of the 
Trinity Aquifer in western Travis County. The TCEQ identified the Hill Country Priority Groundwater Management Area (PGMA) in 1989 as 
needing more effective management of the Trinity Aquifer based on groundwater use, anticipated future demands, and the limited 
availability of this groundwater source to meet demands. To date, the TCEQ has been unable to create a Groundwater Conservation District 
(GCD) in southwest Travis County where the PGMA exists. Therefore, Travis County determined it will use its authority over subdivision 
approvals towards this end. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
On October 19, 2010, the Commissioners Court suspended approval of subdivisions using Trinity Aquifer groundwater and created a 
stakeholder committee to help develop new subdivision regulations regarding water availability. After several meetings and hearings, a 
proposed water availability rule was prepared. Total consensus was not reached but many contentious issues were narrowed, particularly 
issues relating to lot size and the use of amenity ponds based on groundwater. The rule strengthens the drinking water and fire protection 
planning requirements applicable to a person who proposes to subdivide land. The subdivision proposal must include a drought contingency 
plan, a more detailed survey of existing wells in use near the proposed subdivision, requires installation of a well for monitoring by the 
County, and limits the use of groundwater for aesthetic purposes. There are certain exemptions from these requirements for small scale 
subdivisions. Lot size minimums or an alternative to limit impervious cover are established for both subdivisions using ground or surface 
water sources. 
 
4.  GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
Travis County seeks to greatly reduce the vulnerability of residents and businesses to water shortages or loss of water due to drought, 
inadequate surface water supply infrastructure, or drying up of a water supply well. This is accomplished by requiring the subdivider of land 
to demonstrate in the preliminary plan and final plat application that a sound and adequate source of water is available commensurate with 
the anticipated population to be served. 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            41 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

5.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
None identified. 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
The rule includes a required form that must be submitted by the applicant and certified by either a professional geoscientist or engineer 
that groundwater will be available for expected demand for a 30-year time horizon. The form was made available by TCEQ for use by all 
local jurisdictions that approve of the subdivision of land. In FY 2012, TNR will hire a professional geoscientist using existing levels of funding 
to provide technical review of these proposals. Additionally, TNR expects to begin an effort to monitor and collect groundwater-related 
data, to assess existing research associated with the Trinity Aquifer as it related to water availability, water quality, and trends. The TNR 
website also includes a mechanism that residents can use to report information on well conditions, water levels, and supply problems. 
 
7. STATUS 
The rule has only recently been adopted and no significant changes in status can be reported. 
 
8.  NEXT STEPS 
The State Office of Administrative Hearings has convened a contested case hearing process that will eventually lead to a proposal for 
decision by the Commission that governs TCEQ. The case decision will likely identify the preferred geographical boundaries and other 
features for one or more GCDs within the Hill Country PGMA. This process has been delayed pending the advent of possible legislation in 
2013 to accomplish creation of a southwest Travis County GCD. In the event a GCD is created, confirmed, and funded, the Travis County 
subdivision approval process will work in concert and complement the purpose of the GCD. 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            42 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

WATER QUALITY PROTECTION RULE 
 
1.  DATE ADOPTED 
August 14, 2012. 
 
2.  PURPOSE 
Federal and state requirements under the Clean Water Act mandated that the County update its water quality protection requirements so 
that they are consistent with recent changes to the NPDES storm water program. Under these requirements, Travis County is a designated 
small MS4 due to its extensive urbanization.  
 
3.  OVERVIEW 
In 2012, Travis County successfully completed the intial NPDES required Storm Water Management Plan (SWMP). A new SWMP must be 
prepared by June, 2014, for the upcoming five-year period. The County's MS4 permit sets out a broad mandate requiring the County to 
implement rules that: 

• cover our entire jurisdiction; 
• control pollutant runoff from construction sites disturbing more than one acre of land; 
• ensure developments adequately manage runoff after being built; 
• eliminate pollutant discharges into our storm sewers from industrial and commercial enterprises; 
• reduce pollutants in runoff from road construction; and  
• set out enforcement policies that will deter and correct violations. 

 
Collectively, the proposed 2012 rules would resulted in greater protection and maintenance of water quality in Travis County rivers, 
streams, and lakes. These proposals wouldThe rules also expanded consistency between jurisdictions in a manner that should makes 
development design and approval processes more efficient and cost-effective. For example, the County proposes to adopted various 
technical criteria already in place in jurisdictions including Austin and the Lower Colorado River Authority. The rule was proposed to the 
Commissioners’ Court on February 7, 2012 when a public hearing was convened. The rule is expected to be recommended for adoption this 
Spring after consideration of public comments. 
 
4.  GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
The ultimate objective of the 1972 federal Clean Water Act (CWA) is to restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity 
of the Nation’s water. Two national goals support this objective:  elimination of all pollutant discharges to navigable waters by 1985 and 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            43 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

achievement of fishable and swimable waters whereever attainable by 1983. It was widely recognized that the ambitious goals were not 
reached by addressing only municipal and industrial wastewater discharges. In 1987, amendments to the CWA specifically enacted 
standards to address pollutants discharged in storm water runoff. By law, each MS4 must prohibit non-stormwater discharges into storm 
sewers and must require sotrm water runoff controls to reduce the discharge of pollutants to the maximum extent practicable, including 
management practices, control techniques, system design and engineering methods.  
 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
All roadway CIP projects must include adequate construction controls and post-construction treatment of roadway runoff associated with 
the roadway. The rule specifically describes the requirements andtechnical standards that must be met in the construction of TC-funded 
roadways. Projects are individually approved and a storm water permit is issued by TNR and overseen by storm water inspectors. This 
ensures compliance with the County’s MS4 permit. 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
The SWMP, described earlier in this plan, provides the programmatic implementation details of TNR in its efforts to fully comply with the 
TCEQ-issued MS4 permit. The Water Quality Protection Rule is one major task in the SWMP. 
 
7. STATUS 
The Water Quality Protection Rules were adopted and effective on August 14, 2012.Travis County’s MS4 permit and its SWMP establish 
August 12, 2012 as the latest date on which to adopt final rules to set the minimum standards and practices acceptable under the 
federal/state framework. TNR staff is on track to meet this goal of rule adoption. 
 
8. NEXT STEPS 
TCEQ must adopt a renewal of the Small MS4 general permit and make that available by August 12, 2012. Once the general permit is issued, 
the TCEQ will allow Small MS4s like TC to submit a Notice of Intent and new SWMP to cover the tasks required for the upcoming 5-year 
permit term. TNR will is considering implementation of additional rule making because of if there are new, required SWMP elements that 
must be addressed. Additionally, TC will continue rule making efforts to maintain consistency and equal stringency with neighboring 
jurisdictions’ storm water requirements and technical criteria. TNR anticipates further development of innovative alternatives to traditional 
storm water controls, such as the use of low impact development (LID) methods and placement of green infrastructure. Emerging 
technology shows that LID alternatives can be cost effective and require less of a land footprint. LID technologies seek to mimic pre-
development hydrology to reduce the volume of storm water that leaves a site.  
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            44 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

CAMPO 2035 PLAN 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
The CAMPO 2035 Regional Transportation Plan was adopted on May 24, 2010 by the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board.  Travis County 
traditionally adopts the CAMPO long range transportation plan as its transportation plan.  Federal law requires CAMPO to update the long 
range transportation plan every five years.  Next Plan adoption is expected in May 2015.  Amendments to the Plan are considered between 
Plan updates and are considered on a semiannual basis.   
 
Amendments- Since the Plan’s adoption, amendments were approved by the Transportation Policy Board on January 10, 2011.  These 
amendments included the addition of arterials to the Plan identified as Travis County’s Illustrative List.  CAMPO transportation plans have 
historically included all of Travis County’s existing and planned arterial roadways. By including all arterials without regard to funding 
constraint and year of expenditure estimates, the County’s authority to preserve right-of-way and require arterial roadway improvements 
from developers was established through the use of the Roadway Element of the plan.  The CAMPO 2035 Plan is financially constrained in 
that no project can be included unless a project sponsor can certify that funds will be available within designated planning horizons. This 
change required the elimination of many “unfunded” arterial projects.  Without the ability to preserve right-of-way and require developer 
contributions, future cost savings on future transportation projects would be lost.  Without an Illustrative List, the County would not have 
the authority to continue this practice. 
 
Horizon Issue- For areas under air quality non-attainment, the long range plan is updated every three years.  It is expected that the region or 
parts of the 5-county region may be declared as non-attainment once the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) finalizes the new ozone 
standard as required in the Clean Air Act.  It was expected that the new standard would be released on July 29, 2011; however, notification 
was received that there will be a delay in the announcement and no new date has been provided.   
 
Currently, the region’s national ambient air quality standard for ozone is at 73 ppb (8-hour standard) under the current 75 ppb (8-hour 
standard); the new standard is expected to be between 60 ppb and 70 ppb.  Once the new ozone standard has been identified, 
implementation rules and designation of which areas in the region are identified as non-attainment will occur.  This could take between 1 
and 2 years of the setting of the new ozone standard.  Once the designation is determined, the region will have one year to bring its long-
range plan under conformity.  If the Plan is non-conforming, all transportation projects regardless of funding source could be stopped until 
plan conformity is reached (see Figure 15 for additional information).   
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            45 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Figure 15 
EPA’S PROPOSED 2011 OZONE STANDARDS AND NONATTAINMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
Ground-level ozone is a federally regulated air pollutant.  Ozone is not emitted directly into the air but is formed through chemical 
reactions between natural and man-made emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and nitrogen oxides (NOx) in the presence of 
heat and sunlight.  Reducing ozone levels requires reductions in VOCs and NOx.  Common sources of VOC and NOx are motor vehicles, 
industrial processes, electric generating facilities, construction equipment, lawn and garden equipment, fueling facilities. 
 
EPA proposes more stringent federal ozone standards.  On January 7, 2010, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) proposed a 
more stringent primary ozone standard in a range of 0.060 to 0.070 parts per million (ppm), or 60 to 70 parts per billion (ppb).  The current 
standard is 0.075 parts per million (75 parts per billion).  EPA has not yet finalized where within that range they will set the level. 
 
EPA also proposed a different secondary standard (currently the two standards are identical) that is calculated using weighted hourly 
averages.  EPA requires regions to comply with both standards. 
 
Protection of public health and environment is the reason for the more restrictive ozone standards.  The primary standard protects public 
health; the secondary standard protects the environment.  High ozone causes irritation to throat and lungs, diminished lung capacity, 
aggravation of asthma or other respiratory problems. Increased health care costs and school absences occur.  Exposure to high ozone 
damages sensitive vegetation and trees. 
 
The region’s air quality compliance is threatened.  Our region’s current design value (the three-year rolling average of 4th-highest readings 
on which compliance is based) of 73 ppb exceeds all values in the 60 to 70 ppb proposed range.   
 
EPA could designate part or all of the region nonattainment for ozone.  We would likely be classified as marginal or moderate, the least 
severe categories.   A nonattainment designation has significant, and long lasting, implications for the region’s transportation planning, 
economic development and quality of life.   
 
Nonattainment requirements include: State and Federally enforceable state implementation plan (SIP) developed by TCEQ; transportation 
plans, programs and projects must pass transportation conformity reviews; nonattainment New Source Review requires offsets from 
industry; general conformity for federal projects and two 10 year maintenance plans for extended commitments after the area attains the 
standard. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            46 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
Transportation conformity increases costs and time for conducting transportation planning. Difficulty in demonstrating transportation 
conformity can delay transportation projects. The Federal Highway Administration can withhold federal transportation funding if an area 
cannot demonstrate transportation conformity or the state fails to produce an approvable SIP.  Transportation conformity must be 
demonstrated one year after the effective date of designation. 
 
Economic development potential can be diminished by the negative stigma of a nonattainment designation. Diversion of resources to fund 
emission controls results in costs to businesses and the public. Nonattainment can place restrictions on business operations and expansion.  
General conformity requirements may affect some economic development. 
 
EPA has not finalized the 2011 Ozone Standards.  EPA has postponed this decision several times, most recently the scheduled July 29, 2011 
announcement.  They now anticipate a final decision coming sometime in summer 2011.  If that happens, we can expect final 
nonattainment designations sometime between summer 2012 and summer 2013.   
 
 
2. PURPOSE 
Travis County is part of a five county metropolitan planning organization (MPO) known as the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (CAMPO).   In 1962, the United States Congress passed legislation that required the formation of an MPO for any urbanized 
area (UZA) with a population greater than 50,000.  Federal funding for transportation projects and programs is channeled through this 
planning process. MPOs were created in order to ensure that existing and future expenditures of governmental funds for transportation 
projects and programs are “based on a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive (3-C) planning process”.  Federal law requires that 
MPOs complete a metropolitan transportation planning process which includes the development of a long range transportation plan that 
covers a planning horizon of at least twenty years.   
 
Travis County adopts the CAMPO long range transportation plan as its transportation plan.  Travis County uses the CAMPO long range plan 
as the basis to review for transportation needs in the land development process, development of capital improvement projects, 
identification of regional transportation policies, and identification of needs and connectivity between other jurisdictions and agencies.   
 
Horizon Issue- Two changes in the current CAMPO plan have caused the need for the County to develop its own long range transportation 
plan.   First, financial constraint of the plan has limited the number of projects that are currently shown in the Plan which limits the County’s 
ability to plan for future projects.    Without the “Illustrative List”, Travis County could not exact for future right-of-way acquisitions along 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            47 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_Congress
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Urban_area
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Urban_area


Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

corridors that were not included in the “constrained” project list.  Secondly, the Policy Board’s directive to provide for a “centers concept” 
to guide transportation investment assumes "the region establishes policies and incentives to accommodate new growth into multiple, high 
density, mixed use centers around the region”.  Currently, there are a limited number of mixed use centers in the unincorporated areas of 
the County and Travis County currently has no authority to regulate land use.  Without land use authority, the County will have to use 
incentives to facilitate growth in these identified center locations.   CAMPO staff has been reticent in allowing jurisdictions to make 
amendments to the Centers concept since it was the basis for the demographic forecast that drives the transportation model.  County staff 
will seek to make changes to these Centers in the next plan amendment process and will be providing recommendations in the future 
County transportation plan. 
 
3. OVERVIEW 
The CAMPO 2035 Plan differs from previous plans of the past especially with regard to the ability to include future arterial projects, 
designation of projects in funding horizons and how the plan has forecasted growth.  Past plans were based on a “trends scenario” that 
forecasted growth at the same rate and in the same development patterns that were observed in the past.   The CAMPO 2035 Plan assumes 
that the region will work toward implementation of a network of centers oriented around transportation investments included in the Plan.  
The Centers concept is intended to serve as a guide for where transportation investments and planning resources could be targeted to 
encourage development of a connected regional network of high density, mixed use activity centers (see Map 1).   
 
Previous plans were not as strictly financially constrained; thereby, the plans expressed a more robust transportation network that was built 
on added capacity projects, many that would not have been completed within the 25-year time frame of the plans.  The CAMPO Mobility 
2030 Plan assumed that approximately $23 billion would be available to construct, operate, and maintain the regional transportation 
system over the 25 year timeframe of the plan. CAMPO estimated that only 54% of the projects that were identified in the CAMPO 2030 
Plan could have been built.  The CAMPO 2035 Plan estimates that approximately $28 billion would be available to support construction, 
operation and maintenance of the transportation system between 2010 and 2035 from Federal, State, and local sources.  Of that $28 
billion, approximately $13 billion would be available to support added capacity projects and other improvements to the system over the 
next 25 years.  Travis County has approximately $1.2 billion in the current Plan for added capacity improvements. 
 
Horizon Issue- Financial constraint in the current Plan was identified differently amongst the members of the five county region.  The use of 
different funding ability scenarios has led to project lists that are not comparable across jurisdictions and agencies.  Concerns exist that 
jurisdictions that used different funding scenarios have an advantage since the ability to fund more projects, especially with regard to new 
sources of funding and short deadlines on applications, limits the ability to apply for those funds when a Plan amendment is necessary. 
  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            48 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Major Components of the CAMPO 2035 Plan 
Roadways (see Map 2) 
Toll Roads and Tolled Express Lanes- Under the 2035 Plan, the existing system of regional toll roads and tolled express lanes will be 
expanded. Major projects include: 

• US 290 E (US 183 to Parmer Lane) 
•  “Y” at Oak Hill US 290 West and SH 71 West 
• SH 45 SW 
• Loop 1 Express Lanes (Parmer Lane to Slaughter Lane) (Managed lanes) 
• 183 A Extension 
• US 183 S (Springdale Rd. to Patton Ave) 
• 183 N Express Lanes (RM 620 to Loop 1) (Managed lanes) 
• SH 130 in Caldwell County 
• Parmer Lane (RM 620 to Loop 1) (Express lanes) 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            49 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Map 1 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            50 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Map 2 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            51 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Arterials- The CAMPO 2035 Plan includes expansions and extensions to the region’s roadway network both on and off the state system. 
These facilities serve as the circulatory system providing connectivity within and between communities.   The focus of state and federal 
funding will be on regionally significant roadways.   The CAMPO 2035 Plan also identifies numerous projects which would be paid for 
entirely with local funding. 
 
CAMPO Priorities for Improving and Expanding Arterials (identified in the CAMPO 2035 Plan) 

• Improving safety and security 
• Supporting public transportation 
• Serving expected and desired future growth in the region 
• Relieving existing congestion 

 
Horizon Issue- The definition for regionally significant projects is currently being reviewed by the Technical Advisory Committee.  Concerns 
with the definition relate to constraining the ability to apply for grant funds and the application of non-attainment restrictions to arterial 
projects. 
 
Transit (see Map 3) 
The CAMPO 2035 Plan provides a regional vision for major transit investments for the region.   Included is the CapMetro All Systems Go! 
plan and high capacity regional transit lines serving the five-county area.   The future regional system includes: 
 
Commuter Rail- Plan includes improvements to Capital Metro’s “Red Line” (Leander-Downtown MetroRail line), by increasing capacity along 
that line, and extending service to Pflugerville, Round Rock and Elgin. Commuter rail service is also planned by the Lone Star Rail District to 
connect Georgetown to San Antonio. 
 
Urban Rail- The 2035 Plan includes a streetcar rail line that would serve downtown Austin and eventually connect to the Mueller 
redevelopment and to Austin Bergstrom International Airport, currently under consideration by the City of Austin. 
 
Intercity Bus Service- CARTS currently operates several intercity bus routes in the region. The 2035 Plan calls for this system to be expanded 
with connections to outlying communities that have been identified as future Centers. 
 
Express Bus and Commuter Bus- Capital Metro, CARTS, and TxTRAM currently operate express bus and/or commuter bus service.  
Expansion of these services is planned.  This service provides high-speed, non-stop service between suburban/rural communities and the  

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            52 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Map 3 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            53 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

City of Austin’s central business district or a regional intermodal station- The 2035 Plan calls for this system to be expanded to serve 
additional communities. 
 
Rapid Bus- This service is defined as semi-rapid, limited stop, using rubber-tired vehicles on roadways in combination with intelligent 
transportation system (ITS) to speed up buses through congested locations.   Funding has been identified for North Lamar/South Congress 
with additional lines planned for corridors in the urban area. 
 
Local Bus, Paratransit, vanpools and carpools- The CAMPO 2035 Plan calls for improvements and expansion to the system of local buses, 
demand responsive public transportation, vanpools, and carpools currently operated by CARTS and Capital Metro in the region. 
 
Public Transportation Challenges (identified in the CAMPO 2035 Plan) 

• Meet increasing demand 
• Maintain affordability 
• Coordinate across multiple boundaries and service providers 
• Identify regional funding mechanisms 
• Improve land use patterns and roadway designs to support transit 

 
Horizon Issue- The CAMPO 2035 Plan leans heavily on increasing and providing new transit and rail services within the 5-county region.  
Many of the routes described in the Plan provided service to Centers or suburban and rural locations that had no sponsors identified.  
Additionally, as transit and rail plans are being developed, partnerships in funding these plans will be sought as was most recently seen in 
the City of Austin’s request to discuss financial participation in Urban Rail.   Travis County can expect to be sought as partners in future plans 
from CapMetro such as the “Green line”, and Lone Star Rail’s Commuter line. 
 
2035 Plan Strategies for Bicycle and Pedestrian (identified in CAMPO 2035 Plan) 

• Maintaining existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities.   
• Ensuring bicycle and pedestrian facilities are developed in conjunction with roadway projects. 
• Using discretionary funds at the regional level to focus on filling gaps in urban areas, and  
• Funding projects with no other funding sources available. 

 
4.  GOALS AND OBJECTIVES (see Figure 16) 
Vision Statement: Develop a comprehensive multimodal regional transportation system that safely and efficiently addresses mobility needs 
over time, is economically and environmentally sustainable, and supports regional quality of life. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            54 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
Goals 

1.  Maintain and enhance mobility and access of goods and people within the region. 
2. Improve connectivity within and between the various transportation modes. 
3.  Improve the efficiency and performance of the transportation system. 
4.  Ensure that the transportation system can be maintained and operated over time. 
5.  Maximize the economic competiveness of the region. 
6.  Support economic development and efficient use of land. 
7.  Maximize the affordability of the transportation system. 
8.  Minimize air pollution, greenhouse gas emissions, and energy consumption related to the transportation system. 
9.  Minimize negative impacts to environmental resources, noise, and neighborhood character. 
10. Ensure that the benefits and impacts of the transportation system are equitably distributed regardless of income, age, race, or 

ethnicity. 
11. Increase the safety of the transportation system. 
12. Increase the security of the transportation system and the region. 

 
 
5. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 
The CAMPO 2035 Plan identifies a list of arterial projects that support the CAMPO preferred concept.  The list provides a guide for 
investments in the 25 year planning horizon.  In the Plan, staff identified over $1.2 billion of arterial projects that would include the 
provision of bike lanes and sidewalks.  Funding sources for these projects include grants (STP-MM and Proposition 12), and general 
obligation bond funds through voter approved bond elections. 
 
Horizon Issue- While County staff does not recognize the list as a prioritized project list, CAMPO staff has organized the list into funding 
horizons:  short term (0 to 10 years), medium term (10 to 15 years), and long term (15+ years).   Another issue has been the reporting of 
roadway projects through two lists.  One list, “Regionally Funded Projects” identifies projects that are able to use Federal, State or local 
funding.  Very few local projects were listed under this section.  A second list known as “100% Locally Funded Projects” identifies a majority 
of the arterial projects for the region.  However, a statement was included with the list that requires a plan amendment to utilize Federal or 
State funding.  In the last call for projects, the issue came up that most projects would not be eligible for these Federal funds if “the second 
list” was not eligible to receive Federal and State funds.  Ultimately CAMPO staff did allow the projects to be eligible; however, clarity on the 
display of the project list is needed in future plans. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            55 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Figure 156 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

 
Vision: Develop a comprehensive multimodal regional transportation system that safely and efficiently addresses mobility needs over time, 
is economically and environmentally sustainable, and supports regional quality of life. 
 
Goal 1-Mobility and Access: Maintain and enhance mobility and access of goods and people within the region. 
Objective 1.1: Manage growth of vehicle miles of travel over time. 
Objective 1.2: Reduce or maintain travel times. 
Objective 1.3: Manage roadway congestion and minimize the number of roadways experiencing unacceptable congestion levels. 
Objective 1.4: Increase capacity of regional transportation system, including transit, roadway, freight, and bicycle/pedestrian modes. 
Objective 1.5: Reduce travel delay and increase predictability of travel time. 
Objective 1.6: Provide appropriate levels of public transportation service to the entire region. 
 
Goal 2-Connectivity: Improve connectivity within and between the various transportation modes. 
Objective 2.1: Develop a connected system of regional arterials that allow alternative routes of travel. 
Objective 2.2: Provide roadway and bicycle/pedestrian access to transit stations and stops. 
Objective 2.3: Provide for a seamless public transportation system with viable connections and transfer points between passenger rail, fixed 
route bus, and rural community transit systems. 
Objective 2.4: Connect transportation bicycle facilities with recreational bicycle facilities, particularly where recreational facilities are 
destinations. 
Objective 2.5: Provide connections that allow for intermodal transfers between long haul truck freight, short haul truck freight, rail freight, 
and air freight. 
 
Goal 3-Efficiency: Improve the efficiency and performance of the transportation system. 
Objective 3.1: Develop a roadway system that is compatible with the needs of all modes, including transit, motor vehicles, freight, and 
bicycle/pedestrian modes. 
Objective 3.2: Emphasize improvements that increase the transportation system’s person-carrying capacity. 
Objective 3.3: Use travel demand management and transportation system management measures to ensure efficient use of the 
transportation system. 
Objective 3.4: Eliminate bottlenecks. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            56 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Objective 3.5: Build on the existing transportation network. 
 
Goal 4-System Preservation: Ensure that the transportation system can be maintained and operated over time. 
Objective 4.1: Maximize the ability of the system to pay for its own maintenance through fares and user fees. 
Objective 4.2: Ensure that adequate funding exists to maintain and preserve the existing and future transportation system. 
Objective 4.3: Minimize the cost of operating and maintaining the future transportation system. 
Objective 4.4: Protect and enhance existing public and private investments in the freight network. 
 
Goal 5-Economy: Maximize the economic competitiveness of the region. 
Objective 5.1: Enhance and protect regional quality of life. 
Objective 5.2: Increase the sustainability of local economies. 
Objective 5.3: Increase access to employment and educational opportunities. 
Objective 5.4: Increase access to Austin-Bergstrom International Airport. 
Objective 5.5: Reduce the transportation costs associated with the movement of goods and people. 
 
Goal 6-Land Use and Economic Development: Support economic development and efficient use of land. 
Objective 6.1: Implement regional transportation projects that support existing and future desired land uses. 
Objective 6.2: Develop a transportation system that supports sustainable development patterns. 
Objective 6.3: Develop a regional transportation system that leverages local investments and economic development policies. 
Objective 6.4: Enhance bicycle and pedestrian facilities within higher intensity mixed-use areas. 
Objective 6.5: Encourage mixed land use patterns that support walking, biking and using transit. 
 
Goal 7-Cost Effectiveness: Maximize the affordability of the transportation system. 
Objective 7.1: Where appropriate, implement lower cost transportation improvements including: Intelligent Transportation Systems 
deployment (ITS), operational improvements, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, and travel demand management strategies. 
Objective 7.2: Minimize total cost per system user. 
Objective 7.3: Expedite system improvements to reduce the impacts of inflation, and increase net present value. 
 
Goal 8-Air Quality, Climate Protection, and Energy: Minimize air pollution and greenhouse gas emissions. 
Objective 8.1: Implement a transportation system that reduces transportation related air pollution emissions including VOC and NOx. 
Objective 8.2: Implement a transportation system that reduces CO2 emissions. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            57 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Objective 8.3: Implement a transportation system that reduces energy consumption by reducing per capita vehicle miles traveled, 
increasing fuel efficiency, and improving the overall energy efficiency of the transportation system. 
Objective 8.4: Implement a transportation system that supports energy-efficient land use patterns. 
 
Goal 9-Environment, Noise, and Neighborhood Character: Minimize negative impacts to environmental resources, noise, and 
neighborhood character. 
Objective 9.1: Develop a transportation system that minimizes direct and cumulative impacts on the 100-year floodplain, Edwards Aquifer 
recharge and contributing zones, historic landmarks, and other environmentally or culturally sensitive areas. 
Objective 9.2: Develop a transportation system that has a positive impact on regional water quality and availability. 
Objective 9.3: Develop a transportation system that minimizes impacts of transportation-related noise on neighboring properties. 
Objective 9.4: Develop transportation projects that reinforce a sense of place at the regional and local levels. 
Objective 9.5: Implement regional transportation projects that are context sensitive and create positive aesthetic impacts. 
Objective 9.6: Avoid or mitigate adverse impacts of transportation projects through existing neighborhoods. 
 
Goal 10-Social Equity: Ensure that the benefits and impacts of the transportation system are equitably distributed regardless of income, 
age, race, or ethnicity. 
Objective 10.1: Improve access to jobs, healthcare, cultural and/or recreational opportunities for everyone and reduce opportunity 
disparities. 
Objective 10.2: Provide greater transportation service to historically underserved areas of the region defined as “Environmental Justice” 
areas. 
Objective 10.3: Develop a transportation system that provides viable alternatives to the automobile for travel. 
Objective 10.4: Develop the transportation system with input from low income and minority residents. 
Objective 10.5: Avoid creating negative impacts which disproportionately impact environmental justice populations. 
 
Goal 11-Safety: Increase the safety of the transportation system. 
Objective 11.1: Implement transportation projects which improve conditions at high crash locations. 
Objective 11.2: Improve safety at railroad crossings, through implementation of grade separation and other strategies. 
Objective 11.3: Improve the safety of bridges by providing for adequate maintenance and upgrades. 
Objective 11.4: Construct bicycle and pedestrian facilities which provide safe accommodation for bicyclists and pedestrians. 
 
Goal 12-Security: Increase the security of the transportation system and the region. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            58 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Objective 12.1: Develop a regional roadway and rail system that provides for safe transportation of hazardous materials. 
Objective 12.2: Develop a regional roadway system that supports rapid response times by emergency vehicles. 
Objective 12.3: Develop a regional transportation system that minimizes mobility loss during floods, natural disasters, and other incidents. 
Objective 12.4: Develop a regional roadway system that supports hurricane evacuation. 
Objective 12.5: Implement intelligent transportation systems which can support incident management, provide real time tracking of transit 
vehicles, and provide other security benefits. 
 
 
6. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 
The CAMPO 2035 Plan includes a set of policies (see Figure 17) that guides the implementation of projects.  Of importance to Travis County, 
two policies define how project funding is to be allocated with regard to federal funding (Policy 3 and 4).  Another policy (Policy 26) 
recommends supporting the Centers land use policy.  Policy 18- State Highway 45 Southwest is in opposition to the actions taken by the 
Court before the adoption of the CAMPO 2035 Plan.  
 
CAMPO STP-MM/Centers Policy-  CAMPO Policy 3-  “Target 50 percent of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP-MM) to 
support development of the mixed use activity centers indicated on the CAMPO Centers Map.  (The same project may address both the 15% 
bicycle and pedestrian aside and the 50% Centers set aside policies. 
 
CAMPO Bike/Pedestrian Policy- CAMPO Policy 4- “Allocate at least 15 percent of available CAMPO discretionary funding (STP-MM) to 
bicycle and pedestrian projects through the CAMPO Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) process, using the Priority Pedestrian 
Districts Map and Priority Regional Bicycle Corridors Map in the project evaluation.”  (The same project may address both the 15% bicycle 
and pedestrian set aside and the 50% Centers set aside policies.) 
 
Land Use Coordination Policy-  Policy 26-  “Support development of high density, mixed use activity centers in the locations shown on the 
CAMPO Centers map, and work with local jurisdictions and others to accommodate 31% of regional population and 38% of regional jobs in 
activity centers shown on the CAMPO Centers map by 2035. CAMPO will support achievement of the goals through activities such as: 
monitoring and reporting on growth and investment in the Centers, dissemination of best practices and tools, planning support, and 
funding for transportation investments. As appropriate, member jurisdictions will support development of centers through local planning 
and other methods.”  Travis County has supported this policy through developing road prioritization criteria that awards more points for 
projects that are in or near Center locations. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            59 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

State Highway 45 Southwest- CAMPO Policy 18- This policy relates to the construction of SH 45 SW.  The Travis County Commissioners Court 
has voted to remove SH 45 SW from the CAMPO 2035 plan and remove it from the TIP. 
 
Bond Planning Process-   The creation of additional implementation strategies will be a result of the development of the County’s 
transportation plan.  Currently, County staff has developed “Threshold and Prioritization Criteria for Mobility Projects” that is used in the 
bond planning process.   While this process does not provide specificity to what projects should be implemented, criteria has been 
identified to prioritize projects.  Currently, prioritization is scored through project readiness, existing need, future need, cost 
effectiveness/leveraging, project location; i.e., centers concept, targeted growth area and project effectiveness (type of project). 
 

Figure 167 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION POLICIES 

 
Plan Compliance and Funding Policies 
1. For a CAMPO member jurisdiction to receive federal-aid funding under this plan, their local transportation plan or transportation element 
of their comprehensive plan must be consistent with the CAMPO Long Range Plan. 
 
2. For a CAMPO member jurisdiction to receive federal-aid funding under this plan, the jurisdiction must adhere to the policies of and work 
toward implementing the projects of the CAMPO long range plan.  
 
3. Target 50 percent of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP-MM) to support development of the mixed use activity centers 
indicated on the CAMPO Centers Map. (The same project may address both the 15% bicycle and pedestrian set aside and the 50% Centers 
set aside policies.) 
 
4. Allocate at least 15 percent of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP MM) to bicycle and pedestrian projects through the 
CAMPO TIP process, using the Priority Pedestrian Districts Map and Priority Regional Bicycle Corridors Map in the project evaluation. (The 
same project may address both the 15% bicycle and pedestrian set aside and the 50% Centers set aside policies.)  
 
Congestion Management and Transportation Demand Management Policies 
5. Require travel demand management and transportation systems management projects and programs in conjunction with all new 
federally-funded added-capacity roadway projects. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            60 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

6. Use transportation investments to support continued reduction of per capita vehicle miles traveled. 
 
7. Consider transportation improvements that increase person carrying capacity, rather than vehicle carrying capacity of the regional 
transportation system. 
 
8. Expand the public transportation system to keep up with the region’s mobility needs over time. 
 
Environmental Policies  
9. Develop and implement a transportation system that reduces dependence on petroleum. 
 
10. Develop a transportation system that minimizes impacts on the 100-year flood plain, Edwards Aquifer recharge and contributing zones, 
and other environmentally sensitive areas while providing for regional mobility. 
 
11. Reduce vehicle emissions through implementation of transportation investments and other activities. 
 
12. Develop a transportation system that incorporates context-sensitive design principles into the design of transportation projects. 
 
Roadway and Tolling Policies 
13. Facilitate preservation of right-of-way that is adequate to accommodate the planned functional classification of the roadway as shown 
in the CAMPO long range plan.  Adequate right of way shall be determined by locally-adopted standards or engineering discretion, or along 
state system rights of way, consistent with standards promulgated by TXDoT, and should generally fall within the width ranges shown in 
Part 4 of the CAMPO 2035 Plan. 
 
14. Any existing roadway to which additional tolled capacity is added shall continue to be maintained and improved and to provide the 
same amount or more non-tolled capacity as the roadway currently provides. To the extent that it is within the authority of the toll 
operator and the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board, the non-tolled capacity shall have the same number or fewer traffic control devices 
as the current roadway except where law and/or safety requires otherwise. 
 
15. The initial operation of any tolled facility shown on Map 3 shall include rapid bus traffic. At such time that congestion on the tolled 
facility warrants dedication of a lane to rapid bus and high occupancy vehicles to ensure their swiftest passage, an existing lane will be 
dedicated and any excess capacity within the dedicated lane shall be available to other vehicles at a tolled rate. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            61 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
16. At the discretion of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (“CTRMA”), some or all of the following tolled facilities, and projects 
within the transportation corridor (as defined below) of these tolled facilities, may be combined into one or more systems for financing 
purposes: 

• 183A; 
• US 290(E) from US 183(S) to Parmer Lane; 
• US 183(S) from US 290(E) to SH 71(E); 
• SH 71(W) from Silvermine to US 290(W); 
• US 290(W) from west of Scenic Brook to east of Williamson Creek and 
• Loop 1 Managed Lanes from Parmer Lane (FM 734) to Slaughter Lane (the “System Eligible Projects”). 

 
For non-System Eligible Projects, surplus revenue (as defined in Section 370.003 (12), Texas Transportation Code), to the extent permitted 
by law, may be made available for use in the transportation corridor by the CTRMA for the following purposes: 
 

1.  Improvement of the alternative non-tolled capacity including improvement of arterials impacting or impacted by the tolled 
facility; 

2.  Further implementation of non-tolled access to tolled lanes by high occupancy vehicles beyond that made available in initial 
operations and any other transportation projects designed to reduce per capita vehicles miles traveled within the corridor; 

3.  Further mitigation of environmental or community degradation as a result of the tolled facility that was not previously addressed 
under state or federal requirements; and  

 
4.  Other public transportation or air quality benefits within the corridor. 

 
For purposes of this policy, the phrase “transportation corridor” is defined as that area within 1 mile of the midline of the tolled facility and 
those zip codes from which 10% or more of the peak AM toll tag transactions on that facility originate.  In the event the CTRMA determines 
that a non-System Eligible Project lacks adequate sources of funding, the CTRMA may request, and CAMPO may approve, adding the project 
to an existing system upon completion of the following: 

 
1.  The CAMPO Transportation Policy Board, with the input of the CTRMA, has approved the Statement of Purpose describing the 

transportation project and need; 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            62 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

2.   CAMPO, in conjunction with the CTRMA, has convened two region-wide community meetings to elicit input regarding the 
Statement of Purpose; and 

3.  After the community meetings described above have been held and one public hearing before the CAMPO Transportation Policy 
Board has been completed, the addition of the project to an existing system is approved by a majority of the CAMPO 
Transportation Policy Board. 

 
17. The Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority should engage in public outreach efforts to encourage DBE and HUB participation in 
CTRMA developed projects, and the CTRMA should report to CAMPO about those efforts on an annual basis. The CTRMA should (I) establish 
a process for outreach to minority-owned, women-owned and economically disadvantaged businesses to achieve appropriate levels of DBE 
and HUB participation in projects which are part of the Regional Implementation Program and (2) subject to Federal and State law set 
specific c goals and adopt policies for HUB participation consistent with 1 TEX ADMIN. CODE § 11 1 .I3 in any DBEIHUB policy finally adopted 
for the Regional Implementation Program. 
 
 
18. State Highway 45 Southwest 
SH 45 SW shall be developed as a toll parkway/freeway 4-lane road; 

• TXDoT and the CTRMA shall implement where feasible, and if approved by federal authorities under existing restrictions governing 
the State Highway 45 Southwest corridor, the development of a non-tolled alternative within the corridor in the form of free 
parallel frontage roads; 

• If the US Fish and Wildlife Service and other federal entities found the expansion to not be feasible under environmental concerns, 
then SH 45 would not be tolled; 
and, 

• In the event non-tolled frontage roads cannot be developed within the corridor, it is the intent of CAMPO that TXDoT and the 
CTRMA consider toll rates and policies that promote the use of State Highway 45 Southwest and disincentives for the use of Brodie 
Lane by thru-traffic and trucks. 

 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Policies 
For the purposes of these policies: 

• Pedestrian and bicycle facilities should follow the guidelines established in the most current versions of the AASHTO Guide for the 
Planning, Design and Operation of Pedestrian Facilities and Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities, respectively. Following 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            63 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

USDOT Policy, Part 4 Implementing the 2035 Transportation Plan CAMPO encourages implementing agencies to go beyond the 
minimum design standards where possible, and to anticipate likely future demand for bicycling and walking facilities. 

• “Reconstruction” is defined as: work proposed on the approximate alignment of an existing route that meets the geometric criteria 
for a new facility. Reconstruction includes new location projects or projects that provide substantial changes in the general 
geometric character of a roadway, such as widening to provide additional through travel lanes, horizontal or vertical re-alignment, 
etc.  Reconstruction work includes bridge replacement work. 

• The bicycle and pedestrian projects required under these policies should be specifically described as part of the Transportation 
Improvement Program project listing for the roadway. 

• Local governments are strongly encouraged to consider including bicycle and pedestrian accommodations as part of roadway 
resurfacing and maintenance projects. 

• “Excessive cost” is generally defined as cost which exceeds 20% of the total cost of the project or project phase. 
 
19. Provide pedestrian facilities with all new construction and reconstruction of roadways and bridges shown on the Priority Pedestrian 
Districts Map as “high” or “medium” priority, unless the jurisdiction constructing the roadway has demonstrated that providing the 
pedestrian facility is not feasible due to excessive cost. 
 
20. Provide bicycle facilities with all new construction and reconstruction of roadways and bridges shown on the Priority Regional Bicycle 
Corridors Map as “high” or “medium” priority, unless the jurisdiction constructing the project has demonstrated that providing the bicycle 
accommodation is not feasible due to excessive cost. 
 
21. Provide adequate bicycle and pedestrian connections across controlled access facilities within Priority Pedestrian Districts or Priority 
Regional Bicycle Corridors as part  of new construction or reconstruction of controlled access facilities unless the jurisdiction constructing 
the project has demonstrated that providing the connection is not feasible due to excessive cost. 
 
22. Sustain existing pedestrian and bicycle facilities and find ways to improve facilities through roadway resurfacing and other maintenance 
projects. 
 
Freight Policies 
23. Include freight stakeholders in the regional transportation planning process. 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            64 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

24. Consider reducing the cost of moving goods and enhancing the region as an effective freight transportation center as priorities when 
evaluating projects for funding under the CAMPO Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
25. Work with local jurisdictions to encourage clustering of shipping activities near freight transportation termini, modal shifts, and 
accommodating safe and efficient flow of heavy duty vehicles. 
 
Land Use Coordination Policies 
26. Support development of high density, mixed use activity centers in the locations shown on the CAMPO Centers map, and work with 
local jurisdictions and others to accommodate 31% of regional population and 38% of regional jobs in activity centers shown on the CAMPO 
Centers map by 2035. CAMPO will support achievement of the goals through activities such as: monitoring and reporting on growth and 
investment in the Centers, dissemination of best practices and tools, planning support, and funding for transportation investments. As 
appropriate, member jurisdictions will support development of centers through local planning and other methods.   
 
Safety, Security, Equity, and Involvement Policies 
27. Consider safety as a priority issue when evaluating projects for funding under the CAMPO Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
28. Consider security as a priority issue when evaluating projects for funding under the CAMPO Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
29. Develop and implement a transportation system that distributes the impacts and benefits of transportation projects fairly to all 
residents regardless of their income level or ethnicity. 
 
30. Include educational stakeholders in the regional transportation planning process. 
 
7. STATUS 
One year has elapsed since the adoption of the CAMPO 2035 Plan.  If non-attainment status remains the same for the region, the next plan 
adoption will occur in May 2015.  If a non-attainment determination is made for the region or a portion of it, the Plan will need to go under 
conformity analysis.  If the Plan cannot pass air quality conformity, project construction can be halted in the region until conformity is 
achieved.  Under non-attainment, plans would be adopted every three years until the region is considered in attainment.   

 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            65 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

8. NEXT STEPS 
TNR staff is currently working on creating a transportation element as part of the County’s comprehensive plan.  The transportation 
element will be adopted as the County’s transportation plan and used in the creation of the regional transportation plan developed by 
CAMPO.  The county transportation plan will be a working document that uses recommendations from the land use plan to help guide 
transportation development.   
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            66 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT WORK PLAN 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
Travis County maintains only roads that are accepted by the Commissioners Court (i.e., are public and meet county construction standards) 
in the unincorporated areas of the county (i.e., outside municipalities) and not on the State Highway System (i.e., Interstate, U.S., State 
highways and Farm-to-Market Roads).  The Commissioners Court adopted the County Road and Bridge Maintenance Strategic Plan 2005-09 
in February 2005.  A tool that is utilized to implement the strategic plan is the Pavement Management Work Plan. 
  
2. PURPOSE 
The Pavement Management Work Plan provides for the allocation of resources dedicated to maintaining over 3100 lane miles of county 
accepted roads.  The program provides an appropriate response to work requests for emergency service on all county maintained 
roadways. The Pavement Management Work Plan is a tool utilized to identify roadway conditions, establish condition gaps with adopted 
policy, determine scope and cost for gap closure, and establish priorities for resource allocations.  See Map 4 for County Maintained Roads. 
 
Ninety-five percent (95%) of all county roads are paved; however, there are 56 miles of unpaved, gravel, county roads, the majority in 
Precinct One.  There are over 300 miles of public right-of-way which have not been accepted for county maintenance because the roads 
were not built to the county’s minimum standards or the roadways have other facilities that do not meet current County requirements.  A 
majority of these “substandard” roads are primarily in once speculative land subdivisions built before the 1980’s in the vicinity of Lake 
Travis, within Precinct Three.   
  
3. OVERVIEW   
Roadway deterioration is caused both by traffic use and by environmental factors such as moisture, grass encroachment and soil expansion.  
Visual symptoms of deterioration include: 

  
Traffic Related  Environmental Related 
-Alligator Cracks    -Block Cracks 
-Deformation   -Transverse Cracks 
-Ruts   -Raveling 
-Patches   -Construction Joints 
-Edge Cracks   -Corrugation 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            67 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

MAP 4 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            68 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Pavement Management Work Plan is an in-depth analysis of the existing pavement structure. The process looks at the durability and 
deterioration level of the pavement. It then applies various cost effective strategies to roadway reconstruction. 
 
Beginning in 1987 and through 2001, HVJ Inc., (formerly Maxim Technologies Inc.) conducted 4 separate Pavement Condition Surveys of 
Travis County roadways (Figure 18). These field surveys used visual observation and computer analysis to estimate the remaining life of 
each pavement section.   In 2004, Fugro Engineering performed a pavement condition survey. For the 2004 survey, actual data collection 
processes in the field, remote computer sensing methods and full video recording of each paved roadway were utilized. 
 
The initial 1987 Survey results were used to implement Travis County’s first pavement management organized process to prioritize 
maintenance and rehabilitation needs for each roadway surveyed and projected what future needs may be expected.  That first 
comprehensive study of the roadway conditions determined that only fifty-three percent (53%) of the 932 miles were in fair to good 
condition.  After implementation of this approach, the next survey in 1993 indicated that the roadway had improved and reflected that 74% 
of the county’s 1,256 miles were in fair to good condition.  However, condition improvement was lagging in the eastern portions of the 
county where soil conditions shortened the life expectancy of roadways.  
 
In 1998 and again in 2001, the Maxim Technologies Survey indicated that up to 81% of all the roads were in fair to good condition.  This 
continued to support the trend towards a continued improvement within the roadway network.    However, Travis County was experiencing 
unprecedented growth, requiring a high work demand to not only maintain the system, but also enhance the conditions. This growth in the 
County placed stress on pavement conditions due to the increased vehicle travel miles, increased vehicle weights on rural and suburban 
roads with existing poor drainage conditions, narrow rights-of-way and weak existing sub-structure. 
 
 
Figure 178:  Historical Roadway Condition Surveys 

 
1987 1993 1998 2001 

CONDITION Miles* Percent Miles* Percent Miles* Percent Miles* Percent 
Poor- Very Poor Condition 199 22% 167 8% 57 5% 30.5 2.70% 
Marginal Condition 214 25% 109 16% 155 14% 62.3 5.50% 
Fair-Good Condition 459 53% 886 74% 926 81% 1043.5 91.90% 
TOTAL 872 

 
1162 

 
1138 

 
1136.3 

 * Center Line Miles 
         

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            69 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

In 2004, Fugro Engineering conducted a pavement survey that made available the entire County roadway network condition in a software 
format that allowed for various models of budget and work plan analysis to be developed. This database belongs to Travis County and has 
been utilized to track all contracted and in-house maintenance efforts, but needs to be updated within 4-5 years.   
 
In May 2011, Infrastructure Management Services (IMS) provided their results of the new County-wide pavement management survey.  Of 
the approximately 1,270 centerline miles surveyed, 78% were rated as fair or better.  In comparison, the 2001 survey showed 89.8% of the 
roads were in fair or better condition, so the 2011 survey showed a drop in condition of 13% (Figure 19).   The drop in condition was due to 
several factors: 1) heavy truck traffic related to toll roads construction, 2) increased truck traffic associated with subdivisions development 
in areas with very poor soil conditions, 3) severe cracking due to the extended drought, and 4) reductions in road maintenance funding.  It is 
estimated that a yearly budget of $11 Million is required for the County-wide road conditions to remain stable. 
 

Figure 189:  Pavement Condition Scores (Historical) 
 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            70 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
4. PLAN GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
In support of TNR’s adopted Strategic plan, the goal of the Road Maintenance Plan is providing a cost effective, efficient and safe roadway 
system.  
 
Objectives 
Maintain 70% of all accepted county roads in all precincts in good to fair condition as measured by a periodic pavement condition survey 
conducted by an outside consulting engineer. 
 
5. ALLOCATION OF LIMITED RESOURCES – SETTING PRIORITIES 
Total road needs always exceed the funds available for roadway maintenance each year. The county uses its pavement management system 
to identify priorities for selecting the road maintenance projects in its annual work program.  The following criteria are used to set priorities: 
 

• Overall Condition Index (OCI) 
• Roadway Classification (Arterial, Collector or Local)  
• Rural or Urban  
• Deterioration Rates 

 
These variables are combined to form the priorities.  A road is given a higher priority if it has a poor pavement condition, is an Arterial 
roadway in an urban area than a road with poor pavement that is a local roadway in a rural location.   
 
These priorities are calculated for every road. If a road has more than one segment, this value could be different for each of those segments, 
which could mean that different segments of the same road would be paved in different years. To increase efficiency of paving operations 
and reduce complaints by residents living on the same road, an average priority is calculated for all the segments of the same road, so that, 
regardless of the type of treatment assigned to each segment, all segments are scheduled for improvements in the same year.  
 
The Pavement Manage Plan provides services for scheduled and direct responses on routine and preventative maintenance operations on 
accepted Travis County roads and right-of-ways.  Provide a quality and safe travel way for the County’s road users and to protect and 
enhance the environmental aesthetic qualities of the county. 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            71 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

The adopted policy of the Pavement Management Strategy: 
• Maintain 70% of County accepted roads in a fair or better condition, as measured by the Pavement Management (PM) 

condition surveys.  
• Maintain of 75% of accepted arterial and collector roads in fair or better condition as measured by the PM condition surveys. 

Generally, more resources are allocated to higher traveled roadways. 
• Manage and operate the County transportation system to accepted practices of the American Public Works Association 

(APWA). 
 
Strategies include cost effective, efficient, and safe roadways through rehabilitation, reconstruction, surface treatment, pothole patching, 
crack sealing, and overlay.  
 
6. FUNDING 
Auto Registration Fees (R&B Fund) 
The Road and Bridge Fund was established by the Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated, Transportation and allows Counties to assess a motor 
vehicle registration fee for the purpose of maintaining the County’s road system.  As allowed by Chapter 502.103 of the Transportation 
Code, Travis County assesses an annual registration fee of $11.50 for every vehicle, of which $9.70 is for Road and Bridge maintenance 
($0.30 is retained by TxDOT as an administrative fee) and $1.50 is for the Child Safety Act.  Travis County’s primary use of the additional 
Road and Bridge registration fee has been for routine maintenance of its road system.   
 
In addition to the vehicle registration fees noted above, Transportation Code Chapter 502.102 allows Counties to retain 5% of the state 
sales tax from vehicle sales.  Per the current statute, these monies are also deposited directly into the Road and Bridge Fund, and are used 
by Travis County for routine maintenance of its road system.  The FY2011 revenue from the sales tax and registration fee revenues were 
$10,883,534 of which $9,825,000 was allocated to TNR. 
 
Effective with the fiscal year 2006; the Legislature amended Section 152.123 of the Tax Code.  Instead of all funds being deposited directly 
into the Road & Bridge Fund, the amendment splits the deposit of the sales tax amounts between the County’s General Fund (GF) and the 
Road & Bridge (R&B) Fund as follows: 
 

• FY 2006, 10 % to GF; 90% to R&B 
• FY 2007, 20 % to GF; 80% to R&B 
• FY 2008, 30 % to GF; 70% to R&B 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            72 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

• FY 2009, 40 % to GF; 60% to R&B 
• FY 2010, 50 % to GF; 50% to R&B 
• FY 2011, 60 % to GF; 40% to R&B 
• FY 2012, 70 % to GF; 30% to R&B 
• FY 2013, 80 % to GF; 20% to R&B 
• FY 2014, 90 % to GF; 10% to R&B 
• FY 2015 (and all succeeding years), 100 % to GF 

 
Based on the FY2005 budgeted revenue, the effect of this change meant the funds directly deposited into the Road & Bridge fund would 
decrease every year starting FY 2006 to FY2015 by approximately $475,000 - $500,000.  This change does not, however, prevent the 
Commissioners Court from transferring any amount of these funds from the General Fund back into the Road and Bridge Fund. 
 
Fine and Fee Revenue (R&B Fund) 
Prior to FY2003, the R&B Fund received a supplement from the General Fund because the R&B Fund was insufficient to cover the 
expenditures associated with the routine maintenance.  Beginning in FY02, the Auditor’s Office began depositing Fine and Fee Revenue 
directly into the Road and Bridge Fund, based on a Texas Attorney General opinion regarding highway (Title VII) fees.  This revenue had 
previously been deposited into the County’s General Fund.  Figure 20 shows the fine and fee revenues in relation to the transfer from the 
General Fund since FY2002. 

     Figure 1920:  Fine and Fee Revenues 
 

Fiscal Yr Budgeted Fine & Fee Revenue Actual Fine & Fee Revenue Budgeted Transfers from the General Fund
1999 -$                                                         -$                                                      3,790,151$                                                                     
2000 -$                                                         -$                                                      1,765,406$                                                                     
2001 -$                                                         -$                                                      1,857,168$                                                                     
2002 3,667,864$                                            4,745,471$                                         122,287$                                                                         
2003 4,004,901$                                            5,026,847$                                         -$                                                                                  
2004 4,978,086$                                            4,879,549$                                         -$                                                                                  
2005 5,290,984$                                            5,177,198$                                         -$                                                                                  
2006 6,515,405$                                            6,444,748$                                         -$                                                                                  
2007 6,457,879$                                            6,840,078$                                         -$                                                                                  
2008 6,936,037$                                            6,785,722$                                         -$                                                                                  
2009 7,025,503$                                            6,183,978$                                         -$                                                                                  
2010 6,410,057$                                            5,823,641$                                         -$                                                                                  
2011 6,149,868$                                            5,269,755$                                         -$                                                                                  
2012 5,400,000$                                            4,400,090$                                         -$                                                                                   

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            73 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
7. HORIZON ISSUES 
 
Continuing since FY04 and projected into FY12, additional time will be required in the Reconstruction and Rehabilitation program to address 
sub-grade stabilization issues not anticipated in the conception of the program. Sub-grade stabilization issues require additional material 
process time. The original annual Reconstruction and Rehabilitation measure was 22 miles in FY05.  In FY09 the target output measure was 
11 miles, with the construction of service roadways and parking areas at the East Service Center with 8.82 miles being completed and all 
East Service Center work.  For FY10 the target output measure for Rehabilitation was 6.04 miles.  The target output measure for Spot 
Reconstruction is 4.14 miles with a 26% variance for actual need which is equivalent to approximately 1.08 miles for Spot Reconstruction for 
a total of 7.08 miles for Spot Reconstruction and Rehabilitation combined for FY10. 
 
 

Figure 201:  Five Year Projection By Funding Levels 
 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            74 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 

The Road Maintenance program has experienced reduced output measures due to budget reductions and some performance elements 
reflect altered measures due to seven factors:  
 

1. Focus on program demand requirements within the right-of-way resources dedicated to storm water runoff and other drainage 
issues associated with Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES)i requirements and the implementation of other 
alternative methods. 

2. Cost increases for Petroleum-based consumables like asphalt related materials have had a significant increase over the last 
several years.  This national trend has required the division to adjust priorities within the Division’s output measures and within 
individual program elements.  

3. Fuel cost increases have increased the haul cost of bulk roadway materials like Flexible Base Rock to individual projects. 
4. Adjustments to design criteria for remedial maintenance patching operations, and roadway rehabilitation and other extended 

roadway maintenance programs to reflect a 20-year life design capacity rather than the original 8-to10 year design. 
5. Reduction in the miles of unpaved roadways due to conversion of unpaved roadways to paved condition. 
6. Implementation of an Asphalt Rejuvenation Program in lieu of Type F Overlays on selected roadways. 
7. Finalization of expectation measures for Pedestrian Way projects. 

 
If the economy improves and additional construction truck traffic occurs it generally will occur in areas with poor soil conditions. 
Maintenance cost will be substantially higher. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            75 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

  

SIDEWALK POLICY 
 
1. DATE ADOPTED 
TNR’s efforts with regards to pedestrian related improvements have significant increased since a policy on sidewalks was adopted in 2008.  
  
2. PURPOSE 

 
TNR's role is in ensuring nondiscrimination on the basis of disability. There are legal responsibilities of State and Local governments under 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, including:  

1. Performing a self-evaluation  
2. Developing an ADA Transition Plan 
3. Fixing existing facilities, and  
4. Maintaining accessible features. 

 
ADA is a civil rights statute (hereinafter referred to as the Act) that prohibits discrimination against people who have disabilities. There are 
five separate Titles (sections) of the Act relating to different aspects of potential discrimination. Title II of the Act specifically addresses the 
subject of making public services and public transportation accessible to those with disabilities. With the advent of the Act, designing and 
constructing facilities for public use that are not accessible by people with disabilities constitutes discrimination. 

The Act applies to all facilities, including both facilities built before and after 1990. As a necessary step to a program access plan to provide 
accessibility under the ADA, state and local government, public entities or agencies are required to perform self-evaluations of their current 
facilities, relative the accessibility requirements of the ADA. The agencies are then required to develop a Program Access Plan, which can be 
called a Transition Plan, to address any deficiencies. The Plan is intended to achieve the following: 
(1) Identify physical obstacles that limit the accessibility of facilities to individuals with disabilities, 
(2) describe the methods to be used to make the facilities accessible, 
(3) Provide a schedule for making the access modifications, and 
(4) Identify the public officials responsible for implementation of the Transition Plan. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            76 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

The Plan is required to be updated periodically until all accessibility barriers are removed. 
  
4. OVERVIEW   
 
The ADA plan suggest future actions to alleviate the probability of future roadways with non-compliant sidewalks and address the 
acceptance of county roads currently ADA non-compliant.  It also includes the creation of a retrofit program that is responsive to requests 
from disable persons who may need improved access.  For existing County maintained roadways, the plan identifies physical obstacles in 
sidewalks, describes the methods to be used making the sidewalks accessible, specifies the schedule for implementation, indicates the 
responsible official, and describe a method of prioritizing projects.  
 

INTERNAL STANDARDS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND DESIGN DETAILS 

Travis County’s design criteria comply with the Accessible Public Rights-of-Way Design Guide. The Architectural and Transportation Barrier 
Compliance Board (alternatively called the Access Board) has developed accessibility guidelines for pedestrian facilities in the public right-
of-way. The Federal Highway Administration has recognized these as its currently recommended best practices. A Department can adopt 
these accessibility guidelines into their own system of standards, specifications, and design details with modifications to meet local 
conditions. Development of design standards and design details within the Department allows for consistency in the application of ADA 
requirements for new facilities. See http://www.access-board.gov/prowac/guide/PROWGuide.htm for more information 
 
PERMITTING 

Developers are required to submit subdivision construction plans to Travis County that show where all sidewalks will be constructed.  If any 
of the sidewalks cannot meet ADA and TABA guidelines, then the developer may request an administrative waiver or a variance.  
Additionally, the developer must have the subdivision plan approved by either an ADA or TDLR certified specialist.  The amount of sidewalk 
fiscal will also be determined at this time.  Sidewalk fiscal should be adequate enough to cover construction costs for all proposed sidewalks 
shown on the submitted subdivision plan.  Roadways adjacent to sidewalks will not be accepted for maintenance until 50% of the sidewalks 
shown on approved subdivision plans have been constructed. 
An administrative waiver is required before construction begins and only applies to minor deviations from ADA and TDLR requirements.  All 
administrative waivers are reviewed and approved by Travis County staff.   Some items available for administrative waiver include: 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            77 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

• Cross slopes more than 2% but less than 3.5% 
• Locating curb ramps within curb returns 
• Running slopes of more than 5% due to existing natural grades. 
 

A variance is required before construction begins and applies to any deviations not approved by administrative waiver.  All variances are 
reviewed by Travis County staff and approved by Commissioner’s Court.  A fee is collected for all variance requests.  Variances are 
requested by the Developer prior to subdivision plan approval.  These variances are considered when all other methods for meeting ADA 
compliance have been investigated.  The cost for these variances is placed in an account to be used for the sidewalk retrofit program.  The 
sidewalk retrofit program is used to respond to disable persons who request certain sidewalks be brought into compliance.  Some items 
available for variance include the following items: 

• Alternative ADA routes to major pedestrian generators 
• Reduction in the number of required sidewalks or ramps 
• Mid-block crossings in order to comply with cross slope requirements 
 

Variances are submitted prior to construction.  Post construction variances are discouraged and all means for bringing sidewalks into 
compliance must be exhausted before a post construction variance is reviewed.  A separate fee schedule is used for post construction 
variances that are adequate to discourage such requests. 
Currently in Travis County, sidewalks are only required on one side of the road.  With the advent of the single office, the County and the City 
of Austin have proposed regulation for the extraterritorial jurisdictions requiring the owner/developer to build sidewalks and curb ramps 
on: 

a. Both sides of arterial and collector streets within the entire extraterritorial jurisdiction,  
b. Both sides of local streets within the Desired Development Zone unless a variance is granted by the county 

because such an ADA-compliant sidewalk is deemed to be structurally impracticable, and 
c. One side of local streets within the Drinking Water Protection Zone unless a variance is granted by the county 

because such an ADA-compliant sidewalk is deemed to be structurally impracticable. 
 
Roadways adjacent to sidewalks are not accepted for maintenance until 50% of the sidewalks shown on the approved subdivision plans are 
constructed.  Before Travis County will accept a roadway for maintenance, the developer/owner must obtain approval from an ADA or TDLR 
specialist stating that all existing sidewalks that have not received a waiver or variance are in substantial compliance.   
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            78 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

Non-compliant Sidewalks 
There are a few subdivisions that have not been able to obtain TDLR approval, and therefore have not been able to have their streets 
accepted for maintenance by Travis County. TNR has worked with the subdivision developers and has made much progress in getting the 
developers to fix the non-complaint sidewalks, and get subsequent approval by TDLR.  There are still some remaining non-compliant 
sidewalks that do not have TDLR approval, and now that TDLR no longer reviews or approves sidewalks built by private funds, Travis County 
has few options.  Below are the options available: 

• Do not accept the roadway for maintenance 
• Have the developer and/or landowner repair the existing sidewalks identified by a RAS (Registered Accessibility Specialist) 
inspector in accordance with TDLR requirements. 
• Accept remediation fees in lieu of correcting non-compliant sidewalk sections. 

TNR continues to work with developers and landowners to have them improve the non-ADA compliant sidewalks until an ADA or TDLR 
certified consultant (i.e.: RAS inspector) provides a letter stating the sidewalks are compliant with state or federal guidelines.  Continued 
efforts between the County and the effected developers are ongoing.  The unaccepted roadways continue to deteriorate without scheduled 
maintenance, but the sidewalks will be ADA and/or TDLR approved when Travis County accepts the streets for maintenance.   
A second option for subdivisions that currently have non-compliant sidewalks is to pay remediation fees (See Figure 22).  TNR works with 
the individual developers and landowners to inventory and minimize the number of non-compliant sidewalks, and to estimate fees to be 
collected as condition of road acceptance for the county’s remediation of the remaining non-compliant sidewalks.   The remediation fees, 
charged by the county cover the latent cost of retrofitting the ADA non-compliant pedestrian way element, is as follows: 
 

Figure 212: Remediation Fees 
 

REMEDIATION FEES 
Remove and Reinstall Curb Ramp (each) $3,000 
Remove and Reinstall Driveway (each) $10,000 
Remove and Install 4' Wide Sidewalk (per linear ft) $50 
Modify Sidewalk Due to Obstacle / Driveway Approach) (each) $200 
Modify Crosswalks Exceeding 2% Cross-Slope (each) $5,000 
   

 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            79 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

7. PLAN GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

Transition Plan  
The ADA requires a public entity with authority over streets, roads, or walkways to include in its transition plan a schedule for providing ADA 
compliant sidewalks and ramps, giving priority to sidewalks serving government facilities, transportation facilities, places of public 
accommodation, and employers. The ADA requires public agencies with more than 50 employees to make a transition plan. 28 CFR 
§35.150(d). (9-12-06). 
The plan must include the following: 

1. Obstacle Inventory: Identify physical obstacles that limit accessibility; 
2. Methods: Describe the methods to be used to make the facilities accessible; 
3. Schedule:  Specify the schedule for achieving compliance, Section 504 requirements in each year; and  
4. Responsible Official:  Indicate the official responsible for implementing the plan. 

Designated Responsible Official 
The official responsible for the implementation of the TNR plan is the TNR Executive Manager. 

Obstacle Inventory 
Physical obstacles to sidewalk access are identified in TNR’s GIS sidewalk database, which is made part of the plan by reference. The 
database will be updated periodically as improvements are completed and new obstacles are identified. 
In the summer of 2003, GPS was used to collect 10,023 ADA noncompliant features at driveways, sidewalks, curb ramps and locations of 
missing curb ramps on County maintained roads.  A breakdown of the noncompliant features is listed below: 

Noncompliant Driveways 7,599 Locations                                                            
A noncompliant driveway is a driveway with a cross slope of more than 2%.  Approximately 75% of these driveways cannot feasibly 
be brought into compliance due to limitations caused by natural terrain. 
Noncompliant Curb Ramps 1,718 Locations                                                                        
A noncompliant ramp is an existing ramp with a running slope of more than 8.33% and/or a level landing less than 4 feet.    
Approximately 25% of these ramps cannot feasibly be brought into compliance due to limitations caused by natural terrain.                                                                                                                                                                                       
Noncompliant Sidewalks 597 Locations                                                                  
A noncompliant sidewalk is a sidewalk with a cross slope more than 2% and/or a running slope of more than 5%.  These locations 
also include sections of sidewalks that have shifted or heaved resulting in more than ¼” break in elevation.  Approximately 10% of 
these sidewalks cannot feasibly be brought into compliance due to limitations caused by natural terrain. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            80 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

No Curb Ramps 109 Locations                                                           
No curb ramps are locations where a sidewalk crosses a curb without a ramp. 

 
8. ALLOCATION OF LIMITED RESOURCES – SETTING PRIORITIES 
 

Schedule for Improvements 
A specific schedule for improvements is developed based on a yearly process of prioritization described below. Based on availability of 
funds, the highest priority improvements will be completed first until all features that can feasibly be brought into compliance are 
corrected. The overall schedule is directly related to yearly budget allocations.  There are approximately $2.7 million (2005 Dollars) worth of 
improvements that need to be completed before all currently targeted features are brought into compliance. Additional monies are 
required to maintain existing pedestrian facilities that may eventually fall out of ADA compliance.   

Process for Prioritizing Sidewalk Improvements 
TNR has developed a process for prioritizing sidewalk improvements. The process includes grouping improvements into three priority 
groups. 
•   Priority 1  

This priority is given to sidewalk improvements needed on road segments that are currently scheduled for other improvements (such as 
pavement reconstruction, pavement overlay, and drainage improvements).  These sidewalk improvements are scheduled in conjunction 
with the road improvements, as required by the ADA. 

• Priority 2 
This priority is given for the installation of curb ramps at locations where existing sidewalks intersect curb and gutter with no curb 
ramps. 

•  Priority 3  
This priority includes improvements prioritized based on highest weighted average scores. The weighted average scores are based on a 
predetermined weight factor and measured distances from entities covered by the ADA (government facilities, transportation facilities, 
places of public accommodation, and employers).  These determinations of priority are based on ADA related complaints received by 
Travis County.  Noncompliant ADA features with the highest weighted average score have the highest priority within Priority 3. 

For determining measured distances to noncompliant ADA features, Arc View 3.2a was used to identify the nearest facility of interest to 
each ADA noncompliant feature from the following databases: 

1.) Public Buildings (Centroids) 
2.) Schools (Centroids) 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            81 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

3.) Bus Stops (Points) 
4.) Retirement/ Nursing Homes (Centroids) 
5.) Hospitals (Centroids) 
6.) Parks (Edge) 
7.) Colleges (Centroids) 

 
The formula that is used to calculate the weighted average scores is based on distances from noncompliant ADA features multiplied by the 
below listed weight factors based on type of entity the distance was measured from.  See formula in Figure 23 below: 
  

 
 

Figure 223: Weighted Average Score = Weight Factor (1000’ – Actual Measured Distance) 
 

Weight 
Factors 

Facility Type 

1.5 Public Buildings 
1.4 Schools 
1.3 Bus Stops 
1.2 Retirement/Nursing Homes 
1.2 Hospitals 
1.0 Parks 
1.0 Colleges 

  
An additional 500 points will be added to the Weighted Average Score if a constituent has submitted an ADA related complaint in regards to 
the sidewalk. 
 

Priority Summary 
Improvements are grouped into the three Priority Groups as mentioned above.  Priority 1 includes all ADA improvements needed on road 
segments that are scheduled for pavement reconstruction or overlay.  Such improvements are scheduled to coordinate with the roadway 
improvements, as required by the ADA. Priority 2 includes the installation of curb ramps at locations where existing curb ramps are required 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            82 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

but do not exist.  Priority 3 includes the remaining noncompliant ADA features in Travis County.  These features will be prioritized and 
schedule based on the highest weighted average scores 
 
Figure 234: Prioritization Process 
 

Does 
sidewalk

 in segment meet 
 standards for

ADA?

No Action 
Needed

Upgrade sidewalks 
during scheduled 
repaving project.

Determine distance of segment 
from each "public facility" type.

Group segments into projects .

No

Yes

No

Yes

Prioritize each segment by 
weighted average score.

Schedule projects by priority 
based on available funding.

Apply weight factors to each 
distance.

Estimate Project Costs

Prepare contract for sidewalk 
repairs and submit for bid.

Begin work

Inventory sidewalks on road 
segments.

Is road 
segment scheduled 

for improvement (paving or 
drainage)?

Does 
sidewalk

 need curb
ramps?

Assign 
high 

priority.

No

Yes

 
 
 
 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            83 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

 
 
 
9. FUNDING 
 
TNR has funded various amounts annually over the last four years. During that time almost ten thousand linear feet of sidewalk 
improvements estimated to have cost $800,000. Staff does not specifically track “sidewalk” unit prices but utilizes line items for materials 
that are combined with other types of projects that use concrete, steel reinforcing, grading, etc.  There is also the salary and benefits for the 
crew members. Table X provides the quantity of work performed over the past 4 years.  
 

Figure 245: Linear feet of Pedestrian Way sidewalks/curb ramps 
 

FY 09 FY 10 FY 11 FY 12 
1446 2297 3060 3000 

 
 

 
10. HORIZON ISSUES 
 
The Plan is required to be updated periodically until all accessibility barriers are removed. The TNR Plan has not been updated since 2008. 
Over the past few years the price of material for sidewalks has gone down due to supply and demand in the market. As the economy 
improves it is anticipated that cost will increase. The result will budget request growing. If budgets remain the same, the higher cost will 
reduce the amount of sidewalk improvements. Over a period of time the amount of work far exceed the potential funding with regular 
county revenue. The Court may be asked to consider sidewalks as a project for bond funding. 

Recent meeting with TXDOT and representatives of FHWA indicate a new emphasis in ADA efforts. FHWA is responsible for ensuring access 
for persons with disabilities in four areas: 

1. For surface transportation projects under direct FHWA control (e.g., Federal Lands projects): FHWA is responsible for 
ensuring that project planning, design, construction, and operations adequately address pedestrian access for people who 
have disabilities. 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            84 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Land, Water, and Transportation Plan – Summary of Select Plans, Ordinances, and Rules 
Draft – March, 7 2014 

2. For Federally funded surface transportation projects that provide pedestrian facilities within the public right-of-way: FHWA is 
responsible for ensuring that the public agencies' project planning, design, and construction programs provide pedestrian 
access for persons with disabilities. FHWA-funded projects outside of the public right-of-way, such as Transportation 
Enhancement projects, must also adhere to these requirements. 

3. For pedestrian facilities within the public right-of-way, or any other FHWA enhancement project, regardless of funding 
source: FHWA is responsible for investigating complaints. 28 CFR §§ 35.170 – 35.190. 

4. FHWA should provide or encourage accessibility training for Federal, State, and local agencies and their contractors. 
TXDOT recently hired an ADA Coordinator. It appears that new emphasis may include the involvement of Human Resources in TNR and 
County HR, as well as County Legal staff. The United States Department of Justice (DOJ) ADA regulation is 28 CFR Part 35. The DOT Section 
504 regulation at 49 CFR Part 27 governs public agencies, with the ADA incorporated at 49 CFR §27.19. Additional regulations drafted 
specifically for recipients of the Federal Transit Administration are at 49 CFR Part 37. (9-12-06).  
 
Sidewalks in conjunction with transit stops have not been well coordinated with the County. There are transit stops where additional 
walkways are needed to connect with nearby systems. An inventory of the sites, concepts for solutions and associated cost will be needed. 
 

 

R:\Department\Planning\Planning Division\1 LWTP\COURT\Court Voting Session _11_25_2014\Summary Report\Select_Plans_11_25_14.doc                                                            85 
 

                                                      

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 17Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 18Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Summary of Public Comments Regarding 

Travis County Code Chapter 48 Proposed Changes 

(Received before 12pm 11/25/2014) 

New/Changed Rule Item Summary of Comments Staff Response 

48.032 (b) – 1 acre for minimum for 

each structure on OSSF 

Concern for requirements for 

commercial sites with multiple 

structures 

Need revising to require 1 acre per 

residence; keep gpd/acre for 

commercial limits 

48.037 (b)(1) – 2’ to ground water with 

drip emitters; 1’ with secondary 

treatment 

Concern this item is not more 

restrictive than State, but separation to 

rock/fractured rock is more restrictive 

Consider State requirement sufficient 

for groundwater separation. 

48.037 (b)(2) – maximum application 

rate of 0.15 gal/sq.ft./day for drip 

emitters 

Concern as unnecessary and/or costly. 

Soil info supporting rate provided 

Higher application rates most 

commonly found with surfacing 

effluent on drip systems; adjacent 

jurisdiction (CWLH) has max application 

rate of 0.1-gal/sq.ft./day; majority of 

county with poor soils or shallow soils 

48.037 (b)(3) – minimum 2.0 ft/s 

flushing velocity for drip emitters 

Concern for cost of compliance; maybe 

ineffective/unnecessary 

Minimal cost for compliance; flushing 

recommend by manufacturers ; 2.0’ft/s 

was considered to be adequate for all 

types of emitter line to clear 

slime/debris 

48.037 (b)(4) – 1’ min separation to 

emitter lines from fractured or solid 

rock  

Concern for being more restrictive than 

state with secondary treatment.  Soil 

info supporting separation provided. 

State changed allowable gravel content 

in soil for drip irrigation (up to 60%); 

loss of volumetric capacity for holding 

water as justification 

Other Comments/Requests Summary of Comment/Request Staff Response 

Dissatisfaction with Rule Process Request for input prior to Public 

Comment period 

Procedure followed based on TCEQ 

guidance 

Request for Studies and Empirical Data Questions for specific studies and data 

regarding OSSF and pollution as 

prerequisite for rule changes; fiscal 

impact concern 

Basis for rule change based on locally 

observed  issues; Takings review was 

enclosed in proposal 

Request for removal of local order 

(regress to state rules); consideration 

of termination of OSSF program 

Question for cost analysis of state 

implementing program; variation in 

local orders for OSSF 

Local administration and rules address 

issues that are specific for region and 

may not be statewide concerns 

Request for smaller minimum lot size 

on OSSF 

Allow for smaller lot size based on soils 

at each individual lot; restrict daily flow 

on each lot 

Cumbersome for developer and staff to 

implement 

Increase availability of Subdivision  

OSSF Reports and/or 

Request to add note on plats for 

owners  

Notice to be placed on plat suggesting 

owners have soil/site evaluation prior 

to purchase;  Owners are unaware of 

OSSF reports for subdivisions 

OSSF reports placed in subdivision file 

on record with TNR; owners can 

request files 

Dissatisfaction with jurisdictional 

overlaps 

Difficult to determine jurisdiction for 

OSSF and development; difficult to 

know if dual permitting area  

 

Request for setback reduction with drip 

irrigation at 0.15 gal/sq.ft./day  

Reduce setback to 15’ at this 

application rate 

Less restrictive that state rules; cannot 

be considered for local order.  Can send 

comment to state for next rule change, 

if local order adopted. 

Groundwater separation 3’ separation to groundwater for soil 

absorption systems (keep current) 

At time of adoption, gravel 

content/rock not considered and 

systems cut into fractured and solid 

rock; state rules no prohibit  soil 

absorption systems in >30% 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



gravel/rock 

 

Require nitrogen reduction systems in 

EARZ and Barton Springs Segment of 

contribution zone 

 

Provide protection to ground and 

surface waters to reduce degrading 

quality and/or pollution of waters 

 

Benefit for cost questionable; wide 

estimations of nitrogen contribution by 

OSSF; gallons/acre limit may provide 

similar benefit 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



To Travis County: 
 
Comments on the proposed Chapter 48, Rules of Travis County, Texas, for On-Site Sewage Facilities 
 

These comments are rooted in these fundamental principles: 
 

1. The regulated community has a right to expect that rules have a reasonable and rational justification 
relative to the underlying reason for the creation of this rule system to begin with, the protection of 
public health and environmental values. 

2. The regulated community has a right to expect that the rules are reasonably and rationally internally 
consistent. 

 

The rule in the proposed Chapter 48 which is the most egregious violation of these principles is 
48.037(b)(4): “There shall be a minimum of one foot of soil between the drip emitter and solid or 
fractured bedrock.” This rule is not only lacking in justification on technical grounds and rooted in badly 
misplaced concerns, but also reflects an extreme bias, as there is no similar concern shown for the far 
more problematic practice of surface spray dispersal. It is neither reasonable nor rational, nor internally 
consistent, for Travis County to express the degree of concern this rule does about subsurface drip 
dispersal, in one and only one circumstance, and to not show any meaningful concern about spray 
dispersal. Nor is it reasonable, rational or internally consistent to impose this rule on the grounds Travis 
County has set forth for doing so. Both the lack of technical grounding and this disparity of concern are 
reviewed below. 
 
The stated “justification” set forth by Travis County for this 100% increase of standoff to rock over what 
is set forth in Chapter 285 is: “By required additional volume of suitable material below emitter lines, 
additional protections are provided by decreasing the likelihood for effluent to travel along shallow 
restrictive horizons. Further it is felt that the inclusion of soils with up to 60% of gravel as suitable 
greatly reduces the soil pore space and requiring additional soil depth will aid in assuring sufficient 
hydraulic capabilities are met.” 
 

Chapter 48.037(b)(1) states, “There shall be a minimum of two feet of soil between the drip emitter and 
groundwater; however, only one foot is required where secondary treatment is used.” The “justification” 
stated for this provision is, “The State has established 1 foot as the base minimum soil depth to achieve 
adequate land treatment using drip emitters. Due to the fluctuating depth of seasonal groundwater 
conditions, the ‘factor of safety’ provided by the increased soil is required to ensure adequate separation 
between the sewage disposal fields and groundwater. The requirement is reduced where a higher quality 
effluent through secondary treatment is provided before discharge to the disposal area.” 
 

The provisions in Chapter 285 for standoff to groundwater and rock are stated in 285.33(c)(3)(E): 
“Vertical separation distance. There shall be a minimum of one foot of soil (with less than 60% gravel) 
between the pressure reducing emitter and groundwater and six inches between the pressure reducing 
emitter and solid rock, or fractured rock. For proprietary disposal systems that do not pretreat to 
secondary treatment, there shall be two feet of soil (with less than 30% gravel) between the groundwater 
and pressure reducing emitter and one foot of soil between solid rock or fractured rock and the pressure 
reducing emitter.” 
 

As can be seen by comparing the Travis County “justification” with the Chapter 285 language, the Travis 
County “justification” is not an accurate reflection of what “The State has established ….” The standoff 
provisions set forth in Chapter 285 are compared to the standoff provisions of the proposed Chapter 48 
in the table below: 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

Limiting Condition Level of Treatment Chapter 285 standoff Chapter 48 standoff 
Groundwater Less than secondary 2 feet 2 feet 
Groundwater Secondary 1 foot 1 foot 
Solid or fractured rock Less than secondary 1 foot 1 foot 
Solid or fractured rock Secondary 6 inches 1 foot 
 

As this comparison shows, the only standoff which is proposed to be modified by Chapter 48 from that 
set forth in Chapter 285 is the standoff to rock with secondary pretreatment. This is neither reasonable 
nor rational nor internally consistent. 
 

Regarding the “justification” that “additional volume of suitable material” provides “additional 
protections … by decreasing the likelihood for effluent to travel along shallow restrictive horizons”, the 
presumption of the rules is that after having percolated vertically through the soil over the specified 
standoff, the water has been “renovated”. Indeed, both Chapter 285 and Chapter 48 presume that this 
water is “good” to become groundwater after having traveled the specified distances vertically through 
the soil. Therefore, it is called to question what “hazard” Travis County imagines that requires 
“additional protections” if the water, after receiving secondary pretreatment and having percolated 
vertically through 6 inches of soil, were to “travel along shallow restrictive horizons”, to some 
unspecified location where that “hazard” might be manifested. This “hazard” is, from all appearances, 
merely an expression of irrational fear by Travis County, lacking any technical justification. 
 

Indeed, research has shown that, at least for secondary treatment provided by a sand filter, even seeded 
virus is effectively removed after travel through only 6 inches of mound sand, when the effluent is bulk 
loaded on top of a column of that material. See the attached research paper reviewing this, entitled 
“Passage of Microorganisms in Septic System Effluents Through Mound Sand in a Controlled 
Laboratory Environment”, included as a part of these comments. Note the vast difference between that 
situation, with a loading rate 20 times that typically applied in a drip system, and drip dispersal into a 
much less coarse clayey or loamy soil, even a gravelly one, with the drip emitters up in the biologically 
active root zone of that soil, with the water slowly oozing out of the emitter, rather than being dumped 
in bulk onto the top of a sand column lacking the biological diversity of the root zone. Drip dispersal can 
only be much more effective in treating the water as it percolates through the soil. Therefore, Travis 
County has provided no reasonable and rational justification that any such hazard may occur, at least if 
the pretreatment system indeed provides the level of treatment imparted by a sand filter. 
 

Regarding the treatment level, a TNR employee once stated during a discussion of this rule, “Not all 
secondary treatment is created equal.” Travis County is in complete control of the type of secondary 
treatment units it permits. If the “hazard” imagined by Travis County is due to an expectation that 
inadequate pretreatment would have been imparted prior to drip dispersal, that is a matter to be dealt 
with in the rules governing the design and operation/oversight of the pretreatment unit. (See below.) 
That would be a reasonable and rational response to any such concern. To penalize all systems, no 
matter what sort of pretreatment unit it may entail, by applying this “factor of safety”, a 100% increase 
in the standoff to rock, is not a reasonable or rational response. 
 

Regarding the “justification” referring to allowing up to 60% gravel in a “suitable” soil, Travis County 
can address that with a rule modifying that requirement. It appears that Travis County has no problem 
with the “less than 30% gravel” requirement specified in Chapter 285 for systems that do not provide 
secondary pretreatment. So Travis County could simply stipulate that this provision also be applied to 
systems that do provide secondary pretreatment. A 6-inch depth of soil with 30% gravel provides the 
same soil mass as a one-foot depth of soil with 60% gravel, so that concern would be fully met by 
responding in that manner. That would be a reasonable and rational response to this concern. To 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

penalize all systems entailing secondary pretreatment and drip dispersal, regardless of what quality of 
soil would actually be in place, is not a reasonable and rational response. 
 

In addition, the provisions of 48.037(b) are internally inconsistent. If Travis County actually believes that 
a “hazard” exists such that the standoff to rock for drip dispersal of water having received secondary 
treatment must be increased 100% over the depth stipulated in Chapter 285, then by what rationale can 
it leave unaltered the standoff for water that has not received secondary pretreatment to rock, at one 
foot, equal to the proposed standoff for water that has received secondary pretreatment? By what 
rationale can it leave unaltered the standoff to groundwater, so that the required standoff to rock and 
groundwater is the same for water having received secondary pretreatment? If a “hazard” is inherent in 
this wastewater management strategy, how can that “hazard” be manifested only in the case where 
secondary pretreatment is provided and only in regard to standoff to rock? 
 

Travis County has unreasonably and irrationally varied one and only one of the standoffs between drip 
emitters and a limiting condition. It must rationalize its regulations to deal with the actual nature of the 
“hazards” it perceives and to make the provisions internally consistent. For the reasons set forth above, I 
assert this must be done by removing 48.037(b)(4), and if Travis County deems the concerns noted must 
be addressed, to address them by focusing on the actual hazard, rather than to “punish” drip dispersal in 
all cases for those problems. 48.037(b)(1) is also superfluous, as it simply restates the Chapter 285 
provisions. 
 

Chapter 48.037(b)(2) states, “Drip irrigation systems shall be designed using a maximum application 
rate of 0.15 gallon per square foot per day.” The “justification” stated for this provision is, “Due to 
variation in recommended hydraulic loading rates for Class III zone of the USDA Soil Textural 
Classifications (30 TAC 285.91 Table VI), generally poor site conditions (rocky soils and slopes of areas 
with Class III soils), and historic failure rates of many drip irrigation systems using the loading rate for 
Class III soils, the minimum requirement of 0.15 gallons per square foot provides a protection of public 
health by decreasing the total loading per square foot and potentially reducing the frequency of system 
failures.” 
 

Travis County has first provided no definition of what “system failure” is or any quantification of what 
“many” has been, so immediately calling to question if this provision would have any impact on 
“potentially reducing the frequency of system failures.” Therefore, Travis County is proposing to impose 
a “solution” for a “problem” it has not analyzed and determined the causes, extent or severity of, 
penalizing all drip dispersal systems, no matter the particular circumstances of each system. This is 
neither reasonable nor rational. 
 

Second, the issues noted would be due to poor design to meet the constraints of the site and/or issues 
with “qualifying” a soil as “suitable”, in which case again Travis County would rationally and reasonably 
deal with those matters, rather than imposing this loading rate restriction on all drip dispersal systems, 
no matter the actual circumstances of each one. The latter is neither reasonable nor rational. 
 

Third, as reviewed in the attached document “Decentralized Reuse with Subsurface Drip Irrigation 
Fields: Issues and Opportunities”, included as a part of these comments, the propensity for water issuing 
from a drip emitter to surface – which is perhaps what Travis County means by “system failure” – is a 
characteristic of the instantaneous flow rate out of the emitter, along with the character and moisture 
level of the soil around the emitter, and the length of a loading event, NOT of the hydraulic application 
rate onto the field. As reviewed in that paper, in a soil having the available infiltration rate of a Class III 
soil, loaded appropriately, the potential for water issuing from a drip emitter to be forced to the surface 
is extremely low, and most definitely would not be a chronic characteristic. Any observed “failures” are 
due to design and/or operational flaws, not inherent in loading Class III soils up to the rate of 0.2 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

gallon/sq.ft./day allowed by Chapter 285. A reasonable and rational response to any actual problem is 
for Travis County to properly regulate so as to impose a sound design and operational regime. To 
impose the proposed restriction on all drip systems is not a reasonable or rational response. 
 

Fourth, it is called to question, if the issues noted are indeed a hazard, why is the proposed restriction on 
hydraulic application rate not also imposed on low-pressure-dosed drainfields? The concerns expressed 
about “generally poor site conditions” would apply even more severely to that design. So the proposed 
restriction on only drip systems is neither reasonable nor rational nor internally consistent. 
 

If Travis County believes that drip dispersal of water having been treated to secondary quality 
constitutes such a “hazard” that it merits increasing the standoff to rock 100% above that stipulated in 
Chapter 285, then Travis County must also believe that there are hazards inherent in allowing surface 
spray dispersal of effluent in uncontrolled access areas – AT ALL. It is understood that Travis County 
lacks the political will to take on the interests it would have to confront if it were to ban this practice, but 
if Travis County indeed believes the “hazard” noted above merits the action it is proposing, then Travis 
County must address spray dispersal at least as “sternly”, if it is to maintain any pretense that its rules 
are reasonable and rational and internally consistent. 
 

However, the only manner in which Travis County has chosen to reduce the hazards of spray dispersal is 
in 48.037(d), which states: 
 

(1) Surface irrigation shall be conducted during the night-time hours, preferably just before sunrise. 
(2) Consideration must be given towards controlling run-off from the disposal area during rain 

events. 
(3) The minimum setback to a property line is 25 feet. 

 

Regarding (3), the “justification” stated for it is, “Due to an average wind speed of 8.5 mph …, an 
increase [sic] setback to property lines can decrease the likelihood of wind induce [sic] carriage of 
irrigation effluent across property lines.” In this regard, 25 feet is a cruel joke on the neighbors of a 
property with a spray dispersal system. A setback that would have meaning in regard to aerosol drift is 
something on the order of 200 feet. This would sequester spray dispersal systems to very large lots, 
rather than allow them to be lined up lot after lot over whole subdivisions, with aerosols drifting 
throughout the neighborhood. If it wishes to assert its rules are reasonable, rational and internally 
consistent, Travis County must consider this action. 
 

Regarding (1), the “justification” stated for it is, “Irrigation is limited to the period of least human 
activity to minimize the likelihood of human contact. Night time irrigation provides for greater 
protection of public health since it is generally the period of least human activity.” This is an explicit 
stipulation by Travis County that hazard is inherent in spray dispersal. Yet there is nothing in Chapter 48 
that would mitigate that hazard, except for (2), which sets forth the milquetoast provision that 
“consideration” be given to controlling run-off during rain events. This circumstance is neither 
reasonable nor rational nor internally consistent. 
 

Regarding the ability of Travis County to control spray dispersal much, much better than the very lax 
regulation of this practice imposed by Chapter 285, it is noted that Clay County has completely banned 
spray dispersal, requiring drip dispersal in its stead. So simply imposing common sense controls on spray 
dispersal is clearly within the purview of Travis County. 
 

Chapter 285.33(d)(2) imposes no specification of a minimum soil requirement or “qualifying” the soil 
suitability in any manner for the use of spray dispersal. This is in stark contrast to the soil depth and 
quality requirements for subsurface drip irrigation of water having received the same level of 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

pretreatment, just not having been run through the fiction that is disinfection under these rules (see 
below). That is neither reasonable nor rational nor internally consistent. 
 

Nor does 285.33(d)(2) impose any meaningful standard for the design of a surface application system. In 
285.33(d)(2)(A), it is stated that “Land acceptable for surface application … shall be covered with 
grasses, evergreen shrubs, bushes, trees or landscaped beds containing mixed vegetation.” However, 
there is no standard for determining what “covered” means. This subsection also states that land with a 
slope greater than 15% may be used “… if it is properly landscaped and terraced to preclude runoff.” 
Yet there is no standard for what is “proper” landscaping or what “terraced” means. 15% is a HUGE 
slope for this purpose, no matter the landscaping. Allowing spray dispersal over a 15% slope is 
tantamount to declaring there is no “consideration” given to controlling runoff, which as noted above 
Travis County has stipulated must be given. Terracing should be relegated to a variance situation, as this 
would almost certainly be done only if other acceptable areas are not available, so that the specific 
situation would be explicitly reviewed in detail, as is required by the variance process. 
 

This all must be addressed if Travis County is to maintain that its rules are reasonable, rational and 
internally consistent. Travis County can do this in Chapter 48 by modifying 285.33(d)(2)(A) to read: 
 

Land acceptable for surface application shall be covered with soil with a gravel content of less than 60% of a 
depth that it will support the plant cover stipulated herein, and shall have a slope of less than 10%, shall not 
contain depressions or flow channels, and shall have a plant coverage of at least 90% of the total application 
area (after restoration, if necessary to attain 90% coverage), consisting of grasses, evergreen shrubs, bushes, 
trees or landscaping beds containing mixed vegetation. For shrubs and bushes, the plant canopy shall be 
deemed 100% coverage of the area within the drip line of the plants.  Any unplanted area under shrubs and 
bushes must be covered with mulch, it must not be bare soil. For areas under trees, the understory must have 
90% minimum plant coverage of the area. Documentation that the spray dispersal area meets all these 
requirements must be provided in the “Technical Report” specified in 285.33(d)(2)(C). 
 

Design of the dispersal field should be addressed in the “Technical report” covered in paragraph (C). 
The language of a Chapter 48 modification of 285.33(d)(2)(C) to stipulate that appropriate 
consideration has been given to the design could read: 
 

Technical report. A technical report covering the design and installation of the surface application system 
shall be submitted with the planning materials required in 285.5(a) of this title. The technical report shall 
provide a layout of the surface application system and a description of the system and calculations as 
necessary to show how uniform coverage of the application area would be achieved. The sprinkler heads or 
other distribution devices shall be identified by brand and model, and spray heads must have a spray angle of 
15 degrees or less. All other materials shall be specified to the level of detail required to specify the quality of 
the installation. The report shall detail how the distribution devices will be fed so that production of aerosols 
is minimized, and shall specify the timing of distribution events. The nature of the application area, including 
soil type and plant cover, shall be characterized in regard to potential to induce runoff, and the precipitation 
rate imparted by the distribution devices and the precipitation depth in each application shall be justified in 
regard to this characterization, showing that runoff will not occur due solely to the effluent application when 
soil antecedent moisture is at ANC III. The actual landscaping to be provided by the finished application 
area shall be described and shown on a layout plan, confirming that the required plant and ground coverage 
shall be assured. 
 

Note that an actual design to produce the results expected – e.g., no runoff – must be required, which this 
language does. The present language in Chapter 285 is quite deficient in that regard – it does not 
require anything that might be reasonably graced with the term “design”. Also, the “landscaping plan” is 
an essential element of this “technical report”, so that the stipulations of 285.33(d)(2)(F) would be 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

incorporated here.  Part of 285.33(d)(2)(G) would be moot, since there is a requirement in the above 
that the applicant demonstrate uniform coverage. The details offered in (G)(i) and (ii) are redundant 
with the requirements specified for the “technical report”. 
 

If Travis County believes that subsurface drip dispersal of water having received secondary treatment 
presents such a “hazard” that it must increase the standoff between drip emitters and rock by 100% over 
what is specified in Chapter 285, then it must address 285.33(d)(2)(D), “Effluent disinfection”, to 
require much better control of disinfection. There is considerable evidence that disinfection with drop-
feed tablet chlorinators is hit or miss at best, due to lack of appropriate maintenance and operation of 
drop-feed tablet chlorinators and to insufficient clarity of the treated effluent. Dose control with a drop-
feed tablet chlorinator is an illusion even when the device is kept supplied with chlorine tablets and is 
operating properly. Keeping the chlorinator supplied with tablets must be defined as maintenance that 
must be performed by the duly authorized maintenance provider, not left to the whim of the system 
user, as experience has shown this has resulted in a high instance of chlorinators being out of chlorine 
tablets. The lack of concern for this shown by Travis County is neither reasonable nor rational nor 
internally consistent. 
 

Regarding 285.33(d)(2)(E), “Minimum required application area”, there needs to be language to the 
effect that the actual location of the project must use the application rate interpolated from the chart in 
285.90(1) for that location, rather than applying the rate at the nearest line with the higher application 
rate, as 285.90(1) specifies. This “dumbing down” of the procedure to determine the application rate 
results in a rate of 0.064 gpd/sq. ft. being applied all over Travis County. A location toward the eastern 
edge of Travis County would have an application rate of ~0.050, a location in the center of Travis 
County would have an application rate of ~0.053 gpd/sq. ft., and a location at the western edge of Travis 
County would have an application rate of ~0.056, if the rate were interpolated from the chart. Allowing 
an application rate of 0.064 results in a very significant increase over the proper application rate for that 
location, if the chart has any validity. Allowing this to persist while proposing to impose the limit on the 
hydraulic application rate of drip dispersal stated in 48.037(b)(2) is not reasonable or rational or 
internally consistent. Language to implement a requirement to interpolate the surface application rate 
could modify 285.33(d)(2)(E) to read: 
 

The minimum surface application area required shall be determined by dividing the daily usage rate (Q), 
established by 285.91(3) of this title, by the allowable surface application rate (Ri = effective loading rate in 
gallons per square foot per day) as derived from 285.90(1) of this title. The value of Ri for the actual location 
of the OSSF shall be interpolated if it lies between the lines shown on 285.90(1). 
 

Section 285.33(d)(4), “Soil substitution drainfields”, modified by Chapter 48.037(e), is a very 
environmentally unsound idea. Where there is insufficient soil for a “conventional” style drainfield, one 
should simply NOT BE ALLOWED. The regulatory system shouldn’t turn handsprings trying to 
“justify” the use of one in those circumstances. To do so is internally inconsistent with the concern 
shown for drip dispersal, as noted. The ONLY type of field, other than a mound (which is itself a de-
optimized buried sand filter), that should be allowed in fill soil is subsurface drip dispersal. Chapter 
48.037(e) must read, “Soil Substitution beds are not allowed in Travis County.” 
 

Section 285.33(d)(5), “Drainfields following secondary treatment and disinfection”, is a highly 
irresponsible idea.  Especially given the practically non-existent attention so far shown to assuring that 
secondary quality effluent and effective disinfection is indeed attained, consistently and reliably.  At 
least until TCEQ, or at least Travis County, chooses to ensure that proper attention is required, allowing 
drainfields IN fractured or fissured rock is a MOST HIGHLY IRRESPONSIBLE action.  There is 
absolutely no reason why the conditions presumed here cannot be addressed with drip dispersal in 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

sufficient fill depth to attain the required soil depth between the drip emitters and the limiting 
condition. A provision must be written into Chapter 48 to eliminate drainfields following secondary 
treatment and disinfection in fractured or fissured rock as an option in Travis County. To not do this is 
not reasonable nor rational nor internally consistent. 
 

If Travis County believes that drip dispersal of water having received secondary treatment presents such 
a “hazard” that it must increase the standoff between drip emitters and rock by 100% of the standoff 
specified in Chapter 285, then Travis County must also believe it must impose a higher level of oversight 
on the home-sized activated sludge treatment units known as the “aerobic treatment unit”, abbreviated 
ATU, than is imposed by Chapter 285. To do otherwise would be irrational and inconsistent. 
 

Regarding Chapter 48.034, allowing homeowners to maintain an activated sludge treatment unit is 
tantamount to conceding that anything except “physical” maintenance – e.g., replacement of a broken 
part – is not to be expected. But then, as things now sit, that is the case even with licensed maintenance 
providers, since there is little that can be done through visits every 4 months to actually maintain a 
home-sized, episodically loaded activated sludge treatment unit operating in the on-lot environment in 
“working order”, if that is defined as consistently and reliably producing secondary quality effluent. 
 

In particular, Chapter 48 must modify 285.32(c)(1) to require flow equalization of ATUs, if Travis 
County is going to continue to allow ATUs to be installed. Travis County well understands that these 
home-sized activated sludge treatment units cannot consistently and reliably produce secondary effluent 
under the episodic flow regime in on-lot systems without being flow equalized. Indeed, Standard 40 
allows ATUs to violate secondary effluent standards during a “stress test” typical of the flow regime in 
the on-lot environment and still “pass”. Again, if Travis County believes that drip dispersal of water 
having received secondary treatment presents such a “hazard” that it must increase the standoff between 
drip emitters and rock by 100% of the standoff specified in Chapter 285, then it must believe that it must 
regulate ATUs in a manner that renders them as likely as practical to consistently and reliably produce 
secondary quality effluent, particularly since the effluent produced by ATUs is almost universally routed 
to a spray dispersal field. To fail to regulate in that manner is neither reasonable nor rational nor 
internally consistent. 
 

A very basic measure would be assure that the maintenance protocol for each ATU placed on the 
approved list by dint of having obtained an NSF Standard 40 “certification” is the maintenance protocol 
that is faithfully executed. Standard 40 stipulates that “Manufacturers shall provide comprehensive and 
detailed operations and maintenance instructions to authorized representatives.” [emphasis added]  It 
should be stipulated in these rules that this required manual be provided with the planning materials, 
along with a copy of the actual maintenance contract, requiring that contract to delineate the 
maintenance protocol, so that the proposed O&M program can be verified to meet the manufacturer’s 
requirements. Since this is a stipulation of NSF Standard 40, and an ATU that obtained a place on the 
“approved list” by dint of having obtained a Standard 40 “certification” must continuously comply with 
that standard, it must be confirmed that a homeowner undertaking to maintain an ATU shall have also 
received those instructions and been trained to execute those instructions. Otherwise, Travis County would 
be colluding to violate the requirements of Standard 40. Language, as additional sentences added to 
285.32(c)(3) by Chapter 48, might read: 
 

The applicant shall provide a copy of the proposed maintenance contract and a copy the manufacturer’s 
“comprehensive and detailed operations and maintenance instructions” (a required standard document for 
all proprietary systems placed on the approved list upon the basis of having “passed” NSF Standard 40) with 
the planning materials for an OSSF application that includes a proprietary treatment system.  The provisions 
of the proposed maintenance contract shall conform to these “comprehensive and detailed operations and 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

maintenance instructions”. If a homeowner proposes to conduct maintenance on the OSSF, the 
manufacturer must certify that the homeowner has received those instructions and been trained by the 
manufacturer to conduct maintenance on that OSSF. 
 

Chapter 48 must modify 285.32(c)(5)(A)(ii), dealing with the use of proprietary units in OSSF’s that do 
not meet the stipulations of the “certification” under which the proprietary unit gained a place on the 
approved list. It must be made clear that the system must be permitted as a “non standard” system.  This 
and the provision in (i) are stated in a manner that seems to want to “squirm” around this central issue. 
Not just influent strength but any aspect of the OSSF that does not conform to the stipulations of the 
“certification” standard must disqualify the unit from being considered for permitting under this section. 
For example, commercial systems may have important differences from residential systems in regards 
other than influent strength, such as the timing of influent flows—e.g., weekdays only instead of all 
week. 
 

NSF Standard 40 is valid only for treatment units serving an individual residence. It states under “Scope”:  
“This Standard contains minimum requirements for residential wastewater treatment systems having 
rated treatment capacities between 1514 L/day (400 gal/day) and 5678 L/day (1500 gal/day).” In the 
“Definitions” section, “residential wastewater” is defined as “Human body waste and liquid waste 
generated by the occupants of an individual residence.” [emphasis added] And “residential wastewater 
treatment system” is defined as “An organized and coordinated system of components that functions to 
treat wastewater generated by individual residences.” [emphasis added] Thus, any system which has 
gained the status of approved “proprietary unit” by virtue of possessing the Standard 40 “certification” 
which serves a multi-family or commercial application does not qualify to be approved as a “proprietary 
unit” under this section, since the unit would not qualify to be placed on the approved list for that use. 
Rather, that treatment unit must be explicitly designed for that application under the provisions of 
285.32(d). 
 

If the OSSF in question uses a “proprietary unit” in a way that violates the conditions of the 
“certification” standard which gained it a place on the approved list, then that unit may not be 
considered as a “proprietary treatment system” or “proprietary unit” as that term is intended under 
285.32(c), even though it still meets the definition of “proprietary system” in 285.2. To clarify this, 
Chapter 48 must modify 285.32(c) in a manner such as this: 
 

This subsection applies to a “proprietary system” as defined in 285.2(57) only when it is used in an OSSF in 
which the system characteristics conform in all regards with the stipulations, presumptions, conditions, etc., 
of the “certification” procedure through which the proprietary unit gained a place on the executive director’s 
approved list of proprietary units, as set forth in 285.32(c)(5). If the characteristics of the OSSF do not 
conform in all regards with that “certification” procedure, then the OSSF must be considered as a “non 
standard” system and be permitted under the procedures set forth in 285.32(d). 
 

Chapter 48 must modify 285.32(f) relating to “Other Design Considerations”, so that ATU’s must have a 
means to prevent the flow through of untreated water to the effluent tank during a power outage or 
when the compressor fails to function. To fail to do this is neither reasonable nor rational nor internally 
consistent. Chapter 48 must amend 285.32(f) to add this provision: 
 

(f)  All treatment units shall be designed and operated so that untreated water would not flow through the 
unit during any time that treatment system function is lost due to equipment failure or power outage, and to 
assure proper operation is restored when the equipment or power is restored.  An application for a permit to 
install an OSSF that includes a proprietary or non-standard treatment unit shall provide a description of how 
this requirement is attained: 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

(1) The application shall be accompanied by calculations as required to demonstrate that the required 
function is attained.  The volume of storage that must be available in the event treatment system 
function is lost shall be that volume specified to be provided above the alarm level in 285.34(b) 
relating to “Pump tanks” in this title. 

(2) The application shall be accompanied by drawings showing the equipment used to provide this 
function.  The drawings shall detail the size and construction of the tank(s) used to provide storage 
and shall detail all other equipment. 

(3) The application shall be accompanied by a specification of the procedures to be followed to restore 
the treatment unit to routine operation following an event that interrupts treatment system function 
prior to allowing any effluent to exit the treatment unit and flow to the dispersal field. 

 

Providing flow equalization may be the most “practical” way to meet this standard.  It appears that 
TCEQ does not feel that the prospect of untreated water reaching the effluent tank and then being 
sprayed around an area with no area controls is sufficiently alarming to merit the inclusion of the above 
language, and the only thing it has chosen to do is add a provision that “the designer should consider 
whether flow-equalization will be needed for the treatment system to function properly”.  That is 
obviously meaningless, as there is no standard of “need”, or even any real requirement for a system to 
“function properly” in these rules. Unless Travis County wishes to show that same disregard for this 
hazard, it must include the above language or its equivalent, to prevent untreated water being able to 
freely flow through a treatment unit all throughout the time a power outage is occurring and/or when a 
critical component of the system, without the proper functioning of which secondary treatment cannot 
reasonably be expected to be achieved, is not operating properly. 
 

While all of the above would more reasonably and rationally govern the use of ATUs, the real “bottom 
line” is to assure that a pretreatment unit produces secondary quality effluent consistently and reliably. 
Therefore, some degree of monitoring must be considered. It is understood that collecting grab samples 
for analysis of BOD5 and TSS at 4-month intervals – the presently required frequency of maintenance 
visits for a “proprietary unit” – is rather meaningless surveillance, and that collecting and analyzing 
samples at all is deemed “unaffordable” for on-lot systems. It is suggested that very frequent turbidity 
monitoring would be a sufficient surrogate for testing of samples. A continuous turbidity monitor, with 
an alarm function signaling “out of range” turbidity, would be a reasonable way to implement that 
monitoring. If Travis County believes that drip dispersal of water having received secondary treatment 
presents such a “hazard” that it must increase the standoff between drip emitters and rock by 100% of 
the standoff specified in Chapter 285, then it must also believe that allowing effluent to be sprayed over 
the surface without taking any measures to assure that effluent has been treated to the standard 
required of it is an unacceptable hazard. To believe otherwise is neither reasonable nor rational nor 
internally consistent. 
 

Regarding pump tanks, Travis County will be well served to rationalize the rules pertaining to pump 
tank design by modifying 285.34(b)(1), (2), (3) & (4), and adding (5) and (6), as follows: 
 

(b)  Pump tanks and pump systems. When water within the system must be pumped for any purpose, a pump 
tank or chamber and a pump system conforming to the requirements of section shall be incorporated into the 
system design. A technical report detailing all items required by this subsection shall be submitted with the 
planning materials required in 285.5(a) of this title. All requirements of 285.32(b)(1)(D)-(F) of this title 
(relating to Criteria for Sewage Treatment Systems) also apply to construction and installation of pump 
tanks. The pump tank and pump system shall be designed and installed according to the following 
specifications. 

(1) Pump tank and pump system criteria. The pump tank or chamber shall be water-tight. The pump line 
shall be protected against backflow or siphoning, as required by the circumstances of each 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

application. The pump system shall be equipped with an audible and a visible alarm that will signal if 
the pump fails to function as required by the design for each application. The visible alarm must be 
readily discernible at a distance of 50 feet from the alarm panel in normal daylight. The audible 
alarm must be readily discernible at a distance of 50 feet from the alarm panel. A manual “silence” 
switch shall be provided on the exterior of the alarm panel to turn off the audible alarm. The visual 
alarm must stay illuminated until the condition which caused the alarm has been remedied and/or 
the alarm panel has been reset. Power to any alarm circuits shall be provided by a separate circuit 
from that which powers the pump. Batteries may be used for back-up power supply only. All electrical 
components shall be listed and labeled by Underwriters Laboratories (UL). 

(2)  Pump tank sizing. 
(A) Pump tanks for simplex pump systems. Pump tanks or chambers shall be sized to contain all of 

these volumes: 
(i) The permanent liquid depth in the bottom of the tank required to protect the pump 

from thermal overload. 
(ii) A volume equal to the dose that is allowed to build up in the pump tank before the 

pump is actuated to evacuate this volume, or a volume equal to the operating storage 
as set forth in 285.34(b)(5) of this title. 

(iii) An emergency storage volume above the high water alarm switch equal to at least the 
design daily flow rate of the system in which the pump tank or chamber is utilized. 
This requirement may be waived in a tank or chamber of a tank in which the pump 
alarm in that chamber is arranged to disable a pump that causes water to be fed into 
that chamber. 

(B) Pump tanks for duplex pump systems. Pump tanks or chambers shall be sized to contain all of 
these volumes: 

(i) The permanent liquid depth in the bottom of the tank required to protect the pumps from 
thermal overload. 

(ii) A volume equal to the dose that is allowed to build up in the pump tank before a pump is 
actuated to evacuate this volume, or a volume equal to the operating storage as set forth 
in 285.34(b)(5) of this title. 

(iii) An emergency storage volume above the high water alarm switch equal to at least 4 hours 
flow at the design daily flow rate of the system in which the pump tank or chamber is 
utilized. 

(C) The specified total volume shall be attained either: 
(i) At or below the flow line of the inlet into the pump tank or chamber. 
(ii) At any elevation below the interior depth of the pump tank or chamber, provided that any 

impacts of back-ponding into any chambers upstream of this pump tank or chamber 
caused by ponding to a depth above the flow line of the inlet to the pump tank or 
chamber are addressed, as set forth in 285.34(b)(4), in regard to restoring proper system 
function once pump function is restored and the storage volume above the alarm level is 
dissipated. 

(3) Pump specifications. All pumps shall be rated by the manufacturer for pumping sewage or sewage 
effluent. A duplex pump system shall be used for all systems serving commercial establishments. 
Either a simplex pump system or a duplex pump system may be used in all other systems with a 
design daily flow rate of 1,000 gallons/day or less. A duplex pump system must be used in all systems 
with a daily design flow rate of greater than 1,000 gallons/day. A duplex pump system shall be 
designed so that each pump is activated alternately each time that the pump function is demanded by 
the control system. In the event the pump first activated fails to operate, the control system shall 
activate the other pump, and the control system shall set an alarm to indicate a pump has failed and 
shall “lock out” the pump which failed and start the other pump each time the control system 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

demands a pump to function. This operation shall persist until the control system is reset to duplex 
operation, which shall not be done until the cause of the pump failure has been remedied. 

 

Modify 285.34(b)(4)(B) as follows: “A pump low-level cutoff switch shall be set in the tank at a depth 
such that thermal protection of the pump is always provided. The equalization volume – the depth 
between the low-level cutoff switch and the high water alarm – shall be specified by the designer based 
on analysis of the expected temporal variations into the treatment unit. If the tank is serving a residence, 
the minimum equalization volume shall be 50% of the daily design flow rate. The pump system shall be 
designed to run doses of a set run time at equal intervals throughout the diurnal cycle. The maximum 
dosing frequency shall be 2 hours.” 
 

Add 285.34(b)(5) as follows: 
(5) An application for a system that incorporates a pump tank or chamber shall be accompanied by 

calculations and drawings as required to demonstrate that the required storage volume, as specified 
in 285.34(b)(2), is provided, and to demonstrate that the pump system is designed to accomplish the 
functions it must for the system to operate as designed, including specification of the alarm system 
and a description of its operation.  If attaining the required storage volume entails back-ponding into 
an upstream chamber, the application shall be accompanied by a description of how proper system 
function would be restored once pump function is restored without a hazard accruing due to the 
back-ponding into the upstream chamber. 

 

Add 285.34(b)(6) as follows: 
 

(6) Special provisions for pump tanks for surface application systems.  Surface application shall be 
allowed only between midnight and 5 a.m.  The pump system for a surface application system shall 
be controlled by equipment that allows all effluent to be dispersed in this time period, with the volume 
of multiple applications limited as required to preclude runoff, as set forth in the “technical report” 
required by 285.33(d)(2)(C) of this title.  The effluent storage tank shall contain a volume for 
operating storage, defined as the volume available between the minimum operating level in the tank – 
typically delineated by a switch which turns the pump off when water level is drawn down to that level 
– and the level at which the high water alarm would be tripped.  The minimum volume of this 
operating storage shall be: 

(i) Equal to the design daily flow rate of the system if the treatment system incorporates flow 
equalization so that no more than the design daily flow can enter the effluent storage tank 
in a 24-hour period, or 

(ii) Equal to 150% of the design daily flow rate of the system if the system does not 
incorporate flow equalization. 

 

These modifications address critical design issues that the current and proposed rules do not. Again, 
Travis County will be well served to require all this to be demonstrated in the application for a permit. 
 

The proposed Chapter 48.036(b) states, “Non-residential Treatment Requirements – Non-residential 
systems shall have a minimum of six-day retention time in a septic tank, or in a pre-treatment tank prior 
to a treatment unit; or provide equalization tanks per 30 TAC Section 285.34.” The “justification” stated 
for this rule is, “Non-standard treatment units are individually designed systems generally utilizing 
mechanical components in systems designed to provide a higher level of sewage treatment on a given 
site due to unsuitable site conditions. Unsuitable site conditions and additional mechanical components 
increase the need for assurance of proper functioning and performance monitoring of these units which 
is provided by a more stringent maintenance requirement. Increased public health and environmental 
protection is the result of this additional ongoing upkeep of the more complex systems needed to serve 
in less than ideal conditions.” 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

 

The “justification” had it right at “Non-standard treatment units are individually designed systems.” All 
the rest of it is highly specious. Indeed, the “non-standard” systems that I design are functionally simpler, 
not “more complex”, than the “proprietary” home-sized activated sludge units, for which no such 
stipulations are set forth. In regard to the stipulation of a six-day HRT in the septic tank, since each 
“non-standard” system is an individually designed system, the appropriate HRT in a septic tank or 
pretreatment tank would be part of the individual design, which Travis County must require the 
designer to specify and justify. It is inappropriate to “artificially” specify this very high minimum; it 
violates the very idea of a “non-standard” design. There is no need for this provision. 
 

Chapter 48.032 (b) states, “… the minimum lot size for a structure served by an OSSF … is one acre” 
and Chapter 48.032 (c) states, “… multiple residential units may be on a single lot or site only if the lot 
contains at least one acre of land for each residential unit.” The “justification” for these provisions is, 
“Larger lot sizes are necessary to protect the public health and environment in Travis County because of 
the predominance of unsuitable soils, steep rocky slopes, and the demand for construction of larger than 
normal houses. Research of the literature revels that many jurisdictions increase lot size requirements to 
protect groundwater through the reduction of septic tank densities …. 
 

“Additional space is needed for lots utilizing both individual and [sic] wells and on-site wastewater 
systems to ensure that groundwater quality is protected by providing adequate buffer space around the 
wells without having to encroach on adjacent properties. Additionally, many areas of western Travis 
County have rapidly recharging conditions, with thin soils and karst rock or layered limestone. These 
conditions are particularly vulnerable to well contamination from either surface sources or OSSFs. 
Large lot sizes will reduce the potential for contamination in these sensitive areas, thus providing 
additional protection for the public health and environment. 
 

“Since small lots are commonly cited as the number one problem with siting on-site sewage systems, 
future health hazards can be averted by adhering to minimum required lot sizes, providing greater 
protection to the public health and environment. Once a minimum lot size standard is set, there should 
be only rare occasions when a new subdivision would be created with lots smaller than those required. … 
 

“Western Travis County requires the additional protection to public health and the environment 
afforded by this requirement because its topography typically has steep rocky slopes with thin soils which 
are not favorable for on-site sewage disposal. Each lot in new subdivisions should initially be created 
with on [sic] area suitable for a sewage disposal field and a replacement area in order to prevent health 
and pollution problems resulting from poorly sited sewage systems or from the inability to relocate a 
new system in case of failure. Each newly created lot should have an area with flat enough slopes (30% 
or less) to allow the installation of a variety of on-site sewage systems in most soil conditions, giving the 
owner the maximum options for types of facilities which will provide protection to the public health and 
environment equivalent to the State Rules.” 
 

For starters, Travis County should not be in the business of “giving the owner the maximum options for 
types of facilities”, Travis County should be in the business of assuring appropriate design to cope with the 
site constraints of each lot. That the regulatory system has historically failed to do this is the reason why most 
of the other problems cited might have any “validity”. While it is understood that it is part of the “voodoo” 
of this field, lot size is by itself not the determinant of these outcomes, rather it is whether or not the 
system has been designed to cope with the site constraints so as to protect public health and 
environmental values. While the issue of fitting a well and OSSF onto a lot, and not having the sanitary 
easement around the well encroaching onto neighboring lots, is indeed a legitimate concern, this is a 
matter that can be addressed, with restrictions on well siting specified, in the platting process. In any 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Comments on Travis County Chapter 48, OSSF Rules, 11/25/14 

case, in that situation, Chapter 285 already stipulates a minimum lot size of one acre, so that is a red 
herring argument here. 
 

The aspect of this of most concern is the creation of condo-ized projects. By clustering the houses, 
creating a so-called “conservation development”, an environmentally benign OSSF can be designed into 
the site plan without a “need” for there to be one acre per living unit of lot area, in regard to the issues 
set forth in the “justification”. This too is a matter that can be addressed in the platting process, with it 
being incumbent on the applicant to demonstrate ample room for an OSSF on whatever size lot is 
proposed. As long as the lot size is over one acre, it complies with Chapter 285, since that document is 
silent on required lot sizes for projects with more than one housing unit on one lot. 
 

One “justification” that has been posed previously, which is not explicitly stated in this “justification”, is 
to protect groundwater quantity, by limiting the number of houses which might be built in an area. 
However, this rule is to be applied without regard to a defined need to protect groundwater quantity, or 
to the source of water supply. In the case of, for example, a project proposing to obtain water supply by 
building-scale rainwater harvesting, the ability to creatively plan the development would be hamstrung 
by a presumed “restriction” that would not exist. 
 

Then too, there is a lot of Travis County that is not “western Travis County [with] rapidly recharging 
conditions, with thin soils and karst rock or layered limestone” and other such “hazards” as are noted in 
the “justification”. This rule poses a roadblock to more creative land planning where those “hazards” 
are not present. Thus it is neither reasonable nor rational. 
 

Travis County should reconsider this rule and figure out how to address the “proper” sizing of lots in the 
platting process, rather than impose a “one size fits all” approach in Chapter 48 which hamstrings 
creative design of development, in particular “conservation developments”. This would tend, indeed it 
has tended, to drive developers to install much more intense development served by wastewater systems 
permitted through the “municipal” process at TCEQ. Which is contrary to what appears to be the intent as 
set forth in the “justification”, to provide “better” protection of public health and environmental values. 
Those more intense developments will create more non-point source pollution, including due to more 
cars running over the roads. They will also create a need for more roads and other services – which the 
tax base created by development typically does not cover. And that TCEQ-permitted wastewater system 
would itself be a major source of pollution, unless it were designed in the manner of the very best sort of 
on-site system for the site conditions in western Travis County, recirculating packed bed treatment unit 
and subsurface drip irrigation dispersal – a strategy which no one will advocate that the developers 
employ and that TCEQ would actively resist. So again, this rule is likely to be a classic case of 
unintended consequences. Please reconsider it. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
David Venhuizen, P.E. 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



_________________________________ 
1 Principal, David Venhuizen, P.E., 5803 Gateshead Drive, Austin, Texas 78745, waterguy@ix.netcom.com 

DECENTRALIZED REUSE WITH SUBSURFACE DRIP IRRIGATION FIELDS 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES 

 
David Venhuizen1 

 
Subsurface drip irrigation (SDI) has experienced increasing use as a wastewater management 
tool since it was first used for this application in the 1980’s.  Many address this technology as a 
“disposal” process, as simply a “better” or more efficient way to make the wastewater “go 
away”.  This paper focuses on using this tool to maximize beneficial reuse, using effluent to 
satisfy the irrigation and fertilization functions.  But since the source water is wastewater, this 
entails review both of how to “best” serve those functions and of how to protect water resources 
from whatever pollutants remain in the effluent after treatment. 
 
The degree of pretreatment required prior to dispersal is an evaluation based on the public health 
and environmental considerations that come into play in each situation.  However, with SDI, 
there are also practical operational issues to be considered, most importantly prevention of 
emitter clogging.  Those issues urge the use of pretreatment to produce a highly clarified effluent 
prior to dispersal.  There is a whole school of thought—supplied and serviced by a number of 
equipment vendors—that using SDI systems to disperse septic tank effluent, forcing it through 
physical filters to clarify it, is merited.  However, the inelegance and inherent risk of this 
approach are obvious.  It is also questionable strategy to dedicate resources to the expensive 
physical filtration devices, which leave most of the pathogens and nutrients in the water, instead 
of a pretreatment process that removes the majority of them.  This pretreatment also renders the 
effluent more suitable as an irrigation resource.  Therefore, the discussion in this paper is 
predicated on the presumption that effluent flowing into SDI systems is highly pretreated, thus 
highly clarified, water. 
 
Hydraulic Application Rates for SDI Reuse Systems 
 
In small-scale wastewater systems, rarely is provision made for long-term storage of effluent, 
rather the amount generated each day is dispersed in fairly short order.  Once injected into the 
soil, the water can only exit via one of two pathways – evapotranspiration (ET) or deep 
percolation.  So if the system generates effluent without regard to variations in climate, the SDI 
system has to function as a “drainfield” some of the time.  This is so without regard to the 
general climate at the site, as even during times when the ET rate is generally high, there will be 
rainy periods that fill up the soil moisture storage capacity.  Under these conditions, any 
pollutants remaining in the effluent may percolate to a limiting condition, and thus impact upon 
public health or environmental values. 
 
Determining the “optimum” design hydraulic application rate (HAR) for a system to obtain 
significant irrigation benefit, while being mindful of the “drainfield” design issues, entails an 
analysis of site climate and the plants being irrigated.  Such an analysis is presented here for a 
project in the Texas Hill Country, presuming the “crop” is turf.  Since this analysis is for 
illustrative purposes only, derivation of inputs to this analysis are not detailed here.  They are 
reviewed in a design report for this project, available to interested parties from the author. 
(Venhuizen, 1993)  In Tables 1 and 2, ETo is the reference crop ET rate, ETcrop is the ET rate for 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



2 

 

the specified crop, and Pe is effective precipitation—the portion of rainfall that infiltrates into the 
soil and remains as water available to the crop. 
 
   Table 1. Monthly Evapotranspiration and Total Rainfall Data—Example System 

 ETo  ETcrop  Average Rainfall 
Month mm/day mm/month  mm/month  in./month mm/month 

January 2.2 68  61  1.60 41 
February 2.8 78  70  2.49 63 
March 3.8 118  106  1.68 43 
April 5.2 156  140  3.11 79 
May 6.7 208  187  4.19 106 
June 7.9 237  213  3.06 78 
July 8.2 254  229  1.89 48 

August 7.7 239  215  2.24 57 
September 6.0 180  162  3.60 91 

October 4.1 127  114  3.38 86 
November 2.9 87  78  2.20 56 
December 2.2 68  61  20.6 52 

 
   Table 2. Irrigation Loading Rates – Example System 

 ETcrop  Pe  ETcrop – Pe  HAR 
Month mm/month  mm/month  mm/month  cm/day gal/ft2/day 

January 61  27  34  0.11 0.027 
February 70  42  28  0.10 0.025 
March 106  31  75  0.24 0.059 
April 140  59  81  0.27 0.066 
May 187  85  102  0.33 0.081 
June 213  68  145  0.48 0.119 
July 229  49  180  0.58 0.143 

August 215  51  164  0.41 0.130 
September 162  70  92  0.31 0.075 

October 114  61  53  0.17 0.042 
November 78  38  40  0.13 0.033 
December 61  32  29  0.09 0.023 

 
These calculations suggest setting the design HAR at about 0.4 cm/day (0.1 gal/ft2/day) for this 
project.  Decreasing the HAR further would hold it at or below the average ET demand in more 
months, but with increasing costs for diminishing returns.  Taking into account that some 
percolation losses would occur no matter how large the field were made, it is not considered cost 
efficient to employ the HAR which would evapotranspirate the average effluent load throughout 
the whole year. Also, lowering the HAR would decrease the portion of irrigation demands met 
by effluent in the peak months.  So, the HAR is set at about 0.4 cm/day in this climate, and the 
SDI field must function as “drainfield” when ET demand is less than that, on either a short-term 
basis—e.g., rainy days during the summer—or a long-term basis, through periods when ET 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



3 

 

demand is low.  Loading rates in that range result in irrigation applications of around 2.5 
cm/week (1 inch/week), a little less than the average landscape plant water demands over the 
growing season in this region. (Borrelli, et al., 1998)  Thus, most of the effluent routed to the 
SDI field would be effectively utilized to supply irrigation demand through the peak irrigation 
season, greatly defraying demands during the time when this would have the maximum benefit 
to the local and regional water economy. 
 
Water Savings Potential with SDI 
 
An indication of the potential water savings available from this strategy was provided by an 
analysis conducted as part of a water conservation study prepared for the Barton 
Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District. (Venhuizen, 1990)  Water records for customers 
of a small water district were reviewed.  Customers with significant differences in winter 
(December-February) and summer (June-August) usage were taken as an example group who 
maintained highly irrigated landscapes.  Winter usage, presumed to be an estimate of wastewater 
flow, was deducted from total summer usage in each month during the May-September peak 
irrigation season.  This provided an estimate of how much water these customers would have 
saved if wastewater system effluent had been used to defray irrigation demands.  When these 
estimates were compared to their actual usage, it indicated that savings of 40% to 70% of total 
water demand through the peak irrigation season would have been realized.  Clearly, the 
potential water savings from this strategy in this climate are anything but trivial. 
 
Hydraulic Function of SDI System as a “Drainfield” 
 
Understanding the hydraulic function of an SDI system as a “drainfield” requires an examination 
of soil moisture at the micro level, considering the flow out of each emitter.  An SDI field is 
composed of drip hose runs on specified spacings, with emitters on each hose at specified 
intervals.  A typical array has hose runs on 2-foot centers and emitters at 2-foot spacings on each 
hose, as illustrated in Figure 1.  (Note that other spacings are employed to suit the needs of the 
landscaping being irrigated—e.g., closer hose and emitter spacings are used for turf if a high 
quality grass cover, free of “striping”, is desired.)  Therefore, on average, the water issuing from 
each emitter would “spread”—drawn by matric potential, the “suction” force created by capillary 
action of the soil pore spaces—to a little more than one foot from each emitter before the entire 
surface would become wetted, after which further emissions of water would continue to increase 
soil moisture level, eventually filling the voids to field capacity, the point at which capillary 
action can no longer counteract the force of gravity, and water would begin to drain downward. 
 
However, if the soil were already at high moisture content—either from a recent rainfall or 
because ET rate had recently been lower than the rate of effluent application—then moisture 
level would be at, or would be driven above, field capacity around the emitter before the water 
could be spread to any distance away from it.  When this occurs, water coming out of the emitter 
would percolate downward; that is, the SDI system would function as a “drainfield”. 
 
This dictates that the instantaneous emitter flow rate, expressed as flow out of the emitter over 
some prescribed radius around the it, needs to be lower than the saturated hydraulic conductivity, 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



or permeability, of the receiving soil.  Note that this is a characteristic of the drip emitter used, 
unrelated to the overall field HAR.  The situation is illustrated in Figure 2.  If the soil is very 
wet—above field capacity—when the emitter begins to flow, the radius the water might spread 
before it begins to percolate downward under the force of gravity would be small. 
 
 

 
Fig. 1.  Typical SDI Hose and Emitter Layout 

 
 

 
Fig. 2.  Percolation of Emitter Flow Under “Wet Soil” Conditions 

 
As an example, consider a pressure-compensating emitter with a flow rate of 0.53 gallons/hour 
(gph).  This translates to a flow rate of 0.53 gal/hr x 1 ft3/7.48 gal = 0.071 ft3/hr.  Taking a guess 
that under high antecedent moisture conditions the radius around the emitter that water would 
spread before it all percolated downward is 6 inches, then the area through which this flow must 
pass would be 0.52 x pi = 0.79 ft2.  The required permeability of the soil would therefore be 

4 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



5 

 

0.071 ft3/hr/0.79 ft2 = 0.09 ft/hr = 1.08 in/hr.  This is in the 0.6 – 2.0 range listed in SCS soil 
surveys for loams, silt loams, and the like. 
 
If the soil were “tighter” than this and the water could not percolate downward at that rate (or the 
soil were so wet that water coming out of the emitter could not spread even 6 inches, thus 
requiring that the permeability be even higher), then water may “pool” around the emitters under 
this “wet soil” condition.  This “pooling” would create a hydraulic head that would cause the 
water to spread further, and at some point a balance between emitter flow rate and soil 
transmission rate would be established. 
 
If, however, the effluent application time were “long”, then some of the effluent may be forced 
to the surface before it could percolate.  This urges the use of short dosing times, breaking the 
total daily flow into multiple doses if required.  For the situation where each emitter “covers” 4 
ft2 (the “2 X 2” spacing noted above) and the HAR is 0.1 gal/ft2/day, total daily flow out of the 
emitter would be 0.4 gallons.  At an emitter flow rate of 0.53 gph, the dosing time would be 
0.4/0.53 = 0.75 hr, or 45 minutes.  By splitting this up into 3 doses per day, the run time would 
be reduced to 15 minutes, minimizing the amount of water that must be “held” in the soil, 
waiting for it to percolate away, and thus minimizing the potential for any of the effluent to 
surface. 
 
In a “well-drained” soil, such a “wet soil” condition would likely persist only during and shortly 
after a significant rainfall event.  An analysis was done for a project in Austin, Texas, to estimate 
the percent of the time this condition might exist. (Venhuizen, 2002)  Rainfall records were 
reviewed for an 8-year period, 1987-1994.  While this period contained some “dry” years, the 
overall average rainfall for this period was slightly above the long-term average.  The USDA 
definition of antecedent moisture condition (AMC) III was used as the definition of “high” 
antecedent moisture – defined as at least 2.1 inches of rainfall over the previous 5 days. (USDA, 
1972)  Adding the effluent application—at 0.1 gal/ft2/day = 0.16 in/day, so it is noted that 
effluent applications by themselves would never drive moisture condition to AMC III, as 5 days 
flow would total to only 0.8 inch—to the rainfalls and using that as the AMC criterion, it was 
observed that AMC III would have existed on a total of 328 days over this 8-year (2,922-day) 
period, about 11% of the time.  However, any rainfall at all occurred on only 101 of these days, 
or about 3.5% of the time.  This then is an estimate of the maximum amount of the time that 
effluent application might induce surfacing of effluent-derived water. 
 
Any hazard due to this condition would be vanishingly small.  First, the run time each day would 
be a small fraction of the total time – 0.75/24 = 3.1% of the day in the example above.  Second, 
when there is that much water already in the soil, the effluent addition would be a fairly minor 
fraction of the total soil water.  Third, as this condition would occur for all but very “heavy” soils 
only during and shortly after a significant rainfall event, the likelihood of human exposure to any 
surfacing effluent-derived water is very low – people are highly unlikely to be rolling around in, 
or even walking over, the grass when the ground is that wet. 
 
The preceding discussion was about what happens while the SDI system is being dosed.  As 
noted, the time that flow issues from the emitter would be a small fraction of the day.  If the 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



6 

 

water could not percolate at the rate applied, it would “pool” as noted previously and drain at the 
available rate over time.  Note that the overall field average permeability required to 
accommodate the design HAR is 0.1 gal/ft2/day X 1ft3/7.48 gal = 0.134 ft/day = 0.00056 ft/hr = 
0.0067 in/hr.  If the instantaneous application rate were 1.08 in/hr, as estimated above for a “wet 
soil” condition, that implies the “effective application time” could be 1.08/0.0067 = 162 hours.  
There being only 24 hours in a day, clearly water could not be applied fast enough by the emitter 
to require that high of a permeability for anything but a minor fraction of the whole day.  This 
confirms that even in soils with significantly lower permeability, the water would percolate – the 
only question is how much “pooling” would occur while the emitter is flowing, and how often 
these conditions would occur, given climatic conditions at the site. 
 
Treatment Function in SDI Systems 
 
An SDI system disperses effluent into the soil in a manner that allows whatever soil resources 
that are available to remove and assimilate pollutants as efficiently as practical.  A review of the 
assimilation and elimination mechanisms operating in the soil/plant/water system shows that, for 
all the pollutants of concern, three factors can be controlled to make these mechanisms more 
effective (Venhuizen, 1995): 
 
• Shallow dispersal into the biologically active soil horizon (the root zone); 
• Low areal loading rates (HAR’s), to reduce flow rate through the soil pores; 
• Uniform distribution over the field area, with a dose/rest loading cycle, limiting the amount 

of water loaded per dose to minimize the degree of saturation. 
 
SDI technology practically maximizes all these factors.  As noted, once effluent is injected into 
the soil, it can only exit by one of two pathways—deep percolation or evapotranspiration.  
Pollution potential would be minimized by maximizing the ET losses at the expense of deep 
percolation losses.  This would limit the movement of pollutants through the soil to a limiting 
condition (groundwater or bedrock).  Even if much of the water eventually does percolate—
which, as reviewed previously, it will during portions of the year in any climate—the pollutants 
would be held in the root zone longer, providing greater opportunity for the assimilation and 
elimination mechanisms to work on them.  Evapotranspiration is itself enhanced by maximizing 
the three factors listed above. 
 
When the aim is to maximize irrigation efficiency, drip emitters are installed well up in the root 
zone, typically only a few inches deep into the soil.  They are installed directly into the soil, 
requiring no gravel envelope around them to receive and hold water coming out of them before it 
can be absorbed into the soil, because drip emitters flow at very low rates, typically less than 3.8 
liters/hour (1 gph).  Emitter spacing is typically quite close—as reviewed above, 61 cm (2 foot) 
spacings being typical.  These factors provide a very slow, controlled, and uniform wetting of the 
soil throughout the root zone over the entire field area. 
 
Drip hose is fairly inexpensive and being shallowly placed is relatively cost efficient to install, so 
increasing field area to provide a lower HAR—at irrigation rates—can be accommodated fairly 
cost efficiently.  As noted, the system should be designed to deliver the total daily flow in small 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



7 

 

doses.  This combination of small dose volumes and a low HAR—requiring a small daily flow 
out of each emitter—works together to minimize the degree of saturation imparted by each dose, 
thus minimizing the potential for deep percolation losses. 
 
Evapotranspiration potential will be greater in hotter and drier climates, of course, which is why 
demand for irrigation water is greater in those climates.  However, even in climates where 
significant ET losses do not occur through much of the year, these same design principles still 
result in the water being held in the root zone longer before percolating.  In colder climates, 
where ET potential is limited to the growing season, this design would still limit annual mass 
loadings of pollutants by taking advantage of whatever ET losses do occur to minimize total 
deep percolation losses over the year.  The design factors noted above would maximize soil 
treatment efficiency the rest of the time. 
 
Of particular concern in some watersheds are nitrogen inputs.  Some nitrogen in effluent routed 
to an irrigation system would be a fertilizer, a beneficial component rather than a pollutant.  Any 
excess must be assimilated or eliminated in the soil, or it will percolate into environmental 
waters.  Venhuizen (1995) reviewed the assimilation/elimination mechanisms and presented an 
analysis indicating that, in the climate of Washington Island, Wisconsin, effluent total nitrogen 
concentration should be reduced to about 20 mg/L in order to preclude leaching into a dolomite 
aquifer at concentrations sometimes exceeding 10 mg/L.  In climates where ET is higher, and 
especially where there is significant ET demand year-round, significantly greater assimilation 
and elimination would be expected. 
 
Almost all of the nitrogen in the effluent would transform to nitrate in the soil under all but 
highly saturated conditions—and as noted, given a “suitable” HAR, moisture level around the 
emitters would be below field capacity most of the time throughout the year.  Once in the nitrate 
from, the nitrogen can only exit the root zone via one of three pathways – plant uptake, in-soil 
denitrification, or deep percolation.  As noted, the SDI system minimizes percolation losses by 
design.  In any case, with the effluent injected into the root zone, the opportunities are enhanced 
for plant uptake and denitrification in anaerobic micro-sites—which are present even in well-
drained, near-surface soils. (Venhuizen, 1995) 
 
For all other pollutants, most importantly pathogens, it has been demonstrated that highly 
pretreated effluent—intermittent sand filter effluent in this instance—is “renovated” by flow 
through as little as 6 inches of soil, even when it is bulk-loaded onto a column of mound sand, a 
very coarse soil. (Stanbridge, et al., undated)  For all the reasons just reviewed, a high degree of 
soil treatment is provided with greater assurance when the effluent is applied through an SDI 
system.  The conclusion is that SDI, dispersing highly pretreated effluent, can be employed in 
marginal soil resources with minimal risk of hazards to public health or environmental values. 
 
SDI Installation and Maintenance 
 
Due to experiences with SDI systems that disperse septic tank effluent and effluent from 
pretreatment systems prone to periodic upsets, there is a general expectation that SDI systems 
“need” to include a complex prefiltration and control system that provides very frequent flushing 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



of the drip lines.  However, when preceded by a pretreatment system that will consistently and 
reliably produce a high quality, low turbidity effluent—e.g., a recirculating biofilter—a much 
less complex design employing an automatic flush valve, as illustrated in Figure 3, can be 
employed. 
 

 
Fig. 3.  Typical Installation of SDI System Receiving High Quality Effluent 

 
With high quality effluent flowing to the drip irrigation hose, a simple screen or disc strainer 
suffices for prefiltration.  The main function of this strainer is to intercept secondary growth 
solids (slimes that may grow on and slough off of the delivery pipe walls) and to serve as a “fail-
safe” device in case maintenance of the treatment unit is neglected or secondary regrowth solids 
build up in the effluent tank.  The field is generally designed with a number of zones, as dictated 
by the landscaping plan.  A cutoff valve at each hose entry is suggested so that a zone can be 
isolated for repairs while the rest of the field remains in service. 
 
A small flush flow is provided each time the drip hose array is pressurized by installing an 
automatic flush valve at the downstream end of the array.  This valve remains open, serving as 
an air release valve, while the drip hose is filling.  Just before the hose array completely fills up 
and fully pressurizes, a small squirt of water issues from this valve and then it closes.  This 
allows any debris in the pipes to be flushed to the end of the line and out of this flush valve 
instead of being trapped in the hose and forced out of emitters. 
 
To provide maintenance flushing of the drip hose, typically required only at very long intervals, 
a manual flush valve is also installed at the end of the hose array.  This is opened when the zone 
is pressurized so that a high volume flush of the entire array is provided.  This flush water is 
routed back to an appropriate tank in the pretreatment system so that any solids washed out of 
drip hose will be retained in the pretreatment system. 
 
The strainers or filters at the drip hose entries must be observed, and cleaned if required, at fairly 
frequent intervals—e.g., every 3 months, but this may vary depending on the dependability of the 

8 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



9 

 

treatment system and operating experience with that system.  The automatic flush valves, which 
have proven to be very reliable, should also be check during each maintenance interval.  
Experience has shown that the protection provided by the entry strainer and automatic flush 
valve is effective at preventing significant emitter clogging, even when the pretreatment system 
experienced problems resulting in poor quality effluent. 
 
To assure that any emitter clogging which does occur is addressed in a timely manner, 
arrangements must be made to monitor the degree of emitter clogging over time.  This would be 
done by either measuring the pump run time for a dose of a given volume or by measuring the 
instantaneous flow rate into a zone of the drip hose array.  A reading that indicates degradation in 
flow rate below that observed when the system was installed would signal the onset of 
significant emitter clogging.  This would trigger maintenance procedures. 
 
The flow rate out of an emitter may degrade due to biological clogging or due to chemical 
clogging.  The latter occurs when water remaining in the emitter labyrinth between doses 
evaporates and leaves behind the chemicals in it that are measured as total dissolved solids 
(TDS).  Chemical clogging may be a significant liability only for waters with “high” TDS—to 
which wastewater may contribute, but this is mainly determined by the quality of the source 
water—and when conditions are conducive to the water in the emitter evaporating between 
doses.  The latter is a problem in applications like vineyards, where the drip hose is exposed to 
full sun, but is rather unlikely in buried drip lines that are dosed very frequently.  In an SDI 
system designed and operated as detailed above, therefore, chemical clogging is not likely to 
occur, so maintenance activities would focus first upon biological clogging. 
 
This is addressed by dosing a strong chlorine solution into the drip hose array, assuring a 
sufficient volume of solution is injected to completely fill the volume of drip hose in the zone 
being serviced.  After allowing the emitters to “soak” in this solution, the drip hose is flushed, 
then the flow test is repeated.  If the flow test does not indicate that emitter clogging has been 
remediated, this procedure may be repeated using an acid solution to address chemical clogging. 
 
Regulatory Issues with SDI 
 
When dispersing high quality effluent in an SDI system, both the level of pretreatment provided 
and use of SDI as the dispersal process dictate that many restrictions created for septic tank 
effluent being dispersed in a drainfield become meaningless, or at least of far lesser concern.  
These include various setback and standoff requirements, and the very nature of “failure” and 
need for a redundant dispersal field area. 
 
As noted previously, only a small standoff from a limiting condition is required with SDI 
dispersal of high quality effluent.  However, many jurisdictions apply the standoff requirements 
for septic tank effluent drainfields to SDI.  The most “progressive” rules appear to be in Texas, 
where a 12-inch standoff to groundwater and a 6-inch standoff to other limiting conditions are 
required.  Based on the work of Standbridge, et al. (undated) and the factors reviewed by 
Venhuizen (1995), these are quite sufficient to protect public health and environmental values, 
subject of course to appropriate nitrogen control in watersheds where that is of concern. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



10 

 

However, these same rules also require that a drip emitter may be installed no closer than 10 feet 
from a slope break where a seep might occur.  Setback regulations like this are essentially 
irrelevant to SDI systems receiving high quality effluent.  Matric potential is the only force that 
can draw water laterally any distance from the emitter, but this would be highly unsaturated 
flow, and that would never produce a seep.  There is no force that would cause water coming out 
of a drip emitter to be driven even one foot sideways, as saturated flow that could produce a 
seep, before it could traverse at least a 12-inch vertical depth through the soil.  If the water is 
good to go into the groundwater after traversing the 12-inch vertical depth, what possible hazard 
could it pose even if it did surface in a seep at the edge of the field?  The ideology driving such a 
rule, however, is that the slightest possibility of any seep containing any effluent-derived water is 
a hazard.  This ideology is of course rooted in concerns about conventional dispersal fields 
receiving septic tank effluent.  Engineering analysis of the actual situation is simply not 
considered, resulting in the application of these essentially irrelevant rules to SDI systems. 
 
Another issue is the nature of how a drip irrigation field might “fail” and requirements for 
redundant field areas.  As reviewed previously, there is a very small potential for effluent to be 
forced to the surface because the field is hydraulically overloaded.  Therefore, concerns about 
“failure” focus upon the hydraulic function of the drip dispersal system, which essentially comes 
down to control and remediation of drip emitter clogging.  Routing poorly treated water to the 
field might eventually result in the soil around the emitters also becoming “clogged”, but that is 
highly unlikely to occur without emitter clogging having become problematic first.  This simply 
highlights that the very first line of defense against any sort of field “failure” is to assure that the 
pretreatment system consistently and reliably produces a highly clarified effluent.  Beyond that, 
controlling and remediating emitter clogging is a matter of ensuring a proper O&M protocol, and 
the regulatory system only needs to require the appropriate oversight to monitor, and respond if 
needed, to emitter clogging. 
 
While those procedures are expected to maintain the drip emitters in acceptable operating 
condition for the life of the system, the ultimate fallback in case clogging becomes so severe that 
it cannot be remediated (which is likely to happen only if O&M procedures are neglected) is to 
replace the drip hose.  This can be done by removing old hose and placing new hose on the same 
alignment, or by laying a new line of hose in the space between the original hoses.  Since the 
“failure” is in the drip emitters, which are replaced, rather than in the soil, there is no need to 
provide a replacement area in another location.  This is another regulatory issue, as some 
jurisdictions still require a complete redundant field area to be available.  Hose replacement can 
be executed a zone at a time—or even a line of hose at a time if new hose is laid between the old 
hose lines—so the overall system does not have to be taken out of service to effect such a repair. 
 
In some jurisdictions, rules for drip irrigation are written around a specific commercial 
“package” and the specification of equipment presupposes that the effluent routed to the drip 
irrigation field would be poorly treated, containing significant levels of solids.  So all systems 
using drip irrigation, regardless of the quality and reliability of the pretreatment system 
employed, have to use a system that may be needlessly costly, needlessly complex—and thus 
needlessly failure-prone—and needlessly expensive to operate and maintain.  The end result of 
these rules is that the use of SDI—the method that practically maximizes those three principles 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



of optimal soil treatment noted previously—is retarded, almost certainly to the overall detriment 
of public health and environmental values. 
 
Examples of Installed SDI Systems 
 
As drip hose is made of flexible polyethylene, drip lines can be laid out in any number of 
configurations.  This flexibility allows fields to fill any available landscaped area, to serve the 
irrigation needs of a variety of plant types.  A few examples of field plans and installed SDI 
systems are shown in Figures 4-10. 
 
Figure 4 shows the layout for a system serving a very large home and guest house, with a design 
flow rate of 2,500 L/day (660 gpd).  The drip field covers an area of approximately 615 sq. m. 
(6,620 sq. ft.), resulting in a loading rate of 0.41 cm/day.  The large area of drip field on the left 
side of the figure is a front yard covered with turf.  This area is shown in the photo in Figure 5.  
A hose spacing of 18 inches and an emitter interval of 12 inches along each hose are used in this 
area to provide very uniform irrigation of the turf to avoid a “striping” pattern in the grass.  The 
more irregular spaces wrapping around the back of the house are landscaped beds.  This area is 
shown in the photo in Figure 6.  This illustrates that the SDI system can be designed to 
accommodate a wide range of irrigation needs. 
 

 
Fig. 4.  Example SDI System Layout Plan 

 

11 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
Fig. 5.  Installed SDI System in Turf Area 

 

 
Fig. 6.  Installed SDI in Landscape Planter Beds 

 
Figure 7 shows pictures of a part of the SDI field for another project, located in the driveway 
island.  On the left is a picture taken during installation of the drip lines, showing the drip hose 
laid in trenches hoed out of fill material.  Native soils on this site are thin and rocky, so imported 
fill soil was needed to assure at least 12 inches of soil between the drip lines and bedrock.  On 
the right is a picture showing the same area after it had been restored with ground cover.  Note 

12 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



how the drip hose works around the trees and tree wells.  The field zone entry is contained in the 
valve box visible in the “after” picture. 
 

 
Fig. 7.  SDI Field During Installation and After Completion 

 
Shown below is the SDI field layout plan at another house, this one with a design flow rate of 
1,800 L/day (480 gpd) and a total field area in 5 zones—to serve a variety of landscaping—of 
457 sq. m. (4,900 sq. ft.), a design HAR of 0.40 cm/day.  Pictures of a portion of the field before 
and after installation and landscaping are shown in Figure 9, showing the severity of site 
conditions that are being routinely addressed with high quality pretreatment and SDI. 
 

 
Fig. 8.  Example SDI Field Plan 

13 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 
Fig. 9.  Field Area Before and After Installation and Landscaping 

 
Figure 10 shows the field area for a larger-scale system at an interstate highway rest stop.  The 
total field area of approximately 5,100 sq. m. (55,000 sq. ft.) covers all the landscaping, 
including the shrubs around the sign, up to the buildings in the background.  Wastewater 
generated in the restrooms is treated and dispersed in this field to defray irrigation demands.  
This illustrates that SDI can be applied in systems of any scale in any variety of circumstances. 
 

 
Fig. 10.  Large-Scale SDI Field at Highway Rest Stop 

 
REFERENCES 
 
Borrelli, John, C.B. Fedler, J.M. Gregory. 1998.  Mean crop consumptive use and free-water 
evaporation for Texas.  Dept. of Civil Engineering, Texas Tech University, Lubbock, Texas. 
 

14 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



15 

 

Standbridge, J., J. Olstadt, W. Sonzogni.  Undated manuscript.  Passage of Microorganisms In 
Septic System Effluents Through Mound Sand In a Controlled Laboratory Environment.  
Wisconsin State Laboratory of Hygiene, Madison, Wisconsin. 
 
USDA Soil Conservation Service. 1972.  Hydrology.  SCS National Engineering Handbook, 
U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 
 
Venhuizen, D. 1990.  Water Conservation Report.  Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer 
Conservation District.  Austin, Texas. 
 
Venhuizen, D.  1993.  Design Report – On-Site Wastewater Treatment and Reclamation System.  
Submitted to the Travis County Health Department, Austin, Texas. 
 
Venhuizen, D.  1995.  Soil treatment mechanisms. Wisconsin Dept. of Industry, Labor & Human 
Relations.  Madison, Wisconsin.  (On internet at www.venhuizen-ww.com) 

Venhuizen, D.  2002.  Analysis of Soil Renovation Issues Impacting on Environmental Quality, 
Technical Attachment No. 2 to Attachment C, Domestic Wastewater Permit Application for Oak 
Shores, submitted to Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Austin, Texas. 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



hats off to you.  but i think you are just "blowin in the wind" when speaking about the REGULATORS and their attempted justification for revision 

or acceptance of policy. 

you must understand, they do not care about whats in the regulation, just that they show their bosses that they are doing something.  that makes them 

1) feel better about their existence and 2) in line for a raise since they are "so concerned" ??. 

 

I have found, in the past 32 years of septic design, that things would run alot better if they would not think of a septic system as a nuclear 

reactor.  arguing with them whether a design rate is either 400gpd or 420gpd even when you have proof, but the book does not state it, only justifies 

the statement " FRANKLY MY DEAR, I DONT GIVE A DAMN" 

 

On Friday, October 31, 2014 8:56 AM, David Venhuizen <waterguy@ix.netcom.com> wrote: 
 

So I see that they did not "fix" the rule regarding separation of drip lines to rock, to bring it in line with the state 

rule and rationalize it relative to what is allowed for drip without secondary treatment. When they originally did 

this bit of irrationality, their explicitly stated justification was that they felt they needed greater separation to 

groundwater -- with no more actual justification than, it just seems better to us. And then they did not increase 

the standoff to groundwater, only the standoff to rock WITH secondary treatment. They STILL have not 

"rationalized" that difference -- the required standoff to both groundwater and rock is one foot with secondary 

treatment. And by its silence, the state reg of one foot to rock WITHOUT secondary treatment is the Travis 

County rule as well, so their rules stipulate one foot of standoff to rock with or without secondary treatment. 

This is highly irrational, and utterly unjustifiable. (Of course TCEQ will make no bones about this, because they 

basically don't care -- indeed there is so much that is irrational all over Chapter 285.) 

  

I can make available a pretty definitive study that will make it pretty clear that, after sand filter treatment at 

least, 6" of soil is a quite safe standoff to a limiting condition. Unfortunately, my pdf of it is over 20 meg, so I 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Me too. 

Joe spillman  

On Oct 31, 2014 11:47 AM, "David Smith" <dtsmith@msn.com> wrote: 

I would like to see all of the comments and compliments or critical discussion even if it is not the "proper 

forum" 

  

David T. Smith, P.E. 

  

From: Brandon.Couch@traviscountytx.gov 

To: highlandlakes.engineering@yahoo.com; waterguy@ix.netcom.com; Rodney.Sherrill@traviscountytx.gov; 

acesepticsolutions@gmail.com; aggienoble@cebridge.net; alcamservices@aol.com; 

amontes6755@sbcglobal.net; asepticservices@suddenlink.net; blpadden@cs.com; bwendland@msn.com; 

bwendland94@gmail.com; porterseptic@yahoo.com; cameron@smileysepticdesign.com; 

alohaseptic@yahoo.com; faedoodle@yahoo.com; clintvandervoort@att.net; balboaspetic@gmail.com; 

dbalboa@austin.rr.com; dwrsepticdesign@aol.com; premieronsite@embarqmail.com; 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



THE ONLY WAY WE CAN PROTECT WHAT IS RIGHTFULLY OURS IS OCCUPY OUR POSITION IN FORCE.     DAVY CROCKETT 

 

long live the rights and attitudes of the people of Texas 

 

On Friday, October 31, 2014 11:51 AM, Joe Spillman <backhoejoe@gmail.com> wrote: 
 

Me too. 

Joe spillman  

On Oct 31, 2014 11:47 AM, "David Smith" <dtsmith@msn.com> wrote: 

I would like to see all of the comments and compliments or critical discussion even if it is not the "proper 

forum" 

  

David T. Smith, P.E. 

  

From: Brandon.Couch@traviscountytx.gov 

To: highlandlakes.engineering@yahoo.com; waterguy@ix.netcom.com; Rodney.Sherrill@traviscountytx.gov; 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



OK, so next time hide the list. 

 

On Tue, Oct 28, 2014 at 2:24 PM, Rodney Sherrill <Rodney.Sherrill@traviscountytx.gov> wrote: 

Earlier today, Travis County Commissioners Court approved a public hearing to be held on held on Tuesday, 

December 2, 2014 for the proposed Chapter 48, Rules of Travis County, Texas for On-Site Sewage 

Facilities.  Please review the attached proposed rules which will also be posted on the Travis County 

website.  Public comments regarding these proposed rules can be emailed to OSSF@traviscountytx.gov or 

mailed to Travis County TNR, Attention OSSF Program, P.O. Box 1748, Austin TX 78767 until November 30, 

2014.  Otherwise you will need to attend the public hearing for your concerns to be considered. 

  

Free language assistance can be provided upon request.  

Ayuda gratuita en su idioma se puede proporcionar por petición. 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



This is not FaceBook. It is a standard rules process. Get a grip. 

 

On Fri, Oct 31, 2014 at 12:47 PM, Joe Wells <joe.wells@wwdengineering.net> wrote: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Sarah Calvert
Sarah Calvert Septic
8702 El Rey Blvd.
Austin, TX 78737
(o) 512 288-6738
info@sarahcalvertseptic.com
www.sarahcalvertseptic.com

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Sarah Calvert
Sarah Calvert Septic
8702 El Rey Blvd.
Austin, TX 78737
(o) 512 288-6738
(f) 512 301-6958
info@sarahcalvertseptic.com
www.sarahcalvertseptic.com

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



what we have here is a FAILURE TO COMMUNICATE.  i am not talking about TNR, i am talking about TCEQ.  They are the ones that started 

Chapter 285.  I was there at their initiation of the rules.  their point was " this is necessary since there are many different opinions that regulators all 

over the state are requiring in installations, and this rule will make a LEVEL PLAYING FIELD AND CONSISTANCY" for the entire state.  Boy, 

were they wrong,  now it is even more confusing than ever.  The answer is very basic,  you have designers, you have installers, both are 

regulated   they know the rules.  it is the little differences that really do not make a difference, that we are talking about.  Let the professionals do 

what they are paid and licensed to do.  we have toooo much regulation that only boggs down our output.  I have spent 30 years designing this stuff, 

and most of the time i  find myself involved in knit picking reviews.  In general,  most systems work just fine when using state rules.  leave it at that, 

or have the state change the rule.  dont add to it as an individual regulator, cause that means that, just as it is now, everyone is different. 

 

On Saturday, November 1, 2014 2:03 PM, Joe Wells <joe.wells@wwdengineering.net> wrote: 
 

Sarah 

  

The someone that should have put together the group to discuss these issues should have been TNR.  

  

As of now, the TNR developed the rules, TCEQ blessed it, and the court will allow time to comment on draft 

regulations prior to a public hearing and eventual adoption. 

  

As one who is not available the week of December 2, 2014, I request for myself, and any others not available, a 

second public be scheduled.  

  

I would also hope TNR would publish the requests from customers on what they would like to see in the rules. 

The TNR definition of customers would be helpful in understanding how TNR developed the new rules. 

  

Joe K. Wells, Jr., P. E. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Brad Shaw hit the nail on the head.  I have worked on both sides of the fence.  I retired from TCEQ in the 

Drinking Water Program and later worked for SW Engineers for eight years and transitioned into doing 

consulting and septic design.   

 

Regulators do just that but when all is said and done they must have confidence that projects are completed as 

designed and within the guidelines of the  rules (30 TAC 285) and quit knit picking  what regulator or what 

index valve is used.  The installer stands behind their work and if there are problems the designer gets involved 

again along with the DR to get a fix. 

 

More rules mean more expense for the home owner that feels slammed anyway.  More rules do not equate to a 

better product or to a more efficient septic system.  

 

 Failed systems are going to occur.  When they do fail a fix need to be a top priority but perspective seems to 

fall short. 

 

 

On Mon, Nov 3, 2014 at 9:32 AM, BRAD SHAW <highlandlakes.engineering@yahoo.com> wrote: 
what we have here is a FAILURE TO COMMUNICATE.  i am not talking about TNR, i am talking about TCEQ.  They are the ones that started 

Chapter 285.  I was there at their initiation of the rules.  their point was " this is necessary since there are many different opinions that regulators all 

over the state are requiring in installations, and this rule will make a LEVEL PLAYING FIELD AND CONSISTANCY" for the entire state.  Boy, 

were they wrong,  now it is even more confusing than ever.  The answer is very basic,  you have designers, you have installers, both are 

regulated   they know the rules.  it is the little differences that really do not make a difference, that we are talking about.  Let the professionals do 

what they are paid and licensed to do.  we have toooo much regulation that only boggs down our output.  I have spent 30 years designing this stuff, 

and most of the time i  find myself involved in knit picking reviews.  In general,  most systems work just fine when using state rules.  leave it at that, 

or have the state change the rule.  dont add to it as an individual regulator, cause that means that, just as it is now, everyone is different. 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Brandon 

Attached is my two cents worth. I wish for u to use for tnr consideration only. I have not checked all the 

calculations and choose not to send it to all 73 people if u know what I mean. If this is a problem let me know 

and maybe I will type it up and proof the thing. 

Please share with Rodney if u don't mind. 

Thanks 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 19Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 20Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett, MSSW  854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action regarding approval of the Program 
Year 2014 Community Development Block Grant Agreement provided by 
HUD. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), the Federal government 
sponsors a program that provides annual grants to cities and counties to 
develop viable urban communities by providing decent housing and a 
suitable living environment, by expanding economic opportunities for low 
and moderate income persons.  This grant agreement approves Travis 
County’s PY 2014 Action Plan.  Beginning in 2006, the program is 
operating under its third Consolidated Plan and starting its nineth year. 
 
The grant agreement is the same document executed annually for the last 
seven years.  The County Attorney’s has reviewed and approved the 
agreement and the County Auditor’s Office is currently reviewing. 
 
The HUD letter and grant agreement are attached with one addition to the 
grant agreement: Per the County Attorney’s office request, “by” was added 
to the signature line.  HUD recognizes the County Judge as the certifying 
official for all transactions unless the Commissioners Court delegates the 
responsibility to someone else. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends approval.   
  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 21Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
With the execution of this agreement, the County assumes HUD’s 
responsibility for all environmental reviews with any HUD funding source 
within the County, but outside the City of Austin. 
 
The County has 60 days to execute the agreement from the date of the 
letter or forfeit funds.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Executing the agreement allows the County to have access to $997,649 in 
federal funding and to implement the projects approved for PY 2014.    
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
County Attorney’s Office 
Auditor’s Office 
 
cc: 
Leroy Nellis, PBO    Jessica Rio, PBO 
Aerin Pfaffenberger, PBO   Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Office 
Jason Walker, Purchasing Office  Kathleen Haas, TCHHS&VS 
Kendra Tolliver, TCHHS&VS   Nicki Riley, Auditor’s Office 
DeDe Bell, Auditor’s Office   Janice Cohoon, Auditor’s Office 
Steven Manilla, TNR    Lee Turner, TNR 
Cynthia McDonald, TNR    
Mary Etta Gerhardt, County Attorney’s Office  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



From: Mary Etta Gerhardt
To: Christy D. Moffett; Michelle Gable
Cc: Janice Cohoon; Dede Bell; Elena Rivera; Martha Brown
Subject: RE: CDBG PY14 Grant Agreement
Date: Thursday, November 20, 2014 3:43:48 PM

It looks like you have covered everything, as usual.
Please consider approved as to legal form.
 

From: Christy D. Moffett 
Sent: Wednesday, November 19, 2014 8:44 AM
To: Mary Etta Gerhardt; Michelle Gable
Cc: Janice Cohoon; Dede Bell; Elena Rivera; Martha Brown
Subject: CDBG PY14 Grant Agreement
Importance: High
 
Good morning,
 
Attached is the response letter and grant agreement for Program Year 2014.  The grant agreement
is substantially the same as in previous years.  A couple of notes:
 

1)       As we do every year, I added the work BY: to the signature box as the County Attorney’s
Office has requested annually.

2)       Boxes 12 a – c are not applicable to the County as we do not have a Section 108 loan.
3)       No action items or questions related to the submitted plan are requested in the letter.
4)       The addendum has changed this year to include items typically placed in the letter.  We

comply with all of the addendums as the referenced rules have been in existence for two or
more years.

 
Please review the attached agreement and provide your approval/feedback via email no later than

Monday, November 24th so we can put it on the agenda for December 2nd agenda.
 
Thanks!
 
Christy Copeland Moffett, MSSW
CDBG Planning Manager
Office of the County Executive for
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service
Please take note.  My email address has changed:  Christy.moffett@traviscountytx.gov
 
P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767
P: 512.854.3460 F: 512.854-7140
www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

mailto:/O=TRAVISEXCHANGE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=GERHARM
mailto:Christy.Moffett@traviscountytx.gov
mailto:Michelle.Gable@traviscountytx.gov
mailto:Janice.Cohoon@traviscountytx.gov
mailto:DeDe.Bell@traviscountytx.gov
mailto:Elena.Rivera@traviscountytx.gov
mailto:Martha.Brown@traviscountytx.gov
mailto:Christy.moffett@traviscountytx.gov
http://www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg


Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett, MSSW 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the final draft of the Analysis of Impediments to 
Fair Housing Choice and Fair Housing Action Plan.  
  
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has a commitment to 
eliminate racial and ethnic segregation, physical and other barriers to persons with 
disabilities, and other discriminatory practices in the provision of housing. HUD extends 
the responsibility of affirmatively furthering fair housing to local jurisdictions through a 
variety of regulations and program requirements.  
 
As an entitlement county receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds 
from HUD, Travis County must fulfill its fair housing responsibilities by developing an 
Analysis of Impediments (AI) to Fair Housing Choice and by taking actions to overcome 
the effects identified in the AI through implementation of a Fair Housing Plan ("FHP") 
and maintain records reflecting the analysis and actions taken.   

 
An AI is a review of impediments or barriers that affect the rights of fair housing choice 
and will serve as the basis for fair housing planning, provide essential information to 
housing stakeholders and assists in building public support for fair housing efforts.  A 
FHP identifies the actions needed to eliminate fair housing barriers which have been 
identified.  HUD defines impediments to fair housing choice as: 
 

-  any actions, omissions or decisions taken because of race, color, religion, sex, 
disability, familial status or national origin which restrict housing choices or the 
availability for housing choices; and 

 
-  any actions, omissions or decisions which have the effect of restricting housing 
choices or the availability of housing choices on the basis of race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national origin.  
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 22Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Since the inception of the County’s CDBG Program, the County has been operating 
under the City of Austin’s AI published in 2005.  In 2012, the County contracted with the 
consulting firm Mullins & Lonergan to conduct an AI.  The draft report was presented in 
November of 2013 and a 30 day public comment period followed in December 2013. No 
significant comments were received, as identified in Appendix C.   The final report was 
drafted in April 2014 which updated the status of the fair housing complaint filed by the 
Del Valle Community Coalition, the dollar amount received for Supplemental Security 
Income and provided the draft Fair Housing Plan.  CDBG staff updated the fair housing 
plan to its final version in October.  It is attached as Appendix B.   
 
While staff has been implementing the final plan and included the results in the PY14-18 
Consolidated Plan, staff has been asked to have the Commissioners Court officially 
approve the final draft.      
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends approval of the report and action plan.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

A. The fair housing plan is an operationalized version of the Action Steps included 
on pages 108-112.     

B. The AI looks at processes, policies and procedures of the County as a whole, 
which impact fair housing choice.  This means that multiple Departments and 
entities such as the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation and the Housing 
Authority of Travis County are included in this broad level assessment.  The 
results identify areas of potential collaboration and/or recommendations for 
improvement; 

C. The report will be used to assist the County in developing an affordable housing 
policy or other types of policy which can affect change to opportunity and/or 
discrimination patterns; 

D. The report will be used to assist with program design for CDBG and  
General Fund projects to target investments strategically to improve the quality of 
life for constituents; 

E. The completion of the AI is required as part of the CDBG program’s fair housing 
obligation;   

F. Pages 106-107 of the AI maintain summary level fair housing observations; 
G. Pages 108-112 contains public and private sector impediments to fair housing 

choice along with Action Steps to address each identified impediment.   
H. The fair housing plan is an operationalized version of the Action Steps included 

on pages 108-112 will be implemented simultaneously with the PY14-18 
Consolidated Plan.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
None. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


april 2014

Analysis of impediments
to fair housing choice

Travis County, Texas

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

introduction

Demographic and 
housing market conditions

purpose of the ai
fair housing responsibilities of urban counties

fair housing choice

the federal fair housing act

the texas fair housing act

comparison of accessibility standards

methodology

analytical approach

development of the ai

overview of settlement patterns

population trends

racial and/or ethnic concentrations

quantifying integration

race/ethnicity and income

residential segregation by income

disability and income

familial status and income
ancestry and income

employment and protected class status

distribution of neighborhood opportunity

housing inventory

home ownership and protected class status

household size and protected class status

housing costs

foreclosure

3

4

8

10

11

6

12

13

13

14

15

30

32

34

24

36

37

39

40

41

44

49

51

55

50

1
3

14

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

existence of fair housing complaints
discrimination testing

county involvement in fair housing cases

58

62

62

records of housing
discrimination

Review of public 
sector policies

policies governing investment of funds 
in housing and community development

appointed boards and commissions

accessibility of residential units

63

70

71

language accommodations
zoning, land use and 
comprehensive planning

72

73

housing authority of travis county75

property taxes

public transit
83

85

general fair housing 
observations

impediments to fair 
housing choice

fair housing action plan

evaluation of current 
fair housing profile

PROGRESS SINCE PREVIOUS AI
FAIR HOUSING ACTIVITIES

FAIR HOUSING ADVOCATES

102

102

103

58

63

private sector
policies and practices

mortgage lending
AUSTIN BOARD OF REALTORS

NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING

89

101

101

91

104

appendix a:
stakeholder chart

106

108

113
signature page118

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1

1EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

The preparation of this Analysis of Impediments 
to Fair Housing Choice (AI) serves as a 
component of Travis County’s efforts to 
satisfy the requirements of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended, which requires that any community 
receiving Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds affirmatively further fair 
housing.  The AI is a review of local regulations 
and administrative policies, procedures and 
practices affecting the location, availability 
and accessibility of housing, as well as an 
assessment of conditions, both public and 
private, that affect fair housing choice. 
 
Following an extensive stakeholder consultation 
process, the County built the context for analysis 
by examining demographic, economic and 
housing market trends within the framework of 
access to housing opportunities.  Population 
explosion across the unincorporated areas of 
Travis County, which comprise nearly all of 
the Urban County’s CDBG jurisdiction, has 
resulted in an increase in ethnic diversity and 
residential income segregation, with some 
lower-income neighborhoods at the fringe of 
urban development isolated from interaction 
with the local economy.  Census data indicate 
that racial and ethnic minorities, persons with 
disabilities and female-headed households 
with children are more likely to experience 
poverty and unemployment.  Concentrations of 
lower-income minorities are most prevalent in 
the eastern crescent outside of Austin.  Larger-
lot enclaves farther west are generally more 
expensive, a fact that has strongly limited the 
location of Housing Choice Voucher Holders 
in that area.  Across the County as a whole, 
rent rates and housing values have risen 
substantially during the last 10 years while 
household incomes have not kept pace.  

An analysis of housing discrimination 
complaints revealed the persistence of 
unequal treatment in the local sales and rental 
markets, particularly on the basis of disability.  
Additionally, housing advocates reported that 
the lack of minimum construction standards 
in unincorporated areas has resulted in the 
construction of new multi-family developments 
that are non-compliant with accessibility 
standards.  Older housing stock is often not 
required to be accessible, and the majority of 
aging homes in unincorporated areas are not.  
Housing choice for those with disabilities is 
further limited by the absence of regular public 
transit service outside of Austin.

The AI’s review of public policies covered the 
aspects of local government most closely tied 
to housing, including the County’s entitlement 
grants programs, appointed boards and 
commissions, building codes enforcement, 
language accommodations, land use 
regulations, public housing, taxes and transit.  
CDBG program administration was found to 
affirmatively further fair housing, though the 
County’s lack of authority to adopt land use 
restrictions and enforce building standards 
limits the extent to which it can compel other 
entities to meet fair housing standards.  

Private-sector policies were additionally 
evaluated from a fair housing perspective.  
A thorough review of mortgage application 
data suggested that upper-income minorities 
are more likely to experience loan denials or 
high-cost lending than lower-income White 
applicants.

Many of the impediments identified in this report 
can be found in communities throughout the 
country and are not unique to Travis County.  
Economic and racial/ethnic segregation, among 
many other challenges identified in this report, 
are national problems, but the responsibility 
for addressing these issues falls primarily to 
each local jurisdiction where they are present.  
Affirmatively furthering fair housing is an 
ongoing process that requires the leadership 
of elected officials, and the development of 
this plan is the first step toward increasing fair 
housing choice in Travis County.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



2 INTRODUCTION

The Urban County of Travis County has 
prepared an Analysis of Impediments 
to Fair Housing Choice to satisfy the 
requirements of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, 
as amended.  This act requires that 
any community receiving Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds 
affirmatively further fair housing.  As a 
result, the Urban County is charged with 
the responsibility of conducting its CDBG 
programs in compliance with the federal 
Fair Housing Act.  The responsibility of 
compliance with the federal Fair Housing 
Act extends to nonprofit organizations 
and other entities, including local units of 
government which receive federal funds 
through Travis County. 

These requirements can be achieved 
through the preparation of an Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice and 
implementation of recommended action 
items. The Analysis of Impediments to 
Fair Housing Choice (AI) is a review of 
a jurisdiction’s laws, regulations and 
administrative policies, procedures and 
practices affecting the location, availability 
and accessibility of housing, as well as an 
assessment of conditions, both public and 

a.  purpose of the ai

3

private, affecting fair housing choice.
Entitlement communities receiving CDBG 
entitlement funds are required to: 

• Examine and attempt to alleviate  
 housing discrimination within their  
 jurisdiction

• Promote fair housing choice for all  
 persons

• Provide opportunities for all persons  
 to reside in any given housing   
 development, regardless of race,  
 color, religion, sex, disability, familial  
 status or national origin

• Promote housing that is accessible to  
 and usable by persons with   
 disabilities, and

• Comply with the non-discrimination  
 requirements of the Fair Housing Act.   

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



b.  fair housing     
      responsibilities of   
      urban counties

In recent years, the federal government 
has increasingly emphasized the obligation 
of grantees to affirmatively further fair 
housing and, specifically, the way in which 
entitlement communities comply with their 
required fair housing certifications.  Each 
year when an entitlement community 
submits its Annual Plan to HUD, the chief 
elected official is required to certify that 
the jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair 
housing.  However, the Fair Housing Act 
of 1968, which created that mandate, did 
not specify what precisely it meant, leaving 
open a wide range of interpretations 
reflected in the varying policies and 
practices of grantee communities.  Legal 
proceedings between grantees, HUD and 
the U.S. Department of Justice within 
the last 10 years have provided some 
clarification.

In August 2009, Westchester County, 
NY settled a fair housing lawsuit 
brought against the county by the Anti-
Discrimination Center of Metro New York, 
Inc.  This $180 million lawsuit charged 
that Westchester County, an urban 
county entitlement under HUD’s CDBG 
program, failed to fulfill its obligation 
to affirmatively further fair housing and 
ensure non-discrimination in its programs.  
At issue in the case was not whether 
Westchester County created affordable 
housing.  In fact, since 1998, the County 
spent more than $50 million in federal and 
state funds to aid in the construction of 
1,370 affordable rental units and another 
334 affordable owner units.  It was the 

4

geographic location of affordable housing 
units that were created within the county that 
was the critical factor in the lawsuit, as the 
Center alleged that the county increased the 
pattern of racial segregation in Westchester 
County.  Furthermore, the suit charged that 
the county violated its cooperation agreements 
with local units of government which prohibits 
expenditures of CDBG funds for activities in 
communities that do not affirmatively further 
fair housing within their jurisdiction or otherwise 
impede the county’s action to comply with its 
fair housing certifications.

Under the terms of the settlement, the County 
will pay $21.6 million to HUD in non-federal 
funds to be deposited in the county’s HUD 
account and used to build new affordable 
housing units in specified census tracts with 
populations of less than 3% Black and 7% 
Hispanic residents.  An additional $11 million 
will be paid to HUD, the Center and its counsel.  
The county will add $30 million to its capital 
budget to build affordable housing in non-
impacted (i.e., predominantly White) areas. 

In another example, HUD threatened in July 
2012 to withhold more than a half billion dollars 
in disaster recovery funds from the City of 
Galveston in response to the City’s refusal to 
rebuild 569 low-income housing units lost as 
a result of Hurricane Ike.  The City’s mayor, 
who had promised during his campaign not 
to rebuild the units, favored allocating rental 
vouchers to those displaced by the storm, which 
he said would allow residents to live “where 
they have job opportunities, which do not 
exist in Galveston.”  HUD argued that this was 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



effectively a means of limiting the affordable 
housing opportunities available in Galveston, 
a problem that would disproportionately affect 
members of the protected classes. The agency 
authorized $109 million in federal funds to 
replace the lost housing within the City in 
mixed-income developments, mandating that 
Galveston rebuild.

In August 2011, the U.S. Department of 
Justice filed a lawsuit against the City of Joliet, 
IL, alleging that the City violated the Fair 
Housing Act and Community Development Act 
by seizing via eminent domain an affordable 
housing development of 356 units, displacing 
750 residents, almost all of whom were Black.  
The Department argued that the displaced 
residents would have nowhere within the City fo 
live if the units were destroyed, due to the lack 
of affordable housing available locally and the 
absence of a “meaningful plan” to counteract 
the effects of the loss of units.  Therefore, 
according to the argument, the City’s actions 
would have the effect of limiting the number 
of Black residents within Joliet, perpetuating 
segregation.  The City’s Department of 
Economic and Community Development, 
which had administered more than $1 million 
in federal funds, was accused of violating 
Section 109 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act by its involvement in City 
actions to condemn the affordable housing 
development.

The significance of these proceedings for HUD 
grantee communities throughout the U.S., 
particularly urban county entitlements, is clear.  
First, the requirement to affirmatively further 

fair housing applies to all aspects of county 
government, not just HUD programs.  Second, 
an urban county has an obligation to ensure 
that each local unit of government within 
its boundary that participates in its federal 
programs affirmatively furthers fair housing.  
When an urban county makes this pledge to 
HUD, it is making the promise not just in its 
own right but also on behalf of each local unit 
of government in the county.  

This does not necessarily mean that each 
municipality must finance and develop 
affordable housing, but it does mean that 
no municipality may impede or obstruct the 
creation of such housing by other entities.  An 
urban county should provide CDBG and HOME 
funds to municipalities that affirmatively further 
fair housing.  Furthermore, an urban county 
should not provide CDBG or HOME funds to 
municipalities that impede fair housing as such 
actions undermine the urban county’s own 
obligation to affirmatively further fair housing.  

Finally, within the scope of its authority, an 
urban county must take action to eliminate 
barriers to fair housing wherever they may 
exist in the county.

5

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



c.  fair housing
      choice

6

Equal and free access to residential housing 
(housing choice) is a fundamental right that 
enables members of the protected classes to 
pursue personal, educational, employment or 
other goals.  Because housing choice is so 
critical to personal development, fair housing 
is a goal that government, public officials and 
private citizens must embrace if equality of 
opportunity is to become a reality.

The federal Fair Housing Act prohibits 
discrimination in housing based on a person’s 
race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial 
status or national origin.  Persons who are 
protected from discrimination by fair housing 
laws are referred to as members of the 
protected classes.

This Analysis encompasses the following five 
areas related to fair housing choice:

• The sale or rental of dwellings (public 
 and private)

• The provision of financing assistance  
 for dwellings

• Public policies and actions affecting  
 the approval of sites and other building 
 requirements used in the approval 
 process for the construction of publicly 
 assisted housing

• The administrative policies concerning 
 community development and housing  
 activities, which affect opportunities of 
 minority households to select   
 housing inside or outside areas of  
 minority concentration, and

• Where there is a determination   
 of unlawful segregation or other  
 housing discrimination by a court 
 or a finding of noncompliance by  
 the U.S. Department of Housing and  
 Urban Development (HUD) regarding  
 assisted housing in a recipient’s  
 jurisdiction, an analysis of the actions  
 which could be taken by the recipient  
 to remedy the discriminatory condition, 
 including actions involving the   
 expenditure of funds made available 
 under 24 CFR Part 570 (i.e., the CDBG 
 program regulations).

As a federal entitlement community, the 
Urban County of Travis County has specific 
fair housing planning responsibilities.  These 
include:

• Conducting an Analysis of Impediments 
 to Fair Housing Choice

• Developing actions to overcome  
 the effects of identified impediments to 
 fair housing, and

• Maintaining records to support the  
 jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively  
 further fair housing.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



7

HUD interprets these three certifying elements 
to include:

• Analyzing housing discrimination in a  
 jurisdiction and working toward its  
 elimination

• Promoting fair housing choice for all  
 people

• Providing racially and ethnically   
 inclusive patterns of housing
 occupancy

• Promoting housing that is physically  
 accessible to, and usable by, all  
 people, particularly individuals with  
 disabilities, and

• Fostering compliance with the   
 nondiscrimination provisions of the 
 Fair Housing Act.

This Analysis will:  

• Evaluate population, household,  
 income and housing characteristics by 
 protected classes in each of the   
 jurisdictions

• Evaluate public and private sector  
 policies that impact fair housing choice

• Identify blatant or de facto impediments 
 to fair housing choice where any may  
 exist, and

• Recommend specific strategies  
 to overcome the effects of any   
 identified impediments.

HUD defines an impediment to fair housing 
choice as any actions, omissions or decisions 
that restrict or have the effect of restricting the 
availability of housing choices, based on race, 
color, religion, sex, disability, familial status or 
national origin.

This Analysis serves as the basis for 
fair housing planning, provides essential 
information to policy makers, administrative 
staff, housing providers, lenders, and fair 
housing advocates, and assists in building 
public support for fair housing efforts.  The 
elected governmental bodies are expected to 
review and approve the Analysis and use it for 
direction, leadership and resources for future 
fair housing planning.

The Analysis will also serve as a point-in-
time baseline against which future progress in 
terms of implementing fair housing initiatives 
will be evaluated and recorded.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



8

c.  the federal 
      fair housing act

i. 
The federal Fair Housing Act covers most 
housing. In some circumstances, the Act 
exempts owner-occupied buildings with no 
more than four units, single family housing 
sold or rented without the use of a broker, 
and housing operated by organizations 
and private clubs that limit occupancy to 
members.

What does the Fair Housing Act 
prohibit?

a.  In the sale and rental of housing

What housing is covered?

ii. 

No one may take any of the following 
actions based on race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national 
origin:

• Refuse to rent or sell housing

• Refuse to negotiate for housing

• Make housing unavailable

• Deny a dwelling 

• Set different terms, conditions  
 or privileges for the sale or  
 rental of a dwelling 

• Provide different housing  
 services or facilities 

• Falsely deny that housing is  
 available for inspection, sale,         
 or rental 

• For profit, persuade owners to  
 sell or rent (blockbusting), or 

• Deny anyone access to or  
 membership in a facility or  
 service (such as a multiple  
 listing service) related to the  
 sale or rental of housing. 

b.  In mortgage lending

No one may take any of the following 
actions based on race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national 
origin:

• Refuse to make a mortgage loan

• Refuse to provide information   
 regarding loans

• Impose different terms or  
 conditions on a loan, such as  
 different interest rates, points  
 or fees

• Discriminate in appraising   
 property

• Refuse to purchase a loan, or

• Set different terms or   
 conditions for purchasing a  
 loan.

c.  Other prohibitions

It is illegal for anyone to:

• Threaten, coerce, intimidate or  
 interfere with anyone exercising  
 a fair housing right or assisting  
 others who exercise that right 

• Advertise or make any   
statement that indicates a 
limitation or preference based 
on race, color, religion, sex, 
disability, familial status, or 
national origin. This prohibition 
against discriminatory advertising 
applies to single family and 
owner-occupied housing that is 
otherwise exempt from the Fair 
Housing Act. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



9

Additional protections for 
people with disabilities

iii. 

If someone has a physical or mental 
disability (including hearing, mobility and 
visual impairments, chronic alcoholism, 
chronic mental illness, AIDS, AIDS 
Related Complex and mental retardation) 
that substantially limits one or more major 
life activities, or has a record of such a 
disability, or is regarded as having such a 
disability, a landlord may not:

• 

• 

Refuse to let the disabled person  
make reasonable modifications to 
a dwelling or common use areas, 
at the disabled person’s expense, 
if necessary for the disabled 
person to use the housing.  Where 
reasonable, the landlord may 
permit changes only if the disabled 
person agrees to restore the 
property to its original condition 
when he or she moves. 

Refuse to make reasonable 
accommodations in rules, policies, 
practices or services if necessary 
for the disabled person to use the 
housing.  For example, a building 
with a “no pets” policy must make 
a reasonable accommodation and 
allow a visually impaired tenant to 
keep a guide dog.

Housing opportunities for 
families with children

iv. 

Unless a building or community qualifies 
as housing for older persons, it may not 
discriminate based on familial status. That 
is, it may not discriminate against families 
in which one or more children under the 
age 18 live with:

• A parent or

• A person who has legal custody  
 of  the child or children or 

• The designee of the parent or   
 legal custodian, with the parent or  
 custodian’s written permission. 

Familial status protection also applies to 
pregnant women and anyone securing 
legal custody of a child under age 18.

Housing for older persons is exempt from 
the prohibition against familial status 
discrimination if:

• 

• It is occupied solely by persons   
 who are 62 or older, or 

• 

A transition period permits residents on or 
before September 13, 1988 to continue 
living in the housing, regardless of their 
age, without interfering with the exemption.

The HUD Secretary has 
determined that it is specifically   
designed for and occupied by  
elderly persons under a federal, 
state or local government   
program, or 

It houses at least one person who 
is 55 or older in at least 80% of the 
occupied units, and adheres to a 
policy that demonstrates the intent 
to house persons who are 55 or 
older, as previously described. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



10

d.  the texas 
      fair housing act

The Texas Fair Housing Act (TFHA), 
codified in Chapter 301 of the Texas 
Property Code, prohibits housing 
discrimination based on the same seven 
protected classes as the federal Fair 
Housing Act.  The TFHA covers most 
housing but in some circumstances, 
exempts owner-occupied buildings with 
no more than four units, single-family 
housing sold or rented without the use 
of a broker and housing operated by 
organizations and private clubs that limit 
occupancy to members.  

One distinction between the TFHA and 
national standards is the interpretation 
of disability.  Section 301.003(6) of the 
Property Code follows its definition of 
disability with specific exceptions that 
do not appear in the Fair Housing Act, 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or 
Rehabilitation Act:  “The term [disability] 
does not include current illegal use 
or addiction to any drug or illegal or 
federally controlled substance and does 
not apply to an individual because of an 
individual’s sexual orientation or because 
that individual is a transvestite.”  While 
persons currently with or recovering 
from substance abuse problems are 
considered to have a disability under 
both the ADA and the Fair Housing Act, 
Texas law is generally interpreted as 
not prohibiting discrimination against 
alcoholics or drug users in treatment or 
recovery.  National laws do not prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of sexual 
orientation or gender identity, but they 
also do not specifically exclude these 
categories.

The TFHA includes the same prohibitions 
involving the sale or rental of housing and 
mortgage lending as the federal Fair Housing 
Act.

The Texas Workforce Commission 
Civil Rights Division (TWCCRD) is the 
administrative agency tasked with overseeing 
the processing and investigation of fair 
housing complaints filed with the State of 
Texas.  TWCCRD was created by the Texas 
Commission on Human Rights Act, which 
charged the agency with enforcing the state’s 
anti-discrimination laws. 
 
State or local laws may be certified as 
substantially equivalent to the federal Fair 
Housing Act when the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
determines that the law provides rights, 
procedures, remedies and judicial review 
provisions that are substantially equivalent to 
the Act.  Currently, the TWCCRD participates 
in HUD’s Fair Housing Assistance Program 
(FHAP) by virtue of the Texas Fair Housing 
Act having been deemed substantially 
equivalent to the federal Fair Housing Act.  
TWCCRD’s participation allows the agency 
the opportunity to receive funding to support 
a variety of fair housing administrative and 
enforcement activities, including complaint 
processing, training, implementation of data 
and information systems and other special 
projects.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



e.  comparison of             
     accessibility  
     standards

11

There are several standards of accessibility 
referenced throughout the AI.  These 
standards are listed below along with 
a summary of the features within each 
category or a reference to the full set of 
detailed standards.

Fair Housing Acti. 

In buildings that are ready for first 
occupancy after March 13, 1991 and 
include four or more units:

• There must be an accessible   
 entrance on an accessible route.

• Public and common areas   
 must be accessible to persons   
 with disabilities 

• Doors and hallways must be wide  
 enough for wheelchairs 

• All ground floor units and all units  
 in elevator buildings must have: 

 aAn accessible route into and   
     through the unit 

 aAccessible light switches,   
     electrical outlets, thermostats   
     and other environmental    
     controls 

 aReinforced bathroom walls to   
     allow later installation of grab   
     bars, and 

 aKitchens and bathrooms that   
         can be used by people in   
     wheelchairs. 

If a building with four or more units has 
no elevator and will be ready for first 
occupancy after March 13, 1991, these 
standards apply to ground floor units.  
These requirements for new buildings do 
not replace any more stringent standards 
in state or local law.

Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA)

ii. 

Title II of the ADA applies to state and local 
services, including state and local housing 
programs.  Government entities are obliged 
to assure that housing financed through 
state and local programs complies with 
ADA accessibility guidelines.  A complete 
description of the guidelines can be found 
at www.ada.gov/stdspdf.htm.

Uniform Federal Accessibility 
Standards (UFAS)

iii. 

UFAS accessibility standards are required 
for facility accessibility by people with motor 
and sensory disabilities for Federal and 
federally-funded facilities. These standards 
are to be applied during the design, 
construction, and alteration of buildings 
and facilities to the extent required by 
the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as 
amended.  A complete description of the 
guidelines can be found at www.access-
board.gov/ufas/ufas-html/ufas.htm.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



12

Visitability Standardsiv. 

The term “visitability” refers to single-
family housing designed in such a way 
that it can be lived in or visited by people 
with disabilities. A house is visitable when 
it meets three basic requirements: 

• At least one no-step entrance 

• Doors and hallways wide   
 enough to navigate a wheelchair  
 through, and 

• A bathroom on the first floor   
 large enough to allow a person   
 in a wheelchair to enter and close     
 the door. 

Universal Designv. 

Universal design is the design of products 
and environments to be usable by all 
people, to the greatest extent possible, 
without adaptation or specialized design.  
Seven principles guide Universal Design.  
These include:

• Equitable use (e.g., make the   
 design appealing to all users)

• Flexibility in use (e.g.,   
 accommodate right- or left- 
 handed use)

• Simple and intuitive use  
 (e.g.,  eliminate unnecessary  
 complexity)

• Perceptible information (e.g.,   
 provide compatibility with   
 a variety of techniques or   
 devices used by people with   
 sensory limitations)

• Tolerance for error (e.g., provide  
 fail-safe features)

• Low physical effort (e.g.,   
 minimize repetitive actions)

• Size and space for approach   
 and use (e.g., accommodate   
 variations in hand and grip size).

f.  methodology
The firm of Mullin & Lonergan Associates, 
Inc. (M&L) was retained as consultants 
to conduct the Analysis of Impediments 
to Fair Housing Choice.  M&L utilized a 
comprehensive approach to complete the 
Analysis involving the Urban County of 
Travis County.  The following sources were 
utilized:

• 

• 

• 

•

• 

• 

• 

• 

•

•

•

The most recently available 
demographic data regarding 
population, household, housing, 
income, and employment at the 
census tract and municipal level

Public policies affecting the siting 
and development of housing  

Administrative policies concerning 
housing and community development  

Financial lending institution data 
from the Home Mortgage Disclosure 
Act (HMDA) database

Agencies that provide housing and 
housing related services to members 
of the protected classes 

The Consolidated Plan, Annual 
Plans and CAPERs for the Urban 
County

Fair housing complaints filed with 
HUD and the Texas Workforce 
Commission Civil Rights Division 

Real estate advertisements from 
area newspapers of record

Historic race and ethnicity data and 
shapefiles from a National Historic 
GIS, a project of the University of 
Minnesota Population Center

The Geography of Opportunity 
report and shapefiles created for the 
Austin region through a collaborative 
project with the Kirwan Institute

Interviews conducted with agencies 
and organizations that provide 
housing and housing related services 
to members of the protected classes.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



13

g.  analytical approach
Fair housing choice is defined as the ability 
of persons, regardless of race, color, 
religion, sex, disability, familial status, or 
national origin, of similar income levels to 
have available to them the same housing 
choices. This AI analyzes a range of fair 
housing issues regardless of a person’s 
income. To the extent that members of the 
protected classes, those who are protected 
from discrimination by fair housing laws, 
tend to have lower incomes, then access to 
fair housing is related to affordable housing. 
In many areas across the U.S., a primary 
impediment to fair housing is a relative 
absence of affordable housing. Often, 
however, the public policies implemented 
in towns and cities create, or contribute 
to, the lack of affordable housing in these 
communities, thereby disproportionately 
affecting housing choice for members of 
the protected classes. 

This document goes well beyond an 
analysis of the adequacy of affordable 
housing in Travis County. This AI defines 
the relative presence of members of the 
protected classes within the context of 
factors that influence the ability of the 
protected classes to achieve equal access 
to housing and related services. 

Throughout this report, emphasis is placed 
on the Urban County rather than on the 
entire county of Travis County.  The Urban 
County of Travis County includes all of the 
unincorporated area within Travis County 
and one incorporated place, the Village of 
Webberville.  The Urban County CDBG 
program does not currently include any 
other incorporated cities or villages.  This 
analysis includes includes data on those 
areas for purposes of comparison.  

In all cases, the latest available data was 
used to describe the most appropriate 
geographic unit of analysis.  In most 
cases, 2010 Census data and 2010 
American Community Survey (ACS) were 
available and incorporated into this report.  
Where the margin of error for block group 
estimates was unacceptably high due to 
small sample size, census tract data has 
been used.

H.  DEVELOPMENT OF THE AI
Within the Department of Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Services, the Travis 
County CDBG Office was the lead agency 
for the preparation and implementation 
of the AI.  The CDBG staff identified and 
invited numerous stakeholders to participate 
in the process for the purpose of developing 
a thorough analysis with a practical set of 
recommendations to eliminate impediments 
to fair housing choice, where identified.

The County engaged in a consultation 
process with local public agencies, nonprofit 
organizations and other interested entities in 
an effort to develop a community planning 
process for the AI.  A series of written 
questionnaires were mailed to many of the 
interviewees and detailed lists of issues 
were developed for the focus group sessions 
and interviews.

During the week of June 12, 2012, the 
consulting team conducted a series of focus 
group sessions and individual interviews to 
identify current fair housing issues impacting 
the various agencies and organizations 
and their clients. Comments received 
through these meetings and interviews 
are incorporated throughout the AI, where 
appropriate.

Public meetings were held at two separate 
sites on consecutive evenings to solicit 
comment on fair housing issues.  While no 
members of the public attended a meeting 
on June 12 at the West Rural Community 
Center, several residents participated in 
a meeting at the South Rural Community 
Center on June 13.  Public notices 
announcing the meeting were distributed in 
English and Spanish among social service 
providers and posted in well-trafficked public 
locations.  Translators were available at both 
meetings.

A completed draft of the AI will be placed 
on public display at various community 
locations and online for 30 days, during 
which time stakeholders and members of the 
public will be invited to review the analysis 
and submit any comments.  Any comments 
received will be addressed in an appendix to 
this document.  Notice of the public display 
period will be disseminated according to the 
County’s Citizen Participation Plan.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



14

3 Demographic and 
Housing Market 
Conditions

Beyond the continually broadening borders 
of the City of Austin, Travis County continues 
to experience rapid population growth that 
increasingly demands the conscious effort of 
balance.  As land historically spanned by farms 
and ranches gives way to the development of 
livable neighborhoods, community interests 
and individual property rights are more often 
at odds.  The limited public resources available 
for investment in water, sewer, road and other 
infrastructure demand equitable and strategic 
distribution.  The demographic characteristics 
of the County’s population continue to shift 
in ways driven by the local and national 
economy and housing market.  These and 
other conditions present an opportunity for 
unprecedented integration, as Travis County’s 
policies concerning fair housing are now more 
critical than ever to the developing identities of 
its communities.  

Racial integration in Travis County was spurred 
by the outcome of Sweatt v. Painter, a 1950 
U.S. Supreme Court decision that rejected 
the prevalent “separate but equal” doctrine 
by requiring the University of Texas to fully 
integrate its Black students.  The case paved 
the way for the Court’s Brown v. Board of 
Education ruling four years later that declared 

segregated public schools to be illegal.  At that 
point, public schools in Travis County began 
to integrate.  In addition to Black residents, 
Hispanic residents fought discrimination in 
the 1960s and 1970s, though some measure 
of success became clear as minorities were 
represented in government. Blacks and 
Hispanics became school board members, 
state representatives, city councilors and Travis 
County Commissioners during the late 1960s 
through the 1970s.1   During AI interviews, 
stakeholders referred generally to a crescent-
shaped pattern of minority (traditionally Black) 
concentration.  This section of the report will 
explore and characterize such patterns.

Like all county governments in Texas, Travis 
County is authorized to exercise only limited 
authority over development regulation.  This 
has allowed for land consumption to proceed 
mostly unfettered in unincorporated areas, 
which is where a large portion of population 
growth during the last decade has occurred.   
A perceived freedom from land use controls 
represents a selling point for some households 
moving out of the City of Austin.2   In 1980, 
about 85% of Travis County residents lived 
in Austin, compared to  less than 74% in 
2010.  The decline comes in spite of the city’s 
considerably aggressive annexation policies 
during those years.  While population has 
continued to stream into the widening city, the  
net influx has been even greater in northern 
and southern suburbs and near Lake Travis.

1  Smyrl, Vivian Elizabeth. Handbook of Texas Online (www.tshaonline.org/handbook/online/articles/hct08), July 2012. Pub-
lished by the Texas State Historical Association.  
2 “Travis County Land Use Authority: Draft Report.”  Commissioners Court, July 2008.  Prepared by NuStats, Austin, Texas.

Overview of 
Settlement Patterns

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Population Trends

Travis County led all Texas counties in 
population growth between 2000 and 2010, 
notching a gain of 26.1% during the decade.  
This rate outpaced the remarkable 20.6% 
increase in total population statewide, which 
was driven primarily by minorities.  Texas’ non-
White population accounted for about 90% 
of its net gain in residents since 2000, with 
Hispanics alone accounting for 65%.3

In total, the number of people living in Travis 
County has more than tripled since 1970, 
reflecting a population boom that has endured 
across the entire five-county Austin-Round 
Rock metropolitan statistical area (MSA).  
Since 1970, the MSA has decenially gained 
residents at a rate near or exceeding 40%.  
A higher rate across the more rural MSA 
compared to Travis County, especially since 
2000, indicates that rural areas are growing 
more rapidly than the urban core.

3  Ramsey, Ross, et al.  “Minorities Drove Texas Growth, Census Figures Show.” Texas Tribune, February 18, 2011.
4 As explained in the introduction, federal CDBG entitlement areas comprising the Urban County currently include 
unincorporated space and the Village of Webberville.

The overall population 
boom since 2000 
reflects steady gain in 
the urban core outpaced 
by rapid growth across 
unincorporated areas of 
the County.

15

Figure 3-1
Decennial Population Change, 1970-2010

1970 1980 10-Year 
Change

1990 10-Year 
Change

2000 10-Year 
Change

2010 10-Year 
Change

% Change 
1970 - 2010

Urban Travis County* 125,218 179,287 43.2%
Travis County 295,516 419,573 42.0% 576,407 37.4% 812,280 40.9% 1,024,266 26.1% 246.6%
Austin-Round Rock MSA** 398,938 585,051 46.7% 846,227 44.6% 1,249,763 47.7% 1,716,289 37.3% 330.2%
State of Texas 11,198,655 14,225,513 27.0% 16,986,510 19.4% 20,851,820 22.8% 25,145,561 20.6% 124.5%

* Includes all unincorporated space plus Webberville.  Populations of incorporated place parts within county unavailable prior to 2000.

Source:  U.S. Census Bureau

**The definition of the MSA containing Austin changed in 2003 when the Austin-San Marcos MSA became the Austin-Round Rock MSA. All data is based 
on the 2005 MSA (CBSA) definition.

Urban Travis County currently includes all 
unincorporated space plus the Village of 
Webberville.4  In 2010, the Urban County 
represented 179,287 residents and 17.5% 
of the total population in Travis County.  The 
Urban County’s population swelled 42.9% 
during the last 10 years, indicating expansion 
of a much greater magnitude in unincorporated 
space than in Austin and other cities and 
towns.  For comparison, across incorporated 
places only, the population grew 23%.  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



16

Figure 3-2
Population Change by Municipality, 2000-2010

Municipality 2000 2010
Austin city* 644,752 754,691
Bee Cave village 656 3,925
Briarcliff village 895 1,438
Cedar Park city 541 489
Creedmoor city 211 202
Elgin city 33 909
Jonestown city 1,681 1,834
Lago Vista city 4,507 6,041
Lakeway city 8,002 11,391
Leander city 0 1,077
Manor city 1,204 5,037
Mustang Ridge city 409 434
Pflugerville city 16,335 46,636
Point Venture village - 800
Rollingwood city 1,403 1,412
Round Rock city 1,076 1,362
San Leanna village 384 497
Sunset Valley city 365 749
The Hills village 1,492 2,472
Volente village - 520
Webberville village** - 392
West Lake Hills city 3,116 3,063
Total Incorporated Areas 687,062 845,371
Total Unincorporated Areas 125,218 178,895
Total Travis County 812,280 1,024,266
* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program

Source:  Census 2000, 2010

Note:  Population figures account for only the portions 
of each place that fall within Travis County.

Differences in population stability, shown in 
Figure 3-2, are less apparent at the municipal 
level due to changes in incorporation status 
and municipal boundaries.  Point Venture, 
Volente and Webberville were not counted 
by the Census Bureau as places in 2000, 
though they exist in 2010 data.  Leander is 
largely in Williamson County, though 1,077 of 
its residents were counted in Travis County 
in 2010, suggesting community expansion. 
Large net gains prevailed.

Map 3-1 illustrates the shift in total population 
distribution that occurred between 1990 and 
2010.  Municipal boundaries, in this map 
and throughout the document, represent 
Census Bureau records and may not reflect 
annexations that have occurred since 2010. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1990

2010

!

!

!

! 1 Dot = 100
! TOTAL

Incorporated Places

map 3-1
Density Distribution of Total Population 
by Block Group, 1990 and 2010

Source:  Census SF-1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



18

Since 2000, a gain in the raw number of White 
residents across Travis County has outpaced 
the gain among non-Whites, especially in the 
City of Austin.  The number of White persons 
living in Travis County grew by 155,756 
(28.1%), compared to a gain of 56,230 
(21.8%) among non-Whites.  Racial minorities 
constituted 30.7% of all County residents in 
2010, whereas they constituted 31.8% in 2000.  

It is worth noting that this White population 
growth includes some people who are Hispanic, 
because the Census counts origin and race as 
separate categories.  The 2010 Census form 
asked respondents to identify their race and 
whether or not they are Hispanic, noting that 
“Hispanic origins are not races.”  Generally 
speaking, most people choosing “some other 
race” are Hispanic, but many Hispanic people 
alternately identify themselves as White, Black 
or another race.

By any measure, the areas within the CDBG 
jurisdiction of Travis County have become far 
more diverse during the last 10 years.  Of the 
net increase of 56,230 non-White persons 

living across all of Travis County since 2000, 
41.5% were found in unincorporated areas 
or Webberville.  In total, the number of non-
White residents in the Urban County climbed 
from 26,690 in 2000, representing 21.5% of the 
total, to 50,296 in 2010, representing 28.1% of 
all Urban County dwellers.  

The juxtaposition of a growing White population 
in the City of Austin and growing non-White 
populations in its suburbs suggests the appeal 
of comparatively affordable options outside of 
the city for racial minority households, which 
typically have access to a range of housing 
options limited by lower household incomes.  
This generalization will be further explored later 
in this section of the AI, but was corroborated 
by AI interviews reporting a trend of reverse 
White flight, “bright flight,” describing Austin 
as a destination attractive to wealthy young 
professionals who drive up housing demand 
and, therefore, price.  Anecdotally, this is clear 
in the transformation of East Austin, where 
neighborhoods that were once affordable, 
isolated Black and/or Hispanic enclaves 
rapidly gentrified into “hipster havens” where 
minorities can no longer afford to live.5

Figure 3-3
Racial and Ethnic Population Composition, 2000-2010

# % # %
Urban Travis County* 125,218 100.0% 179,287 100.0%
    White 98,258 78.5% 128,991 71.9%
    Non-White 26,960 21.5% 50,296 28.1%
            Black 7,878 6.3% 15,443 8.6%
            Asian/Pacific Islander 5,502 20.4% 10,405 5.8%
            American Indian 720 0.6% 1,343 0.7%
            Some other race 9,917 7.9% 17,518 9.8%
            Two or more races 2,943 2.4% 5,587 3.1%
    Hispanic*** 24,777 19.8% 51,774 28.9%
Total Travis County 812,280 100.0% 1,024,266 100.0%
    White 554,058 68.2% 709,814 69.3%
    Non-White 258,222 31.8% 314,452 30.7%
            Black 75,247 9.3% 87,308 8.5%
            Asian/Pacific Islander 36,845 4.5% 60,051 5.9%
            American Indian 4,684 0.6% 8,555 0.8%
            Some other race 118,294 14.6% 124,706 12.2%
            Two or more races 23,152 2.9% 33,832 3.3%
    Hispanic*** 229,048 28.2% 342,766 33.5%

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.
** This category was not recorded in the 1990 Census.
*** Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:  Census 2000 and 2010 SF1

2000 2010

5 Smithson, Cate. “Extreme Makeover: Gentrification Transforms East Austin.”  ABC News, April 27, 2009.  Online:   
http://abcnews.go.com/OnCampus/story?id=7399717&page=1#.UD_FMSIvmWQ

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



19

As of 2010, more than one-third of all people 
living in Travis County were Hispanic, 
compared to 21.1% in 1990.   Blacks represent 
a decreasing share of the minority population, 
accounting for 8.5% of all County residents in 
2010, compared to 11% in 1990.  These trends 
are illustrated in Figures 3-4 and 3-5. 

Hispanics account for a smaller share of 
residents (28.9%) in the Urban County than in 
Travis County as a whole.  The share of Blacks 
increased from 6.3% of the total population in 
2000 to 8.6% in 2010. 

Hispanics represent 
the Urban County’s 
largest minority group, 
accounting for 28.9% of 
the total population in 
2010.

Figure 3-4
Expansion of Diversity among Travis County Racial Minorities, 1990-2010

Figure 3-5
Changes in Travis County’s Hispanic Population , 1990-2010

50%

75%

100%

All Other Races

Asian/Pacific 
Islander

0%

25%

1990 2000 2010

Black

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

Hispanic

Non-Hispanic

60%

65%

70%

75%

1990 2000 2010

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



20

Figure 3-6 presents a breakdown of population 
by race and ethnicity in 2000 and 2010 for parts 
of incorporated places that are within Travis 
County.  Some particular changes during that 
decade are worth note, such as the increase 
of 94,604 White residents in the Travis County 
portion of Austin as the City gained 72,224 
Hispanic residents and lost  2,940 Black 
residents.  Of Pflugerville’s net gain of 30,301 
citizens, 33.6% were Hispanic; 18.8% were 
Black. 

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

18

3

12

15

31

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Studying the distribution of population by race 
and ethnicity across the County in years prior to 
2000 is difficult in tabular format, due primarily to 
changing geographic boundaries (both Census 
definitions and local border changes).  Map 3-2 
is a time series comparing the proportion of Black 
persons across tracts from 1970 to 2010, tracing 
distributional patterns across decades.  Map 3-3 
is a similar time series for the Hispanic population, 
but dates only back to 1980, the first Census for 
which data on the “Spanish origin” population 
was available.  These historic patterns provide 
some context for the current areas of racial and 
ethnic concentration presented in later maps.

Reference Map
Places within 
Travis County

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



21

2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010
Austin city* 644,752 754,691 419,437 514,041 65,308 62,368 30,325 45,075
Bee Cave village 656 3,925 618 3,435 0 51 1 216
Briarcliff village 895 1,438 853 1,377 4 4 4 7
Cedar Park city 541 489 400 358 42 35 36 28
Creedmoor city 211 202 168 140 2 0 0 0
Elgin city 33 909 22 552 1 201 0 10
Jonestown city 1,681 1,834 1,551 1,651 17 15 7 29
Lago Vista city 4,507 6,041 4,237 5,574 38 73 30 39
Lakeway city 8,002 11,391 7,713 10,521 64 111 69 368
Leander city 0 1,077 0 977 0 20 0 40
Manor city 1,204 5,037 640 2,298 204 1,389 1 75
Mustang Ridge city 409 434 273 311 22 9 3 0
Pflugerville city 16,335 46,636 12,607 29,930 1,545 7,233 704 3,437
Point Venture village - 800 - 757 - 7 - 8
Rollingwood city 1,403 1,412 1,347 1,341 0 0 32 33
Round Rock city 1,076 1,362 821 794 92 283 74 75
San Leanna village 384 497 348 451 3 8 2 10
Sunset Valley city 365 749 336 628 0 10 5 59
The Hills village 1,492 2,472 1,450 2,325 18 37 10 52
Volente village - 520 - 477 - 4 - 19
Webberville village** - 392 - 336 - 32 - 1
West Lake Hills city 3,116 3,063 2,979 2,885 9 7 40 66
Total Incorporated Areas 687,062 845,371 455,800 581,159 67,369 71,897 31,343 49,647
Travis County 812,280 1,024,266 554,058 709,814 75,247 87,308 36,845 60,051
Unincorporated Areas 125,218 178,895 98,258 128,655 7,878 15,411 5,502 10,404
Urban County 125,218 179,287 98,258 128,991 7,878 15,443 5,502 10,405

Total Population White Black Asian

2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010
Austin city* 3,835 6,700 106,484 101,050 19,363 25,457 199,126 271,350
Bee Cave village 1 14 23 86 13 123 50 407
Briarcliff village 1 4 20 24 13 22 66 94
Cedar Park city 1 7 39 40 23 21 77 110
Creedmoor city 0 2 35 56 6 4 100 114
Elgin city 0 10 5 97 5 39 18 315
Jonestown city 7 11 60 84 42 44 161 239

Two+ Races Hispanic*Native American Other

Lago Vista city 12 38 114 195 76 122 355 710
Lakeway city 10 30 69 125 77 236 337 836
Leander city 0 6 0 13 0 21 0 72
Manor city 18 48 316 1,001 25 226 587 2,395
Mustang Ridge city 20 2 81 107 10 5 213 292
Pflugerville city 39 289 993 4,053 447 1,694 2,727 12,907
Point Venture village - 2 - 17 - 9 - 66
Rollingwood city 3 3 7 7 14 28 69 92
Round Rock city 2 5 68 142 19 63 139 405
S  L  ill 0 0 22 19 9 9 48 104San Leanna village 0 0 22 19 9 9 48 104
Sunset Valley city 1 3 17 30 6 19 45 133
The Hills village 5 19 2 16 7 23 33 158
Volente village - 1 - 8 - 11 - 41
Webberville village** - 1 - 20 - 2 - 192
West Lake Hills city 9 18 22 18 57 69 120 152
Total Incorporated Areas 3,964 7,213 108,377 107,208 20,212 28,247 204,271 291,184
Travis County 4,684 8,555 118,294 124,706 118,294 33,832 229,048 342,766
Unincorporated Areas 720 1,342 9,917 17,498 98,082 5,585 24,777 51,582
Urban County 720 1 343 9 917 17 518 98 082 5 587 24 777 51 774Urban County 720 1,343 9,917 17,518 98,082 5,587 24,777 51,774
* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Population figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source:  Census 2000, 2010

Figure 3-6
Municipal Population by Race and Ethnicity, 2000 and 2010

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1980

1970

map 3-2
Black Population Distribution 
by Tract, 1960-2010

1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1990

2000

2010

1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1980

1970

1 Dot = 100

BLK

Incorporated Places

1980

1970

1 dot = 100 Black residents

Source:  Minnesota Population Center. 
National Historical Geographic Information 
System: Version 2.0. Minneapolis, MN: 
University of Minnesota 2011.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



23

1 Dot = 100

HISP

Incorporated Places

1990

2000

2010

1 dot = 100 Hispanic residents

map 3-3
Hispanic Population Distribution 
by Tract, 1980-2010

Source:  Minnesota Population Center. 
National Historical Geographic Information 
System: Version 2.0. Minneapolis, MN: 
University of Minnesota 2011.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Travis County’s Consolidated Plan for FY 2011-
2013 establishes a threshold for defining areas 
of racial or ethnic concentration: A concentrated 
area is any in which the percentage of a 
single ethnic or minority group is at least 10 
percentage points higher than across the 
County overall.  For purposes of the AI, census 
block groups were determined to be the most 
appropriate unit of analysis, and countywide 
minority group thresholds were determined to 
identify a manageable number of concentrated 
areas in the Urban County.  (In cases where 
whole County and Urban County thresholds 
differ more substantially than they do here, it is 
possible that selecting the former would result 
in few or no rural areas of concentration.)

Across Travis County in 2010, Blacks 
comprised 8.5% of the population.  Therefore, 
an area of Black concentration would include 
any block group where the percentage of 
Black residents is 18.5% or higher.  Of the 87 
block groups across the Urban County, seven 

(8%) met this criterion, all of which were also 
areas of Hispanic concentration.  An area of 
Asian concentration, by the same definition, 
would include any tract where the percentage 
of Asian residents is 15.9% or higher.  Of the 
87 block groups in the Urban County, two met 
this criterion.  In Hispanic-concentrated block 
groups, at least 43.5% of the population is 
Hispanic.  Of 87 total unincorporated block 
groups, 20 (23%) met this definition.

The CDBG program includes a statutory 
requirement that at least 70% of funds 
invested benefit low and moderate income 
(LMI) persons.  As a result, HUD provides the 
percentage of LMI persons in each census 
block group for entitlements such as Travis 
County.  Travis County invests its CDBG 
funds primarily in areas where the percentage 
LMI persons is 45.14% or higher (LMI areas). 
Generally, the LMI percentage required for 
CDBG eligibility is 51%.  However, due to a 
more affluent population in some areas of the 
County, HUD has established an “exception 
criteria” that lowers the LMI percentage 
requirement for Travis County to 45.14%.  

Map 3-4 displays the distribution of racially 
and/or ethnically concentrated block groups 
in the Urban County.  Map 3-5 shows block 
groups where at least 45.14% of persons 
are considered low- or moderate-income by 
HUD standards.  Map 3-6 compares the block 
groups meeting those criteria with LMI block 
groups, demonstrating the large extent to which 
they overlap.  Map 3-7 isolates block groups 
meeting both criteria, which will be referred to 
as impacted areas in other sections of the AI.  

Racial and/or Ethnic 
Concentrations

There are 22 racially and/
or ethnically concentrated 
LMI block groups in the 
Urban County, most of 
which qualify as low- and 
moderate income (LMI).

24

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



25

Figure 3-7
Racially and/or Ethnically Concentrated Areas, 2010

Black Asian Hispanic
1,024,266 8.5% 5.9% 33.5%
179,287 8.6% 5.8% 28.9%

Manchaca 1772 2 1,787 4.0% 4.2% 53.3%
NE of Austin 1840 1 4,713 16.0% 6.7% 51.8%
South of Pflugerville 1841 1 8,097 16.8% 18.8% 37.0%
NE of Austin 1841 2 2,024 2.8% 2.4% 61.3%
Windemere 1851 1 2,227 10.5% 17.8% 21.9%
Eastern Austin border 2201 1 1,080 47.9% 0.6% 46.9%
Eastern Austin border 2202 3 4,447 33.8% 0.2% 58.9%
Hornsby Bend/Webberville 2207 1 2,846 18.6% 0.2% 66.0%
Hornsby Bend/Webberville 2207 2 5,533 28.2% 0.9% 55.3%
South of Elgin 2209 1 3,077 28.1% 0.9% 51.3%
South of Manor 2209 2 2,721 19.6% 0.8% 49.5%
North of Webberville 2210 2 2,462 4.6% 0.3% 55.8%
Eastern Austin border 2212 1 567 21.7% 0.9% 57.8%
Eastern Austin border 2310 2 2,484 8.8% 0.2% 78.1%
Southern Austin border 2426 1 6,182 11.0% 1.5% 70.6%
Southern Austin border 2428 2 4,097 6.3% 1.9% 47.7%
North of Creedmoor 2432 2 968 1.8% 0.8% 75.2%
Garfield/Webberville 2433 1 1,793 5.0% 0.2% 48.4%
Garfield 2433 2 4,188 13.3% 2.1% 67.4%
South of Creedmoor 2434 1 1,718 4.6% 1.1% 57.3%
SE of Austin 2435 2 5,036 12.6% 1.4% 72.3%
North of Mustang Ridge 2436 1 2,672 3.7% 0.4% 73.0%

*Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.
Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Urban County*

Vicinity Tract Block 
Group Population Race and Ethnicity

Travis County

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



map 3-4
Areas of Racial and/or Ethnic Concentration, 2010

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Black AND Hispanic Concentration

Black Concentration

Hispanic Concentration

Asian Concentration

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

Block Groups > 45.14% LMI

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere 27

map 3-5
Block Groups of at Least 45.14% LMI, 2010

Incorporated Places

Source:  2012 HUD LMI Estimates

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



map 3-6
Comparison of LMI and Racially/Ethnically
Concentrated Block Groups, 2010

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Block Groups > 45.14% LMI

Black AND Hispanic Concentration

Asian AND Black Concentration

Black Concentration

Hispanic Concentration

Asian Concentration

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

Sources:  2010 Census SF-1,
2012 HUD LMI Estimates

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



map 3-7
Impacted Block Groups, 2010

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Incorporated Places

29

Sources:  2010 Census SF-1,
2012 HUD LMI Estimates

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



30

Residential segregation is a measure of the 
degree of separation of racial or ethnic groups 
living in a neighborhood or community.  Typically, 
the pattern of residential segregation involves 
the existence of predominantly homogenous, 
White suburban communities and low-income 
minority inner-city neighborhoods.  Latent 
factors, such as attitudes, or overt factors, such 
as real estate practices, can limit the range of 
housing opportunities for minorities.  A lack 
of racial or ethnic integration in a community 
creates other problems, such as reinforcing 

prejudicial attitudes and behaviors, narrowing 
opportunities for interaction, and reducing the 
degree to which community life is considered 
harmonious.  Areas of extreme minority 
isolation often experience poverty and social 
problems at rates that are disproportionately 
high.6   Racial segregation has been linked 
to diminished employment prospects, poor 
educational attainment, increased infant and 
adult mortality rates and increased homicide 
rates.

Figure 3-8
Travis County Dissimilarity Indices, 2000 and 2010

6 This aspect of segregation is related to the degree to which members of a group reside in areas where their group pre-
dominates, thus leading them to have less residential contact with other groups.  See: Fossett, Mark. “Racial Segregation 
in America: A Nontechnical Review of Residential Segregation in Urban Areas.” Department of Sociology and Racial and 
Ethnic Studies Institute, Texas A&M University, 2004.
7 The index of dissimilarity is a commonly used demographic tool for measuring inequality. For a given geographic area, 
the index is equal to 1/2 the sum of ABS [(b/B)-(a/A)], where b is the subgroup population of a census tract, B is the total 
subgroup population in a city, a is the majority population of a census tract, and A is the total majority population in the city. 
ABS refers to the absolute value of the calculation that follows.

Quantifying 
Integration

White
Black
American Indian
Asian/Pacific Islander
Other
Two or More Races
Hispanic**
Total

White
Black
American Indian*
Asian/Pacific Islander
Other
Two or More Races
Hispanic**
Total

** Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:  Census 2000 and 2010 SF1, Mullin & Lonergan Associates

20
10

20
00

- 812,280 100.0%

40.6 36,845 4.5%
50.9 118,294 14.6%

37.2 4,684 0.6%

DI with White 
Population

Share of Total 
Population

- 554,058 68.2%

* In these cases, sample size is too small to reliably interpret the DI.  Caution should be 
exercised in interpreting results for subpopulations of fewer than 1,000.

27.2 23,152 2.9%
44.0 229,048 28.2%

53.0 75,247 9.3%

Population

47.0 124,706 12.2%

38.5
3.3%

342,766 33.5%
21.4 33,832

DI with White 
Population Population

87,308 8.5%

41.5

Share of Total 
Population

- 709,814 69.3%

- 1,024,266 100.0%

60,051 5.9%
36.1 8,555 0.8%
48.6

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



The distribution of racial or ethnic groups across 
a geographic area can be analyzed using an 
index of dissimilarity.  This method allows 
for comparisons between subpopulations, 
indicating how much one group is spatially 
separated from another within a community.  
The index of dissimilarity is rated on a scale 
from 0 to 100, in which a score of 0 corresponds 
to perfect integration and a score of 100 
represents total segregation.7   The index is 
typically interpreted as the percentage of the 
minority population (in this instance, the Black 
population) that would have to move in order 
for a community or neighborhood to achieve 
full integration. 

With a 2010 White-Black dissimilarity index of 
48.6, Travis County qualifies as moderately 
segregated by national standards.8  The data 
indicates that in order to achieve full integration 
among White and Black residents, 48.6% of 
one subpopulation or the other would have to 
move to another tract within the County.

Figure 3-9
Changes in Racial and Ethnic Integration, 1960-2010

8 According to Douglas S. Massey, an index under 30 is low, between 30 and 60 is moderate, and above 60 is high. See 
Massey, “Origins of Economic Disparities: The Historical Role of Housing Segregation,” in Segregation: The Rising Costs 
for America, edited by James H. Carr and Nandinee K. Kutty (New York: Routledge 2008) p. 41-42.

Though integration has 
increased during the 
last 10 years, Travis 
County’s Black and 
Hispanic populations 
remain moderately 
segregated from its 
White population.

In addition to a White-Black index of 48.6, the 
County has a White-other race index of 50.9, 
a White-Asian index of 41.5, a White-Hispanic 
index of 38.5, a White-American Indian index 
of 36.1 and a low White-multi-race index of 
21.4.  These numbers indicate that some 
subpopulations are more integrated with 
Whites than Blacks across the County.  

31

Population DI Population DI Population DI
2000 75,247 53.0 36,845 40.6 229,048 44.0
2010 87,308 48.6 60,051 41.5 342,766 38.5

Black Asian Hispanic

Source:  Census SF1, Mullin & Lonergan Associates

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



32

Race/Ethnicity 
and Income

Figure 3-10
Median Household Income and 
Poverty Rates by Race/Ethnicity, 2010

Household income is one of several factors 
used to determine a household’s eligibility for 
a home mortgage loan. The median household 
income (MHI) in Travis County was $54,074 in 
2010, above the state median of $48,259 and 
the national median of $51,914.  Collin County, 
in the Dallas-Fort Worth metropolitan area, 
had the highest median in the state in 2010 at 
$77,671.  Generally, median income levels are 
lower in counties along the state’s southern 
border and much higher in the suburban 
counties surrounding major cities.  

Across racial and ethnic groups in Travis 
County, Whites had the highest MHI at 
$60,809. The  MHI for Asian households was 
$59,690.   It was substantially lower for Blacks 
and Hispanics, at $36,227 and $40,948, 
respectively.  

As suggested by the lower median incomes 
among these groups, minority residents in 
Travis County experienced poverty at greater 
rates than White residents. Less than 13% of 
White residents were living in poverty in 2010, 
compared with 24.7% of Hispanics and 24.6% 
of Blacks. Asian households reported poverty 
at a rate of 16.1%. 

The 2010 median 
income for Black and 
Hispanic households 
in Travis County was 
roughly two-thirds the 
median income for White 
households.

Travis County 16.2%
     Whites 12.9%
     Blacks 24.6%
     Asians 16.1%
     Hispanics 24.7%

Note:  Five-year sample data was selected because 
one- and three-year sample data, while available, 
included an unacceptably high margin of error within 
smaller racial/ethnic groups.
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-2010 American 
Community Survey (B19013, B19013A, B19013B, 
B19013D, B19013I, B17001, B17001A, B17001B, 
B17001D, B17001I)

Median 
Household 

Income

Poverty 
Rate

$54,074
$60,809
$36,227
$59,690
$40,948

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



33

Distribution of household income by race and 
ethnicity is comparable to the trends described 
above, showing a disparity between White and 
non-White households in the Urban County 
and Travis County overall. While more than half 
of White households and Asian households in 
the Urban County reported household income 
of more than $75,000, only 31.6% of Black 
households and 29% of Hispanic households 
fell into this category.  

Figure 3-11
Household Income Distribution by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

There are some differences in the income 
distribution across racial and ethnic groups 
between the Urban County and Travis 
County overall.  Generally, those living in the 
County’s incorporated areas (most of whom 
live in Austin) make less, as households of 
all races  are more evenly distributed across 
income groups.  However, White and Asian 
households in urban areas are still much more 
likely to report higher incomes than Black and 
Hispanic households.

Figure 3-12
Urban County Household Income Distribution, 2010

All Households
Travis County 390,862 21.5% 24.8% 17.8% 35.9%

Urban County* 58,685 13.3% 21.7% 17.4% 47.6%
White 
Travis County 283,171 18.3% 23.0% 18.0% 40.6%

Urban County* 43,713 12.2% 18.0% 16.5% 53.2%
Black 
Travis County 33,453 33.3% 31.2% 17.2% 18.3%

Urban County* 3,892 25.8% 11.6% 31.0% 31.6%
Asian 
Travis County 21,132 25.1% 19.3% 13.9% 41.7%

Urban County* 3,021 11.3% 18.6% 16.9% 53.2%
Hispanic 
Travis County 96,966 28.3% 31.5% 19.4% 20.8%

Urban County* 12,130 18.4% 32.7% 19.9% 29.0%
* Excludes unincorporated areas and Webberville
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-2010 American Community Survey (B19001, 
B19001A, B19001B, B19001D, B19001I).

Total
$0 to 

$24,999
$25,000 to 

$49,999
$50,000 to 

$74,999
$75,000 

and higher

30%

40%

50%

60%
White Households

Black Households

Asian Households

Hispanic 
Households

0%

10%

20%

$0 to $24,999 $25,000 to 
$49,999

$50,000 to 
$74,999

$75,000+

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



34

Residential Segregation
by Income

The Pew Research Center has developed a 
metric to describe the degree to which high- and 
low-income residents are spatially segregated 
from one another within a metropolitan area.  
The Residential Income Segregation Index 
(RISI) is calculated by combining the share 
of low-income residents who live in majority 
low-income census tracts with the share of 
high-income residents who live in high-income 
census tracts, capturing the magnitude of 
households that live in economically segregated 
neighborhoods.  

Nationwide, the Pew Center found that 28% 
of lower-income households were located in 
predominantly lower-income neighborhoods 
in 2010, up from 23%, and that 18% of upper-
income households lived in predominantly 
upper-income neighborhoods, compared to 9% 
in 1980.9  Researchers cited an overarching 
increase in income inequality as the primary 
reason for the declining share of mixed-income 
neighborhoods.

9 Fry, Richard and Taylor, Paul.  “The Rise of Residential Segregation by Income.”  Pew Social and Demographic Trends, 
Pew Research Center.  Released August 1, 2012.

The Pew Center applied its analysis to the 
nation’s 30 largest metropolitan areas as of 
2010.  The Austin-Round Rock-San Marcos 
metropolitan area ranked as the country’s 
35th largest, just outside of the scope of Pew’s 
work.   In order to compare the metro area in 
which Travis County is located to other areas 
of Texas and the country for purposes of the 
AI, Pew’s methodology was replicated using 
the same data set and research methods 
similar to those applied in the article cited 
below.  The only methodological difference 
was application of a stepwise interpolation in 
lieu of the Sprague interpolation formula to 
split income categories in the metro area’s 350 
census tracts, selected for simplicity following 
the determination that the regression curves of 
the two methods were not drastically different.

Pew’s analysis allows for a description of 
neighborhood composition by income.  Lower-
income households were defined as those 
making less than $37,990, which is two-thirds 
the median household income across the 
Austin-Round Rock-San Marcos metropolitan 
area in 2010 ($57,561), and upper-income 
households were defined as those making at 
least $115,122, which is double the metropolitan 
median.  Lower-income neighborhoods were 
those where at least 50% of households 
made less than $37,990, and upper-income 
neighborhoods are those where at least 50% 
of households made at least $115,122.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



35

According to 2010 American Community 
Survey data, 66,564 of 193,801 lower-income 
households across the Austin-Round Rock-
San Marcos region lived in majority lower-
income neighborhoods, a share of 34.3%.  A 
similar share of the region’s 121,632 upper-
income households, 42,850, or 35.2%, lived in 
upper-income neighborhoods.  Therefore, the 
RISI score for the region in 2010 was 69.5.

The score of 69.5 defines Greater Austin as 
more economically segregated than any other 
metropolitan region for which Pew published 
RISI calculations.  It is not without context, 
as the Pew Center noted that three Texas 
metropolitan areas, San Antonio, Houston 
and Dallas, have the nation’s highest degrees 
of segregated upper-income households.  
Respectively in those areas, 25%, 24% and 
23% of upper-income households live in 
predominantly upper-income areas.  Of the 
10 largest metro areas in the United States by 
number of households, Houston and Dallas 
have the highest overall RISI scores (60 and 
61), topping New York and Los Angeles.  Pew 
researchers connect the high RISI scores in 
Texas to the phenomenal population expansion 
in its metropolitan areas, reflecting influxes of 
households at both ends of the income scale:  
lower-wage immigrant families as well as skilled 
professionals.  This observation is consistent 
with the gentrification patterns reported in and 
beyond Travis County by AI stakeholders.

Austin-Round Rock-San Marcos 69.5
San Antonio-New Braunfels 63
Houston-Sugar Land-Baytown 61
Dallas-Fort Worth-Arlington 60
New York-Northern New Jersey 57
Denver-Aurora-Broomfield 55
Detroit-Warren-Livonia 54
Columbus 53
Los Angeles-Long Beach-Santa Ana 51
Philadelphia-Camden-Wilmington 51
Miami-Fort Lauderdale-Pompano Beach 49
Baltimore-Towson 48
Phoenix-Mesa-Glendale 48
Kansas City 47
Cincinnati-Middletown 47
Washington-Arlington-Alexandria 47
Cleveland-Elyria-Mentor 46
National 46

Source: Fry, Richard and Taylor, Paul.  “The Rise of 
Residential Segregation by Income.”  Pew Social and 
Demographic Trends, Pew Research Center.  
Released August 1, 2012.  Local calculations by M&L.

2010 
RISI

Figure 3-13
Residential Segregation Comparisons 
by Metropolitan Region, 2010

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



36

Travis County residents 
with disabilities are 
substantially more 
likely to live in poverty 
than those without 
disabilities.

Disability and 
Income

As defined by the Census Bureau, a disability 
is a long-lasting physical, mental, or emotional 
condition that can make it difficult for a person 
to do activities such as walking, climbing stairs, 
dressing, bathing, learning, or remembering.  
This condition can also impede a person from 
being able to go outside the home alone or to 
work. 

The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination 
based on physical, mental or emotional 
handicap, provided “reasonable 
accommodation” can be made.  Reasonable 
accommodation may include changes to 
address the needs of disabled persons, 
including adaptive structural (e.g., constructing 
an entrance ramp) or administrative changes 
(e.g., permitting the use of a service animal).  
Across Travis County, 8.6% of the total civilian 
non-institutionalized population reported  a 
disability in 2010.9  

The most common type of disability among 
persons ages 18 to 64 was ambulatory, 
referring to difficulty moving from place to 
place that makes it impossible or impractical to 
walk as a means of transportation.  Of County 
residents between ages 18 and 64, 23,690 
(3.4%) reported this type of difficulty, which 
translates to a need for accessible housing.  
Additionally, about one in every four seniors 
age 65 and above (16,334 individuals) reported 
an ambulatory disability.  Of County residents 
ages 18 to 64, 3% reported a sensory disability 
such as vision or hearing.  Just over one in five 
seniors reported the same.

According to the National Organization on 
Disabilities, a significant income gap exists for 
persons with disabilities, given their lower rate 
of employment.  In Travis County, persons with 
disabilities were substantially more likely than 
persons without disabilities to live in poverty. 
In 2010, 24.1% of residents with disabilities 
lived in poverty, compared to 14.5% of persons 
without disabilities who were living in poverty.10   
Median earnings for disabled persons age 16 
and older were $21,436, compared to $30,578 
for those without disabilities.

Disabled persons and those living in poverty 
were more prevalent in the County’s urban 
core, a fact likely related to the concentration 
of public and nonprofit human services and 
transit available in the County’s most densely 
populated areas.  

9 2008-2010 ACS (S1810).  All available disability estimates were insufficient to subtract entitlement community figures.
10 2010 ACS (S1811). 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



The Census Bureau divides households into 
family and non-family households.  Family 
households are married couple families with 
or without children, single-parent families and 
other families comprised of related persons.  
Non-family households are either single 
persons living alone, or two or more non-
related persons living together.

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 protects 
against gender discrimination in housing.  
Protection for families with children was added 
in the 1988 amendments to Title VIII.  Except in 
limited circumstances involving elderly housing 
and owner-occupied buildings of one to four 
units, it is unlawful to refuse to rent or sell to 
families with children.  

Within the context of continued population in 
the number of households living in the Urban 
County, female-headed households with 
children grew from 6.5% of all households in 
2000 to 7.4% in 2010, while the proportion 
of male-headed households with children 
declined slightly from 2.3% to 2.1%. By 
comparison, married-couple family households 
with children declined from 33.7% to 30.6% 
over the course of the decade.  In the Urban 
County, non-family households held steady 
at about one-fourth of the total.  However, 
non-family households are far more common 
in urban areas: Across all of Travis County, 
more than one in every four households is 
non-family, suggesting that single-person 
households are much more prevalent in Austin 
than in unincorporated areas.  Some of the 
difference can be accounted for by Austin’s 
large student population.  In addition to other 
institutions, the University of Texas at Austin 
enrolls more than 46,500 full-time.

37

Familial Status
and Income

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

2000

2010

0%

5%

10%

Married 
Couples with 

Children

Married 
Couples 
without 
Children

Female 
Households 
with Children

Female 
Households 

without 
Children

Male 
Households 
with Children

Male 
Households 

without 
Children

Non-Family 
Households

Figure 3-14
Trends in Household Type, Urban County, 2000-2010

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Figure 3-15
Household Type and Presence of Children, Urban County, 2000-2010

Over one-third of 
female-headed 
households with children 
in Travis County are 
below the poverty line, 
compared with only 9% 
of married couples with 
children.

Female-headed households with children often 
experience difficulty in obtaining housing, 
primarily as a result of lower-incomes and the 
potential unwillingness of some landlords to rent 
their units to families with children. Although 
they comprised only 12.7% of family households 
in Travis County in 2010, female-headed 
households with children accounted for 45.9% 
of all families living in poverty.11  Among female-
headed households with children, 36% were 
living in poverty, compared to only 9% of married-
couple families with children.

Married couples with 
children under 18 
represent a decreasing 
share of total households 
in the Urban County, 
while single females 
with children have 
become more common 
since 2000.

38 11 2006-2010 ACS(B17012) 

#
With 

Children
Without 
Children #

With 
Children

Without 
Children #

With 
Children

Without 
Children

Travis County 320,766 57.3% 136,632 22.0% 20.6% 33,333 7.3% 3.1% 13,867 2.2% 2.1% 42.7%
Urban County* 43,850 74.1% 26,975 33.7% 27.8% 3,890 6.5% 2.4% 1,619 2.3% 1.4% 25.9%

Travis County 390,862 57.2% 161,083 20.2% 21.0% 43,797 7.2% 4.0% 18,500 2.1% 2.6% 42.8%
Urban County* 58,685 74.0% 34,256 30.6% 27.8% 6,470 7.4% 3.6% 2,679 2.1% 2.5% 26.0%

Source: Census 2000 (SF1, QTP10); 2010 American Community Survey (B11001, B11003)

Male-headed Households

2000

2010

* Includes unincorporated areas and Webberville

Total 
Households

Family Households

Non-family 
Households

% of 
Total

Married-couple families Female-headed Households

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



It is illegal to refuse the right to housing based 
on place of birth or ancestry. Census data on 
native and foreign-born populations reported 
that in 2010, 21.6% of all Travis County residents 
were foreign-born.12   A smaller proportion of all 
people across the Urban County, 12.8%, were 
foreign-born.  By way of origin, more than half 
of the Urban County’s foreign-born population 
(51.8%) came from Latin American nations, 
while 28.2% were Asian, 7.8% were European 
and 3.6% were African natives.

Travis County’s foreign-born population is 
more likely to experience poverty.  According 
to 2006-10 American Community Survey 
estimates, 16.6% of the foreign-born population 
for which poverty status is determined fell 
below the poverty line, compared to 8.8% of 
all persons Countywide for whom this status is 
determined.13 

Persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) 
are defined by the federal government as 
persons who have a limited ability to read, 
write, speak or understand English. American 
Community Survey (ACS) data reports on the 
non-English language spoken at home for the 
population five years and older. In 2010, the 

Figure 3-16
Limited English Proficiency
Language Groups, 2010

12 2006-2010 ACS(B05006) 
13 2006-2010 ACS(B06012) 

Census Bureau reported that 286,963 persons 
across Travis County (31.7%) spoke at least 
one language other than English.  Of these, 
123,846 (43.2%) spoke English less than 
“very well.”   This limited English proficiency 
subpopulation constituted 13.7% of the 
County’s total population.  The four language 
groups with more than 1,000 LEP persons 
included Spanish, Vietnamese, Chinese and 
Korean.  To determine whether translation of 
vital documents would be required, a HUD 
entitlement community must first identify the 
number of LEP persons in a single language 
group who are likely to qualify for and be served 
by the Urban County’s programs.  HUD uses 
1,000 or 5% of the total population as a “safe 
harbor” threshold, meaning that a jurisdiction 
addressing the needs of language groups 
exeeding either figure show strong evidence of 
compliance with Title VI obligations.

Four language groups 
in Travis County have 
large enough numbers 
of limited-English 
speakers to warrant 
further analysis of their 
access to Urban County 
programs and services.

Ancestry and 
Income

Spanish 104,076 11.5%
Vietnamese 5,427 0.6%
Chinese 3,650 0.4%
Korean 1,979 0.2%
Tagalog 611 0.1%
French 560 0.1%

Language Group Number of LEP 
Speakers

Percentage of 
Total Population

Source: American Community Survey 2008-10 Estimates 
(B16001)

More than 100,000 
Spanish-speaking County 
residents have limited 
English proficiency, 
though many are located 
within the City of Austin.

39

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Employment and
Protected Class Status

In 2010, the latest year for which comprehensive 
data is available, unemployment rates in Travis 
County were about on par with statewide levels.  
Black residents were substantially more likely 
to be unemployed than White residents, with 
unemployment rates of 12% and 5.4%, in the 
Urban County, respectively.  Asian residents in 
the Urban County were unemployed at a rate of 
5.8%, and Hispanics reported unemployment at 
a rate of 7.5%.  Black and Hispanic households 
were more commonly unemployed than 
Whites and Asians across all of Travis County 
and Texas in 2010.  Higher unemployment, 
whether temporary or permanent, limits the 
resources available to meet housing costs.

Blacks and Hispanics were 
substantially more likely 
than Whites and Asians to 
be unemployed in 2010 
across the Urban County 
as well as across Texas.

40

Figure 3-17
Civilian Labor Force
and Protected Class Status, 2010

Total % Total % Total %
Total CLF 11,916,548 100% 528,778 100.0% 397,260 100.0%

Employed 11,087,677 93.0% 492,909 93.2% 370,330 93.2%
Unemployed 828,871 7.0% 35,869 6.8% 26,930 6.8%

Male CLF 6,490,088 54.5% 279,676 52.9% 209,997 52.9%
Employed 6,051,128 93.2% 260,632 93.2% 196,201 93.4%

Unemployed 438,960 6.8% 19,044 6.8% 13,796 6.6%

Female CLF 5,426,460 45.5% 249,102 47.1% 187,263 47.1%
Employed 5,036,549 92.8% 232,277 93.2% 174,129 93.0%

Unemployed 389,911 7.2% 16,825 6.8% 13,134 7.0%

White CLF 9,170,064 82.7% 390,375 73.8% 285,598 71.9%
Employed 8,573,012 93.5% 368,840 94.5% 270,187 94.6%

Unemployed 597,052 6.5% 21,535 5.5% 15,411 5.4%

Black CLF 1,383,294 11.6% 44,164 8.4% 32,379 8.2%
Employed 1,222,785 88.4% 39,153 88.7% 28,508 88.0%

Unemployed 160,509 11.6% 5,011 11.3% 3,871 12.0%

Asian CLF 472,532 4.0% 30,357 5.7% 24,242 6.1%
Employed 445,165 94.2% 28,460 93.8% 22,837 94.2%

Unemployed 27,367 5.8% 1,897 6.2% 1,405 5.8%
Hispanic CLF 4,060,129 34.1% 168,611 31.9% 138,525 34.9%

Employed 3,741,144 92.1% 155,703 92.3% 128,098 92.5%
Unemployed 318,985 7.9% 12,908 7.7% 10,427 7.5%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, County: 2006-10 American Community Survey (C23001, C23002A, 
C23002B, C23002D, C23002I).  State: Same tables, 2008-10 ACS.

Civilian Labor Force

Texas Travis County Urban County*

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



41

Distribution of 
Neighborhood Opportunity

One effect of sprawl across metropolitan regions 
has been the geographic dilution of jobs and 
amenities, typically in a way that isolates lower-
income minorities living in urban core areas 
from employment and housing opportunities 
in outlying suburbs.  The expansion of low-
density development beyond urban fringes 
exacerbates residential segregation as White 
residents, whose typically higher incomes 
correlate with a greater array of housing 
choices, move farther into more sparsely 
populated areas with lower taxes and lower 
service needs, abandoning the existing housing 
stock and leaving behind a lower-income 
population that consists disproportionately of 
racial and ethnic minorities.  A large body of 
social research has demonstrated the powerful 
negative effects of residential segregation on 
income and opportunity for Black and Latino 
families, which are commonly concentrated in 
“at-risk, segregated communities characterized 
by older housing stock, slow growth and low 
tax bases – the resources that support public 
services and schools.”14   Households living 
in lower-income areas of racial and ethnic 
concentration face diminished opportunities in 
education, wealth acquisition and employment 
prospects.15 

To describe the variation in neighborhood 
opportunity across metropolitan regions, the 
Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race and 
Ethnicity at The Ohio State University has 
developed the “Communities of Opportunity” 
model, a fair housing and community 
development framework that assigns each 
neighborhood a score reflecting the degree 
to which its residents have access to 
determinants of positive life outcomes, such 
as good schools, jobs, stable housing, transit 
and the absence of crime and health hazards.  

14 Orfield, Myron. “Land Use and Housing Policies to Reduce Concentrated Poverty and Racial Segregation.” Fordham 
Urban Law Journal.  Volume 33, Issue 3, 2005.
15 Turner, Margery, et al. “Discrimination in Metropolitan Housing Markets: National Results from Phase I HDS 2000.  Urban 
Institute.  Online:  huduser.org/Publications/pdf/Phase1_Report.pdf
16 powell, john a., et al, “ The Geography of Opportunity in the Austin Region.” Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race and 
Ethnicity, The Ohio State University, 2006.  Includes extensive literature review.

The Institute draws upon an extensive 
research base demonstrating the importance 
of neighborhood conditions in predicting life 
outcomes.  The ultimate goals of this exercise 
in applied research are to bring opportunities 
to opportunity-deprived areas and to connect 
people to existing opportunities throughout 
the metropolitan region.  The Institute has 
argued that “we need to assess the geographic 
differences in resources and opportunities 
across a region to make informed, affirmative 
interventions into failures and gaps in ‘free 
market’ opportunities.”15    

The Communities of Opportunity model is 
highly spatial and is therefore map-based, 
representing the geographic footprint of 
inequality.  The process of creating opportunity 
maps involves building a set of potential 
indicators of high and low opportunity, 
reflecting local issues as well as research 
literature validating connections between 
indicators and opportunity.  Data is collected 
at the smallest geographic unit possible for 
each indicator and organized into sectors 
(education, mobility, etc.), which are then 
combined to create a composite opportunity 
map.  The resulting maps allow communities 
to analyze opportunity “comprehensively 
and comparatively, to communicate who has 
access to opportunity-rich areas and who 
does not; and to understand what needs to be 
remedied in opportunity-poor communities.” 

The Kirwan Institute applied this methodology 
to produce opportunity index distributions for 
the Greater Austin region.  Five dimensions 
were identified, consistent with research 
best practices and issues of local relevance: 
education, economic, mobility/transportation, 
health/environment and neighborhood 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



42

quality.  Each dimension includes a collection 
of variables describing conditions for each 
census tract in the region.  Details are included 
in Figure 3-18.

On the basis of the composite index, combining 
all identified dimensions, the study found 
that higher-opportunity areas were primarily 
concentrated west of I-35, with the most 
opportunity-rich areas in the entire region 
located directly west of the highway in Travis 
County.  

The report found that Hispanic and Black 
populations were concentrated in low- and 
moderate-opportunity neighborhoods.  Nearly 
40% of Whites were located in the region’s high- 
and very-high-opportunity tracts, compared 
to only 20% of Hispanics and 18% of Blacks.  
The report also found that more than half of 
linguistically isolated people were located in 
very-low- or low-opportunity tracts.

Figure 3-18
Opportunity Index Dimensions, 2012

Source: The Geography of Opportunity: Austin Region. Kirwan Institute.  Final report available for review at http://
www,greendoors.org/programs/docs/Geography-of-Opportunity-Austin-2013.pdf

The Central Texas Opportunity Initiative, 
headed by a steering committee representing 
organizations throughout Travis County, 
including County government, arranged for 
an update of the opportunity maps in Summer 
2012 that incorporated updated data and new 
points of comparison.  Map 3-8 incorporates a 
shapefile from the updated analysis, displaying 
the 2012 composite opportunity index for tracts 
across the Greater Austin region.  Lighter 
colors correspond with lower opportunity, while 
opportunity-rich areas are in dark green.

Education

• Adult Educational 
Attainment

• Student Poverty
• Student/Teacher 

Ratio
• School Reading 

Proficiency Rate
• School Math 

Proficiency Rate
• High School 

Graduation Rate
• Enrollment Rate

Economics & Mobility

• Unemployment Rate
• Jobs Within 5 Miles
• Mean Commute 

Time
• Transit Access
• Median Household 

Income

Housing & 
Environment 
Conditions

• Neighborhood 
Poverty Rate

• Vacancy Rate
• Proximity to Parks
• Proximity to Toxic 

Release Sites
• Proximity to 

Brownfields
• Crime Index
• Food Deserts
• Proximity to Health 

Care Facilities

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



43

map 3-8
Regional Composite Opportunity Index, August 2012

Source: Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race and Ethnicity,
The Ohio State Universtiy

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

I- 
35

W
 H

w
y 71

State Hwy 71

State H
w

y 130

S H
w

y 183

US Hwy 290St
at

e 
Lo

op
 1

US Hwy 183

S 
M

o-
P

ac
 E

xp
y

St
at

e 
Lo

op
 3

60

N 
La

m
ar

 B
lvd

St
at

e 
Sp

ur
 2

75

FM
 1

32
5

Lo
ck

ha
rt 

H
w

y

S Lamar B
lvd

Airport Blvd

State Hwy 45

FM 973

Hwy 71 E

W US Hwy 290

I-35

W Hwy 2
90

US Hwy 183

State Hwy 45

US
 H

wy
 2

90

I- 
35

US
 H

wy
 2

90

I- 
35

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

Major Roads

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! Impacted Block Groups

Composite Opportunity Score
Very Low

Low

Moderate

High

Very High

Urban County Exceptions

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Housing 
Inventory

Rapid population growth since 2000 is reflected 
in the large net gains of housing units in both 
Travis County’s incorporated areas (86,163 
units, or 29.9%) and unincorporated areas 
(19,196 units, or 40.1%).  A Comprehensive 
Housing Market Study for the City of Austin 
completed in early 2009 noted that growth 
on the City’s outskirts has been driven by the 
relative affordability of neighborhoods outside of 
City limits.  The median value of a single-family 
home in Austin rose from $129,900 in 1998 to 
$240,000 in 2008, despite complications on 
the national scale of the housing market crash 
that began in 2006.  The report noted that the 
supply of housing affordable to households 
making up to 80% of the HUD median family 
income, or up to $55,280, increased in the 
MSA’s southwest and northern portions, 
in addition to neighborhods in and beyond 
Austin’s eastern fringe.  At the same time, 
there has been a decrease in affordable units 
in all other areas of the City.

Map 3-9 depicts the density of total units by 
block group across Travis County in 2010.  
Impacted areas of both racial/ethnic and LMI 
concentration are also shown for comparison.

Figure 3-19
Total Housing Units by Municipality, 2000-2010

The Urban County gained 
more than 19,000 housing 
units between 2000 
and 2010, an inventory 
increase exceeding 40% 
in only 10 years.

Municipality 2000 2010 Change
Austin city* 271,464 337,930 24.5%
Bee Cave village 246 1,707 593.9%
Briarcliff village 455 717 57.6%
Cedar Park city 248 228 -8.1%
Creedmoor city 89 86 -3.4%
Elgin city 8 305 3712.5%
Jonestown city 770 1,113 44.5%
Lago Vista city 2,155 3,258 51.2%
Lakeway city 3,501 5,249 49.9%
Leander city 0 374 -
Manor city 436 1,645 277.3%
Mustang Ridge city 133 145 9.0%
Pflugerville city 5,239 16,323 211.6%
Point Venture village - 626 -
Rollingwood city 498 516 3.6%
Round Rock city 573 642 12.0%
San Leanna village 153 212 38.6%
Sunset Valley city 154 324 110.4%
The Hills village 657 1,027 56.3%
Volente village - 296 -
Webberville village** - 125 -
West Lake Hills city 1,185 1,279 7.9%
Total Incorporated 287,964 374,127 29.9%

Total Unincorporated 47,917 67,113 40.1%

Total Travis County 335,881 441,240 31.4%

Note:  Population figures account for only the portions of 
each place that fall within Travis County.

* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program

Source:  Census SF1 H1: 2000, 2010

44

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

!

!
! 1 Dot = 10

! UNITS10

ImpactedBG

Urban County Exceptions

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere 45

map 3-9
Total Housing Unit Density by Block Group, 2010

Impacted Block Groups

Incorporated Places

1 dot = 10 Units

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Multi-family housing 
structures are less common 
in unincorporated areas, 
where they represent 15.4% 
of the housing stock.  By 
contrast, 44.8% of stock in 
cities and towns is multi-
family.

Figure 3-20
Housing Units by Structure Type Across Municipalities, 2010

In 2010, single-family units comprised 72.3% 
of the housing stock in unincorporated areas 
of Travis County, compared to only 53.5% 
in incorporated areas.  This is driven by 
the prevalence of higher-density residential 
structures in Austin, where about half of all 
homes are in two- or more-unit structures.  

Mobile homes are of notable presence in the 
Urban County, as there were 7,798 located 
outside of incorporated spaces in 2010.  AI 
interviews indicated that this is a common 
avenue of homeownership for lower-income 
households, particularly Hispanic families, 
though some mobile homes are located 
outside of areas with reliable water and sewer 
infrastructure and may represent substandard 
living conditions.

46

Austin city* 329,725 166,564 30,578 21,390 43,258 62,787 158,013 4,905 243
Bee Cave village 1,436 881 49 29 118 335 531 24 0
Briarcliff village 682 641 2 13 4 19 38 0 3
Cedar Park city 284 37 45 21 81 100 247 0 0
Creedmoor city 113 66 0 0 0 0 0 47 0
Elgin city 295 285 10 0 0 0 10 0 0
Jonestown city 1,013 870 16 0 0 0 16 127 0
Lago Vista city 2,922 2,167 255 136 52 157 600 155 0
Lakeway city 5,082 4,332 563 0 72 115 750 0 0
Leander city 258 258 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Manor city 1,654 1,576 0 0 0 15 15 63 0
Mustang Ridge city 183 172 0 0 0 0 0 11 0
Pflugerville city 14,811 12,599 603 293 387 368 1,651 561 0
Point Venture village 627 589 0 38 0 0 38 0 0
Rollingwood city 602 602 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Round Rock city 825 142 74 155 275 159 663 20 0
San Leanna village 246 235 11 0 0 0 11 0 0
Sunset Valley city 236 155 3 0 55 23 81 0 0
The Hills village 1,033 973 39 21 0 0 60 0 0
Volente village 307 301 2 0 0 0 2 4 0
Webberville village** 109 65 0 0 0 0 0 44 0
West Lake Hills city 1,269 1,146 123 0 0 0 123 0 0

Total Incorporated Areas 363,712 194,656 32,373 22,096 44,302 64,078 162,849 5,961 246

Total Unincorporated Areas 63,879 46,175 1,792 1,618 2,726 3,692 9,828 7,798 78

Total Travis County 427,591 240,831 34,165 23,714 47,028 67,770 172,677 13,759 324
* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-2010 ACS (B25024)

Municipality

Total 
Units

Single-
family 
units

2 to 4 5 to 9 10 to 19 20 or 
more

Total
Boat, RV, 
van, etc.

Multi-family units Mobile 
home

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



47

In 2010, the Census Bureau estimated that 
the occupied housing inventory of 58,586 
across unincorporated areas of Travis County 
was 74.9% owner-occupied, compared to the 
52.6% rate across the County overall.  

To isolate apartment units from condominium 
units that are owner-occupied and located 
within multi-family structures, Figure 3-20 
examines the tenure of units by structure type.  
Of the total owner-occupied housing stock of 
43,878 in unincorporated areas, 8,887 units 
(20.3%) were in multi-family structures.  By 
comparison, there were many more multi-
family units within the rental stock.  Of the 
14,708 rental units in unincorporated areas, 
13,215 (89.8%) were in multi-family structures.  
Multi-family rental units are, unsurprisingly, 
concentrated in incorporated areas of more 
dense urban character.

Owner-occupied units in 
multi-family buildings, 
such as condominiums, 
account for 20.3% of 
the multi-family stock 
in unincorporated areas, 
compared to only 5.6% 
of multi-family housing in 
Austin.

The right-most column of Figure 3-21 
represents the proportion of each community’s 
total occupied housing that consists of renter-
occupied multi-family units.  In many towns 
and cities, particularly smaller settlements or 
those for which only a portion of Travis County 
space is analyzed here, multi-family units 
represent 0% of the total occupied housing 
stock.

Figure 3-21
Housing Units by Tenure and Structure Type, 2010

Austin city* 137,912 127,125 7,741 5.6% 163,964 31,279 118,383 72.2% 39.2%
Bee Cave village 772 748 0 0.0% 537 38 465 86.6% 35.5%
Briarcliff village 492 481 8 1.6% 37 35 2 5.4% 0.4%
Cedar Park city 37 37 0 0.0% 214 0 214 100.0% 85.3%
Creedmoor city 61 30 0 0.0% 44 28 0 0.0% 0.0%
Elgin city 141 131 10 7.1% 154 154 0 0.0% 0.0%
Jonestown city 641 548 0 0.0% 212 173 0 0.0% 0.0%
Lago Vista city 2,068 1,840 103 5.0% 282 180 58 20.6% 2.5%
Lakeway city 3,586 3,444 142 4.0% 817 297 206 25.2% 4.7%
Leander city 258 258 0 0.0% 0 0 0 - 0.0%
Manor city 1,247 1,188 0 0.0% 231 212 15 6.5% 1.0%
Mustang Ridge city 110 106 0 0.0% 12 7 0 0.0% 0.0%
Pflugerville city 10,870 10,544 0 0.0% 3,096 1,649 1,030 33.3% 7.4%
Point Venture village 335 312 23 6.9% 100 100 0 0.0% 0.0%
Rollingwood city 537 537 0 0.0% 28 28 0 0.0% 0.0%
Round Rock city 108 108 0 0.0% 553 34 485 87.7% 73.4%
San Leanna village 192 192 0 0.0% 41 30 11 26.8% 4.7%
Sunset Valley city 151 151 0 0.0% 30 4 26 86.7% 14.4%
The Hills village 818 818 0 0.0% 85 85 0 0.0% 0.0%
Volente village 187 187 0 0.0% 70 64 0 0.0% 0.0%
Webberville village** 96 53 0 0.0% 3 2 0 0.0% 0.0%
West Lake Hills city 1,006 1,006 0 0.0% 141 67 48 34.0% 4.2%

Total Incorporated Areas 161,625 149,844 8,027 5.0% 170,651 34,466 133,393 78.2% 40.1%

Total Unincorporated Areas 43,878 38,745 8,887 20.3% 14,708 4,285 13,215 89.8% 22.6%

Total Travis County 205,503 188,589 16,914 8.2% 185,359 38,751 146,608 79.1% 37.5%

Municipality

Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied

Total
Single-
Family

Multi-
Family

% Multi-
Family

Total
Single-
Family

Multi-
Family

* Federal CDBG entitlement community
** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-10 ACS (B25032)

% Multi-
Family

% Renter-
Occupied 

Multi-Family

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!
!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!!
!

!
!!

!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!!!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!!!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!!!

!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!
!!!

!

!

!

!!!!
!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!!!
!
!

!!
!

!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!!!!
!!
!
!
!

!!!
!

!
!
!

!
!!!!

!!
!
!
!
!!
!
!
!!

!
!!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!!!!

!
!
!
!!!
!

!!!!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!!!
!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!!
!
!

!!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!!

!!
!
!
!!
!!!
!

!!
!
!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!!!
!
!
!
!

!!
!!!
!!

!!!!

!

!

!!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!!

!

!
!!!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!!

!!

!
!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!
!!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!!!

!!!!

!
!
!
!!!

!!!!!!!!!
!!!
!

!

!!

!
!
!!
!!
!
!!!!
!

!
!
!!!
!!
!
!

!
!

!
!!!!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!!

!!
!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!!

!!
!
!!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!

!!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!
!

!
!

!
!!!
!
!!!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!!
!!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!
!!
!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!!!

!
!!

!!
!!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!!!!!!
!!!
!
!
!

!

!!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!!
!

!
!!!

!

!
!!
!!
!!!!

!

!
!
!
!!
!!!
!
!
!
!!!!!!!

!!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!!!
!

!!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!
!

!
!!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!
!!
!!!!!

!
!
!!

!
!
!
!!!!!!
!
!!
!

!!

!
!
!!
!!
!!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!!!

!

!!
!
!!!

!!
!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!!
!
!
!

!
!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!
!

!!
!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!!!!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
! !
!

!!!!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!!
!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!!
!!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!!

!!
!!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!

!
!!
!

!!
!
!!
!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!
!!!

!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!!!!!

!!
!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!!
!!!

!
!!
!
!!

!
!!
!
!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!!!

!!
!
!!

!!!!!!
!
!
!
!!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!!
!!!
!

!!

!!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!
!
!!
!
!
!

!!
!!
!
!!!
!!!

!!
!
!!

!
!!!!
!!!!

!!!!
!!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!!!!!
!
!!
!
!
!

!
!!
!
!
!!
!
!
!!!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!
!!!
!
!!!

!!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!
!!

!
!

!

!!
!

!!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!!

!
!!
!!

!

!
!

!!!
!
!
!
!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!
!!!!
!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!!!!!!!

!!!!
!
!
!!!!!!
!
!
!
!!
!

!!
!
!

!!!

!

!!
!!
!!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!
!

!!
!
!
!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!!!!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!!

!
!
!!!

!
!!!

!
!

!

!!!!!

!
!

!
!
!
!!
!
!!
!!
!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!!
!!!
!
!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!!
!!!!

!

!

!
!!!!!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!
!
!!!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!!!
!!!
!!
!!!!

!!
!
!!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

! !
!!! !

!!!
!
!
!

!
!
!!
!!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

! !!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!!
!

!!
!

!
!!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!!
!
!!!!
!
!
!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!!
!

!

!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!!

!
!!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!
!!
!
!!!!

!
!

!!!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!
!!!

!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!
!!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!!
!!!

!!
!!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!
!!
!
!

!!
!
!
!!!!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!!

!!
!
!
!!
!!!
!
!

!!!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!!
!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!
!

!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!
!!!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!!!
!
!

!!
!!!
!!

!

!

!!!

!!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!!

!
!
!
!
!!
!

!
!!!!!
!

!
!!!
!

!
!
!
!

!!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!!

!!

!

!!

!!
!

!
!
!

!

!!
!

!
!
!
!!
!!
!!

!
!!!!
!!
!
!
!
!!
!!
!!
!
!
!!

!

!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!
!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!!!
!
!!!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!
!!!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!
!

!
!
!
!!
!!
!
!!
!!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!!!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!

!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!
!!
!!!!
!!

!

!
!
!
!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!
!!
!!
!
!
!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!!!!!!

!
!!
!!
!

!

!
!
!
!!
!

!
!

!
!!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!

!!!

!
!!
!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!
!
!!!!

!!!
!
!

!
!
!
!!!!

!!
!
!
!!

!
!
!
!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!!

!
!
!!!!
!!!!!!!!
!!!!
!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!
!!
!
!!
!
!
!!!

!
!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!!!!

!
!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!!
!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!!!

!!
!
!

!!
!!!
!!
!

!!
!!!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!!!
!!!
!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!
!!

!!
!!!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!
!
!
!!

!!!
!!!!
!

!!
!
!
!!
!
!!
!
!

!

!
!!

!!!
!

!
!

!!!

!!
!

!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!!

!!!!

!!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!!!!
!!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!!
!
!!!!

!
!!

!
!

!!
!

!
!
!
!!!!!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!
!
!
!
!!!

!!!

!
!
!

!!

!

!!!!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!!
!
!

!
!
!!

!!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!!!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!
!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!
!!!!!!

!!
!
!

!
!!!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!
!!!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!!
!!!!!!!
!

!!
!!!!!

!!!!!!
!!
!!
!

!
!!
!

!!
!
!
!!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!
!!
!!
!!

!!!

!

!

!!!
!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!!!
!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!!!!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!
!!

!

!
!!!

!!
!
!!
!

!

!
!!
!

!!
!!
!

!
!
!
!!!!!
!!

!!!
!!
!!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!!

!!!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!!
!
!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!!!
!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

!!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
! !!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!
!

!!!!
!
!
!!!
!
!
!!!

!

!!
!!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!!

!

!
!!!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!
!
!!
!
!

!!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!!
!!
!
!!
!!!
!
!

!
!!
!

!!!
!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!
!!
!
!

!
!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!!

!
!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!!!

!!
!!!!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!!

!

!!!!
!
!
!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!
!!!!!
!
!
!!

!! !
!!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!!

!!
!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!!

!!
!!
!
!!

!!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!!!

!! !
!!!
!
!!
!

!

!!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!
!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!!
!
!

!
!!
!!
!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!!

!!

!
!!
!

!

!
!!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!
!!

!!

!
!!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!
!
!
!

! !
!!!

!

!!!
! !

!
!
!

!

!

! !

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!!!
!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!!!
!

!!!

!

!
!
!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!!

!!!!!

!
!

!
!!
!
!

!

!!
!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!
!
!
!!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!!!
!!

!!

!
!
!
!

!

!!

!
!!

!!

!!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!
!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!
!!

!!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!!

!! !
!
!
!
!!

!
!

!
!
!!!!
!
!!!
!!

!!!!!!!!
!
!!
!!

!
!!!
!!!

!!
!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

! !

!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!!
!!!!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!!
!!

!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!
!!
!!

!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

!
!
!
!
!!
!!

!
!!!
!!!
!
!
!!
!!
!
!!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!!!!
!!
!
!!!!
!!!!!
!
!
!

!!
!
!!
!!!!!!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!!
!
!!!
!
!
!
!!!
!

!!
!
!
!!
!
!
!!

!

!!!!!!
!!!
!!
!!!!

!

!!
!

!
!
!!!!
!!
!
!
!

!!!!!!!
!!
!
!!
!
!!!
!
!
!!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!
!

!
!
!!

!
!!
!

!
!!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!
!

!
!
!!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!

!!
!
!!
!

!!

!!
!!!

!

!!

!!!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!!!
!
!!!

!

!

!

!!
!!!
!

!

!!
!!!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!
!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!!!

!!

!!
!!!
!!!
!
!!
!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!!
!!
!
!!!!!!!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!!

!!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!
!
!

!!

!!

!
!!!
!

!

!!

!
!
!!!
!

!

!!!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!!
!

!
!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!!
!!
!
!

!
!
!!
!

!
!!!
!
!!

!!

!
!!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!!
!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!
!!!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!!!

!!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!

!!
!
!

!!!!
!
!!!
!

!!

!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!
!!!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!!!
!

!!

!

!!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!
!!!
!
!
!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!!
!
!

!!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!!
!
!!
!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!
!
!
!!!
!

!!
!

!
!

!!

!!

!!

!
!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!!!!
!
!
!
!!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!

!

!!
!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!!

!!
!

!
!
!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!!!!
!

!
!

!!!
!
!

!
!

!!!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!
!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!!

!

!
!
!

!!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!!
!

!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!! !!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

! !

!

!!
!!!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!

!

!
!!!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!
!!

!

!

!!!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!
!!
!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!
!!!
!!!!
!!!!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

! !!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!!!!
!!!
!

!

!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!!
!
!
!!!

!

!!!

!

!!!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!
!
!
!

!!!!!

!

!!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!!!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!!
!!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!!
!!!
!!!
!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!!!

!!!!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!
!!!!!!!!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!!
!
!
!

!!

!
!!
!!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!!

!
!

!

!

!!!!!

!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!!!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!!

!

!
!
!!!!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!!!!

!

!
!!!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!
!!
!
!
!

!!
!
!
!
!

!!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!
!!
!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

! !

!
! !

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!
!
!
!
!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!!
!!

!

!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!!
!

!!
!
!
!!

!

!
!

!!
!!!!
!
!!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!!!!!!!
!!!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!

!

!!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!!
!
!
!!

!
!!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!!
!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!
!!
!

!!
!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!!
! !

!!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!
!
!
!!
!!!

!
!!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

ImpactedBG

Urban County Exceptions
!

!
!

! 1 Dot = 10
! Multifamily Rental

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 3-11
Distribution of Renter-Occupied 
Multi-Family Units, 2010

Impacted Block Groups

Incorporated Places

Multi-family Rental
Units

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



49

Home Ownership and 
Protected Class Status

The value in home ownership lies in the 
accumulation of wealth as the owner’s share 
of equity increases with the property’s value.  
Paying a monthly mortgage instead of rent 
is an investment in an asset that is likely to 
appreciate.

Historically, minorities tend to have lower home 
ownership rates than Whites.  In 2010 in Travis 
County, Whites had a home ownership rate of 
57.4%.  By comparison, Asians owned their 
homes at a rate of 47.9%; Hispanics at 40.6% 
and Blacks at a rate of 38.1%.  

Ownership was higher across all racial and 
ethnic groups in unincorporated areas of the 
County, where about eight in every 10 White or 
Asian households were homeowners.  Outside 

Figure 3-22
Housing Tenure by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

HHs % Owners HHs % Owners HHs % Owners HHs % Owners

Austin city* 215,565 50.7% 25,712 32.8% 16,666 39.0% 80,145 34.7%
Bee Cave village 1,234 59.6% 33 21.2% 24 45.8% 124 33.1%
Briarcliff village 495 95.4% 0 - 19 100.0% 32 56.3%
Cedar Park city 161 19.3% 57 0.0% 18 33.3% 15 0.0%
Creedmoor city 80 68.8% 0 - 0 - 39 35.9%
Elgin city 208 62.5% 87 12.6% 0 - 13 100.0%
Jonestown city 740 78.8% 31 0.0% 0 - 867 92.5%
Lago Vista city 2,231 87.4% 66 100.0% 0 - 181 72.4%
Lakeway city 4,169 82.4% 16 100.0% 118 100.0% 90 73.3%
Leander city 232 100.0% 0 - 26 100.0% 102 100.0%
Manor city 795 87.8% 465 74.8% 24 100.0% 272 66.9%
Mustang Ridge city 61 91.8% 5 100.0% 3 100.0% 0 0.0%
Pflugerville city 9,463 80.6% 1,974 63.5% 1,072 84.0% 477 86.6%
Point Venture village 419 76.1% 0 - 16 100.0% 47 85.1%
Rollingwood city 533 94.7% 0 - 18 100.0% 3,213 72.7%
Round Rock city 498 21.7% 10 0.0% 54 0.0% 19 100.0%
San Leanna village 212 80.7% 5 100.0% 0 - 12 100.0%
Sunset Valley city 148 79.7% 0 - 17 100.0% 81 0.0%
The Hills village 863 91.1% 0 - 27 100.0% 38 100.0%
Volente village 254 72.4% 0 - 0 - 22 100.0%
Webberville village** 76 96.1% 6 100.0% 0 - 47 68.1%
West Lake Hills city 1,097 87.1% 0 - 9 100.0% 5 100.0%

Total Incorporated Areas 239,534 53.7% 28,467 35.7% 18,111 42.5% 85,841 67.4%

Total Unincorporated Areas 43,637 78.0% 4,986 51.8% 3,021 80.5% 11,125 64.9%

Total Travis County 283,171 57.4% 33,453 38.1% 21,132 47.9% 96,966 40.6%

** Participates in Urban County program
Note:  Figures account for only the portions of each place that fall within Travis County.
Source: 2006-10 American Community Survey (B25003A, B25003B, B25003D, B25003I)

Municipality

White Black Asian Hispanic

* Federal CDBG entitlement community

of city and village borders, two-thirds of Hispanic 
households and 51.8% of Black households 
owned homes.

As previously noted, the median income for 
Black and Hispanic households in Travis County 
is drastically lower than the median for Whites.  
This is one among several factors that contribute 
to the generally lower rates of home ownership 
among minority families.

Black and Hispanic 
households are less likely 
to own homes than White 
and Asian households 
across Travis County and 
in unincorporated areas.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Larger families may be at risk for housing 
discrimination on the basis of race and the 
presence of children (familial status).  A larger 
household, whether or not children are present, 
can raise fair housing concerns.  If there are 
policies or programs that restrict the number 
of persons that can live together in a single 
housing unit, and members of the protected 
classes need more bedrooms to accommodate 
their larger household, there is a fair housing 
concern because the restriction on the size of 
the unit will have a negative impact on members 
of the protected classes.  Such policies do not 
exist in Travis County at the County level, but 
can potentially exist in municipal ordinances.

In the Urban County, minorities were more 
likely than Whites to live in households with 
three or more people.  In 2010, 45.2% of White 

To adequately house larger families, a sufficient 
supply of larger dwelling units consisting of 
three or more bedrooms is necessary.  In the 
Urban County, there are fewer options to rent 
a unit to accommodate large families. Of the 
14,711 rental units in 2010, only 41.5% had 
three or more bedrooms, compared to 90.7% 
of the owner housing stock.

Figure 3-23
Housing Tenure by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

households had three or more people.  By 
comparison, 49% of Black households, 64.7% 
of Asian households and 67% of Hispanic 
households were considered to be large. 

Figure 3-24
Housing Tenure by Race and Ethnicity, 2010

Only one-fifth of rental 
units in the County have 
three or more bedrooms, 
compared to more than 
nearly four-fifths of owner 
units.

White 33.6% 45.2%
Black 39.8% 49.0%
Asian 46.3% 64.7%
Hispanic 56.8% 67.0%
Total 37.6% 50.8%

Percent of Families with 
Three or More Persons

Travis County Urban  County*

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of 

Source: Census 2010 (SF1, P28)

Note:  Sample size for other racial groups was not sufficiently 
large for reliable analysis.

 Includes all unincorporated space and the village of 
Webberville.

Urban County*
0-1 bedroom 4,562 31.0% 628 1.4%
2 bedrooms 4,046 27.5% 3,465 7.9%
3 or more bedrooms 6,103 41.5% 39,881 90.7%

Total    14,711 100.0% 43,974 100.0%
* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.
Source: 2006-10 American Community Survey (B25042)

Renter-Occupied 
Housing Stock

Owner-Occupied 
Housing Stock

# units % of all units # units % of all units

50

Household Size and
Protected Class Status

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Between 1990 and 2010, 
real median housing 
value soared 55.2% in 
Travis County, while real 
household income rose 
only 17.7%.

51

Housing Costs

Increasing housing costs are not a direct form 
of housing discrimination.  However, a lack 
of affordable housing does constrain housing 
choice.  Residents may be limited to a smaller 
selection of neighborhoods because of a lack 
of affordable housing in those areas.

Between 1990 and 2010, median housing value 
(adjusted for inflation to 2010 dollars using BLS 
indices) increased an incredible 55.2% across 
Travis County, while real median income rose 
only 17.7% in real dollars.  Median gross rent 
increased a comparable 52.8% during the 
same years.  The steep increase in median 
housing value paired with a modest rise in real 
income means that buying a house is relatively 
more expensive for individuals and families.   

The number of affordable rental units in the 
Urban County declined between 2000 and 
2010. The number of units renting for less than 
$500 fell by more than half (55.6%).  During 
the same time, the number of units renting 
for more than $1,000 per month increased 
from 2,403 to 6,666, or 177%.  The data does 
not provide a distinction between units that 
were actually lost from the inventory (through 
demolition, etc.) and those for which rents were 
increased.  This figure should be analyzed with 
an understanding that $500 was worth more in 
2000 than in 2010, due to inflation.  This figure, 
due to the categorical nature of the variable, 
cannot be adjusted for inflation.

Figure 3-25
Changes in Housing Value, Rent and Income, 2000 to 2010

Median Housing 
Value (in 2010 $)

Median Gross Rent 
(in 2010 $)

Median Household 
Income (in 2010 $)

1990 $129,074 $583 $45,961
2000 $164,311 $811 $59,418
2010 $200,300 $891 $54,074

Change 55.2% 52.8% 17.7%
Sources:  U.S. Census Bureau, 1990 Census (STF3-H061A, H043A, P080A), 
Census 2000 (SF3-H76, H63, P53), 2006-10 American Community Survey (B25077, 
B25064, B19013); Calculations by Mullin & Lonergan Associates, Inc. 

Figure 3-26
Loss of Affordable Rental Housing Units, 2000 to 2010

# %

Less than $500 756 336 -420 -55.6%
$500 to $699 2,445 1,832 -613 -25.1%
$700 to $999 3,520 5,465 1,945 55.3%
$1,000 or more 2,403 6,666 4,263 177.4%

Sources: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000 (SF3, H062), 2006-10 
American Community Survey (B25063)

* Includes all unincorporated space and the village of Webberville.

Units Renting for:
2000 2010

Change

Urban County*

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Impacted Block Groups

Median Gross Rent
Less than $500

$500 to $700

$700 to $900

$900 to $1,000

More than $1,000

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 3-12
Median Gross Rent
by Census Tract, 2010

Source:  2010 Census SF-1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



The Urban County lost 
half its units renting for 
less than $500 between 
2000 and 2010, while the 
number of units renting 
for more than $1,000 
more than doubled.

53

The National Low Income Housing Coalition 
provides annual information on the Fair Market 
Rent (FMR) and affordability of rental housing in 
counties and cities in the U.S. for 2012.  In Travis 
County, the FMR for a two-bedroom apartment 
is $989. In order to afford this level of rent and 
utilities without paying more than 30% of income on 
housing, a household must earn $3,297 monthly or 
$39,560 annually.  Assuming a 40-hour work week, 
52 weeks per year, this level of income translates 
into a Housing Wage of $19.

In Travis County, a minimum-wage worker earns 
an hourly wage of $7.25. In order to afford the FMR 
for a two-bedroom apartment, a minimum-wage 
earner must work 105 hours per week, 52 weeks 
per year.  The NLIHC estimates that 53% of Travis 
County renters are currently unable to afford the 
two-bedroom FMR.

Monthly Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 
payments for an individual are $698 in Travis 
County and across Texas. If SSI represents an 
individual’s sole source of income, $209 in monthly 
rent is affordable, while the local FMR for a one-
bedroom is $812.

Minimum-wage, single-
income households and 
those depending on SSI 
payments cannot afford an 
apartment renting at the 
fair market rate in Travis 
County.

Map 3-12 displays median gross rent rates by 
census tract across the County, illustrating the 
extent to which lower-cost apartments are confined 
to particular neighborhoods. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



One method used to determine the inherent 
affordability of a housing market is to calculate 
the percentage of homes that could be purchased 
by households at the median income level.  It is 
possible also to determine the affordability of the 
housing market for each racial or ethnic group in 
the County. To determine affordability (i.e., how 
much mortgage a household could afford), the 
following assumptions were made:

• The mortgage was a 30-year fixed rate   
 loan at a 4.0% interest rate, 
• The buyer made a 10% down payment on  
 the sales price,
• Principal, interest, taxes and insurance   
 (PITI) combined with other consumer debt  
 equaled no more than 35% of gross   
 monthly income, a threshold of financial   
 health commonly used by banks, 
• Property taxes were levied at a combined 
 median tax rate of 3%, and
• Additional consumer debt    
 (credit cards, car payment, etc.) averaged  
 $500.

Figure 3-2 details the estimated maximum 
affordable sales prices and monthly PITI payments 
for Whites, Blacks, Asians and Hispanics in Travis 
County (the sample size for income estimates in 
incorporated areas was too unreliably small for 
subtraction).  

In the Austin real estate market, the 2010 median 
sales price for single-family homes was $175,300.  
The Countywide median household income in 
2010 was $54,074, which translates to a maximum 
affordable home purchase price of $166,500.  The 
fact that the median income in Travis County would 
allow a household to afford less than half of homes 
on the market suggests that the County is an 
inherently unaffordable market.  
  
The maximum affordable home purchase prices for 
Whites and Asians was substantially higher than 
the affordable home prices for Black and Hispanic 
homebuyers.  The maximum affordable purchase 
price at the median household income for Blacks 
was 45.4% of the median sales price and only 
47.7% of the maximum affordable purchase price 
for the County overall.  

Figure 3-27
Maximum Affordable Purchase Price by Race/Ethnicity, 2010

The housing market in Travis 
County is widely considered to 
be increasingly unaffordable.  
Generally speaking, it is the 
most unaffordable to  Black 
and Hispanic households as a 
function of the lower median 
household incomes among 
these groups.

54

Mortgage
Principal & 

Interest
Real Estate 

Taxes

Homeowner's
Insurance & 

PMI
Total Debt 
Service*

Travis County $54,074 $715 $278 $80 $1,573 $166,500
Whites $60,809 $859 $333 $80 $1,773 $200,000
Blacks $36,227 $342 $133 $80 $1,054 $79,500
Asians $59,690 $836 $324 $80 $1,740 $194,500
Hispanics $40,948 $443 $172 $80 $1,194 $103,000

Sources: 2006-10 American Community Survey  (B19013, B19013A, B19013B); the Real Estate Center at Texas A&M 
University; Calculations by Mullin & Lonergan Associates, Inc.

Median
Household

Income

Monthly Mortgage Payment
Maximum
Affordable

Purchase Price

2010 Median Sales Price for Single-Family Home in Austin MLS: $175,300
* Includes PITI and $500 in assumed average monthly consumer debt service

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Foreclosure

In recent years, soaring foreclosure rates 
across the country have threatened the viability 
of neighborhoods and the ability of families to 
maintain housing.  While a growing population and 
job growth in the greater Austin area prevented 
Travis County from experiencing the relatively 
devastating concentration of foreclosure activity 
occurring in some other regions, the number of 
foreclosure filings has increased substantially since 
2007, according to the County’s latest Annual Plan.  
The private financing section of the AI includes 
more details on the lending environment, analysis 
of which indicates that minority households tend to 
receive a greater share of loans with higher interest 
rates, which are typically associated with a higher 
foreclosure risk.

Aside from its most direct consequences of 
displacing families and depleting the local tax base, 
concentrated foreclosure results in neighborhood 
deterioration.  As many properties remain in the 
control of financial institutions for longer periods 
of time, structures are abandoned and streets 
become blighted, devaluing nearby property and 
contributing to nuisance activity.  

These problems present an opportunity to 
incorporate fair housing incentives and affirmative 
marketing conditions in the disposition of property.   
While policy emphasis is often placed on the 
immediate problem of getting abandoned property 
efficiently back into an owner’s hands and onto the 
tax rolls, the volume of foreclosure vacancies and 
the extent to which they disproportionately affect 
racially/ethnically concentrated areas of poverty 
calls for attention to fair housing considerations in 
their disposition.

Map 3-13 displays the location of residential 
properties listed for auction in 2010 and 2011.  Most 
of the listings (3,939 in 2010 and 3,387 in 2011) 
are for single-family homes, though other owner-
occupied home types such as condominiums, 
duplexes, mobile homes and townhomes are 
illustrated with markers of varying colors.  

At the scale required for Map 3-13 to fit into the 
AI document, the map does not display one dot 
per auction record.  However, zooming in to 
particular areas of the map reveals neighborhood-
level patterns, such as heavy concentrations on 
particular street blocks.  Map insets appear as 
Figure 3-28.

While 15.2% of all housing units in Travis County 
were located in unincorporated areas in 2010, 
27.7% of foreclosure auction listings from 2010 
and 2011 were for homes in unincorporated areas.  
Therefore, while the raw number of foreclosures 
occurring in the Urban County is far lower than 
in Austin, foreclosure occurs with greater relative 
frequency in the Urban County.

With regard to other patterns, mobile home 
foreclosures are more common in unincorporated 
areas, though this is also a reflection of the 
distribution of housing by structure type across the 
County.  As mentioned previously in the Housing 
Inventory section, multi-family properties are 
concentrated in Austin, while mobile homes are 
located primarily outside of the city.  Similarly, 
condominium foreclosures tend to be located in 
Austin.

The data analyzed in this section was reported 
by Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc., a proprietary 
source that publishes data on the number of 
properties posted for auction.  This indicates pre-
foreclosure status and a risk for foreclosure, though 
not all postings result in an actual foreclosure.  
Because a property may be listed for foreclosure 
more than once, it is possible that the totals reflect 
any homes that were listed in both 2010 and 
2011, though duplicates within a single year were 
removed from the data.

55

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



map 3-13
Foreclosure Listings by Address and
Structure Type, 2010 and 2011

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!
!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!!!

!

!!

!!!!
!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!
!!

!!

!!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

! !!!

!

!!!!

!!

!

!!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

! !

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!
!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!!!!
!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

! !!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!!

!!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!!
!
!!!

!!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!!

!
! !

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!!

!

!

! !

!

!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!! !

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
! !!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

! !!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!! !

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!!!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

! Single-Family Residential
! Condominium
! Duplex
! Mobile Home
! Townhouse

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Inset 1

Inset 2

Source:  Foreclosure Listing Service, Inc.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



In 2010 and 2011, 27.7% 
of the County’s foreclosure 
auction listings were in 
unincorporated areas, 
compared to only 15.2% of 
all housing units.

Figure 3-28
Insets, 2010-2011 Foreclosure Auction Filings

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!!

!

!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!

!!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !
!
!

! !
!

!!

!!

! !!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!!
!
!!
!
!
!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!
!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!!

!
!!!

!
!

!
!!

!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! !!
!!

!

!!!!
!!
!
!

!!
!
!

!

!

!!
!

!
!!

!

!
!!

!

!!!
!!

!

!!!
!!

!

!
!

!!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!
!
!

!
!!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!!

!

!!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!!!

! !!!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!!!
!!!
!!
!!

!!!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!

9

Inset 1: Hornsby Bend

57

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!! !

!!

!!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

! !!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

! !!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!
!

!

!!

!

!!! !

!!

!!

!!

! !

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!!
! !!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

! !

! !!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

10

14

13

1

1

21

13

28

Inset 2: Hudson Bend

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



58

4 records of 
housing 
discrimination

Existence of Fair 
Housing Complaints

This section analyzes the existence of fair 
housing complaints or compliance reviews 
where a charge of a finding of discrimination 
has been made.  Additionally, this section 
will review the existence of any fair housing 
discrimination suits filed by the United States 
Department of Justice or private plaintiffs 
in addition to the identification of other fair 
housing concerns or problems.

Citizens of Travis County can receive fair 
housing services from a variety of organizations, 
including but not limited to the Texas Workforce 
Commission Civil Rights Division and the 
Austin Tenants’ Council.  These groups provide 
education and outreach, sponsor community 
events, process fair housing complaints, and 
in some cases investigate complaints through 
testing, and/or work to promote a mutual 
understanding of diversity among residents.  

A lack of filed complaints does not necessarily 
indicate a lack of a problem.  Some persons 
may not file complaints because they are not 
aware of how to file a complaint or where to go 
to file a complaint.  Discriminatory practices can 
be subtle and may not be detected by someone 
who does not have the benefit of comparing 
his treatment with that of another home seeker. 

Other times, persons may be aware that they 
are being discriminated against, but they may 
not be aware that the discrimination is against 
the law and that there are legal remedies to 
address the discrimination.  Also, households 
may be more interested in achieving their first 
priority of finding decent housing and may 
prefer to avoid going through the process of 
filing a complaint and following through with it.  
According to the Urban Institute, 83% of those 
who experience housing discrimination do not 
report it because they feel nothing will be done.  
Therefore, education, information, and referral 
regarding fair housing issues remain critical 
to equip persons with the ability to reduce 
impediments.

a. u.s. department of housing      
      and urban development

The Office of Fair Housing and Equal 
Opportunity (FHEO) at HUD receives 
complaints from persons regarding alleged 
violations of the federal Fair Housing Act.  
Fair housing complaints originating in 
Travis County were obtained and analyzed 
for the five-and-a-half year period of 
January 2007 through June 2012.  In total, 
HUD reported receipt of 649 complaints 
originating in Travis County during this 
period, an average of approximately 
118 per year.  However, all but 39 of the 
complaints originated in Austin, which 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Of the 23 housing 
discrimination complaints 
filed with HUD since 2007 
related to cases outside of 
Austin, six alleged disability-
related discrimination at a 
single property in Pflugerville.

59

is beyond the geographic scope of this 
AI.   Focusing the review of complaints on 
those occurring outside of the city allows 
for the more precise identification of trends 
that the Urban County has the jurisdiction 
to address.  Outside of Austin, 39 housing 
complaints were filed during the last five 
years, an average of about seven annually.  
This is on par with the neighboring Urban 
County of Williamson County, which also 
averages seven complaints per year in 
CDBG-eligible areas.

A note on methodology is worth mention 
here.  Each HUD field office maintains a 
slightly different method of record keeping.  
Complaint data reported by the San 
Antonio field office includes a separate 
complaint record for each issue: Therefore, 
a case dealing with both alleged failure to 
make a reasonable accommodation and 
discriminatory terms would be counted as 
two cases.  For the purpose of this analysis 
from this point on, such cases have been 
combined and are counted as one.  After 
the removal of duplicate records, the 39 
complaints outside of Austin consolidate to 
23 unique cases.

There was no clear trend of increase or 
decline in complaints with HUD during the 
years studied, as a low of one complaint 
in 2008 was followed by a high of 13 
complaints in 2009.  Typically, complaint 
trends in a given area can be driven by the 
activities of a local advocate, in this case 
Austin Tenants Council, or affected by 
public awareness of fair housing rights and 
means of redressing violations.  Five of the 
23 unique cases outside of Austin were 
filed by ATC, which provides the service of 
walking tenants through the discrimination 
complaint process.  HUD provided data 
on closed cases only, so it is unclear how 
many cases are currently unresolved.

 

Of the 23 unique cases outside of Austin, 16 
(69.6%) regarded properties in Pflugerville.  
Round Rock had two cases, while one 
case was reported in each of Del Valle, 
Manchaca and Manor.  HUD also counted 
two Wichita Falls cases in Travis County 
records, though that location is in Wichita 
County.

Six of the 16 Pflugerville cases involved 
allegations of failure to make reasonable 
accommodation at a particular property: 
Cambridge Villas.  This is an affordable 
housing development of 208 fourplex 
apartments for seniors that was developed 
by the nonprofit developer associated 
with the Housing Authority of Travis 
County (the Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation of Travis County).  According 
to the Corporation, 15 units at this site 
are designed for persons with mobility 
disabilities, including four units that also 
include features for persons with sensory 
disabilities.  A third-party property manager 
oversees the apartments.  Of the six cases 
filed against Cambridge Villas, one ended 
with a conciliation/settlement and five were 
withdrawn by the complainant.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



60

Disability was the predominant basis for 
complaint, factoring into 15 of the 23 unique 
cases (65.2%).  Familial status, race and sex 
were each cited in three cases, and national 
origin was cited once.  Three of the 23 cases 
involved more than one issue.

Of the 23 cases outside of Austin that were 
closed as of June 2012, six (26.1%) resulted 
in a successful conciliation or settlement.  A 
complaint is considered conciliated when 
all of the parties to the complaint enter 
into a conciliation agreement with HUD.  
Such agreements include benefits for the 
complainant, and affirmative action on the part 
of the respondent, such as civil rights training.  
HUD has the authority to monitor and enforce 
these agreements.  The settled cases were 
geographically scattered (Manor, Manchaca, 
Pflugerville, Round Rock), and three were 
filed by ATC.  Four involved disability-related 
charges, such as discriminatory terms, 
conditions or privileges or a failure to make 
reasonable accommodation.  The remaining 
two, both ATC cases, involved discriminatory 
advertising.

Of the 23 total unique cases, four (17.4%) 
were found to be without probable cause.  This 
occurs when the preponderance of evidence 
obtained during the course of the investigation 
is insufficient to substantiate the charge of 
discrimination.  Another 12 cases (52.2%) 
were administratively closed, due to complaint 
withdrawal before or after resolution or the 
complainant’s refusal to cooperate.  

Caution should be used when interpreting 
complaints that are administratively closed.  
This resolution does not always mean that 
housing discrimination has not occurred.  In 
the case of a complainant withdrawing a 
complaint, an uncooperative complainant, 
or a complainant who cannot be located, it 
is possible that the complainant changed 
her mind, experienced intimidation, decided 
against the trouble of following through with 
the complainant, chose to seek other housing 
without delay, or some other reasons.

As Figure 4-1 demonstrates, the most 
commonly cited grounds for complaint were 
discriminatory terms, conditions, privileges 
or services/facilities.  This general category 
represented 15 complaints, about two-thirds 
of the total.  The disability-related issues of 
reasonable accommodation and modification 
surfaced 12 times, and four cases alleged 
discriminatory advertising. 

Issue for Complaint Occurrence % of Total

Terms, conditions, privileges or services/facilities 15 65.2%
Failure to make a reasonable accommodation 9 39.1%
Advertising 4 17.4%
Failure to permit a reasonable modification 3 13.0%
Refusal to rent 2 8.7%
Financing 2 8.7%
Acts under Section 818 (coercion, etc) 2 8.7%
Non-compliance with design requirements 2 8.7%
Source:  HUD, San Antonio Regional Office

Figure 4-1
Issues Cited in HUD Discrimination Complaints, 2007-2012

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Disability was the issue 
most commonly cited in 
fair housing complaints 
across the Urban County.

61

B. TEXAS WORKFORCE 
      COMMISSION 

The Texas Workforce Commission Civil 
Rights Division (TWCCRD) accepts and 
investigates fair housing complaints, cross-
filing each it receives with HUD.  While 
both organizations maintain a record of the 
case, only one agency investigates and 
seeks resolution of each case.   TWCCRD 
provided data on 18 resolved housing 
complaints originating across Travis 
County between January 2007 and June 
2012, 10 of which were outside of Austin.

As with the HUD complaints for the same 
years, the prevalent basis for complaint 
was disability, which factored into nine of 
the 10 cases outside of Austin.  National 
origin was the basis for the remaining 
complaint, and two of the disability-related 
complaints also alleged discrimination on 
the bases of familial status and race.

Also similar to the HUD complaints, a 
large share, seven of 10, were related 
to properties in Pflugerville, though it is 
unclear if any involve the senior housing site 
involved in many of the HUD complaints.  
One complaint involved a property in Cedar 
Park, and two were based in Round Rock.  

One of the Round Rock complaints, 
an allegation of refusal to rent and 
discriminatory terms/privileges on the basis 
of disability and familial status, resulted in a 
conciliation.

With regard to other outcomes, six of the 
10 cases were closed with a determination 
of no probable cause, and three were 
administratively closed due to complaint 
withdrawal or failure to cooperate with 
TWCCRD’s investigation.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



62

Discrimination 
Testing

The Austin Tenants Council (ATC) is a HUD-
certified counseling agency that participates in 
HUD’s Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP), 
through which ATC partners with HUD to help 
people identify government agencies that 
handle complaints of housing discrimination.  
In filing and settling complaints, ATC’s primary 
goal is not financial compensation, but generally 
compelling defendants to complete fair housing 
training and, if applicable, make reasonable 
accommodations.  ATC is not an enforcement 
agency, so its cases are investigated by HUD, 
TWCCRD or a local body, such as the City of 
Austin’s Human Rights Commission.  In Austin, 
local ordinances establish additional protected 
classes, including sexual orientation, marital 
status, gender identity, student status and age, 
that do not apply in the Urban County.  

During AI interviews, ATC staff members 
explained that there is no statutory protection 
from discrimination on the basis of a person’s 
source of income, which makes it legally 
acceptable for a landlord to refuse to rent to a 
family receiving government assistance.  This, 
ATC said, is an important barrier to housing 
choice in Travis County, as only about 10% of 
landlords in Austin accept housing vouchers.  
The number is likely even smaller outside city 
borders, given the relative scarcity of affordable 
rental units in unincorporated areas.

As part of its activities as a FHIP participant, 
ATC has conducted between 100 and 150 fair 
housing tests across Central Texas in recent 
years.  Testing commonly occurs when new 
multi-family rental properties come online to 
determine whether facilities are designed and 
built according to the standards of accessibility 
mandated by federal law.  ATC has found 
multiple sites in violation, including those in 
receipt of federal funding.  The Council also 
conducts paired testing of advertised rental 
or sales properties to determine whether 
landlords, Realtors or sellers comply with their 
responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act.

County Involvement in 
Fair Housing Cases

Travis County is not subject to or operating 
under  any desegregation orders or unlawful 
segregation orders.  The County is not 
currently involved in or a party to any fair 
housing lawsuits, nor has it been a party to 
such litigation in the past five years.

On August 29, 2013, HUD closed its 
investigation and entered its Determination of 
No Reasonable Cause and Letter of Finding 
of Compliance in connection with a complaint 
filed against Travis County by the Del Valle 
Community Coalition (“DVCC”) alleging, inter 
alia, housing discrimination pursuant to Title 
VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended 
by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 
(the Act). Under the Determination of No 
Reasonable Cause and Letter of Finding of 
Compliance, HUD found there was no factual 
or legal support for DVCC’s allegations of 
discrimination under Title VIII, further finding 
Travis County to have been in compliance with 
the Act. As result thereof, HUD dismissed the 
DVCC’s complaint and advised DVCC of its 
right to sue. Travis County continues to monitor 
this matter.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



63

5 review of 
public sector 
policies

The analysis of impediments is a review of 
impediments to fair housing choice in the 
public and private sector.  Impediments to fair 
housing choice are any actions, omissions, or 
decisions taken because of race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national origin 
that restrict housing choices or the availability 
of housing choices, or any actions, omissions 
or decisions that have the effect of restricting 
housing choices or the availability of housing 
choices on the basis of race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status or national origin. 
Policies, practices or procedures that appear 
neutral on their face but which operate to deny 
or adversely affect the provision of housing 
to persons of a particular race, color, religion, 
sex, disability, familial status, or national origin 
may constitute such impediments.

An important element of the AI includes 
an examination of public policy in terms of 
its impact on housing choice. This section 
evaluates the public policies in the Urban 
County to determine opportunities for furthering 
the expansion of fair housing choice.

Policies Governing Investment 
of Funds for Housing and 
Community Development

From a budgetary standpoint, housing choice 
can be affected by the allocation of staff and 
financial resources to housing related programs 
and initiatives.  The decline in federal funding 
opportunities for affordable housing for lower-
income households has shifted much of the 
challenge of affordable housing production to 
state, county and local government decision 
makers.

The recent Westchester County, NY, fair 
housing settlement also reinforces the 
importance of expanding housing choice in 
areas outside of high-poverty concentrations 
of racial and/or ethnic minorities.  Westchester 
County violated its cooperation agreements 
with local units of government which prohibit 
the expenditure of CDBG funds for activities 
in communities that do not affirmatively further 
fair housing within their jurisdiction or otherwise 
impede the county’s action to comply with its 
fair housing certifications.  As an Urban County 
jurisdiction, Travis County is similarly bound to 
ensure that its entitlement funds are applied 
only in ways that are consistent with this aim.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



64

Travis County receives federal entitlement 
funds from HUD in the form of the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, 
the primary objective of which is to develop 
viable urban communities by providing decent 
housing, a suitable living environment, and 
economic opportunities, principally for persons 
of low and moderate income levels. For fiscal 
year 2011, HUD allocated $790,136 in formula 
grant funds to the County.  Funds can be used 
for a wide array of activities, including: housing 
rehabilitation, homeownership assistance, 
lead-based paint detection and removal, 
construction or rehabilitation of public facilities 
and infrastructure, removal of architectural 
barriers, public services, rehabilitation of 
commercial or industrial buildings, and loans 
or grants to businesses.

The County’s CDBG program, administered 
within the Department of Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Services, is young 
by national standards.  Urban Travis County 
met the population threshold for entitlement 
community status and was designated as 
a program community in 2006.  The initial 
operation of the grant program was delayed 
due to an allocation error from HUD, which 
resulted in later issues with timeliness.  As of 
the 2011 Annual Plan, the Urban County was 
administering funds from each of the previous 
five years concurrently.

The CDBG program’s spending mix reflects 
an exhaustive and professional Consolidated 
Planning process.  The latest multi-year plan, 
for program years 2011 through 2013, bases its 
identification of local needs in a comprehensive 
analysis of available data indicators and 
community outreach.  The County lists three 
overarching priorities: assisting low- and 
moderate-income households in obtaining 
affordable housing, improving the safety and 
livability of neighborhoods and increasing 
access to services.

To address these priorities, the County has 
invested  CDBG funds in eligible infrastructure 
installation and improvement projects in 
low- and moderate-income areas, funded an 
owner-occupied rehabilitation program and 
home buyer assistance, provided essential 
public services to underserved populations 
and acquired land for affordable housing.

The geographic scope of the Urban 
County’s CDBG program currently includes 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the 
Village of Webberville, the only participating 
municipality.  Incorporated communities that 
are not part of the Urban County program may 
compete at the state level for CDBG funds.

Due to limited resources, the CDBG budget 
for 2006-2011 did not include a line item for 
pure fair housing activities such as education, 
outreach or testing, though fair housing 
activities are funded in 2012.  The provision 
of fair housing services is eligible as either 
a program administration cost, per 24 CFR 
570.206, or as a public service, per 24 CFR 
570.201(e). Funding from other County 
sources has included allocations for fair 
housing purposes, such as the development 
of this report and renters’ rights assistance 
services.

Travis County does not receive a direct federal 
entitlement of HOME funds, which would 
provide for the development and rehabilitation of 
affordable rental and ownership housing for low- 
and moderate-income households.  However, 
the County’s Housing Finance Corporation 
(HFC) works with the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) 
to address this need, administering a single-
family home ownership program and issuing 
tax-exempt bonds that finance the construction 
or acquisition of multi-family apartments that 
provide affordable rental housing to income-
eligible families.  In the administration of its 
multi-family bond program, HFC has a stated 
goal of promoting efficient, well-planned 
growth and development, particularly proper 
coordination with surrounding uses, including 
mass transit if possible, and the limitation and 
prevention of potential urban blight.

Policies of both the CDBG program and the 
Housing Finance Corporation are covered in 
this section of the AI.

The County has allocated 
general funds for some 
activities that further fair 
housing, such as the AI 
and tenant services.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



The County’s CDBG 
program reflects an 
effort to balance 
the improvement of 
living conditions in 
impoverished areas 
with the creation of 
access to opportunity-
rich neighborhoods. 65

a.  Project proposal 
      and selection

The CDBG program has three separate 
applications: for County departments (and 
Webberville), for nonprofit organizations 
and for resident groups.  Applications are 
accepted on a rolling basis, though each 
year’s funding cycle closes on March 
31.  Staff members review proposals and 
potential sites to identify and evaluate 
all aspects of projects before submitting 
recommendations to Commissioners 
Court on which projects should receive 
funding.  

The Court annually approves the criteria 
for CDBG project selection, which are 
explained in each year’s application 
materials.  Once projects are determined 
to be CDBG-eligible and consistent with 
the program’s national objectives, they are 
ranked according to the degree to which 
they address a high-priority goal of the 
Strategic Plan, their feasibility, the number 
of beneficiaries, the benefit to low- and 
moderate-income persons and whether 
they include a leverage or match of funding 
from another source.  Infrastructure 
projects may be phased over three years 
to achieve 100% funding.

The Housing Finance Corporation 
evaluates proposals for its bond financing 
programs on a rolling basis.  The 
Corporation has not established a points 
system tied to evaluation criteria, but 
considers multiple angles in determining 
whether a project should be funded.  
Feasibility is a primary issue, though 
location is also a factor.  HFC has 
rejected a proposal for affordable housing 
development that was “within a stone’s 
throw” of two other subsidized properties 
to avoid concentration, according to staff 
members.

b.  geographic distribution
      of investments

To incorporate fair housing best practices, 
the County’s CDBG staff incorporates 
mapping to a high degree in planning and 
project selection.  One of the first steps in 
reviewing a CDBG application is to locate 
the proposed site on a map relative to the 
County’s low- and moderate-income areas 
and block groups of racial and/or ethnic 
concentration.  

Because the Urban County’s CDBG 
program is not in the business of housing 
development or redevelopment, its 
investments in broadening housing 
opportunities come in the form of creating 
access, mostly through the installation or 
improvement of infrastructure or acquisition 
of land, such as the acquisition of space 
along Gilbert Lane for the development of 
affordable housing.  By the nature of that 
work, much of it occurs in neighborhoods 
in sore need of an improvement in living 
environment.  In Travis County, this 
includes isolated, impoverished areas 
that may lack access to public water 
and sewer and other basic amenities.  
However, with a goal of connecting lower-
income residents with increased options 
in affordable housing, the County has 
worked to identify street-level pockets 
of poverty in the typically more affluent 
western half of the County where strategic 
CDBG investment could improve access 
to a high-opportunity neighborhood.  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



!

!

!

!
!

!

Gilbert Lane
(Land Acquisition)

Plain View Estates
(Water Connections)

Apache Shores
(Street Improvements)

North Ridge Acres
(Water Connections)

Lava Lane
(Street Improvements)

UV130

UV45N

UV1

UV45SE

tu183

tu290

tu290

¬«71

")620

UV360

Travis County CDBG PY 06 through PY 12 Projects

Note:  Placement of project locations is approximate
Source: Water and County Boundaries are Census 

2011 TIGER/Line Files accessible via census.gov
Created by: Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2012

§̈¦35

Lake Oak Estates
(Street Improvements)

Las Lomitas
(Water Connections)

! Incomplete Projects

! Completed Projects

Major County Roads

Impacted Block Groups

map 5-1
Travis County CDBG Project Sites, 
2006-2012

66

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



67

Map 5-1, which includes sites for CDBG 
projects proposed, in progress and completed 
dating back to 2006, demonstrates a balance 
between improving the living environment in 
impacted areas  and facilitating access to other 
areas of the County.

The Housing Finance Corporation provided 
addresses for its current portfolio of project 
sites, which includes more than 3,600 units 
funded through the multi-family bond program, 
117 homes that were purchased through down 
payment assistance, 34 sites where tenant-
based rental assistance has been used to 
make apartments or rental homes affordable, 
and eight Neighborhood Stabilization Program 
(NSP) undertakings.  All of these sites are 
plotted in Map 5-2.

Most of HFC’s multi-family stock appears to 
be concentrated in Austin, where the majority 
of its multi-family structures are located.  Of 
16 such sites, 14 are located in the city, while 
two sites totaling a combined 510 units are in 
Pflugerville.  

HFC’s single-family assistance is, however, 
limited to unincorporated areas.  Self-
sufficiency tenants are focused in Pflugerville, 
though some households are scattered into 
other areas, including the western half of the 
County.  The locations of households receiving 
tenant-based assistance are limited to 
properties with landlords willing to participate 
in the program.  Due to record lows in rental 
vacancies, HFC has found that locating single-
family rental units that will accept households 
with assistance is very difficult.  To broaden 
opportunities, HFC is currently in the process 
of creating landlord collateral materials to 
increase landlord outreach and participation in 
the program.

c.  affirmative marketing

The County is federally required to adopt 
affirmative procedures and requirements for all 
CDBG- or HOME-assisted housing with five or 
more units.  Such a plan should include: 

• Methods of informing the public,  
 owners, and potential tenants about  
 fair housing laws and the Urban   
 County’s policies 

• A description of what the owners  
 and/or the Urban County will do to  
 affirmatively market housing assisted  
 with CDBG funds

• A description of what the owners and/ 
 or the Urban County will do to inform  
 persons not likely to apply for housing  
 without special outreach 

• Maintenance of records to document  
 actions taken to affirmatively market  
 CDBG-assisted units and to assess  
 marketing effectiveness, and 

• A description of how efforts will be  
 assessed and what corrective actions  
 will be taken where requirements are  
 not met. 

The County has prepared and implemented 
a comprehensive Affirmative Marketing Plan 
that applies to the CDBG program in particular.  
HFC complies with the requirements of its own 
funding programs, such as the HOME program, 
in ensuring adequate marketing of the housing 
opportunities it creates.

Though the County has not adopted a human 
rights ordinance to expand the classes 
protected by law from housing discrimination 
in the private market, the Affirmative Marketing 
Plan extends protection beyond the federally 
protected classes of race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, familial status and disability to also 
include marital status, sexual orientation and 
gender identity.  This reflects recent changes 
to HUD program regulation prohibiting HUD-
funded entities from discriminating on those 
grounds.

Few of the affordable 
multi-family rental 
units created through 
HFC partnerships are 
located in the Urban 
County.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!
!

! !!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!
!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

! Neighborhood Stabilization Program

! Tenant-Based Rental Assistance

! Down Payment Assistance

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

Multi-Family Bond Program
Number of Units

! Unknown

! Up to 250

! 250 to 400

! 400 to 600

map 5-2
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation
Portfolio of Assisted Units by Program, 2012

Source:  Travis County Housing Finance Corporation

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



The CDBG Affirmative 
Marketing Plan could 
be strengthened by 
adding a statement 
of consequences for 
noncompliance.

69

The Affirmative Marketing Plan states a policy 
to accommodate people with disabilities and 
those who do not speak English.  The latter are 
specifically accommodated by the presence of 
translators at community meetings in precincts 
where more than 25% of the population 
speaks a non-English language.  Additionally, 
all marketing and outreach materials are 
translated into Spanish for purposes of 
affirmatively marketing to the Hispanic 
population, and Spanish-language notices are 
published in Spanish-language periodicals of 
general circulation.  The Plan specifies that all 
materials, outreach and marketing for Hispanic 
households must be available in both English 
and Spanish.

According to the Plan, marketing plans for all 
housing projects will be specifically designed 
to reflect their location, the local demographic 
profile and the type of opportunities being made 
available.  (For instance, marketing for a home 
ownership program would involve special 
outreach to Hispanic and Black homebuyers, 
as they have experienced disproportionate 
cost burden related to home ownership.)

The Plan includes suggestions for targeted 
outreach efforts, including selecting 
neighborhoods in which to disseminate 
information, advertising in minority-specific 
publications and distributing information to 
community organizations, places of worship, 
fair housing groups, housing and social service 
centers and housing counselors.

In order to ensure awareness of and compliance 
with the Plan, the CDBG program requires 
subrecipients to maintain a training program 
that includes an overview of affirmative 
marketing and fair housing.  Affirmative 
outreach and marketing activites are required 
to be documented, and the Plan suggests use 
of the standardized HUD Form 27061H, “Race 
and Ethnic Data Reporting.”  Subrecipients are 
held accountable through annual reporting in 
the County’s CAPER. 

The Plan concludes with contact information for 
complaints and grievances related to problems 
with affirmative marketing, along with contact 
information related to fair housing issues in 
general.  

By fair housing standards, the Plan is 
comprehensive and specific, including detailed 
information on the County’s expectations 
for its own programs and for activities being 
administered by any subrecipients.  The only 
potential area for further specificity would be a 
statement of consequences for noncompliance 
with the Plan, which could potentially include 
a recapture of funds, disallowance of future 
participation in the CDBG program and/
or referral of the matter to HUD and/or a fair 
housing rights organization such as Austin 
Tenants Council.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



70

Appointed Boards
and Commissions

A community’s sensitivity to fair housing issues 
is often determined by people in positions of 
public leadership. The perception of housing 
needs and the intensity of a community’s 
commitment to housing related goals and 
objectives are often measured by board 
members, directorships, and the extent to which 
these individuals relate within an organized 
framework of agencies, groups, and individuals 
involved in housing matters. The expansion 
of fair housing choice requires a team effort 
and public leadership and commitment is a 
prerequisite to strategic action. 

The following boards and commissions were 
identified to influence issues related to housing 
and land use in Travis County.

a.  COA Comprehensive   
      plan advisory 
      committee

This panel was appointed by 
Commissioners Court to provide input to 
the City of Austin during the development 
of its latest Comprehensive Plan.  The city’s 
resolution called for one representative 
and one alternate to represent the extra-
territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) in the following 
areas: Land Use; Transportation; Storm 
Water Management and Water Quality; 
Natural Resources and Environmental 
Quality; Parks and Open Spaces; and 
Health and Human Services.  Members 
were appointed to serve no more than 35 
months and have finished their service, 
rendering the committee no longer active.  
Four White males and one White female 
participated, none of whom reported a 
disability.

b.  housing authority
      of travis county

The Housing Authority of Travis County 
provides affordable housing opportunities 
to low-income residents through the 
administration of the public housing and 
housing choice voucher programs, among 
other initiatives.  As of June 2012, its five-
member board of directors included a 
Black male, a Black female, a White male, 
a White female and a Hispanic male, none 
of whom were disabled.  Board members 
serve staggered two-year terms.

c.  STRATEGIC HOUSING 
      FINANCE CORPORATION

The Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation of Travis County is the 
nonprofit development subsidary of the 
Housing Authority, created to finance the 
costs of acquiring residential property in 
the County.  As of June 2012, its board of 
directors included a Black female, a Black 
male, a Hispanic female, two Hispanic 
males, a White female and a White male.  
No disabilities were reported among board 
members.

While minorities and 
females are represented on 
appointed boards dealing 
with housing issues, persons 
with disabilities should 
also have a place in the 
discussion.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Retrofitting the aging 
housing stock in rural 
areas is often made 
infeasible by the poor 
condition of properties.

Instead of accessibility 
problems being identified 
during the initial phases 
of building, housing 
advocates reported that 
noncompliant features are 
often identified through 
the fair housing complaints 
process.

71

Accessibility of Residential 
Dwelling Units

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties 
to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they may 
exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by 
state government.  For Texas counties, this does 
not include the authority to adopt building codes.  
What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 
are the standards of the International Building 
Code, which has been effectively adopted by 
the state.  The responsibility for compliance is 
on builders, who submit construction reports 
to county governments.  Even if such a report 
indicates that a builder has not met an aspect of 
the code, however, counties do not wield direct 
enforcement power.

Therefore, Travis County’s authority over new 
residential construction projects concerns only 
the issuance of three permits: driveway (if the 
property is on a county-maintained road), flood 
plain and septic system.  During AI interviews, 
County staff members emphasized the limitations 
on their land use control: “basically anything” 
can be sited anywhere within unincorporated 
space, as long as its construction conforms to the 
minimal standards in place.

With regard to accessibility, the International 
Fire Code applies to commercial structures, 
including multi-family dwellings, but concerns 
the site plan only, to the exclusion of interior 
features such as door widths.  For single-family 
dwellings, the County requires developers to 
inform the Department of Transportation and 
Natural Resources (TNR) of the code to which 
they’ll be building and submit proof of a passed 
inspection.  Residences in incorporated areas 
are subject to any building codes that have been 
locally adopted.

The Texas Accessibility Standards require 
accessibility for persons with disabilities in publicly 
funded, state-owned and state-leased buildings, 
in addition to public and private buildings as 
defined by the ADA.  During the development of 
the AI, the Austin Tenants Council reported that 
its testing of newly constructed rental projects 
in Travis County, with and without assistance 
from public sources, has revealed sites of both 
types that are unlawfully inaccessible to persons 
with physical disabilities.  Given the limitations in 
powers afforded to Travis County by the State 
of Texas, the County is currently unequipped to 
adequately address such issues.

The absence of meaningful authority for local 
control over the design and construction of new 
residential structures is one possible reason 
for reported instances of noncompliance with 
federal and state accessibility requirements. 
The County has a design and construction 
problem, ATC staff members said: While TNR 
reviews structures from the slab down and the 
fire marshal reviews structures for fire issues 
from the slab up, no one reviews the structures 
to determine whether they meet accessibility 
standards.

The aging housing stock in the County’s more 
rural areas is not required to be accessible 
and, according to housing advocates, it largely 
is not.  Accessible units are even less common  
among single-family structures, many of 
which in rural areas are in poor condition.  
Agencies such as the Austin Resource Center 
for Independent Living (ARCIL) can provide 
retrofitting, but reported in AI interviews that 
“we can’t do bathroom modifications if the roof 
is falling in,” explaining that the deterioration 
of aging homes creates a set of challenges 
complicated and expensive to address.  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



72

Language 
Accommodations

As noted in an earlier section of this report, 
the number of LEP Spanish speakers in Travis 
County exceeds 100,000.   However, given 
limitations in ACS data, it is not clear how many 
persons with LEP are in the Urban County 
versus Austin, which is a separate entitlement 
community not served by the County.  Through 
experience working in the community, 
the CDBG office is aware of particular 
neighborhoods within the unincorporated areas 
where a substantial share of the population 
speaks Spanish as a first language.  

The County’s Citizen Participation Plan and 
CDBG Affirmative Marketing Plan address 
methods of ensuring that the limited-English 
population has access to County programs 
and services, largely through ensuring that 
translators attend critical community events 
and providing documents and advertisements 
in both English and Spanish.  CDBG staff 
members annually review ACS data to identify 
areas where more than 25% of the population 
speaks a non-English language, then ensures 
that various language services are available to 
meet needs in these areas.  The CDBG office 
translates documents related to all programs 
that provide services (applications, notices, 
primary surveys, marketing material, etc.) and 
requires subrecipients to demonstrate how 
they will serve LEP clients.

The CDBG office has incorporated HUD’s 
guidance relative to Executive Order 13166, 
“Improving Access to Services for Persons 
with Limited English Proficiency,” in developing 
a preliminary policy framework that will guide 
its formal Language Access Plan (LAP), which 
staff members expect to create during the 
next year.  Although there is no requirement 
to develop a LAP for persons with LEP, HUD 
entitlement communities are responsible for 
serving LEP persons in accordance with Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  Preparation 
of a LAP is the most effective way to achieve 
compliance.  

In accordance with HUD’s guidance, Travis 
County’s LAP should include a four-factor 
analysis to determine the extent to which the 
translation of vital documents is warranted.   
(The term “vital document” refers generally to 
any publication that is needed to gain access 
to the benefits of a program or service.)  

The four-factor analysis requires entitlements 
such as the County to evaluate the need for 
translation and/or other accommodations 
based on four factors:

• The number or proportion of persons  
 with LEP to be served or likely to be  
 encountered by the program

• The frequency with which persons with 

 LEP come into contact with the   
 program

• The nature and importance of the  
 program, activity or services provided  
 by the program, and

• Resources available to the grantee  
 vs. costs

Currently, each County department is 
responsible to ensure that it provides adequate 
opportunities for engagement by LEP persons.  
Ideally, adoption of a set of government-wide 
LAP policies would somewhat standardize the 
ways in which Travis County serves its limited-
English population, which may need assistance 
accessing local government programs and 
services.

The CDBG Office is in the 
process of formalizing 
its LAP, which should be 
completed within the next 
year.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Public opinion favors 
greater land use control at 
the County level.

73

Zoning, Land Use 
and Comprehensive Planning

A community’s comprehensive plan is 
a statement of policies relative to new 
development and preservation of existing 
assets.  In particular, the land use element of 
the comprehensive plan defines the location, 
type and character of future development.  The 
housing element of the comprehensive plan 
expresses the preferred density and intensity 
of residential neighborhoods within the county.  
Taken together, the land use and housing 
elements of the comprehensive plan define a 
vision of the type of place that a community 
wishes to become.

Travis County has not adopted a comprehensive 
plan or similar document that contains broad 
objectives for land use or housing.  Like all 
Texas counties, Travis County is limited by 
state law in the extent of its land use authority.  
In unincorporated areas, Texas counties may 
approve the subdivision of land, construct and 
maintain subdivision roads and assess costs 
to landowners, and may specify minimum 
standards for road construction and drainage.  
County staff members in the Department of 
Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
have expressed a need to exercise more 
control over land use, particularly to buffer 
incompatible land uses and control sprawl.  

In 2008, the County contracted with a research 
firm, NuStats, to conduct an empirical study 
of community views on whether the County’s 
land use authority should be increased.  The 
results of the research, which included 29 
in-depth stakeholder interviews, an online 
survey and public forum, indicated that people 
supported the concept of more County control 
in unincorporated areas to manage growth 
and resolve incompatible uses.  By a three-
to-one margin, residents agreed that the 
Commissioners Court should have greater 

land use authority over unincorporated space, 
and by a similar margin they agreed that the 
Court should determine where growth should 
and should not occur and what types of 
activities should be allowed.  Comprehensive 
planning had “almost unanimous support,” 
with residents in favor of the Court developing, 
implementing and enforcing a comprehensive 
plan.

As a result, County staff members are 
examining existing plans for individual 
features (recreation, green space, etc.) to 
determine whether they can be combined in an 
overarching document of larger scope, which 
would also include study of land, water and 
transportation.  The County continues to lobby 
the state legislature to expand its local land 
use authority.  

In the meantime, in the absence of County 
authority, the rapid expansion of the County’s 
population has resulted in sprawling settlement, 
in which subdivisions of urban character have 
sprung up in rural areas, increasing traffic 
on County roads and driving a need for off-
site infrastructure improvements.  Within 
subdivisions, developers typically handle 
infrastructure.  Therefore, a disparity in quality 
has historically been noticeable: Wealthy 
subdivisions were built with high-quality living 
environments, while lower-income subdivisions 
were more often subject to substandard 
infrastructure.  The County has  more recently 
adopted subdivision standards, and those with 
substandard infrastructure are not approved.

Mobile homes in unincorporated areas are 
often scattered across lots that are not in 
mobile home parks and do not necessarily have 
access to public water and sewer amenities.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



74

While land use in Travis County’s 
unincorporated space is not governed by 
zoning regulations, control commonly takes 
the form of deed/covenant restrictions.  In 
Travis County, these contracts between 
buyer and developer are often similar to 
zoning criteria and are, according to County 
staff members, very prevalent.  Subdivisions 
and homeowner associations enforce these 
contractual obligations by litigation.  In AI 
interviews, TNR and housing advocates both 
acknowledged the existence of discriminatory 
convenants in some subdivisions: “no renters,” 
“no minorities.”  While such stipulations may 
be outdated and unenforced, they violate the 
Fair Housing Act.  Additionally, Texas Property 
Code Sec. 5.026 makes all discriminatory 
provisions in deed restrictions throughout the 
state illegal and unenforceable. 

Some deed restrictions, covenants and 
homeowners’ association rules violate the 
Fair Housing Act in more subtle ways.  Austin 
Tenants Council reported that requirements 
exist in some neighborhoods as a veiled means 
of weeding out the poor, such a a minimum 
structure size standard of 1,800 square feet 
or a stipulation that all sides of a home must 
consist of masonry.  HOAs have been known 
to deny reasonable accommodation, imposing 
rules such as “no window air conditioning 
units” or “no pets” along with stringent parking 
or grass mowing requirements regardless of a 
tenant or owner’s disability status.

The CDBG program reported that Habitat 
for Humanity, armed with a list of ready-to-
build subdivisions with infrastructure in Travis 
County, made calls to locate a site where 
it could construct affordable single-family 
housing using CDBG funds for land acquisition 
and had no success in Western Travis County.  
Many developers indicated that such housing 
“is not in [our neighborhood’s] financial model.”  
In the end, the only viable site Habitat located 
as a result of that search was in the Eastern 
part of the County, where more of its racially/
ethnically concentrated areas of poverty are 
located.

Discriminatory deed/
covenant restrictions 
are still in place in some 
neighborhoods, though they 
have been made illegal and 
unenforceable.

Advocates reported 
a general lack of fair 
housing awareness among 
homeowner associations, 
which has resulted in 
the enforcement of 
discriminatory rules and a 
lack of accommodation for 
persons with disabilities.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



75

Typically, an analysis of impediments includes 
an examination of local zoning ordinances 
within the CDBG program area to evaluate the 
extent to which regulations advance or limit fair 
housing opportunities.  The analysis of zoning 
regulations is based on the following five topics 
raised in HUD’s Fair Housing Planning Guide, 
which include:

• The opportunity to develop various  
 housing types (including apartments  
 and housing at various densities)

• The opportunity to develop alternative  
 designs (such as cluster developments, 
 planned residential developments, 
 inclusionary zoning and transit-
 oriented developments)  

• Minimum lot size requirements

• Dispersal requirements and regulatory 
 provisions for housing facilities for 
 persons with disabilities (i.e. group 
 homes) in single family zoning districts

• Restrictions on the number of unrelated 
 persons in dwelling units.

However, because the Urban County’s CDBG 
program includes only unincorporated space 
and the Village of Webberville, which does not 
have a zoning ordinance and has apparently 
maintained a development moratorium since 
its incorporation in 2003, there are no local 
zoning requirements affecting land areas where 
CDBG funds can be allocated.  The absence of 
local controls implies that outside of limitations 
imposed by deed and covenant restrictions, 
affordable housing types and group homes for 
persons with disabilities may be developed in 
any area of the Urban County.

Housing Authority of 
Travis County

The Housing Authority of Travis County 
(HATC) owns and manages 105 units of public 
housing spread across three sites in Austin 
and administers a Housing Choice Voucher 
program, three Shelter Plus Care projects and 
a lease-purchase program.  Additionally, the 
Authority’s nonprofit subsidary, the Strategic 
Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County 
(SHFC), is the general partner for three tax-
credit multi-family properties comprising 278 
senior units and 192 family units.

HATC’s three public housing developments, of 
51, 24 and 30 units, were constructed in the 
early 1980s.  One site is located in an area that 
was originally unincorporated space, though 
it has since been incorporated by Austin.  
HATC has no plans for new development, 
though SFHC is working to acquire tax credit 
properties for which affordability requirements 
are set to expire.  This would add 600 units to 
the inventory.

With regard to the Housing Choice Voucher 
program, HATC currently manages 568 
of its own vouchers and 80 port-ins from 
other jurisdictions.  The Authority maintains 
a reciprocal agreement with the Housing 
Authority of the City of Austin, non-exclusive 
jurisdiction, meaning that voucher applicants 
may apply in either the City or County for either 
program.  Voucher portability between the two 
jurisdictions, according to staff members, is 
seamless.

The waiting list for the voucher program has 
been closed since September 2005.  As of 
June 2012, there were about 250 households 
on the list.  When the list was opened to new 
applicants for two weeks in 2005, more than 
4,000 applications poured in.  Austin’s voucher 
waiting list, which exceeds 5,000 applicants, is 
also closed. 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



HATC allows voucher holders 60 days to locate 
an appropriate unit.  Staff members reported 
that there are an adequate number of landlords 
participating in the program across the Urban 
County, and that participants generally do 
not experience difficulty in finding a unit that 
meets their needs.  HATC has not required any 
household to return a voucher due to inability 
to locate a suitable place to live.  

The distribution of voucher holders appears in 
Map 5-3.  The scale of the map is such that 
not all 680 sites plotted are discernible, so the 
map is best interpreted as a generalization of 
location trends.  The majority of HATC voucher 
holders (505, or 74.2%) had Austin addresses 
as of June 2012, while 97 were located in 
Pflugerville, 31 were located in Manor, 14 
were located in Round Rock and others were 
scattered in smaller numbers across Cedar 
Park, Del Valle and other areas.  A handful 
of port-outs were located in Dallas, Houston, 
neighboring counties and in other states.

The address data provided by HATC includes 
contract rent rates for each household.  Of all 
680 households plotted, 189 (27.8%) paid less 
than $700 per month, while 312 (45.9%) paid 
between $700 and $1,000.  The remaining 179 
households, or 26.3%, paid more than $1,000 
per month, up to a maximum of $1,630.  With 
only one exception, all of the above-$1,000 
rents were paid for units with three or four 
bedrooms.  The geographic distribution 
by contract rent suggests that higher rents 
are commanded in central areas of Austin, 
while more affordable units are available in 
and beyond the city’s eastern end.  Hornsby 
Bend contains a concentration of voucher 
households paying less than $700.  This area, 
as noted previously in the report, experienced 
a high proportion of residential foreclosures in 
2010 and 2011.

HATC voucher holders are 
scattered across the eastern 
half of Travis County, but 
hardly any are located in its 
western half, due primarily 
to the difficulty of finding 
a unit in this typically 
wealthier area affordable 
at the HUD FMR.

76

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!

!

!!!

!!!!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!

!

!

!!!!!

!!!

!!

!

!!

!

!!!!!!!

!!

!

!!!!

!!!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!!

!

!!

!!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!
!!!!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!

!

!!!

!

!!!!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!!!

!

!! !

!

!!!

!

!

!!!!!!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!!!

!

!!

!

!!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!
!!
!
!!!!
!!

!

!!!

!!

!

!!!!

1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Vouchers by Contract Rent
! Less than $700
! $700 to $1,000
! $1,000 to $1,600

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 5-3
Voucher Household Locations by Contract Rent, 2012
Housing Authority of Travis County

77

Source:  HATC

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Total households 670 222
Income level
  Extremely low income (30% or less of AMI) 543 81.0% 0.0%
  Very low income (30.1% to 50% of AMI) 105 15.7% 0.0%
  Low income (50.1% to 80% of AMI) 22 3.3% 0.0%
Household type*
  Families with children 326 48.7% 142 64.0%
  Elderly 96 14.3% 16 7.2%
  Member with a disability 321 47.9% 58 26.1%
Race and ethnicity 
  Black 416 62.1% 136 61.3%
  White 246 36.7% 85 38.3%
  Asian 5 0.7% 1 0.5%
  Other race 3 0.4% 0 0.0%

   0 Bedroom 0 0.0% 0.0%
   1 Bedroom 172 25.7% 0.0%
   2 Bedroom 171 25.5% 0.0%
   3 Bedroom 268 40.0% 0.0%
   4 Bedroom 58 8.7% 0.0%
   5+ Bedroom 1 0.1% 0.0%

* Categories are not mutually exclusive.
Source: Housing Authority of Travis County

Current Voucher Holders Waiting List Applicants

Characteristics by bedroom size

figure 5-1
Characteristics of Housing Choice Voucher 
Holders and Applicants, June 2012

78

Figure 5-1 describes demographic 
characteristics of both current voucher 
households and those who are on the voucher 
waiting list.  As mentioned previously, the 
relatively low number of households on the 
waiting list is a function of the list having been 
closed since 2005, since which time HATC has 
been working through the 4,000 applicants that 
submitted paperwork during the two weeks 
that year the list was opened.  As of June 2012, 
staff members were uncertain as to when the 
waiting list might again be opened.

Hispanic ethnicity was not reported separately, 
so it is assumed that Hispanic households are 
distributed among the racial categories listed 
in Figure 5-1.  Black households are extremely 
overrepresented among families using and 
applying for vouchers, comprising 62.1% 
of current voucher families and 64% of the 

waiting list, compared to their 8.6% share 
of all households in Travis County.  White 
families, conversely, are underrepresented, 
as they comprise just over one-third of 
voucher households, compared to their 
72.4% share of total households in the 
County.  

Also of note is the prevalence of households 
with a disabled member among voucher 
holders and applicants.  About half of 
all current voucher holders reported a 
disability, in addition to about one-quarter of 
those on the waiting list.  This suggests that 
lower-income households with disabilities in 
Travis County rely on the voucher program 
as a means of affording suitable housing.

Households with a 
disabled member and 
Black households are 
overrepresented among 
Housing Choice Voucher 
holders and applicants.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



A.  vOUCHER PROGRAM     
      ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN

The Housing Choice Voucher 
Administrative Plan (Admin Plan) is the 
policy and procedure manual that includes 
the regulations governing this housing 
assistance program.  Generally, the Admin 
Plan includes policies that describe the 
selection and admission of applicants from 
the PHA waiting list, the issuance and denial 
of vouchers, occupancy policies, landlord 
participation, subsidy standards, informal 
review/hearing procedures, payment 
standards, the Housing Quality Standard 
(HQS) inspection process, and reasonable 
rents, to name a few.  HATC’s Admin 
Plan was reviewed from a fair housing 
perspective to ensure that members of the 
protected classes are afforded adequate 
housing choices.  Specifically, the Plan 
was reviewed to determine the presence 
of the following policies and whether these 
policies were in compliance with the Fair 
Housing Act:

• 

•

  
•

 
•
  

Fair housing and equal opportunity 
non-discrimination clause that 
provides a list of the protected 
classes within a PHA’s jurisdiction, 

Reasonable accommodation 
policies for persons with disabilities 
(in the application process, unit 
search and selection, and grievance 
process), 

Accommodations for persons with 
limited English proficiency (LEP) 
and a list of services a PHA is 
willing to provide such persons, 

Definition of “family” and whether 
or not it includes non-traditional 
households with unrelated 
individuals,

• 

•

  
•

 
•

•

Tenant selection policies and 
waiting list preferences to 
determine whether members of the 
protected classes are given any 
special consideration or if the local 
preferences restrict their housing 
choice, 

Recruitment of landlords who own 
properties in non-impacted areas, 
 
Portability policies and procedures 
and their effect on members of the 
protected classes, 

Higher payment standards for units 
that accommodate persons with 
disabilities, and 

Grievance policies and procedures.

79

The edition of HATC’s Admin Plan reviewed 
for the AI was updated through May 2012.  
The Authority’s policy to affirmatively 
further fair housing, which goes beyond a 
simple declaration of non-discrimination, 
reflects  2012 changes to HUD program 
regulation that prohibit discrimination in 
HUD-funded programs on the basis of 
sexual orientation, marital status or gender 
identity, in addition to the classes protected 
by the Fair Housing Act.  

The Plan refers to an Affirmatively 
Furthering Fair Housing Addendum that 
documents fair housing efforts that exceed 
the requirements of federal, state and 
local non-discrimination and reasonable 
accommodation regulations.  However, the 
addendum was not included in the items 
provided for review in the AI.  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



80

HATC’s policies with regard to accommodating 
persons with disabilities serve a stated purpose 
of preventing disability-related discrimination 
as prohibited by the Fair Housing Act.  The 
Authority advises applicants in writing of 
their right to request acommodations.  The 
language is included on intake applications, 
re-examination documents and notices of 
adverse action.

Possible reasonable accommodations 
available through HATC come in the form of 
changes, exceptions or adjustment to rules, 
policies, practices or services.  Among the 
examples listed in the Admin Plan, HATC 
includes, among other considerations, higher 
payment standards for persons with disabilities, 
allowing applications and re-examinations to 
be completed via mail, conducting home visits 
and providing time extensions as needed for 
families seeking accessible units.

HATC responds in writing within 30 
business days to all requests for reasonable 
accommodation, either formal or informal.  
If HATC denies a request, the Authority 
endeavors to discuss with the family whether 
an alternative accommodation could effectively 
address its disability-related needs.

The Authority also provides accommodation 
for persons with sensory disabilities, including 
TTD/TTY communication, Relay Texas 
telephone interpreting service and sign-
language interpreters upon advance request.  
Large-print and audio versions of key program 
documents are made available upon request.

When issuing a voucher to a family that includes 
an individual with disabilities, HATC includes 
a current list of known available accessible 
units and will assist the family in locating an 
available accessible unit, if necessary.  In 
general, owners must permit the family to 
make reasonable modifications to the unit. 
However, owners are not required to pay for 
such modification and may require that the unit 
be restored to its original state at the family’s 
expense when the family moves.

Finally, HATC’s decision to deny or terminate 
the assistance of a family that includes a person 
with disabilities is subject to consideration of 
reasonable accommodation.  The notice of 
denial or termination informs applicants with 
disabilities of their right to request reasonable 
accommodations to participate in the informal 
hearing process.  When reviewing reasonable 
accommodation requests, HATC considers 
whether any mitigating circumstances can be 
verified to explain and overcome the problem 
that led to HATC’s decision to deny or terminate 
assistance. If a reasonable accommodation 
will allow the family to meet the requirements, 
HATC must make the accommodation.

The Admin Plan includes a section on 
accommodating limited English proficiency 
(LEP) persons.  HATC cites four factors in its 
consideration of the level of access needed by 
those with LEP, patterned upon HUD guidance:  
(1) the number or proportion of LEP persons 
eligible to be served or likely to be encountered 
by the Housing Choice Voucher program; (2) 
the frequency with which LEP persons come 
into contact with the program; (3) the nature 
and importance of the program, activity, or 
service provided by the program to people’s 
lives; and (4) the resources available to the 
HATC and costs.  

HATC will provide written translations of vital 
documents for each eligible LEP language 
group that constitutes 5% or 1,000 persons, 
whichever is less, of those eligible to be served 
or likely to be affected or encountered. Such 
documents include but are not limited to: the 
housing application, briefing packet, annual 
recertification packet, notice of rent change, 
termination notice, and notice of informal 
hearing. Translation of other documents, if 
needed, can be provided upon request.  If there 
are fewer than 50 persons in a language group 
that reaches the 5% trigger, HATC does not 
translate vital written materials, but provides 
written notice in the primary language of the 
LEP language group of the right to receive 
competent oral interpretation of those written 
materials free of cost.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



HATC has adopted HUD’s definition of family, 
which applies to two or more elderly or disabled 
persons living together, one or more elderly or 
disabled persons living with one or more live-
in aides, a family with a child or children, or a 
single person.  HATC expands the definition of 
a family to also include two or more individuals 
who are not related by blood, marriage (either 
licensed or Texas common law), adoption, 
or other operation of law but who either can 
demonstrate that they have lived together 
previously or certify that each individual’s 
income and other resources will be available to 
meet the needs of the family and will be living 
in the same dwelling unit.  This broad and 
inclusive definition supports non-traditional 
family types that may choose to live together 
for economic reasons.

HATC is not currently accepting applications 
for its voucher program, as its waiting list is 
closed.  According to the Admin Plan, the list 
is closed when the estimated waiting period 
for assistance for the most recent applicants 
reaches 12 months.  At least 15 days prior to 
any re-opening of the list, HATC must publish 
a notice in local newspapers of general 
circulation, minority media, and other suitable 
media outlets.

The Admin Plan includes what is essentially 
an affirmative marketing plan for the voucher 
program.  HATC monitors the characteristics 
of the population being served and the 
characteristics of the population as a whole in 
within its jurisdiction. If a comparison suggests 
that certain populations are being underserved, 
the Authority targets outreach efforts to ensure 
fair access.

PHAs are permitted to establish local 
preferences, and to give priority to serving 
families that meet those criteria.  HATC’s 
local preferences include a homeless set-
aside, 55-and-older families for project-based 
vouchers and a disability preference.  Within 
each targeted funding or preference category, 
families are selected on a first-come, first-
serve basis according to the date and time their 
complete application is received by HATC.

HATC provides oral briefings and briefing 
packets to households selected to participate 
in the voucher program.  Among standard 
inclusions in such briefings, which cover the 
basics of the programs and the rights and 
responsibilities of tenants, landlords and the 
Authority, HATC’s briefing packet includes a 
list of landlords or other parties willing to lease 
to assisted families or help families find units, 
especially outside areas of poverty or minority 
concentration.  Additionally, HATC policy 
states that it may also include additional items 
in the briefing packet related to expanding 
opportunity, including maps showing areas 
with housing opportunities outside areas of 
poverty or minority concentration, within and 
beyond Travis County; information about the 
characteristics of these areas including job 
opportunities, schools, transportation and other 
services; and an explanation of how portability 
works, including a list of portability contact 
persons for neighboring housing authorities, 
including names, addresses, and telephone 
numbers.

HATC’s payment standard is currently 100% 
of the HUD Fair Market rent according to unit 
size.  In 2012, this amounts to $713 for a 
studio, $812 for a one-bedroom unit, $989 for a 
two-bedroom unit, $1,331 for a three-bedroom 
unit and $1,516 for a four-bedroom unit.  As 
mentioned previously, HATC considers the 
reasonable accommodation of a higher 
payment standard as needed to assist persons 
with disabilities to find a suitable accessible 
unit, though HATC staff members reported in 
AI interviews that disabled voucher holders 
generally do not encounter difficulty finding a 
unit to rent. 

81

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



b.  admissions and  
      continued occupancy  
      policy

82

The Admission and Continued Occupancy 
Plan (ACOP) includes a public housing 
authority’s policies on the selection and 
admission of applicants from a waiting 
list, screening of applicants for tenancy, 
occupancy standards and policies, 
informal review/grievance hearing 
procedures, rent determinations, and 
procedural guidelines on conducting 
inspections, to name a few.  HATC’s 
ACOP was reviewed from a fair housing 
perspective to ensure that members of the 
protected classes are afforded adequate 
housing choices.  Specifically, the ACOP 
was reviewed to determine the presence 
of the following policies and whether these 
policies were in compliance with the Fair 
Housing Act:

• 

• 

• 

• 

Fair housing and equal opportunity 
non-discrimination clause that 
provides a list of the protected 
classes within a PHA’s jurisdiction,

Reasonable accommodation 
policies for persons with disabilities 
(relative to the application process, 
unit selection, and grievance 
procedures), 

Accommodations for persons with 
limited English proficiency (LEP) 
and a list of services a PHA is 
willing to provide such persons,

Definition of “family” and whether 
or not it includes non-traditional 
households with unrelated 
individuals,

Tenant selection policies and 
waiting list preferences to 
determine whether members of the 
protected classes are given any 
special consideration or if the local 
preferences restrict their housing 
choice,

Accommodations for applicants 
who refuse a unit offered due 
to a disability or other special 
circumstance, 

Transfer policies and procedures 
and whether such policies impede 
housing choice for members of the 
protected classes,

Pet policy accommodations for 
persons with disabilities that require 
service or assistance animals, and 
Grievance policies and procedures

• 

• 

•

• 

HATC’s Admissions and Continued 
Occupancy policy begins with a statement 
of fair housing and equal opportunity, 
noting that will comply fully with all federal, 
state, and local nondiscrimination laws, 
and with rules and regulations governing 
fair housing and equal opportunity in 
housing and employment, prohibiting 
discrimination on the basis race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, age, familial 
status or disability.  The list of protections 
does not explicitly reflect recent changes 
to HUD program regulation that expands 
the number of protected classes for 
agencies receiving HUD funds.  As of 
a Final Rule effective March 5, 2012, 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



83

HUD implemented policy with the intention of 
ensuring that its core programs are open to all 
eligible individuals and families regardless of 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital 
status, prohibiting discrimination of those types 
by any housing provider who receives HUD 
funding, including public housing agencies, 
those who are insured by the Federal Housing 
Administration, including lenders, and those 
who participate in federal entitlement grant 
programs through HUD.

HATC applies two different definitions of 
disability.  For the purpose of determining 
whether a person is entitled to the protections of 
federal disability civil rights laws, the Authority 
refers to a broad and inclusive definition; for 
the purpose of determining who is eligible to 
receive the disabled family preference, a $400 
elderly/disabled household deduction and an 
allowance for medical expenses, the Authority 
applies a more narrow HUD definition. 

In order to provide reasonable accomodation 
to persons with disabilities, HATC asks all 
households during the application process 
whether a specific accommodation is needed to 
allow the resident to fully utilize the Authority’s 
programs and services.  Provided examples 
include modifications to units or physical 
systems, allowing a live-in aide, allowing 
applications to be completed by mail and 
allowing an advocate to participate in meetings 
with staff.  Applicants or participants may 
request an exception, change or adjustment to 
policies and practices due to disability at any 
time, in writing or informally.

Within 10 days of a request for accommodation 
or modification, HATC returns a written decision 
regarding approval or denial.  Requests from 
persons with disabilities will be granted upon 
verification that they are made by or on behalf 
of a person with a disability, that there is a 

disability-related need for the accommodation 
and that the request would not impose an undue 
financial and administrative burden on HATC or 
fundamentally alter the nature of its operations.  
When a request is denied, the Authority may 
discuss alternative accommodation options 
with the family or inform the family of the right 
to appeal HATC’s decision through an informal 
hearing or the grievance process.

With regard to persons with limited English 
proficiency (LEP), HATC states that it will take 
“affirmative steps” to communicate with people 
who need services or information in a language 
other than English, determining the level of 
access according to HUD’s four-factor guidance 
for LEP compliance with Title VI.  Given the 
evidence from 2010 American Community 
Survey data that at least one LEP language 
group in HATC’s service area exceeds 1,000 
people, in order to fall within the “safe harbor” 
provided by HUD guidance, HATC would be 
required to translate its vital documents into 
Spanish.  During AI interviews, staff members 
indicated that its written materials are available 
in Spanish and that translators are available.  

HATC’s definition of a “family” allows those 
related by blood, marriage, adoption or other 
arrangement of law, as well as those who can 
demonstrate that they have lived together 
previously or certify that each individual’s 
income and resources will be available to 
meet the needs of the family.  Allowing non-
traditional households with unrelated members 
to share public housing units is a flexibility that is 
commendable from a fair housing perspective.

HATC policy is to close its waiting list when 
the estimated waiting period for applicants 
reaches 24 months for the most current 
applicants.  When the list reopens, 10 days’ 
notice is given in media outlets, including (but 
not limited to) the Austin American-Statesman, 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



84

El Mundo, Nokoa and the Manor Messager.  
When selecting families from the list, HATC 
applies only one local preference.  Working 
families, in which the head, spouse, co-head 
or sole member is employed at least 20 hours 
per week, are given preference “to bring 
higher-income families into public housing.”  
As required by HUD, this preference is also 
extended to households in which the head and 
spouse or sole member is age 62 or older or is 
a person with disabilities.

Beyond compliance with the federal 
requirements for poverty deconcentration and 
income-mixing among units, HATC adopted a 
statement of integration, specifying that it will 
not require any specific income or racial quotas 
per particular development; nor shall it steer 
based on protected class status for purpose of 
segregating populations.

HATC applicants who rise to the top of the waiting 
list and are offered a unit may refuse to accept 
it for “good cause,” with the Authority defines 
as situations in which the applicant is willing but 
unable to move, or the applicant demonstrates 
that accepting the offer would cause undue 
hardship not related to considerations of race, 
national origin, etc.  Some examples of “good 
cause” include inaccessibility to employment, 
education, job training or children’s day care.  
Such applicants are not removed from the 
waiting list.  However, when an applicant 
rejects a unit offer for reasons other than this, 
HATC removes the applicants name from the 
waiting list and informs the family of such, at 
which point the family may request an informal 
hearing.

HATC classifies three types of unit transfers: 
those occurring for emergency purposes (unit 
defects, a family health condition, a hate crime, 
etc); HATC-initiated transfers (immediate 
administrative transfers to accommodate 
households in need of accessibility features 
and regular administrative transfers to allow 

the Authority to meet occupancy goals) and 
resident-initiated transfers.  For the latter, HATC 
assigns a high priority to transfer requests for 
medical, safety or reasonable accommodation 
reasons, and regular priority for larger-unit and 
transportation access requests.

HATC places restrictions on the number and 
type of animals that residents may keep as 
pets and imposes requirements on their care 
and control.  However, exception is provided 
for assistance animals as a reasonable 
accommodation.

The ACOP describes HATC’s appeal 
procedures, including the informal hearing 
process and grievance handling.  The informal 
hearing process applies for applicants, while 
the grievance process is available to residents.  
Reasonable accommodations are available 
through both processes to ensure fair treatment 
for persons with disabilities.

HATC should update its 
ACOP to include the 
expanded class protections 
provided in recent HUD 
program guidance, 
prohibiting discrimination 
on the basis of marital 
status, sexual orientation or 
gender identity.

HATC should consider 
allowing public housing 
applicants to refuse a 
unit at least once without 
meeting the “good cause” 
criteria without losing 
position on the wait list.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Property Taxes

85

Taxes impact housing affordability.  While not 
an impediment to fair housing choice in and of 
themselves, real estate taxes can impact the 
choice that households make with regard to 
where to live.  Tax increases can be burdensome 
to low-income homeowners, and increases 
are usually passed on to renters through rent 
increases.  Tax rates for specific districts and 
the assessed value of all properties are the two 
major calculations used to determine revenues 
collected by a jurisdiction. Determining a 
jurisdiction’s relative housing affordability, in 
part, can be accomplished using tax rates.  
  
However, a straight comparison of tax rates 
to determine whether a property is affordable 
or unaffordable gives an incomplete and 
unrealistic picture of property taxes.  Local 
governments with higher property tax rates, for 
example, may have higher rates because the 
assessed values of properties in the community 
are low, resulting in a fairly low tax bill for any 
given property.  In all of the communities 
surrounding a jurisdiction, comparable rates 
for various classes of property (residential, 
commercial, industrial, etc.) are assigned 
to balance each community’s unique set of 
resources and needs.  These factors and 
others that are out of the municipality’s control 
must be considered when performing tax rate 
comparisons. 

Real estate taxes are the primary source of 
government revenue in Texas, levied on land 
and buildings to revenue streams for counties, 
municipalities, and school districts.  The state 
is one of only six in the nation that does not 
levy personal income taxes.  This, in part, 
explains what is a comparatively high property 
tax burden for Texas residents compared with 
those living in other states.  On the average, 
Texas residents pay 3.65% of their annual 
income in property taxes, the 12th highest 
percentage of income across the country, 
according to aggregated IRS records.   

The Travis Central Appraisal District (TCAD) 
decides what property is to be taxed and its 
appraised value, grants exemptions, and 
identifies what taxing jurisdictions can tax a 
property.  The TCAD is a separate local agency 
and is not part of County government or the 
County Tax Assessor’s Office.  The TCAD 
determines the market value of all taxable 
property, and the property is appraised at that 
value unless it is a primary residence subject 
to a cap. Once a property’s appraised and 
market values are equal, further increases (or 
decreases) in value will depend on the market 
in that neighborhood. The appraisal process 
allocates the tax burden to ensure that no one 
property pays more or less than its fair share. 

Following the TCAD assessment, each taxing 
jurisdiction levies a uniform tax millage rate 
against the assessed value of each property.  
Levies are measured in tenths of a cent and 
commonly called “mills.”  Levies are multiplied 
by the assessed value of a property to calculate 
a property owner’s real estate tax.  For FY 
2011, Travis County had a county-wide millage 
rate of 0.4855, in addition to individual school 
district rates ranging from 1.04 (Coupland) to 
1.62 mills (Dripping Springs) and city rates 
ranging from 0.02 in Bee Cave to 0.75 in Elgin.  

Additional levies exist on the level of municipal 
utility districts (MUDs), which are political 
subdivisions of the state authorized by the 
Texas Commission of Environmental Quality 
(TCEQ) to provide water, sewage, drainage 
and other services.  Sixty MUDs within Travis 
County maintain rates of 0.05 to 0.99 mills.

Finally, various levies exist in special districts 
to serve specific purposes, such as emergency 
service districts, volunteer fire departments, a 
community college, local road improvements 
or local parks and recreation programming.  
The total tax liability on a property reflects the 
layering of these various levies.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



86

A homeowner’s property tax costs in Travis 
County are considerable and vary greatly 
depending on a property’s location.  The Austin 
American-Statesman reported in June 2012 
that the typical Austin homeowner received 
a 2010 tax bill that was 38% higher than in 
2000, despite a median income that has held 
steady.    According to the Statesman, Travis 
County raised its levy on the average home 
46% during those years, from $667 annually to 
$975.  Other taxing authorities have kept pace 
with similar rate hikes.  

On a home at the County median value of 
$200,300, an owner would pay an average of 
1.98% in total property tax annually, amounting 
to $3,972.   Figure 5-2 contains a comparison of 
tax rates for municipalities and school districts 
in Travis County.

Texas and Travis County have several tax 
relief programs available to eligible property 
owners.  These include the following: 

figure 5-2
Property Tax Rates by Jurisdiction, 2011

Municipality Rate School District Rate
Austin 0.481100 Austin 1.242000
Bee Cave 0.020000 Del Valle 1.530000
Briarcliff 0.117500 Lake Travis 1.315900
Cedar Park 0.493501 Eanes 1.212500
Creedmoor 0.310900 Lago Vista 1.180000
Elgin 0.753900 Pflugerville 1.480000
Jonestown 0.560000 Hays 1.461300
Lago Vista 0.630000 Coupland 1.040050
Lakeway 0.199600 Elgin 1.540000
Leander 0.670420 Manor 1.515000
Manor 0.821200 Dripping Springs 1.620000
Mustang Ridge 0.357800 Marble Falls 1.290000
Pflugerville 0.599000 Johnson City 1.193000
Point Venture 0.090000 Round Rock 1.335000
Rollingwood 0.144600 Leander 1.499760
Round Rock 0.417280
San Leanna 0.249800
Village of the Hills 0.298000
Volente 0.128600
Webberville 0.302500
West Lake Hills 0.053400

Source: Travis CAD

• School taxes: All residential home  
 owners may qualify to receive a   
 $15,000 homestead exemption from  
 their home’s value for school taxes.
 
• County taxes: If a county collects a  
 special tax for farm-to-market roads or  
 flood control, a residential home owner 
 may qualify to receive a $3,000 
 exemption for this tax. 

• Age 65 or older and disabled   
 exemptions: Individuals 65 and older 
 and/or disabled residential home  
 owners may qualify for a $10,000  
 homestead exemption, in addition 
 to the $15,000 exemption for all   
 homeowners. If the owner qualifies for 
 both the $10,000 exemption for 65 and 
 older homeowners and the $10,000 
 exemption for disabled homeowners,  
 the owner must choose one or the  
 other. 

Optional percentage 
exemptions: 
Any taxing unit, including 
a city, county, school, or 
special district, may offer  
an exemption of up to 
20% of a home’s value or 
a property tax freeze for 
homeowners who are 65 
or older or disabled. Some 
restrictions apply. 

Optional 65 or older or 
disabled exemptions: 
Any taxing unit may offer 
an additional exemption 
amount of at least $3,000 
for taxpayers age 65 or 
older and/or disabled.

Disabled veterans are 
eligible for exemptions up 
to 100%.

• 

• 

•

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



87

Public Transit

Households without a vehicle, which in most 
cases are primarily low-moderate income 
households, are at a disadvantage in accessing 
jobs and services, particularly if public transit 
is inadequate or absent. Access to public 
transit is critical to these households. Without 
convenient access, employment is potentially 
at risk and the ability to remain housed is 
threatened.  The linkages between residential 
areas (of concentrations of minority and LMI 
persons) and employment opportunities are 
key to expanding fair housing choice.

According to the 2010 American Community 
Survey, there were 24,798 transit-dependent 
households in Travis County, comprising 6.3% 
of all households. The majority of households 
without access to a vehicle (85%) were renters.  
As further detailed in Figure 5-3, the vast 
majority of Travis County residents drove to 
work in 2010 (84.6%), with 73% driving alone.  
Throughout the County, only 3.9% depended 
on public transportation to commute.  Black and 
Hispanic households were more likely to use 
public transportation than White households.

Drove vehicle alone 373,443 73.0% 271,565 75.2% 29,204 76.3% 98,649 64.7%
Carpool 59,442 11.6% 35,580 9.9% 3,485 9.1% 30,656 20.1%
Public transportation 19,809 3.9% 10,612 2.9% 3,089 8.1% 7,783 5.1%
Walked 9,840 1.9% 6,843 1.9% 823 2.2% 2,635 1.7%
Taxi, motorcycle, bike or other means 17,339 3.4% 9,369 2.6% 685 1.8% 8,455 5.5%
Worked at home 31,610 6.2% 26,961 7.5% 969 2.5% 4,255 2.8%
Total 511,483 100.0% 360,930 100.0% 38,255 100.0% 152,433 100.0%

Source:  2006-10 American Community Survey (B08105A, B08105B, B08105I, B08301)

Total White Black Hispanic

figure 5-3
Means of Transportation to Work in Travis County, 2010

Capital Metro Transportation Authority (Cap 
Metro) offers a variety of bus and rail lines within 
the City of Austin.  However, routes do not 
extend into many areas of rural Travis County.  
Municipal participation in Cap Metro calls for 
the approval of a 1% local sales tax to support 
the system. Texas law limits local sales tax to 
2%, so cities that already commit a 2% local 
sales tax to other purposes cannot participate.  
Round Rock, for example, could not consider 
a vote to participate in Cap Metro unless its 
voters rolled back a portion of the current 
sales tax to allow room for a 1% Cap Metro 
tax.  When Cap Metro was originally formed in 
1985, Pflugerville and Cedar Park participated.  
These jurisdictions later withdrew, resulting 
in a withdrawal of service running through 
more areas of the County.  Increasing service 
through the Urban County’s CDBG jurisdiction 
would require some alternative arrangement 
with Cap Metro.

A fixed-route transit system connecting more 
employees to downtown Austin and job 
centers within the County could significantly 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



improve employment opportunities for lower-
income persons who typically rely on public 
transit to access jobs, thus increasing their 
potential success for better housing, including 
home ownership.  Current research indicates 
a strong connection between housing and 
transportation costs.  A recent study conducted 
by The Center for Housing Policy found that 
there is a clear trade-off between affordable 
housing and transportation expenses among 
working families.   The research revealed 
that families who spend more than 50% of 
their income on housing spend only 7.5% on 
transportation, while families who spend 30% 
or less of their income on housing spend 
almost 25% on transportation.  This equates to 
more than three times the amount spent than 
those in less affordable housing.  

The rationale behind this seemingly reverse 
equation is that many working families are 
moving further out into the suburbs where they 
may be able to afford housing, but then must 
spend much more of their income commuting 
to and from their jobs.  Others may live in 
urban neighborhoods but are forced to cross-
commute out to jobs in the suburbs.  In both 
cases, the study found that in their attempt 
to save money on housing, these families 
spent disproportionately higher amounts on 
transportation.  The study concluded that at 
about 12 to 15 miles in commuting distance, 
the increase in transportation costs outweighs 
the savings on housing.

These observations were echoed at the 
local level by social service providers, who 
noted that development and housing market 
patterns are pushing lower-income families to 
the outskirts of urban space, where no transit 
is available to connect them with jobs and 
services.  Jonestown, for instance, has one 
grocery store, to which people drive from a 
radius of many miles.  One affordable housing 

88

provider stated that transit service is “basically 
non-existent” outside of Austin.

Of course, limitations in the scale and 
frequency of Cap Metro service add up from 
an operational perspective.  Employment is 
heavily concentrated in Austin, which makes 
Cap Metro’s hub-and-spoke system model 
effective in efficiently providing service.  A 
representative from the transit agency 
explained “the classic transit trade-off” during 
an AI interview: Given limited resources, a 
balance must be achieved between service 
and coverage.  In past years, the agency has 
trimmed routes with low ridership and added 
capacity to other routes to meet demand.  In 
order for a route to be economically justifiable, 
it must average 16 riders per hour.  

Ultimately, Cap Metro follows federal 
requirements regarding where it can operate.  
The boundaries drawn by federal government 
are seemingly arbitrary and leave gaps, 
according to a staff member.  Other services 
may or may not cover the areas where Cap 
Metro does not and cannot operate.

The Capital Area Rural Transit System 
(CARTS) is one such provider, covering nine 
counties with fixed routes, commuter routes, 
curb-to-curb service and other offerings.  
CARTS was formed by an interlocal agreement 
among the nine counties and serves 161 
communities.  CARTS buses are based in 
five stations: Austin, Bastrop, Round Rock, 
San Marcos and Smithville.  CARTS connects 
communities outside of Austin with once-daily 
fixed route service, such as senior shopping 
days or local service, at a price of $1 to $4 each 
way.  In Travis County, routes generally depart 
between 8:00 and 9:00 a.m. on weekdays and 
return in the early afternoon, which indicates 
that they are not designed for work travel 
between communities.  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



map 5-4
Transit-Oriented Development Opportunities 
Identified by Capital Metro

Leander Station
Park & Ride

Tech Ridge
Park & Ride

Lakeline Station
Park & Ride

Jonestown 
Park & Ride

Manor
Park 
& Ride

Lago Vista 
Park & Ride

MetroRail Line

Plaza
Saltillo
Station

Highland Mall

Austin-
Bergstrom
International
Airport

FM 2222 

Bu
rn

et
 R

d. Rundberg   Ln

Parmer Ln.

45th

E. Riverside Dr.

M
oP

ac
 / L

oo
p 1

 

Oltorf St.

Lamar B
lvd.

MLK Blvd.

Airport    Blvd.

S.
 C

on
gr

es
s A

ve
.

51st

26th

Braker Ln.
Kramer Ln.

La
mar B

lvd
.

McNeil     
Dr.

7th

FM
 62

0

FM
 62

0

Lake 
Travis

183

290

290

183

71

71

71

183A

360

1

130

45

130

79

183

45

North Austin
Medical Center

Westgate
Transit Center

Domain—
mixed use

Domain

Pickle

Ohlen

Northcross

Koenig

49th
See
Inset
40th
38th

27th

UT

16th

Seaholm
Barton Springs
Lamar Square

Oltorf
Bluebonnet

Brodie Oaks

William Cannon

Stassney

S. Congress
Transit Center

St. Edwards
University

Oltorf

SoCo

Triangle

Koenig
Crestview

N. Lamar
Transit Center

Rundberg

Masterson
Kramer

Slaughter

Southpark Meadows
Retail Center

University
of Texas

TX Health and Human
Services Complex

Capitol

North
Loop

     Williamson   

Hays County

Bastr
op County

            Travis

Travis County

Tra
vis

 County

Round
Rock

Manor

Leander

Oak
Hill

Pflugerville

Cedar Park

Georgetown

Austin

To Elgin

To Bastrop

To San 
Antonio

To Dripping
Springs

North

Legend

Route 803
Burnet/South Lamar

MetroRapid Stops

Activity Center

MetroRail Station

MetroRail

Route 801
North Lamar/South Congress

Gu
ad

alu
pe

 S
t.

Capital Metro Facilities and Associated Properties:
Leander Station • Lakeline Station • Tech Ridge Park & Ride • Plaza Saltillo Station

      Travis   County

     W
illiam

son   County

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

LAKELINE

45 W

PARM
ER

183
H

W
Y

Lakeline TOD Neighborhood Connections

±

1 Mile Radius Around Station

0 0.1 0.2 0.30.05
Miles

Lakeline
Station

SWS
Beauty
School

Target

Home
Depot

Nvidia
Corp.

Applied Rigaku
Technologies

Forest North
Elementary

School
URS
Corp.

Avnet

RRISD
Athletic
Complex

Abacus
School of

Austin

Rutledge
Elementary

School Community
Pool

Avery
Ranch

Golf Club

AJ's
Cyclery

Park and
Ride

North American
Business

Consultants
Harmony School of

Political Science and
Communications

Walmart

Health
Clinic

Gym and
Pool

Town & Country
Youth Sports

Complex

Trail

Bike Route

Capital Metro Tract

MetroRail Station!

T.O.D. District

Bus Stop!

Applied
Materials Inc.

Reliance
Globalcom
Services

Health
Tronics
Group

E-MD

Swagelok

Blizzard
Entertainment

IncLakeline Mall
and

Lakeline Market

!
!
!!!

183A TOLL RD
E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

OLD 2243 WEST

RM 2243

Leander TOD Neighborhood Connections

±

1/2- Mile Radius Around Station

0 0.1 0.20.05
Miles

Park and
RideLeander

Station

HEB

Leander City
Office

Leander
Chamber of
Commerce

Leander
School District

Plain
Elementary

School

Leander
Grocery

MetroRail Station!

Capital Metro Tract

Bus Stop!

Cedar Park Regional
Medical Center

and
Cedar Park

Convention Center

Future Site of
Austin Community

College

!

!

!

!

!

!! !
!! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

HOWARD

H
EA

TH
ER

W
IL

D
E

LA
M

AR

§̈¦I-35

Tech Ridge TOD Neighborhood Connections

±

1/2 Mile Radius Around Bus Bay

0 0.1 0.20.05
Miles

Tech Ridge
Bus Bay

The Shops at
Tech Ridge

Pearson
Inc.

Memorial
Hill Park

Super
Target

Best
Buy

Sears

Walmart
Supercenter

Lowe's

John B.
Connally

High School

H.E.B.

Pet
Hospital

Hobby
Lobby

Foxconn

Animal
Day Care

Busy Bees
Preschool

Capital Metro Tract

Bus Stop!

T.O.D. District

Bike Route

Home
Depot

ATA Blackbelt
Academy

US
Farathane

Bella Springs
Apartments

Omega
Broadcast

Group

ChargePoint
Charging
Station

!

!

! !

! !
!

! !
!

! !

!
!
!

!

!
!!

!
!

! !

!

! 6TH

7TH

4TH

C
O

M
A

L

C
H

IC
O

N

W
A

LL
E

R

R
E

D
R

IV
E

R

CESAR CHAVEZ

Plaza Saltillo TOD Neighborhood Connections

§̈¦I-35

1/2-Mile Radius Around Station

Austin Library and
George Washington

Carver Museum

Huston
Tillotson
College

East Sixth
IBIZ District

Plaza Saltillo
Station

Zavala
Elementary

School

501
Studios

French
Legation
Museum

Downtown
Station

Texas
State

Cemetery

UT Elementary
Charter School

Lance Armstrong
Foundation

US Post
Office

Blackshear
Elementary

School

Comal
Park Heritage

Society of
Austin

Pan-American
Recreation

Center

Terrazas
Library

Corozon
(Mixed-Use

Project)

Kealing Park

±

0 0.1 0.20.05
Miles

±
Tejano Music Legends Trail

Tejano Healthy WalkingTrail

Capital Metro Tract

T.O.D. District

MetroRail Station!

Bus Stop!

Bike Route

Sanchez
Elementary

School

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



90

With regard to future planning, Cap Metro 
is pursuing opportunities to partner with 
communities to foster transit-oriented 
developent (TOD) in well-connected locations. 
TOD provides increased ridership, increased 
revenues from development, and more 
choices for the community.  Map 5-4 illustrates 
the location of sites Cap Metro has identified 
as opportunities where transit-oriented 
development would be appropriate.

However, future plans remain centered around  
connecting activity centers, all of which are in 
incorporated areas.  This leaves the problem 
of connection between employment centers 
and the lower-income households that live 
where affordable housing exists in the Urban 
County’s rural areas.

Fixed-route transit service 
is generally unavailable in 
most unincorporated areas 
of Travis County, isolating 
many lower-income 
neighborhoods from jobs 
and amenities.

Future transit-oriented 
development plans carry 
the potential to increase 
affordable housing 
opportunities in the 
communities where such 
plans are proposed, which 
could theoretically relieve 
some of the Urban County’s 
unmet affordable housing 
demand.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



91

6 Private sector
policies and
practices

The Fair Housing Act prohibits lenders from 
discriminating against members of the protected 
classes in granting mortgage loans, providing 
information on loans, imposing the terms and 
conditions of loans (such as interest rates and 
fees), conducting appraisals, and considering 
whether to purchase loans.  Unfettered access 
to fair housing choice requires fair and equal 
access to the mortgage lending market 
regardless of race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, familial status, disability, or any 
other statutorily protected basis.

An analysis of mortgage applications and their 
outcomes can identify possible discriminatory 
lending practices and patterns in a community. 
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA) data 
contains records for all residential loan activity 
reported by banks pursuant to the requirements 
of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, 
and Enforcement Act of 1989.  Any commercial 
lending institution that makes five or more 
home mortgage loans annually must report all 
residential loan activity to the Federal Reserve 
Bank, including information on applications 
denied, withdrawn, or incomplete by race, sex, 
and income of the applicant.  This information 
is used to determine whether financial 
institutions are serving the housing needs of 
their communities. 

The most recent HMDA data available for 
Travis County is for 2010.  The data included 
for this analysis is for three years, 2008 through 
2010, and constitutes all types of applications 
received by lenders by families: home 
purchase, refinancing, or home improvement 
mortgage applications for one- to four-family 
dwellings and manufactured housing units 
across the entire County.  The demographic 
and income information provided pertains 
to the primary applicant only.  Co-applicants 
were not included in the analysis.  Figure 6-1 
summarizes three years of HMDA data by race, 
ethnicity, and action taken on the applications, 
followed by detailed analysis.

Mortgage Lending Trends

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Figure 6-1
Cumulative Mortgage Data Summary Report, 2008-2010

92

Applicant 
Characteristics

Across Travis County during the last three 
years, lenders received 85,284 applications 
for home purchase, 94,016 applications for 
mortgage refinancing and 9,859 applications 
for home improvement equity loans.  The 
prevalence of demand for refinance is a function 
of historically low interest rates between 2008 
and 2010 that promised monthly housing cost 
savings to households that could qualify.  Of all 
three loan types, refinancing applications were 
the most likely to be successful, as 45.3% were 
originated, compared to 43% of home purchase 
loans and 35.7% of home improvement loans.  

More than two in every five home purchase loan 
applications were withdrawn or left incomplete, 
and 9.4% were denied.  By comparison, 31.7% 
of refinancing applications were not completed, 
and an additional 15.6% were denied.  Home 
improvement loans represent a smaller share 
of all applications, with 5.2% of the total, but 
carry a notably higher denial rate: 40.3% of 
applications of this type were rejected.

# % # % # % # % # %

Home purchase 85,284 45.1% 36,637 43.0% 3,374 4.0% 8,046 9.4% 36,069 42.3%
Refinancing 9,859 5.2% 3,516 35.7% 610 6.2% 3,974 40.3% 1,480 15.0%
Home improvement 94,016 49.7% 42,546 45.3% 4,261 4.5% 14,637 15.6% 29,766 31.7%

Conventional 147,617 78.0% 66,929 45.3% 7,190 4.9% 21,984 14.9% 47,744 32.3%
FHA 33,832 17.9% 12,642 37.4% 855 2.5% 3,869 11.4% 16,070 47.5%
VA 5,232 2.8% 2,205 42.1% 156 3.0% 391 7.5% 2,424 46.3%
FHS/RHS 2,478 1.3% 923 37.2% 44 1.8% 413 16.7% 1,077 43.5%

One to four-family unit 186,806 98.8% 82,082 43.9% 7,641 4.1% 25,867 13.8% 67,001 35.9%
Manufactured housing unit 2,324 1.2% 609 26.2% 604 26.0% 785 33.8% 301 13.0%
Multi-family unit 29 0.0% 8 27.6% 0 0.0% 5 17.2% 13 44.8%

Native American 1,158 0.6% 388 33.5% 49 4.2% 374 32.3% 314 27.1%
Asian 8,811 4.7% 4,689 53.2% 454 5.2% 1,132 12.8% 2,285 25.9%
Black 7,009 3.7% 2,461 35.1% 336 4.8% 2,012 28.7% 1,992 28.4%
Hawaiian 482 0.3% 223 46.3% 23 4.8% 108 22.4% 117 24.3%
White 127,406 67.4% 63,874 50.1% 6,039 4.7% 17,910 14.1% 36,720 28.8%
No information 26,580 14.1% 11,055 41.6% 1,343 5.1% 5,121 19.3% 8,185 30.8%
Not applicable 17,713 9.4% 9 0.1% 1 0.0% 0 0.0% 17,702 99.9%
Hispanic** 22,655 12.0% 8,682 38.3% 1,338 5.9% 5,700 25.2% 6,371 28.1%
Total* 189,159 100.0% 82,699 43.7% 8,245 4.4% 26,657 14.1% 67,315 35.6%

* Total applications also include 3,969 loans purchased by another institution.
** Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010
Note:  Percentages in the Originated, Approved Not Accepted, Denied, and Withdrawn/Incomplete categories are calculated for each line item 
with the corresponding Total Applications figures.  Percentages in the Total Applications categories are calculated from their respective total 
figures.

Loan Type

Property Type

Total 
Applications* Originated Approved Not 

Accepted Denied Withdrawn/
Incomplete

Loan Purpose

Applicant Race

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Loan application types varied slightly across 
racial and ethnic groups. The most common 
loan type for White and Asian households was 
refinancing, constituting 49.9% of applications 
for each of those groups. Blacks and Hispanics 
were somewhat less likely to refinance, as this 
loan type represented 42.9% and 42.0% of all 
applications for these households, respectively.  
Hispanics were more likely than any other 
group to apply for a home purchase loan, as 
50% of applications from Hispanic households 
were for this purpose. 

The vast majority of applications involved one- 
to four-family housing structures, with only 
2,324 applications (1.2%) requesting financing 
for manufactured units and 29 applications 
for owner-occupied multi-family units.  The 
denial rate for manufactured units, 33.8%, was 
substantially higher than the overall denial rate 
of 14.1% for all housing types.

The most commonly sought type of financing 
was conventional loans, a category that 
represented more than three-quarters (78%) 
of all loan applications.  An additional 17.9% 
of applications were for loans insured by the 
Federal Housing Administration (FHA), a 
type of federal assistance that has historically 
benefited lower-income residents.  Smaller 
percentages of applications were for loans 
backed by the Department of Veterans Affairs 
(VA) and the Farm Services Administration or 
Rural Housing Service (FSA/RHS).

Figure 6-2
Loan Application Type by Race/Ethnicity, 2008-2010

The racial and ethnic composition of loan 
applicants differs somewhat from the County’s 
general demographic distribution.  While 8.6% 
of all Travis County households in 2010 were 
Black, Blacks constituted only 4.8% of the 
loan applications for which racial/ethnic data 
were reported.  Similarly, Hispanic residents 
comprise 24.8% of all County residents, 
but only submitted 15.6% of all loans that 
reported ethnicity data. White households are 
overrepresented among mortgage applicants, 
representing a share of applications exceeding 
their share of households countywide (87.9% 
of applications compared to 72.4% of all 
households).  Asian applicants represented 
6.1% of applications, exceeding their 5.4% 
share of total households in 2010.  Lower 
participation in the market for home mortgages 
by Black and Hispanic households is likely a 
reflection of the lower median income of these 
minority groups. 

Grouping all three years of data into the 
analysis increases the likelihood that 
differences among groups are statistically 
significant.  This is especially important in view 
of the data on mortgage application denials, 
which also suggests differences according to 
race and ethnicity.

93

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

85,284 56,556 3,307 4,167 668 20,586 11,324
45.1% 44.4% 47.2% 47.3% 40.7% 46.5% 50.0%
94,016 63,634 3,005 4,397 787 22,193 9,510
49.7% 49.9% 42.9% 49.9% 48.0% 50.1% 42.0%
9,859 7,216 697 247 185 1,514 1,821
5.2% 5.7% 9.9% 2.8% 11.3% 3.4% 8.0%

189,159 127,406 7,009 8,811 1,640 44,293 22,655
100.0% 67.4% 3.7% 4.7% 0.9% 23.4% 12.0%

Note: Percentages within racial/ethnic groups are calculated within each group's total.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Home purchase

Refinance

Home improvement

Total

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Geographic Distribution of 
Approvals by Lender

Figure 6-3 provides a summary of the top 10 
lenders in the County based on total number 
of loan originations between 2008 and 2010.  
Wells Fargo was the top lender in the County, 
with more than 9,800 originations over the 
three-year period, and accounted for more than 
one in every 10 loans originated in the County.  
The U.S. Justice Department accused Wells 
Fargo, a major participant on a national scale 
in subprime lending prior to 2007, of lending 
practices that the Department described 
as reckless at best and predatory at worst, 
resulting in foreclosure concentrations that 
have decimated urban neighborhoods.    The 
result has been a disparate negative impact 
on minority homeowners, who were more 
commonly the targets of predatory lending.  As 
part of a settlement reached in 2012 with the 
Department regarding discriminatory policies, 
Wells Fargo will invest $50 million across eight 
metropolitan areas to revitalize neighborhoods 
blighted by foreclosure-related housing 
abandonment.  None of the metropolitan 
areas receiving settlement funds are located in 
Texas.

Figure 6-3
Top 10 Lenders in Travis County
by Number of Originations, 2008-2010

Map 6-1 illustrates the distribution of 
originations for the top 10 lenders, with 
each dot representing two mortgage loan 
originations.  There appears to be no particular 
concentration of loans by location for any 
particular lender, which suggests the absence 
of obvious redlining.  Notably, some areas in 
the eastern end of the Urban County are nearly 
entirely bereft of mortgage originations.  The 
comparative lack of loans by any lender in these 
areas is an indicator of low investment in their 
real estate during 2008 to 2010, whether due 
to disparate impact of the housing market crisis 
or difficulty of credit access for households who 
would purchase homes in these areas.

Wells Fargo, which 
recently agreed to a 
$50M settlement with the 
U.S. Justice Department 
related to allegations 
of discriminatory and 
predatory lending, was 
Travis County’s largest 
mortgage lender by number 
of originations in recent 
years.

94

Lending Institution # of Loans 
Originated 

 % of Loans 
Among All 

Banks 
Wells Fargo* 9,807 11.9%
Bank of America 5,829 7.0%
JP Morgan Chase 3,255 3.9%
Flagstar Bank 2,290 2.8%
Int'l Bank of Commerce 2,242 2.7%
Network Funding 2,067 2.5%
Countrywide Bank 2,035 2.5%
Prime Lending 2,004 2.4%
Capstar Lending 1,938 2.3%
Citimortgage 1,765 2.1%
Total 33,232 40.2%
*Wells Fargo Bank and Wachovia Bank merged on 
December 31, 2008.
Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 
2008 to 2010

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

Impacted Block Groups

1 Dot = 2

Wells Fargo

JP Morgan Chase

Flagstar Bank

Bank of America

Countrywide Bank

Int'l Bank of Commerce

Prime Lending

Capstar Lending

Network Funding

Citimortgage

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 6-1
Distribution of Originations by Lender, 2008-2010

1 dot = Two originations

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



96

Mortgage Application 
Denials

During the years 2008 through 2010, a total of 
26,657 mortgage loan applications were denied 
across Travis County.  The overall cumulative 
denial rate was 14.1% with denials by race 
and ethnicity ranging from 12.8% for Asian 
households to 32.3% for Native American 
households.  

In reporting denials, lenders are required to list 
at least one primary reason for denial and may 
list up to two secondary reasons.  As Figure 
6-4 demonstrates, a substantial proportion 
of denials occurred for no given reason.  
The primary basis for the rejection of 6,840 
applications, or 25.7% of all denials, was left 
blank.  This was even more prevalent in the 
denials for Black households, 41.3% of which 
(830 of 2,012) were rejected without a reported 
reason.  Other common reasons given for 
denial include credit history, lack of collateral, 
and debt-to-income ratio. 

More than 40% of 
mortgage denials for 
Black applicants occurred 
for no given reason.

Figure 6-4
Primary Reason for Mortgage 
Application Denial by Race, 2008-2010

Mortgage loan denial 
rates among most 
minority applicants were 
higher than denial rates 
for Whites between 2008 
and 2010. 

Total White Black  Asian Other Hispanic*  No Info 
No reason reported 24.9% 22.4% 41.3% 18.4% 41.7% 29.4% 27.3%
Credit history 17.7% 17.1% 24.8% 22.5% 23.2% 24.6% 18.3%
Debt-to-income ratio 17.7% 19.2% 10.0% 21.8% 11.2% 17.5% 15.0%
Collateral 12.8% 13.7% 8.8% 14.0% 8.7% 10.1% 12.8%
Incomplete application 10.3% 10.5% 4.6% 12.8% 6.0% 5.7% 11.7%
Other 9.4% 9.5% 7.4% 12.5% 6.4% 6.9% 9.1%
Unverifiable information 4.2% 4.3% 1.4% 7.1% 1.5% 3.0% 4.9%
Insufficient cash 1.5% 1.6% 1.0% 1.6% 0.8% 1.3% 1.1%
Employment history 1.4% 1.6% 0.5% 2.5% 0.4% 4.5% 1.2%
Insurance denied 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.4% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



For this analysis, lower-income households 
include those with incomes between 0%-
80% of MFI, while upper-income households 
include households with incomes above 
80% MFI.  Applications made by lower-
income households accounted for 29% of all 
denials between 2008 and 2010, though they 
accounted for only 24.5% of total applications 
for those three years.  

Figure 6-5 distributes the denials by income 
level among racial and ethnic groups.  Among 
lower-income households, denial rates were 
generally higher for minorities.  While the 
overall lower-income denial rate was 22%, 
the denial rates for lower-income Blacks, 
Other Race households (consisting primarily 
of Native Americans), and Hispanics were 
33.6%, 40.6%, and 31.1%, respectively.  
Lower-income Asian applicants experienced a 
denial rate of 21.6%, which was comparable to 
the 20.5% denial rate for Whites. 

While denial rates were generally lower 
for upper-income households, differences 
persisted across racial and ethnic groups.  The 
overall upper-income denial rate was 12.2%, 
compared to 10.6%, 20.3%, 22.9%, and 27.1% 
for upper-income Asian, Hispanic, Other Race, 
and Black households, respectively.  Lower-
income White households were much less 
likely to experience denial than upper-income 
Blacks households.  This pattern is consistent 
with discrimination.

Map 6-2 on the following page illustrates denial 
rates by census tract in Travis County.   Many 
of these tracts bearing higher denial rates are 
located in neighborhoods associated in a prior 
section of the AI with limited opportunity.

Figure 6-5
Mortgage Application Denials by Household Race/Ethnicity, 2008-2010

Over the course of the 
three years studied, upper-
income Black and Other 
Race households received 
mortgage application 
denials more often than 
lower-income White 
households.

97

Three-year high-cost aggregate

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

Total Originations 17,910 13,789 966 749 188 2,218 3,537
High-Cost 1,482 1,116 125 31 29 181 600
% High-Cost 8.3% 8.1% 12.9% 4.1% 15.4% 8.2% 17.0%
Total Originations 61,964 48,045 1,174 3,856 404 8,485 4,702
High-Cost 3,261 2,579 123 110 24 425 360
% High-Cost 5.3% 5.4% 10.5% 2.9% 5.9% 5.0% 7.7%
Total Originations 82,699 63,874 2,461 4,689 611 11,064 8,682
High-Cost 4,950 3,849 286 143 55 617 993
% High-Cost 6.0% 6.0% 11.6% 3.0% 9.0% 5.6% 11.4%

Three-year denials aggregate

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

Total Applications 46,407 32,788 3,168 1,748 630 8,073 10,754
Denials 10,202 6,732 1,065 377 256 1,772 3,341
% Denied 22.0% 20.5% 33.6% 21.6% 40.6% 21.9% 31.1%
Total Applications 124,378 89,632 3,093 6,837 947 23,869 10,675
Denials 15,125 10,604 839 727 217 2,738 2,164
% Denied 12.2% 11.8% 27.1% 10.6% 22.9% 11.5% 20.3%
Total Applications 189,159 127,406 7,009 8,811 1,640 44,293 22,655
Denials 35,197 17,910 2,012 1,132 482 5,121 5,700
% Denied 18.6% 14.1% 28.7% 12.8% 29.4% 11.6% 25.2%

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Note: Total also includes 18,374 applications for which no income data was reported.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Lower-Income

Upper-Income

Total

Note: Total also includes 2,825 loans for which no income data was reported.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Lower-Income

Upper-Income

Total

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Impacted Block Groups

Mortgage Denial Rate
Less than 10%

10% to 15%

15.1% to 20%

20.1% to 30%

30.1% to 50%

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 6-2
Denial Rates by Census Tract, 2008-2010

Source:  FFIEC HMDA Files

White outline:

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



99

The widespread housing finance market 
crisis of recent years has brought a new level 
of public attention to lending practices that 
victimize vulnerable populations. Subprime 
lending, designed for borrowers who are 
considered a credit risk, has increased the 
availability of credit to low-income persons. 
At the same time, subprime lending has often 
exploited borrowers, piling on excessive 
fees, penalties, and interest rates that make 
financial stability difficult to achieve. Higher 
monthly mortgage payments make housing 
less affordable, increasing the risk of mortgage 
delinquency and foreclosure and the likelihood 
that properties will fall into disrepair.

Some subprime borrowers have credit scores, 
income levels, and down payments high 
enough to qualify for conventional, prime 
loans, but are nonetheless steered toward 
more expensive subprime mortgages. This is 
especially true of minority groups, which tend 
to fall disproportionately into the category of 
subprime borrowers.  The practice of targeting 
minorities for subprime lending qualifies as 
mortgage discrimination.

Since 2005, HMDA data has included price 
information for loans priced above reporting 
thresholds set by the Federal Reserve Board. 
This data is provided by lenders via Loan 
Application Registers and can be aggregated 
to complete an analysis of loans by lender or 
for a specified geographic area. HMDA does 
not require lenders to report credit scores for 
applicants, so the data does not indicate which 
loans are subprime. It does, however, provide 
price information for loans considered “high-
cost.” 

A loan is considered high-cost if it meets one of 
the following criteria:

• A first-lien loan with an interest rate 
 at least three percentage points higher 
 than the prevailing U.S. Treasury 
 standard at the time the loan   
 application was filed. The standard  
 is equal to the current price of
 comparable-maturity 
 Treasury securities

• A second-lien loan with an interest rate 
 at least five percentage points higher 
 than the standard

Not all loans carrying high APRs are subprime, 
and not all subprime loans carry high APRs. 
However, high-cost lending is a strong predictor 
of subprime lending, and it can also indicate 
a loan that applies a heavy cost burden on 
the borrower, increasing the risk of mortgage 
delinquency.

Between 2008 and 2010, there were 
82,699 home purchase, refinance, or home 
improvement loans made for single-family or 
manufactured units in Travis County.  Of this 
total, 79,874 (96.6%) disclosed the borrower’s 
household income and 4,950 (6%) reported 
high-cost mortgages.  Overall, upper-income 
households, with the exception of Black 
households, were significantly less likely to 
have high-cost mortgages as lower-income 
households.

High-Cost
Lending

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



100

An analysis of loans in Travis County by race 
and ethnicity reveals that Black households are 
overrepresented in high-cost lending.  Among 
lower-income minority households, 17% of 
mortgages obtained by Hispanic housholds 
and 12.9% of mortgages obtained by Blacks 
were high-cost, compared to 8.3% of the 
mortgages obtained by lower-income White 
households and only 4.1% of those obtained 
by lower-income Asian households. 

Similar trends were apparent among upper-
income households.  Asian households were 
the least likely to have high-cost mortgages 
(2.9%), while White households experienced 
a high-cost rate of 5.4%.  The high-cost 
mortgage rate for upper-income Hispanic 
households was much higher at 7.7%, and 
Black households had the worst high-cost rate 
among upper-income borrowers at 10.5%. 
Details appear in Figure 6-6.

Figure 6-6
High-Cost Home Purchase Loans
by Race and Ethnicity, 2008-2010

Upper-income Black and 
Hispanic households were 
more likely to receive a 
high-cost loan than lower-
income White or Asian 
households.

Map 6-3 on the following page depicts the 
distribution of high-cost loans by census 
tract across the County, indicating a higher 
prevalence along Austin’s eastern fringe.  
This area of Travis County is characterized 
previously in the AI as predominantly lower-
opportunity, especially compared to the stable, 
opportunity-rich neighborhoods west of the 
city.

Total White  Black Asian Other  No data Hispanic* 

Total Originations 17,910 13,789 966 749 188 2,218 3,537
High-Cost 1,482 1,116 125 31 29 181 600
% High-Cost 8.3% 8.1% 12.9% 4.1% 15.4% 8.2% 17.0%
Total Originations 61,964 48,045 1,174 3,856 404 8,485 4,702
High-Cost 3,261 2,579 123 110 24 425 360
% High-Cost 5.3% 5.4% 10.5% 2.9% 5.9% 5.0% 7.7%
Total Originations 82,699 63,874 2,461 4,689 611 11,064 8,682
High-Cost 4,950 3,849 286 143 55 617 993
% High-Cost 6.0% 6.0% 11.6% 3.0% 9.0% 5.6% 11.4%

Source:   Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008 to 2010

Lower-Income

Upper-Income

Total

Note: Total also includes 2,825 loans for which no income data was reported.
* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



1

20

8

13

14

2

10

25

15

31

18

3

12

6

16

4

9

19

30

29

7

28

17

21

5

26

27

23

22

32

24

5
11

23

Urban County Exceptions

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Impacted Block Groups

Percent High-Cost
Less than 4%

4% to 8%

8.1% to 15%

15.1% to 30%

More than 30%

1 - Austin
2 - Barton Creek
3 - Bee Cave
4 - Briarcliff
5 - Cedar Park
6 - Creedmoor
7 - Elgin
8 - Garfield
9 - Hornsby Bend
10 - Hudson Bend
11 - Jollyville
12 - Jonestown
13 - Lago Vista
14 - Lakeway
15 - Leander
16 - Lost Creek
17 - Manchaca
18 - Manor

19 - Mustang Ridge
20 - Pflugerville
21 - Point Venture
22 - Rollingwood
23 - Round Rock
24 - San Leanna
25 - Shady Hollow
26 - Sunset Valley
27 - The Hills
28 - Volente
29 - Webberville
30 - Wells Branch
31 - West Lake Hills
32 - Windemere

map 6-3
High-Cost Loan Rates by Census Tract, 2008-2010

Source:  FFIEC HMDA Files

White outline:

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



102

Annual Trends in
Mortgage Lending

Studying mortgage application data on an 
annual basis allows insight into the influence 
of housing market trends on the behavior of 
applicants and banks.  Figure 6-7 illustrates 
annual change. 

While housing markets across the country 
have experienced steep declines in sales 
volume and mortgage applications since 2008 
as a result of buyer reluctance in an unstable 
market, the number of applications in Travis 
County increased from 55,588 in 2008 to 
71,875 in 2009 before falling to 61,696 in 2010. 
As noted previously, refinancing loans account 
for a large percentage of total applications. 
This is true in all three years. 

Over the course of the three years studied, 
the percentage of applications that resulted 
in loan originations increased, on the whole 
and across most racial groups, including Black 
households.  The number of loans that were 
high-cost dropped substantially each year, 
likely as a direct result of increasing statutory 
control over predatory lending practices.  It 
is also possible that education and outreach 
related to borrowing has contributed to the 
decline in high-cost loans.  Between 2008 and 
2010, the proportion of applications resulting 
in denials declined from 17.2% to 13.1%.  
This change also occurred across all minority 
groups. 

Figure 6-7
High-Cost Home Purchase Loans
by Race and Ethnicity, 2008-2010

Between 2008 and 2010, 
high-cost lending rates 
dropped substantially, 
both overall and across all 
racial and ethnic groups.

# % # % # %

   Applied for 55,588    100.0% 71,875     100.0% 61,696     100.0%
        Black 2,575      4.6% 2,554       3.6% 1,880       3.0%
        White 37,250    67.0% 47,387     65.9% 42,769     69.3%
        Asian 2,283      4.1% 3,370       4.7% 3,158       5.1%
        Hispanic* 8,184      14.7% 7,714       10.7% 6,757       11.0%
        Other race 623         1.1% 570          0.8% 447          0.7%
        No information/NA 12,857    23.1% 17,994     25.0% 13,442     21.8%
   Originated 23,032    41.4% 31,333     43.6% 28,334     45.9%
        Black 778         30.2% 926          36.3% 757          40.3%
        White 17,884    48.0% 24,140     50.9% 21,850     51.1%
        Asian 1,128      49.4% 1,822       54.1% 1,739       55.1%
        Hispanic* 2,889      35.3% 2,973       38.5% 2,820       41.7%
        Other race 216         34.7% 210          36.8% 185          41.4%
        No information/NA 3,026      23.5% 4,235       23.5% 3,803       28.3%
   Originated - High Cost 1,914      8.3% 1,759       5.6% 1,277       4.5%
        Black 140         18.0% 77           8.3% 69           9.1%
        White 1,460      8.2% 1,386       5.7% 1,003       4.6%
        Asian 42           3.7% 61           3.3% 40           2.3%
        Hispanic* 487         16.9% 270          9.1% 236          8.4%
        Other race 31           14.4% 14           6.7% 10           5.4%
        No information/NA 241         8.0% 221          5.2% 155          4.1%
   Denied 9,581      17.2% 8,982       12.5% 8,094       13.1%
        Black 922         35.8% 701          27.4% 389          20.7%
        White 6,344      17.0% 5,964       12.6% 5,602       13.1%
        Asian 319         14.0% 417          12.4% 396          12.5%
        Hispanic* 2,463      30.1% 1,833       23.8% 1,404       20.8%
        Other race 237         38.0% 149          26.1% 96           21.5%
        No information/NA 1,759      13.7% 1,751       9.7% 1,611       12.0%

* Hispanic ethnicity is counted independently of race.
Source: Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council, 2008-10

Note:  Data is for home purchase, refinance and improvement loans for owner-occupied units.  
Other application outcomes include approved but not accepted, withdrawn, incomplete or 
purchase by another institution.

2008 2009 2010

Total loans

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



103

Newspaper Advertising

Under federal law, no advertisement with 
respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling 
may indicate any preference, limitation, or 
discrimination because of race, color, religion, 
sex, handicap, familial status or national origin.  
Publishers and advertisers are responsible 
under federal law for making, printing, or 
publishing advertisements that violate the Fair 
Housing Act on its face. Thus, they should 
not publish or cause to be published an 
advertisement that expresses a preference, 
limitation or discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or 
national origin. The law, as found in the Fair 
Housing Amendments Act of 1988, describes 
the use of words, photographs, symbols 
or other approaches that are considered 
discriminatory.

The classified sections of The Austin American-
Statesman for August 26, September 2, 
and September 9, all Sunday editions, were 
reviewed for this analysis.  While many of the 
advertisements described be properties located 
outside of Travis County’s CDBG jurisdiction, 
the review of ads was conducted to determine 
the newspaper’s compliance with fair housing 
laws and its own publisher’s policy.

The real estate section of the three printed 
Sunday editions stretched across the pages 
of the Statesman Home newspaper section, 
containing ads for home sales as well as 
rental opportunities and feature stories.  The 
publisher’s policy on accepting advertisements, 
which would generally include a statement that 
the paper reserves the right to edit, refuse, 
reject or cancel an ad at any time, in addition 
to any demands of compliance with fair housing 
standards, was not prominently displayed in 
the print edition.  Nor was it obvious during 
the process of placing an apartment rental 
ad on Statesman.com, which provides “tips 
for an effective ad,” but no anti-discrimination 
guidelines.  Both in its print and online section 
of classified ads devoted to real estate, the 
Statesman should state that it will not knowingly 
accept any advertising for real estate that is in 
violation of the Fair Housing Act.

However, in the three print editions reviewed 
and in a sample of online-only listings, no 
potentially discriminatory language was found.  
This suggests that a screening system of some 
kind is in place at the Statesman to ensure that 
any discriminatory language is filtered out of 
published content.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



7 evaluation of 
current fair 
housing profile

Progress Since 
Previous AI

104

This document is Travis County’s first Analysis 
of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, though 
it builds upon efforts to affirmatively further fair 
housing that have already taken root in the 
County’s administration of the CDBG program.  
When the program was first implemented in 2006 
the County operated under the City of Austin’s AI, 
which contained some County-level data, with little 
specifically reported on the unincorporated areas.  
Since then, County staff members have developed a 
better picture of conditions and needs in those areas 
through the development of the Consolidated Plan, 
the social work project and other data sources.  Staff 
members have also increased capacity with regard 
to addressing fair housing issues.

In its Consolidated Planning documents and in day-
to-day program activities, the County has already 
demonstrated recognition of a need to affirmatively 
further fair housing that extends beyond the County’s 
statutory responsibility to uphold the tenets of the 
federal Fair Housing Act and the Texas Fair Housing 
Act.  This AI is the result of a comprehensive effort 
to identify and contextualize barriers to fair housing.  
Additionally, it provides a specific course for 
action with the ultimate goal of equalizing housing 
opportunities for all people.  The County will use 
the AI’s recommendations as a pattern for the 
implementation of fair housing initiatives, then will 
record fair housing accomplishments in each year’s 
CAPER.

Prior to the development of this document, the 
County based its understanding of local impediments 
on the AI conducted by the City of Austin and in 
collaborative work with community partners and 
the Kirwan Institute to produce a Geography of 
Opportunity analysis for the greater Austin region.  
This report characterized neighborhoods of Travis 
County and other areas with regard to minority 
concentrations and access to the indicators of 
opportunity that predict positive life outcomes.

Fair Housing
Activities

Travis County’s CDBG program spreads limited 
resources across projects intended to meet 
multiple aims: assisting low- and moderate-
income households in obtaining affordable 
housing, improving the safety and livability 
of neighborhoods and increasing access to 
services.  The County’s fair housing activities 
are built into the way in which these goals are 
addressed, with attention toward ensuring that 
housing opportunities are promoted among 
traditionally underserved populations and 
that the living environment is improved in 
isolated, lower-income rural neighborhoods.  
Infrastructure projects are designed to create 
access for the disproportionately minority LMI 
areas often forgotten by other social service 
providers, whether it is in the form of public 
water where there was none, safe roads to 
connect communities or social workers to link 
needs to resouces.  At the same time, the 
County has identified sites within proximity 
of opportunity-rich western neighborhoods 
where investments would broaden housing 
choice for members of the protected classes.  
The County’s fair housing activities are 
represented in the balance it aspires to strike 
between revitalizing the areas of greatest need 
and opening access to its areas of greatest 
opportunity.

Additionally, fair housing principles factor 
into the details of program administration, as 
represented by strong affirmative marketing 
requirements and expansive outreach to 
ensure that the Urban County’s substantial 
limited-English-speaking population has full 
access to County programs and services.

In its 2010 CAPER, the latest available for 
review, the County reported more concrete 
fair housing accomplishments.  The County 
published educational information on fair 
housing via the CDBG website and Travis 
County’s TV channel.  CDBG funds paid for 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



105

training from the Corporation for Supportive 
Housing to train Permanent Supportive 
Housing providers about fair housing and how 
to ensure the use of preferences and waiting 
lists without violating fair housing laws.  Grant 
funds also paid for land to assist with the 
development of affordable single-family homes 
being built to visitability standards.  Additionally, 
Travis County Social Service Contracts in the 
amount of $132,582.81 provided legal aid and 
Austin Tenants Council services to provide fair 
housing resources for a total of 9,968 clients 
during the 2010 program year. Social service 
contracts are also in place to address financial 
literacy and to increase income through 
workforce development efforts.

The County’s Housing Finance Corporation 
expands the local inventory of affordable 
housing through the issue of bonds for 
affordable residential construction.  The 
HFC’s primary consideration in proposal 
evaluation appears to be feasibility, as there 
are no geographic priorities in place for the 
multi-family bond financing program.  HFC 
works closely with the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs, which has 
recently built desegregation incentives into 
its qualified allocation plan for housing tax 
credits.  However, it is unclear whether the 
state agency has carried this policy priority into 
its other programs.

Travis County does not have the authority to 
empower a local commission to enforce anti-
discrimination statutes at the County level.  
Therefore, County residents living outside of 
Austin may experience legal discrimination 
on the basis of sexual orientation, gender 
identity, age, or student status, though such 
discrimination is illegal in Austin.  Across all 
of Travis County, landlords are still legally 
permitted to discriminate based on a person’s 
source of income.

Fair Housing
Advocates

Austin Tenants Council (ATC) is a HUD-
certified counseling agency that participates in 
HUD’s Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP), 
through which ATC partners with HUD to help 
people identify government agencies that 
handle complaints of housing discrimination.  
Additionally, the Council conducts fair housing 
and outreach activities in Travis County and 
conducts discrimination testing across Central 
Texas.  

The Council currently has a contract with 
Travis County to provide landlord-tenant 
services.  For the first six years of the CDBG 
program, ATC did not provide a project 
proposal for funding consideration to serve the 
unincorporated areas.  However, in 2012, the 
program approached ATC about providing fair 
housing services and negotiated the contract 
that is now in place.

While ATC focuses primarily on housing rights 
for tenants, other agencies serve more specific 
constituent populations.  Austin Resource 
Center for Independent Living, Easter Seals 
and Family Eldercare provide housing-related 
services for persons with disabilities, and El 
Buen Samaritano Episcopal Mission targets 
the area’s Latino population for assistance with 
health care, education and economic stability.  
These agencies, among many others, are part 
of a local network of advocacy to advance fair 
housing for members of the protected classes 
in Travis County.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



8 general 
fair housing 
observations

Demographic and Housing 
Market Observations

106

This section of the AI is a summary of general 
observations included in earlier sections of 
the report.  General observations include the 
results of primary and secondary research 
that define the underlying conditions, trends, 
and context for fair housing planning in the 
Urban County.  These observations in and 
of themselves do not necessarily constitute 
impediments to fair housing choice.  Rather, 
they establish a contextual framework for the 
impediments to fair housing choice that are 
presented in the following section of the AI.

1

2

The Urban County’s population grew 
42.9% during the last 10 years, a 
net gain of 54,069 residents.  Travis 
County led all Texas counties in 
growth between 2000 and 2010.

Since 2000, a gain in the raw number 
of White residents across Travis 
County has outpaced the gain 
among non-Whites, especially in the 
City of Austin. However, the Urban 
County has become more diverse, 
driven primarily by strong growth in 
the Hispanic population.  Hispanics 
represent the Urban County’s largest 
minority group, accounting for 28.9% 
of all residents. (See Page 18 for more 
information on the difference on race 
and ethnicity in Census categories.)

4

5

3
Recent demographic shifts have 
been characterized as “bright 
flight,” an attraction of higher-
income professionals to Austin that 
has gentrified traditionally minority 
neighborhoods and drIven lower-
income households to the fringes of 
urban development.

There are 22 racially and/or ethnically 
concentrated block groups in the 
Urban County, the majority of which 
qualify as low- and moderate-
income.  These impacted areas are 
concentrated in the eastern half of 
Travis County.

Though integration has increased 
during the last 10 years, Travis 
County’s Black and Hispanic 
populations remain moderately 
segregated from its White population.

6
The 2010 median income for Black 
and Hispanic households in Travis 
County was roughly two-thirds the 
median income for Whites.  Lower 
household incomes among Blacks 
and Hispanics are reflected in 
lower home ownership rates when 
compared to Whites and Asians. 

7
Based on the Pew Institute 
methodology of the largest 
metropolitan areas in the country, the 
metro in which Travis County is located 
ranks as the most economically 
segregated in the United States.  
Other areas across Texas also lead 
the nation in economic segregation.

8 Travis County residents with 
disabilities were substantially more 
likely to live in poverty than those 
without disabilties. In 2010, 24.1% of 
those with disabilities lived in poverty, 
compared to 14.5% of those without 
disabilities.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



107

9

10

Female-headed households with 
children accounted for 45.9% of all 
families living in poverty in Travis 
County.  About one-third of all 
households of this type were living 
below the poverty line in 2010.

Blacks and Hispanics were 
substantially more likely than Whites 
and Asians to be unemployed in 2010 
across the Urban County as well as 
across Texas.

The Urban County gained more than 
19,000 housing units between 2000 
and 2010, an inventory increase 
exceeding 40% in only 10 years.

Multi-family housing structures are 
less common in unincorporated 
areas, where they represent 15.4% 
of the housing stock.  By contrast, 
44.8% of the stock in cities and towns 
is multi-family.  A lack of larger rental 
units consisting of three or more 
bedrooms has a disproportionately 
greater impact on minority families, 
who tend to live in larger families.

11

12

The housing market in Travis County 
is widely considered to be increasingly 
unaffordable.  Generally speaking, it 
is the most unaffordable to Black and 
Hispanic households as a function 
of the lower median incomes among 
these groups.

13

The CDBG Office currently 
administers funds from multiple 
prior grant years simultaneously in 
an effort to meet HUD timeliness 
requirements.  

1

Programmatic
Observations

Between 2008 and 2010, high-cost 
lending rates dropped substantially, 
on the whole and across all racial and 
ethnic groups.  This is likely a direct 
result of increased statutory control 
over predatory lending practices, 
as well as increasing borrower 
awareness.

14

County departments take individual 
approaches to ensuring that 
the substantial limited-English-
proficiency population in Travis 
County is afforded full access to 
programs and services.  The CDBG 
Office implements its programs 
according to a comprehensive set of 
internal LEP policies as it works to 
formalize a Language Access Plan.

2

The Housing Authority has adopted 
recent changes to HUD program 
regulation prohibiting discrimination 
on the basis of marital status, sexual 
orientation and gender identity.  The 
Authority has also recently adopted 
local preferences for homeless 
persons and those with disabilities.

3

Black and Hispanic households are 
overrepresented among housing 
voucher holders and applicants 
in comparison to their share of all 
households across the County.

4

The County has allocated general 
funds to activities that further fair 
housing, such as the AI and tenant 
services.

5

In its CDBG administration, the 
County balances a need to improve 
the quality of life in impoverished 
areas with expanding access to 
opportunity-rich neighborhoods.

6

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



9 impediments 
to fair housing 
choice

108

Public Sector Impediments:
Market Based 

1 isolation of low-income 
rural communities 

Pockets of extreme poverty exist in some rural 
areas of the Urban County, neighborhoods 
in which homes and living environments are 
substandard, sometimes unsafe, and in which 
residents largely do not interact with the local 
economy.  Settlement in the rural periphery 
has been accelerated by rising housing costs 
in Austin that have pressured lower-income 
minority households to seek affordable units in 
unincorporated areas beyond the city’s border.  
Jobs and amenities are scarce in such areas and 
transit connections are very limited.

2 poor condition of housing 
stock in unincorporated areas

Due to the absence of building codes applicable 
to residential construction and mobile homes 
in unincorporated areas, a substantial share 
of housing in the Urban County is considered 
by housing advocates to be substandard, 
deteriorated or otherwise  unsuitable as a 
living environment.  These present challenges 
for agencies that attempt to provide minor 
rehabilitation or accessibility retrofitting, as many 
units actually require substantial rehabilitation.

action step 1: The County should continue to 
invest CDBG funds to provide basic 
living environment improvements 
in impacted areas.  Additionally, 
support for social workers should 
continue, as they have been a 
critical resource in connecting far-
flung low-income residents with 
available programs and services.

action step 1: The CDBG program should 
continue investment in the 
rehabilitation of owner-occupied 
housing in the Urban County.  

action step 2: The County should study the 
feasibility of pursuing Section 108 
funds through the CDBG program.  
If secured, the County could 
access up to five times its annual 
entitlement grant to capitalize 
its rehab program.  This activity 
would make more funds available 
to the County at one time.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



3 increasingly prohibitive 
housing costs

The median housing value in Travis County 
shot up 55.2% between 1990 and 2010, while 
real median income rose only 17.7%.  Property 
taxes in the County, a substantial component 
of home ownership costs, have also risen over 
time.  Renting has also become more expensive, 
as the Urban County lost half of its units renting 
for less than $500 between 2000 and 2010, while 
the number of units renting for more than $1,000 
more than doubled.  Minimum-wage, single-family 
households and those depending on SSI cannot 
afford an apartment renting at the fair market rate.

action step 1: The County should support the 
Housing Finance Corporation in 
growing its tenant-based rental 
assistance program and seeking 
greater engagement among 
landlords, particularly with units 
outside of impacted areas.

action step 2: The County should encourage 
the HFC to continue its efforts to 
provide down payment assistance 
to income-eligible households 
and work with developers to 
create affordable units through 
the single-family and multi-family 
bond programs.

action step 3: The County should encourage 
the Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation to proceed with 
plans to acquire and maintain 
the affordability of tax-credit 
developments for which 
affordability requirements are set 
to expire.

4 persistence of housing 
discrimination 

The most common basis cited in housing 
discrimination complaints across the Urban 
County, far and away, was disability. Between 2007 
and 2010, six separate complaints were lodged 
against the same affordable housing development 
for seniors in Pflugerville.  Nearly all alleged a 
failure to make reasonable accommodation or 
allow reasonable modification  for persons with 
disabilities.  Austin Tenants Council noted that 
many landlords in the unincorporated areas are 
smaller outfits, owning only a few units, and 
may be less aware of fair housing rights and 
responsibilities. 

action step 1: The County should continue 
outreach and education efforts 
related to fair housing, including 
publication of such material online 
and on the County’s TV network.

action step 2: The County should continue to 
engage ATC to conduct further 
education and outreach or 
paired testing in unincorporated 
areas, focusing on disability 
discrimination in the rental market.

109

action step 4: The County should encourage the 
HFC to incorporate priority areas 
for new construction investment 
into its funding guidelines to 
expand affordable housing in 
opportunity areas.

action step 5: The County should develop an 
Affordable Housing Policy for 
Travis County that includes siting 
recommendations.

action step 6: The County should develop 
incentive-based permitting 
processes for mixed-income 
subdivisions.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



110

5 presence of discriminatory 
restrictive deeds/covenants

Because land use in the unincorporated areas 
is not governed by zoning regulations, control 
commonly takes the form of deed/covenant 
restrictions.  While discriminatory provisions are 
illegal and unenforceable, housing advocates 
reported a general lack of awareness with regard 
to fair housing rights and responsibilities among 
homeowners’ associations, which has resulted 
in the enforcement of discriminatory rules and a 
lack of accomodation for persons with disabilities.  
Explicitly discriminatory language still exists in 
some deeds and restrictions (“no minorities”), 
though less obvious discrimination is more 
common in requirements (minimum structure 
size, “masonry only”) that attempt to prevent 
the development of affordable housing types in 
certain neighborhoods.

action step 1: The CDBG office should file a 
fair housing complaint with HUD  
or ATC upon encountering any 
discriminatory restrictive deeds or 
covenants.

Public Sector Impediments:
Policy Based 

6 concentration of voucher 
holders in impacted areas

Due to the wide range of affordability levels across 
areas of Travis County, Housing Choice Voucher 
holders are located primarily in less expensive 
communities that are more likely to be impacted 
areas. The AI map displaying the distribution of 
voucher holders shows their near absence from 
the western half of the County.  This suggests that 
the fair market rent is insufficient to afford a unit in 
many neighborhoods within that region.

action step 1: HATC’s voucher briefing packet 
contains information on areas of 
opportunity.  The Authority should 
consider increasing its efforts 
toward assisting voucher holders 
to find affordable units in the 
western half of the County.

action step 2: HFC should continue its efforts 
to acquire affordable housing 
developments before their 
conversion to market-rate units.  
This would help to preserve the 
affordable housing inventory in 
Travis County.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



8 lack of local human rights 
or fair housing ordinance

While the state’s fair housing ordinance extends 
protection against discrimination to Travis County 
residents, there is no local institutional structure in 
place to coordinate fair housing efforts or collect 
housing discrimination complaints.  Additionally, 
private-market discrimination is currently legal 
in all areas except Austin on the basis of marital 
status, sexual orientation and gender identity.  In 
all areas of the County, landlords may discriminate 
based on a person’s source of income.

action step 1: The County should pass a 
resolution or proclamation 
that serves as a government-
wide statement of intention to 
promote fair housing and prohibit 
discrimination.

111

9
need for improved connections 
between residents and 
employment opportunities

From an operational perspective, the footprint 
of Cap Metro’s fixed-route service area and its 
orientation toward connecting activity centers is 
logical.  However, the absence of regular Cap 
Metro and CARTS service in most areas of the 
Urban County creates a disconnect between lower-
income residents, employment and amenities.  
Additionally, the lack of connection represents a 
barrier to the development of affordable housing 
in many unincorporated areas.

action step 1: The County should continue to 
collaborate with Cap Metro and 
CARTS to create innovative 
solutions that serve particular 
neighborhood connection needs.  
One example is the success of the 
CARTS service in Del Valle.

The County should participate in 
Cap Metro’s long-range planning 
efforts to promote the expansion 
of public transit service in non-
impacted, high-growth areas of 
the Urban County.  This could 
include the creation of ride-to-work 
public transit routes that consider 
the needs of second shift workers.

action step 2:

7
absence of authority 
for local oversight over 
design and construction

Aside from the limited respects in which the 
International Fire Code applies to multi-family 
dwellings, the County has little authority 
to exercise oversight over the design and 
construction of residential units, particularly 
with regard to compliance with accessibility 
requirements.  ATC’s testing results have 
revealed newly constructed rental properties in 
Travis County that are unlawfully inaccessible to 
persons with disabilities.  Instead of these issues 
being identified early in the design process, non-
compliant features are often identified through the 
fair housing complaint process.

action step 1: The County should contract 
with ATC to provide training to 
architects, engineers and other 
design professionals.

action step 2: The County should continue its 
legislative advocacy efforts in the 
interest of gaining increased land-
use authority and the ability to 
adopt and enforce a building code.

action step 3: HFC should prioritize its 
investment funding criteria to 
focus on major corridors with 
public transit service.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



112

11 questionable patterns 
in private lending

Wells Fargo, which recently agreed to a $50M 
settlement with the U.S. Justice Department 
related to allegations of discriminatory and 
predatory lending, was Travis County’s largest 
mortgage lender by number of originations in 
recent years.  Mortgage loan denial rates among 
most minority applicants were higher than denial 
rates for Whites between 2008 and 2010, and 
more than 40% of the denials for Black applicants 
included no given reason.  During the same years, 
upper-income Black and Other Race households  
received mortgage application denials more often 
than lower-income White households.  Finally, 
upper-income Black and Hispanic households 
were more likely to receive  a high-cost loan than 
lower-income White or Asian households. 

action step 1: The County has no jurisdiction 
over lending practices.  However, 
to the extent that it can provide 
or connect residents to financial 
counseling and homebuyer 
education, these services would 
especially benefit lower-income 
and minority households.

Private Sector Impediment:
Market Based 

10 improvements needed in 
some policy documents

The CDBG program in Travis County was noted 
to incorporate fair housing principles, effectively 
advancing housing choice within the capabilities 
of the limited resources available.  The following 
recommendations would further strengthen the 
program and those of other agencies involved in 
housing across the County as noted.

action step 1: The CDBG Office should amend 
the Affirmative Marketing 
Plan to include a statement of 
consequences for noncompliance, 
which could potentially include a 
recapture of funds, disallowance 
of future participation in the 
CDBG program and/or a referral 
of the matter to HUD and/or a fair 
housing rights organization such 
as Austin Tenants Council.

action step 2:

action step 3: HATC should update its ACOP to 
specifically prohibit discrimination 
against the new classes protected 
by changes to HUD program 
administration as of March 2012 
(marital status, sexual orientation 
or gender identity).

The CDBG Office should formalize 
its Language Access Plan for 
persons with limited English 
proficiency.

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Fair Housing 
Action Plan

113

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Improve living conditions for 
lower-income populations, 
among which members of the 
protected classes are heavily 
represented

Continue to invest CDBG funds to provide basic 
living environment improvements in impacted 
areas

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Reporting of completed 
projects in CAPER

Ongoing

Improve living conditions for 
lower-income populations, 
among which members of the 
protected classes are heavily 
represented

Continue to support social workers in efforts to 
connect far-flung low-income residents with 
available programs and services

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Reporting of completed 
projects in CAPER

Ongoing

Balance the revitalization of 
racially/ethnically 
concentrated LMI areas with 
the expansion of affordable 
housing opportunities 
elsewhere

Continue investment in the rehabilitation of 
owner-occupied housing in the Urban County

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Number of homes 
rehabilitated

Ongoing

Balance the revitalization of 
racially/ethnically 
concentrated LMI areas with 
the expansion of affordable 
housing opportunities 
elsewhere

Study the feasibility of pursuing Section 108 
funds through the CDBG program, which would 
allow access to up to five times the annual 
entitlement grant to infuse the housing 
rehabilitation program with capital

CDBG Office Completed analysis 2014 Staff time

Impediment #1: Isolation of low-income rural communities

Impediment #2: Poor condition of housing stock in unincorporated areas

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



114

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Balance the revitalization of 
racially/ethnically 
concentrated LMI areas with 
the expansion of affordable 
housing opportunities 
elsewhere

Support the Housing Finance Corporation in 
growing its tenant-based rental assistance 
program and seeking greater engagement 
among landlords, particularly with units outside 
of impacted areas

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Increase in participating 
landlords, geographic reach 
of program

Ongoing

Balance the revitalization of 
racially/ethnically 
concentrated LMI areas with 
the expansion of affordable 
housing opportunities 
elsewhere

Encourage the HFC to continue its efforts to 
provide down payment assistance to income-
eligible households and work with developers to 
create affordable units through the single-family 
and multi-family bond programs

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Households assisted Ongoing

Preserve affordable housing 
stock

Encourate the Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation to proceed with plans to acquire 
and maintain the affordability of tax-credit 
developments for which affordability 
requirements are set to expire

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Number of units preserved Ongoing

Balance the revitalization of 
racially/ethnically 
concentrated LMI areas with 
the expansion of affordable 
housing opportunities 
elsewhere

Encourage the HFC to incorporate priority areas 
for new construction investment into its funding 
guidelines to expand affordable housing in 
opportunity areas

CDBG Office
Amendment to funding 
guidelines

2014

Balance the revitalization of 
racially/ethnically 
concentrated LMI areas with 
the expansion of affordable 
housing opportunities 
elsewhere

Develop and Affordable Housing Policy for 
Travis County that includes siting 
recommendations

HFC
Implementation of new 
policy

2016

Balance the revitalization of 
racially/ethnically 
concentrated LMI areas with 
the expansion of affordable 
housing opportunities 
elsewhere

Develop incentive-based permitting processes 
for mixed-income subdivisions

Planning and Budget 
Office

Implementation of 
incentives

2016

Impediment #3: Increasingly prohibitive housing costs

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



115

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Maintain efforts to identify, 
understand and eliminate 
discrimination

Continue education and outreach efforts related 
to fair housing, including publication of such 
material online and on the County's TV network

CDBG Office
Proliferation of fair housing 
information

Ongoing

Maintain efforts to identify, 
understand and eliminate 
discrimination

Continue to engage ATC to conduct education 
and outreach or paired testing in unincorporated 
areas, focusing on disability discrimination in 
the rental market

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Number of people assisted 
and/or tests conducted

Ongoing

Remove policy barriers to fair 
housing opportunity

File a fair housing complaint with HUD or ATC 
upon encountering any discriminatory restrictive 
deeds or covenants

CDBG Office Complaints filed Ongoing Staff time

Deconcentrate poverty
Increase efforts toward assisting voucher 
holders to find affordable units in the western 
half of the County

HATC
Implementation of additional 
integration strategies

2014 Staff time

Preserve affordable housing 
stock

Continue efforts to acquire affordable housing 
developments before their conversion to market-
rate

HFC Number of units preserved Ongoing

Impediment #4: Persistence of housing discrimination

Impediment #5: Presence of discriminatory restrictive deeds/covenants

Impediment #6: Concentration of voucher holders in impacted areas

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



116

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Improve physical accessibility 
of housing 

Contract with ATC to provide training to 
architects, engineers and other design 
professionals

CDBG Office
Number of professionals 
receiving training

2015-2016

Improve physical accessibility 
of housing 

Continue legislative advocacy in the interest of 
gaining increased land-use authority and the 
ability to adopt and enforce a building code

Commissioners Court
Advocacy actions 
completed

Ongoing

Maintain efforts to identify, 
understand and eliminate 
discrimination

Pass a resolution or proclamation that serves as 
a government-wide statement of intention to 
promote fair housing and prohibit discrimination

Commissioners Court Adoption of such 2015

Improve connections between 
lower-income population and 
employment opportunities

Continue to collaborate with Cap Metro and 
CARTS to create innovative solutions that serve 
particular neighborhood connection needs 

CDBG Office Continued collaboration Ongoing

Improve connections between 
lower-income population and 
employment opportunities

Participate in Cap Metro's long-range planning 
efforts to promote the expansion of public transit 
service in non-impacted, high-growth 
unincorporated areas, particularly ride-to-work 
routes

CDBG Office Continued collaboration Ongoing

Improve connections between 
lower-income population and 
employment opportunities

Prioritize investment criteria to incentivize 
affordable housing development on major 
corridors with public transit service 

HFC Implementation of criteria 2016

Impediment #9:  Need for improved connections between residents and employment opportunities

Impediment #7: Absence of authority for local oversight of design and construction

Impediment #8: Lack of local human rights or fair housing ordinance

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



117

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Goals Strategies to Meet  Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed Potential Cost Date Completed 

Increase the strength of fair 
housing policies

Amend the Affirmative Marketing Plan to include 
a statement of consequences for 
noncompliance, which could potentially include 
a recapture of funds, disallowance of future 
participation in the program and/or a referral of 
the matter to a fair housing rights organization

CDBG Office Updated AMP 2014 $0 

Increase access to programs 
and services for members of 
the protected classes

Formalize the Language Access Plan for 
persons with limited English proficiency

CDBG Office Completion of Plan 2014 Staff time

Remove policy barriers to fair 
housing opportunity

Update the ACOP to specifically prohibit 
discrimination against the new classes 
protected by 2012 changes to HUD program 
regulation

HATC Updated ACOP 2014 $0 

Increase credit access, 
awareness of discriminatory 
practices among members of 
the protected classes

Provide or connect lower-income and minority 
households to financial counseling and 
homebuyer education

CDBG Office Households assisted Ongoing

Impediment #11: Questionable patterns in private lending

Impediment #10:  Improvements needed in some policy documents

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



118

Signature Page

By my signature I certify that this report fulfills the requirement that the County, as part of 
its certification to affirmatively further fair housing, complete an Analysis of Impediments 
to Fair Housing Choice.  The County intends to take appropriate actions to overcome 
the effects of the impediments identified through the analysis and to maintain records 
reflecting actions in this regard.

______________________________________________________
Travis County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe

__________________________
Date

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



appendix a

chart of stakeholders invited to
participate in the development of the ai Stakeholder Chart

Consultation Process for the
Williamson County, TX Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice

Type of Organization Name of Organization Type of Organization Name of Organization

Safe Place

Corporation for Supportive Housing

Foundation for the Homeless

AIDS Services of Austin

Capital Area Food Bank of Texas

Meals on Wheels and More

Travis County District Attorney's Office

Public Housing Authority
Housing Authority of Travis County

Society of St. Vincent de Paul  St. Margaret 
Mary - Cedar Park

Greendoors Society of St. Vincent de Paul St. Mary Our 
L d  f h  L k  L  ViAustin CHDO Roundtable Joseph's Food Pantry

Austin Habitat for Humanity/Homebase Travis County Health & Human Services & 
V  S i  S h R l C i  Frameworks CDC Austin Tenants' Council 

Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans 
Service

City of Austin Equal Employment and Fair 
Housing Office

Accessible Housing Austin Texas Rio Grande Legal Aid

Helping the Aging Needy and Disabled (H.A.N.D) Cap Metro

Family Eldercare CARTS

Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services

Literacy Coalition of Central Texas

Manos de Christo

Austin Board of Realtors

Social Service Organizations, 
Housing for Special Needs 

Populations, etc.
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 
Department

Travis County Health & Human Services & Veterans 
Service

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation

Affordable Housing 
Providers, CHDOs

Advocacy Organizations 
for Persons with 
Disabilities

Ad  O i ti  

County CDBG & HOME 
Programs

County Planning / 
Zoning Staff / Director

Local fair housing 
organizations, legal aid 
agencies

Public transit agency

Realtors Association

Workers Defense Project / PDL

American Gateways

El Buen Samaritano

Refugee Services of Texas
Saheli

Advocacy Organizations 
for Persons with LEP

PAGE 1

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Fair Housing Plan

APPENDIX B
Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Appendix B: Analysis of Impediments Report
Final Draft April 2014

Most Current Version Fair Housing Action Plan_Revised 100114.xlsx Page 1

Goals Strategies to Meet Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed

Progress in 2014
Progress 
in 2015

Progress in 
2016

Progress 
in 2017

Progress 
in 2018

Date 
Completed

Continue to invest CDBG funds to provide basic 
living enironeent improvements in impacted 
areas

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Reporting of 
Completed 
Projects in the 
CAPER

Ongoing

Continue to support social workers in efforts to
connect far-flung low-income residents with
available programs and services

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Reporting of 
Completed 
Projects in the 
CAPER

Ongoing

Look for opportunties to expand services to far-
flung low income residents through new 
investement or by influencing others to invest in a 
more georgraphically targeted way.

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Reporting of New 
Opportunities in 
the CAPER

Ongoing

Continue investment in the rehabilitation of
owner-occupied housing in the Urban County

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Number of homes 
rehabilitated

Ongoing

Look for opportunities to invest in the creation of 
new affordable housing in non-impacted areas of 
moderate to very high opportunity

CDBG Office

Reporting of New 
Opportunities 
Reviewed in the 
CAPER

Ongoing

Study the feasibility of pursuing Section 108
funds through the CDBG program, which would
allow access to up to five times the annual
entitlement grant to infuse the housing
rehabilitation program with capital

CDBG Office Completed 
Analysis

2016

Travis County Fair Housing Action Plan

Impediement #2:  Poor condition of housing stock in uncorporated areas

Balance the revitalization of
racially/ethnically
concentrated LMI areas with
the expansion of affordable
housing opportunities
elsewhere

Improve living conditions for 
lower-income populations,
among which members of the
protected classes are heavily
represented

Impediment #1:  Isolation of low-income rural communities

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Appendix B: Analysis of Impediments Report
Final Draft April 2014

Most Current Version Fair Housing Action Plan_Revised 100114.xlsx Page 2

Goals Strategies to Meet Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed

Progress in 2014
Progress 
in 2015

Progress in 
2016

Progress 
in 2017

Progress 
in 2018

Date 
Completed

Support the Housing Finance Corporation in
growing its tenant-based rental assistance
program and seeking greater engagement
among landlords, particularly with units 
outside of impacted areas

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Reporting of 
Completed 
Projects in the 
CAPER

Ongoing

Encourage the HFC to continue its efforts to
provide down payment assistance to income 
eligible households and work with developers to 
create affordable units through the single-family 
and multi-family bond programs 

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Reporting of 
Completed 
Projects in the 
CAPER

Ongoing

Encourage the HFC to incorporate priority areas for 
new construction investment into its funding 
guidelines to expand affordable housing in 
opportunity areas

CDBG Office
Reporting of New 
Opportunities in 
the CAPER

Ongoing

Develop an Affordable Housing Policy for
Travis County that includes siting
recommendations

CDBG Office, HFC and 
Commissioners Court

Implementation 
of new policy 2015/2016

Develop incentive-based permitting processes
for mixed-income subdivisions TNR Implementation 

of new incentives 2016

Preserve affordable housing stock

Encourate the Strategic Housing Finance
Corporation to proceed with plans to acquire
and maintain the affordability of tax-credit
developments for which affordability
requirements are set to expire

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Number of units 
preserved

Ongoing

Continue education and outreach efforts related to 
fair housing, including publication of such material 
online and on the County's TV network

CDBG Office
Proliferation of 
fair housing 
information

Ongoing

Continue to engage ATC to conduct education and 
outreach or paired testing in unincorporated areas, 
focusing on disability discrimination in the rental 
market

CDBG Office, 
Commissioners Court

Number of people 
assisted and/or 
test conducted

Ongoing

 Travis County Fair Housing Action Plan

Impediment #3:  Increasingly prohibitive housing costs

Balance the revitalization of
racially/ethnically
concentrated LMI areas with
the expansion of affordable
housing opportunities

Impediment #4:  Persistence of housing discrimination

Maintain efforts to identify,
understand and eliminate
discrimination

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Appendix B: Analysis of Impediments Report
Final Draft April 2014

Most Current Version Fair Housing Action Plan_Revised 100114.xlsx Page 3

Goals Strategies to Meet Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed

Progress in 2014
Progress 
in 2015

Progress in 
2016

Progress 
in 2017

Progress 
in 2018

Date 
Completed

Remove policy barriers to fair 
housing opportunity

File a fair housing complaint with HUD or ATC 
upon encountering any discriminatory 
restrictive deeds or covenants

CDBG Office Complaints filed Ongoing

Deconcentrate poverty
Increase efforts toward assisting voucher
holders to find affordable units in the western
half of the County

HATC

Implementation 
of additional 
integration 
strategies

2017

Preserve affordable housing stock

Continue efforts to acquire affordable housing
developments before their conversion to 
marketrate

HFC Number of units 
preserved

Ongoing

Contract with ATC to provide training to
architects, engineers and other design
professionals

CDBG Office
Proliferation of 
fair housing 
information

2017-2018

Continue legislative advocacy in the interest of 
gaining increased land-use authority and the ability 
to adopt and enforce a building code

Commissioners Court Advocacy action 
complete

2015 & 2017

Maintain efforts to identify,
understand and eliminate
discrimination

Pass a resolution or proclamation that serves as a 
government-wide statement of intention to 
promote fair housing and prohibit discrimination

Commissioners Court Adoption of such 2015

Travis County Fair Housing Action Plan

Impediment #5:  Presence of discriminatory restrictive deeds/covenants

Impediment #7:  Absence of authority for local oversight of design and construction

Improve physical accessibility of 
housing

Impediment #6:  Concentration of voucher holders in impacted areas

Impediment #8:  Lack of local human rights or fair housing ordinance

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Appendix B: Analysis of Impediments Report
Final Draft April 2014

Most Current Version Fair Housing Action Plan_Revised 100114.xlsx Page 4

Goals Strategies to Meet Goals Responsible Entities Benchmark
Year to be 
Completed

Progress in 2014
Progress 
in 2015

Progress in 
2016

Progress 
in 2017

Progress 
in 2018

Date 
Completed

Continue to collaborate with Cap Metro and CARTS 
to create innovative solutions that serve particular 
neighborhood connection needs

CDBG Office Continued 
Collaboration

Ongoing

Participate in Cap Metro's long-range planning 
efforts to promote the expansion of public transit 
service in non-impacted, high-growth 
unincorporated areas, particularly ride-to-work 
routes

CDBG Office Continued 
Collaboration

Ongoing

Prioritize investment criteria to incentivize
affordable housing development on major
corridors with public transit service

HFC Implementation 
of criteria

2016

Increase the strength of fair
housing policies

Amend the Affirmative Marketing Plan to include a 
statement of consequences for noncompliance, 
which could potentially include a recapture of 
funds, disallowance of future participation in the 
program and/or a referral of the matter to a fair 
housing rights organization

CDBG Office Updated AMP 2015

Increase access to programs
and services for members of
the protected classes

Formalize the Language Access Plan for
persons with limited English proficiency CDBG Office Completion of 

Plan
2015

Remove policy barriers to fair
housing opportunity

Update the ACOP to specifically prohibit
discrimination against the new classes
protected by 2012 changes to HUD program
regulation

HATC Updated ACOP 2015

Increase credit access,
awareness of discriminatory
practices among members of
the protected classes

Provide or connect lower-income and minority
households to financial counseling and
homebuyer education

CDBG Office
Households 
assisted

Ongoing

Impediment #11:  Questionable patterns in private lending

Impediment #9:  Need for improved connections between residents and employment opportunitities

Improve connections between
lower-income population and
employment opportunities

Travis County Fair Housing Action Plan

Impediment #10:  Improvements needed in some policy documents

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



APPENDIX C

Public Comment

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

 PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 

  

The Draft Analysis of Impediments was presented to the Travis County Commissioners Court on 
November 5, 2013. After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the draft AI was posted 
for public review and comment from November 13, 2013 to December 12, 2013. Notices announcing 
the comment period were posted in English and Spanish on the County’s website, in the Travis County 
Community centers and sent via email and postal mail. Additionally, a public hearing was held at Travis 
County Commissioners Court on December 3, 2013.  
 
Summary of Comment Received: 

• One individual submitted a comment via email, questioning whether 2010 Census data is the 
most accurate data set for rental rates, and providing updated SSI data. 

 

Response to Comment Received: 

• Census data is a generally accepted standard data set among researchers and practitioners. 
The 2010 Census data is the most reliable, readily available data source to determine 
median gross rent by census tract. While other rental rates data may be available from local 
sources, such data is not typically provided at the level required for the AI, and is generally 
proprietary. 

• The SSI payment amount was updated to reflect the amount that was current at the time of 
report drafting.  

The full transcription of the comment follows: 

Hello.  

I haven’t had a chance to read over all of the report, but it is immediately apparent that the 
map #3-12 (Median Gross Rent by Census Tract, 2010) is way off base and should not be utilized 
to get an accurate reading of our city’s housing situation. Surely more up-to-date and accurate 
information can be obtained by local entities, rather than relying on 2010 federal census data.  

On the following page (53) it indicates the monthly SSI payment is $698/month. That was prior 
to the last COLA, which brought it to today’s standard SSI monthly amount, which is $710. 

Thanks, BF  

Bart Farar 
Care Manager 
Meals on Wheels and More 
Austin, TX 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

         

 

 

 

 

INVITATION TO COMMENT ON THE 

DRAFT ANALYSIS OF IMPEDIMENTS TO 

FAIR HOUSING CHOICE 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


 

         

 

 

 

INVITACIÓN PARA COMENTAR SOBRE LA 

VERSIÓN PRELIMINAR DEL ANÁLISIS DE 

IMPEDIMENTOS A OPCIONES DE VIVIENDA JUSTA 

VUVUEBDAOUSING CHOICE 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


Item 23Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE 
REAPPOINTMENT OF MELVIN WRENN AND RICHARD MOYA TO THE 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF TRAVIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS FOR TERMS TO EXPIRE ON DECEMBER 31, 2016. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: IGR recommends that the Travis County 
Commissioners Court reappoint Melvin Wrenn (Place 1) and Richard Moya 
(Place 4) to the Housing Authority of Travis County Board of 
Commissioners for terms to run from January 1, 2014, to December 31, 
2016.   
 
BACKGROUND: The Travis County Commissioners Court makes five 
appointments to the Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) Board 
of Commissioners.1 Appointments are for two years, and there is no limit 
on the amount of terms an appointee may serve.2 At least one 
commissioner must be “a tenant of a public housing project over which the 
county housing authority has jurisdiction.”3 There are no other statutory 
prerequisites for service as a commissioner. Appointments to the HATC are 
governed by the Uniform Appointment Process adopted by the Court on 
March 6, 2012.  
 

1 TEX. LOCAL GOVT. CODE §392.032.  
 
2  TEX. LOCAL GOVT. CODE §392.034(a).  
 
3  TEX. LOCAL GOVT. CODE §392.0331(C). The current tenant member is Willie S. Anderson, whose term 

will expire on December 31, 2015.  
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 24Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

2 
 

The terms of two members of the Housing Authority board – Melvin Wrenn 
and Richard Moya -- expire at the end of this year.  
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: Because both members have been 
serving for less than six years, they are eligible for reappointment under 
Section 1.017(b)(1)(B) of the County Code, which provides:  
 

Reappointments.  Before expiration of a term, or upon a vacancy arising 
for an organization subject to this UAP, the County Judge shall … in the 
case of an existing organization member, that by the end of their term will 
not have served six years, instruct the Coordinator for Intergovernmental 
Relations (IGR) to determine if the member desires to continue for an 
additional term, and contact the organization to determine if the member 
has a good attendance of meetings and is a good contributor to the 
organization. Should the Coordinator for IGR submit an acceptable report 
to the County Judge, the County Judge shall schedule for Commissioners 
Court the consideration of the re-appointment. 

 
Both appointees have expressed interest in being reappointed, and have 
sent letters to that effect to Judge Biscoe. The Housing Authority has 
provided information regarding attendance and board participation for the 
two incumbents. The attendance record and letters of interest are attached.  
 
On a related issue not covered in this agenda item, the term of the Precinct 
1 appointee to the Strategic Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC), 
Melvin Wrenn, also expires at the end of this year.  
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  No fiscal impact.    
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 
NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 
WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 
REQUEST:   
 
Sherri Fleming 
County Executive, Health and Human Services & Veterans Services 
Phone:  854-4581 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 

3 
 

Email: Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Andrea Shields 
Corporations Administrator 
Phone:  854-9106 
Email:   andrea.shields@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Karen Thigpen 
Assistant Corporations Administrator 
Phone: 854-9106 
Email: karen.thigpen@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Debbie Honeycutt 
Housing Authority of Travis County, Texas 
Phone: 480-8245, x34  
Email: debbie@hatctx.com  
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Current membership of the HATC and SHFC boards, as of October 1, 

2014.  
2. Attendance Record provided by HATC, as of November 18, 2014. 
3. Letter from Mr. Melvin Wrenn re reappointment to HATC board, 

November 4, 2014.  
4. Letter from Mr. Richard Moya re reappointment to HATC board, 

November 4, 2014.  
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Place Name
Appointing 
Authority

Date(s) of 
Appointment

Current Term 
Expiration 
Date

Adopted* Term 
Expiration 
Date

5

Willie S. 
Anderson

Court 
Appointment

5/31/2011
reappointed
10/15/2013

N/A
12/31/2015

1

Melvin G. 
Wrenn

Court 
Appointment

10/13/1998
reappointed

12/11/12
N/A

12/31/2014

2

Sarah Dale 
Anderson 

Court 
Appointment

10/26/2010  
reappointed 
1/24/2012

reappointed
10/15/13

N/A

12/31/2015

3

Philip W. 
Barnes 

Court 
Appointment

9/8/2009 
reappointed 
10/25/2011
reappointed
10/15/2013

N/A

12/31/2015

4

Richard Moya Court 
Appointment

7/1/2003
reappointed

12/11/12
N/A

12/31/2014

* - ADOPTED by the Commissioners Court, 10/23/12, Item #26

Last updated -- 10/1/2014

(This agency is covered under the Uniform Appointment Process)

Housing Authority of Travis County, Texas

Board of Commissioners

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Dates Meeting Type Richard Moya Melvin Wrenn

12/20/2012 Special Absent Present

2/21/2013 Regular Present Present

4/18/2013 Regular Present Present

5/7/2013 Special Present Present

5/24/2013 Special Present Present

6/28/2013 Regular Present Present

7/16/2013

HATC & SHFC 

Planning Session Present Present

8/23/2013 Annnual Present Present

9/11/2013

HATC & SHFC

Planning Session Present Present

9/27/2013

HATC & SHFC 

Finance & Personnel  Present Present

10/16/2013 Regular Absent Present

11/8/2013 Planning Session Present Present

12/19/2013 Regular Present Present

2/20/2014 Regular Present Present

3/20/2014 Special Present Present

5/1/2014 Regular Present Present

6/23/2014 Regular Present Present

7/3/2014

HATC & SHFC 

Transition Committee Present Present

7/14/2014

HATC & SHFC 

Transition Committee Present Present

8/4/2014 Special Present Present

9/12/2014 Annual Present Present

10/23/2014 Special Present Present

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Melvin G. Wrenn 
8504 Mayview Dr. 

Austin, Texas 78724 
 

 

Dear Judge Biscoe: 

This is to confirm my interest in servicing another term at the Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) 
starting in January 2015. Presently my term expires at the end of the year. The housing authority is 
transitioning through the process of obtaining a new executive director. While the void is there, we have 
been successful. The goal is to acquire an executive director by year-end. 

Since taking over day-to-day management of HATC, we have received recognition by HUD with a High 
Performance designation. With this rating, the authority will qualify for grants and receive other benefits 
not available for more than seven years. There is much more work to be done to bring the expenses in 
line with the revenue, which should be resolved with the hiring of a housing authority professional.     

The housing authority faces many challenges; which include but is not limited to:  

• Continued decrease in funding from HUD; 
• While HUD funding is being reduced, all agencies are working with them to streamline the 

reporting structure, which challenges staff to adjust to new reporting systems and processes; 
• Increasing revenue through partnerships, real estate development ; such as, Low Income 

Housing Tax Credit programs; 
• Positive development in traditional areas of Travis County where NIMBY challenges would be 

present; and,  
• Obtaining an annual, on-going and consistent financial commitment from Strategic Housing 

Finance Corporation 

These are a few challenges. Most important, HATC has to create revenue opportunities to enhance its 
bottom line. This can only be done with committed board members who dedicated themselves to the 
preservation of Public Housing and make a commitment to assist those below 30 MFI.  

Please consider this request. 

Sincerely, 

 

Melvin G. Wrenn 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, December 2, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, (512) 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, (512) 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING TRAVIS 
COUNTY APPOINTMENTS TO THE CENTRAL HEALTH BOARD OF 
MANAGERS. 
 
SUMMARY AND IGR COORDINATOR RECOMMENDATION: 
Two Travis County appointees to the Central Health Board of Managers will 
no longer serve on that board after December 31, 2014. On October 21, 
the Court issued a Call for Applications for those two vacancies, with a 
deadline of Friday, November 21, 2014.  
 
IGR recommends that the Commissioners Court appoint a subcommittee 
consisting of at least one member of the Court and the County Executive 
for HHS&VS to review the applications submitted, recommend which 
applicants should be interviewed, and recommend a series of questions to 
be asked of candidates, said subcommittee to report back to the Court on 
Tuesday, December 9. IGR also recommends the Court schedule a work 
session to interview candidate for Thursday, December 11.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
Central Health/Travis County Healthcare District (TCHD) Board of 
Managers: 
 Nine members, with four-year staggered terms 

o Four appointed by the Travis County Commissioners Court 
o Four appointed by the Austin City Council 
o One appointed jointly by the two bodies 

 Two Travis County-appointed terms concluding at the end of 2014 
o Brenda Coleman-Beattie, terms ends December 31, 2014 
o Rebecca Lightsey, term ends December 31, 2015, resigning 

effective December 31, 2014 
 Subject to the Uniform Appointment Process 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 25Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: The Commissioners Court makes four 
appointments to the Travis County Healthcare District (DBA Central Health) 
Board of Managers. Additionally, the Commissioners Court and the Austin 
City Council jointly make one appointment to the nine-member board. Terms 
are for four years, and are staggered. The Board’s bylaws provide that the 
Managers serve until their re-appointment or the selection of their successor. 
There are no term restrictions on the Central Health board. The Central 
Health Board of Managers is subject to the Court’s Uniform Appointment 
Process (Travis County Code, Chapter 1, §1.017).   
 
The term of Brenda Coleman-Beattie will expire on December 31, 2014. 
Ms. Coleman-Beattie has been a member of the Board of Managers since 
March 31, 2009.  
 
In addition, Rebecca Lightsey has announced her intention to resign from 
the Board of Managers at the end of this year. Ms. Lightsey has been a 
member since March 15, 2011, and her current term expires on December 
31, 2015.  
 
In the past, the Court has insisted that the process for recruiting, vetting and 
selecting candidates for the Central Health board be thorough, inclusive and 
deliberate. On October 21, the Court approved a Call for Applications and an 
application packet, and set a deadline of Friday, November 21, for 
applications. As of Tuesday, November 18, five applications had been 
received. IGR will provide a full list of the applicants to members of the Court 
on Monday, November 24.   
 
On previous occasions, the Commissioners Court has appointed a 
subcommittee consisting of at least one member of the Court and the County 
Executive for HHS&VS to review the applications submitted, and also to 
recommend a series of questions to be asked of finalists.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Not applicable.    
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 

WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 

REQUEST:   
 
Sherri Fleming 
County Executive, Health and Human Services & Veterans Services 
Phone:  854-4581 
Email: Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us  
 
John Hille, Transactions Division Director 
Travis County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-9642 
Email: John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Prema Gregerson 
Travis County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-9224 
Email: Prema.Gregerson@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Beth Devery 
Travis County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-6654 
Email: Beth.Devery@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Ann-Marie Price, Director of Government Affairs 
Central Health 
Phone: 978-8179 
Email: annmarie.price@centralhealth.net  
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Current roster (redacted) of Central Health Board of Managers 

members, updated October 14, 2014.  
B. Travis County Commissioners Court, Adopted Process and Timetable 

for making two County appointments to the Central Health Board of 
Managers, October 21, 2014.  

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm

mailto:Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Prema.Gregerson@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Beth.Devery@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:annmarie.price@centralhealth.net


 Updated: October 24, 2014 

Central Health Board of Managers 
 

Current Membership First 
Appointed 

Date(s) 
Reappointed 

Term 
Expires 

City of Austin Appointees 

Katrina Daniel, R.N., Vice-Chair  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell 

07/23/09 01/27/11 12/31/14 

Thomas Coopwood, M.D.  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell  
Representing: City resident, if applicable 

01/01/08 12/08/11 12/31/15 

Rosie Mendoza, C.P.A 
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell  
Representing: City resident, if applicable 

08/01/04 03/05/09 
01/17/13 12/31/16 

Lynne Hudson, R.N.-C, M.P.H., Secretary  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell 

04/21/11 12/12/13  12/31/17 

Travis County Appointees 

Brenda Coleman-Beattie, M.A., Chair 
Contact Phone:  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

03/31/09 10/05/10 12/31/14 

Rebecca Lightsey, Treasurer 
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

03/18/11 10/25/11 12/31/15 

Guadalupe Zamora, M.D.  
Contact Phone:  
Email Address:  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

01/15/13  12/31/16 

Clarke Heidrick, J.D.  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

08/01/05 12/29/09 
12/10/13 12/31/17 

Joint Appointee 

William “Kirk” Kuykendall, J.D.  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Outside  
Representing: City Council & Travis County 

06/07/13   12/31/16 

 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



ATTACHMENT B 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT (CENTRAL HEALTH) 

BOARD OF MANAGERS APPOINTMENT 
Proposed Process and Timetable 

 
2014 
 
October 21 Commissioners Court adopts selection process for Central 

Health Board of Managers appointments and issues Call 
for Applications 

 
November 21 Deadline for submission of applications 
 
November 25 IGR updates Court on status of applications  
 Court appoints task group to review applications 
 
December 9 Task Group updates Court on its review of applications  
 Court decides how many, which candidates to interview 
 
December 11  Commissioners Court work session interviews with 
 finalists (if necessary) 

 40-minute interviews with each candidate 
 Prepared list of questions to be asked of each 

candidate 
 Open, but untelevised, session 

  
December 16  Commissioners Court selects Travis County appointees to 

Central Health Board of Managers for terms ending on 
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2018.  

 
 
 

Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



 
 
 
Meeting Date:  December 2, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding 
payment for STAR Flight services rendered to Billy Callahan.  Executive Session also 
pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(B). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 26Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 27Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 28Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item 32Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Item C3Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm



Created 11-26-14 at 3:52 pm


	Item 01
	Item 02
	Item 03
	Agenda Request Form PY 2013 CAPER Public Hearing
	Meeting Date:  December 2, 2014
	Prepared By/Phone Number:   Martha Brown / 854-3465
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:

	PY13 CAPER. Public Hearing
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15

	PY13 Public Meeting.SPN
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15


	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	11937 : Contract 4400002300; Judge W. Jeanne Meurer/Juvenile Justice Solutions
	Executive Summary
	Memo from JPD
	PSA COPY SIGNED BY MEURER


	Item 13
	12009 : Cont. Award IFB 1410-004-RF, Flat Tire and Tube Repair
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Flat Tire and Tube Repair Award Memo
	Tabulation Excel


	Item 14
	12010 : Surplus Chair
	Agenda Request for Sealed Bid CC 12022014
	DC chair memo


	Item 15
	12014 : Contract Award, Countywide Painting Svcs, GG's Construction
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	FMD Recommendation memo and bid tab
	4400002332, Countywide Painting Services


	Item 16
	Agenda Packet - LWTP Revised vs 11-25-14.pdf
	Agenda Packet - LWTP vs 11-25-2014
	Exhibit_A_PublicEngagement_C.pdf
	Cover 20141114
	Credits page 20141114
	Full Report 20141113 v2.pdf
	Full Report 20141113 v2
	TOC 20141113.pdf
	Full Report 20141113
	Full Report 20141113
	Binder8.pdf
	Binder7.pdf
	Binder6.pdf
	Binder5.pdf
	Binder4.pdf
	Binder3.pdf
	LWTP Public Engagement Report - Survey Results 20141029

	All Comments Combined
	Comments for Appendix
	Conservation Comments for Appendix
	Transportation Comments for Appendix


	Community Meeting Notes Combined
	Community Meeting Notes AISD 20140816
	Community Meeting Notes Austin Neighoborhoods Council 20140827
	Community Meeting Notes Bee Cave Rotary 20140819
	Community Meeting Notes COA 20140929
	Community Meeting Notes Hope Farmers' Market 20140907
	Community Meeting Notes Lago Vista Planning Commission 20140911
	Community Meeting Notes Lake Travis Chamber of Commerce 20140917
	Community Meeting Notes Lakeway City Council 20140915
	Community Meeting Notes Lakeway Mens Breakfast Club 20140925
	Community Meeting Notes Manor ISD 20140822
	Community Meeting Notes NW Kiwanis 20140819
	Community Meeting Notes RECA 20140811
	Community Meeting Notes SFC Farmers' Market 20140902
	Community Meeting Notes SFPB 20140811


	All Public Meeting Notes 20141105

	Website Analytics

	Travis County Commissioners Court Page

	Prepared by Transportation and Natural Resources



	Appendix.pdf


	Exhibit B_Staff Recommendations.pdf
	Exhibit B: Staff Recommendations
	TNR Staff Recommendations
	November 2014
	The comments addressed in this report were received through two venues.  Respondents could complete an online Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (LWTP) Survey about transportation, development, and conservation.  They could also submit comments via ...


	Exhibit D_Rev_Growth_Guidance_C.pdf
	Blank Page

	Exhibit E_Background_C.pdf
	Responses:
	 Build new passenger rail lines- 20¢
	 Implement new transit routes and improve bus service- 14¢
	 Add lanes to existing roadways- 12¢
	 Make safety and operational improvements to the existing transportation system- 11¢
	 Improve maintenance of existing transportation system- 11¢
	 Construct bicycle lanes and sidewalks- 10¢
	 Build new freeways- 8¢
	 Build new arterial roadways- 7¢
	 Add high-occupancy vehicle or other managed lanes to highways- 7¢
	INADEQUATE TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING SOURCES
	Appendix_All_3_14_14.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	Exhibit F_Select Plans_C.pdf
	Fine and Fee Revenue (R&B Fund)
	Transition Plan
	Designated Responsible Official
	Obstacle Inventory
	Schedule for Improvements
	Process for Prioritizing Sidewalk Improvements
	Priority Summary



	Back up - LWTP Exhibit A_Public Engagement Report
	Cover 20141114
	TOC 20141118
	LWTP Public Engagement Report 20141118
	Survey Section 20141118
	Appendix TOC 20141118
	Appendix A General Written Comments 20141118
	Appendix B Comments on Land Conservation 20141117
	Appendix C Comments on Development and Transportation 20141117
	Appendix D Community Meeting Notes 20141118
	Community Meeting Notes RECA 20140811
	Community Meeting Notes SFPB 20140811
	Community Meeting Notes AISD 20140816
	Community Meeting Notes Bee Cave Rotary 20140819
	Community Meeting Notes NW Kiwanis 20140819
	Community Meeting Notes Manor ISD 20140822
	Community Meeting Notes Austin Neighoborhoods Council 20140827
	Community Meeting Notes SFC Farmers' Market 20140902
	Community Meeting Notes Chamber 20140904
	Community Meeting Notes Hope Farmers' Market 20140907
	Community Meeting Notes Lago Vista Planning Commission 20140911
	Community Meeting Notes Lakeway City Council 20140915
	Community Meeting Notes Lake Travis Chamber of Commerce 20140917
	Community Meeting Notes Lakeway Mens Breakfast Club 20140925
	Community Meeting Notes COA 20140929

	Apendix E Public Meeting Notes 20141117
	Website Analytics
	Appendix G Written Comments after 10-1 20141118

	Back up - LWTP Exhibit B_Staff Report_C
	Staff’s analysis of input received from the public and associated recommendations are provided herein. The comments addressed in this report were received through two venues.  Respondents could complete the online Land, Water, and Transportation Plan ...
	Survey results include answers to both specific and open-ended questions about conservation, development, and transportation.  Although questions were based on proposed LWTP policies, answering them did not require knowledge of the LWTP.  Responses to...
	Survey results and written comments are provided in the Public Engagement Report.

	Back up - LWTP Exhibit C_ExecutiveSummary_C
	Back up - LWTP Exhibit D_Rev_Growth_Guidance_C
	Blank Page

	Back up - LWTP Exhibit E_Background_C
	Responses:
	 Build new passenger rail lines- 20¢
	 Implement new transit routes and improve bus service- 14¢
	 Add lanes to existing roadways- 12¢
	 Make safety and operational improvements to the existing transportation system- 11¢
	 Improve maintenance of existing transportation system- 11¢
	 Construct bicycle lanes and sidewalks- 10¢
	 Build new freeways- 8¢
	 Build new arterial roadways- 7¢
	 Add high-occupancy vehicle or other managed lanes to highways- 7¢
	INADEQUATE TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING SOURCES
	Appendix_All_3_14_14.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	Back up - LWTP Exhibit F_Select Plans_C
	Fine and Fee Revenue (R&B Fund)
	Transition Plan
	Designated Responsible Official
	Obstacle Inventory
	Schedule for Improvements
	Process for Prioritizing Sidewalk Improvements
	Priority Summary




	Item 17
	Agenda Packet - AI_Lady of the Lake Cove insert needed vs 12-2-14
	Agenda Packet - AI_Lady of the Lake Cove insert only .vs 12-2-14 insert only

	Item 18
	Comments on TC Chapter 48 rules revision with attachments.pdf
	Comments on TC Chapter 48 rules revision
	Wisconsin SF column study-reduced
	NOWRA 2008 DRIP IRRIGATION


	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Agenda Request_PY14 Grant Agreement_120214
	RE_ CDBG PY14 Grant Agreement_County Attorney approval
	PY14 Grant Agreement_Unsigned

	Item 22
	Agenda Request_FinalAIApproval
	N/A

	Final AI_42314
	Appendix B title page
	Fair Housing Action Plan_Revised 100114
	Sheet1

	Appendix C title page
	Public Comment 9.15.14
	AI Public Comment Announcement_English-vfinal
	AI Public Comment Announcement_Spanish-vfinal

	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item 27
	Item 28
	Item 32
	Item C3



